
April 10, 2023 – Regular Meeting Agenda – 7:00 p.m. 
 
Printed on Recycled Paper         See Reverse 

 

47+---  

 April 10, 2023 – City Council Regular Meeting – 7:00 p.m. 

 

 

City Council Chamber 
390 Towne Centre Drive 

Lathrop, California 
(209) 941-7200 

www.ci.lathrop.ca.us 
 

City Council 
Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor 

Paul Akinjo, Vice Mayor 

Minnie Diallo 

Diane Lazard 

Jennifer Torres-O’Callaghan 

 
 

City Staff 
Stephen Salvatore, City Manager 

Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney 

Michael King, Assistant City Manager  

Teresa Vargas, Government Services 
Director / City Clerk 

Brad Taylor, City Engineer 

Tony Fernandes, Information Systems Director  

Cari James, Finance Director  

Juliana Burns, Human Resources Director  

Mark Meissner, Community Development 
Director 

Todd Sebastian, Parks, Recreation and 
Maintenance Services Director 

Raymond Bechler, Chief of Police  
 

 

General Order of Business 
1. Preliminary 

• Call to Order 
• Closed Session  
• Roll Call 
• Invocation 
• Pledge of Allegiance 
• Announcements by Mayor/City Mgr. 
• Informational Items 
• Declaration of Conflict of Interest 

2. Presentations 
3. Citizen’s Forum 
4. Consent Calendar 
5. Scheduled Items 

• Public Hearings 
• Appeals 
• Referrals and Reports from 

Commissions and Committees 
• All Other Staff Reports and/or Action 

Items 
• Study Sessions 

6. Council Communications 
7. Adjournment 

 
Order of Discussion  
Generally, the order of discussion after introduction 
of an item by the Mayor will include comments and 
information by staff followed by City Council 
questions and inquiries. The applicant, or their 
authorized representative, or interested residents, 
may then speak on the item; each speaker may only 
speak once to each item. At the close of public 
discussion, the item will be considered by the City 
Council and action taken. 
 
Consent Calendar 
Items on the Consent Calendar are considered 
routine by the City Council and will be enacted by one 
motion and one vote. There will be no separate 
discussion of these items unless a Councilmember or 
interested resident so requests, in which case the 
item will be removed from the Consent Calendar and 
considered separately.  

 

1

http://www.ci.lathrop.ca.us/


April 10, 2023 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 1 

IMPORTANT NOTICE REGARDING THIS MEETING & COVID-19 

This public meeting will be conducted in person; all members of the City Council will attend 
in person. Members of the public are welcomed in person. Please adhere to COVID-19 and 
social distancing guidelines. This meeting will also be available for public participation by 
teleconference via ZoomGov at the following link: 

https://www.zoomgov.com/j/1612312064?pwd=YTlKUWhyaU5QOU
VWMFZGZlNqMXJBUT09 

During the meeting, those joining by ZoomGov, will be allowed to speak prior to the 
close of public comment on an item. If you are using this method, please “raise the 
hand” feature to inform the City Clerk (meeting host) you wish to speak on the matter. 
Please ensure your computer speaker and microphone are fully functional.  

For audio / calling in only, dial: +1 (669) 254-5252 or +1 (669) 216-1590 
o To request to speak (same as the “raise hand” feature) press *9 / When the

City Clerk calls your name, press *6 to unmute.

Meeting Webinar ID: 161 231 2064/ Passcode: 978984 

If you are not able to attend the meeting in person or virtually - Public 
comment/questions will be accepted by email to City Clerk Teresa Vargas at 
website_cco@ci.lathrop.ca.us  or by calling (209) 941-7230  

Questions or comments must be submitted by 4:00 p.m., on the day of the meeting. 

To address City Council in person, please submit a purple card to the City Clerk 
indicating name, address, and number of the item upon which a person wishes to 
speak.  

Council Meetings are live-streamed (with Closed Captioning) on Comcast Cable Channel 97, 
and on the City Council Webpage: https://www.ci.lathrop.ca.us/citycouncil/page/live-stream 

Addressing the Council 

Any person may speak once on any item under discussion by the City Council after receiving 
recognition by the Mayor. Purple speaker cards will be available prior to and during the 
meeting. To address City Council, a card must be submitted to the City Clerk indicating name, 
address and number of the item upon which a person wishes to speak. When addressing the 
City Council, please walk to the lectern located in front of the City Council. State your name 
and address. In order to ensure all persons have the opportunity to speak, a time limit will 
be set by the Mayor for each speaker (see instructions on speaker form). In the interest of 
time, each speaker may only speak once on each individual agenda item; please limit your 
comments to new material; do not repeat what a prior speaker has said. If you challenge the 
nature of a proposed action in court, you may be limited to raising only those issues you or 
someone else raised at the public hearing described in this notice, or in written 
correspondence delivered to the City Council at, or prior to, the public hearing. 

2

https://www.zoomgov.com/j/1612312064?pwd=YTlKUWhyaU5QOUVWMFZGZlNqMXJBUT09
https://www.zoomgov.com/j/1612312064?pwd=YTlKUWhyaU5QOUVWMFZGZlNqMXJBUT09
mailto:website_cco@ci.lathrop.ca.us
https://www.ci.lathrop.ca.us/citycouncil/page/live-stream


 

April 10, 2023 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 2 

Citizen’s Forum 

Any person desiring to speak on a matter, which is not scheduled on this agenda, may do so 
under the Citizen’s Forum section. Please submit your purple speaker card to the City Clerk 
prior to the commencement of Citizen’s Forum, or submit your request to speak via the “raise 
hand” feature in ZoomGov. Only those who have submitted speaker cards, or have expressed 
an interest to speak, prior to the conclusion of Citizen’s Forum will be called upon to speak. 
Please be aware the California Government Code prohibits the City Council from taking any 
immediate action on an item, which does not appear on the agenda, unless the item meets 
stringent statutory requirements. The Mayor will limit the length of your presentation (see 
instructions on speaker form) and each speaker may only speak once on this agenda item. 
Please note, the Council Chamber has limited occupancy due to social distancing.  
 
To leave a voice message for all Councilmembers simultaneously, dial (209) 941-7230. To 
send an e-mail for Councilmembers simultaneously email: citycouncil@ci.lathrop.ca.us. This 
City Council Agenda and meeting materials can be accessed by computer or any smart device 
at: https://www.ci.lathrop.ca.us/meetings  
 
General Information 

For reports citing supplemental documents relating to specific agenda items, these are 
available for review in the City Clerk’s Office. This agenda was posted at the following 
locations:  City Hall, Community Center, Generations Center, Senior Center, and the Lathrop-
Manteca Fire District “J" Street and Somerston Parkway Offices. The meetings of the Lathrop 
City Council are broadcast on Lathrop Comcast Cable Television Channel 97 and live streamed 
on the City’s website. 
 
Assistance will be provided to those requiring accommodations for disabilities in compliance 
with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting 
will enable the City to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility and/or 
accommodations to this meeting. [28 CFR 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II] Interested persons 
must request the accommodation at least 2 working days in advance of the meeting by 
contacting the City Clerk at (209) 941-7230. Information about the City or items scheduled 
on the Agenda may be referred to: 
 

Teresa Vargas, MMC 
Government Services Director / City Clerk  

390 Towne Centre Drive 
Lathrop, CA 95330 

Telephone: (209) 941-7230  

3

mailto:citycouncil@ci.lathrop.ca.us.
https://www.ci.lathrop.ca.us/meetings


 

April 10, 2023 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 3 

CITY OF LATHROP 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 

MONDAY, APRIL 10, 2023  
7:00 P.M. 

COUNCIL CHAMBER, CITY HALL 
390 Towne Centre Drive 

Lathrop, CA 95330 
 

AGENDA 
 
PLEASE NOTE: There will be no Closed Session. The Regular Meeting will 
begin at 7:00 p.m. 
 
 
1. PRELIMINARY 

 
1.1 CALL TO ORDER 

 
1.2 ROLL CALL  

 
1.3 INVOCATION 

 
1.4 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
1.5 ANNOUNCEMENT(S) BY MAYOR / CITY MANAGER 

 
1.6 INFORMATIONAL ITEM(S) – NONE 

 
1.7 DECLARATION OF CONFLICT(S) OF INTEREST 
 
 

2. PRESENTATIONS  
 
2.1 CERTIFICATE OF RECOGNITION TO THE LATHROP HIGH SCHOOL 

GIRLS BASKETBALL TEAM 
 

2.2 RECOGNITION OF MARK MEISSNER, DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT, FOR OVER 33 YEARS OF PUBLIC SERVICE 
 

2.3 INTRODUCTION OF NEW EMPLOYEES: 
 
Parks, Recreation and Maintenance Services Department  

• Frank Rivera, Maintenance Services Supervisor 
• Austin Fox, Maintenance Worker 
• Andrea Brown, Sr. Recreation Leader 
• Harpreet Banwait, Sr. Recreation Leader 

 

4



 

April 10, 2023 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 4 

Public Works Department 
• Gilbert Gaeta, Maintenance Worker  

 
Lathrop Police Department 

• Aaron Vanlue, Police Officer 
• Taylor Dominguez, Police Officer 

 
2.4 QUARTERLY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PRESENTATION  

 
 

3. CITIZEN’S FORUM 
 
Any person desiring to speak on a matter, which is not scheduled on this 
agenda, may do so under Citizen’s Forum. Please submit a purple speaker card 
to the City Clerk prior to the commencement of Citizen’s Forum. Only those 
who have submitted speaker cards, or have expressed an interest to speak, 
prior to the conclusion of Citizen’s Forum will be called upon to speak. Please 
be aware the California Government Code prohibits the City Council from 
taking any immediate action on an item, which does not appear on the agenda, 
unless the item meets stringent statutory requirements. The City Council can, 
however, allow its members or staff to briefly (no more than five (5) minutes) 
respond to statements made, to ask questions for clarification, make a brief 
announcement or report on his or her own activities. (See California 
Government Code Section 54954.2(a)). Unless directed otherwise by a 
majority of the City Council, all questions asked and not answered at the 
meeting will be responded to in writing within 10 business days. ALL PUBLIC 
COMMENTS MUST BE MADE IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE LATHROP CITY 
COUNCIL HANDBOOK OF RULES AND PROCEDURES! 
 

4. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
Items on the Consent Calendar are considered routine by the City Council and 
will be enacted by one motion and one vote. There will be no separate 
discussion of these items unless the Mayor, Councilmember, or citizen so 
requests, in which event the item will be removed from the Consent Calendar 
and considered separately. 

 
4.1 WAIVING OF READING OF ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS 

Waive the Reading in Full of Ordinances and Resolutions on Agenda and 
Adopt by Reading of Title Only, Unless Otherwise Requested by the 
Mayor or a Councilmember  
 

4.2 APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
Approve Minutes for the Special Council Meeting of January 23, 2023, 
and Regular Meeting of February 13, 2023 
 

5



 

April 10, 2023 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 5 

4.3 SECOND READING AND ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE 23-444 OF THE CITY 
COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP AMENDING THE LATHROP 
MUNICIPAL CODE TITLE 10 VEHICLES AND TRAFFIC, CHAPTER 10.08 
SPEED LIMITS SECTION 10.08.030 “SPEED LIMITS” 
Waive Full Reading and Adopt Ordinance 23-444 Amending Lathrop 
Municipal Code Title 10 Vehicles and Traffic, Chapter 10.08 Speed Limits 
Section 10.08.030 “Speed Limits” 
 

4.4 ACCEPTANCE OF THE CITY OF LATHROP ANNUAL COMPREHENSIVE 
FINANCIAL REPORT (ACFR) FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 
2022 
Adopt Resolution Accepting the City of Lathrop Annual Comprehensive 
Financial Report (ACFR) for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2022 
 

4.5 APPROVE MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING WITH LATHROP POLICE 
OFFICERS ASSOCIATION, ADOPT A BENEFIT PLAN FOR THE 
UNREPRESENTED CLASSIFICATIONS OF COMMANDER AND 
LIEUTENANT, AND ADOPT A RECRUITMENT INCENTIVE PLAN FOR 
SWORN CLASSIFICATIONS 
Adopt Resolution Approving a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) 
with the Lathrop Police Officers Association (LPOA), Adopt a Benefit Plan 
for the Unrepresented Commander and Lieutenant Classifications, and 
Adopt a Recruitment Incentive Plan 
 

4.6 APPROVE OF OUT-OF-STATE TRAVEL FOR ONE (1) LATHROP POLICE 
DEPARTMENT SERGEANT TO ATTEND CANINE PROGRAM MANAGEMENT 
COURSE IN MAY 2023 
Adopt Resolution Approving Out-of-State Travel for One (1) Lathrop 
Police Department Sergeant to Attend the Canine Program Management 
Course in South Lake Tahoe, Nevada from May 2, 2023 to May 4, 2023 
 

4.7 APPROVE AMENDMENT NO. 2 WITH ROBERT HALF INTERNATIONAL, 
INC. TO PROVIDE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES IN THE BUILDING 
DEPARTMENT FOR THE ENERGOV IMPLEMENTATION 
Adopt Resolution Approving Amendment No. 2 with Robert Half 
International, Inc. to provide Professional Services in the Building 
Department for the Energov Implementation 
 

4.8 APPROVE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH BUTLER 
AMUSEMENTS, INC. TO PROVIDE LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES FOR 
ANNUAL CARNIVAL EVENT ON APRIL 20, 2023 THROUGH APRIL 23, 
2023 
Adopt Resolution Approving Professional Services Agreement with Butler 
Amusement, Inc. to Provide Law Enforcement Services for their Annual 
Carnival Event on April 20, 2023 through April 23, 2023 
 

6



 

April 10, 2023 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 6 

4.9 APPROVE COMMUNITY PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY 
OF LATHROP AND THE JUNETEENTH COMMITTEE TO COMMEMORATE 
THE JUNETEENTH NATIONAL INDEPENDENCE DAY FEDERAL HOLIDAY 
Adopt Resolution Approving a Community Partnership Agreement 
between the City of Lathrop and the Juneteenth Committee to 
Commemorate the Juneteenth National Independence Day Federal 
Holiday 
 

4.10 APPROVE FISCAL YEAR 2023-24 PROJECT LIST ASSOCIATED WITH 
SENATE BILL 1  
Adopt Resolution Approving a List of Projects for Fiscal Year 2023-24 
Funded By Senate Bill 1, the Road Repair and Accountability Act of 2017 

 
4.11 APPROVE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH ROBERTSON-

BRYAN, INC., FOR THE CITY’S INDUSTRIAL PRETREATMENT PROGRAM 
Adopt Resolution Approving a Professional Services Agreement with 
Robertson-Bryan, Inc., for the City’s Industrial Pretreatment Program 
 

4.12 APPROVE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH FGL 
ENVIRONMENTAL FOR WATER QUALITY LABORATORY SERVICES FOR 
THE CITY’S DRINKING WATER PROGRAM AND CTF WASTEWATER 
PERMIT COMPLIANCE 
Adopt Resolution Approving a Professional Services Agreement with FGL 
Environmental for Water Quality Laboratory Services for the City of 
Lathrop’s Drinking Water Program and Consolidated Treatment Facility 
Wastewater Permit Compliance 
 

4.13 APPROVE CONTRACT CHANGE ORDER NO. 3 AND NO. 4 WITH CUSHMAN 
CONTRACTING CORPORATION FOR THE CTF DECHLORINATION 
FACILITY OF SURFACE WATER DISCHARGE, CIP WW 20-17 AND 
APPROVE BUDGET AMENDMENT 
Adopt Resolution Approving Contract Change Order No. 3 and No. 4 with 
Cushman Contracting Corporation for the CTF Dechlorination Facility of 
Surface Water Discharge, CIP WW 20-17 and Approving Budget 
Amendment 

 
4.14 APPROVE PURCHASE FROM ZIMA CORPORATION FOR HEADWORKS 

EQUIPMENT FOR THE CONSOLIDATED TREATMENT FACILITY PHASE 3 
EXPANSION, CIP WW 22-38 AND APPROVE BUDGET AMENDMENT 
Adopt Resolution Approving a Purchase from Zima Corporation for 
Headworks Equipment for the Consolidated Treatment Facility Phase 3 
Expansion, CIP WW 22-38 and Approve Budget Amendment 
 

4.15 RATIFY SAN JOAQUIN COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS’ ANNUAL FINANCIAL 
PLAN 
Adopt Resolution Ratifying the San Joaquin Council of Governments 
(SJCOG) Annual Financial Plan for FY 2023-24 

7



 

April 10, 2023 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 7 

4.16 RATIFY CITY MANAGER'S EXECUTION OF A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT 
WITH NOR-CAL CONCRETE COMPANY FOR TEMPORARY ANIMAL 
SHELTER CONCRETE, CIP GG 23-06 AND APPROVE BUDGET 
AMENDMENT 
Adopt Resolution Ratifying City Manager's Execution of a Construction 
Contract with Nor-Cal Concrete Company for the Temporary Animal 
Shelter Concrete, CIP GG 23-06 and Approving Budget Amendment 

 
4.17 RATIFY CITY MANAGER’S SIGNATURE AND APPROVE OPTION AND 

TOWER LEASE AGREEMENT WITH VERIZON WIRELESS FOR USE OF 
CITY OWNED TOWER 
Adopt Resolution Ratifying City Manager’s Signature and Approving 
Option and Tower Lease Agreement with Verizon Wireless for Use of City 
Tower 

 
4.18 RATIFY THE PURCHASE OF CAMERA SURVEILLANCE SYSTEMS FOR 

MAJOR CITY PARKS, CIP GG 22-35  
Adopt a Resolution Ratifying a Service Contract with ICU Technologies, 
Inc. and Approve Purchase of Hardware and Services for Network 
Infrastructure from Various Vendors for Major City Parks CIP 22-35   
 

4.19 CREATE CIP PS 23-18 FOR MCKINLEY AVENUE PAVEMENT 
REHABILITATION, AND APPROVE BUDGET AMENDMENT 
Adopt Resolution Creating CIP PS 23-18 for McKinley Avenue Pavement 
Rehabilitation and Approving Budget Amendment 
 

4.20 GRAND JURY REPORT RESPONSE UPDATE 
Direct the City Attorney to Submit a Letter to the Presiding Judge of the 
San Joaquin County Superior Court Responding with an Update to the 
Findings and Recommendations of the Grand Jury Report on 
Cybersecurity 
 
 

RIVER ISLANDS DEVELOPMENT CONSENT ITEM(S) 
 

4.21 AUTHORIZE THE FORMATION OF COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT 
NO. 2023-1 (RIVER ISLANDS PUBLIC SERVICES AND FACILITIES #2) 
Adopt Resolution of Intention to Establish City of Lathrop Community 
Facilities District No.  2023-1 (River Islands Public Services and Facilities 
#2) and a Future Annexation Area to Finance Public Services and 
Facilities 

  

8



 

April 10, 2023 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 8 

4.22 ACCEPT PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS FROM RIVER ISLANDS DEVELOPMENT, 
LLC FOR TRACTS 3994, 3995, 4015, 4016, 4020, 4021, 4030, 4031, 
4060, 4111, AND ACCEPT RIVER ISLANDS PARKWAY WITH 
ASSOCIATED CONDITION 
Adopt Resolution to Approve Public Improvements from River Islands 
Development, LLC for Tracts 3994, 3995, 4015, 4016, 4020, 4021, 
4030, 4031, 4060, 4111, and Approve River Islands Parkway with 
Associated Condition 
  
 

5. SCHEDULED ITEMS  
 

5.1 PUBLIC HEARING (PUBLISHED NOTICE) TO CONSIDER MUNICIPAL 
CODE AMENDMENT TO (1) ADOPT AN ORDINANCE TO ADD CHAPTER 
17.78 HOTEL LIMITATIONS AND MODIFY SECTION 17.62.072 OF THE 
CENTRAL LATHROP COMMERCIAL OFFICE ZONING DISTRICT OF THE 
LATHROP MUNICIPAL CODE; (2) ADOPT A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE 
PERMITTED AND CONDITIONAL LAND USE LIST FOR MOSSDALE 
LANDING, MOSSDALE LANDING EAST, AND MOSSDALE LANDING 
SOUTH URBAN DESIGN CONCEPTS TO REGULATE AND LIMIT HOTEL 
DEVELOPMENT IN THE CENTRAL LATHROP SPECIFIC PLAN AND 
MOSSDALE VILLAGE (TA-23-32) 
Council to Consider the Following: 

1. Hold a Public Hearing; and 
2. First Reading and Introduce an Ordinance to Add Chapter 17.78 

Hotel Limitations and modify Section 17.62.072 of the Central 
Lathrop Commercial Office Zoning District of the Lathrop 
Municipal Code; and 

3. Adopt a Resolution Amending the Permitted and Conditional Land 
Use List for Mossdale Landing, Mossdale Landing East, and 
Mossdale Landing South Urban Design Concepts to Regulate and 
Limit Hotel Development in the Central Lathrop Specific Plan and 
Mossdale Village 
 

5.2 RECEIVE UPDATE FOR AQUIFER STORAGE AND RECOVERY, APPROVE 
AMENDMENT NO. 1 WITH CAROLLO ENGINEERS, INC. CIP PW 22-36 
AND APPROVE BUDGET AMENDMENT 
Adopt Resolution Approving Amendment No. 1 with Carollo Engineers, 
Inc. for the Aquifer Storage and Recovery, CIP PW 22-36 and Approving 
Budget Amendment 
 
CEQA STATUS: Staff has determined the CEQA status for the project to 
date as exempt according to California Environmental Quality Act Article 
18 §15262, “Feasibility and Planning Studies” 

 
  

9



 

April 10, 2023 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 9 

6. COUNCIL COMMUNICATIONS  
 

6.1 MAYOR DHALIWAL REFERRAL: Set Application Deadline for Appointment 
of One (1) Representative to the San Joaquin County Commission on 
Aging with Existing Term Ending June 30, 2023, in addition to a Full 
Three (3) Year Term Ending June 30, 2026, due to Unexpired Term 
Vacancy 

 
6.2 MAYOR & COUNCILMEMBER COMMITTEE REPORT(S) 

• Central Valley Executive Committee/LOCC (Akinjo/Diallo) 
• Council of Governments (Lazard/Diallo) 
• Integrated Waste Management Solid Waste Division (Akinjo/Torres-

O’Callaghan) 
• Reclamation District 17 Joint Powers Authority (Salvatore) 
• San Joaquin Partnership Board of Directors (Salvatore)  
• San Joaquin County Commission on Aging (Unexpired Vacancy) 
• San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District (Akinjo/Dhaliwal) 
• Water Advisory Board (Torres-O’Callaghan/Lazard) 
• Tri Valley-San Joaquin Valley Regional Rail Authority (Akinjo) 
• San Joaquin Area Flood Control Agency (Akinjo & Lazard) 
• LAFCo (Diallo) 

 
6.3 MAYOR & COUNCILMEMBER COMMENT(S) 

 
7. ADJOURNMENT  

 
 
 

/Teresa Vargas/ 
Teresa Vargas, MMC 
Government Services Director/ 
City Clerk  

 

10



ITEM 4. 2

CITY OF LATHROP

CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING

MONDAY, 7ANUARY 23, 2023, 6: 00 P. M.

COUNCIL CHAMBER, CITY HALL

390 Towne Centre Drive, Lathrop, CA 95330

MINUTES

PLEASE NOTE: There was a C/ osed Session, which commenced at 5: 32 p. m.  The

Soecial Meetinq reconvened at 6; 15 a. m,

1.       PRELIMINARY

1. 1 CALL TO ORDER - Mayor Dhaliwal called the meeting to order at 5: 32
p. m.

1. 2 CLOSED SESSION

1. 2. 1 CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL:  Anticipated Litigation  -

Significant Exposure to Litigation Pursuant to Government Code

Section 54956. 9( b) and 54956. 9( e)( 1)

2 Potential Case( s)

RECONVENE - Mayor Dhaliwal reconvened the meeting at 6: 15 p. m.

1. 2. 2 REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION

City Attorney Salvador Navarrete reported that direction was

provided pursuant to Item 1. 2; no other reportable action taken.

1. 3 ROLL CALL Present:       Mayor Dhaliwal; Vice Mayor Akinjo; and

Councilmembers: Diallo, Lazard and Torres-

O' Callaghan

Absent: None

1. 4 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  -  Councilmember Lazard led the pledge of
allegiance.

1. 5 DECLARATION OF CONFLICT( S) OF INTEREST

No conflicts of interest declared.

January 23, 2023 Lathrop City Council Special Meeting Minutes Page 1

11



2.       SCHEDULED ITEM( S)

2. 1 PRESENTATION REGARDING THE CITY' S CODE COMPLIANCE AND

ENFORCEMENTPROCESS

Assistant City Manager Michael King provided a brief summary and
introduced Consultant Pete Roque, Director of Code Enforcement with

4Leaf,  Inc.  Mr.  Roque provided the presentation,  which included an

overview of the current code compliance process, information on code
compliance functions, and tools available for enforcement procedures.
A question and answer period ensued throughout the presentation.  City
Manager Stephen Salvatore and Assistant City Manager Michael King
provided additional information.

The City Council received information and options related to code
compliance options and enforcement procedures.  The City Council
discussed the options presented and provide direction to stafF on moving
forward with an educational and proactive approach, which included an
eight step process aimed to educate the noncompliant party into
compliance. The eight step process was summarized as follows:

1.  Complaint received ( reactive approach);

2.  Staff conducts inspection and assesses the complaint;
3.  If required, staff issues courtesy notice and/ or provides in- person

education and solutions ( non- punitive);
4.  Staff creates a follow- up inspection for compliance   ( the

timeframe varies);

5.  Staff will conduct a follow- up.  If needed, staff will send a " Notice

of Violation" with citation anguage and a timeline for compliance
6.  Staff will conduct a follow- up inspection and issue citations for

non- compliance ($ 100 per violation on the first notice; $ 200 per
violation on the second notice; and $ 500 per violation on the third
notice);

7.  Staff will have an office meeting prior to initiating further
enforcement actions; and

8.  Staff pursues appropriate legal tools,   such as abatement,

recordation, criminal, and or civil procedures.

2. 2 PRESENTATION REGARDING THE AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT

FUNDING ALLOCATION

City Manager Stephen Salvatore provided a brief summary.  Deputy
Finance Director Thomas Hedegard provided the presentation,  which

included an overview of the American Rescue Plant Act ( ARPA), current

regulations that allow local governments to utilize funds, and summary
of how surrounding cities have utilized their portion of the funds. Staff
also proposed the following ARPA programs for the City of Lathrop,
summarized as follows:

January 23, 2023 Lathrop City Council Special Meeting Minutes Page 2

12



1.  Repayment of  $ 234, 000 in Small Business Assistance Grant
Program to the Measure D Economic Development Fund, which

provided crucial funding to Lathrop small businesses during
Covid- 19 shutdowns;

2.  Allocate  $ 1. 5 million for land acquisition costs for a future

Community Center;
3.  Allocate $ 20, 000 to a Backpack Food Program, to ofFer families

free groceries over weekends and school breaks;
4.  Allocate  $ 80, 000 to setup and administer an income based

grant/ stipend program for Lathrop residents to help them

transition their yard landscaping to be drought resistant/ tolerant;
and

5.  Allocate  $ 4. 0 Million to fund future utility capital needs,  which

benefits all Lathrop residents by stabilizing utility rates and
postponing rate increases needed to fund capital improvements
avg. $ 444/ per household in assistance).

Finance Director Cari James and Parks,  Recreation and Maintenance

Services Director Todd Sebastian provided additional information.  A

question and answer period followed.

Vice Mayor Akinjo expressed interest in stabilizing utility rates to take
some burden off the ratepayers.  Councilmember Lazard expressed

contentment with the proposed options.   Councilmember Diallo

expressed interest with using funds for sidewalk reflectors and school
zone signage near the River Islands schools, utility rate reduction, and
additional sidewalks in the eastside of Lathrop, and reflective lights or
paint on roundabouts.  Councilmember Torres- O' Callaghan expressed

interest with the proposed options.

The City Council received information and options related to the
American Rescue Plan Act Funding Allocation( s)  Options.  The City
Council provided direction to staff to move forward with the proposed
options,  and options for safe school routes within the River Islands

development areas. Staff will further analyze the proposed options with
the direction given and return to Council with additional information.

3.       ADJOURNMENT — There being no further business, Mayor Dhaliwal adjourned
the meeting at 7: 45 p. m.

eresa Vargas, MMC,

Government Services Director / City Clerk

This meeting was called by a majority of the City Council per Government Code Section 54956. 5.
Members of the public interested in addressing the City Council during this Special Meeting may address
the item( s),  which have been described in the notice of this Special Meeting in accordance with
Government Code Section 54954. 3( a).

January 23, 2023 Lathrop City Council Special Meeting Minutes Page 3
13



CITY OF LATHROP

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

MONDAY, FEBRUARY 13, 2023

7: 00 P. M.

COUNCIL CHAMBER, CITY HALL

390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

MINUTES

PLEASE NOTE: There was a Closed Session, which commenced at 6: 33 v.m,  The

Reqular Meetin4 reconvened at 7: 05 p. m.

1.       PRELIMINARY

1. 1 CALL TO ORDER - Mayor Dhaliwal called the meeting to order at 6: 33
p. m.

City of Manteca Mayor Gary Singh and Vice Mayor Mike Morowit spoke
prior to the City Council entering into closed session; they expressed
similar sentiments related to the productive and amicable working
relationship between the cities of Lathrop and Manteca.

1. 2 CLOSED SESSION

1. 2. 1 CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL:  Anticipated Litigation  -

Significant Exposure to Litigation Pursuant to Government Code

Section 54956. 9( b) and 54956. 9( e)( 1)

1 Potential Case( s)

1. 2. 2 CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS: Pursuant to

Government Code Section 54956. 8

Property APN: 192- 020- 47 & 192- 020- 4

Addresses not available at this time)

Agency Negotiator: Stephen ]. Salvatore, City Manager
Negotiating Parties: Carroll A. Stanley and Maria E. Stanley
Under Negotiation: Price and Terms of Negotiations

RECONVENE - Mayor Dhaliwal reconvened the meeting at 7: 05 p. m.

1. 2. 3 REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION

City Attorney Salvador Navarrete reported that the City Council
approved purchase of property listed under Item 1. 2. 2,  for  $ 1. 4

Million for 17 acres, full terms and conditions will be made public
once the sale agreement is fully executed; no other reportable action
taken.

February 13, 2023 athrop City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 1

14



1. 3 ROLL CALL Present:       Mayor Dhaliwal; Vice Mayor Akinjo; and

Councilmembers: Diallo, Lazard,

and Torres- O' Callaghan

Absent: None

1. 4 INVOCATION   -   Pastor Nathanial Camarena,  Abundant Life Center

Church, provided the invocation.

1. 5 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - Pastor Nathanial Camarena led the pledge of
allegiance.

1. 6 ANNOUNCEMENT( S) BY MAYOR / CITY MANAGER - NONE

1. 7 INFORMATIONAL ITEM( S) - NONE

1. 8 DECLARATION OF CONFLICT( S) OF INTEREST - NONE

2.       PRESENTATIONS

2. 1 PROCLAMATION DECLARING FEBRUARY AS BLACK HISTORY MONTH

Mayor Dhaliwal,  accompanied by the City Council,   presented the
proclamation declaring February as Black History Month.   Lathrop
resident Jose Garcia Martin received the proclamation; Mr. Garcia Martin
provided remarks on the commemoration of Black History Month.

2. 2 INTRODUCTION OF NEW EMPLOYEES:

Police Chief Raymond Bechler introduced the following new Lathrop
Police Department employees: Animal Shelter Supervisor Elisah Harvey,
Police Records Assistant Marina Millard, Police Records Assistant Melissa
Rossi,  Police Officer ) anet Garza,  K- 9 Officer Jacky ( Police Handler  -
Officer Vannack Sabou),  K- 9 Officer Kane  ( Police Handler  -  Officer

Coleman Elliott),  and K- 9 OfFicer Rico ( Police Handler - Officer Nicole
Valker).   Assistant Community Development Director Rick Caguiat
introduced Senior Planner James Michaels.

3.       CITIZEN' S FORUM

Lawrence Abbott  ( zoom speaker)  commented on the beautification and

conservation of wildlife in the city' s retention ponds.

Following a brief discussion amongst the City Council, Council consensus provided
direction to move Item 6. 1 and Item 6. 2 before the Consent Calendar Item 4.

February 13, 2023 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 2

15



4.       CONSENT CALENDAR

On a motion by Councilmember Torres- O' Callaghan,    seconded by
Councilmember Diallo, the City Council approved the Consent Calendar, by the
following roli call vote, unless otherwise indicated:

Ayes:    Akinjo, Diallo, Lazard, Torres- O' Callaghan and Dhaliwal
Noes:    None

Absent: None

Abstain: None

4. 1 WAIVING OF READING OF ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS

Waived the reading in full of ordinances and resolutions on agenda and
adopt by reading of titie only, unless otherwise requested by the Mayor
or a Councilmember.

4. 2 APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Approved Minutes for the c-ta-f Regular Council Meeting of
l zJanuary 9, 2023. ( December meeting minutes were approved
during the Regular Meeting of January 9, 2023.  The agenda included

Meeting Minutes for January 9, 2023.)

4. 3 TREASURER' S REPORT FOR DECEMBER 2022

Pulled by Councilmember Diallo.   Deputy Finance Director Thomas
Hedegard and Finance Director Cari James provided additional

information.

Approved Quarterly Treasurer' s Report for December 2022.

CEQA STATUS:  Not a Project as defined in Article 20,    15378 of the

California Environmental Quality Act ( CEQA) Guidelines.

4. 4 REVIEW OF THE CAPITAL FACILITY FEE FUNDS REPORT FOR FY 2021
2022

Reviewed the Capital Facility Fee Funds Report for Fiscal Year 2021- 22.

CEQA STATUS:  Not a Project as defined in Section 15378 of the
StateCEQA Guidelines

4. 5 APPROVE OUT- OF- STATE TRAVEL FOR CITY STAFF TO PARTICIPATE IN
THE ICSC CONFERENCE IN MAY 2023

February 13, 2023 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 3

16



Adopted Resolution 23- 5208 authorizing out- of- state travel for two
city staff inembers to attend and represent the City of Lathrop at the
International Council of Shopping Centers ( ICSC) 2023 Conference in

Las Vegas, Nevada from May 21, 2023 to May 23, 2023.

CEQA STATUS: Staff has determined that this is not a Project as defined
in Section 15378 of the CEQA Guidelines.

4. 6 APPROVE GIS SOFTWARE AND ENTERPRISE LICENSE AGREEMENT

Adopted Resolution 23- 5209 authorizing a 3- year term Enterprise
License Agreement with Environmental Systems Research Institute, Inc.
for the Geographic Information System ( GIS).

CEQA STATUS:    Not a Project as defined in Section 15378 of the

California Environmental Quality Act ( CEQA) Guidelines.

4. 7 APPROVE TASK ORDER NO.  12 FOR DE NOVO PLANNING GROUP TO

UPDATE THE CITY' S GENERAL PLAN HOUSING ELEMENT FOR THE 6th
CYCLE ( 2023- 2031)

City Clerk Teresa Vargas introduced into the record missing page no. 3
of the staff report,  which included the fiscal impact.  A copy of the
missing page was made available on the city' s website, uploaded to the

City Council tablets and copies were available for the public during the
meeting.

Adopted Resolution 23- 5210 approving Task Order No.  12 with De

Novo Planning Group to update the City' s General Plan Housing Element
for the 6th Cycle ( 2023- 2031).

CEQA STATUS:  Not a Project as Defined in Article 20, §  15378 of the

California Environmental Quality Act ( CEQA) Guidelines.

4. 8 APPROVE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH FRUIT

GROWERS LABORATORY,  INC.,  FOR THE LATHROP CONSOLIDATED

TREATMENT FACILITY PERMIT COMPLIANCE, CIP WW 20- 17

Adopted Resolution 23- 5211 approving a Professional Services
Agreement with Fruit Growers Laboratory, Inc., for water quality testing
laboratory services,  related to Lathrop consolidated water treatment
facility surface water discharge, CIP WW 20- 17.

CEQA STATUS:  Environmental review for the Surface Water Discharge
Project, CIP WW 20- 17 as a whole was completed in the Certified Final
Environmental Impact Report    ( EIR)    ( State Clearinghouse No.
2019110339).

February 13, 2023 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 4

17



4. 9 APPROVE AMENDMENT NO. 2 WITH EKI TO UPDATE THE INTEGRATED
WATER RESOURCES MASTER PLAN, CIP PW 22- 19 AND CIP WW 22- 24
AND APPROVE BUDGET AMENDMENT

Adopted Resolution 23- 5212 approving Amendment No. 2 with EKI
Environment & Water, Inc. to update the Integrated Water Resources

Master Plan, CIP PW 22- 19 and CIP WW 22- 24, and approving budget
amendment.

CEQA STATUS:   The project is exempt according to California
Environmental Quality Act Article 18 § 15262, " Feasibility and Planning
Studies".

4. 10 AUTHORIZE FUNDING OF ONE ( 1)  POLICE LIEUTENANT AND ONE ( 1)

ADDITIONAL SCHOOL RESOURCE OFFICER FOR THE LATHROP POLICE
DEPARTMENT,   AMEND COMMUNITY SERVICES SUPERVISOR JOB

DESCRIPTION, AND APPROVE RELATED BUDGET AMENDMENT

Pulled by Councilmember Diallo.  Chief of Police Raymond Bechler

provided additional information.

Adopted Resolution 23- 5213 approving the funding of one ( 1) Police

Lieutenant position, one ( 1) additional School Resource Officer position,
amending the job description of the Community Service Supervisor,
amending the position control roster, and approving the related budget
amendment.

CEQA STATUS:  Not a Project as Defined in Section 15378 of the State
CEQA Guidelines.

4. 11 AUTHORIZE TASK ORDER NO.  6 WITH KNN PUBLIC FINANCE FOR
MUNICIPAL ADVISORY SERVICES

Pulled by Councilmember Diallo.  Finance Director Cari James provided
additional information.

Adopted Resolution 23- 5214 authorizing Task Order No. 6 with KNN
Public Finance for municipal advisory services related to the potential
refinancing of Mossdale Village Refunding 2013 Series A Bonds.

CEQA STATUS:  Not a Project as defined in Article 20, §  15378 of the

California Environmental Quality Act ( CEQA) Guidelines.

4. 12 VALIDATION OF THE 2022 FINDING OF ADEQUATE PROGRESS IN THE
MOSSDALE TRACT AREA

February 13, 2023 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 5

18



Adopted Resolution 23- 5215 validating the 2022 urban level of flood
protection ( ULOP), finding of adequate progress in the Mossdale Tract
Area ( formally referred as Reclamation District 17 Basin), and acting as
the land use agency.

CEQA STATUS:  The project is exempt according to the California
Environmental Quality Act ( CEQA) Articie 18, §  15262 Feasibility and
Planning Studies".

4. 13 ACCEPT PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS CONSTRUCTED BY BOCKMON   &

WOODY CO.,  INC.  FOR THE JOHNSON FERRY ROAD STREETLIGHT

INSTALLATION, CIP PS 23- 04

Pulled by Councilmember Torres- O' Callaghan. Assistant City Manager
Michael King provided additionai information.

Adopted Resolution 23- 5216 accepting public improvements

constructed by Bockmon & Woody Co., Inc., for the Johnson Ferry Road
streetlight installation, CIP PS 23- 04, authorizing the filing of a Notice
of Completion,    releasing of contract retention,    and releasing

performance and payment bonds.

CEQA STATUS:  The project is exempt according to the California
Environmental Quality Act ( CEQA) Article 19, § 15301 Class 1 Existing
Facilities".

4. 14 RATIFY CITY MANAGER ACTION FOR PURCHASE OF FOUR  ( 4)  NEW

POLICE VEHICLES,  APPROVAL OF VARIOUS AGREEMENTS FOR THE

LATHROP POLICE DEPARTMENT, AND APPROVAL OF RELATED BUDGET

AMENDMENT

Pulled by Councilmember Diallo.  Chief of Police Raymond Bechler

provided additional information.

Adopted Resolution 23- 5217 ratifying City Manager action for

purchase of three  ( 3)   2022 Police Ford Utility Interceptors from

Downtown Sacramento Ford, ratifying purchase of one ( 1) 2023 Chevy
Police Tahoe from Future Chevrolet, approving Change Order No. 3 with
NextGen Alpha Upfitting for the purchase and insta lation of police
vehicle equipment,  approving Change Order No.  1 with Continental

Collision for auto- body paint service,  and approving related budget
amendment.

CEQA STATUS:  Not a Project as Defined in Section 15378 of the State

CEQA Guidelines.

February 13, 2023 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 6

19



5.       SCHEDULED ITEMS

5. 1 PUBLIC HEARING  ( PUBLISHED NOTICE)  TO CONSIDER COMMUNITY

DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT   ( CDBG)   AND HOME INVESTMENT

PARTNERSHIP ACT ( HOME) PROGRAM ALLOCATIONS FOR FISCAL YEAR
2023/ 2024

Economic Development Administrator Shelley Burcham provided the
presentation.  A question and answer period ensued throughout the
presentation.  Carmen Matty- Cervantes  ( zoom speaker),  San  ) oaquin

County Human Services Agency Representative provided information
related to the Meals on Wheels Program for Lathrop residents and the
outreach efforts for the program.   Councilmember Torres- O' Callaghan

expressed interest in finding ways to increase outreach and participation
in the Meals on Wheels and Food Bank programs, and reallocate the

proposed $ 25, 000 to other public assistance programs, intended for the
Police Building ADA door upgrades due to the recently constructed
building not being out of compliance. Councilmember Diallo expressed
interest with HUD public assistance programs and outreach efforts for
those programs.  Parks, Recreation and Maintenance Services Director

Todd Sebastian and Assistant City Manager Michaei King provided
additional information on public programs and capital improvement
projects eligible for CDBG.  funds.  The question and answer period
continued.  Mayor Dhaliwal opened the public hearing. There were no

speakers. Mayor Dhaliwal closed the pubiic hearing.

On a motion by Councilmember Akinjo,  seconded by Councilmember
Lazard, the City Council considered the foliowing:

1.  Held a Public Hearing; and

2.  Adopted Resolution 23- 5218 recommending the proposed
allocations of the CDBG and HOME Funds for FY 2023/ 2024 for

consideration by San Joaquin County and the US Department of
Housing and Urban Development  ( HUD)  pursuant to budget
amendments.

Ayes:    Akinjo, Diallo, Lazard, and Dhaliwal
Noes:   Torres- O' Callaghan

Absent: None

Abstain: None

CEQA STATUS: This item is statutorily exempt under Article 18, Section
15273,   because CEQA does not apply to the establishment or

modification of HUD funding programs to public agencies, which are to
meet community needs.

February 13, 2023 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 7

20



5. 2 CITY COUNCIL DISCUSSION REGARDING REGULATION AND

LIMITATION OF HOTEL ESTABLISHMENTS

Community Development Director Mark Meissner and Assistant

Community Development Director Rick provided the presentation, which
included a summary of the November 14,  2022,  referral on options

regarding regulation and limitation of hotel establishments within the
City. A question and answer period ensued. The City Council discussed
the commercial areas within Central Lathrop Specific Plan, River Islands,
and Mossdale Landing Development areas,  approved hotel permit

applications, and permit applications in the plan check process. Christina
Laughlin  ( zoom speaker)  commented on the matter,  inquired about

transient tax,  limiting gas stations and fast food establishments. The
question and answer period continued.

The City Council discussed the matter and considered direction to staff
to prepare an Ordinance for review by the Planning Commission, and

subsequent consideration of the City Council,   for regulation and

limitation of hotel establishments.

On a motion by Dhaliwal,  seconded by Vice Mayor Akinjo,  the City
Council directed staff to bring back an ordinance amendment limiting up
to six  ( 6)  hotel projects in the Central Lathrop Specific Plan and
Mossdale Landing development areas.

Ayes:    Akinjo, Lazard, and Dhaliwal

Noes:    Diallo and Torres- O' Callaghan
Absent: None

Abstain: None

CEQA STATUS:  The project is exempt according to the California
Environmental Quality Act  ( CEQA)  Article 5,  §  15061( b)( 3),  by the
Common Sense Exemption".

5. 3 CONSIDER APPEAL OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION' S DECISION TO

APPROVE THE LATHROP CROSSROADS INDUSTRIAL PRO) ECT

Community Development Director Mark Meissner and Assistant

Community Development Director Rick provided the presentation, which
included a project summary, vicinity map, site plan options, Sierra Club
appeal, and the City' s response to the appeal. A question and answer
period ensued throughout the presentation. Matthew D. Francois, Rutan

Tucker,  LLP,  provided a public comment letter, dated February 13,
2023, requesting denial of the appeal and approval of the project. Raul
Hernandez,  United Association Local 442,  provided a public comment
letter, dated February 10,  2023,  requesting denial of the appeal and
approval of the project.

February 13, 2023 athrop City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 8

21



Brian Cooley,  Richland Developer,  Inc.,  provided a public comment
letter, dated February 13,  2023,  requesting denial of the appeal and
approval of the project.  Adriana Flores- Lopez  ( in person speaker)

requested additional information regarding the health risk assessment
prioritization score required by the San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution
Control District. Matthew Francois ( in person speaker), Rutan & Tucker,

LLP,  Land Use Attorney for the Applicant,  provided additional project
information. Brian Cooley ( in person speaker), Senior Director of Land

Entitlement, Applicant representing Richland Developers, Inc., provided
additional project information.    Karen Moore    ( zoom speaker),

commented on economically viable projects supportive of

environmentally responsive solutions.  Eric Parfrey  ( zoom speaker),

representing the Sierra Club,   commented on conversations and

negotiations with the Richland Developers,  expressed concern with

environmental impacts, and review of possible mitigation measures to
reduce impacts to the community. Margo Praus ( zoom speaker), Chair

of the local Delta Sierra Group,  expressed concern with air quality
mitigations and other related environmental impacts.

Mayor Dhaliwal temporarily stepped down from the dais at 10: 34 p. m., and returned

at 10: 36 p. m.

Raul Hernandez   ( zoom speaker)   United Association Local 442,

expressed support for the project, and commented on the use of local
labor unions for the project. The City Council question and answer period
continued.   City Manager Stephen Salvatore provided additional

information regarding the City' s endeavors in environmentally friendly
projects.

On a motion by Vice Mayor Akinjo, seconded by Mayor Dhaliwal, the City
Council considered the following:

1.  Considered all written and oral information presented in
this report and at the meeting of February 13, 2023; and

2.  Adopted Resolution 23- 5213 affirming the Planning
Commission' s decision to approve Resolution No. 22- 15 for

the Initial Study Mitigate Negative Declaration and

Resolution No.  22- 16 for the Site Plan Review for the

construction to construct one of the two following
development options:

o Option l:  One ( 1) 448, 904 square foot warehouse

building consisting of 251 total parking stalls ( 243

standard,  8 ADA),  144 trailer parking stalls,  13

bicycle spaces, 50 truck dock stations, and 12, 000

square feet of office space; or

February 13, 2023 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 9

22



o Option 2:  Three  ( 3)  warehouse buildings totaling
386, 179 square feet consisting of 423 parking stalls
411 standard, 12 ADA), 62 trailer parking stalis, 13

bicycle spaces, 74 truck dock stations, and 20, 000

square feet of office space.

Ayes:    Akinjo, Diallo, Lazard, Torres- O' Callaghan and Dhaliwal

Noes:   None

Absent: None

Abstain: None

CEQA STATUS:  An Initial Study and Mitigated Negative Declaration
IS/ MND) was prepared for the Lathrop Crossroads Industria)  Project

State Clearinghouse No. 2022090562) to disclose potential significant
environmental effects of the proposed project and identifies feasible
mitigation measures that would reduce the potential significant

environmental effects to a less than significant level. The IS/ MND was

prepared in compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act
CEQA).

5. 4 OUT- OF- STATE TRAVEL APPROVAL FOR THE 2023 SAN JOAQUIN

COUNTY ONE- VOICE TRIP

City Clerk Teresa Vargas provided the presentation.  A question and

answer period followed. The City Council discussed and approved Option
1, approving out of state travel for two Council Members and the City
Council.

On a motion by Mayor Dhaliwal, seconded by Vice Mayor Akinjo, the City
Council adopted Resolution 23- 5214 authorizing out- of- state travel,
for Vice Mayor Akinjo, Councilmember Diallo, and City Manager Stephen
Salvatore, to the 2023 San Joaquin One Voice Trip to Washington, D. C.
from May 6- 11, 2023, and approved the related budget amendment.

Ayes:    Akinjo, Diallo, Lazard, Torres- O' Callaghan and Dhaliwal
Noes:    None

Absent: None

Abstain: None

CEQA Status: The Activity is not a Project as Defined in Section 15378
of the State CEQA Guidelines.

6.       COUNCIL COMMUNICATIONS

Following a brief discussion amongst the City Council, Council consensus provided
direction to move Item 6. 1 and Item 6. 2 before the Consent Calendar Item 4.

February 13, 2023 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 10

23



6. 1 MAYOR DHALIWAL REFERRAL: Appointment of One ( 1) Member to the

Senior Advisory Commission with Term Ending June 30, 2024, Due to

Unscheduled Term Vacancy.
One ( 1) Application Received

Mayor Dhaliwal made the following appointment:

Senior AdvisorY Commission Term Expires

Erica Crowder June 30, 2024

On a motion by Councilmember Lazard, seconded by Vice Mayor Akinjo,
the City Council approved the appointment made by Mayor Dhaliwal as
noted above.

Ayes:    Akinjo, Diallo, Lazard, Torres- O' Callaghan and Dhaliwal

Noes:    None

Absent: None

Abstain: None

6. 2 COUNCILMEMBER DIALLO REFERRAL: Discuss Consideration of Renting
the Generations Center and Park for a Juneteenth Event, to be Hosted

by an Outside Organization.

Mayor Dhaliwal requested clarification on the title, stated the referral

came from residents of the City of Lathrop.  Councilmember Diallo

expressed various concerns on the matter,  including the title of the
referral and requested clarification with park rentals to local

organizations.  A question and answer period ensued throughout the
discussion of the referral. Parks, Recreation and Maintenance Services

Director Todd Sebastian,  City Attorney Salvador Navarrete,  and City
Manager Stephen Salvatore provided additional information on the
matter.  In person speakers Jose Garcia Martin,  Shelita Jefferson,

Michael Wells,  Michael Darby,  Janae Garcia Martin,  Erayna Garcia

Martin, Rachelle William, Krystal Taylor, and Robbie Swan spoke in favor
of the referral and holding a Juneteenth celebration event.  Christina

Laughlin ( zoom speaker) spoke in support of the event. The City Council
question and answer period continued.  Rosita Jennings provided two
public comment letters through email,  dated February 13,  2023,  for

Item 6. 2;   printed copies were made available for the public in

attendance, uploaded to the city' s website and distributed to the City
Council. Following discussions, Mayor Dhaliwal made a motion directing
staff to work with the organizers of the event in preparation of the
Juneteenth celebratory event,  and to bring back a policy for future
Council discussion. Councilmember Diallo expressed opposition to the

motion. A question and answer period ensued. Mayor Dhaliwal withdrew
his motion and asked staff to work with the Juneteenth event organizers

February 13, 2023 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 11

24



on the event, and bring back any matters requiring Council action. There
was no further discussion on the matter.

The meeting continued with reading of Item 4, Consent Calendar.

6. 3 MAYOR & COUNCILMEMBER COMMITTEE REPORT( S) - None

6. 4 MAYOR & COUNCILMEMBER COMMENT( S)

Councilmember Torres- O' Callaghan and Vice Mayor Akinjo thanked
those in attendance and wished a Happy Valentine' s Day.
Councilmember Diallo expressed appreciation to Assistant City Manager

Michael King for the waikthrough of the River Islands Schools with
Councilmember Diallo and members of the community, and requested
a referral for the next meeting to request a student internship program.
Mayor Akinjo thanked those in attendance and their participation in the

meeting.

7.       AD] OURNMENT — There being no further business, Mayor Dhaliwal adjourned
the meeting at 11: 02 p. m.

i

r 

l       •         /`
P

T resa Vargas, MMC

Government Services D'ifector/

City Clerk

February 13, 2023 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 12

25



26



ITEM 4. 3

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

APRIL 10, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       SECOND READING AND ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE

23- 444 OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF

LATHROP AMENDING THE LATHROP MUNICIPAL

CODE TITLE 10 VEHICLES AND TRAFFIC,  CHAPTER

10. 08 SPEED LIMITS SECTION 10. 08. 030  ' SPEED

LIMITS"

RECOMMENDATION:     Waive Full Reading and Adopt Ordinance 23- 444
Amending Lathrop Municipal Code Title 10 Vehicles
And Traffic,  Chapter 10. 08 Speed Limits Section

10. 08. 030 " Speed Limits"

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

The City Council to conduct second reading and adopt Ordinance 23- 444 entitled:

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP AMENDING THE

LATHROP MUNICIPAL CODE TITLE 10 VEHICLES AND TRAFFIC,  CHAPTER 10. 08

SPEED LIMITS SECTION 10. 08. 030 SPEED LIMITS"

SUMMARY:

On March 13, 2023, the City Council approved the introduction and first reading of
the subject Ordinance by the following vote:

AYES:   Diallo, Lazard, Torres- O' Callaghan, and Akinjo

NOES:  None

ABSTAIN:     None

ABSENT:       Dhaliwal

The Ordinance will take effect 30 days after adoption.

SUBMITTED BY:

3
T resa Vargas, Cit Cle k Date

27



ORDINANCE NO. 23- 444

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP AMENDING

THE LATHROP MUNICIPAL CODE TITLE 10 VEHICLES AND TRAFFIC, CHAPTER

10. 08 SPEED LIMITS SECTION 10. 08. 030 SPEED LIMITS"

WHEREAS, the California Vehicle Code ( CVC)  requires that an Engineering
and Traffic Survey ( Survey)  be conducted to establish a legally enforceable prima
facie speed limit for a public roadway; and

WHEREAS,  the City of Lathrop has enacted an ordinance to establish the
prima facie speed limits on portions of certain streets within the City; and

WHEREAS,  Crane Transportation Group  ( CTG)  has conducted Surveys to

establish legal speed limits for specific, recently constructed streets; and

WHEREAS, to update or establish speed limits for the indicated streets, it is

necessary to amend Title 10 Vehicles and Traffic,  Chapter 10. 08 Speed Limits,

Section 10. 08. 030 Speed Limits of the Lathrop Municipal Code; and

WHEREAS, proper notice of this public hearing was given to all aspects as
required by law; and

WHEREAS,  City Council approved the following speed limits for respective
segments as presented at the first reading of the Ordinance on March 13, 2023; and

SEGMENT NAME SEGMENT BEGIN SEGMENT END
DESIGN PROPOSED

SPEED SPEED LIMIT

Marina Dr.      River Bend Dr.  Somerston Pkwy.   25 25

Marina Dr.      Somerston Pkwy.      Taft Dr.   25 25

Academy Dr.  River Bend Dr.  Somerston Pkwy.   25 25

Lakeside Dr.   Stewart Rd.       Vega Roundabout 25 35

Lakeside Dr.   Vega Roundabout Somerston Pkwy.   25 35

Lakeside Dr.   Somerston Pkwy.      Dell' Osso Dr.  25 35

Dell' Osso Dr.  Mulholland Dr.  River Islands Pkwy. 25 35

Dell' Osso Dr.  River Islands Pkwy.   Lakeside Dr.   35 45

Somerston Pkwy.   Riverfront Dr.    River Islands Pkwy.     NONE 35

WHEREAS,  City Council approved the following speed limits for respective
segments with indicated modifications at the first reading of the Ordinance on March
13, 2023.

Ordinance No. 23- 444

28



DESIGN
PROPOSED PPROVED

SEGMENT NAME EGMENT BEGIN SEGMENT END SPEED SPEED
SPEED

LIMIT LIMIT

River Islands Pkwy.  S) River Bridge PkW
erston

35 45 35
Y•

River Islands Pkwy.  PkW
erston

Norbeck St.   40 45 40
Y•

Academy Dr.     
Somerston Broadmoor

25 30 25
Pkwy.  Wy.

Somerston Pkwy.      
River Islands 800' South of

40 45 35
Pkwy.   Lakeside Dr.

Commercial St. Marina Dr.   Academy Dr.  25 30 25

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP DOES

HEREBY ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1.

Section 10. 08. 030,  of the Lathrop Municipal Code,  is amended to read in full as

follows:

It shall be prima facie unlawful to operate any vehicle at speed in excess of that
established as follows:

A.       The speed limit shall be fifty  ( 50)  miles per hour on the following street
segments:

Street Limits

Golden Valley Parkway Lathrop Road to River Islands Parkway
McKinley Avenue Louise Avenue to Yosemite Avenue

B.      The speed limit shall be forty- five ( 45) miles per hour on the following street
segments:

Street Limits

Dell' Osso Drive River Islands Parkway to Lakeside Drive
Golden Valley Parkway River Island Parkway to Towne Centre Drive
Golden Valley Parkway Towne Centre Drive to Brookhurst Boulevard

Harlan Road Roth Road to Slate Street

Harlan Road Slate Street to Lathrop Road
Harlan Road Louise Avenue to D' Arcy Parkway
Harlan Road D' Arcy Parkway to Tesla Drive
Harlan Road Tesla Drive to End of Road

Howland Road Louise Avenue to D' Arcy Parkway
Lathrop Road McKinley Avenue to city limits
Louise Avenue Interstate 5 to Harlan Road

Ordinance No. 23- 444

29



Louise Avenue Harlan Road to Fifth Street

Louise Avenue Fifth Street to McKinley Avenue
Louise Avenue McKinley Avenue to City Limits
Manthey Road Dos Reis Road to City Limits
Manthey Road Towne Centre Drive to Brookhurst Boulevard

Manthey Road Brookhurst Boulevard to Mossdale County Park
Manthey Road Stewart Road to Interstate 5 Ramps

McKinley Avenue Yosemite Avenue to City Limits
McKinley Avenue Lathrop Road to Louise Avenue
River Islands Parkway Golden Valley Parkway to McKee Boulevard
Tesla Drive Harlan Road to Christopher Way
Yosemite Avenue SR 120 to D' Arcy Parkway
Yosemite Avenue D' Arcy Parkway to City Limit

C.      The speed limit shall be forty  ( 40)  miles per hour on the following street
segments:

Street Li m its

D' Arcy Parkway Yosemite Avenue to Christopher Way
D' Arcy Parkway Christopher Way to Harlan Road
Dos Reis Road Manthey Road to East School Zone
Harlan Road Lathrop Road to Louise Avenue
Lathrop Road 5th Street to McKinley Avenue
Manthey Road Lathrop Road to Dos Reis Road
Manthey Road Mossdale County Park to Stewart Road
River Islands Parkwav Somerston Parkway to Norbeck Street

D.      The speed limit shall be thirty- five ( 35) miles per hour on the following street
segments:

Street Li m its

Barbara Terry Boulevard Spartan Way to McKee Boulevard
Barbara Terry Boulevard McKee Boulevard to Adobe Way
Brookhurst Boulevard Manthey Road to Golden Valley Parkway
Brookhurst Boulevard Golden Valley Parkway to McKee Boulevard
Brookhurst Boulevard McKee Boulevard to Golden Spike Trail

Dell' Osso Drive Mulholland Drive to River Islands Parkwav
Christopher Way D' Arcy Parkway to End of Road
Dos Reis Road East School Zone to West School Zone

Dos Reis Road West School Zone to Dos Reis Park

Golden Spike Trail Towne Centre Drive to Brookhurst Boulevard

Lakeside Drive Stewart Road to Vega Park Roundabout

Lakeside Drive Vega Park Roundabout to Somerston Parkway
Lakeside Drive Somerston Parkway to Dell' Osso Drive
Lathrop Road Interstate 5 to Rev Maurice Cotton Drive

Lathrop Road Rev Maurice Cotton Drive to Fifth Street

McKee Boulevard Brookhurst Boulevard to Towne Centre Drive

McKee Boulevard Towne Centre Drive to Johnson Ferry

Ordinance No. 23- 444

30



McKee Boulevard Johnson Ferry to River Islands Parkway
McKee Boulevard River Islands Parkway to Barbara Terry Boulevard
Murphy Parkway Tesla Drive to D' Arcy Parkway
Murphy Parkway D' Arcy Parkway to End of Road
River Islands Parkway Interstate 5 to Golden Valley Parkway
River Islands Parkway McKee Boulevard to San ) oaquin River bridge

River Islands Parkwav San Joaquin River Bridge to Somerston Parkwav

Roth Road Interstate 5 to East City Limits
Seventh Street J Street to Thomsen Road
Somerston Parkwav Riverfront Drive to River Islands Parkwav

Somerston Parkwav River Islands Parkway to South of Lakeside Drive

E.      The speed limit shall be thirty  ( 30)  miles per hour on the following street
segments:

Street Li m its

Inland Passage Way Sadler Oak Drive to Open Range Avenue

Slate Street Harlan Road to Deerwood Way
Slate Street Deerwood Way to Stonebridge Lane
Opal Street Stonebridge Lane to Deerwood Way
Opal Street Deerwood Way to Slate Street
Sadler Oak Drive Manthey Road to Inland Passage Way
Johnson Ferry Road Colonial Trail to Golden Spike Trail

Stonebridge Lane Harlan Road to Slate Street

F.      The speed limit shall be twenty- five ( 25) miles per hour on the following street
segments:

Street Limits

Academy Drive River Bend Drive to Somerson Parkwav

Academy Drive Somerston Parkway to Broadmoor Way
Cambridge Drive Lathrop Road to Louise Avenue
Commerical Street Marina Drive to Academy Drive
Fifth Street K Street to O Street

J Street Harlan Road to Fifth Street

Lathrop Road Interstate 5 to Golden Valley Parkway
Marina Drive River Bend Drive to Somerston Parkwav

Marina Drive Somerston Parkway to Taft Drive
O Street Harlan Road to Seventh Street

Spartan Way Golden Valley Parkway to Generations Center
Spartan Way Generations Center to Lathrop High School
Spartan Way Lathrop High School to Stanford Crossing
Spartan Way Stanford Crossing to Barbara Terry Boulevard
Stewart Road Manthey Road to South River Bend
Thomsen Road Harlan Road to Grayson Road

Thomsen Road Grayson Road to Halmar Lane

Thomsen Road Halmar Lane to Seventh Street

Towne Centre Drive Golden Valley Parkway to McKee Boulevard
Towne Centre Drive McKee Boulevard to Village Avenue

Ordinance No. 23- 444

31



G.       The following list of two hundred thirty- seven ( 237) roadway segments that
meet the requirements defined in section 40802( b) of the CVC for a local

street are not subject to the requirement for an Engineering and Traffic
Survey. These local / residential streets shall have a recommended prima
facie speed limit of 25 mph that can be enforced with radar, exempt from

speed trap laws related to Engineering and Traffic Survey requirements:

Admiral Way Cannella Drive Ferry Launch Avenue
Adobe Way Carleta Place Finchwood Drive

Almond Orchard Way Carnaby Road Flagstone Street

American Farms Avenue Carnelian Avenue Fleurette Lane

Americana Way Cedar Valley Drive Flint Avenue

Andover Way Cedarbrook Way Forestwood Way
Apple Grove Avenue Chandra Way Forty Niner Trail
Applewood Way Channel Drive Four Corners Court

Argillite Avenue Charmaine Court G Street

Aries Place Christie Falls Way Gaar Avenue

Arkose Street Claim Stake Avenue Gail Drive

Aspenwood Avenue Cloudy Bay Galena Street

August Drive Cobble Creek Way Garden Glade Street

Autumn Rain Drive Cold Springs Street Gardner Place

Autumnwood Avenue Colonial Trail Garmetta Way
Avon Avenue Covered Bridge Way Gold Nugget Trail

Aztec Land Craftsman Drive Golden Spike Trail

Back Bay Drive Crescent Moon Drive Goldstone Street

Baywood Way Crescent Park Circle Granite Avenue

Bella Place Daffodil Hill Street Grapevine Place

Bellchase Road Dalton Court Grayson Road

Berkshire Court Danbury Place Green Plaza

Bizzibe Street Derby Lane Greengate Place

Blackwood Avenue Dolomite Street Gypsum Way
Bloom Way Dry Creek Place H Street

Blue Sky Drive Eagle Lane Halmar Lane

Boulder Avenue Easy Street Havenwood Avenue

Bramblewood Avenue Emerald Bay Court Historic Avenue

Brewer Street Emory Oak Place Homestead Avenue

Brookfield Avenue Englewood Way Honey Place
Brookhurst Boulevard English Country Trail Hornfels Avenue

Brookwood Way Eton Way I Street

Calcite Avenue Evergreen Avenue Independence Avenue

Cambridge Drive Exeter Court Iron Horse Trail

Camelback Street Fairview Way J Street

Camish Place Ferndale Street Janice Place

Ordinance No. 23- 444

32



Jasper Street Ore Claim Trail Sedona Lane

Johnson Ferry Road Orlando Lane Settler Trail

Jonquil Drive Osage Place Shadowberry Place
Julie Lane Parkhaven Street Shady Mill Way
K Street Parkside Drive Shady Shores Drive
Kirkwood Way Pasture Avenue Shadywood Avenue

L Street Patricia Place Sheltered Cove

Landmark Point Patriot Way Shilling Avenue
Late Harvest Place Pecan Hollow Way Showlow Lane

Lazy Ridge Avenue Pennant Avenue Sierra Gold Trail

Leather Oak Road Pheasant Downs Road Siltstone Avenue

Libby Lane Pine Valley Drive Silver Creek Drive

Liberty Point Pinewood Drive Sixth Street

Limestone Avenue Pioneer Avenue South Lagoon Way
Lisa Lane Pipestone Street Southport Street

Loganberry Way Platinum Avenue Spar Street

Long Barn Drive Pony Express Way St. Andrew Street

Lottie Way Poppy Drive Stage Coach Drive

Magnetite Avenue Prairie Dunes Drive Stone Cellar Way
Maharaja Drive Princeville Street Strawberry Glen Street
Mariners Drive Quartz Way Sugar Pine Drive

Matador Way Queirolo Road Sunflower Drive

Maxwell Lane Rail Way Sunrise Place

Meteorite Street Red Barn Place Suzie Q Lane
Milestone Drive Redstone Street Talc Street

Mill Stone Way Reiger Drive Thomsen Road

Millpond Avenue Renaissance Avenue Tidewater Point

Mingo Way Reverend Maurice Cotton Drive Toro Lane

Mossy Point Way River Bend Drive Town Square

N Street Riverboat Drive Tracywood Avenue

Navigator Drive Riverdale Street Travertine Avenue

New England Avenue Rocky Harbor Road Trestle Point

New Well Avenue Rosebriar Place Tulip Tree Way
Noel Lane Rosewood Street Tumbleweed Lane

Obsidian Street Ryhiner Lane Upstream Drive

Old Glory Way Saguaro Lane Victorian Trail

Old Wharf Place Samoa Lane Village Avenue

Olivine Avenue Sand Bar Way W Nut Tree Court

Onyx Avenue Schumard Oak Road Warfield Road

Open Range Avenue Scrub Oak Drive Warren Avenue

Ordinance No. 23- 444

33



Water Mills Street Wheat Field Street Woodfield Drive

Water Way Wild Oak Drive Wynona Way
Waterman Avenue Williamstowne Zalman Lane

Section 2. Intent

This Ordinance is not intended to and shall not be construed or given efFect in a
manner that imposes upon the city or any officer or employee thereof a mandatory
duty of care toward persons and property within or without the city so as to provide
a basis of civil liability for damages, except as otherwise imposed by law.

Section 3. Severabilitv

If any provisions of this Ordinance or application thereof to any person or

circumstances is held invalid,  such invalidity shall not efFect other provisions or
applications of the Ordinance which can be given efFect without the invalid provision
or application, and to this end the provisions of this Ordinance are severable.   The

City Council hereby declares that it would have adopted this Ordinance irrespective
of the validity of any particular portions thereof.

Section 4. Effective Date

This Ordinance shall take legal effect and be in force thirty ( 30) days from and after

the date of its passage.

Section 5. Publication

Within fifteen ( 15) days after its final passage, the City Clerk shall cause a copy of
this Ordinance to be published in full accordance with Section 36933 of the
Government Code.

Ordinance No. 23- 444

34



THIS ORDINANCE was introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council of
the City of Lathrop on the 13t" day of March 2023, and was PASSED AND ADOPTED
at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Lathrop on the th

day of
2023 by the following vote, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

Ordinance No. 23- 444

35



36



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

APRIL 10, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING ITEM 4. 4

ITEM:       ACCEPTANCE OF THE CITY OF LATHROP ANNUAL

COMPREHENSIVE FINANCIAL REPORT ( ACFR) FOR

THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING 7UNE 30, 2022

RECOMMENDATION:     Adopt a Resolution Accepting the City of Lathrop
Annual Comprehensive Financial Report ( ACFR) for

the Fiscal Year Ending 7une 30, 2022

SUMMARY:

The City' s auditor,  Lance, Soll & Lunghard,  LLP,  has completed the review of the

annual financial statements for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2022. The audited

financial statements are incorporated into an Annual Comprehensive Financial Report

ACFR).  The auditors have issued an unmodified   (" clean")  audit opinion.  An

unmodified opinion indicates that the financial data of the City is fairly presented in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government

Audit Standards,  issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.  These

standards require that they plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

In addition to the opinion letter included in the ACFR document,  Lance,  Soll  &

Lunghard, LLP has prepared two separate reports on the required communications
and the Memorandum on Internal Control ( MOIC) to the City Council. Staff received
the finalized required communication report and the finalized MOIC from Lance, Soll

Lunghard, LLP on March 31, 2023. The purpose of these reports to the City Council
is to communicate the scope of audit procedures performed, significant findings, and
other information, such as any disagreements with management, audit adjustments,
and significant estimates that have not been communicated in the audited financial
statements.

BACKGROUND:

Best financial practices as well as various financing covenants and regulations
associated with restricted funding sources require the City to publish a complete
set of financial statements each year presented in conformance with Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles  ( GAAP).  The Government Code of the State of

California requires general law cities, such as the City of Lathrop, to have its financial
statements audited by an independent certified public accountant.  Accordingly, this
year' s audit was completed by the accounting firm of Lance, Soll & Lunghard, LLP.

The firm was contracted to render an opinion of the City' s financial statements in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America.   To ensure complete independence, Lance, Soll & Lunghard, LLP presents
the results of their assessment of the adequacy of internal accounting controls and
the quality of financial reporting directly to the City Council.

37



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

APRIL 10, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ACCEPT THE CITY OF LATHROP ANNUAL COMPREHENSIVE FINANCIAL

REPORT ( ACFR) FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING .7UNE 30, 2022

The Annual Comprehensive Financial Report ( ACFR) for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2022 has been prepared by the City and audited by the certified public accounting
firm of Lance,  Soll  &  Lunghard,  LLP.  The ACFR and audit of the City' s financial
statements were completed on March 31, 2023, and posted on the City' s website at
that time. Lance, Soll & Lunghard, LLP has issued an unmodified ( clean") opinion of

the ACFR which states that the financial statements are presented fairly,  in all

material respects.

In addition to the opinion letter included in the ACFR document,  Lance,  Soll  &

Lunghard, LLP has prepared two separate reports on the required communications
and the Memorandum on Internal Control ( MOIC) to the City Council. Staff received
the finalized required communication report and the finalized MOIC from Lance, Soll

Lunghard, LLP on March 31, 2023. The purpose of these reports to the City Council
is to communicate the scope of audit procedures performed, significant findings, and
other information, such as any disagreements with management, audit adjustments,
and significant estimates that have not been communicated in the audited financial

statements.

Following completion of the ACFR,  it was submitted to the Governmental Finance

Officers Association ( GFOA) for the Certificate for Excellence in Financial Reporting
program.  The GFOA is a nationally recognized nonprofit professional association
serving more than 20, 000 finance professionals in the United States and Canada, and
the Certificate of Achievement is the highest form of recognition in the area of

governmental accounting and financial reporting.  The City of Lathrop bas been
awarded the prestigious Certificate for Excellence in Financial Reporting for 24
consecutive years. A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only.

The City' s financial statements provide information about the finances of the City in
its entirety, as well as information about individual funds. The ACFR is organized into
the three sections summarized below.

The Introductory section includes this transmittal letter and general
information on the City' s government structure and services provided.  It

includes a list of principal officials,   an organizational chart,   and the

Government Finance Officers Associations ( GFOA) Certificate of Achievement

for Excellence in Financial Reporting.

The Financial section contains the independent auditor' s report on the financial

statement audit,    the MD& A,    basic financial statements,    required

supplementary information, and combined and individual fund presentations
and supplementary information.

The Statistical section includes selected financial and demographic information

generally presented on a multi- year basis. This information includes financial

38



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

APRIL 10, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ACCEPT THE CITY OF LATHROP ANNUAL COMPREHENSIVE FINANCIAL

REPORT ( ACFR) FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING UNE 30, 2022

trends,  revenue capacity,  debt capacity,  demographics and economic and

operating information.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

The auditors have issued an unmodified  (" clean")  audit opinion.  An unmodified

opinion indicates that the financial data of the City is fairly presented in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Audit Standards,

issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

FISCAL IMPACT:

There is no fiscal impact associated with this action. Unmodified audit reports are an

indication that City funds are being spent appropriately and as intended by the City
Council, grantor agencies, and federal and State laws. They also help maintain the
City' s favorable ratings for current and future debt issuances.

ATTACH M ENTS:

A.       Resolution Accepting the City of Lathrop Annual Comprehensive Financial
Report ( ACFR) for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2022.

B.       City of Lathrop Annual Comprehensive Financial Report  ( ACFR)  for the

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2022.

C.       City of Lathrop Memorandum on Internal Control for the Fiscal Year Ending
une 30, 2022

D.       City of Lathrop June 30, 2022 Required Communications

39



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 4

APRIL 10, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ACCEPT THE CITY OF LATHROP ANNUAL COMPREHENSIVE FINANCIAL

REPORT ( ACFR) FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2022

APPROVALS:

C
y/ 3  ZoZ3

Thomas Hedegard Date

Deputy Finance Director

Cari a e Date

Director Finance

3    zp  Z 

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

Z3
Stephen J Salvatore Date

City Manager

40



RESOLUTION NO. 23 -

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

ACCEPTING THE ANNUAL COMPREHENSIVE FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

WHEREAS, the financial statements of the City of Lathrop for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2022, have been prepared by the City' s Finance Department; and

WHEREAS, the annual financial statements were examined by the
independent public accounting firm of Lance, Soll & Lunghard, LLP; and

WHEREAS, the City prepared the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022 and the auditor' s opinion is included therein;
and

WHEREAS, it is the opinion of the auditors that the financial statements

present fairly the financial position of the City as of June 30, 2022, and that the
statements were prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America; and

WHEREAS, the auditors have issued an unmodified (" clean") audit opinion;

and

WHEREAS, in addition to the opinion letter included in the ACFR document,

Lance, Soll & Lunghard, LLP has prepared two separate reports on the required
communications and the Memorandum on Internal Control ( MOIC) to the City
Council. Staff received the finalized required communication report and the finalized

MOIC from Lance, Soll & Lunghard, LLP on March 31, 2023.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council does hereby
accept the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report for the Fiscal Year ended June
30, 2022.

41



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 10t" day of April 2023, by the
following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:   APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

42



i.
X

i       „  

R

t    

of  athroP
390 Towne Centre Dr ve

Lathrop, CA 9533U 4

https:// www.ci. lathrop. ca.us/  

i

3

v;'t

ajj H3s
tl'

S; 7F t

t i n{   " ar,Sl          s" j
r g  i  ' u.?  

zt t ;     s

r a z    
t da a  q  

f    ^
f 9r a

i " 
t    "   °        a h

q  
t£ s, Pl;    ` 

Ir ' a    t      a r         f E an`rit t
37 v' tE"€'''

t   

rx  . r i,' Ei

ea '  i'      ` x'

Y .'
a' r¢a,€¢   r,, s

3

t'     yiv  t   ' S i "         '°€ `";
r

i  .+      
w; 1?3

r"..` 6,   "  
v W r! i F  n''       

U y

s  a£ x5'.
raSL , 1 k+''' w_'"--       

r,.      r i, h.       i'

ite" i-s

s:

1

9c  ;. a,,       

B  

i

ga.j
r_.T'      

i

s,

s

ri.. 
w

a!!,,.,  
m,   m,..

e     
r

ANNUAL C MPREHENSIVE    `
Y:

a      

FINANCIAL REPORT     .
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

A:  

e,...

43



CITY OF LATHROP, CALIFORNIA

ANNUAL COMPREHENSIVE FINANCIAL REPORT

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Prepared By
The Finance Department

Cari James Director of Finance

44



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

45



CITY OF LATHROP, CALIFORNIA

ANNUAL COMPREHENSIVE FINANCIAL REPORT

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page

Number

INTRODUCTORY SECTION:

Letterof Transmittal........................................................................................................................................... i

OrganizationalChart........................................................................................................................................ vi

Directory of Officials and Advisory Bodies................................................................................................... vii

FINANCIAL SECTION:

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT.................................................................................................. 1

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS........................................................................................... 5

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Government- wide Financial Statements:

Statementof Net Position.............................................................................................................. 21

Statementof Activities....................................................................................................................... 22

Governmental Fund Financial Statements:

Balance Sheet- Governmental Funds.......................................................................................... 26

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds

to the Statement of Net Position.................................................................................................... 29

Statement of Revenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund
Balances— Governmental Funds..................................................................................................... 30

Reconciliation ofthe Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and

Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the

Statementof Activities....................................................................................................................... 33

Proprietary Fund Financial Statements:
Statement of Net Position— Proprietary Funds............................................................................ 36

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund

Net Position— Proprietary Funds..................................................................................................... 37

Statement of Cash Flows— Proprietary Funds............................................................................. 38

46



CITY OF LATHROP, CALIFORNIA

ANNUAL COMPREHENSIVE FINANCIAL REPORT

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page

Number

Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements:
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position.............................................................................................. 40

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position............................................................................. 41

Notes to Financial Statements................................................................................................................. 43

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability— Miscellaneous Plan ..................... 76

Schedule of Plan Contributions— Miscellaneous Plan.................................................................... 78

Schedule of Changes in the Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios.............................................. 80

Scheduleof OPEB Contributions............................................................................................................ 81

Schedules of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance- Budget and Actual:

GeneralFund.............................................................................................................................. 82

Developer Projects Special Revenue Fund ............................................................................... 84

Capital Facility Fees Special Revenue Fund................................................................................ 85

Building Safety& Inspection Special Revenue Fund.................................................................... 86

Development Engineering Special Revenue Fund....................................................................... 87

Developer Deposits Special Revenue Fund................................................................................. 88

Notes to Required Supplementary Information...................................................................................... 89

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

General Fund:

Descriptionof General Funds........................................................................................................... 93

CombiningBalance Sheet................................................................................................................ 94

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
inFund Balance................................................................................................................................. 95

Schedules of Revenues, Expenditures and Change in Fund Balances— Budget and Actual

GeneralPurpose Fund.................................................................................................. 96

MeasureC..................................................................................................................... 98

47



CITY OF LATHROP, CALIFORNIA

ANNUAL COMPREHENSIVE FINANCIAL REPORT

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page

Number

Non- Major Governmental Funds:

Description of Non- Major Funds....................................................................................................... 99

CombiningBalance Sheet........................................................................................................... 104

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances.................. 114

Schedules of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances— Budget and Actual:

Landscape Maintenance Fund.................................................................................... 124

GasTax Fund.............................................................................................................. 125

TrafficSafety Fund...................................................................................................... 126

LocalStreet Fund........................................................................................................ 127

PublicNuisance Fund.................................................................................................. 128

MeasureK Fund.......................................................................................................... 129

Streetsand Roads Fund ............................................................................................. 130

FederalGrant Fund..................................................................................................... 131

StormDrain Fund........................................................................................................ 132

StreetLight Fund......................................................................................................... 133

A6939Recycling Fund................................................................................................ 134

Community Development Block Grant Fund .............................................................. 135
ScholarshipFund......................................................................................................... 136

COPSFund ................................................................................................................. 137

Office of Traffic and Safety Fund ................................................................................ 138

RTIF San Joaquin County Fund.................................................................................. 139

RTIF Lathrop Local West Fund................................................................................... 140

RTIFSJCOG Fund...................................................................................................... 141

RTIF Lathrop Local East Fund.................................................................................... 142

LMFDMeasure C Fund............................................................................................... 143

StateGrants Fund....................................................................................................... 144

Citywide Economic Dev Fee 20% Fund...................................................................... 145

River Islands CFD 2013- 1 Fund.................................................................................. 146

ULOP RD- 17 Levee Impact Fund............................................................................... 147

CLSP Off- Site Roadway Improvement Fund.............................................................. 148

South Lathrop CFD 2019- 1 Fund................................................................................ 149

Central Lathrop CFD 2019- 2 Fund.............................................................................. 150

Custodial Funds:

Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Position— Custodial Funds.......................................... 152

Combining Statement of Changes in in Fiduciary Fund Net
Position— Custodial Funds.......................................................................................................... 154

48



CITY OF LATHROP, CALIFORNIA

ANNUAL COMPREHENSIVE FINANCIAL REPORT

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page

Number

STATISTICAL SECTION

Financial Trends:

NetPosition by Component............................................................................................................ 158

Changesin Net Position................................................................................................................. 160

Fund Balances of Governmental Funds..................................................................................... 162

Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds.................................................................... 164

Revenue Capacity Information:

Property Tax Levies and Collections.............................................................................................. 166

Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxabie Property.............................................. 167

PrincipalProperty Tax Payers........................................................................................................ 169

Debt Capacity Information:

Direct and Overlapping Governments............................................................................................ 170

LegalDebt Margin Information....................................................................................................... 172

OutstandingDebt............................................................................................................................ 174

Computation of Direct and Overlapping Debt................................................................................ 177

Pledged— Revenue Coverage....................................................................................................... 178

Demographic and Economic Information

Demographic and Economic Statistics.......................................................................................... 180

PrincipalEmployers......................................................................................................................... 181

49



CITY OF LATHROP, CALIFORNIA

ANNUALCOMPREHENSIVE FINANCIAL REPORT

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page

Number

Operating Information:

Full- Time and Part- Time City Empioyees by Function.................................................................. 182

OperatingIndicators by Function.................................................................................................... 184

Capital Asset Statistics by Function ............................................................................................ 185

WaterSold by Type of Customer................................................................................................... 186

WaterRates................................................................................................................................. 187

TenLargest Water Customers....................................................................................................... 188

Top 25 Sales Tax Producers....................................................................................................... 189

50



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

51



S"''

rt
City of Lathrop
Departrnent ofFinance

390 Towne Centre Dcive

p, Lathrop, Califomia 95330
209- 94I- 7320

p,    ww w.ci. lathrop. ca. us

March 31, 2023

To the Honorab/ e Mayor, Members of the City Council and Citizens of Lathrop
Lathrop, California 95330

The Annual Comprehensive Financial Report of the City of Lathrop for the fiscal year( FY) ended June 30, 2022 is
hereby submitted.  Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data and the completeness and fairness of the
presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the City of Lathrop. To the best of our knowledge and belief, the
enclosed data is accurate in all material respects and is reported in a manner that presents fairly the financial
position and results of operations of the various funds of the City of Lathrop. All disclosures necessary to enable
the reader to gain an understanding of the City' s financial activities have been included.

This Annual Comprehensive Financial Report includes a summary of funds for the City of Lathrop and reports all
activities considered to be a part of, controlled by, and dependent on the City.  The accounts of the City are
organized on the basis of fund accounting with each fund considered a separate accounting entity. The operations
of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self- balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities,
deferred outflows/ inflows of resources, fund equity, revenues and expenditures, or expenses as appropriate.
Government resources are allocated to, and accounted for, in individual funds based upon the purpose for which
they are to be spent and the means by which spending activities are controlled.

The Annual Comprehensive Financial Report is prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles ( GAAP) as set forth in pronouncements by the National Council of Governmental Accounting ( NCGA)
and the Governmental Accounting Standards Board ( GASB) and includes the report of the City' s independent
certified public accountants, Lance, Soll and Lunghard, LLP.   Based on the audit, the independent auditors

concluded that there was reasonable basis for rendering an unmodified opinion which states that the City' s financial
statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, are fairly presented in conformity with GAAP. The independent
auditors report is presented as the first component of the financial section of this report.

ManagemenYs discussion and analysis ( MD& A) is required supplementary information and provides information
and analysis that users need to interpret the basic financial statements.  This transmittal letter is designed to
complement the MD& A, and, therefore, should be read with it.  The City' s MD& A can be found immediately
following the independent auditor's report.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

To provide a reasonable basis for making these representations,  City management has established a
comprehensive internal control framework that is designed to ensure that the assets of the government are
protected from loss, theft, or misuse and to ensure that adequate accounting data are compiled to allow for the
preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP in the United States of America.

The internal control structure is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance these objectives are
met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that ( 1) the cost of control should not exceed the benefits
likely to be derived from the control, and ( 2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments
by management. All internal control evaluations occur within the above stated framework. We believe our internal

accounting controls adequately safeguard assets and provide reasonable assurance that financial transactions are
properly recorded.

i

52



INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT

The City Council is responsible for: 1) assuring the City administration fulfills its responsibilities in the preparation
of the financial statements and 2) engaging certified public accountants to ensure sound audit and the accounting
principles are applied in financial reporting.

The Government Code of the State of California requires general law cities, such as the City of Lathrop, to have
its financial statements audited by an independent certified public accountant. Accordingly, this year's audit was
completed by the accounting firm of Lance,  Soll and Lunghard,  LLP.   The firm was engaged by the
City Administration to render an opinion of the City's financial statements in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. To ensure complete independence, Lance, Soll and Lunghard,

LLP presents the results of their assessment of the adequacy of internal accounting controls and the quality of
financial reporting directly to the City Council. The auditor' s report on the basic financial statements is the first item
in the accompanying Financial Section.

In addition to meeting the requirements set forth in state statutes, the audit was also designed to meet the
requirements of the Federal Single Audit Act, Title 2 U. S. Code of Federal Regulations ( CFR) Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards ( Uniform Guidance).

The standards governing Single Audit engagements require the independent auditor to report not only on the fair
presentation of the financial statements, but also on the audited government' s internal controls and compliance
with legal requirements.

REPORT ORGANIZATION:

The report is organized in three sections: introductory, financial, and statistical.

1.   The Introductory section includes this transmittal letter and general information on the City' s government
structure and services provided. It includes a list of principal officials, an organizational chart, and the
Government Finance Officers Associations ( GFOA) Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial

Reporting.
2.   The Financial section contains the independent auditor' s report on the financial statement audit, the MD& A,

basic financial statements,  required supplementary information,  and combined and individual fund

presentations and supplementary information.
3.  The Statistical section includes selected financial and demographic information generally presented on a

multi- year basis. This information includes financial trends, revenue capacity, debt capacity, demographics
and economic and operating information.

PROFILE OF LATHROP

The City of Lathrop encompasses approximately 22 square miles.  The City of Lathrop is located in San Joaquin
County at the center of the Northern California metro market, close to the San Francisco Bay Area and
Greater Sacramento regions, at the interchange of three major freeways:  Interstate 5 ( I- 5), Interstate 205 ( I- 205),

and the Highway 120 Freeway. As of January 1, 2022, the City had an estimated population of 31, 331.

The City of Lathrop is a general- law city incorporated under California law July 1, 1989.  The City operates under
the City Council / Manager form of government.  Beginning with the municipal election in November 1996, the
position of the Mayor is etected for a two- year term.  Four Council Members are elected at- large and serve

alternating four- year terms.    Every two years in December,  the Mayor and Council Members select a
Council Member to serve as Vice- Mayor.  The City Manager also serves as City Treasurer and the City Clerk is
appointed by the City Manager. All municipal elections are non- partisan.

The City of Lathrop provides a wide range of municipal services, including police public safety, water and sewer
utilities, street maintenance, community services, parks and recreation, planning, building, code enforcement, and
other general government services.

Fire services such as fire suppression and prevention are provided for the City by Lathrop- Manteca Fire Protection
District and are funded separately by the Fire District. The Fire District provides specialized equipment and trained
personnel 24 hours a day for emergency assistance to all residents.  The Fire District and the City work together
for the mutual benefit of both agencies and the citizens they serve.

ii

53



ECONOMIC CONDITION AND FINANCIAL OUTLOOK

Historically, Lathrop has been an agricultural- based community, however, the continuing dynamic outward growth
of the San Francisco Bay Area has pushed industrial, warehousing, and logistics growth into the Northern
San Joaquin Valley. This has benefited Lathrop due to its strategic location at the intersection of three major
freeways.  The City continues to experience a period of growth with consistently strong demand in residential
construction to accommodate continuing job growth in the Northern San Joaquin Valley and in the neighboring
Tri Valley Area of the East Bay. Permit issuance remained strong in FY 2021/ 22 with building permits continuing
to be issued at a rate consistent with an agency that is one of the fastest growing in the State. Revenues, such as
property tax, development related fees, community facility district revenues and sales tax are all positively impacted
from increased development activity either directly from fees received or indirectly due to increased population.

The City has recently begun to enjoy a strong economic base from years of smart growth and planning initiatives
resulting in stable property tax revenue, modest transient occupancy taxes and diverse sales tax revenues. The
City' s sales tax revenues remain stable and, over the past several years, have continued to experience annual
increases.  The City' s saies tax revenues are expected to show modest annual increases as population and
consumer activity continue to rise and businesses continue to view Lathrop as an attractive location.

Like all government agencies throughout California, the City is faced with increased ongoing annual operating
costs and rising retirement related liabilities. For Lathrop, some of these challenges include increased funding
needs for pavement maintenance, facility and park maintenance, new programs and departments, additional
personnel, retiree health care costs, and rising pension costs due to new funding policies adopted by the California
Public Employees Retirement System( CaIPERS). While the City has been successful over the years in balancing
these issues with its strategic use of contract staffing and services, the City will continue to experience rising
costs. Additionally, with the anticipation of significant impacts to revenues in the coming year, coupled with
ongoing growth in expenditures over the next five years, the City will be challenged.

Sales tax growth in Lathrop was moored to commercial development throughout 2022 and is expected to stabilize
throughout 2023. Sales tax is the General Fund' s largest source of revenue and has largely recovered to
pre- pandemic levels however the state of the economy from high inflation, supply chain challenges and ongoing
world events remains concerning as we head into FY 2023. The City is currently navigating an unprecedented
inflation situation that has not been encountered in recent history. The ability to budget conservatively has paid
dividends with the uncertainty that has come with recent economic events. This creates challenges but we remain
vigilantly optimistic about Lathrop' s long- term outlook. The City' s future looks bright; with the creation of the City' s
own Police Department opening in July of 2022.

City Council and Staff are dedicated to the Community and our commitment to prudently manage the City' s
finances. This commitment has contributed to our ability to endure these challenging times. The financial impacts
of the pandemic have largely subsided compared to the prior fiscal year.

BALANCED BUDGET

The City's Budget and Fiscal Policy requires the City to maintain a balanced General Fund budget over the annual
period of the financial plan.  This means that each fiscal year, current revenues must meet or exceed operating
expenditures, including debt service. Use of fund balance commitments to offset non- operating expenditures may
allow for current expenditures to exceed current revenues in the fiscal year.  City staff presents General Fund
budgets for City Council consideration that maintain an unassigned fund balance between 10- 50% of the annual

operating appropriations and transfers. Lathrop maintains adequate fund balances for emergencies in a majority
of its governmental operations funds and proprietary funds.

The adopted budget serves as the foundation for the City of Lathrop' s financial planning and control system. All
departments of the City submit requests for appropriations to the City Manager. The City Manager uses these
requests as a starting point for developing a proposed budget. The Council holds public hearings on the proposed
budget and then ultimately adopts a formal budget. The budget is adopted by fund, department, program, and
line- item.

The Council periodically reviews the City's actual financial activity in relation to the original budget, and as
necessary, adjustments are made to ensure that expenditures are not outpacing anticipated revenues. The level
of budgetary control( the level at which expenditures cannot legally exceed the appropriated amount) is at the fund
and department level with more stringent control over capital assets and fund balance categories, which are

iii

54



maintained at the line item level. The City Council must approve amendments or transfers of appropriations
between funds or departments as well as items related to capital assets or fund balances. The City Council has
delegated authority to the City Manager to approve transfers of appropriations between programs and divisions
within a City department and between appropriation units ( e. g., salaries and benefits, services and supplies, and
capital outlay) within programs, excluding special designation or project appropriations.

LONG- TERM FINANCIAL PLANNING

The City incorporates long-term financial planning into its budget process in several ways. During the biennial
budget process the City Council receives an updated General Fund Ten- Year Forecast and CIP Five- Year Forecast
that includes all special revenue funds associated with each project. The long- term financial model used for the
General Fund and CIP looks forward ten years, because of the volatile nature of tax revenues in a commercial
growth- based economy, and various one-time special revenue funds associated with development activity making
it difficult to predict revenues with any certainty beyond the immediate term.  The forecast is used as a tool and
maintained by Finance staff.

These projections allow management to see what the future could look like given a set of assumptions and is
evaluated in the context of whether decisions are sustainable over the long term. The ten- year financial forecast is
a tool for strategic decision making and presents further context for balancing short- term and long- term goals and
provides an " order of magnitude" feel for the General Fund' s ability to continue services and preserve fiscal
sustainability.  Management encourages its departments to project their resource needs for a period longer than
the traditional biennial budget period. In addition, the City faces increasing expenses in several areas of operations,
including the creation of the Police Department. The City has elected to proactively address its unfunded OPEB
obligation by establishing an irrevocable trust and significantly increasing its contributions. At the same time, rising
pension contribution requirements, while helping to reduce the unfunded pension liability, result in a decrease of
financial resources available for other uses.  The City will need to continue to explore options to increase its
revenue base, while keeping expenses manageable.

As the economy readjusts post-pandemic, inflation continues to be a key issue in 2023. Despite higher prices and
concerns over a potential recession, consumer demand has remained consistent. Property tax revenue has not
been affected yet as the assessed values do not show the impact of economic volatility in a short period. Moreover,
affordability and a short supply of homes available for sale has kept the local real estate market steady. Vulnerable
to an economic downturn are sales tax, TOT and development- related revenues. Economic development continues

to thrive as new businesses are motivated to locate in Lathrop due to its location, amenities, economic vibrancy,
and high quality of life for residents.

Lastly, on November 6, 2012, the Citizens of Lathrop approved Measure C by 77%.  Measure C is a general
purpose 1% additional sales tax Measure to be used for the purpose of maintaining and enhancing essential City
services, such as police and fire protection and youth and senior services within the City.  During FY 2020/ 21,
Measure C supported personnel and operating expenditures to manage the Lathrop Generations Center, a
multipurpose facility aimed to promote healthy recreational opportunities for our youth.  Furthermore, Measure C
partially funded the startup of Lathrop' s own Police Department, as well as additional Lathrop Police personnel to
strengthen prevention and intervention services around the community.

CERTIFICATE OF ACHIEVEMENT

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada ( GFOA) has awarded the

Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to City of Lathrop for its annual comprehensive
financial report( ACFR) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020. The ACFR has been judged by an impartial panel
to meet the uppermost standards of the program, which includes demonstrating a constructive " spirit of full
disclosure" to clearly communicate its financial story and motivate potential users and user groups to read the
ACFR. The Certificate of Achievement is the highest form of recognition in the area of governmental accounting
and financial reporting, and its attainment represents a significant accomplishment by a government and its
management. This was the 24"' consecutive year that the City of Lathrop has received this prestigious award.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only.   We believe that our current Annual

Comprehensive Financial Report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program' s requirements and

we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

iv

55



ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The preparation of the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report was made possible by the special efforts of the
entire staff of the Finance Department, working in conjunction with the City' s independent auditors and
departmental staff.  We wou d like to express our appreciation to the Mayor and City Councilmembers for their
continued efforts in stewarding the financial operations of the City in a responsible and enterprising manner.

Respectfully submitted,

r

y'----
j

Stephen J. Salvatore Cari J  es

City Manager Direc r of Finance

v

56



City of Lathrop
Organizational Chart

FY 2021- 22

CITIZENS OF LATH ROP

G

A    a

i

Paul Akinjo Jennifer Torres-   Sonny Dhaliwal Minnie Diallo Diane Lazard

Councilmember O' Callaghan Mayor Councilmember Vice Mayor

Councilmember

i i

n___.__.    w___, __     m...__ . m._,__....    m._.__
m.._.__ __ _.

w....._ m n. r ._.. Ya_,..__.--

r

t

e

s   

t

M

e
o    a

r
s

p

i

M

d

Y

i

i

V

57



DIRECTORY OF OFFICIALS AND ADVISORY BODIES

CITY COUNCIL

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor
JenniferTorres- O' Callaghan, Council Member

Paul Akinjo, Counci) Member

Minnie Diallo, Council Member

Diane Lazard, Vice Mayor

ADVISORY BODIES

Lathrop/ Manteca Fire District
Measure C Oversight Committee

Parks and Recreation Commission

Planning Commission

Senior Advisory Commission
Youth Advisory Commission

APPOINTED OFFICIALS AND DEPARTMENT HEADS

City Manager/ Treasurer Stephen J. Salvatore

City Attorney Salvador Navarrete

Assistant City Manager Michael King
City Engineer Brad Taylor

Director of Government Services/ City Clerk Teresa Vargas

Director of Finance Cari James

Director of Human Resources Vacant

Director of Parks, Recreation & Maintenance Services Todd Sebastian

Chief of Police Raymond Bechler

Director of Community Development Mark Meissner

Chief Building Official Ed Short

viii

58



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

59



i•

i•

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
City of Lathrop, California

Report on the Financial Statements

Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business- type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Lathrop, California,
the " City") as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022, and the related notes to the financial statements,

which collectively comprise the City' s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business- type activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City as of June 30, 2022, and the respective changes
in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America ( GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor' s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report.  We are required to be independent of the City and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Emphasis of Matter

Change in Accounting Principle

As described in Note 8 to the financial statements, in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, the City adopted
new accounting guidance, GASB Statement No. 87, Leases. Our opinion is not modified with respect to
this matter.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; and for the
design,  implementation,  and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

PrimeGiobal i , aj ,,,  ,  .

60



LSL::
To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
City of Lathrop, California

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the City's ability to continue as a
going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known
information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor' s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore

is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing
Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controi. Misstatements are
considered material if, there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they wouid
influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we:

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the City' s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about the City's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable
period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control- related matters
that we identified during the audit.

Other Reporting Responsibilities

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the managemenYs
discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison schedules for the General Fund and major special revenue
funds, and required pension and other post- employment benefits schedules, as listed on the tabie of
contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility
of management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for piacing the
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.

2

61



LSL::
To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
City of Lathrop, California

We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency
with managemenYs responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we

obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to
express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supp/ementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City' s basic financial statements. The combining and individual fund financial statements and
schedules ( supplementary information) are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a

required part of the basic financial statements.  Such information is the responsibility of management and
was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
financial statements.  The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling
such information direct y to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.  In our opinion,  the
supplementary information is fairly stated, in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements
as a whole.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other information

comprises the introductory section and statistical section but does not include the basic financial statements
and our auditor' s report thereon. Our opinions on the financial statements does not cover the other

information, and we do not express an opinion or any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the financial
statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other information exists, we are
required to describe it in our report.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with GoUernment Auditing Standards,  we have also issued our report dated
March 31, 2023 on our consideration of the City' s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of the City' s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City' s
internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Brea, California

March 31, 2023

3

62



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

4

63



City of Lathrop
E.     

Deparunent ofFinance

390 Tow e Cen[ ce Drive

Lathrop, California 95330
209- 94I- 7320

ty  ,   ww v. ci. lar} ro}. ca. us

March 31, 2023

MANAGEMENT' S D/SCUSSION AND ANALYS/ S

As management of the City of Lathrop, we offer readers of the City of Lathrop' s ( City) financial statements
this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2022.   Please read the information presented in conjunction with additional information that we have
furnished in our letter of transmittal, beginning on page i, and the financial statements and disclosure notes
beginning on page 41.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The assets and deferred outflows of resources of the City exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows
of resources at June 30, 2022 by $ 667. 7 million ( net position). Of this amount, $ 118. 5 million

unrestricted net position) may be used to meet the City's ongoing obligations to residents and
creditors.

During the fiscal year,  the City' s governmental activities revenues exceeded expenses by
70. 7 million due in large part to$ 22. 6 million in sales and use taxes collected in the Fiscal Year.

The total revenue from all sources increased$ 124. 7 million from the prior year due to the recovering
impacts associated with the coronavirus restrictions at the State and Federal level.
The General Fund reported excess revenues over expenditures ( including transfers) of$. 4 million,

thereby increasing the fund balance.
Sales and use tax collections increased by$ 4. 4 million, a 24. 3 percent increase from the prior year.
At June 30, 2022, the City' s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of

142. 8 million, an increase of$ 37. 0 million in comparison with June 30, 2021. Of this$ 142. 8 million
total amount, $ 5. 9 million or 4. 1 percent is unassigned fund balance.
At June 30, 2022, the unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was$ 5. 7 million, compared to

last year' s unassigned actual fund balance of$ 6.7 million. The decrease is due to capital projects
committed to during the fiscal year.

OVERVIEW OF THE F/NANCIAL STATEMENTS

This ManagemenYs Discussion and Analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the financial
statements of the City. This comprehensive annual financial report is comprised of five parts:  ( 1) this

managemenYs discussion and analysis ( Pages 5— 18), ( 2) the basic financial statements and notes to the
financial statements( Pages 21 - 72), ( 3) statements of revenue, expenditures and changes in fund balance-
budget to actual of major governmental funds ( Pages 80 - 87), and postemployment benefits other than
pensions trend information
Note 9, Pages 74 — 79), ( 4) other combining statements for non- major governmental funds and agency

funds ( Pages 100- 156) and ( 5) the statistical section ( Pages 160- 191).

The basic financial statements include two different views of the City' s financial position. The government-
wide financial statements provide both long- term and short-term information about the City' s overall financial
status.

5

64



The City' s government- wide basic financial statements are described below with information in the
accompanying text:

Statement of Net Position— a statement that combines the financial position as of June 30, 2022
for all activities on a government- wide basis.
Statement of Activities— a statement that combines the changes in financial position for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2022 on a government- wide basis.

Fund financial statements focus on individual parts of the City government, reporting the City' s operations
in more detail than the government- wide statements.

Statements for Governmental Funds— these present the major governmental funds such as the
general fund, developers projects special revenue fund, capital facilities fee special revenue fund,
building and safety special revenue fund, development engineering special revenue fund, and all
other governmental funds.
Statements for Business- type Funds— these present proprietary funds, such as the City' s water
and sewer utility enterprise funds.

The fund financial statements are described below with information in the accompanying text:

Governmental funds statements tell how general government services, such as police and public
works, were financed in the short- term, as well as what remains for future spending.
Proprietary funds statements offer short and long- term financial information about the activities the
City operates like businesses, such as the water and sewer utilities.

Fiduciary funds statements are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside
the government.  Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government- wide financial statements
because the resources of those funds are not available to support the City's own programs.  The
accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds.

The financial statements also include notes that explain the information in the financial statements and

provide more detailed data.  In addition to the required elements, combining statements are presented that
provide details about the City's non- major governmental funds and agency funds, each of which are
presented in consolidated columns in the basic financial statements.

Government- wide financial statements

The government- wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the
City' s finances using accounting methods similar to a private- sector business.

The statemenf of net position presents information on all the City' s assets, liabilities, and deferred
outflows/ inflows on resources with the difference reported as net position.   Over time, increases or

decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is
improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the governmenYs net position changed
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event
giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.  Thus, revenues and

expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal
periods ( e. g. uncollected taxes and earned but unused compensated absences).

Both of these government- wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues ( governmental activities) from other functions that are
intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges ( business- type
activities). The governmental activities of the City include general government, community development,
public safety, public works, culture and leisure, and debt service.  The business-type activities of the City
include the City' s water and sewer utility enterprise functions.

6

65



The government- wide financial statements include the operations of the City itself and the blended
component unit of the Lathrop Pubiic Facilities Financing Corporation. There are no discrete or component
units. The government- wide financial statements can be found on Pages 21 — 25 of this report.

Fund financial statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been
segregated for specific activities or objectives, or as required by legal enabling legislation. The City, like
other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance related legal requirements. All of the funds of the City can be divided into three categories:
governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported
as governmental activities in the government- wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-
wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows
of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal

year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a governmenYs near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements,
it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented
for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better
understand the long- term impact of the governmenYs near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental
fund balance sheet and the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes
in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and
government- wide activities.

The City maintained 42 individual governmental funds in 2022. Information is presented separately in the
governmental funds balance sheet and in the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures, and
changes in funds balances for the general fund, developers projects special revenue fund, capital facilities
fee special revenue fund, building and safety special revenue fund, development engineering special
revenue fund, all of which are designated as major funds.   Data from the remaining 37 non- major
governmental funds are shown as other supplementary information.

The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for all of its funds. A budgetary comparison compliance
schedule is provided for each of the major funds and a like schedule is provided for the non- major
governmental funds shown as other supplementary information.

The governmental fund financial statements are found on Pages 26 - 33 of this report.

Proprietary funds.   Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government- wide
business- type activity financial statements, only in more detail, and are used to account for services for
which customer fees are intended to finance the costs of operations.  There are two types of proprietary
funds — internal service funds and enterprise funds. Internal service funds account for services rendered

between City departments. Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-
type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The City has one internal service fund in its fund
structure, which is used to quantify compensated absences activities between departments. The City uses
enterprise funds to account for its water and sewer utility functions. These two major funds' financial
statements are shown individually in the front of this report.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on Pages 34— 37 of this report.

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary or agency funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties
outside the government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements
because the resources of those funds are not available to support the City's own programs. The accounting
used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds.  The City has 12 fiduciary funds. The
fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on Page 38 of this report.

7

66



Notes to the financial statements

The notes provide additional information that are essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the
government- wide, governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary fund financial statements. The notes to the
financial statements are found on Pages 41 - 73 of this report.

Required and other information

Additional information is included that provides both more detail, and complements the financial data
provided in the previous financial statements.  The combining statements, referred to earlier in connection
with non- major governmental funds, are presented immediately following the required supplementary
information. Combining and individual fund statements on the City' s 37 non- major governmental funds and
12 fiduciary funds are not a required part of the basic financial statements and are presented as other
supplementary information.  Original and final adopted budgets compared to actual financial information for
each fund is included in this section. Combining and individual fund statements and schedules can be found
on Pages 91 - 151 of this report.

GOVERNMENT- WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Summary of Net Position

As noted earlier, net position may serve as a useful indicator of a government' s financial position since it
represents the difference between the City' s resources and its obiigations.  In the case of the City, assets
exceeded liabilities by$ 668 million at the close of Fiscal Year 2021/ 22.

Compared to the previous year, the City' s total net position increased by 15. 6 percent. This increase is
primarily due to developer contributions of capital assets that took place in Fiscal Year 2021/ 22.

By far the largest portion of this year' s net position reflects the City' s investment in capital assets of
424 million ( e. g., utility system construction, utility plant improvements, water rights acquisition, land

acquisition, building improvements, equipment, vehicles, roads and streets) less any related debt used to
acquire those assets that is still outstanding.  The City uses these capital assets to provide services to
residents; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending.   Although the City' s net
investment in capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to

repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used
to liquidate these liabilities. Additional capital asset information can be found in the Capital Asset and Debt

Administration section of this report.

A portion of the City' s total net position represent resources that are subject to external and internal
restrictions( Municipal Code and/ or State mandates and reserves required by debt obligation covenants) on
how they may be used.  Restricted net position amount to$ 125 million or 18. 0 percent of total net position.
The remaining balance of$ 118. 5 million ( 23. 5 percent of total net position) is unrestricted and may be used
to meet the City' s ongoing obligations to residents and creditors.

The table below shows the government- wide assets, liabilities, deferred outflows/ inflows of resources and
net position for both fiscal years ended June 30, 2021 and 2022.

8

67



City of Lathrop Summary of Net Position
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30

in Thousands)

Governmental Business- Type Total Primary Total

Activities Activities Government Percent

2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2p22
Change

Assets:

Capital assets 221, 944  $ 253, 479   $ 184, 986   $ 190, 802   $ 406, 930  $ 444, 281 9. 18°/ o

Otherassets 163,284 198, 957 58, 165 76, 957 221, 449 275, 914 24.59%

TotalAssets 385, 228 452, 436 243, 151 267, 759 628, 379 720, 195 14.61%

Deferred Outflows

Deferred Outflows Related

to Pension
2, 310 2, 329 288 316 2, 598 2, 645 1. 81%

Liabilities:

Current liabilities 18, 929 22, 361 3, 097 3, 987 22, 026 26, 348 19. 62%

Long- term liabilities 11, 657 7, 837 19, 139 17, 171 30, 796 25,008   - 18. 79%

Total Liabilities 30, 586 30, 198 22, 236 21, 158 52, 822 51, 356     - 2. 78%

Deferred Inflows

Deferred Inflows Related
630 3, 317 86 418 716 3, 735 421. 65%to Pension

Net Position:

Net Investment

in Capital Assets 218, 894 250, 605 156, 963 174, 059 375, 857 424, 664 12. 99%

Restricted 103, 965 122, 950 1, 651 1, 653 105, 616 124, 603 17. 98%

Unrestricted 33,463 47, 696 62, 503 70, 785 95, 966 118, 481 23. 46%

Total Net Position 356, 322  $ 421, 251   $ 221, 117  $ 246, 497  $ 577, 439  $ 667, 748 15. 64%

At the end of the fiscal year, the City is able to report positive balances in all three categories of net position,
both for the City as a whole, as well as for its separate governmental and business- type activities. Combined
net position of the primary government increased by 15. 6 percent this year, from $ 577. 4 million at
June 30, 2021 to$ 667.7 million at June 30, 2022.

Although the net position of the City' s business- type activities are$ 246. 5 million, the City generally can only
use unrestricted net position to finance the continuing operations of the business- type activities.

Chanqes in net aosition

The City' s total program expenses of$ 61. 9 million are less than the total revenues of$ 152. 2 million for an
increase in net position as of June 30, 2022 of $ 90.3 million. The table on the next page shows the
summarized revenues and expenses for both fiscal years 2020/ 21 and 2021/ 22.

The City' s fiscal year 2021/ 22 change in net position was 39.5 percent higher than fiscal year 2020/21, due
to an increase of 19.4 percent in total revenues and a decrease of 1. 5 percent in total expenditures in fiscal
year 2021/ 22. The expenditure decrease is largely found in the governmental activities, which is a result of
operating savings in the area.

9

68



Governmental program activities and general revenues of$ 117. 7 million and transfers out of$ 5. 8 million,
supported expenses of$ 46. 9 million, for a total net increase in net position in tax- supported activities of

64 million. The reason for the increase in the governmental net position is due to an increase in one- time
capital contributions from development activity.

Business- type activities revenues of$ 34. 5 million supported expenses of$ 14. 9 million and transfers in of

5. 8 million, for a total change in net position in utility enterprise activities of$ 25. 4 million.  The reason for
the increase in the business- type net position is due to the continued growth of the City' s customer base
paired with developer contributions of capital assets. The increase of net position of$ 25. 4 million is available
for future water and sewer improvement needs as required by projected City population increases and
development needs.

City of Lathrop Changes in Net Position
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30

in Thousands)

Governmental Business-Type Total Primary Total

Activities Activities Government Percent

2021 2022 2027 2022 2021 Zp22
Change

Revenues:

Program revenues:

Charges for services 14, 791  $   20, 692  $   19, 016  $   19, 900  $   33, 807  $  40, 592 20. 07%

Operating grants and contributions 2, 710 5, 237 2, 710 5, 237 93. 25%

Capital grants and contributions 16, 740 25,390 6, 863 4, 993 23, 603 30, 383 28. 73%

General revenues:

Sales and use taxes 18, 190 22, 602 18, 190 22,602 24. 26%

Property taxes 8, 613 9, 738 8, 613 9, 738 13. 06%

Franchisetaxes 1, 531 1, 640 5, 692 9, 461 7, 223 11, 101 53. 69%

Transient occupancy taxes 739 1, 041 739 1, 041 40. 87%

Other taxes 30, 621 32, 094 30, 621 32, 094

Other miscellaneous 945 1, 344 5 945 1, 349 42. 75%

Unrestrictedinvestmentearnings 701       ( 2, 101) 364 216 1, 065      ( 1, 885)  - 277.00%

Total Revenues 95,581 717, 677 31, 935 34,575 127, 516 152, 252 19.40%

Expenses:

Governmental activities:

General government 6, 544 6, 994 6, 544 6, 994 6. 88%

Communitydevelopment 8, 228 1, 805 8, 228 1, 805   - 78. 06%a

Public safety 11, 729 11, 628 I' 1, 729 11, 628     - 0. 86%

Public works 19, 893 14, 7' 11 19, 893 14, 711    - 26. 05%

Culture and leisure 1, 466 11, 559 1, 466 11, 559 688. 47%

Interest on long- term debt 241 234 241 234     - 2. 90%

Business- type activities:

Water enterprise 6, 767 7, 099 6, 767 7, 099 4.91%

Sewer enterprise 7, 926 7, 854 7, 926 7, 854     - 0. 91%

Total expenses 48, 101 46,931 14, 693 14,953 62,794 61, 884     - 1. 45%

Excess before transfers 47, 480 70, 746 17, 242 19, 622 64, 722 90, 368 39.62%
Transfers 1, 778      ( 5, 818)      ( 1, 778)      5, 818

Change in Net Position 49, 258 64,928 15,464 25,440 64, 722 90,368 39.62%

Net Position- Beginning 309, 230 356, 322 205, 506 221, 117 514, 736 577, 439    ' 12. 18%

Prior Period Adjustment 2, 166)   147 2, 019)   

Net Position, Beginning, Restated 307, 064 356, 322 205, 653 221, 117 512, 717 577,439 12. 62%

Net Position- Ending 356, 322  $ 421, 251  $ 221, 117  $ 246,557  $ 577, 439  $ 667, 808 15. 65%

Governmental Activities

Following are illustrative summaries of governmental activities separating program revenues and expenses.
The difference between the program revenue and expense bars by activity illustrates the amount the
respective activity is supported by general revenues ( e. g. taxes or investment earnings).

10

69



2C122 EXPENSE A JD PROGRAM REVENUES -

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

Program Revenues Expenses

35
30. 11

30

25
c

2Q
S1a. lt

5
g. 19

11. 63
11. 56

9. 2
39a

J
1.$ 1 3. 4

Q.     0.23

Gene mun'RY
welop Pub c 5 e

aubk
it and Leisu t 4 tese t

Normally, governmental funds' expenditures match or exceed program revenues.  Under full accrual
accounting, developer contributions are program revenues, yet their contributed assets are not shown as a
corresponding expense on the City's financial statements.  Program revenues for public works excluding
infrastructure contributions resulted in expenditures in excess of revenues. General government services
delivery costs exceeded program revenues by$ 4. 4 million.

2022 REVENUES BY SOURCE- GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

Operating grants and
Property taxes

contribucions

4%

ranchisetaxes

Chargesforservices 196

1796

oaupancy taxes

196

Unrestritted investment

earnings

2%

Other misceiianeous Other taxes

1 Mator Vehicle in Iieu 2'

0%

Revenues and expenditures in the governmental funds continue to increase as the population of Lathrop
has grown. Property tax revenue is a major revenue source for the General Fund. During fiscal year 2021/ 22,
property tax revenues increased by$ 1. 1 million.

11

70



The following table shows the cost of the City' s major programs and the net cost of the programs. Net cost
is the total cost less fees and other direct revenue generated by the activities.  The net cost reflects the

financial burden that was placed on the City' s taxpayers by each of the programs. The cost of all
governmental activities this year was $ 46. 9 million.  The net cost of all services indicates that the overall

cost of government is less than revenue generated to support it.  However, the higher revenue reflected in
FY2021/ 22 is due to the contributions from developer built capital improvement projects.

City of Lathrop Net Cost of Governmental Activities
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30

in Thousands)

Total Cost of Services Net( Expense) Revenue of Services

2021 2p22 Percent
2021 2p22

Percent

Change Change

General government 6, 545   $     6, 994 6. 86%       $    1, 320   $    2, 218 68. 03%

Communityde nelopment 8, 228 1, 805   - 78. 06%    4, 167) 6, 389    - 253.32%

Publicsafety 11, 730 11, 628     - 0. 87%   11, 282)       ( 8, 194)    - 27. 37%

Publicworks 19, 893 14, 711    - 26. 05°/a 1, 850 15, 404 732. 65%

Culture and leisure 1, 466 11, 559 688. 47%    1, 342)      ( 11, 196)    734. 28%

Other 241 234     - 2. 90%      241) 234)      - 2. 90%

Total 48, 103   $   46, 931      - 2. 44°/ a      $  ( 13, 862)  $    4, 387    - 131. 65%

Business- type Activities

Business- type activities increased the City' s net position by $ 25. 4 million.  The bar chart below illustrates

how total program revenues and expenses compare and includes both current operating and capital
categories combined. The pie chart shows the distribution of business- type revenues by category.

2022 EXPENSES& PROGRAM REVEIYUES

BUSINE55-TYPE AC7IVITIES

rvrgramarxn„ e.     rexper n

yb10.
511 -     `'

qh
S' •     Q y'18'

y1
S8

E

C 56

d '

5 '

0 . ry    .. ..      .... .    . ...  ...... .    .

Waae     5evr«

12

71



2022 REVEWUE5 BY SOURCE-

BUSIPtESS-7YPE ACTIVITIES

TibnS( C S

1

OpF!] Sing
Franchax Tax« s ontri6utians and

J'% I w! YlMentFJmingS Gfdflif

qe 1§

Water Fund

The Water Utility Enterprise treats and distributes clean drinking water to Lathrop' s residential and
commercial customers and performs repair and maintenance functions of existing water lines, as well as
builds additional water distribution systems through its capital improvement master plan.

The bar chart above illustrates program revenues exceeding program expenses by $ 3. 7 million.  In the

Water Utility Enterprise Fund, a monthly service availability fee and usage rate is charged to residential and
commercial customers to meet the Water Fund' s operating expenses.   Under full accrual accounting,
developer contributions are program revenues, yet contributed assets are not shown as a corresponding
expense. Program revenues excluding developer contributions and bond proceeds were$ 10. 7 million. This
shows operating revenues exceeding operating expenses by $ 3. 7 million. In February 2016, the City
adopted a 5- Year water rate program based on the Water Rate Study findings.

Sewer Fund

The Sewer Utility Enterprise collects and treats sewer for Lathrop' s residential and commercial customers
and performs repair and maintenance functions of existing sewer mains, as well as builds additional system
capital improvements.  In the Sewer Utility Enterprise Fund, a monthly service fee is charged to residential
and commercial customers. The bar chart on the previous page illustrates program expenditures exceeding
program revenues by$ 1. 3 million. This signifies that sewer operating income is meeting standard operating
and infrastructure renewal and replacement costs. In February 2016, the City adopted a 5- Year sewer rate
program based on the Sewer Rate Study findings.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY'S FUNDS

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance- related
legal requirements.

Governmental funds

The focus of the City' s governmental funds is to provide information on near- term inflows, outflows, and
balances of spendable resources. This information is useful in assessing the City' s financing requirements.
In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government' s net resources
available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of June 30, 2022, the City's governmental funds ( general, special revenue, and capital project funds)
reported combined ending fund balances of$ 174. 7 million, an increase of$ 31. 9 million in comparison with
the prior fiscal year. Approximately 9. 5 percent of this total amount ($ 16. 7 million) constitutes unassigned

13

72



fund balance, which is available for spending, at the City' s governing body' s discretion.  Of the remainder
fund balance, $ 2. 4 million is nonspendable, $ 122. 9 million is restricted and $ 32. 7 million is committed and
is not available for new spending.

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At the end of the 2022 fiscal year, fund balance of
the general fund was $ 56. 7 million, of which $ 17. 7 million is unassigned fund balance.  The increase in

unassigned fund balance of the General Fund for Fiscal Year 2021/ 22 was due to increase sales and
property taxes collected due to the economic recovery from Fiscal Year 2020/ 21. As a measure of the
General Fund' s liquidity, it may be useful to compare fund balance to total fund expenditures. Total general
fund balance represents 305 percent of total General Fund expenditures of$ 18. 5 million in 2022. This means
the City' s general governmental operations could continue for about 37- months without any additional
revenue generation.

The Developer Projects fund had an ending fund balance of$. 4 million at June 30, 2022.  The monies in

this fund are collected from developers for specific projects. The committed fund balance can only be used
to fund specific developer projects in future fiscal years.

The Capital Facilities Fees fund had an ending fund balance of $ 55. 0 million as of June 30, 2022.  The

monies in this fund are collected from developers for specific projects.  The committed fund balance can
only be used to fund specific developer projects in future fiscal years.

The Building Safety and Inspection and Development Engineering funds had a combined ending fund
balance of$ 8. 9 million as of June 30, 2022. The monies in these fund are collected from cost recovery fee
sources for specific projects and operations associated with the fee nexus.  The committed fund balance
can only be used to fund specific projects in future fiscal years.

Proprietary funds

The City proprietary funds provide similar information to that which is found in the government- wide financial
statements, but in more detail. Each fund' s financial transactions, both near- term and historic, are provided
in the statement of net position and the statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position.  In

addition, these proprietary funds also present a statement of cash flows.

In Fiscal Year 2021/ 22, the water utility enterprise fund increased its net position from $ 79. 9 million to
88. 4 million. Unrestricted net assets at the end of the fiscal year amounted to $ 37. 3 million, and are

available for future capital water system improvements.  $ 49. 4 million of the Water Fund' s net position are
net investment in capital assets and are not available for liquidation to support operations. The remaining

1. 7 million is restricted to satisfy debt service obligations and covenants.

In Fiscal Year 2021/ 22, the sewer utility fund increased its net position from$ 141. 2 million to$ 158. 1 million.
Unrestricted net position at the end of the fiscal year amounted to$ 33. 5 million and, are available for future
capital sewer system improvements. $ 124. 6 million of the Sewer Fund' s net position are net investment in
capital asset and are not available for liquidation to support operations.

Other factors concerning the finances of these funds have already been reviewed in the discussion of the
City' s business- type activities.  The capital assets section on the following pages will provide additional
discussion and analysis of the business- type financial activities.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

During Fiscal Year 2021/ 22, the General Fund' s original budgeted expenditures of$ 19. 3 million increased
to $ 24. 9 million at Final Amended Budget.  Original adopted revenue estimates were $ 20. 9 million.  The

table below illustrates the General Fund' s original and final budget levels by function of government
categories ( e. g. Public Works, Community Development, Culture and Leisure) and the total budget levels
for Fiscal Year 2021/ 22.

14

73



GENERAL FUND FISCAL YEAR 2021/ 22 ORIGINAL AND FINAL BUDGETS
BY GOVERNMENTAL FUNCTION CATEGORY

Originai Finai

530    
a

5zs  

Szo     

515 

o

5io  a  ,
89

y
a

y O

5   1.   ~    ' t'             O

ti.  5ti• ti

So

apital& Debt Culture and Community Pubiic Works Aublic Safety Generai Totaf

5s3 Qo leisure Develop Gover ment

Over the course of the year, the City Council revised the City budget with adjustments that are comprised
within the following two categories:

Changes made in the mid- year report to adjust revenues, augment current year expenditure
appropriations, and establish or increase designation of fund balance.
Other revenue adjustments and expenditure appropriations approved after the original budget is
adopted, and before or after the mid- year report is approved.

Amendments to the General Fund increased budgeted expenditures by$ 5. 5 million and are primarily a result
of increased costs to carry out operations for public purposes and the purchase of replacement fleet vehicles.
Budgeted General Fund revenues were increased by $ 5. 8 million to reflect revenues collected through
increases in Measure C, Property and Sales Taxes.

After taking these adjustments into account, actual expenditures came in 25 percent below the final budget,
at $ 18. 6 million. Capital Outlay expenditure savings contributed to this reduced spending level. Actual
revenues in the General Fund were$ 10. 5 million higher than the final budget revenue estimate. The result
of the higher revenues and significantly lower spending increased the ending fund balance of the
General Fund.

The City' s General Fund revenue structure slightly changed compared to Fiscal Year 2020/21. The two pie
charts below present total actual revenues for Fiscal Years 2020/ 21 and 2021/ 22 by revenue category. Total
actual taxes comprised 81 percent of total General Fund revenues in Fiscal Year 2020/ 21 and 67 percent
in Fiscal Year 2021/ 22.

15

74



FISCAL YEAR 2018/ 20 GENERAL FUNq REYENUE
Use pf Mon y&.  

Clurgez Wr Servites

7X

trttergovemmental

P rr

il IIII1) 16 III
G R2S F FOf} CiIUIPS

1'

UCertse 5 8 Vermits

1`%

F{ SCAL YEAR 202t122 GENERAL FUND REVENUE
CAa gesfw      r

USC O MOl1N( R.
1

SMYI[ f5
4G

PIO( YCfty

niCtgpvppnr pn( pl

13%

F111HS Fi FORCI( LYCS

CICPAS45$ Ppfrtii( 5

CAPITAL ASSETAND DEBTADM/ NISTRATION

Capital Assets

At the end of Fiscal Year 2021/ 22, the City had$ 444.2 million ( net of accumulated depreciation) invested in
a broad range of capital assets, including equipment, vehicles, buildings, parks, streets, water and sewer
transmission and distribution systems. This amount represents a net increase ( including additions and
deductions) of$ 37. 3 million, or a 9. 2 percent increase, over Fiscal Year 2020/ 21.

16

75



The table below outlines net capital assets by asset-type classification and by governmental or
business- type activity.

City of Lathrop Capital Assets
For Fiscal Years Ended June 30

net of depreciation)

in Thousands)

Governmental Business- Type
Tota I

Activities Activities

2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022

Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated
Land 9, 630  $ 10, 560   $   3, 565   $   3, 565  $ 13, 195  $ 14, 125

Construction in progress 19, 874 21, 012 6, 190 10, 635 26, 064 31, 647

Depreciable Capital Assets

Buildings 7, 956 20, 708 7, 956 20, 708

Improvements 50,383 55, 425 174, 658 176, 060 225, 041 231, 485

Equipment and vehicles 1, 486 2, 619 575 541 2, 061 3, 160

Infrastructure 132, 616 143, 155 132, 616 143, 155

Total 221, 945  $ 253, 479  $ 184, 988  $ 190, 801  $ 406, 933  $ 444, 280

This year's major capital additions included:
Infrastructure 14, 768, 797

Water and Sewer Systems Improvements 4,706, 352

Equipment& Vehicles 561, 145

More detailed information about the City' s capital assets is presented in Note 4 to the financial statements
on Pages 56- 57.

Debt Administration

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City had a total of $ 19. 5 million in outstanding debt.  The total

outstanding in the business type activities at June 30, 2022 was$ 16. 7 million. Overall in Fiscal Year2021/ 22,
the City' s outstanding debt was reduced by$ 1. 8 million.

City of Lathrop Outstanding Debt
For Fiscal Years Ended June 30

in Thousands)

Governmental Business- Type

Activ ities Activ ities
Total

2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022

2017 Bank Loan 8, 874   $    8, 178  $    8, 874  $    8, 178

State Revolving Fund Loan 6, 010 5, 554 6, 010 5, 554

Compass Bank Loan 3, 384 3, 010 3, 384 3, 010

Capital Loan- City Hall 3, 050 2, 745 3, 050 2, 745

Total 3, 050  $    2, 745  $   18,268   $   16,742  $   21, 318  $   19,487

The City continues to maintain its credit ratings on all of its rated debt.  Note 6 to the financial statements
presents more detail about the debt position of the City on Pages 58- 60.

17

76



ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR' S BUDGETS AND RATES

The City Council considered many factors when setting the Fiscal Year 2021/ 22 budget. The City primarily
relies on property tax and sales tax revenues to provide services and amenities to the community. Lathrop' s
population has experienced significant growth.  Just last year, the City experienced a 6. 3 percent increase
in its population making it one of the fastest growing cities in California. While higher population is an exciting
sign of growth, the City also recognizes some of the challenges such growth brings in the planning and
management of serving our new residents. With City Council' s guidance, the City has built strong financial
reserves to draw from in unknown times, we have been able to maintain our sound financial position.

In March of 2021, the City Council approved moving forward to establish a new City of Lathrop Police
Department.  This important decision has not been made quickly; in fact, years of financial analysis have
indicated the City can save money and provide more staff in police services tailored to meet the needs of
the community. The City Council' s decision reflects a commitment to take action when it is in the long- term
interest of our citizens.

Over the past decade, the City Council and City staff have focused on ensuring a sustainable economic
future for the City of Lathrop supporting steady growth projections for the future.  The City has a goal to
provide an environment for strong industrial, commercial and residential growth that has resulted in a solid
financial foundation. The California State Auditor Office, in its most recent report, has ranked Lathrop in the
top 3% of fiscally sound cities, out of 471 cities throughout California.  This has been possible because of
stability in City Hall staffing, with a skilled and committed City staff team. These factors have positioned the
City to be able to stand up a new Police Department to provide services that continue to meet the needs of
residents, businesses, schools, community groups and visitors in Lathrop in a cost-effective manner.

Building permit issuance by the City for new residential and commercial development is the key driver used
to estimate various revenue streams. These revenues are deposited into various funds. Examples of these
revenues include: sales and use taxes on construction materials and equipment; capital facility fees charged
to mitigate the impact of new development- driving a need for more parks and street capital investments;
system development charges( investment/ tap fees) assessed to finance future capital investment for water,
sewer, and storm drainage systems.

As mentioned above, the level of single- family dwelling unit building permits issued, measured at 924 in
Fiscal Year 2021/ 22, this level exceeds the 334 issued years earlier in Fiscal Year 2006/ 07 during the height
of the previous housing boom.

These major economic indicators were all considered when adopting the General Fund budget for Fiscal
Year 2021/ 22.

CONTACTING THE CITY FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our residents, taxpayers, customers, investors and creditors with
a general overview of the City' s finances and to show the City' s accountability and transparency for the
money it receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact
the City of Lathrop  -  Finance Department,  390 Towne Centre Drive,  Lathrop,  California 95330,
209) 941- 7320.

18

77



STATEMENT OF NET POSITION AND STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

The purpose of the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities is to summarize the entire
City' s financial activities and financial position.

The Statement of Net Position reports the difference between the City's total assets and deferred
outflows and the City' s total liabilities and deferred inflows, including all the City' s capital assets and all
its long- term debt. The Statement of Net Position focuses the reader on the composition of the City' s net
position, by subtracting total liabilities and deferred inflows from total assets and deferred outflows
and summarizes the financial position of all the City' s Governmental Activities in a single column, and the
financial position of all the City' s Business- Type Activities in a single column; these columns are
followed by a Total column that presents the financial position of the entire City.

The City' s Governmenta Activities include the activities of its General Fund,  along with all its
Special Revenue and Capital Projects Funds. Since the City' s Internal Service Fund services these Funds,
their activities are consolidated with Governmental Activities, after eliminating interFund transactions and
balances. The City's Business-Type Activities include all its Enterprise Fund activities. The Statement of
Activities reports increases and decreases in the City' s Net Position. It is also prepared on the full accrual
basis, which means it includes all the City' s revenues and all its expenses, regardless of when cash
changes hands. This differs from the modified accrual basis used in the Fund financial statements, which

reflect only current assets, current liabilities, available revenues and measurable expenditures.

The Statement of Activities presents the City's expenses first, listed by program, and follows these with
the expenses of its business- type activities. Program revenues— that is, revenues which are generated
directly by these programs— are then deducted from program expenses to arrive at the net expense of
each governmental and business- type program. The City' s general revenues are then listed in the
Governmental Activities or Business- type Activities column,  as appropriate,  and the Change in

Net Position is computed and reconciled with the Statement of Net Position.

Both these Statements include the financial activities of the City and the Lathrop Public Facilities
Financing Corporation ( Corporation). The Corporation is legally separate but is a component unit of the
City because it is controlled by the City, which is financially accountable for the activities of these entities.

19

78



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

20

79



CITY OF LATHROP

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2022

Primary Government
Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities Total
Assets:

Cash and investments 188, 466, 155     $  73, 744, 039     $ 262, 210, 194
Receivables:

Accounts( net of allowance for uncollectibles)     7, 965, 993 3, 928, 423 11, 894,416
Notes and loans 20, 350 20, 350

Accrued interest 98, 274 37, 922 136, 196
Internal balances 2, 405, 864 2,405,864)  
Restricted assets:

Cash with fiscal agent 1, 652, 915 1, 652, 915
Capital assets not being depreciated 31, 612, 137 14, 200, 417 45, 812, 554

Capital assets, net of depreciation 221, 867, 009 176, 601, 105 398, 468, 114

Total Assets 452, 435, 782 267, 758, 957 720, 194, 739

Deferred Outflows of Resources:

Deferred pension related items 1, 760, 282 225, 752 1, 986, 034
Deferred OPEB related items 569, 133 90, 040 659, 173

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 2, 329, 415 315, 792 2, 645, 207

Liabilities:

Accounts payable 8, 581, 249 2, 528, 410 11, 109,659
Accrued liabilities 795, 214 795, 214

Accrued interest 101, 245 101, 245

Unearned revenue 7, 160, 835 7, 160, 835

Deposits payable 5, 823, 626 1, 058, 254 6,881, 880
Due to other governments 298, 787 2gg g

Noncurrent liabilities:

Due within one year
Compensated absences 314, 246 12, 230 326, 476

Long- term Debt& loans payable 315, 000 1, 570, 205 1, 885, 205
Leases Payable 37, 177 37, 177

Due in more than one year
Compensated absences 1, 780, 728 69, 307 1, 850, 035

Long- term Debt& loans payable 2, 430, 000 15, 171, 896 17,601, 896
Leases Payable 91, 958 91, 958

Net pension liability 2, 653, 445 314, 215 2, 967, 660

Net OPEB liability 214, 064 33, 867 247, 931

Total Liabilities 30, 197, 542 21, 158, 416 51, 355, 958

Deferred Inflows of Resources:

Deferred pension related items 2, 488, 552 287, 454 2, 776, 006
Deferred OPEB related items 828, 089 131, 007 959, 096

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 3, 316, 641 418, 461 3, 735, 102

Net Position:

Net investment in capital assets 250, 605, 011 174, 059, 421 424,664,432
Restricted for:

Community development 2, 088, 980 2, 088, 980
Public safety 1, 064, 058 1, 064, 058
Culture and leisure 1, 483, 378 1, 483, 378

Publicworks 117, 148, 650 117, 148, 650
Capital projects 1, 164, 924 1, 164, 924
Debt service 1, 652, 915 1, 652, 915

Unrestricted 47, 696, 013 70, 785, 536 118,481, 549

Total Net Position 421, 251, 014     $ 246, 497, 872     $ 667, 748, 886

See Notes to Financial Statement.  2

80



CITY OF LATHROP

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Program Revenues

Operating Capital
Charges for Contributions Cont ibutions

Expenses Services and Grants and Grants

Functions/ Programs

Primary Government:
Governmental Activities:

General government 6,994, 053    $ 9, 212, 336    $ 
Public safety 11, 628, 050 139, 111 3,295,283
Community development 1, 805,271 8, 161, 272 33,200
Culture and leisure 11, 559, 470 363,671
Publicworks 14, 711, 011 2, 816, 090 1, 908, 139 25, 390, 248
Interest on long- term debt 233, 740

Total Governmental Activities 46, 931, 595 20, 692, 480 5, 236, 622 25, 390, 248

Business- Type Activities:

Water 7, 099, 213 10, 758, 681 2,947,675
Sewer 7, 853,576 9, 141, 235 1, 985,352

Total Business- Type Activities 14, 952, 789 19, 899, 916 4, 933, 027

Total Primary Government 61, 884, 384    $       40, 592, 396    $ 5, 236, 622    $       30, 323, 275

General Revenues:

Taxes:

Property taxes, levied for general purpose
Transient occupancy taxes
Sales taxes

Franchise taxes

Other taxes& assessments

Use of money and property
Other

Transfers

Total General Revenues

and Transfers

Change in Net Position

Net Position at Beginning of Year

Net Position at End of Year

See Notes to Financial Statement. 22

81



Net( Expenses) Revenues and Changes in Net Position

Primary Government

Governmental Business- Type

Activities Activities Total

2, 218, 283    $ 2, 218, 283

8, 193, 656)       8, 193,656)

6, 389, 201 6, 389, 201

11, 195, 799)       11, 195,799)

15, 403, 466 15, 403, 466

233,740)       233, 740)

4, 387, 755 4,387, 755

6,607, 143 6, 607, 143

3, 273, 011 3, 273, 011

9, 880, 154 9, 880, 154

4, 387, 755 9, 880, 154 14, 267, 909

9, 737, 910 9, 737, 910

1, 041, 501 1, 041, 501

22, 602, 105 22, 602, 105

1, 640, 212 1, 640, 212

32, 094, 375 9, 460, 928 41, 555, 303

2, 101, 280)       216, 580 1, 884, 700)

1, 344, 184 5, 176 1, 349, 360

5, 818, 160)     5, 818, 160

60,540, 847 15, 500, 844 76, 041, 691

64,928,602 25,380,998 90, 309, 600

356, 322, 412 221, 116, 874 577, 439, 286

421, 251, 014    $     246, 497, 872    $     667, 748, 886

See Notes to Financial Statement. 23

82



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

24

83



FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

The funds described below were determined to be Major Funds by the City in fiscal year 2021. Individual
non- major funds may be found in the Supplemental section.

GENERALFUND

This fund accounts for all financial resources except those to be accounted for in another fund. It is the

general operating fund of the City.

DEVELOPER PROJECTS SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

This fund accounts for revenues received and expenditures spent associated with various developer

projects.

CAPITAL FACILITY FEE SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

To account for the financial resources associated with the capital facility fees for Traffic Mitigation
includes Regional Traffic), Storm Drain, Culture and Leisure, City Service, and Administration.

BUILDING SAFETY 8 INSPECTION SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

This fund accounts for building safety and inspection permit fee revenue and activity.

DEVELOPMENT ENGINEERING SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

This fund accounts for the development engineering fee revenue and activity.

DEVELOPER DEPOSITS SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

This fund accounts for the activity relating to developer deposits for development projects ongoing within
the City.

STREETS AND ROADS CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

To account for capital project expenditures related to streets and roads occurring over more than one
fiscal year.

25

84



CITY OF LATHROP

BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2022

Special Revenue Funds

Developer Capital Facility Building Safety
General Projects Fees Inspection

Assets:

Pooled cash and investments 49,225, 306   $     2, 905, 411    $    55, 010, 991    $    13, 232, 206
Receivables:

Accounts( net of allowance for uncollectibles)  5, 027, 580 30,207 4, 027

Notes and loans

Accrued interest 26, 082 2, 302 27, 637 6, 693

Due from other funds 28,058

Advances to other funds 2, 405,864

Total Assets 56, 712, 890   $     2, 937, 920   $    55, 042, 655   $    13, 238, 899

Liabilities and Fund Balances:

Liabilities:

Accounts payable 1, 701, 703   $       27, 776   $       281, 155

Accrued liabilities 795,214

Unearned revenues 709, 697 3, 719, 512

Deposits payable 631, 964 2, 497, 309 246,753

Due to other funds

Total Liabilities 3, 838, 578 2, 497, 309 27, 776 4, 247, 420

Fund Balances( Deficits):

Nonspendable:

Nonspendable 2,405, 864
Restricted 440, 611 55, 014, 879 8, 991, 479
Committed 44,763, 906

Unassigned 5,704, 542

Total Fund Balances( Deficits)   52, 874, 312 440, 611 55, 014, 879 8, 991, 479

Total Liabilities

and Fund Balances( Deficits)      56, 712, 890   $     2, 937, 920   $    55,042, 655   $    13, 238, 899

See Notes to Financial Statement.     2g

85



CITY OF LATHROP

BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2022

Special Revenue Funds

Other
Development Developer General CIP Governmental

Engineering Deposits Projects Funds
Assets:

Pooled cash and investments 10, 909, 180   $      1, 420, 953   $ 10, 740, 734   $    43, 196,435
Receivables:

Accounts( net of allowance for uncollectibles)       1, 022, 732 1, 881, 447
Notes and loans

20,350
Accrued interest 5, 704 994 6, 529 22, 333

Due from other funds

Advances to other funds

Total Assets 10, 914, 884   $     2, 444, 679   $ 10, 747, 263   $    45, 120, 565

Liabilities and Fund Balances:
Liabilities:

Accounts payable 104, 332   $       720, 007   $  1, 741, 187   $     4, 005, 089
Accrued liabilities

Unearned revenues 2, 731, 626
Deposits payable 1, 800 2, 256, 945 188, 855
Due to other funds

28, 058

Total Liabilities 2, 837, 758 2, 976, 952 1, 741, 187 4,222, 002

Fund Balances( Deficits):
Nonspendable:

Nonspendable

Restricted 8, 077, 126 9, 006, 076 41, 419, 819
Committed

Unassigned
532, 273) 521, 256)

Total Fund Balances( Deficits) 8, 077, 126 532, 273)      9, 006, 076 40, 898, 563

Tota Liabilities

and Fund Balances( Deficits)  10, 914, 884   $     2, 444, 679   $ 10, 747, 263   $    45,120,565

See Notes to Financial Statement.     2

86



CITY OF LATHROP

BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTALFUNDS
JUNE 30, 2022

Total

Governmental

Funds

Assets:

Pooled cash and investments 186, 641, 216

Receivables:

Accounts( net of allowance for uncollectibles) 7, 965, 993

Notes and loans 20,350

Accrued interest 98, 274

Due from other funds 28, 058

Advancesto otherfunds 2, 405, 864

Total Assets 197, 159, 755

Liabilities and Fund Balances:

Liabilities:

Accounts payable 8, 581, 249

Accrued liabilities 795, 214

Unearned revenues 7, 160, 835

Deposits payable 5, 823, 626

Due to other funds 28,058

Total Liabilities 22, 388, 982

Fund Balances( Deficits):

Nonspendable:

Nonspendable 2, 405, 864

Restricted 122, 949, 990

Com m itted 44, 763, 906
Unassigned 4, 651, 013

Total Fund Balances( Deficits) 174, 770, 773

Total Liabilities

and Fund Balances( Deficits)      197, 159, 755

See Notes to Financial Statement.     28

87



CITY OF LATHROP

RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2022

Fund balances of governmental funds 174, 770, 773

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are
different because:

Capital assets net of depreciation have not been included as financial resources

in governmental fund activity. 253, 479, 146

Long- term debt and compensated absences that are not due and payable in the
current period, and therefore, are not reported in the funds:

Long- term debt payable 2, 745, 000)

Lease Liabilities 129, 135)

Compensated absences 270, 035)   3, 144, 170)

Deferred outflows related to the net pension liability:
Differences between expected& actual experience 297,362

Adjustment due to differences in proportions 399, 099

Net difference between projected and actual earnings on pension plan investments 171, 417

Contributions made subsequent to measurement date 892, 404 1, 760, 282

Deferred inflows related to the net pension liability:
Difference in actual to proportionate share contribution 260, 100)

Changes of assumptions 2, 228, 452)   2, 488, 552)

Net pension liability 2, 653, 445)

Deferred outflows related to the net OPEB liability:
Changes of assumptions 19, 242

Net difference between projected and actual earnings on OPEB plan investments 97, 572

Contributions made subsequent to measurement date 452, 319 569, 133

Deferred inflows related to the net OPEB liability:
Differences between expected& actual experience 287, 216)

Changes of assumptions 540, 873)     828, 089)

Net OPEB liability 214, 064)

Net Position of Governmental Activities 421, 251, 014

See Notes to Financial Statement. 29

88



CITY OF LATHROP

STATEMENT OF REVENUES,

EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Special Revenue Funds

Developer Capital Facility Building Safety
General Projects Fees 8 Inspection

Revenues:

Taxes and assessments 31, 794, 406    $       21, 211, 818    $       

Licenses and permits 330, 991

Intergovernmental 5,813, 592

Charges for services 711, 444 7, 466, 065

Use of money and property 2, 534, 483)     23, 538 162, 902 37, 419

Fines and forfeitures 99, 871

Developer participation 9, 535, 249

Miscellaneous 804, 209 14, 221

Total Revenues 37, 020, 030 9, 558, 787 21, 374, 720 7, 517, 705

Expenditures:

Current:

General government 7, 124, 908

Public safety 7, 122, 399

Community development 1, 687, 299

Culture and leisure 1, 655, 832

Public works 949, 071 243, 763 2, 369, 205

Capital outlay 1, 636, 478

Debt service:

Principal retirement 305, 000

Lease principal retirement 47, 316

Interest and fiscal charges 73, 886

Total Expenditures 20, 602, 189 243, 763 2, 369, 205

Excess( Deficiency) of Revenues
Over( Under) Expenditures 16,417, 841 9, 558, 787 21, 130, 957 5, 148, 500

Other Financing Sources( Uses):
Transfers in 6, 102, 401

Transfers out 9,410, 896) 10, 150,279)  7, 608, 980)   404, 270)
Lease proceeds 137, 918

Total Other Financing Sources
Uses)     3, 170, 577) 10, 150, 279) 7, 608, 980)   404,270)

Net Change in Fund Balances 13, 247, 264 591, 492) 13, 521, 977 4, 744, 230

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 39, 627, 048 1, 032, 103 41, 492, 902 4,247, 249

Fund Balances( Deficit), End of Year 52, 874, 312    $       440, 611    $    55, 014,879    $     8, 991, 479

See Notes to Financial Statement. 30

89



CITY OF LATHROP

STATEMENT OF REVENUES,

EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALAM

GOVERNMENTALFUNDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Capital Project

Special Revenue Funds Funds

Other

Development Developer General CIP Governmental

Engineering Deposits Projects Funds

Revenues:

Taxes and assessments 14, 109, 879

Licenses and permits 55, 475

Intergovernmental 4, 281, 195

Charges for services 5, 681, 724

Use of money and property 32, 257 6, 204 39,099 131, 784

Fines and forfeitures 1, 488, 745

Developer participation 1, 086, 202

Miscellaneous 102, 475 423,279

Total Revenues 5, 816, 456 1, 092, 406 39, 099 20, 490, 357

Expenditures:

Current:

General government
Public safety 4, 430, 454

Community development 1, 082 34, 504

Culture and leisure 1, 749, 641

Publicworks 2, 329, 580 861, 155 1, 712,768 8, 151, 874

Capital outlay 18, 930, 484 3, 700, 676

Debt service:

Principal retirement

Lease principal retirement
Interest and fiscal charges 159, 854

Total Expenditures 2, 330, 662 1, 021, 009 20, 643, 252 18, 067, 149

Excess( Deficiency) of Revenues
Over( Under) Expenditures 3, 485, 794 71, 397 20, 604, 153)   2, 423, 208

Other Financing Sources( Uses):
Transfers in 10, 084, 494 10, 228, 750

Transfers out 4, 659,380)

Lease proceeds

Total Other Financing Sources
Uses)       10, 084, 494 5, 569, 370

Net Change in Fund Balances 3, 485, 794 71, 397 10, 519, 659)   7, 992, 578

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 4, 591, 332 603, 670) 19, 525,735 32, 905, 985

Fund Balances( Deficit), End of Year 8, 077, 126    $       ( 532, 273)   $     9, 006, 076    $     40, 898,563

See Notes to Financial Statement. 31

90



CITY OF LATHROP

STATEMENT OF REVENUES,

EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALAN

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Total

Governmental

Funds
Revenues:

Taxes and assessments 67, 116, 103

Licenses and permits 386, 466

Intergovernmental 10, 094, 787

Charges for services 13, 859, 233

Use of money and property 2, 101, 280)

Fines and forfeitures 1, 588, 616

Developer participation 10, 621, 451

Miscellaneous 1, 344, 184

Total Revenues 102, 909, 560

Expenditures:

Current:

General government 7, 124, 908

Public safety 11, 552,853

Community development 1, 722, 885
Culture and leisure 3,405,473

Public works 16, 617, 416

Capital outlay 24, 267, 638

Debt service:

Principal retirement 305, 000

Lease principal retirement 47, 316

Interest and fiscal charges 233, 740

Total Expenditures 65, 277, 229

Excess( Deficiency) of Revenues
Over( Under) Expenditures 37,632, 331

Other Financing Sources( Uses):
Transfers in 26,415, 645

Transfers out 32,233, 805)
Lease proceeds 137, 918

Total Other Financing Sources
Uses)      5, 680, 242)

Net Change in Fund Balances 31, 952,089

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 142,818,684

Fund Balances( Deficit), End of Year 174, 770, 773

See Notes to Financial Statement. 32

91



CITY OF LATHROP

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Net change in fund balances- total governmental funds 31, 952, 089

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are
different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement

of activities, the costs of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives

as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which depreciation exceeded
capital outlay in the current period.

Capital outlay 25, 622, 100

Developer contributions 14, 768, 797

Depreciation 8, 985, 289) 31, 405, 608

Repayment of long- term debt and leases is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the
repayment reduces long- term liabilities in the statement of net position.

Principal repayments on long- term debt 305, 000

Proceeds from the issuance of leases

Compensated absences expenses reported in the statement of activities do not
require the use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as

expenditures in governmental funds.       46, 609

Pension obligation expenses are expenditures in governmental funds, but reduce
the net pension liability in the statement of net position.  872, 246

OPEB obligation expenses are expenditures in governmental funds, but reduce
the net OPEB liability in the statement of net position.    347, 050

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities 64,928, 602

See Notes to Financial Statement. 33

92



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

34

93



MAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Proprietary funds account for City operations financed and operated in a manner similar to a private
business enterprise. The intent of the City is that the cost of providing goods and services be financed
primarily through user charges.

ENTERPRISE FUNDS:

Water Fund

This fund accounts for the revenues and expenses of the City' s water operations.

SewerFund

This fund accounts for the revenues and expenses of the City' s sewer operations.

NONMAJOR INTERNAL SERVICE FUND

INTERNAL SERVICE FUND:

Compensated Absences Fund

This fund accounts for compensated absences activities, which are provided to other departments on
a cost- reimbursement basis.

35

94



CITY OF LATHROP

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2022

Governmental

Business- Type Activities- Enterprise Funds Activities

Compensated

Absences

Internal

Water Sewer Totals Service Fund

Assets:

Current:

Cash and investments 37, 869, 247    $     35, 874, 792    $     73, 744, 039    $       1, 824, 939

Receivables:

Accounts 2, 460, 375 1, 468, 048 3, 928, 423

Accrued interest 19, 356 18, 566 37, 922

Restricted:

Cash with fiscal agent 1, 652, 915 1, 652, 915

Total Current Assets 42, 001, 893 37, 361, 406 79, 363, 299 1, 824, 939

Noncurrent:

Capital assets, not being depreciated 3, 877, 263 10, 323, 154 14, 200, 417

Capital assets, net of depreciation 62, 320, 658 114, 280, 447 176, 601, 105

Total Noncurrent Assets 66, 197, 921 124, 603, 601 190, 801, 522

Total Assets 108, 199, 814 161, 965, 007 270, 164, 821 1, 824, 939

Deferred Outflows of Resources:

Deferred pension related items 139, 492 86, 260 225, 752

Deferred OPEB related items 55, 016 35, 024 90, 040

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 194, 508 121, 284 315, 792

Liabilities:

Current:

Accounts payable 1, 287, 661 1, 240, 749 2, 528, 410

Accrued interest 101, 245 101, 245

Deposits payable 1, 026, 966 31, 288 1, 058, 254

Due to other governments 298, 787 298, 787

Accrued compensated absences 8, 200 4, 030 12, 230 273, 741

Loans payable 1, 570, 205 1, 570, 205

Total Current Liabilities 4, 293, 064 1, 276, 067 5, 569, 131 273, 741

Noncurrent:

Advances from other funds 2, 405, 864 2, 405, 864

Accrued compensated absences 46, 466 22, 841 69, 307 1, 551, 198

Net pension liability 188, 408 125, 807 314, 215

NetOPEBliability 20, 693 13, 174 33, 867

Loans payable 15, 171, 896 15, 171, 896

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 15, 427, 463 2, 567, 686 17, 995, 149 7, 551, 198

Total Liabilities 19, 720, 527 3, 843, 753 23, 564, 280 1, 824, 939

Deferred Inflows of Resources:

Deferred pension related items 176, 700 110, 754 287, 454

Deferred OPEB related items 80, 048 50, 959 131, 007

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 256, 748 161, 713 418, 461

Net Position:

Net investment in capital assets 49, 455, 820 124, 603, 601 174, 059, 421

Restricted for debt service 1, 652, 915 1, 652, 915

Unrestricted 37, 308, 312 33, 477, 224 70, 785, 536

Total Net Position 88, 417, 047    $    158, 080, 825    $    246, 497, 872    $

See Notes to Financial Statement.   36

95



CITY OF LATHROP

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES

AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

overnmen a

Business- Type Activities- Enterprise Funds Activities

Compensated

Absences

Internal

Water Sewer Totals Service Fund

Operating Revenues:
Sales and service charges 10, 758, 681    $      9, 141, 235    $     19, 899, 916    $       

Other income 5, 176 5, 176

Total Operating Revenues 10, 763, 857 9, 141, 235 79, 905, 092

Operating Expenses:
General and administrative 933, 092 565, 289 1, 498, 381

Maintenance and operations 3, 828, 030 4, 204, 012 8, 032, 042

Depreciation expense 1, 830, 469 3, 084, 275 4, 914, 744

Total Operating Expenses 6, 597, 591 7, 853, 576 14,445, 167

Operating Income( Loss) 4, 172, 266 1, 287, 659 5, 459, 925

Nonoperating Revenues( Expenses):
Taxes and assessments 3, 192, 522 6, 268, 406 9, 460, 928

Investment earnings 117, 334 99, 246 216, 580

Interest expense 507, 622)   507, 622)   

Contributions 2, 947, 675 1, 985, 352 4, 933, 027

Total Nonoperating
Revenues( Expenses) 5, 749,909 8, 353, 004 14, 102, 913

Income( Loss) Before Transfers 9, 922, 175 9, 640, 663 19, 562, 838

Transfers in 6, 627, 678 14, 372, 540 21, 000, 218

Transfersout 8, 054, 378)  7, 127, 680) 15, 182, 058)   

Changes in Net Position 8, 495, 475 16, 885, 523 25, 38Q998

Net Position:

BeginningofYear 79, 921, 572 141, 195, 302 221, 116, 874

End of Fiscal Year 88, 417, 047    $    158, 080, 825    $    246, 497, 872    $       

See Notes to Financial Statement.     37

96



CITY OF LATHROP

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Governmental

Business- Type Activities- Enterprise Funds Activities

Compensated

Absences

Internal

Water Sewer Totals Service Fund

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Cash received from customers and users 10, 732, 125    $      8, 938, 922    $     19, 671, 047    $       

Cash paid to suppliers for goods and services 3, 255, 065)  4, 032, 166)  7, 287, 231)    

Cash paid to employees for services 1, 012, 509)    622, 307)  1, 634, 816)    

Cash received from( payments to) others 5, 176 5, 176 288, 924

Net Cash Provided( Used) by Operating Activities 6, 469, 727 4, 284, 449 10, 754, 176 288, 924

Cash Flows from Non- Capital

Financing Activities:
Cash transfers in 6, 627, 678 14, 372, 540 21, 000, 218

Cash transfers out 8, 054, 378)  7, 127, 680) 15, 182, 058)    

Repayment made to other funds 532, 559)    532, 559)   

Taxes and assessments 3, 192, 522 6, 268, 406 9, 460, 928

Advance to other funds

Net Cash Provided( Used) by
Non- Capital Financing Activities 1, 765, 822 12, 980, 707 14, 746, 529

Cash Flows from Capital

and Related Financing Activities:
Capital contributions 2, 947, 675 1, 985, 352 4, 933, 027

Acquisition and construction of capital assets 4, 135, 129)  6, 595, 052) 10, 730, 181)   

Principal paid on capital debt 1, 526, 152)    1, 526, 152)   

Interest paid on capital debt 507, 622)    507, 622)   

Net Cash Provided( Used) by
Capital and Related Financing Activities:      3, 221, 228)  4, 609, 700)  7, 830, 928)    

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Interest received 107, 179 87, 342 194, 521

Net Cash Provided( Used) by

Investing Activities 107, 179 87, 342 194, 521

Net Increase( Decrease) in Cash

and Cash Equivalents 5, 121, 500 12, 742, 798 17, 864, 298 288, 924

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 34, 400, 662 23, 131, 994 57, 532, 656 1, 536, 015

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year 39, 522, 162    $     35, 874, 792    $     75, 396, 954    $      1, 824, 939

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash
Provided( Used) by Opereting Activities:
Operating income( loss)       4, 172, 266    $      1, 287, 659    $      5, 459, 925    $       

Adjustments to Reconcile Opereting Income( Loss)
Net Cash Provided( Used) by Operating Activities:
Depreciation 1, 830, 469 3, 084, 275 4, 914, 744

Increase) decrease in accounts receivable 171, 306)    202, 313)    373, 619)   

Increase( decrease) in accounts payable 572, 965 171, 846 744, 811

Increase( decrease) in deposits payable 144, 750 144, 750

Increase( decrease) in compensated absences 9, 672 3, 166 12, 838 288, 924

Total Adjustments 2, 297, 461 2, 996, 790 5, 294, 251 288, 924

Net Cash Provided( Used) by
Operating Activities 6, 469, 727    $      4, 284, 449    $     10, 754, 176    $ 288, 924

Non- Cash Investing, Capital, and Financing Activities:
Accrued interest adjustment

See Notes to Financial Statement.    38

97



FIDUCIARY FUNDS

Custodial funds are used to account for assets held by the City as an agent for individuals, private
organizations, and other governments, that are not held in a trust or equiva ent arrangement. The
financial activities of these funds are excluded from the Entity- wide financial statements but are presented
in separate Fiduciary Fund financial statements.

39

98



CITY OF LATHROP

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

CUSTODIAL FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2022

Custodial Funds
Assets:

Pooled cash and investments 5,847, 920
Receivables:

Accrued interest 2, 145

Restricted assets:

Cash and investments with fiscal agents 3, 298,580

Total Assets 10, 833, 688

Liabilities:

Accounts payable 162, 108
Deposits payable 30,747
Due to other governments 6, 343, 635

Total Liabilities 6, 536,490

Net Position( Deficit):

Restricted for:

Individuals, organizations and other governments 4,297, 198

Total Net Position( Deficit) 4,297, 198

See Notes to Financial Statement. 40

99



CITY OF LATHROP

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

CUSTODIAL FUNDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Custodial Funds

Additions:

Collections for assessment districts 6,342, 475

Investment earnings 10, 609

Total Additions 6, 353, 084

Deductions:

Administrative expenses 62, 214

Contractual services 87,528

interestexpense 5, 568, 196

Total Deductions 5, 717, 938

Changes in Net Position 635, 146

Net Position- Beginning of the Year 66, 113, 260)

Restatements 69, 775, 312

Net Position( Deficit)- Beginning of the Year, as restated 3, 662, 052

Net Position( Deficit)- End of the Year 4, 297, 198

See Notes to Financial Statement. 41

100



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

42

101



CITY OF LATHROP

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Note 1:     Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

a.   Reporting Entity

The City of Lathrop, California, ( the City) was incorporated July 1,  1989, under the

general laws of the State of California. The City operates under a Council- Manager
form of government and provides the following services: generai government, public
safety, public ways and facilities/ transportation, culture and leisure, and public utilities.

The financial statements of the primary government of the City of Lathrop include the
activities of the City as well as the Lathrop Public Facilities Financing Corporation, which
is controlled by and dependent on the City. While it is a separate legal entity, its financial
activities are integral to those of the City. Its financial activities have been aggregated
and merged ( termed " blending") with those of the primary government of the City in the
accompanying financial statements.

On April 11,  2000,  the City Council formed the Lathrop Public Facilities Financing
Corporation ( Corporation), a non- profit public benefit corporation. The Corporation was
formed to assist the City in financing the acquisition, construction, and improvement of
municipal facilities.  The Corporation is also empowered to acquire property.  The

Corporation is governed by a Board of Directors consisting of the City Council
members.

b.  Basis of Presentation

The City' s Basic Financial Statements are prepared in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  The Government

Accounting Standards Board is the acknowledged standard setting body for establishing
accounting and financial reporting standards followed by governmental entities in the
U. S. A.

These Standards require that the financial statements described below be presented.

Government- wide Statements: The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of

Activities display information about the primary government ( the City and its component
unit). These statements include the financial activities of the overall City government,
except for fiduciary activities.  Eliminations have been made to minimize the double
counting of internal activities. However, the interfund services provided and used are
not eliminated in the process of consolidation. These statements distinguish between
the governmental and business- type activities of the City.  Governmental activities
generally are financed through taxes,   intergovernmental revenues,   and other

nonexchange transactions. Business- type activities are financed in whole or in part by
fees charged to external parties.

The Statement of Activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and
program revenues for each segment of the business- type activities of the City and for
each function of the City' s governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are
specifically associated with a program or function and,  therefore,  are clearly

identifiabie to a particular function. Program revenues include ( a) charges paid by the
recipients of goods or services offered by the programs, ( b) grants and contributions that
are restricted to meeting the operational needs of a particular program and ( c) fees,
grants and contributions that are restricted to financing the acquisition or construction of
capital assets.  Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including all taxes,
are presented as general revenues.

43

102



CITY OF LATHROP

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ( CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Note 1:     Summary of Significant Accounting Policies( Continued)

Fund Financial Statements: The fund financial statements provide information about
the City' s funds,  including fiduciary funds and blended component units.  Separate
statements for each fund category  -  governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary - are

presented.   The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major individual

governmental and enterprise funds, each of which is displayed in a separate column. All
remaining governmental and enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor
funds.

Proprietary fund operating revenues,  such as charges for services,  result from

exchange transactions associated with the principal activity of the fund.  Exchange

transactions are those in which each party receives and gives up essentially equal
values. Nonoperating revenues, such as subsidies and investment earnings, result from
nonexchange transactions or ancillary activities.

c.  Major Funds

Major funds are defined as funds that have either assets,  liabilities,  revenues or

expenditures/ expenses equal to ten percent of their fund- type total and five percent of
the grand total.  Major governmental and business- type funds are identified and
presented separately in the fund financial statements. All other funds, called non- major
funds, are combined and reported in a single column, regardless of their fund- type.
The General Fund is always a major fund.   The City may also select other funds it
believes should be presented as major funds.

The City reported the following major governmental funds in the accompanying financial
statements:

General Fund

This fund accounts for all financial resources except those to be accounted for in

another fund. It is the general operating fund of the City.

Developers Proiects Special Revenue Fund

This fund accounts for developer paid fees restricted to/ committed expenditures
associated with various developer projects.

Capital Facilitv Fees Special Revenue Fund

To account for the financial resources associated with the capital facility fees for
Traffic Mitigation  ( includes Regional Traffic),  Storm Drain,  Culture and Leisure,

City Service, and Administration.

Buildinqs Safetv 8 Inspection Special Revenue Fund

This fund accounts for building safety and inspection permit fee revenue and activity.

Development Enqineerinq Special Revenue Fund

This fund accounts for the development engineering fee revenue and activity.

44

103



CITY OF LATHROP

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ( CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Note 1:     Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Developer Deposits Special Revenue Fund

This fund accounts for the activity relating to developer deposits for development
projects ongoing within the City.

General CIP Proiects Fund

To account for capital project expenditures related to streets and roads occurring
over more than one fiscal year.

The City reported both of its enterprise funds as major funds in the accompanying
financial statements:

Water Fund

This fund accounts for the revenues and expenses of the City' s water operations.

Sewer Fund

This fund accounts for the revenues and expenses of the City' s sewer operations.

The City also reports the following fund types:

Internal Service Fund

The fund accounts for compensated absences activities,  which are provided to
other departments on a cost- reimbursement basis.

Fiduciary Funds

Custodial funds are used to account for assets held by the City as a custodian for
certain special assessment districts The financial activities of these funds are

excluded from the entity- wide financial statement,  but are presented in separate
Fiduciary Fund financial statements.

d.  Basis of Accounting

The government- wide,  proprietary and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported
using the economic resources measurement focus and the full accrual basis of
accounting.  Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the
time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place.

Governmental funds are reported using the current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are
recognized when measurable and available. The City considers all revenues reported
in the governmental funds to be available if the revenues are collected within sixty
days after year-end.  Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is
incurred, except for principal and interest on long- term debt, claims and judgments,
and compensated absences, which are recognized as expenditures to the extent they
have matured. Governmental capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in

governmental funds. Proceeds of governmental long- term debt and acquisitions under
capital leases are reported as otherfinancing sources.

45

104



CITY OF LATHROP

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ( CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Note 1:     Summary of Significant Accounting Policies( Continued)

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating
items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and
producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund' s principal ongoing
operations.  The principal operating revenues of the water fund,  sewer fund,  and

internal service funds are charges to customers for sales and services.  Operating
expenses for enterprise funds and internal service funds include the cost of sales and
services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and

expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and
expenses.

Non- exchange transactions, in which the City gives or receives value without directly
receiving or giving equal value in exchange, include taxes, grants, entitlements, and
donations. On the accrual basis, revenue from taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for
which the taxes are levied or assessed.  Revenue from grants,  entitlements,  and
donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been
satisfied.

The City may fund programs with a combination of cost- reimbursement grants,
categorical block grants, and general revenues. Thus, both restricted and unrestricted
Net Position may be available to finance program expenditures. The City' s policy is to
first apply restricted grant resources to such programs, followed by general revenues if
necessary.

Certain indirect costs are included in program expenses reported for individual functions
and activities.

Those revenues susceptible to accrual are use of money and property revenue,
charges for services and fines and penalties. Sales taxes collected and held by the State
at year- end on behalf of the City also are recognized as revenue.

e.  Property Tax

The City's property taxes are levied each July 1, on the assessed values as of the prior
January 1 for all real and personal property located in the City.  Property sold after
the assessment date ( January 1) is reassessed and the amount of property tax levied is
prorated.

The City has elected to receive property taxes from the County of San Joaquin ( County)
under the Teeter Plan. Under this program, the City receives 100°/a of the levied property
taxes in periodic payments with the County assuming responsibility for delinquencies.
Secured property taxes are due in two equal installments; the first is due November
1 and delinquent with penalties after December 10; the second is due February 1 and
delinquent with penalties after April 10.  Unsecured personal property taxes do not
constitute a lien against real property unless the taxes become delinquent. Payment must
be made in one installment, which is delinquent if not paid by August 31. The City
accrues only taxes which are received from the County within 60 days after fiscal year
end.

46

105



CITY OF LATHROP

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS( CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Note 1:     Summary of Significant Accounting Policies ( Continued)

f.   Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles   ( GAAP)   requires management to make estimates and

assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of

contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported

amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

g.  Cash and Cash Equivalents

The City' s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand
deposits, and short- term investments with original maturities of three months or less from
the date of acquisition.

h.  Accounts Receivable

In the government- wide statements,  receivables consist of all revenues earned at

year- end and not yet received. Receivables are recorded in the financial statements net
of any allowance for doubtful accounts if applicable,  and estimated refunds due.
Major receivable balances for the governmental activities include sales and use taxes,
franchise taxes,  grants,  police fines and other fees.  Federal and state grants are
considered receivable and accrue as revenue when reimbursable costs are incurred.
Business- type activities report utilities and interest earnings as their major receivables.

In the fund financial statements, material receivables in governmental funds include
revenue accruals such as sales tax,  franchise tax,  and grants and other similar
intergovernmental revenues since they are usually both measurable and available.

i.   Prepaid Expenses

Prepaid items are also recognized under the consumption method. Payments to vendors
that reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods are recorded as prepaid items in
both government- wide and fund financial statements.

j.   Capital Assets

The accounting treatment over property, plant and equipment depends on whether the
assets are used in governmental fund operations or proprietary fund operations and
whether they are reported in the government- wide or fund financial statements.

Donated capital assets,  donated works of art and similar items, and capital assets
received in a service concession arrangement are reported at the estimated acquisition
value on the date contributed. All other capital assets are valued at historical cost or

estimated historical cost if actua historical cost is not available. The City's policy is to
capitalize all capital assets with costs exceeding certain minimum thresholds.

The City has recorded all its public domain ( infrastructure) capital assets placed in
service, which include roads, bridges, curbs and gutters, streets and sidewalks, drainage
systems, and lighting systems.

47

106



CITY OF LATHROP

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ( CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Note 1:     Summary of Significant Accounting Policies ( Continued)

The purpose of depreciation is to spread the cost of capital assets equitably among all
users over the life of these assets. The amount charged to depreciation expense each

year represents that year's pro rata share of the cost of capital assets.  Generally
accepted accounting principles require that all capital assets with limited useful lives be
depreciated over their estimated useful lives. Depreciation is provided using the straight
line method which means the cost of the capital asset is divided by its expected useful life
in years and the result is charged to expense each year until the capital asset is fully
depreciated. The City has assigned the useful lives listed below to capita assets.

Buildings 10 - 30 years
Improvements 5 - 50 years
Equipment and Vehicles 5- 30 years
Infrastructure 5- 40 years

The City capitalizes all capital assets with a useful life of more than one year. Prior to
July 1, 2019, the City capitalized all capital assets with a cost greater than $ 3, 000.

Subsequent to that date, the City capitalizes all land purchases and all other capital
assets as follows:

Land Impro, ements 50, 000

Buildings 50, 000

Building Impro, ements 50, 000

Infrastructure 50, 000

Equipment, Furniture and Vehicles 10, 000

Intangible Assets 10, 000

Leasehold Impro ements 50, 000

Construction in Progress for Year End Reporting 50, 000 will exceed at completion

k.  Compensated Absences

City employees accumulate earned but unused vacation which can be converted to cash
at termination of employment.  For governmental funds, a liability for these amounts is
recorded only if they have matured, for example, as a result of employee resignations and
retirements.   The remaining amounts are reported as a liability in the Statement of
Net Position. Proprietary funds' liability for compensated absences is recorded in each
proprietary fund. The liability for compensated absences is determined annually.

I.   Long Term Liabilities

In the government-wide financial statements and the proprietary fund types in the fund
financial statements, long- term liabilities, and other long- term obligations are reported as
liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business- type activities, or proprietary
fund type statement of net position.

In the fund financial statements the face amount of debt issued is reported as other

financing sources. Premiums received are reported as other financing sources, while
discounts are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld
from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

48

107



CITY OF LATHROP

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ( CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Note 1:     Summary of Significant Accounting Policies ( Continued)

m.  Net Pension Liability

For purposes of ineasuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows and inflows of
resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary
net position and additions to/ deductions from the fiduciary net position have been
determined on the same basis as they are reported by the CaIPERS Financial Office. For
this purpose,  benefit payments  ( including refunds of employee contributions)  are

recognized when currently due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.
Investments are reported at fair value. CaIPERS audited financial statements are publicly
available reports that can be obtained at CaIPERS' website under Forms and Publications.

n.  Other Post-Employment Benefits( OPEB)

For purposes of ineasuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense have been determined

by an independent actuary. For this purpose, benefit payments are recognized when
currently due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.

Generally accepted accounting principles require that the reported results must pertain to
liability information within certain defined timeframes.  For this report,  the following
timeframes are used:

Valuation Date June 30, 2021

Measurement Date June 30, 2021

Measurement Period July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021

o.  Deferred OutFlows/ Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of net position reports a separate section for
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element,  deferred

outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net assets that applies to a future
period( s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources ( expense/ expenditure)
until then.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position reports a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources.  This separate financial statement element,  deferred
inflows of esources,  represents an acquisition of net assets that applies to a future
period( s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources ( revenue) until that
time.

p.  Interfund Transactions

Interfund transactions are reflected as either loans, services provided, reimbursements, or
transfers. Loans are reported as receivables and payables as appropriate, are subject to
elimination upon consolidation and are referred to as either " due to/ from other funds"

i. e.,  the current portion of interfund loans)  or  " advances to/ from other funds"
i. e.,  the noncurrent portion of interfund loans).  Any residual balances outstanding

between the governmental activities and the business- type activities are reported in the
government- wide financial statements as" internal balances". Advances between funds, as
reported in the fund financial statements, are offset by a fund balance reserve account in
applicable governmental funds to indicate that they are not available for appropriation and
are not available financial resources.

49

108



CITY OF LATHROP

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ( CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Note 1:     Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Services provided, deemed to be at market or near market rates, are treated as revenues
and expenditures/ expenses. Reimbursements are when one fund incurs a cost, charges

the appropriate benefiting fund, and reduces its related cost as a reimbursement. All other

interfund transactions are treated as transfers.  Transfers between governmental or
proprietary funds are netted as part of the reconciliation to the government- wide
presentation.

q.  Net Position and Fund Balance

Net Position

Net position is the excess of all the City' s assets all deferred outflows over all its
liabilities and deferred inflows, regardless of fund.  Net position is divided into three
captions on the Statement of Net Position. These captions apply only to net position,
which is determined only at the Government-wide level, and business type activities and
are described below:

Net Investment in Capital Assets describes the portion of Net Position which is
represented by the current net book value of the City' s capital assets, less the
outstanding balance of any debt issued to finance these assets and related
deferred inflow of resources.

Restricted describes the portion of Net Position which is restricted as to use
by the terms and conditions of agreements with outside parties, governmental
regulations, laws, or other restrictions which the City cannot unilaterally alter.

Unrestricted describes the portion of Net Position which is not restricted to use.

Fund Balance

Governmental fund balances represent the net current assets of each fund. Net current

assets generally represent a fund' s cash and receivables, less its liabilities.

The City' s fund balances are classified based on spending constraints imposed on the
use of resources. For programs with multiple funding sources, the City prioritizes and
expends funds in the following order:   Restricted,   Committed,  Assigned,   and

Unassigned. Each category in the following hierarchy is ranked according to the degree
of spending constraint:

Nonspendables represents balances set aside to indicate items do not represent

available,  spendable resources even though they are a component of assets.  Fund
balances required to be maintained intact, such as Permanent Funds, and assets not

expected to be converted to cash, such as prepaids, notes receivable, and land held
for redevelopment are included. However, if proceeds realized from the sale or collection
of nonspendable assets are restricted,  committed or assigned,  then nonspendable

amounts are required to be presented as a component of the applicable category.

Restricted fund balances have external restrictions imposed by creditors,  grantors,
contributors,  laws, regulations, or enabling legislation which requires the resources to
be used only for a specific purpose. Nonspendable amounts subject to restrictions are
included along with spendable resources.

50

109



CITY OF LATHROP

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ( CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Note 1:     Summary of Significant Accounting Policies ( Continued)

Committed fund balances include amounts that can be used only for the specific purposes
determined by a formal action of the City Council' s highest level of decision-making
authority. The City Council can, by adoption of a resolution prior to the end of the
fiscal year,  commit fund balance.  Once adopted,  the limitation imposed by the
resolution remains in place until a similar action is taken ( the adoption of another
resolution) to remove or revise the limitation.

Assigned fund balances are amounts constrained by the City' s intent to be used for a
specific purpose, but are neither restricted nor committed. The Authority for assigning
fund balance is expressed by the City Council or its designee ( i. e., City Manager), as

established in the City' s Reserve Policy. This category includes nonspendables, when it
is the City' s intent to use proceeds or collections for a specific purpose, and residual
fund balances, if any, of Special Revenue, Capital Projects and Debt Service Funds
which have not been restricted or committed.

Unassigned fund balance represents residual amounts that have not been restricted,
committed, or assigned. This includes the residual general fund balance and residual
fund deficits, if any, of other governmental funds.

Further detail about the City' s fund balance classification is described in Note 8.

r.   New, Closed and Renamed Funds

The following funds were established during the fiscal year:

The State Grants Special Revenue Fund is used to account for state grant
expenditures and related activities.

s.   New Accounting Pronouncement

In FY 2020/ 21, the City of Lathrop implemented the provisions of GASB Statement No. 84,
Fiduciary Activities. This statement changes the definition of fiduciary activities, providing
more refined guidance on how to determine if an activity is fiduciary in nature and
therefore should be reported as such. The statement defines types of fiduciary funds,
eliminating agency funds and replacing them with Custodial Funds. Under this guidance,
all fiduciary funds will now report a net position and a statement of changes in net position.
Implementation of this guidance resulted in reclassification of several programs in
governmental activities to fiduciary activities and the creation of additional funds to
account for these programs. The change in accounting principle resulted in a prior period
adjustment in the amount of $( 67, 638, 062) being reported for the custodial funds in the
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position, and of$( 1, 369, 020) in the Statement of

Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances.

In FY 2020/ 21, the City of Lathrop adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 98, the
Annual Comprehensive Financial Report.  This statement establishes the annual

comprehensive financial report and ACFR in generally accepted accounting principles
GAAP) for state and local governments and eliminates the prior name and acronym.

The following pronouncements have been postponed as a temporary relieve to
governments and other stakeholders in light of the COVID- 19 pandemic and the new
effective date are reflected in the following fiscal years:

GASB 87 — Leases — The requirements of this statement are effective for reporting
periods beginning on or after June 15, 2021.

51

110



CITY OF LATHROP

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ( CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Note 2:     Cash and Investments

a.   Policies

The City invests in individual investments and in investment pools. Individual investments
are evidenced by specific identifiable pieces of paper called securities instruments, or by
an electronic entry registering the owner in the records of the institution issuing the
security, called the book entry system.

California Law requires banks and savings and loan institutions to pledge government
securities with a fair value of 110% of the City' s cash on deposit or first trust deed
mortgage notes with a value of 150°/o of the City' s cash on deposit as collateral for these
deposits.  Under California Law this collateral is held in an investment pool by an
independent financial institution in the City' s name and places the City ahead of general
creditors of the institution pledging the collateral.

The City' s investments are carried at fair value, as required by generally accepted
accounting principles. The City adjusts the carrying value of its investments to reflect
their fair value at each fiscal year end, and it includes the effects of these adjustments in
income for that fiscal year.

Investment income is allocated among funds on the basis of average monthly cash
and investment balances in these funds.  Interest income on certain investments is

allocated based on the source of the investment and legal requirements which apply.

Cash and investments with an original maturity of three months or less are used in
preparing proprietary fund statements of cash flows because these assets are highly
liquid and are expended to liquidate liabilities arising during the year.

b.  Classification

Cash and investments are classified in the financial statements as shown below, based

on whether or not their use is restricted under the terms of City debt instruments. Cash
and investments as of June 30, 2022, are as follows:

City cash and investments in primary government:
Cash and inv estments 262, 210, 194

Cash and investments, restricted, with fiscal agents 1, 652, 915

Total Cash 263, 863, 109

Cash and investments in Fiduciary Funds ( separate statement):
Cash and investments 5, 847, 920

Cash and inv estments, restricted, with fiscal agents 3, 298, 580

Total Fiduciary Funds cash and inv estments 9, 146, 500

Total cash and investments 273, 009, 609

Cash and Investments as of June 30, 2022, consist of the following:

Cash on hand 6, 260

Cash with financial institutions 113, 541, 176

I nvestments 159, 462, 173

Total Cash and Investments 273, 009, 609

52

111



CITY OF LATHROP

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ( CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Note 2:     Cash and Investments ( Continued)

c.   Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the City' s
Investment Policy

The City' s Investment Policy and the California Government Code allow the City to
invest in the following, provided the credit ratings of the issuers are acceptable to the
City and approved percentages and maturities are not exceeded. The table below also
identifies certain provisions of the California Government Code or the City' s Investment
Policy where it is more restrictive that addresses interest rate risk, credit risk and
concentration of credit risk. This table does not address investments of debt proceeds
held by bond trustees that are governed by the provisions of debt agreements of the
City, rather than the general provisions of the California Government Code or the City' s
investment policy.

The City' s investment policy states that all investments and deposits shall be made in
accordance to the California Government Code Sections 16429. 1, 53600- 53609 and

53630- 53686,  except for the reserve funds from proceeds of debt issues may be
invested in permitted investments specified in the indenture of the debt issue.  The City
has further restricted authorized investments to the following:

Maximum Maximum

Percentage/    Irnestment Minimum

Maximum Amount of in One Credit

Authorized Imestment Type Maturity Portfolio Issuer Ratings

Local Go ernment Bonds 5 years 30%    None A

State Bonds 5 years 30%    None A

US Treasury Obligations 5 years None None N/ A

US Go ernment Agency Issues 5 years None None N/ A

Banker' s Acceptance 180 days 40%    30%      A

Commercial Paper, Prime Quality 270 days 25%    10%      A

Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 5 years 30%    None N/ A

Repurchase and Re erse Repurchase Agreements 30 days None None A

Medium - Term Notes 5 years 30%    10%      A

Money Market Funds N/ A 20%    None AAAm

Mutual Funds 5 years 20%    10%   AAAm

Local Agency In estment Fund (" LAIF") N/ A None None N/ A

Joint Power Authority Pool N/ A None None N/ A

Supranational Obligations 5 years 30%    None AA

d.  Investments Authorized by Debt Agreements

The City must maintain required amounts of cash and investments with trustees or fiscal
agents under the terms of certain debt issues.  These funds are unexpended bond

proceeds or are pledged reserves to be used if the City fails to meet its obligations
under these debt issues. The California Government Code requires these funds to be

invested in accordance with City resolutions, bond indentures or State statutes. The
table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for investments held by fiscal
agents. The bond indentures contain no limitations for the maximum investment in any
one issuer or the maximum percentage of the portfolio that may be invested in any one
investment type. The table also identifies certain provisions of these debt agreements:

53

112



CITY OF LATHROP

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ( CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Note 2:     Cash and Investments( Continued)

Maximum Maximum

Percentage/    Irnestment

Maximum Amount of in One

Authorized In estment Type Maturity Portfolio Issuer

US Treasury Obligations None None None

US Agency Securities None None None

Mortgage- caked Securities 3 years None None

Banker' s Acceptance ( must be dollar denominated)       360 days None None

Certificates of Deposit None None None

Commercial Paper 180 days None None

Money Market Funds N/ A None None

Local Government Bonds None None None

County Pool N/ A None None

Local Agency In estment Fund (" LAIF") N/ A None None

e.   Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the
fair value of an investment.  Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the
greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market interest rates. One of the
ways that the City manages its exposure to interest rate risk is by purchasing a
combination of shorter term and longer term investments and by timing cash flows from
maturities so that a portion of the portfolio is maturing or coming close to maturity evenly
over time as necessary to provide the cash flow and liquidity needed for operations.

Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the City' s investments
including investments held by bond trustees) to market interest rate fluctuations is

provided by the following table that shows the distribution of the City' s investments by
maturity or earliest call date:

Measurement Input

12 Months or

Investment Type Less 13 to 24 Months 25 to 60 Months Total

U. S. Treasury Obligations 4,861, 830    $   25, 165, 930    $   29, 078, 510    $   59, 106, 270

U. S. GovernmentAgencies Issues 3, 255, 779 6, 833, 767 10, 089, 546

SupranationalObligations 1, 063, 284 589,686 439, 434 2, 092, 404

Local Agency Investment Fund 74, 090, 622 74, 090, 622

Asset Management Program 10, 282, 387 10, 282, 387

Money Market Mutual Funds 2, 910, 837 2,910, 837

In+ estrrients in County Pool 400, 986 400, 986

Certificate of Deposit 489, 121 489, 121

Totallnvestments 97, 354, 846    $   32, 589, 383    $   29, 517, 944 159, 462, 173

Cash in Banks and On Hand 113, 547, 436

Total City Cash and In estments 273, 009, 609

54

113



CITY OF LATHROP

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ( CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Note 2:     Cash and Investments( Continued)

The City is a participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund ( LAIF) that is regulated
by California Government Code Section 16429 under the oversight of the Treasurer of
the State of California. The City reports its investment in LAIF at the fair value amount
provided by LAIF, which is the same as the value of the pool share. The balance is
available for withdrawal on demand,  and is based on the accounting records
maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an amortized cost basis. Each regular LAIF
account is permitted to have up to 15 transactions per month,  with a minimum
transaction amount of $ 5, 000, a maximum transaction amount of$ 75 million and at least

24 hours advance notice for withdrawals of$ 10 million or more. Bond proceeds accounts
are subject to a one- time deposit with no cap and are set up with a monthly draw down
schedule.   Included in LAIF' s investment portfolio are collateralized mortgage

obligations, mortgage- backed securities, other asset- backed securities, loans to certain

state funds, United States Treasury Notes and Bills and floating rate securities issued
by federal agencies,   government-  sponsored enterprises,  and corporations.  At

June 30, 2022, these investments have an average maturity of 191 days.

Money market mutual funds are available for withdrawal on demand and at

June 30, 2022, have an average maturity of 105 days.

f.   Fair Value Hierarchy

The City categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy
established by generally accepted accounting principles.  The hierarchy is based on the
valuation inputs used to measure fair value of the assets. Level 1 inputs are quoted
prices in an active market for identical assets;  Level 2 inputs are significant other
observable inputs; and Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs.

The following is a summary of the fair value hierarchy of the fair value of investments of
the City as of June 30, 2022:

Investments by Fair Value Level:    Level 1 Leuel 2 Total

U. S. Treasury Obligations 59, 106, 270    $     59, 106, 270

U. S. GovernmentAgencies Issues 10, 089, 546 10, 089, 546

SupranationalObligations 2, 092, 404 2, 092, 404

Total Inveshrients by Fair Value Level 59, 106, 270    $   12, 181, 950 71, 288, 220

Investments Measured at Amortized Cost:

Local Agency Investment Fund 74, 090, 622

Asset Management Program 10, 282, 387

Money Market Mutual Funds 2, 910, 837

Investrnents in County Pool 400, 986

Certificates of Deposit 489, 121

Cash in Banks and On Hand 113, 547, 436

Total City Cash and Inveshnents 273, 009, 609

55

114



CITY OF LATHROP

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ( CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Note 2:     Cash and Investments( Continued)

US Treasury Obligations classified in Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy are valued using
a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset. For investments classified
within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy, the City' s custodians generally use a
multi- dimensional relational model.  Inputs to their pricing models are based on
observable market inputs in active markets.  The inputs to the pricing models are
typically benchmark yields, reported trades, broker dea er quotes, issuer spreads and
benchmark securities, among others. Fair value is defined as the quoted market value
on the last trading day of the period.  These prices are obtained from various pricing
sources by the custodian bank.

g.  Credit Risk

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation
to the holder of the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a
nationally recognized statistical rating organization.   The actual ratings as of

June 30, 2022, as provided by Standard and Poor' s, are as follows:

InvestmentType AAAm AA+ AAA Total

SupranationalObligations 2, 092,404    $    2, 092, 404

Money Market Mutual Funds 2, 910, 837 2, 910, 837

Totals 2, 910, 837    $     2, 092,404 5, 003, 241

Not Rated:

Local Agency Investment Fund 74, 090, 622

Asset Management Program 10, 282, 387

Investments in County Pool 400, 986

Certificates of Deposit 489, 121

Excempt from Credit Rating Disclosure:
U. S. Government Agencies Issues 10, 089, 545

US Treasury Obligations 59, 106, 270

Totallnvestments 159, 462, 172

h.  Concentration of Credit Risk

There were no Investments in any one issuer, other than U. S. Treasury securities,
money market mutual funds,  and California Local Agency Investment Funds that
represent 5% or more of total City-wide investments at June 30, 2022.

Note 3:     Interfund Transactions

a.   Long- Term Advances

As of June 30,  2022,   the General Fund had advanced  $ 2,405, 864 to the

Sewer Enterprise Fund,  which was used to cover capital construction and other

related costs. The advances will be repaid with future operating revenues, but not within
the ne fiscal year.

56

115



CITY OF LATHROP

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ( CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Note 3:     Interfund Transactions ( Continued)

b.  Transfers Between Funds

With Council approval, resources may be transferred from one City fund to another.
Transfers between funds during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, were as follows:

Transfers In Transfers Out

Major Governmental Funds:

General 6, 102, 401    $  9, 410, 896

Developer Projects Special Revenue Fund 10, 150, 279

Capital Facilities Fee Special Revenue Fund 7, 608, 980

Building Safety & Inspection Special Revenue Fund 404, 270

General CIP Projects Fund 10, 084, 494

Major Enterprise Funds:

Water 6, 627, 678 8, 054, 378

Sewer 14, 372, 540 7, 127, 680
Non Major Governmental Funds 10, 228, 750 4, 659, 380
Total Interfund Transfers 47, 415, 863    $ 47, 415, 863

The purposes of the above transfers were to fund operations, capital projects and debt
service.

c.   Internal Balances

Internal balances are presented in the Entity- wide financial statements only. They
represent the net interfund receivables and payables remaining after the elimination
of all such balances within governmental and business-type activities.

d.  Due To( From) Other Funds

The City provides short- term interfund loans to cover cash flows which are expected to
be repaid within the next year. As of June 30, 2022, Due To ( From) Other Funds were as
fol lows:

Due From Other Funds Due to Other Funds Amount

General Fund Nonmajor Governmental Funds 28, 058

28, 058

57

116



CITY OF LATHROP

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ( CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Note 4:     Capital Assets

a.   Capital Asset Additions and Retirements

Capital assets activity for the year ended June 30, 2022, is as follows:

Balance Balance

Go ernmental ActiNtes Juy 1, 2021 Additions Retirements Transfers June 30, 2022

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land 9, 629, 503   $       970, 226   $ 10, 599, 729

Constructionin Progress 19, 874, 190 9, 575, 854 8, 437, 636) 21, 012, 408

Total capital assets not being depreciated 29, 503, 693 10, 546, 080 8, 437, 636) 31, 612, 137

Capital assets being tlepreciated/ amor6zed:
Buildings 11, 716, 095 12, 124, 759 1, 268, 699 25, 109, 553

Improeements 75, 019, 874 1, 378, 485 7, 168, 937 83, 567, 296

Equipmentand Vehicles 3, 936, 970 1, 525, 460 18, 771)       5, 443, 659

Infrastructure 200, 810, 823 14, 768, 797 215, 579, 620

Right- to- use Leased Assets 73, 010 137, 918 210, 928

Total capital assets being depriciated/ amortized 291, 556, 772 29, 935, 419 18, 771) 8, 437, 636 329, 911, 056

Less accumulated depreciabon/ amortization:

Buildings 3, 759, 863 642, 090 4, 401, 953

Impro ments 24, 637, 182 3, 504, 885 28, 142, 067

Equipmentand Vehicles 2, 450, 664 561, 145 18, 771)       2, 993, 038

Ir rastructure 68, 195, 343 4, 229, 853 72, 425, 196

Right- to-useLeasedAssets 34, 477 47, 316 81, 793

Total accumulated deprecia6on/ amortization 99, 077, 529 8, 985, 289 18, 771)       108, 044, 047

Net capital assets being depreciated/ amortization 192, 479, 243 20, 95Q130 8, 437, 636 221, 867, 009

Governmental Activities Capital Assets, Net 221, 982, 936   $    31, 496, 210 a a 253, 479, 146

Balance Balance

Business- type AcitiNes July 1, 2021 Additions Retirements Transfers June 30, 2022

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land 3, 565, 179   $   3, 565, 179

Constructionin Progress 6, 189, 191 5, 955, 289 1, 509, 242)  10, 635, 238

Total capital assets not being depreciated 9, 754, 370 5, 955, 289 1, 509, 242)  14,200,417

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings 3,072 3, 072

Improeements 229, 599, 657 4, 706, 352 1, 509, 242 235, 815, 251

Equipmentand Vehicles 1, 574, 339 68, 540 12, 514)      1, 630, 365

Net capital assets being depriciated 231, 177, 068 4, 774, 892 12, 514) 1, 509, 242 237, 448, 688

Less accumulated depreciabon:

Buildings 3, 028 14 3, 042

Impro ements 54, 942, 438 4, 812, 310 59, 754, 748

EquipmentandVehicles 999, 887 102, 420 12, 514 1, 089, 793

Total accumulated deprecia6on 55, 945,353 4, 914, 744 12, 514 60, 847, 583

Net capital assets being depreciated 175, 231, 715 139, 852)     1, 509,242 176, 601, 105

Business- type Activities Capital Assets, Net 184,986, 085   $    5, 815, 437   $  190, 801, 522

58

117



CITY OF LATHROP

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ( CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Note 4:     Capital Assets ( Continued)

b.  Capital Asset Contributions

Some capital assets may be acquired using federal and State grant funds, or they may
be contributed by developers or other governments. These contributions are required to
be accounted for as revenues at the time the capital assets are contributed.

c.   Depreciation Allocation

Depreciation expense is charged to functions and programs based on their usage of the
related assets. The amounts allocated to each function or program are as follows:

Governmental Activities

General gov ernment 181, 386

Community dev elopment 201, 998

Public safety 155, 521

Public works 8, 384, 712

Culture and leisure 61, 672

Total Governmental Activities 8, 985, 289

Business- Type Activities

Water 1, 830,469

Sewer 3, 084, 277

Total Business- Type Activities 4, 914, 746

Note 5:     Compensated Absences

The following is a summary of changes in the City's compensated absences for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2022:

Balance Balance Due within

June 30, 2021 Net Change June 30, 2022 one year

Governmental activities 1, 852, 659   $    242, 315   $  2, 094, 974   $   314, 246

Business- type activities 68, 699 12, 838 81, 537 12, 230

Total 1, 921, 358   $    255, 153   $  2, 176, 511   $   326, 476

59

118



CITY OF LATHROP

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ( CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Note 6:      Loans Payable 8 Other Long- Term Debt

The City generally incurs long- term debt to finance projects or purchase assets, which will
have useful lives equal to or greater than the related debt.

a.  The City' s Loans Payable 8 Other Long- Term Debt

The City' s long- term debt activities for the year ended June 30, 2022, is as follows:

Balance Balance

Governmental Activities Long- Term Debt June 30, 2020 Retirements June 30, 2021 Current Portion

Financing Agreement Obligation

2016 Financing Agreement
2. 55%, due 07/ 15/ 2029 3, 050, 000    $      305, 000    $    2, 745, 000    $      315, 000

Total Governmental Activities 3, 050, 000    $      305, 000    $    2, 745, 000    $      315, 000

Balance Balance

Business- type Activities Long- Term Debt June 30, 2020 Retirements June 30, 2021 Current Portion

Capital Loan Obligation

2017 Bank Loan

2. 89°/a, due 06/ 01/ 2032 8, 873, 968    $      696, 032    $    8, 177, 936    $      716, 293

State RevoNing Fund Loan
2. 3086%, due 07/ 01/ 2032 6, 010, 445 456, 317 5,554, 128 466, 911

Compass Bank Loan

3. 50%, due 06/ 01/ 2029 3, 383, 840 373, 803 3, 010, 037 387, 001

TotalBusiness- typeActivities 18, 268, 253    $    1, 526, 152    $   16, 742, 101    $    1, 570, 205

Debt Service Requirements

Future principal and interest payments on all Governmental and Business- type

long- term debt were as follows at June 30, 2022:

Go ernmental Acfivities Business- Type Actiu6es

Direct Borrowings Direct Borrowings

Ciry Hall Loan 2017 Bank Loan Shate Rewiunq Fund Loan Compass Bank Loan

For ihe Year

Ending June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest

2023       $    315, 000   $     65, 981   $    716, 293   $    231, 167   $    466, 911   $    125,272   $    387, 001   $    101, 999

2024 320,000 57, 885 737, 145 210, 316 483, 267 114, 306 400, 664 88, 336

2025 330, 000 49, 598 758, 604 188, 857 494, 489 103, 084 414, 810 74, 190

2026 340, 000 41, 055 780, 687 166, 774 500, 217 97, 376 429, 456 59, 544

2027 350, 000 32, 512 803, 412 144, 048 511, 811 85, 763 444, 102 44,898

2028- 2032 1, 090, 000 42, 076 4, 381, 795 355, 510 2, 779, 626 198, 111 934, 004 4Q600

2033 317, 807 6, 596

Total       $  2, 745, 000   $    289, 107   $   8, 177, 936   $   1, 296, 672   $   5, 554, 128   $    73Q808   $   3, 010, 037   $    409, 567

Description of the City' s Loans Payable& Other Long- Term Debt Issues

2016 Lease Agreement - On June 1, 2016, the City entered into a capital lease
with the Lathrop Financing Authority ( Authority) for the existing City Hall building, in the
amount of $ 4, 190, 000 with a 2. 55% annual interest rate.   On the same date, the

Authority assigned its rights under the lease agreement to Capital One Public Funding,
LLC. The proceeds of the capital lease, together with available funds from the City, were
used to advance refund the outstanding 2004 Capital Lease Obligation amounted
to $ 6,640, 000. A total of $ 6, 787, 680 was deposited into an irrevocable trust with an

60

119



CITY OF LATHROP

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ( CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Note 6:      Loans Payable 8 Other Long-Term Debt( Continued)

escrow agent to provide funds for the future debt service payment on the refunded
2004 Capital Lease. As a result, the 2004 Capital Lease was considered defeased

and the liability for the 2004 Capital Lease has been removed from the Statement
of Net Position as of June 30, 2016.  On July 15,  2016, the 2004 Capital Lease
Obligation was prepaid fully. This advance refunding reduced the City' s total debt service
payments over 15 years by $ 2, 901, 765 and obtained an economic gain ( difference
between the present values of the debt service payments on the old and new debt) of

950, 783. Due to the timing of debt service payments on July 15th of each year, the
City prepays the principa and interest.

The 2016 City Hall Lease is secured by the City Hall building at 390 Towne Centre
Drive, Lathrop, California. The outstanding lease amount contains a provision that in
an event of default, Lathrop Financing Authority may terminate the lease, re- lease all or
any portion of the leased property or hold the City liable for the payment of all base rental
obligations and be reimbursed for any deficiency arising out of re- leasing the property.

2017 Bank Loan — On May 18, 2017, the City entered into a loan agreement with
Opus Bank, in the amount of $ 11, 455, 000 with a 2. 89%  annual interest rate. The

purpose of the loan proceeds is to refinance the 2003 Revenue Bonds. A total of
11, 328,241 was deposited into an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide

funds for the future debt service payment on the refunded 2003 Bonds. As a result, the
2003 Bonds were considered defeased and the liability for the 2003 Bonds has been
removed from the Statement of Net Position as of June 30, 2017. On June 1, 2017,

the 2003 Bonds were repaid fully. This refunding reduced the City's total debt service
payments over 15 years by $ 6, 829, 468 and obtained an economic gain ( difference
between the present values of the debt service payments on the old and new debt) of

3, 857, 309. The interest and principal payments are due June 1 and December 1,
commenced December 1, 2017.

State Revolving Fund Loan  —  The City entered into an agreement with the
California Department of Public Health in the amount of$ 10, 929, 000. Funds are for the
Water Supply Arsenic Reduction Project.   Repayment of this loan started on

January 1, 2013. Terms of the note include a twenty-year repayment period and a
2. 3% interest rate. Principal and interest payments are to be paid semiannually. The
City' s net water system revenues have been pledged for the repayment of debt service on
loan.

Compass Bank Loan  —  During fiscal 2011- 12,  the City entered into a loan
agreement with Compass Bank in the amount of $ 6,203, 000. The proceeds from the
loan were used to refund the 2000A Certificates of Participation ( 2000A COPs). Interest

on the Compass Loan is payable semi- annually on December 1 and June 1 of each
year through the year 2029. Repayment of this loan started on December 1, 2012.

The 2017 Bank Loan and Compass Bank Loan are secured by a pledge of and lien on
the net revenues of the Water System.  The outstanding loan amount contains a
provision that in an event of default, the loan will bear interest at the default rate, a rate

of interest equal to the interest rate plus 3 percent and 5 percent respectively or the
outstanding loan amount may become immediately due and payable.

The State Revolving Fund Loan is secured by a promissory note. The outstanding loan
amount contains a provision that in an event of defau t, the State can declare the
City' s obligation immediately due and payable.

61

120



CITY OF LATHROP

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ( CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Note 6:     Loans Payable 8 Other Long- Term Debt( Continued)

For the fiscal year 2022,  net revenues of the Water Enterprise Fund amounted to
4, 172, 266 which represented coverage of 3. 90 over the $ 1, 069, 835 debt service on the

2017 Bank Loan and Compass Bank Loan.

Note 7:     Special Assessment Debt Without City Commitment

Special Assessment Districts in various parts of the City have issued debt to finance
infrastructure improvements and facilities within their boundaries. The City is the collecting
and paying agent for the debt issued by these Districts, but has no direct or contingent
liability or moral obligation for the payment of this debt. Therefore, this debt is not included as
long- term debt of the City.  The outstanding balance of each of these issues as of
June 30, 2022 is as follows:

Mossdale Assessment District Refunding 2015 4, 890, 000  "

Lathrop Financing Authority Special Tax Revenue Bonds

Mossdale Village Reassessment District No. 2013- 1) 2013 Series 8, 105, 000

Lathrop Financing Authority Special Tax Revenue Bonds

Community Facilities No. 2003- 1) 2013 Series A 5, 000, 000

Crossroad Assessment District Series 2015 8, 960, 000

Joint Wastewater Project CFD 2003- 2 4, 960, 000

Lathrop Sanitary Sew er Assessment District No. 1 520, 000

City Hall Refinancing 2, 745, 000

Community Facilities District No. 2018- 1 45, 640, 000  *"

The Mossdale Assessment District Refunding 2015 bond issue refunded the Nbssdale Ilage

Assessment District No. 03- 1 Series 2005 bond issue.

The Community Facilities District No.  2018- 1 and 2018- 2 bond issues were issued to
restructure and e inguish the Communities Facilities District No. 2006- 1.

Note 8:     Leases

Lease agreements are summarized as follows:

Payment Payment Interest Total Lease Balance

Description Date Terms Amount Rate Liability June 30, 2022

SAN Store 11/ 27/ 2019 3 years      $  2, 028 0. 00%   $    73, 010    $      10, 372

VMWare 1/ 21/ 2022 3 years 1, 469 0. 00% 52, 896 45, 551

BI. Serv er 1/ 21/ 2022 3 years 2, 362 0. 00% 85, 022 73, 212

Total Lease Agreements 129, 135

The SAN Storage was leased through Hewlett- Packard Financial Services by the Information
Systems Department for use by all Departments, beginning in November 27, 2019 for a term
of three years at a fixed interest rate of 0. 00%. This lease is not renewable and the City
maintains the option to acquire the equipment for$ 1 at the end of the three year term.

The VMWare was leased through Hewlett- Packard Financial Services by the Information
Systems Department for use by all Departments, beginning in January 21, 2022 for a term of
three years at a fixed interest rate of 0. 00%. This lease is not renewable and the City
maintains the option to acquire the equipment for$ 1 at the end of the three year term.

62

121



CITY OF LATHROP

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ( CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Note 8:     Leases ( Continued)

The Blade Server was leased through Hewlett- Packard Financial Services by the Information
Systems Department for use by all Departments, beginning in January 21, 2022 for a term of
three years at a fixed interest rate of 0. 00%. This lease is not renewable and the City
maintains the option to acquire the equipment for$ 1 at the end of the three year term.

Annual requirements to amortize long- term obligations and related interest are as follows:

Year Ending
June 30 Principal Interest

2022 37, 177    $      -

2023 45, 972

2024 45, 986

129, 135    $      -

Note 9:     Fund Balances

Detailed classifications of the City' s fund balances, as of June 30, 2022, are below:

Building Other

Developer Capifal Safely 8 De elopment Developer General CIP Go ernmenfal
General Fund Projects Facilities Fee Inspection Engineering Deposits Projects Funds Total

Nonspendables:

Items not in spendable form:

Advances to other funds 2, 405, 864   $ g g 2, 405, 864

Total Nonspendable 2, 405, 864 2, 405, 864

Restricted for:

Recyling projects 1, 131, 435 1, 131, 435

Capitalprojects 440, 611 55, 014, 879 9, 006, 076 35, 670, 193 100, 131, 759

Public safety 8, 991, 479 1, 064, 058 10, 055, 537

Tra c and Vansportation 112, 479 112, 479
Parks and recreation 1, 453, 378 1, 483, 378

Streets and roads contracts 8, 077, 126 1, 326, 643 9, 403, 769
Measure K

631, 633 631, 633

Total Restricted 440, 611 55, 014,879 8, 991, 479 8, 077, 126 9, 006, 076 41, 419, 819 122, 949, 990

CommRed to:

Con6ngency/ emergency 7, 045, 537 7, 045, 537
Economic stability 1, 850, 000 1, 850, 000

Capital projects 10, 010, 189 10, 010, 189

Animalshetter 8, 000, 000 8, 000, 000

Landscapereserves 1, 130, 000 1, 130, 000
Re6rement stabilily 3, 500, 000 3, 500, 000
Water bonds 747, 725

747, 725
Capifal equipment 3, 324, 674 3, 324,674
Measure C essential cily senrices 5, 457, 147 5, 457, 147
Economc deeelopment 438, 896 438, 896
American Rescue Plan Act 3, 259, 738

3, 259, 738

Total Commited 44, 763, 906 44, 763,906

Unassigned:

Fund deficits 532, 273)    521, 256)     ( 1, 053, 529)
Residual fund balance 5, 704, 542 5, 704, 542

TotalUnassigned 5, 704, 542 532, 273)    521, 256)      4, 651, 013

TotalFund Balances 52, 874, 312   $  440, 611   $ 55, 014, 879   $ 8, 991, 479   $ 8, 077, 126   $  ( 532, 273)  $ 9, 006, 076   $  40, 898, 563   $ 174, 770, 773

63

122



CITY OF LATHROP

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS( CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Note 9:     Fund Balances ( Continued)

a.   Minimum Fund Balance Policies

The City Council has established a fund balance reserve policy with the adoption of
resolution 10- 3102 that deemed it desirable for the City to retain a contingency reserve
level of 50% of the adjusted appropriation for any given year. The reserve balance
shall not be reduced below 10%  of the General Fund adjust appropriations.  The

contingency reserve is allocated to two categories, Economic Uncertainty Reserve and
Exposure and Emergency Reserves.

The Economic Uncertainty Reserve consists of 75%  of the Contingency Reserve
Balance.  It will be maintained to minimize the effects of major economic

uncertainties,   including local disasters,   State budget deficits and other severe

financial hardships or unforeseen changes in revenues and/ or expenditures and will be

available for budget stabilization. At June 30, 2022, the Economic Uncertainty Reserve
amounted to$ 5, 284, 153.

The Exposure and Emergency Reserves consist of 25% of the Contingency Reserve
Balance.  Exposure Reserves will be maintained to minimize the immediate financial

impact of potential costs not covered by the City' s insurance program, such as claim
costs within the City' s deductibles, major costs associate with disasters and other events
which will not be reimbursable by insurance or Federal or State Government.
Emergency Reserve will be maintained to minimize all unforeseen events not covered
in the Economic Uncertainty Reserve and Exposure Reserves. At June 30, 2022, the
Exposure and Emergency Reserves amounted to$ 1, 761, 384.

b.  Encumbrances

The City utilized an encumbrance system during fiscal year 2021 to assist in
controlling expenditures. Under this system, governmental funds are encumbered when
purchase orders,  contracts,  or other commitments are signed or approved.  The

following are encumbrances at June 30, 2022, that will be carried over to fiscal year
2022:

General Fund 6, 237, 688

Building Safety & Inspection Special Revenue Fund 644, 055

Development Engineering Special Revenue Fund 965, 125

Developer Deposits Special Revenue Fund 58, 644

General CIP Projects 7, 557, 205

Non- Major Funds 10, 880, 608

64

123



CITY OF LATHROP

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ( CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Note 10:    Pension Plan

a.  General Information about the Pension Plan

Plan Description — All qualified permanent and probationary employees are eligible to
participate in the City' s Miscellaneous Tier I, Tier II and PEPRA Empioyee Pension Rate
Plan. The City' s Miscellaneous Rate Plan is part of the public agency cost- sharing
multiple- employer defined benefit pension pian ( PERF C), which is administered by the
California Public Employees' Retirement System ( CaIPERS).  PERF C consists of a
miscellaneous pool and a safety pool  ( also referred to as " risk pools"), which are

comprised of individual employer miscellaneous and safety rate plans,  respectively.
Individual employers may sponsor more than one miscellaneous and safety rate plan.
The employer participates in one cost-sharing multiple- employer defined benefit pension
plan regardless of the number of rate plans the employer sponsors.  The City
sponsors three miscellaneous rate plans.  Benefit provisions under the Plan are

established by State statute and City resolution.  CaIPERS issues publicly available
reports that include a full description of the pension plan regarding benefit provisions,
assumptions and membership information that can be found on the CaIPERS website.

Benefits Provided —  CaIPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits,
annual cost of living adjustments and death benefits to plan members, who must be
public employees and beneficiaries. Benefits are based on years of credited service, equal
to one year of full time employment. Members with five years of total service are eligible to
retire at age 50 with statutorily reduced benefits.  All members are eligible for non- duty
disability benefits after 10 years of service. The death benefit is one of the foflowing: the
Basic Death Benefit, the 1957 Survivor Benefit, or the Optional Settlement 2W Death

Benefit. The cost of living adjustments for each plan are applied as specified by the
Public Employees' Retirement Law.

The Plan' s provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2022, are summarized as follows:

Miscellaneous

Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier 3

Prior to July 1, 2010 to After

Hire date July 1, 2010 December 31, 2012 December 31, 2012

Benefit formula 2% @ 55 2% @ 60 2% @ 62
Benefit esting schedule 5 years service 5 years service 5 years service
Benefit payments Monthly for life Monthly for life Monthly for life
Retirement age 50 50 52

Monthly benefits, as a% of annual salary 1. 426%- 2. 418% 1. 092%- 2.418%  1. 0%- 2. 5%

Required employee contribution rates 7. 00% 7. 00% 6. 75%

Required employer contribution rates 10. 34% 8. 65°/a 7. 59%

Required Unfunded Acturarial

Liabiliiy Contribution 463, 648    $   20, 791     $   10, 659

Beginning in fiscal year 2016, CaIPERS collects employer contributions for the Plan as
a percentage of payroll for the normal cost portion as noted in the rates above and as
a dollar amount for contributions toward the unfunded liability  ( UAL).  The dollar

amounts are biiled on a monthly basis, or the City can elect a lump sum payment
option. The City' s required contributions for the unfunded liability in the Plan totaled
408,049, as noted in the table above, which were made under the annual payment

option.

65

124



CITY OF LATHROP

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ( CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Note 10:    Pension Plan ( Continued)

Contributions — Section 20814( c) of the California Public Employees' Retirement Law

requires that the employer contribution rates for all public employers be determined on
an annual basis by the actuary and shall be effective on the July 1 following notice of a
change in the rate.  Funding contributions for the Plan are determined annually on an
actuarial basis as of June 30 by CaIPERS.  The actuarially determined rate is the
estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees
during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability.
The City is required to contribute the difference between the actuarially determined rate
and the contribution rate of employees.

For the year ended June 30,  2022, the City' s total contributions to the Plan were
1, 200, 271.

b.  Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflowsllnflows of Resources

Related to Pensions

For purposes of ineasuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/ inflows of
resources related to pensions,  and pension expense,  information about the fiduciary
net position of the Plan and additions to/ deductions from the Plan' s fiduciary net
position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the
CaIPERS Financial Office.  For this purpose,  benefit payments ( including refunds of
employee contributions) are recognized when currently due and payable in accordance
with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

Note 9: Pension Plan ( Continued)

As of June 30, 2022, the city reported a net pension liability for its proportionate share of
the net pension liability of the Plan as follows:

Proportionate Share of

Net Pension Liability
Miscellaneous 2, 967, 660

Tota Net Position Liability 2, 967, 660

The governmental activities net pension liability is liquidated primarily by the
General Fund.

The City' s net pension liability for the Plan is measured as the proportionate share of
the net pension liability. The net pension liability of the Plan is measured as of
June 30, 2020, and the total pension liability for the Plan used to calculate the net
pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2019, rolled
forward to June 30, 2020, using standard update procedures. The City' s proportion of
the net pension liability was based on a projection of the City' s long- term share of
contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all
participating employers, actuarially determined. The City' s proportionate share of the net
pension liability for the Plan as of June 30, 2019, and 2020 was as follows:

Miscellaneous

Proportion - June 30, 2019 0. 0590%

Proportion - June 30, 2020 0. 0549%

Change - Increase ( Decrease) 0. 0041%

66

125



CITY OF LATHROP

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ( CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Note 10:    Pension Plan ( Continued)

For the year ended June 30, 2022, the City recognized pension expense of$ 959, 001. At
June 30, 2022, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred OutFlows Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources

Pension contributions subsequent to measurement date 1, 200, 271     $       

Differences between actual and e ected e erience 332, 791

Adjustments due to differences in proportions 452, 972

Difference in proportionate share of contributions 192, 631)

Net difference projected and actual irnestrnent earnings 2, 583, 375)

Total 1, 986, 034    $    ( 2, 776, 006)

1, 200, 271 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions

subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net

pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2023.  Other amounts reported as deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be
recognized as pension expense as follows:

Year Ended Annual

June 30 Amoritization

2023 346, 889)

2024 409, 795)

2025 524, 884)

2026 708, 675)

Actuarial Assumptions — For the measurement period ended June 30, 2020, the total
pension liability was determined by roiling forward the June 30, 2019 totai pension
liability. The June 30, 2020 total pension liability were based on the following actuarial
methods and assumptions for all benefit tiers:

All Plans

Valuation Date June 30, 2021

Measurement Date June 30, 2021

Actuarial Cost Method Entry- Age Normal Cost Method
Actuarial Assumptions:

Discount Rate 7. 15%

Inflation 2. 50%

Payroll Growth 3. 00°/a

Projected Salary Increase Varies by Entry Age and Sennce
Irnestment Rate of Return 7. 15%'

Mortality Deri ed usin CaIPERS Membership Data for all Funds z
Post Retirement Benefit Increase Contract COLA up to 2. 50% until Purchasing Power Protection

Allowance Floor on Purchasing Power applies 2. 50% thereafter.

1)       Net of pension plan investment and administrative expenses, including inflation.
2)       The mortality table used was developed based on CaIPERS' specific data. The table

includes 15 years of mortality improvements using the Society of Actuaries Scale 90% of scale

MP 2016. For more details on this table, please refer to the December 2017 experience study
report ( based on CaIPERS demographic data from 1997 to 2015) that can be found on the

CaIPERS website.

67

126



CITY OF LATHROP

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ( CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Note 10:    Pension Plan ( Continued)

Discount Rate— The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability for the Plan
was 7. 15%. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate for the Plan
assumed that contributions from all plan members in the Public Employees Retirement
Fund  ( PERF)  will be made at the current member contribution rates and that

contributions from employers will be made at statutorily required rates, actuarially
determined. Based on those assumptions, the Plan' s fiduciary net position was projected
to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current pian members.
Therefore, the long- term expected rate of return on plan investments was applied to all
periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

Long- term Expected Rate of Return - The long- term expected rate of return on pension
plan investments was determined using a building- block method in which best-estimate
ranges of expected future real rates of return ( expected returns, net of pension plan
investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.

In determining the long- term expected rate of return, CaIPERS took into account both
short-term and long- term market return expectations as well as the expected pension
fund cash flows. Using historical and forecasted information for all the funds'
asset classes,  expected compound  ( geometric)  returns were calculated over the

short- term  ( first 10 years)  and the long- term  ( 11+  years)  using a building- block
approach.  Using the expected nominal returns for both short- term and long- term, the
present value of benefits was calcuiated for each fund. The expected rate of return was
set by calculating the rounded single equivalent expected return that arrived at the
same present value of benefits for cash flows as the one calculated using both
short-term and long- term returns. The expected rate of return was then set equal to the
single equivalent rate calculated above and adjusted to account for assumed

administrative expenses.

The table below reflects the expected real rate of return by asset class.

Current Target Real Return Real Return

Asset Class
a

Allocation Years 1 - 10
b     Years 11+ c°

Global Equity 50%     4. 80%     5. 98%

Fixed Income 28%     1. 00%     2. 62%

Inflation assets 0. 77%     1. 81%

Private Equity 8%     6. 30%     7. 23%

Real assets 13%     3. 75%     4. 93%

Liquidity 1%   0. 92%

Total 100%

a)  In the CaiPERS CAFR, Fixed Income is included in Global Debt Securities; Liquidity is
included in Short- term Investments; Inflation Assets are included in both Global Equity
Securities and Global Debt Securities.

b) An expected inflation of 2. 0% used for this period.
c)  An expected inflation of 2. 92% used for this period.

68

127



CITY OF LATHROP

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ( CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Note 10:    Pension Plan ( Continued)

Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in
the Discount Rate — The following presents the City' s proportionate share of the net
pension liability for the Plan, calculated using the discount rate for the Plan, as well as
what the City' s proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were
calculated using a discount rate that is 1- percentage point lower or 1- percentage

point higher than the current rate:

Miscellaneous

1°/ a Decrease 6. 15°/ a

Net Pension Liability 7, 242, 897

Current Discount Rate 7. 15%

Net Pension Liability 2, 967, 660

1% Increase 8. 15%

Net Pension Liability 566, 617)

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position —  Detailed information about the pension

plan' s fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued CaIPERS financial
reports.

Note 11:    Other Post- Employment Benefits

a.  General Information about the City' s Other Post- Employment Benefit( OPEB) Plan

Plan Description  —   The City' s Post —  Employment Benefit Plan is an agent

multiple- employer defined benefit OPEB plan.

By resolution and through agreements with its labor units, the City provides certain
health care benefits for retired employees. The City in the CaIPERS health care plan,
which is governed under the California Public Employees Health and Medical Care Act
PEMCHA). The City also participates in the California Employers Retirees Benefit Trust
CERBT),  an irrevocable trust established to fund OPEB.   CERBT is an agent

multiple- employer defined benefit other postemployment benefits plan administrated by
CaIPERS, and is managed by an appointed board not under the control of the City
Council. CERBT consists of participating employers of the State of California and public
agencies. Individual employers may establish more than one plan.

The CERBT was established by Chapter 331 of the 1988 California Statutes,  and
employers elect to participate in the CERBT to pre- fund health,  dental, and other
non- pension postemployment benefits for their retirees and survivors. The CERBT has
pooled administrative and investment functions, while separate employer accounts are
maintained to prefund and pay for health care or other postemployment benefits in
accordance with the terms of the participating employers'  plans.  There are three
CaIPERS Board approved investment strategies for employers to choose from depending
on their expected levels of return and volatility. Benefit provisions are established by
participating employers.

The CERBT Trust is not considered a component unit by the City and has been
excluded from these financial statements. Separately issued financial statements for
CERBT may be obtained from CALPERS at P. O. Box 942709, Sacramento, California
94229- 2709.

69

128



CITY OF LATHROP

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS( CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Note 11:    Other Post- Employment Benefits( Continued)

Benefits Provided — The following is a summary of Plan benefits by employee group
as of June 30, 2022:

Benefit Prior to Retiree's( or SurviNng Spouse' s)      Benefit After Retiree' s( or Surviung

Tier Hire Date Retirement Date Eligibility Eligibility for Medicare Spouse' s) Eligibility for Medicare

Benefit accourding to preuous Unequal PEMHCA Resolution( i. e., no change for this group).
Before On or before Age 50 within 5 years 100% of premium for the retiree and any eligible co ered dependents, up to$ 1, 536 per month in

7/ t/ 2014 12/ 31/ 2014 of PERS senice 2018, increasing by$ 100 each calendar year until such time as it is equal to actiee employee

per month in each City contribution.

Age 50 within 5 years pEMHCA Minimum Employer Contribution( MEC)
2

Before
After 12/ 31/ 2014

of PERS sereice PEMHCA Minimum Employer

7/ 1/ 2014 Age 55 within 5 years 100% o t e premium or retiree p us one up to Contribution( MEC)

of PERS service the monthly cap for active employees'

Age 50 within 5 years pEMHCA Minimum Employer Contribution( MEC)
of PERS seruce

100% of the premium for reti ree and

After dependants, up to the following percantages of pEMHCA Minimum Employer
2

7- t- 2014
A y

Age 55 within 5 years the monthly cap for active employees*      Contribution( MEC)

of PERS service 5 years of service: 25%a

l0years of service: 50%  15

years of service: 100%

In 2020, the City contributes a maximum of $ 1. 755 per month toward medical coverage for active employees and their
dependents. This amount will increase annually by 50% of premium increase for the median cost medical plan, not to exceed
5. 5% per year.

For the year ended June 30, 2022,  the City' s contributions to the Plan were
517, 163, which were comprised of contributions to the trust of$ 368, 885 and implicit

subsidy payments of$ 148, 278.

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms — Membership in the plan consisted of the
following at the measurement date of June 30, 2022:

Active Employees 83

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 26

Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 109

Total 218

b.  Net OPEB Liability

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions — The City' s net OPEB liability was measured as
of June 30, 2020 the total OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation
dated June 30, 2021. These are the following actuarial methods and assumptions:

Actuarial Assumptions

Valuation Date June 30, 2021

Measurement Date June 30, 2021

Actuarial Cost Method Entry-Age Normal Cost, le el percent of pay
Actuarial Assumptions:

Discount Rate 6. 10%

Inflation 2. 50%

Payroll Growth 3. 00%

tmestment Rate of Return 6. 10%

Mortality Rate MacLeod Watts Scale 2022 applied generationally from 2015
Healthcare Trend Rate 4. 00%

70

129



CITY OF LATHROP

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ( CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Note 11:    Other Post- Employment Benefits ( Continued)

Demographic actuarial assumptions used in this valuation are based on the 2014

experience study of the California Public Employees Retirement System using data
from 1997 to 2011,  except for a different basis used to project future mortality
improvements.  Mortality rates used were the published CaIPERS rates, adjusted to
back out 20 years of Scale BB to central year 2008.

The long- term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was determined using
a building- block method in which best- estimate ranges of expected future real rates of
return  ( expected returns,  net of OPEB plan investment expense and inflation) are
developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the
long- term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by
the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target

allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class

are summarized in the following table:

Target

Asset Class Allocation

Global Equity 49%

Fixed Income 23%

Treasury Inflation Protection Securities 20%

Real Estate In stment Trusts 5%

Commodities 3%

Total 100%

Change of Assumptions — For the measurement date of June 30, 2021, there were no

changes in assumptions.

Discount Rate — The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 6. 10%.
The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that City
contributions will be made at rates equal to the actuarially determined contribution rates.
Based on those assumptions, the OPEB plan' s fiduciary net position was projected to
be available to make all projected OPEB payments for current active and inactive
employees and beneficiaries.  Therefore,  the long- term expected rate of return on
OPEB plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to
determine the total OPEB liability.

71

130



CITY OF LATHROP

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ( CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Note 11:    Other Post- Employment Benefits ( Continued)

c.  Changes in Net OPEB Liability

The changes in the total OPEB liability follows:

Increase( Decrease)

Net OPEB

Total OPEB Plan Fiduciary Liability/( Asset)

Liability( a)     Net Position( b)    ( c) _( a)-( b)

Balance at Measurement Date 6/ 30/ 2020 5, 648, 255     $  4, 508, 902     $   1, 139, 353

Changes Recognized for the Measurement Period:

Service Cost 254, 871 254, 871

Interest on the total OPEB liability 388, 811 388, 811

E ectedinvestrnentincome 45, 156) 1, 195, 508 1, 240, 664)

Contributions from the employer 435, 828 435, 828)

Changes in benefit terms

Administrative e enses 1, 642)     1, 642

Other E enses( one time)      

Benefit payments 370, 644) 370, 644) 

Changes of assumptions 139, 746 139, 746

Plan e erience

I nvestment e erience

Net changes 367, 628 1, 259, 050 891, 422)

Balance at Measurement Date 6/ 30/ 2021 6, 015, 883     $  5, 767, 952     $    247, 931

d.  Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate and
Healthcare Cost Trend Rates

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the City, as well as what the City' s total
OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1- percentage-
point lower( 5. 80°/ a) or 1- percentage- point higher( 7. 80%) than the current discount rate:

Net OPEB Liability/( Asset)
Discount Rate Discount Rate Discount Rate

1% ( 5. 10%) 6. 10%) 1% ( 7. 10%)

862, 751     $     247, 931     $     ( 278, 328)

The following presents the net OPEB liability of the City, as well as what the City' s net
OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are
1- percentage- point lower or 1- percentage- point higher than the current healthcare cost
trend rates:

Net OPEB Liability/( Asset)
Healthcare Cost Trend Rates

1% Decrease Current Rate 1% Increase

365, 788)    $     247, 931     $     979, 750

72

131



CITY OF LATHROP

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS( CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Note 11:    Other Post- Employment Benefits( Continued)

e.  OPEB Expenses and Deferred Outflows/ Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB

For purposes of ineasuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about

the fiduciary net position of the City' s OPEB Plan and additions to/ deductions from the
OPEB Plan' s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they
are reported by CaIPERS.  For this purpose, benefit payments are recognized when
currently due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.  Investments are

reported at fair value.

For the year ended June 30, 2022, the City recognized OPEB expense of $ 554, 388. At
June 30, 2022, the City reported deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to
OPEB from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources

Employer Contributions made subsequent to the measurement date 517, 163    $      

Differences between actual and e ected e erience 307, 330)

Changes in assumptions 142, 010 41, 417)

Net differences projected and actual earnings on plan investments 610, 349)

Total 659, 173    $      ( 959, 096)

435, 328 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions

subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the OPEB

liability in the year ended June 30, 2023. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows
of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized as part
of OPEB expense as follows:

Year Ended Annual

June 30,    Amoritization

2023 202, 310)

2024 196, 761)

2025 206, 329)

2026 212, 947)

2027 11, 906)

Thereafter 13, 167

Total 817, 086)

Note 12:    Risk Management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The

City participates in the Central San Joaquin Valley Risk Management Authority ( CSJVRMA),
a public entity risk poor currently operating as a common risk management and insurance
program for 55 cities. The purpose of CSJVRMA is to spread the adverse effect of losses
among the members and to purchase excess insurance as a group, thereby reducing its
expense.

73

132



CITY OF LATHROP

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ( CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Note 12:    Risk Management( Continued)

The City's deductibles and maximum coverage follows:

Co erage Deductible CSJVRMA Excess Liability ERMA

Workers Compensation 25, 000     $ 500, 000 Statutory Limits     $      
General and automobile liability 25, 000 1, 000, 000     $    54, 000, 000

Property damage 5, 000 or 10, 000 25, 000 1, 000, 000, 000

High value auto program 2, 000 10, 000 or 50, 000 1, 000, 000, 000

Boiler and machinery Various 1, 000, 000, 000

Employment Practices Liability 25, 000 2, 000, 000 1, 000, 000

The City contributes its pro rata share of anticipated losses to a pool administered by
CSJVRMA. Should actual osses among participants be greater than the anticipated losses,
the City will be assessed its pro rata share of that deficiency. Conversely, if the actual
losses are less than anticipated,  the City will be refunded its pro rata share of the
excess.  The City paid CSJVRMA premiums and ERMA premiums totaling $ 1, 078, 841

during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022. Settled claims have not exceeded commercial
excess liability coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

The City is also a member of Employment Risk Management Authority ( ERMA), which covers
wrongful employment practices.

The City did not record a liability for outstanding claims at fiscal year-end, as the claims were
minimal.

Note 13:    Commitments and Contingencies

The City participates in several Federal and State grant programs. These programs are
subject to audits by the City' s independent accountants in accordance with the provisions of
the Federal Single Audit Act as amended and applicable State requirements.  No cost

disallowances have been proposed as a result of these audits.  However, these programs
are still subject to further examination by the grantors and the amount,  if any,  of

expenditures which may be disallowed by the granting agencies cannot be determined at this
time. The City expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

The City is subject to litigation arising in the normal course of business. In the opinion
of the City Attorney there is no other pending litigation, which is likely to have a material
adverse effect on the financial position of the City.

74

133



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

75

134



CITY OF LATHROP

COST SHARING MULTIPLE EMPLOYER PLAN

SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY

AS OF JUNE 30, FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS( 1)

2015 2076 2017 2018

Miscellaneous Rate Plan

Rate Plan' s Proportion of the Net Pension Liability 0. 05770°/ o 0. 04556% 0. 04980% 0. 05243%

Rate Plan' s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability 3, 590, 219   $    3, 127, 249   $    4, 309, 662    $    5, 199, 968

Rate Plan' s Covered Payroll 4, 501, 607   $    4, 364, 310   $    5, 148, 017    $    5, 568, 372

Rate Plan' s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability as
Percentage of Covered Payroll 79. 75%   71. 66°/o 83. 71%   93. 38°/ a

The Pension Plan' s( PERF- C) Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage
of the Total Pension Liability 79. 82%   78. 40°/ a 74. 06%   73. 31%

Notes to Schedule:

Benefit Chanqes: There were no changes to benefit terms. However, the figures above do not include any liability impact that may have resulted from

plan changes which occurred after June 30, 2016. This applies for voluntary benefit changes as well as any offers of Two Years Additional Service
Credit( a. k. a. Golden Handshakes).

Chanpes of Assumptions: In 2019, 2020 and 2021 there were no changes. 2018, demographic assumptions and inflation rate were changed in

accordance to the CaIPERS Experience Study and Review of Actuarial Assumptions December 2017. There were no changes in the discount rate. In
2017, the accounting discount rate reduced from 7. 65 percent to 7. 15 percent. In 2016, there were no changes. In 2015, amounts reported reflect an
adjustment of the discount rate from 7. 5 percent( net of adminstrative expense) to 7. 65 percent( without a reduction for pension plan adminstrative
expense.) In 2014, amount reported were based on the 7. 5 percent discount rate.

1) Historical information is required only for measurement for which GASB 68 is applicable. Fiscal Year 2015 was the first year of implementation,
therefore only eight years are shown.

76

135



2019 2020 2021 2022

0. 05269%  0. 05586%  0. 05897%  0. 05487%

5, 077, 307    $     5, 723, 799    $     6, 416, 539    $     2, 967, 660

6, 004, 176    $     6, 384, 728    $     6, 808, 162    $     7, 021, 189

84. 56°/a 89. 65%    94. 25%    42. 27%

75. 26%    75. 26%    75. 10°/ a 88. 29%

77

136



CITY OF LATHROP

COST SHARING MULTIPLE- EMPLOYER PLAN

SCHEDULE OF PLAN CONTRIBUTIONS

AS OF JUNE 30, FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS( 1)

2015 2016 2017 2018

Miscellaneous Rate Plan

Actuarially Determined Contribution 523, 329    $       369, 225    $       434, 033   $       465, 746

Contribution in Relation to the Actuarially Determined Contribution 523, 329)   369, 225)   434, 033)   465, 746)

Contribution Deficiency( Excess)   

Covered Payroll 4, 364, 310    $     5, 148, 017    $     5, 568, 372    $     6, 004, 176

Contributions as a Percentage of Covered Payroll 11. 99%      7. 17%      7. 79%      7. 76%

1) Historical information is required only for measurement for which GASB 68 is applicable. Fiscal Year 2015 was the first year of implementation,
therefore only seven years are shown.

Note to Schedule:

Valuation Date:   June 30, 2019

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates:

Actuarial cost method Entry age normal cost method
Amortization method/ period Level percentage of pay, a summary of the current policy is provided in the table below:

Source

Gain' Lass
Assum ion! Method

p y Investment Pkn- investment Chan e Benefit Chan e Galden Handshake

Amortizatiai Penad 36 years 30 Years 2Q Years 70 Years 5 Years

Escalation Rate

Active Plans 2. 750% 2J50% 2. 750° 1p 2. 750° h 2] 50°h

InactiuePlans 096 0%    0%    0°k 6°h

Ramp Up 5 5 5 0 0

P     5 5 5 0 0

Assets valuation method Market Value

Inflation 2. 50%

Salary Increases Varies by Entry age and Service
Payroll Growth 2. 75%

Investment rate of return 7. 15%, net of pension plan investment expenses, including inflation.
Retirement age The probabilities of Retirement are based on the 2017 CaIPERS Experience Study for the period

from 1997 to 2015

Mortality The probabilities of mortality are based on the 2017 CaIPERS Experience Study for the period

from 1997 to 2015. Pre- retirement and Post- retirement mortality rates include 15 years of

projected mortality improvement using 90% of scale MP- 2016 published by the Society of
Actuaries

78

137



2019 2020 2021 2022

766, 989    $       917, 576   $      1, 062, 215   $      1, 200, 271

766, 989)   917, 576) 1, 062, 215) 1, 200, 271)

6, 384, 728    $     6, 808, 162   $     7, 021, 189    $     8, 113, 507

12. 01%     13. 48%     15. 13%     14. 79%

79

138



CITY OF LATHROP

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE NET OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
AS OF JUNE 30, FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 1

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Total OPEB Liability
Service cost 228, 075   $     231, 377   $     238, 897   $     247, 448   $     254, 871

Interest on the total OPEB liability 366, 257 359, 416 378, 925 372, 499 388, 811

Differences between expected and actual experiences 430, 189)       134, 660)       94, 590

Changes in assumptions 42, 010 62,441)       

Benefit payments 299, 940) 314, 423) 324, 785) 404, 342) 370, 644)

Net change in total OPEB liability 93, 787) 276, 370 95, 936 215, 605 367, 628

Total OPEB liability- beginning 5, 154, 131 5, 060,344 5, 336, 714 5,432,650 5, 648, 255

Total OPEB liability- ending( a)       5, 060,344 5, 336, 714 5, 432, 650 5, 648,255 6, 015,883

Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Contributions- employer 471, 077 495, 719 459, 510 486, 383 435, 828

Netinvestmentincome 307, 578 276, 193 230, 777 151, 173 308, 766

Benefit payments 299, 940) 314, 423) 324, 785) 404, 342) 370, 644)

Other expense 4, 582)       886, 742

Administrative expense 1, 576)  1, 813)    825)  2, 094)  1, 642)

Net change in plan fiduciary net position 477, 139 451, 094 364, 677 231, 120 1, 259,050

Plan fiduciary net position- beginning 2, 984,872 3, 462,011 3, 973, 105 4, 277, 782 4, 508, 902

Plan fiduciary net position- ending( b) 3, 462, 011 3, 913, 105 4, 277, 782 4, 508,902 5, 767,952

Net OPEB Liability- ending( a)- b)       1, 598, 333   $   1, 423, 609 S 1, 154,868   $   1, 139, 353 3 247, 931

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total OPEB liability 68. 41%  73. 32%  78. 74°/  79. 83%  95. 88%

Covered- employee payroll 5, 982, 337   $   6, 377, 387   $   6, 358, 722   $   6, 549, 484   $   7, 838, 544

Net OPEB liability as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 26. 72%  22. 32%  18. 16%  17. 40%   3. 16%

1) Historical information is required only for the measurement periods for which GASB 75 is applicable. Fiscal Year 2018 was the first year of
implementation. Future years' information will be displayed up to 10 years as information becomes available.

0

139



CITY OF LATHROP

SCHEDULE OF OPEB CONTRIBUTIONS

AS OF JUNE 30, FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS( 1)

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Actuarially Determined Contribution 389, 509   $     359, 460   $     369, 969   $     361, 138   $     368, 885

Contribution in Relation to the Aduarially Determined Contributions 495, 719) 459, 510) 396, 085) 435, 828) 517, 163)

ContributionDeficiency( Excess)    106, 210)   $    ( 100, 050)   $     ( 26, 116)   $     ( 74, 690)   $    ( 148, 278)

Covered-employee payroll 6, 377, 387   $   6, 358, 722   $   6, 549, 484   $   7, 838, 544   $   9, 931, 244

Contributions as a percentage of covered- employee payroll 7. 77%   7. 23%   6. 05%   5. 56%   5. 21°/

1) Historical information is required only for the measurement periods for which GASB 75 is applicable. Fiscal Year 2018 was the first year of
implementation. Future years' information will be displayed up to 10 years as information becomes available.

Notes to Schedule:

Actuarial methods and assumptions used to set the actuarially determined contribution for fiscal year 2022 were from the June 30, 2021 actuarial

Methods and assumptions used to determine contributions:

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal
Asset Valuation Method Market value

Discount rate 6. 70%

Inflation 2. 50%

Salary increases 3. 00% annually
Mortality Rate*       Derived using CaIPERS' membership
Pre-Retirement Turnover'*     Derived using CaIPERS' membership
Healthcare Trend Rate Medical plan premiums are assumed to increase at somewhat higher rates than assumed in the

prior valuation, with the ultimate trend of 5. 0°/ per year.

81

140



CITY OF LATHROP

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES- BUDGET AND ACTUAL

GENERALFUND

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Variance with

Final eudget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive

Original Final Amounts Negative)

Revenues

Taxes and assessments 17, 230, 000    $ 22, 305, 922    $  31, 794, 406    $    9,488, 484

Licenses and permits 243, 820 243, 820 330, 991 87, 171

Intergovernmental 2, 020, 000 2, 079, 890 5, 813, 592 3, 733, 702

Charges for services 673, 308 673, 308 711, 444 38, 136

Use of money and property 232, 457 232, 457 2, 534, 483) 2, 766, 940)

Fines and forFeitures 120, 000 120, 000 99, 871 20, 129)

Miscellaneous 345, 875 929, 464 804, 209 125,255)

Total Revenues 20, 865, 460 26, 584, 861 37, 020, 030 10, 435, 169

Expenditures

Current:

General Government

City council 64, 340 97, 340 66, 405 30,935

City manager 929,708 1, 039, 165 850, 778 188, 387

City clerk 356, 202 366, 609 343, 495 23, 114

City attorney 766, 453 766, 453 712, 281 54, 172

Personnel 476, 477 476, 477 350, 441 126, 036

Central services 1, 025, 550 1, 025, 550 768, 606 256, 944

Finance 1, 780, 847 2, 231, 047 1, 766, 512 464, 535

Information technology 2, 085, 873 2, 349, 212 2, 266, 390 82, 822

Total General Government 7, 485, 450 8, 351, 853 7, 124, 908 1, 226,945

Public Safety
Administration 9, 174, 666 11, 575, 545 7, 056, 082 4, 519, 463

Community Services 737, 138 73, 400 66, 317 7, 083

Total Public Safety 9, 911, 804 11, 648, 945 7, 122, 399 4, 526, 546

Community Development

Planning 961, 290 2, 990, 148 1, 687, 299 1, 302, 849

Total Community Development 961, 290 2, 990, 148 1, 687, 299 1, 302, 849

Culture and Leisure

Administration 233, 154 775, 841 489, 566 286, 275

Senior center 165, 373 437, 833 339, 979 97, 854

Recreation programs 80, 833 104, 333 95, 826 8, 507

Special events 131, 582 138, 582 133, 031 5, 551

Day camp kid' s club 542, 258 529, 258 418, 671 110, 587

Youth and adult sports 218, 987 211, 987 130, 996 80, 991

Facilities and library 1, 152, 219 107, 925 47, 763 60, 162

Total Culture and Leisure 2, 524, 406 2, 305, 759 1, 655, 832 649, 927

See Notes to Required Supplementary Information.      82

141



CITY OF LATHROP

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES- BUDGET AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Variance with

Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive

Original Final Amounts Negative)

Public works

Administration 757, 474 862, 869 698, 742 164, 127

Utility engineering 263, 745 276,655 250, 329 26, 326

Total Public Works 1, 021, 219 1, 139, 524 949,071 190, 453

Capital outlay 408, 420)       1, 059, 223 1, 636, 478 577, 255)

Debt service:

Principal 305, 000 305, 000 305, 000

Lease principal 47, 316 47, 316)

Interest 74, 000 74, 000 73, 886 114

Total Debt Service 379, 000 379, 000 426, 202 47, 202)

Total Expenditures 21, 874, 749 27, 874, 452 20, 602, 189 7, 272, 263

Other Financing Sources( Uses):
Transfers in 6, 310, 070 6, 310, 070 6, 102, 401 207, 669)

Transfers out 6, 217, 245)      ( 9,410, 897) 9, 410, 896)  1

Lease proceeds 137, 918 137, 918)

Total Other Financing Sources( Uses)    92, 825       ( 3, 100, 827) 3, 170, 577)  345, 586)

Net Change in Fund Balances 916, 464)      ( 4, 390, 418) 13,247, 264 2, 817, 320

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year, as restated 39, 627, 048 39, 627, 048 39,627,048

Fund Balances, End of Year 38,710, 584    $ 35, 236, 630    $  52,874, 312    $    2, 817, 320

See Notes to Required Supplementary Information.      83

142



CITY OF LATHROP

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
DEVELOPER PROJECTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Variance with

Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive

Original Final Amounts Negative)

Revenues

Use of money and property 23,538     $ 23, 538

Developer participation 2,276, 343 12, 416, 084 9, 535, 249 2, 880, 535)

Total Revenues 2, 276, 343 12, 416, 084 9, 558, 787 2, 857, 297)

Other Financing Sources( Uses):
Transfers out 2, 277,983)     ( 12, 417,724)     ( 10, 150, 279)  2, 267, 445

Total Other Financing Sources( Uses)    2, 277, 983)     ( 12, 417, 724)     ( 10, 150, 279)  2, 267, 445

Net Change in Fund Balances 1, 640)   1, 640) 591, 492)    589, 852)

Fund Balances, Beginning ofYear 1, 032, 103 1, 032, 103 1, 032, 103

Fund Balances, End of Year 1, 030, 463     $ 7, 030, 463     $   440, 611     $      ( 589, 852)

See Notes to Required Supplementary Information.   84

143



CITY OF LATHROP

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES- BUDGET AND ACTUAL
CAPITAL FACILITY FEES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Variance with

Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive

Original Final Amounts Negative)

Revenues

Taxes and assessments 28, 389, 170     $    28,389, 170     $    21, 211, 818     $    ( 7, 177, 352)

Use of money and property 162, 902 162, 902

Total Revenues 28, 389, 170 28, 389, 170 21, 374, 720 7, 014, 450)

Expenditures

Current:

Public works 243, 763 243, 763 243, 763

Total Expenditures 243, 763 243, 763 243, 763

Other Financing Sources( Uses)
Transfers out 5,434,580)  7, 608, 980)  7, 608, 980)    

Total Other Financing Sources( Uses)    5,434, 580)  7, 608, 980)  7, 608, 980)     

Net Change in Fund Balances 22, 710, 827 20, 536, 427 13, 521, 977 7, 014, 450)

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 41, 492, 902 41, 492, 902 41, 492, 902

Fund Balances, End of Year 64, 203, 729     $    62, 029, 329     $    55, 014,879     $    ( 7, 014, 450)

See Notes to Required Supplementary Informatio.   85

144



CITY OF LATHROP

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES- BUDGET AND ACTUAL
BUILDING SAFETY& INSPECTION

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Variance with

Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive

Original Final Amounts Negative)

Revenues

Licenses and permits 2, 314, 342     $     2, 314,342     $       2, 314, 342)

Charges for services 863, 059 863, 059 7, 466, 065 6, 603, 006

Use of money and property 37, 419 37, 419

Miscellaneous 14, 221 14,221

Total Revenues 3, 177, 401 3, 177,401 7, 517, 705 4, 340, 304

Expenditures

Current:

Public works 2, 287, 030 3, 069, 258 2, 369, 205 700,053

Total Expenditures 2, 287, 030 3, 069, 258 2, 369, 205 700,053

Other Financing( Uses)
Transfers out 404, 270)    404, 270)    404, 270)    

Total Other Financing( Uses) 404, 270)    404,270)    404, 270)    

Net Change in Fund Balances 486, 101 296, 127)  4, 744, 230 5, 040, 357

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 4, 247, 249 4, 247, 249 4, 247, 249

Fund Balances, End of Year 4, 733, 350     $     3, 951, 122     $     8, 991, 479     $     5, 040, 357

See Notes to Required Supplementary Information.   gg

145



CITY OF LATHROP

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES- BUDGET AND ACTUAL

DEVELOPMENT ENGINEERING

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Variance with

Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive

Original Final Amounts Negative)

Revenues

Chargesforservices 1, 325, 104     $     1, 485, 174     $     5, 681, 724     $     4, 196, 550

Use of money and property 32, 257 32, 257

Miscellaneous 102, 475 102, 475

Total Revenues 1, 325, 104 1, 485, 174 5, 816, 456 4, 331, 282

Expenditures

Current:

Publicworks 2, 422, 842 4, 512, 432 2, 329, 580 2, 182, 852

Total Expenditures 2, 425, 842 4,515, 432 2, 330, 662 2, 184,770

Net Change in Fund Balances 1, 100, 738)  3, 030,258)  3, 485, 794 6, 516, 052

Fund Balances, Beginning ofYear 4, 591, 332 4, 591, 332 4, 591, 332

Fund Balances, End of Year 3, 490,594     $     1, 561, 074     $     8, 077, 126     $     6, 516, 052

See Notes to Required Supplementary Information.   87

146



CITY OF LATHROP

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
DEVELOPER DEPOSITS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Variance with

Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive

Original Final Amounts Negative)

Revenues

Use of money and property 33, 500     $ 33, 500     $  6, 204     $ 27, 296)

Developerparticipation 1, 044, 916 1, 284, 902 1, 086, 202 198, 700)

Total Revenues 1, 078,416 1, 318, 402 1, 092,406 225, 996)

Expenditures

Current:

Publicworks 918,416 1, 204, 542 861, 155 343, 387

Debt service:

Interest and fiscal charges 160, 000 160, 000 159, 854 146

Total Expenditures 1, 078,416 1, 364, 542 1, 021, 009 343, 533

Net Change in Fund Balances 46, 140)      71, 397 117, 537

Fund Balances( Deficits), Beginning of Year 603, 670)    603, 670)    603, 670)    

Fund Balances( Deficits), End of Year 603, 670)    $      ( 649, 810)    $      ( 532, 273)    $       117,537

See Notes to Required Supplementary Information.   g

147



CITY OF LATHROP

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

The City establishes annual budgets for the General and certain Special Revenue Funds, which are
adopted on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America. The budgets for the General and certain Special Revenue Funds are the only legally
adopted budgets. Budgets for the Capital Project Funds are used for management and control purposes
only. All appropriations remaining at fiscal year- end lapse.  Budgeted amounts are reflected after all

applicable amendments and revisions.

The legal level of control ( level at which expenditures may not legally exceed budget appropriations) is
at the department level.  If the expenditures exceed the appropriations,  the City Manager is
authorized to transfer budgeted amounts between the line items within any department or between
divisions within a department.

During the fiscal year,  the City made a number of supplemental budget amendments totaling
31, 192, 901 in revenues and $ 52, 333, 139 in expenditures.

Adopted Budgets

For the fiscal year ending June 30,  2022,  the Historic Lathrop Loan Program  ( HLLP),  the

Central Lathrop Specific Plan  ( CLSP)  Services CFD,  the North Lathrop Transportation,  the

Lathrop Land Acquisitions, the DWR Grant— ULOP Project, The Stewart Economic Dev Fee 80% and

the TOT Trust Special Revenue Funds did not adopt an annual budget.

89

148



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

90

149



SUPPLEMENTALINFORMATION

91

150



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

92

151



GENERALFUND

The general Fund is the City' s primary Operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the
general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund. The General Fund is
comprised of the following:

GENERAL PURPOSE FUND

This fund accounts for all financial resources except those to be accounted for in another fund. It is the

general operating fund of the City.

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FUND

To account for small business assistance grants approved by Council. The fund was reactivated in fiscal
year 2020 due to the impacts of COVID- 19.

MEASURE C ESSENTIAL CITY SERVICES FUND

To account for revenue and expenditures for the city' s Measure C Essential City Services portion.

93

152



CITY OF LATHROP

GENERALFUND

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

JUNE 30, 2022

General Economic

Purpose Fund Development Measure C Totals

Assets:

Cash and investments 45, 319, 873     $ 438, 663     $      3, 466, 770     $     49, 225, 306

Receivables:

Accounts 2, 853, 657 233 2, 173, 690 5, 027, 580

Accrued interest 23, 712 2, 370 26, 082

Due from other funds 28, 058 28, 058

Advances to other funds 2, 405, 864 2, 405, 864

Total Assets 50, 631, 164     $ 438, 896     $      5, 642, 830     $     56, 712, 890

Liabilities and Fund Balances

Liabilities:

Accounts payable 1, 516, 020     $ 185, 683     $      1, 701, 703

Accrued liabilities 795,214 795, 214

Unearned revenues 709, 697 709, 697

Deposits payable 631, 964 631, 964

Total Liabilities 3, 652, 895 185, 683 3, 838, 578

Fund Balances:

Nonspendable 2, 405, 864 2, 405, 864

Committed 38, 867, 863 438, 896 5, 457, 147 44, 763, 906

Unassigned 5, 704, 542 5, 704, 542

Total Fund Balances 46, 978, 269 438, 896 5,457, 147 52, 874, 312

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances       $     50, 631, 164     $ 438, 896     $      5, 642, 830     $     56, 712, 890

94

153



CITY OF LATHROP

GENERALFUND

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES,

EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

General Purpose Economic

Fund Deveiopment Measure C Totals

Revenues:

Taxes and assessments 20, 918, 484   $ 10, 875, 922   $      31, 794, 406

Licenses and permits 330, 991 330, 991

Intergovernmental 5, 813, 592 5, 813, 592

Charges for services 711, 444 711, 444

Use of money and property 2, 549, 445)       1, 446 13, 516 2, 534, 483)

Fines and forfeitures 99, 871 99, 871

Miscellaneous 804, 209 804, 209

Total Revenues 26, 129, 146 1, 446 10, 889, 438 37, 020, 030

Expenditures:

Current:

General government 7, 124, 908 7, 124, 908

Public safety 5, 191, 407 1, 930, 992 7, 122, 399

Community development 1, 687, 299 1, 687,299
Culture and leisure 1, 655, 832 1, 655, 832

Public works 949, 071 949, 071

Capital outlay 1, 563, 462 73, 016 1, 636, 478

Debt service:

Principal retirement 305, 000 305, 000

Lease principal retirement 47, 316 47, 316

Interest and fiscal charges 73, 886 73, 886

Total Expenditures 78, 598, 181 2, 004, 008 20, 602, 189

Excess( Deficiency) of Revenues
Over( Under) Expenditures 7, 530, 965 1, 446 8, 885, 430 16, 417, 841

Other Financing Sources( Uses):
Transfers in 6, 102, 401 6, 102, 401

Transfers out 3, 232, 765)    6, 178, 131
Lease proceeds 137, g g

9

g, g9g

Total Other Financing Sources
Uses)      3, 007, 554 6, 178, 131)  3, 170, 577)

Net Change in Fund Balances 10, 538, 519 1, 446 2, 707, 299 13, 247, 264

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 36, 439, 750 437,450 2, 749, 848 39, 627, 048

Fund Balances, End of Year 46,978, 269   $ 438, 896   $       5, 457, 147   $      52, 874, 312

95

154



CITY OF LATHROP

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES- BUDGET AND ACTUAL

GENERAL PURPOSE FUND

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Variance with

Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive

Original Final Amounts Negative)

Revenues

Taxes and assessments 11, 230,000    $ 11, 430,000    $  20,918, 484    $    9, 488, 484

Licenses and permits 243, 820 243, 820 330, 991 87, 171

Intergovernmental 2, 020, 000 2, 079, 890 5, 813, 592 3,733, 702

Charges for services 673,308 673, 308 711, 444 38, 136

Use of money and property 232, 457 232, 457 2, 549, 445) 2, 781, 902)

Fines and forfeitures 120, 000 120, 000 99, 871 20, 129)

Miscellaneous 345, 875 929, 464 804, 209 125, 255)

Total Revenues 14, 865, 460 15, 708, 939 26, 129,146 10,420, 207

Expenditures

Current:

General Government

City council 64, 340 97, 340 66, 405 30, 935

City manager 929, 708 1, 039, 165 850, 778 188, 387

City clerk 356, 202 366, 609 343, 495 23, 114

City attorney 766, 453 766, 453 712, 281 54, 172

Personnel 476, 477 476, 477 350, 441 126, 036

Central services 1, 025, 550 1, 025, 550 768, 606 256,944

Finance 1, 780, 847 2, 231, 047 1, 766, 512 464, 535

Information technology 2, 085, 873 2, 349, 212 2, 266, 390 82, 822

Total General Government 7, 485, 450 8, 351, 853 7, 124, 908 1, 226, 945

Public Safety
Administration 6, 635, 206 8, 782, 184 5, 125, 090 3, 657, 094

Community services 737, 138 73, 400 66, 317 7, 083

Total Public Safety 7, 372, 344 8, 855, 584 5, 191, 407 3, 664, 177

Community Development

Planning 961, 290 2, 990, 148 1, 687, 299 1, 302, 849

Total Community Development 961, 290 2, 990, 148 1, 687, 299 1, 302, 849

Culture and Leisure

Administration 233, 154 775, 841 489, 566 286, 275

Senior center 165, 373 437, 833 339, 979 97,854

Recreation programs 80, 833 104, 333 95, 826 8, 507

Special events 131, 582 138, 582 133, 031 5, 551

Day camp kid' s club 542, 258 529, 258 418, 671 110, 587

Youth and adult sports 218, 987 211, 987 130, 996 80, 991

Facilities and library 1, 152, 219 107, 925 47, 763 60, 162

Total Culture and Leisure 2, 524, 406 2, 305, 759 1, 655, 832 649, 927

96

155



CITY OF LATHROP

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES- BUDGET AND ACTUAL

GENERAL PURPOSE FUND

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Variance with

Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive

Original Final Amounts Negative)

Public works

Administration 757, 474 862, 869 698, 742 164, 127

Utility engineering 263, 745 276, 655 250, 329 26, 326

Total Public Works 1, 021, 219 1, 139, 524 949, 071 190, 453

Capital outlay 408, 420) 859, 223 1, 563, 462 704, 239)

Debt service:

Principal 305, 000 305, 000 305, 000

Interest 74, 000 74, 000 73, 886 114

Lease principal 47, 316 47, 316)

Total Debt Service 379, 000 379, 000 426, 202 47, 202)

Total Expenditures 19, 335, 289 24, 881, 091 18, 598, 181 6, 282, 910

Other Financing Sources( Uses):
Transfers in 6, 310, 070 6, 310, 070 6, 102, 401 207, 669)

Transfers out 934, 765)      ( 3, 232, 765) 3, 232, 765)   

Lease proceeds 137, 918 137, 918

Total Other Financing Sources( Uses) 5, 375, 305 3, 077, 305 3, 007, 554 69,751)

Net Change in Fund Balances 905, 476       ( 6, 094, 847) 10, 538, 519 4, 067, 546

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year, as restated 36, 439, 750 36,439, 750 36, 439, 750

Fund Balances, End of Year 37, 345, 226    $ 30, 344, 903    $  46, 978, 269    $    4,067, 546

97

156



CITY OF LATHROP

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES- BUDGET AND ACTUAL
MEASURE C

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Variance with

Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive

Original Final Amounts Negative)
Revenues

Taxes and assessments 6, 000, 000    $ 10, 875, 922    $  10,875,922    $     
Use of money and property 13, 516 13, 516

Total Revenues 6, 000, 000 10, 875, 922 10, 889,438 13, 516

Expenditures

Current:

General Government

Public Safety
Administration 2, 539, 460 2, 793, 361 1, 930, 992 862, 369

Total Public Safety 2, 539, 460 2, 793, 361 1, 930, 992 862, 369

Capital outlay 200, 000 73,016 126, 984

Total Expenditures 2, 539, 460 2, 993, 361 2, 004, 008 989, 353

Other Financing Sources( Uses):
Transfers out 5, 282, 480)      ( 6, 178, 132) 6, 178, 131)  1

Total Other Financing Sources( Uses) 5, 282, 480)      ( 6, 178, 132) 6, 178, 131)  1

Net Change in Fund Balances 1, 821, 940)       1, 704, 429 2, 707, 299 975, 836)

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 2, 749, 848 2, 749, 848 2,749,848

Fund Balances, End of Year 927, 908    $  4, 454, 277    $    5, 457, 147    $     ( 975,836)

98

157



NON - MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS:

These funds account for the proceeds derived from specific revenue sources that are legally restricted to
expenditures for specified purposes.

LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE FUND

To account for revenues received and expenditures spent associated with specific park maintenance and
operations of the Woodfield Landscape, Stonebridge Landscape and Mossdale Landscape Districts.

GAS TAX FUND

To account for revenues and expenditures apportioned to the City under the Streets and Highway Code,
Sections 2105, 2106, 2107, and 2107. 5 of the State of California.  Expenditures for administration,
maintenance, and construction must be street related.

TRAFFIC SAFETY FUND

To account for the fines and forfeitures received under Section 1463 of the Penal Code. These funds are
restricted for the use of official traffic control devices and for some street construction purposes.

LOCAL STREET FUND

To account for revenues and expenditures for the City' s street division.

PUBLIC NUISANCE FUND

To account for revenues and expenditures for code enforcement activities.

MEASURE K FUND

To account for revenues generated from a 2- cent sales tax for local street repairs.  These funds are

restricted for maintenance and construction on street- related projects.

TRANSIT LTF FUND

To account for local transportation funds received for transit purposes from the San Joaquin County
Council of Governments.

STREETS AND ROADS FUND

To account for local transportation funds received for street and road purposes from the
San Joaquin County Council of Governments.

FEDERAL GRANT FUND

To account for federal grant expenditures and activity.

HISTORIC LATHROP LOAN PROGRAM ( HLLP) FUND

To account for building permit loans granted to Historic Lathrop residences.

99

158



NON - MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS ( Continued)

STORM DRAIN FUND

To account for revenues and expenditures re ated to the maintenance and operations of storm drains and
improvements within the created district.

STREET LIGHT FUND

To account for revenues and expenditures associated with the maintenance and operations of the

street lighting within the area known as City Zone 2, which is in the City Wide Landscaping and Lighting
Assessment District.

AB939 RECYCLING FUND

To account for the financial resources associated with the preparation, implementation, and administration
of the City' s Integrated Solid Waste Management Plan in accordance with A6939.

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT( CDBG) FUND

To account for the annual federal grant that provides for development of viable urban communities.

SCHOLARSHIP FUND

To account for the revenues provided by businesses/ organizations to provide assistance with tuition of
qualified parks and recreation participants.

COPS FUND

To account for local law enforcement grants funded by the office of Community Oriented Policing
Services ( COPS).

OFFICE OF TRAFFIC SAFETY FUND

To account for grants received from the Office of Traffic Safety to be used to conduct a seat belt
compliance campaign.

RTIF SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY FUND

To account for San Joaquin County' s 10% share of Regional Traffic Impact Fees collected from builders.

RTIF LATHROP LOCAL WEST FUND

To account for the City' s 75% share of Regional Traffic Impact Fees collected from builders on the West
side.

RTIF SJCOG FUND

To account for San Joaquin Council of GovernmenYs 15% share of Regional Traffic Impact Fees
collected from builders.

RTIF LATHROP LOCAL EAST FUND

To account for the City's 75% share of Regional Traffic Impact Fees collected from builders on the East
side.

100

159



NON - MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS ( Continued)

CENTRAL LATHROP SPECIFIC PLAN ( CLSP) SERVICES CFD FUND

To account for revenues and expenditures associated with the CLSP Community Facility District
2006- 2.

LATHROP MANTECA FIRE DISTRICT MEASURE C FUND

To account for revenues and expenditures associated with the sales tax collections specific from

Measure C.

STATE GRANTS FUND

To account for revenues and expenditures associated with state grants.

NORTH LATHROP TRANSPORTATION CFF FUND

To account for capital facility fees collected for North Lathrop area.

STEWART ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 80% CFF FUND

To account for capital facility fees,  collected to support development both on and off the

Stewert Tract, that will provide to the City and its citizens.

CITYWIDE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 20% CFF FUND

To account for capital facility fees,  collected to support development both on and off the

Stewert Tract, that will provide to the City and its citizens.

RIVER ISLANDS CFD 2013- 1 FUND

To account for revenue and expenditures related to the maintenance of the River Island community.

LATHROP LAND ACQUISITIONS FUND

To account for revenues and expenditures associated with the CLSP Community Facilities District
2006- 1.

URBAN LEVEL OF FLOOD PROTECTION RECLAMATION DISTRICT ( ULOP RD- 17) LEVEE IMPACT

FUND

To account for capital facility fees collected for the Urban Level of Flood Protection plan in the
Reclamation District( RD) 17.

DEPARTMENT OF WATER RESOURCES   ( DWR)   GRANT  —   URBAN LEVEL OF FLOOD

PROTECTION ( ULOP) PROJECT FUND

To account for revenues and expenditures associated with the Urban Level of Flood Protection plan.

CLSP OFF- SITE ROADWAY IMPROVEMENTS FUND

To account for improvements in the Central Lathrop Development.

101

160



NON - MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SOUTH LATHROP CFD 2019- 1 FUND

To account for revenue and expenditures related to the maintenance of South Lathrop.

CENTRAL LATHROP CFD 2019- 2 FUND

To account for revenue and expenditures related to the maintenance of Central Lathrop.

TOT TRUST FUND

To account for 1% of the 9% TOT from the City as a whole, to help finance regional infrastructure.

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

Capital Projects Funds are utilized to account for resources used for the acquisition and construction

of capital facilities by the City, with the exception of those assets financed by proprietary funds.

GENRAL CIP PROJECTS FUND

To account for the expenditure of funds for projects funded from the General Fund.

STORM DRAIN FUND

To account for expenditures for storm drain capital projects.

PARK IN- LIEU FUND

To account for revenues and expenditures which can legally be made under the Quimby Act. The
revenue is collected from residential developers to offset the impact on parks and can only be used for
new park development.

102

161



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

103

162



CITY OF LATHROP

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2022

Special Revenue Funds

Landscape

Maintenance Gas Tax Traffic Safety Local Street
Assets:

Pooled cash and investments 1, 367, 664    $       441, 501    $       108,885    $       836, 090
Receivables:

Accounts 108, 100 3,537 334
Notes and loans

Accrued interest 669 473 57 477

Total Assets 1, 368, 333    $       550, 074    $       112, 479    $       836, 901

Liabilities and Fund Balances

Liabilities:

Accounts payable 275, 287    $       54, 769

Deposits payable
Due to other funds

Total Liabilities 275, 287 54, 769

Fund Balances:

Restricted 1, 093, 046 550, 074 112, 479 782, 132

Unassigned

Total Fund Balances 1, 093, 046 550, 074 112, 479 782, 132

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 1, 368, 333    $       550, 074    $       112, 479    $       836, 901

104

163



CITY OF LATHROP

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNOS

JUNE 30, 2022 CONTINUED)

Speciai Revenue Funds

Public Streets and

Nuisance Measure K Transit LTF Roads
Assets:

Pooled cash and investments 10, 301    $       463, 338    $      146, 382

Receivables:

Accounts 2, 019 168, 081 201, 577 1, 180, 161

Notes and loans

Accrued interest 5 214 100

TotalAssets 72, 325    $       631, 633    $       201, 577    $     1, 326, 643

Liabilities and Fund Balances

Liabilities:

Accounts payable

Deposits payable
Due to other funds

Total Liabilities

Fund Balances:

Restricted 12, 325 631, 633 201, 577 1, 326, 643
Unassigned

Total Fund Balances 12, 325 631, 633 201, 577 1, 326, 643

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 12, 325    $       631, 633    $       201, 577    $     1, 326, 643

105

164



CITY OF LATHROP

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2022

Special Revenue Funds

Historic

Lathrop Loan
Federal Grant Program( HLLP)     Storm Drain Street Light

Assets:

Pooled cash and investments 893, 990    $       232, 063    $       353, 749    $     1, 630, 225

Receivables:

Accounts 60, 931 16, 243

Notes and loans 20,350

Accrued interest 124 188 893

Total Assets 954, 921    $       252, 537    $       353, 937    $     1, 647, 361

Liabilities and Fund Balances

Liabilities:

Accounts payable 893, 990    $      21, 924    $ 84, 569

Deposits payable
Due to other funds

Total Liabilities 893, 990 21, 924 84,569

Fund Balances:

Restricted 60, 931 252, 537 332, 013 1, 562, 792

Unassigned

Total Fund Balances 60, 931 252, 537 332, 013 1, 562, 792

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 954, 921    $       252, 537    $       353, 937    $     1, 647, 361

106

165



CITY OF LATHROP

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2022 CONTINUED)

Special Revenue Funds

Community
AB939 Development Scholarship

Recycling Block Grant Fund COPS
Assets:

Pooled cash and investments 1, 110, 949    $ 2, 178    $ 19, 190    $       301, 587

Receivables:

Accounts 22, 191 2, 543

Notes and loans

Accrued interest 567 1 10

Total Assets 1, 133, 707    $ 2, 179    $ 21, 743    $       301, 587

Liabilities and Fund Balances

Liabilities:

Accounts payable 2, 272    $ 5,000    $      4, 192

Deposits payable
Due to other funds

Total Liabilities 2, 272 5, 000 4, 192

Fund Balances:

Restricted 1, 131, 435 21, 743 297,395

Unassigned 2, 821)   

Totai Fund Balances 1, 131, 435 2, 821)     21, 743 297,395

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 1, 133, 707    $ 2, 179    $ 21, 743    $       301, 587

107

166



CITY OF LATHROP

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2022

Special Revenue Funds

Office of Traffic RTIF San RTIF Lathrop
and Safety Joaquin County Local West RTIF SJCOG

Assets:

Pooled cash and investments 276, 979    $    11, 427, 050    $       415, 540

Receivables:

Accounts

Notes and loans

Accrued interest 107 5, 776 160

Total Assets 277, 086    $    11, 432, 826    $       415,700

Liabilities and Fund Balances

Liabilities:

Accounts payable 277, 086    $ 2, 716    $       415, 700

Deposits payable
Due to other funds

Total Liabilities 277, 086 2, 716 415, 700

Fund Balances:

Restricted 11, 430, 110

Unassigned

Total Fund Balances 11, 430, 110

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 277,086    $    11, 432, 826    $       475, 700

108

167



CITY OF LATHROP

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2022 CONTINUED)

Special Revenue Funds

Central Lathrop
Specific Plan

RTIF Lathrop     ( CLSP) Services LMFD Measure

Local East CFD C State Grants
Assets:

Pooled cash and investments 2, 616, 618    $       1, 175, 042    $      

Receivables:

Accounts 28, 058
Notes and loans

Accrued interest 1, 390 108

Total Assets 2, 618, 008    $       1, 175, 150    $ 28,058

Liabilities and Fund Balances

Liabilities:

Accounts payable

Deposits payable
Due to other funds 28, 058

Total Liabilities 28, 058

Fund Balances:

Restricted 2, 618, 008 1, 175, 150

Unassigned

Total Fund Balances 2, 618, 008 1, 175, 150

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 2, 618, 008    $       1, 175, 150    $ 28,058

109

168



CITY OF LATHROP

COMBINWG BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2022

Special Revenue Funds

Citywide

North Lathrop Economic Dev River Islands Lathrop Land
Transportation Fee 20%  CFD 2013- 1 Acquisitions

Assets:

Pooled cash and investments 11, 431    $     2, 081, 640    $       119, 770    $ 13, 937
Receivables:

Accounts

Notes and loans

Accrued interest 6 1, 067 519

Total Assets 11, 437    $     2, 082, 707    $       120, 289    $ 13, 937

Liabilities and Fund Balances

Liabilities:

Accounts payable g

Deposits payable 12, 855
Due to other funds

Total Liabilities 12, 863

Fund Balances:

Restricted 11, 437 2, 082, 707 120, 289 1, 074

Unassigned

Total Fund Balances 11, 437 2, 082, 707 120, 289 1, 074

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 11, 437    $     2, 082, 707    $       120, 289    $ 13, 937

110

169



CITY OF LATHROP

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2022
CONTINUED)

Special Revenue Funds

CLSP Off-Site

ULOP RD- 17 DWR Grant- Roadway South Lathrop
Levee Impact ULOP Project Improvement CFD 2019- 1

Assets:

Pooled cash and investments 317, 509    $      3    $       124, 555    $     1, 164, 067
Receivables:

Accounts 62,995
Notes and loans

Accrued interest 156 62 588

Total Assets 317, 665    $ 62, 998    $       124, 617    $     1, 164, 655

Liabilities and Fund Balances

Liabilities:

Accounts payable 317, 665    $       581, 433    $   164    $ 15, 367
Deposits payable
Due to other funds

Total Liabilities 317, 665 581, 433 164 15,367

Fund Balances:

Restricted 124, 453 1, 149, 288
Unassigned 518,435)   

Total Fund Balances 518, 435)    124, 453 1, 149, 288

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 317, 665    $ 62, 998    $       124, 617    $     1, 164, 655

111

170



CITY OF LATHROP

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2022

Special Revenue Funds

Stewart

Central Lathrop Economic Dev Gateway
CFD 2019- 2 Fee 80%   TOT Trust Business Park

Assets:

Pooled cash and investments 246, 277    $       182, 188    $     1, 213, 533    $ 51, 843
Receivables:

Accounts 11, 585 13, 041
Notes and loans

Accrued interest 114 85 637 21

Total Assets 257, 976    $       182, 273    $     1, 227, 211    $ 51, 864

Liabilities and Fund Balances

Liabilities:

Accounts payable 27,366    $      25
Deposits payable 176, 000
Due to other funds

Total Liabilities 27, 366 176, 000 25

Fund Balances:

Restricted 230, 610 6, 273 1, 227, 211 51, 839
Unassigned

Total Fund Balances 230, 610 6, 273 1, 227, 211 51, 839

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 257, 976    $       182, 273    $     1, 227, 211    $ 51, 864

112

171



CITY OF LATHROP

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2022

Capital Projects

Funds Capital Project Funds

Streets and
Total

Governmental

Roads Storm Drain Park in Lieu Funds
Assets:

Pooled cash and investments 12, 051, 906     $       640, 828    $     1, 147, 627    $    43, 196, 435

Receivables:

Accounts 51 1, 881, 447

Notes and loans 20, 350

Accrued interest 6, 879 340 540 22, 333

Total Assets 12, 058, 836     $       641, 168    $     1, 148, 167    $    45, 120, 565

Liabilities and Fund Balances

Liabilities:

Accounts payable 1, 025, 556     $       4,005, 089

Deposits payable 188, 855

Due to other funds 28, 058

Total Liabilities 1, 025, 556 4, 222, 002

Fund Balances:

Restricted 11, 033, 280 641, 168 1, 148, 167 41, 419, 819

Unassigned 521, 256)

Total Fund Balances 11, 033, 280 641, 168 1, 148, 167 40, 898, 563

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 12, 058, 836     $       641, 168    $     1, 148, 167    $    45, 120, 565

113

172



CITY OF LATHROP

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES,

EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Special Revenue Funds

Landscape

Maintenance Gas Tax Traffic Safety Local Street

Revenues:

Taxes and assessments 2,888, 936   $       

Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental 1, 249, 587

Use of money and property 9, 335 2, 939 333 2, 143

Fines and forfeitures 39, 240

Miscellaneous 54, 681

Total Revenues 2, 898, 271 1, 252, 526 39, 573 56, 824

Expenditures:

Current:

General government
Public safety 9, 596

Community development
Culture and leisure 1, 077, 118

Public works 2, 175, 466

Capital outlay 75, 758

Total Expenditures 2, 251, 224 9, 596 1, 077, 118

Excess( Deficiency) of Revenues
Over( Under) Expenditures 647, 047 1, 252, 526 29, 977 1, 020, 294)

Other Financing Sources( Uses):
Transfers in 48, 014 1, 521, 851

Transfers out 335, 440) 1, 333, 970)     2, 440)   169, 220)

Total Other Financing Sources
Uses)  287, 426) 1, 333, 970)     2, 440)  1, 352, 631

Net Change in Fund Balances 359, 621 81, 444)     27, 537 332, 337

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 733, 425 631, 518 84, 942 449, 795

Fund Balances, End of Year 1, 093, 046   $       550, 074   $       112, 479   $       782, 132

114

173



CITY OF LATHROP

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES,

EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 CONTINUED)

Special Revenue Funds

Streets and

Public Nuisance Measure K Transit LTF Roads

Revenues:

Taxes and assessments g

Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental 720, 588 201, 577 1, 180, 161

Use of money and property 32 1, 647 600

Fines and forfeitures

Miscellaneous

Total Revenues 32 722, 235 201, 577 1, 180, 761

Expenditures:

Current:

General government
Public safety
Community development
Culture and leisure

Public works

Capital outlay

Total Expenditures

Excess( Deficiency) of Revenues
Over( Under) Expenditures 32 722, 235 201, 577 1, 180, 761

Other Financing Sources( Uses):
Transfers in

Transfers out 717, 616)   41, 289)

Total Other Financing Sources
Uses)  717, 616)   41, 289)

Net Change in Fund Balances 32 4, 619 201, 577 1, 139, 472

Fund Balances, Beginning ofYear 12, 293 627, 014 187, 171

Fund Balances, End of Year 12, 325   $       631, 633   $       201, 577   $     1, 326, 643

115

174



CITY OF LATHROP

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES,

EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Special Revenue Funds

Historic Lathrop
Loan Program

Federal Grant HLLP)   Storm Drain Street Light
Revenues:

Taxes and assessments

Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental 695, 355

Use of money and property 766 1, 058 5, 134

Fines and forfeitures 352, 535 1, 096, 970
Miscellaneous 3, 365 34, 059

Total Revenues 695, 355 766 356, 958 1, 136, 163

Expenditures:

Current:

General government
Public safety 150, 935

Community development
Culture and leisure 595, 415

Public works 346, 388 876, 985

Capital outlay

Total Expenditures 595, 415 346, 388 1, 027, 920

Excess( Deficiency) of Revenues
Over( Under) Expenditures 99, 940 766 10, 570 108, 243

Other Financing Sources( Uses):
Transfers in 50, 000 31, 900

Transfers out 371, 426)   67, 090)   139, 590)

Total Other Financing Sources
Uses)  371, 426)   17, 090)   107, 690)

Net Change in Fund Balances 271, 486) 766 6, 520) 553

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 332, 417 251, 771 338, 533 1, 562, 239

Fund Balances, End of Year 60, 931    $       252, 537   $       332, 013   $     1, 562, 792

116

175



CITY OF LATHROP

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES,

EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 CONTINUED)

Special Revenue Funds

Community
A6939 Development Scholarship

Recycling Block Grant Fund COPS
Revenues:

Taxes and assessments 219, 744   $       

Licenses and permits 55, 475

Intergovernmental 7, 390 27, 434 5, 766 161, 285
Use of money and property 3, 369 17 60 849
Fines and forfeitures

Miscellaneous 3, 699

Total Revenues 285, 978 27, 451 9, 525 162, 734

Expenditures:

Current:

General government
Public safety gg 722

Community development 34, 504

Culture and leisure 77, 108

Public works

Capital outlay

Total Expenditures 77, 108 34, 504 98, 722

Excess( Deficiency) of Revenues
Over( Under) Expenditures 208, 870 7, 053)      9, 525 63, 412

Other Financing Sources( Uses):
Transfers in

Transfers out 14, 560)   2, 306)   

Total Other Financing Sources
Uses)   14, 560)   2, 306)   

Net Change in Fund Balances 194, 310 7, 053)      7, 219 63, 412

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 937, 125 4, 232 14, 524 233, 983

Fund Balances, End of Year 1, 131, 435   $ 2,827)   $ 27, 743   $       297, 395

117

176



CITY OF LATHROP

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES,

EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Special Revenue Funds

Office of Traffic RTIF San RTIF Lathrop
and Safety Joaquin County Local West RTIF SJCOG

Revenues:

Taxes and assessments 498, 404   $     3, 345, 663   $       747, 701

Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental 3, 994

Use of money and property 627 32, 971 947

Fines and forfeitures

Miscellaneous

Total Revenues 3, 994 499, 031 3, 378, 634 748, 648

Expenditures:

Current:

General government
Public safety 12, 002

Community development
Culture and leisure

Publicworks 499, 032 14, 127 748, 648

Capital outlay

Total Expenditures 12, 002 499, 032 14, 127 748, 648

Excess( Deficiency) of Revenues
Over( Under) Expenditures 8, 008)  1)  3,364,507

Other Financing Sources( Uses):
Transfers in

Transfers out

Total Other Financing Sources
Uses)  

Net Change in Fund Balances 8, 008)  1)  3, 364, 507

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 8, 008 1 8, 065,603

Fund Balances, End of Year 11, 430,110   $       

118

177



CITY OF LATHROP

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 CONTINUED)

Special Revenue Funds

Central Lathrop
Specific Plan

RTIF Lathrop      ( CLSP) Services LMFD Measure
Local East CFD C State Grants

Revenues:

Taxes and assessments 317,493   $ 

Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental

28, 058
Use of money and property 8, 295 642
Fines and forfeitures

Miscellaneous

Total Revenues 325, 788 642 28, 058

Expenditures:

Current:

General government
Public safety 4, 159, 199

Community development
Culture and leisure

Public works 3, 985

Capital outlay

Total Expenditures 3, 985 4, 159, 199

Excess( Deficiency) of Revenues
Over( Under) Expenditures 321, 803 4, 158, 557)     28, 058

Other Financing Sources( Uses):
Transfers in

4, 350, 369
Transfers out

56, 398)

Total Other Financing Sources
Uses) 4, 350, 369 56, 398)

Net Change in Fund Balances 321, 803 191, 812 28, 340)

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 2, 296, 205 983, 338 28, 340

Fund Balances, End of Year 2, 618, 008   $ 1, 175, 150   $       

119

178



CITY OF LATHROP

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES,

EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Special Revenue Funds

Citywide

North Lathrop Economic Dev River Islands Lathrop Land
Transportation Fee 20% CFD 2013- 1 Acquisitions

Revenues:

Taxes and assessments 604, 000   $      673, 572   $       

Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental

Use of money and property 37 6, 119 2, 217 46

Fines and forfeitures

Miscellaneous 299, 684

Total Revenues 37 610, 119 975, 473 46

Expenditures:

Current:

General government

Public safety
Community development
Culture and leisure

Publicworks 21, 381

Capital outlay

Total Expenditures 21, 381

Excess( Deficiency) of Revenues
Over( Under) Expenditures 37 610, 119 954, 092 46

Other Financing Sources( Uses):
Transfers in

Transfers out 1, 358, 625)   

Total Other Financing Sources
Uses)   1, 358, 625)   

Net Change in Fund Balances 37 610, 119 404, 533) 46

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 11, 400 1, 472, 588 524, 822 1, 028

Fund Balances, End of Year 11, 437   $     2, 082, 707   $      120, 289   $  1, 074

120

179



CITY OF LATHROP

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 CONTINUED)

Special Revenue Funds

CLSP Off- Site

ULOP RD- 17 DWR Grant- Roadway South Lathrop
Levee Impact ULOP Project Improvement CFD 2019- 1

Revenues:

Taxes and assessments 2, 249, 868   $      67, 186   $      542, 423

Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental

Use of money and property 3 331 3, 106
Fines and forfeitures

Miscellaneous

Total Revenues 2, 249, 868 3 67, 517 545, 529

Expenditures:

Current:

General government

Public safety
Community development
Culture and leisure

Public works 2, 249, 868 518, 438 128, 056

Capital outlay

Total Expenditures 2, 249,868 518, 438 128, 056

Excess( Deficiency) of Revenues
Over( Under) Expenditures 518, 435)    67, 517 417, 473

Other Financing Sources( Uses):
Transfers in

Transfers out 9,180)

Total Other Financing Sources
Uses)     9, 180)

Net Change in Fund Balances 518, 435)    67, 517 408, 293

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 56, 936 740, 995

Fund Balances, End of Year 518, 435)  $       124, 453   $    1, 149, 288

121

180



CITY OF LATHROP

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES,

EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES tN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Speciai Revenue Funds

Stewart

Central Lathrop Economic Dev Gateway
CFD 2019- 2 Fee 80%  TOT Trust Business Park

Revenues:

Taxes and assessments 947, 092   $       119, 701   $ 83,545
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental

Use of money and property 363 535 3, 851 82
Fines and forfeitures

Miscellaneous 27, 791

Total Revenues 975, 246 535 123, 552 83, 627

Expenditures:

Current:

General government
Public safety
Community development
Culture and leisure

Public works 534, 859 31, 788
Capital outlay

Total Expenditures 534, 859 31, 788

Excess( Deficiency) of Revenues
Over( Under) Expenditures 440, 387 535 123, 552 51, 839

Other Financing Sources( Uses):
Transfers in

Transfers out 40, 160)   

Total Other Financing Sources
Uses)     40, 160)   

Net Change in Fund Balances 400, 227 535 123, 552 51, 839

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 169, 617)      5, 738 1, 103, 659

Fund Balances, End of Year 230, 610   $  6, 273   $    1, 227, 271   $ 51, 839

122

181



CITY OF LATHROP

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES,

EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Capital Projects Funds

Total

Streets and Governmental

Roads Storm Drain Park in Lieu Funds
Revenues:

Taxes and assessments 804, 551    $    14, 109, 879

Licenses and permits 55, 475

Intergovernmental 4, 281, 195

Use of money and property 38, 928 1, 785 2, 617 131, 784
Fines and forfeitures 1, 488, 745

Miscellaneous 423, 279

Total Revenues 38, 928 1, 785 807, 168 20, 490, 357

Expenditures:

Current:

General government
Public safety 4, 430, 454

Community development 34, 504
Culture and leisure 1, 749, 641

Public works 2, 853 8, 151, 874

Capital outlay 3, 624, 918 3, 700, 676

Total Expenditures 3, 627, 771 18, 067, 149

Excess( Deficiency) of Revenues
Over( Under) Expenditures 3, 588, 843)      1, 785 807, 168 2, 423, 208

Other Financing Sources( Uses):
Transfers in 3, 976, 616 250, 000 10, 228, 750
Transfers out 70)  4, 659, 380)

Total Other Financing Sources
Uses)  3, 976, 616 249, 930 5, 569, 370

Net Change in Fund Balances 387, 773 251, 715 807, 168 7,992, 578

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 10, 645, 507 389, 453 340, 999 32, 905, 985

Fund Balances, End of Year 11, 033, 280    $      641, 168   $    1, 148, 167   $    40,898, 563

123

182



CITY OF LATHROP

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Variance with

Final Budget
Budget Amounts Actual Positive

Original Final Amounts Negative)
Revenues

Taxes and assessments 2, 749,025     $     2, 749, 025     $     2, 888,936     $       139, 911
Use of money and property 3, 000 3, 000 9, 335 6, 335

Total Revenues 2, 752, 025 2, 752, 025 2, 898, 271 146, 246

Expenditures

Current:

Publicworks 2, 518, 556 2, 798, 808 2, 175, 466 623, 342
Capital outlay to 101, 894 75,758 26, 136

Total Expenditures 2, 518,556 2, 900, 702 2, 251, 224 649, 478

Other Financing Sources( Uses)
Transfers in 48, 014 48, 014 48, 014
Transfers out 335,440)    335, 440)    335, 440)    

Total Other Financing Sources( Uses)     287,426)    287,426)    287, 426)     

Net Change in Fund Balances 53, 957)    436, 103)    359, 621 795, 724

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 733, 425 733,425 733, 425

Fund Balances, End of Year 679, 468     $       297, 322     $     1, 093, 046     $       795, 724

124

183



CITY OF LATHROP

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES- BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GAS TAX

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Variance with

Final Budget
Budget Amounts Actual Positive

Original Final Amounts Negative)
Revenues

Intergovernmental 1, 126, 708     $     1, 204, 088     $     1, 249, 587     $ 45, 499
Use of money and property 2 g3g 2 939

Total Revenues 1, 126, 708 1, 204, 088 1, 252, 526 48, 438

Other Financing Sources( Uses)
Transfers out 674, 970)  1, 333, 970)  1, 333, 970)     

Total Other Financing Sources( Uses)      674, 970)  1, 333, 970)  1, 333, 970)     

Net Change in Fund Balances 451, 738 129, 882)     81, 444)      48, 438

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 631, 518 631, 518 631, 518

Fund Balances, End of Year 1, 083, 256     $       501, 636     $       550, 074     $ 48, 438

125

184



CITY OF LATHROP

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES- BUDGET AND ACTUAL
TRAFFIC SAFETY

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Variance with

Final Budget
Budget Amounts Actual Positive

Original Final Amounts Negative)
Revenues

Use of money and property 333     $    333
Fines and forfeitures 30, 000 30, 000 39, 240 9, 240

Total Revenues 30, 000 30, 000 39, 573 9, 573

Expenditures

Current:

Public safety 46, 500 46, 500 9, 596 36, 904

Total Expenditures 46, 500 46, 500 9, 596 36, 904

Other Financing Sources( Uses)
Transfers out 2, 440)      2, 440)      2, 440)     

Total Other Financing Sources( Uses) 2, 440)      2, 440)      2, 440)    

Net Change in Fund Balances 18, 940)     18, 940)      27, 537 46, 477

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 84, 942 84, 942 84, 942

Fund Balances, End of Year 66,002     $ 66, 002     $       112, 479     $ 46,477

126

185



CITY OF LATHROP

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES- BUDGET AND ACTUAL
LOCAL STREET

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Variance with

Final Budget
Budget Amounts Actual Positive

Original Final Amounts Negative)
Revenues

Use of money and property 2, 143     $  2, 143
Miscellaneous 82, 764 54, 681 28, 083)

Total Revenues 82, 764 56, 824 25, 940)

Expenditures

Current:

Publicworks 1, 207, 631

Capital outlay 10, 000

Total Expenditures 1, 217, 631 1, 875, 687 1, 077, 118 798, 569

Other Financing Sources( Uses)
Transfers in 1, 386, 851 1, 521, 851 1, 521, 851
Transfers out 169, 220)    169, 220)    169, 220)    

Total Other Financing Sources( Uses)     1, 217, 631 1, 352, 631 1, 352, 631

Net Change in Fund Balances 440, 292)    332, 337 772, 629

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 449, 795 449, 795 449, 795

Fund Balances, End of Year 449, 795     $  9, 503     $       782, 132     $       772, 629

127

186



CITY OF LATHROP

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES- BUDGET AND ACTUAL
PUBLIC NUISANCE

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Variance with

Final Budget
Budget Amounts Actual Positive

Original Final Amounts Negative)
Revenues

Use of money and property 32     $     32

Total Revenues 32 32

Expenditures

Current:

Public safety 4, 000 4, 000 4, 000

Total Expenditures 4, 000 4,000 4, 000

Net Change in Fund Balances 4, 000)      4, 000)   32 4, 032

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 12, 293 12, 293 12, 293

Fund Balances, End of Year 8, 293     $  8, 293     $ 12, 325     $  4, 032

128

187



CITY OF LATHROP

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
MEASURE K

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Variance with

Final Budget
Budget Amounts Actual Positive

Original Final Amounts Negative)
Revenues

Intergovernmental 560, 000     $       560, 000     $       720, 588     $       160, 588
Use of money and property 1, 647 1, 647

Total Revenues 560, 000 560, 000 722, 235 162, 235

Other Financing Sources( Uses):
Transfers out 728, 682)    728, 682)    717, 616)      11, 066

Total Other Financing Sources( Uses)      728, 682)    728,682)    717, 616)      11, 066

Net Change in Fund Balances 168, 682)    168, 682)       4, 619 173, 301

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 627, 014 627, 014 627, 014

Fund Balances, End of Year 458, 332     $       458, 332     $       631, 633     $       173, 301

129

188



CITY OF LATHROP

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES- BUDGET AND ACTUAL
STREETS AND ROADS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Variance with

Final Budget
Budget Amounts Actual Positive

Original Final Amounts Negative)
Revenues

Intergovernmental 884, 851     $       884, 851     $     1, 180, 161     $       295, 310
Use of money and property 600 600

Total Revenues 884, 851 884, 851 1, 180, 761 295, 910

Other Financing Sources( Uses):
Transfers out 191, 174)  1, 299, 157)     41, 289)   1, 257, 868

Total Other Financing Sources( Uses)      191, 174)  1, 299, 157)     41, 289)  1, 257, 868

Net Change in Fund Balances 693, 677 414, 306)   1, 139, 472 1, 553, 778

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 187, 171 187, 171 187, 171

Fund Balances, End of Year 880, 848     $      ( 227, 135)    $     1, 326, 643     $     1, 553, 778

130

189



CITY OF LATHROP

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES- BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FEDERAL GRANT

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Variance with

Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts Negative)

Revenues

Intergovernmental 4, 430, 496     $     5, 425, 911     $       695, 355     $    ( 4, 730, 556)

Total Revenues 4, 430,496 5, 425, 911 695, 355 4, 730, 556)

Expenditures

C u rrent:

Culture and leisure 595, 415 595, 415

Total Expenditures 595, 415 595, 415

Other Financing Sources( Uses)
Transfers out 4,430, 496)  4, 830, 496)    371, 426)  4,459,070

Total Other Financing Sources( Uses)    4,430, 496)  4,830, 496)    371, 426)  4,459, 070

Net Change in Fund Balances 271, 486)    271, 486)

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 332, 417 332, 417 332,417

Fund Balances, End of Year 332, 417     $       332,417     $ 60, 931     $      ( 271, 486)

131

190



CITY OF LATHROP

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES- BUDGET AND ACTUAL
STORM DRAIN

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Variance with

Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts Negative)

Revenues

Use of money and property 1, 058     $  1, 058
Fines and forfeitures 352, 506 352,506 352, 535 29

Total Revenues 352, 506 355, 871 356, 958 1, 087

Expenditures

Current:

Publicworks 421, 810 608, 628 346, 388 262, 240

Capital outlay

Total Expenditures 421, 870 608, 628 346, 388 262, 240

Other Financing( Uses)
Transfers in 50, 000 50, 000 50, 000

Transfers out 67, 090)     67, 090)     67, 090)    

Total Other Financing( Uses)  17, 090)     17, 090)     17, 090)     

Net Change in Fund Balances 86, 394)    269, 847)      6, 520)    263, 327

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 338, 533 338, 533 338, 533

Fund Balances, End of Year 252, 139     $ 68, 686     $       332, 013     $       263,327

132

191



CITY OF LATHROP

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES- BUDGET AND ACTUAL
STREET LIGHT

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Variance with

Final Budget
Budget Amounts Actual Positive

Original Final Amounts Negative)
Revenues

Use of money and property 5, 134     $  5, 134
Fines and forfeitures 1, 097, 909 1, 097, 909 1, 096, 970 939)
Miscellaneous 10, 750 34, 059 23, 309

Total Revenues 1, 097, 909 1, 108, 659 1, 136, 163 27, 504

Expenditures

Current:

Publicsafety 173, 360 279, 170 150, 935 128, 235
Publicworks 1, 013, 150 1, 225, 036 876, 985 348, 051

Total Expenditures 1, 186, 510 1, 504, 206 1, 027, 920 476, 286

Other Financing ( Uses)
Transfers in 31, 900 31, 900 31, 900
Transfers out 139, 590)    139, 590)    139, 590)    

Total Other Financing( Uses) 707, 690)    107,690)    107, 690)     

Net Change in Fund Balances 196, 291)    503, 237) 553 503, 790

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 1, 562, 239 1, 562,239 1, 562, 239

Fund Balances, End of Year 7, 365, 948     $     1, 059, 002     $     1, 562,792     $       503, 790

133

192



CITY OF LATHROP

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
AB939 RECYCLING

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Variance with

Final Budget
Budget Amounts Actual Positive

Original Final Amounts Negative)
Revenues

Taxes and assessments 170,000     $       170, 000     $       219, 744     $ 49,744
Licenses and permits 55, 475 55,475
Intergovernmental 5, 000 5,000 7, 390 2, 390
Use of money and property 3, 369 3, 369

Total Revenues 175, 000 175, 000 285, 978 110, 978

Expenditures

Current:

Culture and leisure 188, 571 77, 108 111, 463
Public works 132, 971

Total Expenditures 132, 971 188, 571 77, 108 111, 463

Other Financing( Uses)
Transfers out 14, 560)     14, 560)     14, 560)    

Total Other Financing ( Uses) 14,560)     14, 560)     14, 560)    

Net Change in Fund Balances 27,469 28, 131)     194, 310 222,441

Fund Balances, Beginning ofYear 937, 125 937, 125 937, 125

Fund Balances( Deficits), End of Year 964,594     $       908, 994     $     1, 131, 435     $       222,441

134

193



CITY OF LATHROP

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES- BUDGET AND ACTUAL
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Variance with

Final Budget
Budget Amounts Actual Positive

Original Final Amounts Negative)
Revenues

Intergovernmental 114, 736     $ 27, 434     $ 87, 302)
Use of money and property 17 17

Total Revenues 114, 736 27, 451 87, 285)

Expenditures

Current:

Community development 32, 435 34, 504 2, 069)

Total Expenditures 32, 435 34, 504 2, 069)

Other Financing Sources( Uses):
Transfers out 82, 301)    82, 301

Total Other Financing Sources( Uses)       82, 301)    82, 301

Net Change in Fund Balances 7, 053)      7, 053)

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 4, 232 4, 232 4, 232

Fund Balances, End of Year 4,232     $  4, 232     $ 2, 821)    $ 7, 053)

135

194



CITY OF LATHROP

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES- BUDGET AND ACTUAL
SCHOLARSHIP FUND
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Variance with

Final Budget
Budget Amounts Actual Positive

Original Final Amounts Negative)
Revenues

Intergovernmental 5, 000     $  5, 000     $  5, 766     $    766
Use of money and property 60 60
Miscellaneous 200 200 3, 699 3, 499

Total Revenues 5, 200 5, 200 9, 525 4, 325

Other Financing Sources( Uses):
Transfers out 5, 000)      5, 000)      2, 306)       2, 694

Total Other Financing Sources( Uses) 5, 000)      5, 000)      2, 306)       2, 694

Net Change in Fund Balances 200 200 7, 219 7, 019

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 14, 524 14, 524 14, 524

Fund Balances, End of Year 14, 724     $ 14, 724     $ 21, 743     $  7, 019

136

195



CITY OF LATHROP

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES- BUDGET AND ACTUAL
COPS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Variance with

Final Budget
Budget Amounts Actual Positive

Original Final Amounts Negative)
Revenues

Intergovernmental 500, 000     $       500, 000     $       161, 285     $      ( 338, 715)
Use of money and property 849 849

Total Revenues 500, 000 500,000 162, 134 337, 866)

Expenditures

Current:

Public safety 500,000 500, 000 98, 722 401, 278

Total Expenditures 500,000 585, 000 98, 722 486, 278

Net Change in Fund Balances 85, 000)      63, 412 824, 144)

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 233, 983 233, 983 233, 983

Fund Balances, End of Year 233, 983     $       148, 983     $       297, 395     $      ( 824, 144)

137

196



CITY OF LATHROP

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES- BUDGET AND ACTUAL
OFFICE OF TRAFFIC AND SAFETY

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Variance with

Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts Negative)

Revenues

Intergovernmental 40, 000     $ 40, 000     $  3, 994     $ 36, 006)

Total Revenues 40, 000 40, 000 3, 994 36, 006)

Expenditures

Current:

Public safety 40, 000 40, 000 12, 002 27, 998

Total Expenditures 40, 000 40, 000 12, 002 27, 998

Net Change in Fund Balances 8, 008)      8, 008)

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 8, 008 8, 008 8, 008

Fund Balances, End of Year 8, 008     $  8, 008     $       8, 008)

138

197



CITY OF LATHROP

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
RTIF SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Variance with

Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts Negative)

Revenues

Taxes and assessments 642,239     $       642, 239     $       498, 404     $      ( 143, 835)
Use of money and property 627 627

Total Revenues 642, 239 642, 239 499, 031 143, 208)

Expenditures

Current:

Public works 642, 239 642, 239 499, 032 143, 207

Total Expenditures 642, 239 642, 239 499, 032 143, 207

Net Change in Fund Balances 1)   1)

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 1 1 1

Fund Balances, End of Year 7     $       1     $       1)

139

198



CITY OF LATHROP

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES- BUDGET AND ACTUAL
RTIF LATHROP LOCAL WEST
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Variance with

Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive

Original Final Amounts Negative)
Revenues

Taxes and assessments 4, 198, 377     $     4, 198, 377     $     3, 345, 663     $      ( 852, 714)
Use of money and property 32, 971 32, 971

Total Revenues 4, 198, 377 4, 198, 377 3, 378, 634 819, 743)

Expenditures

Current:

Public works 5, 000 14, 130 14, 127 3

Total Expenditures 5, 000 14, 130 14, 127 3

Net Change in Fund Balances 4, 193, 377 4, 184, 247 3, 364, 507 819, 740)

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 8, 065, 603 8, 065, 603 8, 065, 603

Fund Balances, End of Year 12, 258, 980     $    12, 249, 850     $    11, 430, 110     $      ( 819, 740)

140

199



CITY OF LATHROP

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES- BUDGET AND ACTUAL
RTIF SJCOG

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Variance with

Final Budget
Budget Amounts Actual Positive

Original Final Amounts Negative)
Revenues

Taxes and assessments 963, 359     $       963, 359     $       747, 701     $      ( 215, 658)
Use of money and property 947 947

Total Revenues 963, 359 963, 359 748, 648 214, 711

Expenditures

Current:

Public works 963, 359 963, 359 748, 648 214, 711

Total Expenditures 963, 359 963, 359 748, 648 214, 711

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year

Fund Balances, End of Year g

141

200



CITY OF LATHROP

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES- BUDGET AND ACTUAL
RTIF LATHROP LOCAL EAST
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Variance with

Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive

Original Final Amounts Negative)

Revenues

Taxes and assessments 522, 079     $       522, 079     $       317, 493     $      ( 204, 586)
Use of money and property 5, 295 8, 295

Total Revenues 522,079 522, 079 325, 788 196, 291)

Expenditures

Current:

Pub lic works 5, 000 5, 000 3, 985 1, 015

Total Expenditures 5, 000 5, 000 3, 985 1, 015

Net Change in Fund Balances 517, 079 517, 079 321, 803 195, 276)

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 2, 296, 205 2, 296, 205 2, 296,205

Fund Balances, End of Year 2, 813, 284     $     2, 813,284     $     2, 618, 008     $      ( 195, 276)

142

201



CITY OF LATHROP

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES- BUDGET AND ACTUAL
LMFD MEASURE C

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Variance with

Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive

Original Final Amounts Negative)

Revenues

Use of money and property 642     $    642

Total Revenues 642 642

Expenditures

Current:

Publicsafety 2,400, 000 4, 350, 370 4, 159, 199 191, 171

Total Expenditures 2, 400, 000 4, 350, 370 4, 159, 199 191, 171

Other Financing Sources( Uses):
Transfers in 2, 400, 000 4, 350, 370 4, 350, 369 1)

Total Other Financing Sources( Uses)     2,400, 000 4, 350, 370 4,350, 369 1)

Net Change in Fund Balances 191, 812 191, 812

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 983, 338 983, 338 983, 338

Fund Balances, End of Year 983, 338     $       983, 338     $     7, 175, 150     $       791, 812

143

202



CITY OF LATHROP

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
STATE GRANTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Variance with

Final Budget
Budget Amounts Actual Positive

Original Final Amounts Negative)
Revenues

Intergovernmental 428, 346     $       401, 276     $ 28, 058     $      ( 373, 218)

Total Revenues 428, 346 401, 276 28, 058 373, 218)

Other Financing Sources( Uses):
Transfers out 428, 346)    401, 276)     56, 398)     344, 878

Total Other Financing Sources( Uses)      428, 346)    401, 276)     56, 398)     344, 878

Net Change in Fund Balances 28, 340)     28, 340)

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 28, 340 28, 340 28, 340

Fund Balances, End of Year 28, 340     $ 28, 340     $       28, 340)

144

203



CITY OF LATHROP

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

CITYWIDE ECONOMIC DEV FEE 20%

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Variance with

Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive

Original Final Amounts Negative)

Revenues

Taxes and assessments 765,000     $       765,000     $       604, 000     $      ( 161, 000)

Use of money and property 6, 119 6, 119

Total Revenues 765, 000 765, 000 610, 119 754, 881)

Other Financing Sources( Uses):
Transfers out

Total Other Financing Sources( Uses)       

NetChange in Fund Balances 765, 000 765, 000 610, 119 154, 881)

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 1, 472, 588 1, 472, 588 1, 472, 588

Fund Balances, End of Year 2, 237, 588     $     2, 237, 588     $     2, 082, 707     $      ( 154, 881)

145

204



CITY OF LATHROP

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
RIVER ISLANDS CFD 2013- 1

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Variance with

Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive

Original Final Amounts Negative)

Revenues

Taxes and assessments 606, 551     $       606, 551     $       673, 572     $ 67, 021

Use of money and property 2, 217 2, 217

Miscellaneous 400, 449 400, 449 299, 684 100, 765)

Total Revenues 1, 007, 000 1, 007, 000 975, 473 31, 527)

Expenditures

Current:

Publicworks 18, 500 18, 500 21, 381 2, 881)

Total Expenditures 18, 500 18, 500 21, 381 2, 881)

Other Financing Sources( Uses):
Transfers out 988, 500)    988, 500)  1, 358, 625)    370, 125)

Total Other Financing Sources( Uses)      988, 500)    988,500)  1, 358, 625)    370, 125)

Net Change in Fund Balances 404, 533)    404, 533)

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 524, 822 524,822 524, 822

Fund Balances, End of Year 524, 822     $       524, 822     $       120, 289     $      ( 404, 533)

146

205



CITY OF LATHROP

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES- BUDGET AND ACTUAL
ULOP RD- 77 LEVEE IMPACT

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Variance with

Final Budget
Budget Amounts Actual Positive

Original Final Amounts Negative)
Revenues

Taxes and assessments 4,036,020     $     4, 036, 020     $     2, 249, 868     $    ( 1, 786, 152)

Use of money and property
Total Revenues 4, 036, 020 4, 036, 020 2, 249, 868 1, 786, 152)

Expenditures

Current:

Publicworks 4, 036, 020 4, 036, 020 2, 249, 868 1, 786, 152

Total Expenditures 4,036, 020 4, 036, 020 2, 249, 868 1, 786, 152

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year

Fund Balances, End of Year

147

206



CITY OF LATHROP

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES- BUDGET AND ACTUAL
CLSP OFF- SITE ROADWAY IMPROVEMENT
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Variance with

Final Budget
Budget Amounts Actual Positive

Original Final Amounts Negative)
Revenues

Taxes and assessments 125, 259     $       125, 259     $ 67, 186     $ 58, 073)
Use of money and property 331 331

Total Revenues 125, 259 125, 259 67, 517 57, 742)

Net Change in Fund Balances 125,259 125, 259 67, 517 57, 742)

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 56, 936 56,936 56, 936

Fund Balances, End of Year 182, 195     $       182, 195     $       124, 453     $ 57, 742)

148

207



CITY OF LATHROP

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES- BUDGET AND ACTUAL

SOUTH LATHROP CFD 2019- 1

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Variance with

Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive

Original Final Amounts Negative)

Revenues

Taxes and assessments 542, 423     $       542, 423     $       542, 423     $       

Use of money and property 3, 106 3, 106

Total Revenues 542, 423 542, 423 545, 529 3, 106

Expenditures

Current:

Public works 289, 320 314, 604 128, 056 186, 548

Capital outlay 230, 000 230, 000 230, 000

Total Expenditures 519, 320 544, 604 128,056 416,548

Net Change in Fund Balances 13, 923 11, 361)    408, 293 419,654

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 740, 995 740, 995 740, 995

Fund Balances, End of Year 754, 918     $       729, 634     $     1, 149, 288     $       419,654

149

208



CITY OF LATHROP

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
CENTRAL LATHROP CFD 2019- 2

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Variance with

Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive

Original Final Amounts Negative)

Revenues

Taxes and assessments 860, 000     $       860, 000     $       947, 092     $ 87, 092

Use of money and property 363 363

Total Revenues 860, 000 876, 200 975, 246 99, 046

Expenditures

Current:

Publicworks 605, 840 666, 423 534, 859 131, 564

Total Expenditures 605, 840 666, 423 534,859 131, 564

Other Financing Sources( Uses)
Transfers out 40, 160)     40, 160)     40, 160)     

Total Other Financing Sources( Uses) 40, 160)     40, 160)     40, 760)     

Net Change in Fund Balances 214, 000 169, 617 400, 227 230,610

Fund Balances( Deficits), Beginning of Year 169, 617)    169, 617)    169, 617)     

Fund Balances( Deficits), End of Year 44, 383     $       230,610     $       230, 610

150

209



CUSTODIAL FUNDS

Custodial Funds account for assets held by the City as agent for individuals, governmental entities, and
non- public organizations. These funds include the following:

MOSSDALE VILLAGE ASSESSMENT DISTRICT FUND

To account for the special assessments associated with the payment of the limited- obligation
improvement bonds for the Mossdale Village Assessment District.

CROSSROADS ASSESSMENTS FUND

To account for the special assessments associated with the payment of the limited- obligation
improvement bonds for the Crossroads Assessment District.

JOINT WASTEWATER COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT FUND

To account for the special assessments associated with the payment of the limited- obligation
improvement bonds for the Joint Wastewater Community Facilities District.

NORTH HARLAN WATER IMPROVEMENT FUND

To account for special assessments associated with the payment of limited obligation improvement
bonds for the North Harlan Water Improvement District.

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT CLSP INFRASTRUCTURE FUND

To account for special assessments associated with the infrastructure in the Central Lathrop Specific Plan
area.

SEWER ASSESSMENT DISTRICT N0. 1 FUND

To account for the special assessments associated with the payments of the limited- obligation
improvement bonds for the Lathrop Sanitary Sewer Assessment District No. 1.

MOSSDALE VILLAGE REASSESSMENT 2015— 1 FUND

To account for the special assessments associated with the payment of bonds for the Mossdale Village
District.

151

210



CITY OF LATHROP

COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

CUSTODIAL FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2022

Joint

Mossdale Wastewater

Village Community North Harlan

Assessment Crossroads Facilities Water

District Assessments District Improvement
Assets:

Pooled cash and investments 1, 701, 358    $      572, 069    $      799, 796    $       60, 148

Receivables:

Accounts 1, 685, 043

Accrued interest 329 249 383 32

Restricted assets:

Cash and investments with fiscal agents 32 742, 231 700, 728 3

Total Assets 1, 701, 719 2, 999, 592 1, 500, 907 60, 183

Liabilities:

Accounts payable 121, 180 40, 928

Deposits payable
Due to other governments 1, 608, 303 1, 113, 490 5, 175)

Total Liabilities 1, 608, 303 1, 234, 670 35, 753

Net Position( Deficit):

Restricted for:

Individuals, organizations and other governments 93, 416 2, 999, 592 266, 237 24, 430

Total Net Position( Deficit)       93, 416    $    2, 999, 592    $      266, 237    $       24,430

152

211



CITY OF LATHROP

COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

CUSTODIAL FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2022

Community Mossdale

Facilities Sewer Village

District CLSP Asessment Reassessment

Infrastructure District# 1 2015- 1 Totals
Assets:

Pooled cash and investments 1, 668, 173     $       1, 944    $   1, 044, 432     $    5, 847, 920

Receivables:

Accounts 1, 685, 043

Accrued interest 626 5 521 2, 145
Restricted assets:

Cash and investments with fiscal agents 1, 214, 230 400, 986 240, 370 3, 298, 580

Total Assets 2, 883, 029 402, 935 1, 285, 323 10, 833,688

Liabilities:

Accounts payable 162, 108

Deposits payable 30, 747 30, 747

Due to other governments 2, 367, 728 386, 150 873, 139 6, 343, 635

Total Liabilities 2, 398, 475 386, 150 873, 139 6,536,490

Net Position( Deficit):

Restricted for:

Individuals, organizations and other governments 484, 554 16, 785 412, 184 4, 297, 198

Total Net Position( Deficit)  484, 554    $      16, 785    $     412, 184    $    4, 297, 198

153

212



CITY OF LATHROP

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

CUSTODIAL FUNDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Joint

Mossdale Wastewater

Village Community North Harlan

Assessment Crossroads Facilities Water

District Assessments District Improvement

Additions:

Collections for assessment districts 969, 476   $     757, 344   $   1, 432, 936   $    

Investmentearnings 1, 498 1, 118 2, 039 199

Total Additions 970, 974 758, 462 1, 434, 975 799

Deductions:

Administrative expenses 12, 594 9, 298 11, 122

Contractual services 21, 990 9, 036 13, 565

Interestexpense 1, 303, 512 729, 093 1, 239, 730

Total Deductions 1, 338, 096 747, 427 1, 264, 417

Changes in Net Position 367, 122)  11, 035 170, 558 199

Net Position- Beginning of the Year 6, 539, 172)      ( 7, 946, 486)      ( 3, 822, 662)  19, 056

Restatements 6, 999, 710 10, 935, 043 3, 918, 341 5, 175

Net Position( Deficit)- Beginning of the Year, as Restated 460, 538 2, 988, 557 95, 679 24, 231

Net Position( Deficit)- End of the Year 93, 416   $   2, 999, 592   $     266, 237   $      24, 430

154

213



CITY OF LATHROP

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

CUSTODIAL FUNDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Community Mossdale

Facilities Sewer Village

District CLSP Asessment Reassessment

Infrastructure District# 1 2015- 1 Totals

Additions:

Collections for assessment districts 2, 657, 754   $     20, 236   $     504, 729   $   6, 342, 475

Investment earnings 2, 922 28 2, 805 10, 609

Total Additions 2, 660, 676 20, 264 507, 534 6, 353, 084

Deductions:

Administrative expenses 9, 120 7, 486 12, 594 62, 214

Contractual services 24, 833 18, 104 87, 528

Interest expense 2, 199, 980 95, 881 5, 568, 196

Total Deductions 2, 233, 933 7, 486 126, 579 5, 777, 938

Changes in Net Position 426, 743 12, 778 380, 955 635, 146

Net Position- Beginning of the Year 43, 311, 251)       ( 196, 748)      ( 4, 315, 997)     ( 66, 113, 260)

Restatements 43, 369, 062 200, 755 4, 347, 226 69, 775, 312

Net Position( Deficit)- Beginning of the Year, as Restated 57, 811 4,007 31, 229 3, 662, 052

Net Position( Deficit)- End of the Year 484, 554   $     16, 785   $     412, 184   $   4, 297, 198

155

214



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

156

215



STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of the City' s Annual Comprehensive Financial Report presents detailed information as a
context for understanding what the information in the financial statements,  note disclosures,  and

required supplementary information says about the City' s overall financial health.  In contrast to the
financial section, the statistical section information is not subject to independent audit.

Financial Trends

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the City' s financial
performance and well being have changed over time:

1.   Net Position by Component
2.   Changes in Net Position

3.   Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
4.   Changes in Fund Balance of Governmental Funds

Revenue Capacity
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the City' s most significant local revenue
source, the property tax:

1.   Property Tax Levies and Collections
2.  Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property
3.   Principal Property Taxpayers

Debt Capacity
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the City' s current
levels of outstanding debt and the City' s ability to issue additional debt in the future:

1.   Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates
2.   Direct and Overlapping Governments Sales Tax Rates
3.   Legal Debt Margin Information

4.   Outstanding Debt
5.   Computation of Direct and Overlapping Debt
6.   Pledged- Revenue Coverage

Demographic and Economic Information

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the
environment within which the City' s financial activities take place:

1.   Demographic and Economic Statistics
2.   Principal Employers

Operating Information
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the
information in the City' s financial report relates to the services the City provides and the activities it performs:

1.   Full- time and Part- time City Employees by Function
2.   Operating Indicators by Function
3.   Capital Asset Statistics by Function
4.  Water Sold by Type of Customer
5.  Water Rates

6.   Ten Largest Water Customers

7.   Top 25 Sales Tax Producers

Sources

Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the Annual Comprehensive
Financial Reports for the relevant year.

157

216



CITY OF LATHROP

Net Position by Component
Last Ten Fiscal Years

accrual basis of accounting)

2013 2014 2015 2016

Governmental activities:

Net investments in

capital assets 127, 600, 645     $ 140, 357, 523     $ 145, 671, 748     $ 148, 474, 931

Restricted 6, 989, 280 4, 865, 583 7, 733, 824 10, 223, 760

Unrestricted 31, 954, 985 31, 716, 374 35, 612, 693 38, 941, 548

Total governmental activities net position 166, 544, 910     $ 176, 939, 480     $ 189, 018, 265     $ 197, 640, 239

Business- type activities:

Net investments in

capital assets 76, 371, 218     $  88, 125, 585     $  92, 350, 319     $  93, 906, 914

Restricted 2, 865, 251 2, 696, 850 2, 995, 846 2, 698, 250

Unrestricted 19, 333, 520 25, 692, 676 23, 944, 509 26, 437, 255

Total business- type activities net position 98, 569, 989     $ 116, 515, 111      $ 119, 290, 674     $ 123, 042, 419

Primary government:
Net investments in

capital assets 203, 971, 863     $ 228, 483, 108     $ 238, 022, 067     $ 242, 381, 845

Restricted 9, 854, 531 7, 562, 433 10, 729, 670 12, 922, 010

Unrestricted 51, 288, 505 57,409, 050 59, 557, 202 65, 378, 803

Total Primary government net position 265, 114, 899     $ 293, 454, 591      $ 308, 308, 939     $ 320, 682, 658

Source: City of Lathrop, California Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports.

158

217



CITY OF LATHROP

Net Position by Component
Last Ten Fiscal Years

accrual basis of accounting)

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

155, 971, 046     $ 159, 727, 304     $ 179, 501, 255     $ 206, 211, 349     $ 218, 894,403     $ 250, 605, 011
11, 858, 920 10, 376, 172 13,552, 647 16, 013, 046 103, 964, 923 122, 949, 9'90
47,769, 952 52, 396, 920 72, 645, 973 87, 005, 385 33, 463, 086 47, 696, 013

215, 599, 918     $ 222, 500, 396     $ 265, 699, 875     $ 309, 229, 780     $ 356, 322, 412     $ 421, 251, 014

103, 695, 833     $ 120, 279, 431      $ 150, 452, 677     $ 160, 481, 074     $ 156, 963, 462     $ 174, 059, 4.?1
1, 706, 637 1, 650, 031 1, 652, 234 1, 651, 396 1, 650, 648 1, 652, 9' 15

37, 146, 214 30, 919, 752 34,710, 083 43, 373, 359 62, 502, 764 70, 785, 536

142, 548, 684     $ 152, 849, 214     $ 186, 814, 994     $ 205, 505, 829     $ 221, 116, 874     $ 246, 497, 872

259, 666, 879     $ 280, 006, 735     $ 329, 953, 932     $ 366, 692, 423     $ 375, 857, 865     $ 424, 664, 482
13, 565, 557 12, 026, 203 15, 204, 881 17, 664, 442 105, 615, 571 124, 602, 905
84, 916, 166 83, 316, 672 107, 356, 056 130, 378, 744 95, 965, 850 118, 481, 5 E9

358, 148, 602     $ 375, 349, 610     $ 452, 514, 869     $ 514, 735, 609     $ 577, 439, 286     $ 667, 748, 8fi6

159

218



CITY OF LATHROP

Changes in Net Position

Last Ten Fiscal Years

accrual basis of accounting)
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Expenses:

Governmental activities:

General govemment 3, 733, 840   $   4, 680, 110   $   7, 449, 500   $   5, 614, 173   $   4, 580, 381

Publicsafety 4, 624, 518 5, 940, 125 6, 962, 351 8, 048, 625 9, 683, 636

Publicworks 10, 246, 951 13, 888, 678 10, 864, 104 7, 864, 470 13, 125, 373

Culture and leisure 1, 161, 712 1, 111, 917 779, 976 1, 395, 287 1, 300, 832

Communitydevelopment 1, 472, 084 1, 573, 972 602, 719 1, 712, 156 993, 885

Interest on long- term debt 369, 832 924, 941 340, 120 880, 036 319, 164

Total govemmental activities expense 21, 608, 937 28, 119, 743 26, 998, 770 25, 514, 747 30, 003, 271

Business- type activities:

Water 7, 090, 866 7, 376, 261 5, 108, 071 4, 941, 845 5, 828, 411

Wastewater 3, 987, 951 6, 289, 560 4, 433, 501 3, 587, 602 5, 393, 728

Total business- type activities expenses 11, 078, 817 13, 665, 821 9, 541, 572 8, 529, 447 11, 222, 139

Total primary governmentexpenses 32, 687, 754   $ 41, 785, 564   $  36, 540, 342   $  34, 044, 194   $  41, 225, 410

Program revenues:       

GovernmenWl activities:

Charges for services:

General Govemment 335, 511    $    397, 607   $    491, 076   $    551, 613   $    462, 696

PublicSafety 174, 862 716, 360 356, 989 365, 009 231, 164

Public Works 178, 087 202, 488 248, 089 258, 005 1, 697, 831

Culture and leisure 152, 379 242, 500 220, 963 205, 376 283, 662

Communitydevelopment 1, 515, 837 2, 189, 603 2, 551, 889 3, 947, 881 3, 131, 768

Operating grants and contributions 5, 076, 581 4, 947, 223 4, 969, 720 5, 016, 283 4, 841, 037

Capital grants and contnbutions 8, 304, 237 23, 115, 518 22, 155, 191 9, 759, 080 30, 838, 179

Total governmental activities
program revenues 15, 737, 494 31, 811, 299 30, 993, 917 20, 103, 247 41, 486, 337

Business- type activities:

Charges for services:

Water 6, 293, 790 6, 551, 486 6, 042, 517 5, 849, 963 6, 856, 028

Wastewater 5, 186, 053 5, 827, 902 5, 730, 148 5, 233, 840 5, 791, 155

Operating grants and contnbutions 3, 710, 000 12, 002, 670

Capital grants and contributions 159, 854 159, 854 159, 854 159, 854 159, 854

Total business- type activities
program revenues 15, 349, 697 24, 541, 912 11, 932, 519 11, 243, 657 12, 807, 037

Total primary govemment
program revenues 31, 087, 191    $  56, 353, 211    $  42, 926, 436   $  31, 346, 904   $  54, 293, 374

Net revenues( expenses):

GovernmenWl activities 5, 871, 443)   $   3, 691, 556   $   3, 995, 147   $  ( 5, 411, 500)   $  11, 483, 066

Business- type activities 4, 270, 880 10, 876, 091 2, 390, 947 2, 714, 210 1, 584, 898

Total net revenues( expenses)     1, 600, 563)   $  14, 567, 647   $   6, 386, 094   $  ( 2, 697, 290)   $  13, 067, 964

General revenues and other changes in net pasition:
Governmental activities:

Taxes:

Property tax 2, 810, 704   $   2, 946, 083   $   3, 273, 006   $   3, 566, 656   $   3, 980, 606

Sales and use taxes 3, 128, 882 6, 676, 994 5, 947, 812 6, 209, 105 6, 337, 138

Franchisetaxes 667, 509 705, 405 685, 140 518, 183 771, 288

Other taxes 466, 328 419, 267 449, 950 743, 896 565, 715

Motorvehide in lieu, unrestricted 1, 076, 010 1, 118, 489 1, 237, 606 1, 324, 094 1, 555, 026

Investment income( loss) 38, 959 67, 431 80, 844 346, 915 19, 282

Othergeneralrevenues 262, 023 395, 810 301, 192 1, 745, 978 10, 090, 096

Transfers 763, 094       ( 5, 626, 465) 84, 391) 421, 353)     ( 16, 842, 538)

Total governmental activities 9, 213, 509 6, 703, 014 11, 891, 159 14, 033, 474 6, 476, 613

Business- type activities:

Investment income( loss) 59, 419 49, 915 63, 492 200, 063 214, 510

Miscellaneous 1, 545, 739 1, 392, 651 675, 204 416, 119 864, 319

Transfers 763, 094)       5, 626, 465 84, 391 421, 353 16, 842, 538

Totalbusiness- typeactivities 842, 064 7, 069, 031 823, 087 1, 037, 535 17, 921, 367

Total primary govemment 10, 055, 573   $  13, 772, 045   $  12, 714, 246   $  15, 071, 009   $  24, 397, 980

Changes in net position
Govemmental activities 3, 342, 066   $  10, 394, 570   $  15, 886, 306   $   8, 621, 974   $  17, 959, 679

Business- type activities 5, 112, 944 17, 945, 122 3, 214,034 3, 751, 745 19, 506, 265

Total primary government 8, 455, 010   $  28, 339, 692   $  19, 100, 340   $  12, 373, 719   $  37, 465, 944

160

219



CITY OF LATHROP

Changes in Net Position

Last Ten Fiscal Years

accrual basis of accounting)
zo, a zo, s zozo zoz,    2ozz

4, 917, 617   $   5, 307, 052   $   5, 944, 111   $   6, 544, 720   $   6, 994, 053

10, 965, 814 11, 284, 963 12, 121, 072 11, 729, 668 11, 628, 050

13, 066, 756 16, 835, 406 19, 195, 792 19, 892, 748 14, 711, 011

1, 331, 511 1, 442, 202 1, 468, 471 1, 466, 177 11, 55Q470

1, 256, 506 977, 552 1, 317, 693 8, 227, 717 1, 805, 271

100, 088 46, 410 89, 123 241, 454 233, 740

31, 638, 592 35, 893, 585 40, 136, 262 48, 102, 484 46, 931, 595

4, 969, 618 6, 303, 489 6, 906, 021 6, 767, 503 7,099,213
1, 204, 762 9, 206, 503 7, 476, 439 7, 926, 063 7, 853, 576

6, 174, 380 15, 509, 992 14, 382, 460 14, 693, 566 14, 952, 789

37, 812, 972   $  51, 403, 577   $  54, 518, 722   $  62, 796, 050   $  61, 884, 384

438, 974   $    528, 673   $    465, 303   $   6, 961, 502   $   9, 212, 336

424, 909 775, 581 504, 277 243, 035 139, 111

1, 184, 297 1, 874, 445 473, 036 3, 581, 829 2, 816, 090

279, 505 341, 016 285, 143 124, 652 363, 671

2, 916, 089 3, 880, 593 6, 507, 913 3, 880, 053 8, 161, 272

5, 459, 511 5, 674, 834 6, 105, 531 2, 709, 984 5, 236, 622

10, 069, 773 40, 920, 445 43, 291, 735 16, 740, 299 25, 39Q248

20, 773, 058 53, 995, 587 57, 632, 938 34, 241, 354 51, 319, 350

8, 331, 835 9, 052, 906 10, 352, 614 10, 239, 976 10, 758, 681

6, 533, 098 7, 923, 942 8, 633, 545 8, 776, 287 9, 141, 235

159, 854 32, 556, 339 11, 691, 580 6, 862, 837 4, 933, 027

15, 024, 787 49, 533, 187 30, 677, 739 25, 879, 100 24, 832, 943

35, 797, 845   $ 103, 528, 774   $  88, 310, 677   $  60, 120, 454   $  76, 152, 293

10, 865, 534)   $  18, 102, 002   $  17, 496, 676   $ ( 13, 861, 130)   $   4, 387, 755

8, 850, 407 34, 023, 195 16, 295, 279 11, 185, 534 9, 880, 154

2, 015, 127)   $  52, 125, 197   $  33, 791, 955   $  ( 2, 675, 596)   $  14, 267, 909

4, 285, 832   $   4, 710, 374   $   5, 333, 918   $   8, 613, 482   $   9, 737, 910

9, 211, 228 12, 001, 476 10, 501, 615 18, 190, 475 23, 643, 606

877, 633 1, 204, 106 1, 241, 635 1, 530, 878 1, 640, 212

634, 335 666, 791 582, 552 30, 620, 998 31, 355, 667

1, 794, 526 1, 898, 011 2, 193, 976 738, 708 738, 708

979, 493 1, 996, 503 2, 786,291 701, 941       ( 2, 101, 280)

379, 591 149, 364 184, 705 945, 547 1, 344, 184

137, 582)       2, 439, 302 3, 255, 411 1, 777, 930       ( 5, 818, 160)

18, 025, 056 25, 065, 927 26, 080, 103 63, 119, 959 60, 540, 847

405, 014 782, 839 741, 372 364, 403 216, 580

907, 527 1, 599, 048 4, 909, 595 5, 692, 221 9, 466, 104

137, 582       ( 2, 439, 302)      ( 3, 255, 411)      ( 1, 777, 930)       5, 818, 160

1, 450, 123 57, 415)       2, 395, 556 4, 278, 694 15, 500, 844

19, 475, 179   $  25, 008, 512   $  28, 475, 659   $  67, 398, 653   $  76, 041, 691

7, 159, 522   $  43, 167, 929   $  43, 576,779   $  49, 258, 829   $  64, 928, 602
10, 300, 530 33, 965, 780 18, 690, 835 15, 464, 228 25, 380, 998

17, 460, 052   $  77, 133, 709   $  62, 267, 614   $  64, 723, 057   $  90, 309, 600

161

220



CITY OF LATHROP

Fund Balances of Governmental Funds

Last Ten Fiscal Years

modified accrual basis of accounting)

2013 2014 2015 2016

General fund:

Nonspendable 7, 175, 257     $    6, 380, 018     $    6, 852, 691     $    6, 665, 677

Committed 2, 233, 234

Assigned 1, 229, 504

Unassigned 9, 784, 715 16, 234, 527 11, 091, 860 12, 861, 107

Total general fund 18, 189, 476     $  22, 614, 545     $  17, 944, 551     $  21, 7 60, 018

All other governmental funds:
Restricted 4, 142, 620     $    3, 890, 049     $    6, 823, 678     $    4, 513, 322

Committed 19, 333, 997 12, 977, 322 22, 534, 880 25, 8,29, 474

Assigned 264, 923 930, 347 880, 383 9' 75, 042

Unassigned 364) 233)

Total all other governmental funds 23, 741, 540     $   17, 797, 718     $  30, 238, 577     $  31, 317, 605

FY2021 reflects the implementation of GASB 84.

Source: City of Lathrop, California

162

221



CITY OF LATHROP

Fund Balances of Governmental Funds

Last Ten Fiscal Years

modified accrual basis of accounting)

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021* 2022

6, 180, 434     $    5, 650, 104     $    5, 225, 742     $    3, 470, 982     $    3, 282, 311     $    2, 405, 864

29, 678, 802 29, 664, 824 44, 763, 906

2, 616, 835

16, 496, 212 21, 538, 365 31, 169, 562 4, 289, 278 6, 679, 913 5, 704, 542

22, 676, 646     $  27, 188, 469     $  36, 395, 304     $  40, 055, 897     $  39, 627, 048     $  52, 874, 312

4, 701, 300     $    3, 797, 087     $    4, 701, 645     $    9, 116, 860     $ 103, 964, 923     $ 122, 949, 990

35, 779, 675 36, 015, 106 49, 619, 728 58, 214, 668

784, 139 663, 674 549, 720 572, 817

120)     163, 756)      2, 500)   773, 287) 1, 053, 529)

41, 264, 994     $  40, 475, 867     $  54, 707, 337     $  67, 901, 845     $ 103, 191, 636     $ 121, 896, 461

163

222



CITY OF LATHROP

Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds

Last Ten Fiscal Years

modified accrual basis of accounting)
2013 2014 2015 2016    _

Revenues:

Taxes and assessments 12, 092, 527    $  15, 462,332    $  21, 268, 849    $  18, 494, 460

Licenses and permits 634, 934 749, 845 1, 373, 909 1, 283, 193

Fines, forteitures, and penalties 1, 564, 795 1, 476, 258 1, 486, 888 1, 658,639

Intergovernmental 7, 107, 760 13, 291, 995 11, 177, 149 5,489,546

Use of Money& Property 62, 939 116, 968 159, 262 382,724

Charges for current services 1, 449, 684 2, 727, 193 2, 207, 080 3, 725,964

Contributions( Developer)       9, 779, 408 1, 094, 140

Other 1, 275,270 536, 779 4, 202, 190 3, 523, 548

Total revenues 24, 187, 909 44, 140, 778 42, 969, 467 34, 558, 074

Expenditures

Current:

General government 3, 318, 835 4, 240, 661 8, 063, 724 4, 675, 898

Community development 1, 222, 152 1, 323, 932 1, 254,836 1, 657, 178

Public safety 4, 510,204 5, 829, 809 7, 030,624 7, 297,872

Publicworks 9, 197, 006 17, 040, 900 15, 482, 137 6, 687,275

Culture and leisure 1, 069,332 1, 063, 957 1, 048, 531 1, 296, 370

CapitalOutlay 3, 795,717 9, 334, 496 1, 604,530 4, 361, 924

Debt service:

Principal retirement 262, 103 274, 370 289, 709 1, 683, 347

Interest and fiscal charges 369, 832 924, 941 340, 120 390,710

Total expenditures 23, 745, 181 40, 033, 066 35, 114, 211 28, 050,574

Excess( deficiency) of
revenues over( under)

expenditures 442,728 4, 107, 712 7, 855, 256 6, 507,500

Other financing sources( uses):
Proceeds from issuance of long- term debt 1, 191, 652)

Transfers in 9, 379, 077 18,471, 301 17,566,636 12, 971, 420

Transfers out 8, 615, 983)     ( 24, 097, 766)     ( 17, 651, 027)     ( 13, 392, 773)

Totalotherfinancing
sources( uses)     763, 094       ( 5, 626, 465) 84, 391)       ( 1, 613, 005)

Net change in fund balances 1, 205, 822    $  ( 1, 518, 753)   $   7, 770, 865    $   4, 894, 495

Debt service as a percentage of
noncapital expenditures 3. 3%    4. 1%    1. 9%    9. 6°/,

FY2021 reflects the implementation of GASB 84.

Source: City of Lathrop, California Comprehensive Annual

164

223



CITY OF LATHROP

Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds

Last Ten Fiscal Years

modified accrual basis of accounting)
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021'    2022

22, 885, 183    $  22, 571, 206    $  35, 307,490    $  32, 969, 640    $  59,694, 541    $  67, 116, 103
1, 808, 623 1, 266, 197 1, 523, 951 2, 930, 344 3, 191, 727 386,466
1, 949, 910 2, 237,680 2, 542, 551 1, 973, 138 1, 628, 103 1, 588,616
3, 134,272 4, 420,261 4, 373, 978 5, 281, 487 7, 045, 036 10,094,787

392, 493 1, 366, 160 2, 433, 126 3, 299, 084 701, 941       ( 2, 101, 280)

3, 605, 846 3, 508, 608 4, 656, 065 4, 523, 327 6, 208, 805 13, 859, 233

19, 675,946 2, 751, 850 536, 277 357, 105 7, 595, 547 10, 621, 451

1, 353, 215 813, 734 550,982 657, 995 945, 547 1, 344, 184
54, 805, 488 38, 935, 696 52, 224, 420 51, 992, 120 87, 011, 247 102, 909, 560

4, 406, 106 4, 770, 853 5, 137, 588 5, 748, 979 6, 241, 381 7, 124, 908
784,763 1, 109, 714 838, 993 1, 153, 119 1, 220, 515 1, 722, 885

9, 560, 119 10, 724, 423 11, 222,012 12, 001, 225 11, 507, 852 11, 552, 853
7, 616, 246 7, 048, 016 9, 984, 165 10, 701, 329 19, 627,773 16, 617,416
1, 226, 638 1, 275, 334 1, 384, 798 1, 411, 336 1, 323, 042 3,405,473
2, 920, 897 9, 761, 990 2, 643, 451 6, 950, 445 11, 300,021 24,267,638

265, 000 285, 000 290, 000 300,000 352, 316

319, 164 100, 088 46, 410 89, 123 241, 454 233, 740

27, 098,933 35, 075, 418 31, 257, 417 38, 345,556 51, 762, 038 65, 277, 229

27, 706,555 3, 860, 278 20, 967, 003 13, 646, 564 35, 249, 209 37, 632,331

137, 918
10, 394,523 12, 389, 403 14, 380, 867 24, 940, 959 35, 131, 963 26, 415,645
27, 237, 061)     ( 12, 526, 985)     ( 11, 941, 565)     ( 21, 685, 548)     ( 33, 354,033)     ( 32, 233,805)

16, 842, 538) 137, 582)       2,439,302 3, 255,411 1, 777,930       ( 5, 680,242)

10, 864,017    $   3, 722, 696    $  23, 406, 305    $  16, 901, 975    $  37, 027, 139    $  31, 952, 089

2. 5%    1. 5%    0. 2%    1. 2%    1. 4%    1. 4°/ a

165

224



CITY OF LATHROP

Property Tax Levies and Collections
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Collected within the Fiscal

Year of Levy Total Collection to Date

Taxes Levied Collection in

Fiscal for the Fiscal Percent Subsequent Percent

Year Year Amount of Levy Years Amount of Levy

2013 2, 681, 516      $    2, 681, 516 100. 00%     $     2, 681, 516 10i0. 00%

2014 2, 821, 126 2, 821, 126 100. 00%   2, 821, 126 10i0. 00%

2015 3, 098, 364 3, 098, 364 100. 00%   3, 098, 364 10 0. 00%

2016 3, 353, 607 3, 353, 607 100. 00%   3, 353, 607 10 0. 00%

2017 3, 727, 479 3, 727, 479 100. 00%   3, 727, 479 10 0. 00%

2018 4, 125, 753 4, 125, 753 100. 00%   4, 125, 753 10 0. 00%

2019 4, 309, 587 4, 309, 587 100. 00%   4, 309, 587 10 0. 00%

2020 4, 812, 631 4, 812, 631 100. 00%   4, 812, 631 10 0. 00%

2021 5, 326, 609 5, 326, 609 100. 00%   5, 326, 609 100. 00%

2022 5, 853, 282 5, 853, 282 100. 00%   5, 853, 282 100. 00%

Source: County of San Joaquin, California, Office of the Controller.

166

225



CITY OF LATHROP

Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property
Last Ten Fiscal Years

in thousands)

ciry

Gross Taxable Assessed Vaiue Net Taxable Total

Less:       Assessed DirectTax

Fiscal Year Secured Unsecured SBE Nonunitary Exemptions Value Rate

2013 1, 732, 727, 557    $    166, 654, 824    $       2, 596, 710     $     ( 17, 214, 244)    $   1, 884, 764, 847 0. 142%

2014 1, 839, 562, 001 136, 568, 139 5, 070, 340 18, 622, 849) 1, 962, 577, 631 0. 144%

2015 2, 028, 168, 720 148, 658, 207 5, 070, 340 19, 297, 974) 2, 162, 599, 293 0. 143%

2016 2, 188, 540, 780 198, 130, 929 5, 070, 340 18, 624, 442) 2, 373, 117, 607 0. 141%

2017 2, 559, 643, 198 163, 451, 777 6, 170, 020 18, 624, 442) 2, 710, 640, 553 0. 138%

2018 2, 941, 872, 358 174, 127, 391 6, 170, 020 18, 831, 913) 3, 103, 337, 856 0. 133%

2019 3, 117, 977, 243 190, 538, 705 6, 170, 020 3, 314, 685, 968 0. 130%

2020 3, 554, 886, 516 282, 202, 562 6, 170, 020 3, 843, 259, 098 0. 125%

2021 4, 139, 024, 746 280, 821, 500 15, 952, 158 4, 435, 798, 404 0. 120%

2022 4, 787, 945, 754 304, 082, 430 15, 952, 158 5, 107, 980, 342 0. 115%

NOTE:

In 1978 the voters of the State of California passed Proposition 13 which limited property taxes to a total maximum rate of 1% baseci upon the

assessed value of the property being taxed. Each year, the assessed value of property may be increased by an " inflation factor" ( limited to a
maximum increase of 2%). With few exceptions, property is only re- assessed at the time that it is sold to a new owner. At that point, the new
assessed value is re- assessed at the purchase price of the property sold. The assessed valuation data shown above represents the only data
currently available with respect to the actual market value of taxable property and is subject to the limitations described above.

Source: County of San Joaquin, California, Office of the County Assessor.

167

226



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

168

227



CITY OF LATHROP

Principal Property Taxpayers
Current Year and Ten Years Ago

2022 2013

Percent of Perc ent of

Total City Total City
Taxable Taxable Taxable

Taxable Assessed Assessed Asse ssed

Taxpayer Assessed Value Value Value Value

TESLA MOTORS INC 228, 225, 850 4. 47%      $     0. 00%

LIT INDUSTRIAL LP 187, 602, 039 3. 67%    0. 00%

TRIPOINT LOGISTtCS CENTER ILP 130, 336, 440 2. 55%    0. 00%

CALIFIA LLC 90, 697, 079 1. 78% 49, 965, 185 2. 65%

UNITED PARCEL SERVICE INC 79, 841, 690 1. 56%    0. 00%

PW FUND B DEVELOPMENT LLC 73, 506, 837 1. 44%    0. 00%

COLONY 2019 2 BULK INDUSTRIAL LLC 65, 956, 300 1. 29%    0. 00%

SUPER STORE INDUSTRIES 64, 375, 930 1. 26% 41, 233, 898 2. 19%

CENTERPOINT PROPERTIES TRUST 63, 889, 754 1. 25% 36, 188, 233 1. 92%

J R SIMPLOT COMPANY CORP 62, 292, 003 1. 22% 43, 410, 125 2. 30%

Source: County of San Joaquin, Califomia, Office of the County Assessor.

169

228



CITY OF LATHROP

Property Tax Rates

Direct and Overlapping Governments
Last Ten Fiscal Years

rate per$ 100 of assessed value)

Fiscal Basic

Year County- wide Levy'       School
Z       

All Other Total Rate

2013
1. 00000%       0. 09610% 0. 00000%   1. 09610%

2014
1. 00000%       0. 09250% 0. 00000%   1. 09250%

2015
1. 00000%       0. 09230% 0. 00000%   1. 09230%

2016 1. 00000%       0. 14200% 0. 00000%   1. 14200%

2017
1. 00000%       0. 12820% 0. 00000%   1. 12820%

2018
1. 00000%       0. 13030% 0. 00000%   1. 13030%

2019 1. 00000%       0. 12280% 0. 00000°/ a 1. 12280%

2020 1. 00000%       0. 11400% 0. 00000%   1. 11400%

2021
1. 00000%       0. 10490% 0. 00000%   1. 10490%

2 22
1. 00000%       0. 13820% 0. 00000%   1. 13820%

NOTE:

1)  In 1978, California voters passed Proposition 13 which sets the property tax rate at a
1. 00% fixed amount.  This 1. 00% is shared by all taxing agencies, including the City of
Lathrop, for which the subject property resides within.  The City of Lathrop' s portion varies by
several Tax Rate Areas ( TRAs) within the City.

Source: San Joaquin County Assessor 2011/ 12- 2020/ 21 Tax Rate Table

170

229



CITY OF LATHROP

Sales Tax Rates

Direct and Overlapping Governments
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Measure

City Measure C Transportation State of

Fiscal Direct K General Development San Joaquin California

Year Rate Rate Purpose Act Rate County Rate Rate Total

2013 1. 00%       0. 50%  1. 00%    ** 0. 25% 1. 00%    5. 25%     9. 00%

2014 1. 00%       0. 50%  1. 00%    ** 0. 25% 1. 00%    5. 25%     9. 00%

2015 1. 00%       0. 50%  1. 00%    '* 0. 25% 1. 00%    5. 25%     9. 00%

2016 1. 00%       0. 50%  1. 00%    "" 0. 25% 1. 00%    525°/ a 9. 00%

2017 1. 00%       0. 50%  1. 00°/ a    '`" 0. 25% 1. 00%    5. 00%     8. 75%

2018 1. 00%       0. 50%  1. 00%    **       0. 25% 1. 00%    5. 00%     8. 75%

2019 1. 00%       0. 50%  1. 00%    "* 0. 25% 1. 00%    5. 00%     8. 75%

2020 1. 00%       0. 50%  1. 00%    "" 0. 25% 1. 00%    5. 00%     8. 75%

2021 1. 00%       0. 50%  1. 00%    "" 0. 25% 1. 00%    5. 00%     8. 75%

2022 1. 00%       0. 50°/ a 1. 00%    ** 0. 25% 1. 00%    5. 00%     8. 75%

NOTE:

A 1. 00% increase in Sales and Use Tax became effective as of April 1, 2009 to augment the State of California' s

budget.  On May 19, 2009, the voters did not approve the proposed " Budget Stabilization" constitutional ame; ndment
and the expiration date of this 1. 00% increase was on July 1, 2011.

On November 6, 2012 the voters of Lathrop approved Measure C.  Measure C is an additional 1: sales tax to be
used for Public Safety and essential City services

Source:  City of Lathrop, California Finance Department
County of San Joaquin, California, Office of the Auditor-Controller

171

230



CITY OF LATHROP

Legal Debt Margin Information

Last Ten Fiscal Years

2013 2014 2015 2016
Gross Assessed Valuation 1, 884, 764, 847     $ 1, 962, 577, 631     $ 2, 162, 599, 293     $ 2, 373, 117, f307

Debt Margin Ratio( 1)     3. 75% 3. 75% 3. 75%       3. 75%

Debt Margin( Limit) 70, 678, 682 73, 596, 661 81, 097, 473 88, 991, Sa10

Net Legal Debt Margin 70, 678, 682     $    73, 596, 661     $    81, 097, 473     $    88, 991,<,a10

Total debt applicable to the the limit
as a percentage of debt limit 0%   0%   0°/ o 0%

Notes

1) The Government Code of the State of California provides for a legal debt limit of 15% of gross assessed valuation. However, this
provision was enacted when assessed valuation was based upon 25% of market value. Effective with the 1981- 82 fiscal year, E; ach
parcel is now assessed at 100% of market value ( as of the most recent change in ownership for that parcel.) The computation sh own
above reflects a conversion of assessed valuation data for each fiscal year from the current full valuation perspective to the 25% level

that was in effect at the time that the legal debt margin was enacted by the State of California for local governments located withiri the
sTate The limit shnwn is 3J5%( one- fniirth of the nrevinus limit nf 15% l

Source: City of Lathrop, California Finance Department and the County of San Joaquin, California, Office of the Controll r

172

231



CITY OF LATHROP

Legal Debt Margin Information

Last Ten Fiscal Years

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

2, 710, 640, 553     $ 3, 103, 337, 856     $ 3, 314, 685, 968     $ 3, 843, 259, 098     $ 4, 435, 798, 404     $ 5, 107, 980, 34 2

3. 75% 3. 75% 3. 75% 3. 75% 3. 75% 3. 7E%

101, 649, 021 116, 375, 170 124, 300, 724 144, 122, 216 166, 342, 440 191, 549, 2E 3

101, 649, 021     $   116, 375, 170     $   124, 300, 724     $   144, 122, 216     $   166, 342, 440     $   191, 549, 2E 3

0%   0%   0°/a 0°/a 0%   C%

173

232



CITY OF LATHROP

Outstanding Debt
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Governmental Activities Business- type Activities

Total

Fiscal Capital Leases Governmental Water Revenue Certificates of PNC Bank

Year 1)  Activities Bonds Notes Participation Loan ( 2)

2013    $    7, 139, 752 7, 139, 752     $    24, 945, 000 5, 9: 50, 203

2014 6, 865, 382 6, 865, 382 12, 970, 000 5, 6137, 004

2015 6, 599, 319 6, 599, 319 12, 635, 000 5, 3' 73, 806

2016 4, 190, 000 4, 190, 000 12, 635, 000 5, 0' 70, 256

2017 3, 925, 000 3, 925, 000 11, 455, 000    ( 4)   4, 7; i5, 863

2018 3, 640, 000 3, 640, 000 10, 846, 145 4, 430, 488

2019 3, 640, 000 3, 640, 000 10, 207, 524 4, 0! a3, 638

2020 3, 350, 000 3, 350, 000 9, 550, 312 3, 7 4, 895

2021 3, 050, 000 3, 050, 000 8, 873, 969 3, 3 33, 839

2022 2, 745, 000 2, 745, 000 8, 197, 626 3, 0: 2, 784

Notes: Details regarding the City' s outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.

1) On July 1, 2005, the City entered into a capital lease agreement for the new City Hall Building.
2) On May 4, 2012, the City refunded the 2000 Certificates of Participation with the Compass Bank Loan.

3) These ratios are calculated using personal income and population for the prior calendar year.
4) On May 2017, the City refunded the Water Revenue Bonds.

Source: City of Lathrop, California Finance Department

174

233



CITY OF LATHROP

Outstanding Debt
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Business- type Activities

State Percentage

Revolving Capital Total Business-     Total Primary of Personat Debt Per

Fund Loan Leases type Activities Government Income Capita ( 3)

9, 340, 188    $    23, 717    $    40, 259, 108    $    47, 398, 860 143. 22%       2, 390

8, 956, 038 27, 593, 042 34, 458, 424 105. 13%       1, 742

8, 562, 968 26, 571, 774 33, 171, 094 93. 63%       1, 500

8, 160, 773 25, 866, 029 30, 056, 029 82. 47%       1, 301

7, 749, 237 23, 960, 100 27, 885, 100 69. 04%       1, 149

7, 328, 146 22, 604, 779 26, 244, 779 57. 43%       1, 081

6, 897, 278 21, 198, 440 24, 838, 440 47. 89% 996

6, 456, 406 19, 751, 613 23, 101, 613 44. 54% 861

6, 005, 297 18, 263, 105 21, 313, 105 37. 65% 748

5, 538, 385 16, 758, 795 19, 503, 795 30. 90% 623

175

234



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

176

235



CITY OF LATHROP

Computation of Direct and Overlapping Debt
June 30, 2022

FY 2020/ 21 City Assessed Valuation 5, 107, 980, 342

Adjusted Assessed Valuation 5, 107, 980, 342

Percentage

Applicable to

Total Debt City of City's, 3hare of
Overlapping Tax and Assessment Debt 6/ 30/ 22 Lathrop( 1)      Debt 6,130/ 2022

San Joaquin Delta Community College District 188, 480, 000 5. 189%   $      9, 780, 227
Manteca Unified School District 225, 734, 885 20. 848% 4"7, 061, 209

Tracy Unified School District 31, 345, 000 5. 426°/a 1, 700, 780
Banta School District 370, 000 68. 919%    255, 000
Manteca Unified School District Community Facility District No. 1989- 2 19, 520, 000 20. 749%  050, 205
Manteca Unified School District Community Facility District No. 2005- 4 4,945, 000 100. 000%  3, 945, 000
Banta School District Community Facilities District No. 2011- 1 4, 240, 000 100. 000%  4, 240, 000
River Islands Public Financing Authority Community Facilities District No. 2003- 1 251, 248, 493 100. 000% 25' 1, 248, 493
River Islands Public Financing Authority Community Facilities District No. 2015- 1 185, 110, 000 100. 000% 18: i, 110, 000
River Islands Public Financing Authority Community Facilities District No. 2019- 1 63, 625, 000 100. 000% 6: 3, 625, 000
River Islands Public Financing Authority Community Facilities District No. 2021- 1 35, 640, 000 100. 000% 3° i, 640, 000

City of Lathrop Community Facilities District No 2003- 1 5, 000, 000 100. 000%   i, 000, 000

City of Lathrop Community Facilities District No 2003- 2 4, 960, 000 100. 000%  4. 960, 000

City of Lathrop Community Facilities District No 2018- 1, I. A. s 1- 5 45,640, 000 100. 000% 4° i, 640, 000

City of Lathrop 1915 Act Bonds 22, 475, 000 100. 000% 22. 475, 000
Reclamation District No. 17 Assessment District 21, 086, 256 55. 209% 11, 641, 511
California Statewide Community Development Authority 1915 Act Bonds 1, 902, 000 100. 000°/ a 1, 902, 000

Total Overlapping Tax and Assessment Debt     $ 1, 111, 321, 634 69£ i, 274, 425

Ratios to FY 2020/ 21 Assessed Valuation:
Total Overlapping Tax and Assessment Debt 13. 69%

Direct and Overlappin General Fund Obli ation Debt

San Joaquin County Certificates of Participation 60, 400, 000 5. 623%   3, 396, 292
Manteca Unified School District General Fund Obligations 15, 976, 000 20. 848%   3, 330, 676

City of Lathrop General Fund Obligations 2, 745, 000 100. 000%  2, 745, 000

Lathrop- Manteca Rural Fire Protection District Certificates of Participation 3, 490, 000 77. 225%  2, 695, 153
Total Direct and Overlapping General Fund Debt 12, 767, 121

Total Direct Debt
2, 745, 000

Total Overlapping Debt 708, 696, 546
Combined Total Debt 711, 441, 546

2) Excludes tax and revenue anticipation notes, enterprise revenue, mortgage revenue and non- bonded capital lease obligations.

Ratios to Adjusted Assessed Valuation
Total Direct Debt 0. 05%

Combined Total Debt 13. 93%

Source: Califomia Municipal Statistics, Inc.

177

236



CITY OF LATHROP

Pledged- Revenue Coverage

Last Ten Fiscal Years

2000 Certificates of Participation/ PNC Bank Loan( 1)

Debt Service
Fiscal Water Revenue Less Operating Net Available

Year 3)    Expenses( 4) Revenue Principal Interest Coveirage

2013 7, 803, 287 3, 989, 183 3, 814, 104 252, 797 236, 203 7. 80
2014 7, 884, 887 3, 815, 990 4, 068, 897 283, 199 205, 801 8. 32
2015 6, 642, 758 3, 484, 902 3, 157, 856 293, 198 195,802 6. 46
2016 6, 385, 191 3, 479, 010 2, 906, 181 303, 550 185, 450 5. 94

2017 7, 834, 887 4, 366, 161 3,468,726 314, 393 174, 733 7. 09
2018 8,491, 689 4, 969, 618 3, 522, 071 325, 363 163, 637 7. 20

2019 9,212, 760 6, 303,489 2, 909, 271 336, 850 152, 150 5. 95
2020 10, 949, 739 5, 539, 228 5, 410, 511 348, 743 140, 257 11. 06
2021 10, 241, 182 6, 216, 829 4, 024, 353 361, 056 127, 944 8. 23

2022 10, 763, 857 6, 591, 591 4, 172, 266 373, 803 115, 197 8. 53

Note: Details regarding the City' s outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.
Operating expenses do not include interest or depreciation expenses.

1) The 2000 COP' s were refunded by the PNC Bank Loan on May 4, 2012.
The Required Debt coverage ratio for the PNC Bank Loan is 1. 10%.

2) The Required Debt coverage ratio for 2003 COP' s/ Pacific Premier Bank Loan& SRF Loan is 1. 00%.

3) Gross revenues include interest earnings and connection fees.

4) Operating expenses from Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes.

5) Source: Debt Service Schedule. The Water Revenue Certificates of Deposit Series 1993A were

funded on May 24, 2000. On May 24, 2000 the City issued the Installment Purchase
Certificates of Participation, 2000 Series A. On July 16, 2003 the City issued Revenue
Bonds( Water Supply Project), Series 2003. On May 4, 2012 the Compass Bank
Loan refunded the 2000 COPs( Compass Bank Loan Cash Flow and Yield
Verification Report)

6) Expenses include 2000 Certificates of Participation Debt Service Requirements.
7) Debt Service Requirements of 2003 Certificates of Participation& SRF Loan is net of capitalized interest.

Source: City of Lathrop, California Finance Department

178

237



CITY OF LATHROP

Pledged- Revenue Coverage

Last Ten Fiscal Years

2003 COP' s/ Pacific Premier Bank Loan& SRF Loan( 2)

Debt Service

Net Available

Revenue( 5)  Principal Interest Coverage

3, 325, 104 650, 000 1, 713, 603 1. 41

3, 579, 897 680, 000 1, 681, 102 1. 52

2, 668, 856 728, 070 954, 719 1. 59

2, 417, 181 402, 196 945, 592 1. 79

2, 979, 600 411, 536 936, 254 2. 21

3, 033, 071 421, 091 926,699 2. 25

2, 420, 271 1, 069, 489 475, 545 1. 57

4, 921, 511 1, 093, 053 451, 981 3. 19

3, 535, 353 1, 122,305 422, 729 2. 29

3, 683, 266 1, 152, 348 392, 686 2. 38

179

238



CITY OF LATHROP

Demographic and Economic Statistics

Last Ten Calendar Years

Personal

Income( in Per Capita

Calendar Population thousands) Personal Unemployment

Year 1)    2)      Income ( 2)     Rate( 2)

2012 19, 209 358, 594 18, 668 10. 4%

2013 19, 831 330, 960 16, 689 9. 4%

2014 19, 786 327, 775 16, 566 10. 3%

2015 22, 112 354, 280 16, 022 8. 5%

2016 23, 110 364, 434 15, 769 7. 8%

2017 24, 268 403, 896 16, 643 6. 3%

2018 24, 936 457, 006 18, 327 5. 2%

2019 26, 833 518, 675 19, 329 4. 3°/ a

2020 28, 503 566, 062 19, 859 9. 6%

2021 31, 331 631, 164 20, 145 5. 4%

Sources:  ( 1)  California State Department of Finance
2)  2010 and later- Income, Age and Education Data - US Census Bureau,

most recent American Community Survey

180

239



CITY OF LATHROP

Principal Employers

Current Year and Nine Years Ago

2022 2013

Percent of Percent a f

Number of Total Number of Total

Employer Employees Employment Employees Employment

Tesla 3000 29. 13% 0 0. 00%

United Parcel Service ( UPS) 1500 14. 56% 0 0. 00%

Pflug Packaging 450 4. 37%      200 3. 03%

Army Air Force Exchange Services 400 3. 88% 0 0. 00%

Wayfair 400 3. 88% 0 0. 00%

Super Store Industries ( SSI)  375 3. 64%      401 6. 08%

California Natural Products ( CNP)   375 3. 64%      250 3. 79%

Simwon America 336 3. 26% 0 0. 00%

MUSD ( Lathrop Schools)      333 3. 23% 0 0. 00%

CBC Steel Buildings 203 1. 97%      100 1. 52%

In- N- Out Burger 200 1. 94% 0 0. 00%

Ashley Furniture 190 1. 84% 0 0. 00%

Target 177 1. 72%      150 2. 27%

Diamond Pet Foods 163 1. 58%       100 1. 52%

City of Lathrop 158 1. 53% 92 1. 39%

Total EmploymenY' as used above represents the Estimated total employment of all employers located

within City limits.

Source: California LaborMarket Information, California EDD Website( www.ca.gov)
City of Lathrop Community Development Department

181

240



CITY OF LATHROP

Full- Time and Part- Time City Employees by Function
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Function 2013 2014 2015 2016

General Government 25. 50 23. 40 23. 60 24. 60

Neighborhood &

Community Services ( 1) 5. 00

Public Safety( 2) 30. 33 32. 00 36. 98 36. 98

Public Works 41. 00 21. 83 22. 83 29. 50

Community Development 23. 75 8. 34 6. 67 4. 00

Culture & Leisure 20. 64 18. 41 20. 76 21. 00

Total Positions 146. 22 103. 98 110. 84 116. 08

less Unfunded Positions ( 3) 53. 61

Net Employees 92. 61 103. 98 110. 84 116. 08

1) The Neighborhood & Community Services Department was created in March 2010 and later collapsed ini:o Public
Works/ Community Development.

2) Police services are a contract service provided by San Joaquin County Sherriff Department. Fire SE rvice is
provided by Lathrop Manteca Fire District.

3) Fiscal Year 2013 was the last year of allocating and tracking unfunded positions.

Source: City of Lathrop, California Annual Adopted Budgets.

182

241



CITY OF LATHROP

Full- Time and Part- Time City Employees by Function
Last Ten Fiscal Years

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

23. 60 23. 60 24. 60 26. 60 28. 63 30. 63

37. 98 35. 98 36. 98 36. 98 36. 98 53. 68

30. 80 33. 80 40. 47 40. 47 42. 47 45. 47

3. 10 4. 10 4. 43 4. 43 4. 40 5. 40

20. 56 21. 01 21. 01 21. 01 28. 60 30. 60

116. 04 118. 49 127. 49 129. 49 141. 08 165. 78

116. 04 118. 49 127. 49 129. 49 141. 08 165. 78

183

242



CITY OF LATHROP

Operating Indicators by Function
Last Ten Fiscal Years

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Police:

Arrests 670 489 708 572 705 550 558 554 624

Parking Citations Issued 291 380 444 696 1, 385 1, 084 1, 389 1, 237 1, 489

Code Enforcement

Housing Cases 40 20 35 29 28 54 74 64 55 62

Public Nuisance Cases 213 61 206 287 345 204 126 165 210 176

Vehicle Cases 28 12 11 67 193 140 118 129 145 133
Weed Abatement Cases 5 2 108 122 126 124 120 123

Building Permits
Single Family Dwellings 146 130 350 220 291 392 381 649 879 924

Parks and recreation:

Number of recreation classes 49 202 34 56 67 116 126 95 72 176

Number of facility rentals 675 1, 870 542 450 390 1, 598 1, 388 1, 041 617 206

Water:

New connections 140 190 266 179 163 392 381 649 879 924

Average daily consumption 4, 014 3, 550 3, 508 3, 052 3, 274 4, 200 4, 128 4, 128 4, 742 4, 812

thousands of gallons)

Sewer:

New connections 140 190 266 179 163 392 381 649 879 924

Transition to City of Lathrop, Police Department

Source: City of Lathrop, California departmental sources.

184

243



CITY OF LATHROP

Capital Assets Statistics by Function
Last Ten Fiscal Years

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Police:

Stations 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

Public works:

Streets( miles) 82. 80 82. 80 84. 20 84. 20 84. 20 92. 90 92. 90 97. 90 109. 70 113. 70

Streetlights 1, 433 1, 433 1, 448 1, 472 1, 472 1, 835 1, 835 1, 835 2, 135 2, 135

Parks and recreation:

Parks( 2) 14 16 16 16 16 18 20 22 25 25

Community centers 1 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2

Senior centers 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

Water:

Water mains( miles)  101. 40 99. 60 101. 80 101. 80 101. 80 101. 80 142. 00 147. 00 159. 00 163. 00

Maximum daily capacity 21, 700 15, 250 15, 250 15, 250 15, 250 15, 250 16, 500 16, 500 16, 500 16, 500

thousands of gallons)

Wastewater:

Sanitary sewer( miles) 60. 40 62. 03 71. 00 71. 00 71. 00 71. 00 91. 80 96. 80 108. 80 111. 80

Miles of Reclaimed Water Lines 18. 33 21. 40 21. 80 21. 80 21. 80 21. 80 21. 80 25. 80 27. 80 29. 80

Maximum daily treatment capacity 2, 416 2, 416 2, 200 2, 200 1, 450 1, 450 3, 140 3, 140 3, 140 3, 140

thousands of gallons)

NOTE:

1) The City of Lathrop' s fire protection is provided by the Lathrop- Manteca Fire District.
2) Soure: City of Lathrop, Parks and Recreation Guide

Source: City of Lathrop, California departmenta/ sources.

185

244



CITY OF LATHROP

Water Sold by Type of Customer
Last Ten Fiscal Years

in thousands of gallons)

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Type of Customer:

Residential 740,938 690, 963 671, 095 628, 208 625, 187 745, 359 738, 530 794, 181 907, 150 939, 163
Industrial 329, 816 291, 935 343, 231 283,410 278,985 395, 110 415, 471 406, 181 435,637 433, 258
Commercial 107, 530 116,496 91, 599 71, 396 101, 549 139, 290 135, 130 145, 195 152,476 157, 053
Governmental 265, 931 157, 119 172, 972 177, 791 139, 511 149, 952 126, 761 144, 421 199, 298 187, 615
Construction 20, 995 39, 058 1, 615 49, 923 103, 309 91, 038 85, 601 36, 154 39, 357
Total 1, 465, 210 1, 295, 571 1, 280, 512 1, 160, 805 1, 195, 155 1, 533, 020 1, 506, 930 1, 575, 579 1, 730,715 1, 756,446

Total direct rate

per 1, 000 gallons  $     2. 45  $     2. 63  $     2. 63  $     3. 04  $     3. 49  $     3. 99  $     3. 99  $     3. 99  $     3. 99  $     3. 99

Source: City of Lathrop, California Public Works Department

186

245



CITY OF LATHROP

Water Rates

Last Ten Fiscal Years

SCSWSP

Monthly Rate per CSCDA Facility
Fiscal Year Base Rate 1, 000 Gallons Loan ( 1)    Charge( 2)

2013 11. 50 2. 63 9. 10

2014 11. 50 2. 63 9. 10

2015 11. 50 2. 63 9. 10
2016 12. 80 3. 04 9. 10

2017 14. 40 3. 49 9. 10

2018 16. 30 3. 99 9. 10

2019 16. 30 3. 99 9. 10

2020 16. 30 3. 99 9. 10

2021 16. 30 3. 99 9. 10

2022 16. 30 3. 99 9. 10

NOTE:

Rates are based on 5/ 8" meter, which is the standard household meter size.

1) State of California Loan under the Safe Drinking Water Bond Law of 1976
was paid off on March 1, 2001.

2) On July 16, 2003, The City of Lathrop issued $ 32, 530, 000 in Revenue
Bonds to finance the acquisition and construction of water system

improvements and related facilities, including water treatment facilities
and distribuiton pipelines and to pay cost of issuance. The bonds have
an ascending interest rate ranging from 3% to 6% and a final maturity
date of June 1, 2035.

Source: City of Lathrop, California Finance Department

187

246



CITY OF LATHROP

Ten Largest Water Customers

Current Year and Nine Years Ago

2022 2013

Percent of

Water Total Water Percent of Total
Water Customer Charges Revenues Water Charges Water Revenue

California Natural Products 1, 015, 960 10. 22%     $ 562, 213 10. 75%

City of Lathrop 651, 757 6. 56%       325, 850 6.23%
Manteca Unified School District 281, 589 2. 83%       172, 953 3. 31%
Super Store Industries 128, 882 1. 30%       104, 619 2. 00%
River Islands Public Finance Authority 75, 445 0. 76% 30, 269 0. 58%
Teichert Construction 73, 844 0. 74% 0. 00%
Tesla Motors I nc 71, 187 0. 72°/ a 0. 00%

DeSilva Gates Construction 64, 402 0. 65% 0. 00%
IN- N- OUT Burger# 804 55, 097 0. 55% 0. 00%
Swiss American Sausage 45, 144 0. 45% 41, 742 0. 80%

Source: City of Lathrop, California Finance Department

188

247



CITY OF LATHROP

Top 25 Sales Tax Producers

Current Year and Nine Years Ago

2 22 2013

Business Name Business Category Business Name Business Category
Percent of Fiscal Year Total Paid By Top 25 Accounts= 84.40%     Percent of Fiscal Year Total Paid By Top 25 Accounts= 85. 77%

Arco AM PM Service Stations Carpenter Textiles/ Furnishings
Ashley Furniture Dist Center Fulfillment Centers CBC Steel Buildings Heavy Industrial
Boral Roofing Contractors Chevron Service Stations
CBC Steel Buildings Contractors Creative Touch Interiors Home Furnishings
Chevron Service Stations Dragon Esp Light Industrial/ Printers
Chevron Power Market Service Stations Eagles Nest Harley Davidson Boats/ Motorcycles
City Food& Liquor Convenience Stores/ Liquor Fast Lane Food/ Gas Mart Service Stations
Eagles Nest Harley Davidson Boats/ Motorcycles Fleetpride West Trailers/ Auto Parts
Fast Lane Service Stations Joes Travel Plaza Service Stations
Flying J Travel Plaza Service Stations JR Simplot Company Food Mfg.
Icon Health& Fitness Light Industrial/ Printers Kabaritis AM PM Service Stations
In N Out Burger Quick- Service Restaurants Kaman Industrial Tech Corporatio Heavy Industrial
Joes Travel Plaza Service Stations Lathrop Shell Service Stations
Pape Kenworth New Motor Vehicle Dealers McDonalds Restaurants No Alcohol
Raymond Handling Concepts Warehse/ Farm/ Const. Equip.     Medcal Sales Medical/ Biotech
Shell Service Stations Mikasa Japanese Bistro Restaurants Beer Ancl Wine
Target Discount Dept Stores Save Mart Grocery Stores Liquor
Tec Equipment Trailers/ Auto Parts Target Discount Dept Stores
Tesla Motors Trailers/ Auto Parts Tec Stockton Trailers/ Auto Parts
Top Gun Drywall Supply Building Materials Top Gun Drywall Supply Lumber/ Building Materials
Totten Tubes Heavy Industrial Tower Mart Service Stations
Tri West Building Materials USAMotors. Com Used Automotive Dealers
Tuff Boy Sales Trailers/ RVs Utility Trailer Sales Trailers/ RVs
Two Guys Food& Fuel Inc Service Stations Valero Service Stations
Wayfair Fulfillment Centers Walgreens Drug Stores

Firms Listed Alphabetically
Source: State Board of Equalization, California Department of Taxes and Fees Administration, State Controller's Office.

189

248



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

190

249



ATTAC IMENT '" C   "

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL

OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE

WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Councii
City of Lathrop, California

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United State: s
of America and the standards applicable to financial statements of the governmental activities, the:
business- type activities,  each major fund,  and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
City of Lathrop, California ( the" City"), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022, and the related notes tc>
the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City' s basic financial statements, and have issueci
our report thereon dated March 31, 2023.

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City' s internal control
over financia reporting ( internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate iri
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City' s internal control. Accordingly, we do nolt
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City' s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow managemen1t
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct„
misstatements, on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, iri
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity';
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significan t
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than ai

material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be materiall
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may
exist that were not identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies
in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. We identified certain deficiencies in internall

control, described in the accompanying schedule of findings and responses as item 2022- 001 that we:
consider to be significant deficiencies.

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City' s financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Gouernment Auditincr

Standards and which are described in the accompanying schedule of findings and responses as item
2022- 001.     

vrrav a. l; i4,.,. f, r,=r r PI' ll'1'1 4fJ8 `  3` ;;_ u    ""

250



L L.::
To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
City of Lathrop, California

City of Lathrop, California' s Response to Findings

Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on the City'; s
response to the findings identified in our audit and described in the accompanying schedule of findings anci
questioned costs. The City' s response was not subjected to the other auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the response.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliancea
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the City' s internal control
or on compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the City' s internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Brea, California

March 31, 2023

251



L L::
To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
City of Lathrop, California

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES

Reference No.: 2022- 001 — Final Reconciliation and Review Process

Condition:

During the audit, we found the following conditions that resulted in significant audit adjustments to thE
financial statements:

Accuracv in External Financial Reaortinq

The year- end closing process did not ensure that account balances were reconciled and accurate in
advance of the audit requiring adjusting journal entries to correct the final financial statements. It appears
these errors were primarily caused by the trial balance being prepared from data that was not alway:
complete. The more significant entries identified include:

Adjustments to correct payable balances for unrecognized liabilities
Inappropriately classified determinations of lease categories and future payment
obligations

Criteria:

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation, as well as the accuracy of its financial
statements, including disclosures in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. This includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control; s

relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. Timely preparation of the financial statements and disclosure; s
is integral to the detection and prevention of error or fraud.

Cause of Condition:

Accounts were found to be inappropriately reconciled or reviewed during the audit.

Effect or Potential Effect of Condition:

Accounts payable, expenditures, and lease obligations would have been understated as of June 30, 2022.

Recommendation:

The City should include in their year- end close and audit preparation process a final review of account;
payable and subsequent disbursements to ensure they have not missed a transaction which may have
occurred outside of their normal tracking. The City should seek additional continuing education for
personnel related to government auditing standards.

Client Response:

The City will restructure the year end close out process for Fiscal Year 2023 to include a final reconciliation
prior to files being provided to auditing firm. The accounts payable transactions that were identified during
the audit were attributed to capital project invoices received well after the City's established year end close
out date. Staff was working off of prior recommendations that multiyear capital project invoices receivedl
after the year end close out process could be charged to the ongoing project budget in the current fiscal
period. The City will commit to perform a final accounts payable reconciliation prior to final audit fieldwork.
The inappropriately classified determinations of lease categories and future payment obligations pertain tc
information technology equipment that was first thought to be a financing agreement at zero percent interesi:
but later was determined that the$ 1 buyout at the end of the contract period switched the agreement from
purchasing terms to lease obligation under the new GASB 87 rules implemented in Fiscal Year 2022. The

City of Lathrop Finance Staff is committed to maintaining full compliance with the requirements of Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles and the Government Finance Officers Association best practices andl

252



L L.••.
To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
City of Lathrop, California

auditing standards. Staff wili seek out continuing education opportunities to stay abreast of interpretation: s
of Governmental Accounting Standards Board new pronouncements.

Evaluation of Finding:

Significant Deficiency X

Material Weakness

Material Noncompliance

Other Matters

253



i•

TT'A# NI E 1V" '    '

March 31, 2023

To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
City of Lathrop, California

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business- type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Lathrop, California( the City) for the:
year ended June 30, 2022. Professional standards require that we provide you with information about our
responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards, GoUernment Auditing Standards, and the
Uniform Guidance, as well as certain information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. WE
have communicated such information in our letter to you dated July 22, 2022. Professional standards also
require that we communicate to you the following information related to our audit.

Sianificant Audit Matters

Qualitative Aspects of Significant Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant
accounting policies used by the City are described in Note 1 to the financial statements. As described in
Note 1 to the financial statements, the City changed accounting policies related to leases, interest cost; s
incurred before the end of a construction period, and component unit reporting by adopting Statement oF
Governmental Accounting Standards( GASB Statement) No. 87, in fiscal year 2021- 2022. Accordingly, the;
cumulative effect of the accounting change as of the beginning of the year is reported in the Statement oF
Activities. We noted no transactions entered into by the City during the year for which there is a lack oF
authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial
statements in the proper period.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are
based on management' s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions abou t
future events.  Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the
financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly
from those expected. The most sensitive estimates affecting the City' s financial statements were:

Management' s estimates of its net pension liability and net other post-employment benefits
OPEB) liability or asset are based on actuarial valuation specialist assumptions. We

evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the net pension liability,
net OPEB liability or asset in determining that they are reasonable in relation to the financial
statements taken as a whole.

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.

Significant or Unusual Transactions

Management is responsible for the policies and practices used to account for significant or unusual
transactions. No significant unusual transactions have occurred during fiscal year 2021- 2022.

ora+re. Islc sa=.: fi    PrimeGlobal ( :' r, z , ;

254



LS L::
To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
City of Lathrop, California

Difficulfies Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our
audit.

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the;
audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management.

Management has corrected all such misstatements. In addition, we detected misstatements as a result of

audit procedures which were significant and were subsequently corrected by management. The details of
these misstatements are described in a separate letter dated March 31, 2023.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or auditinc
matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial statements or

the auditor' s report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our
audit.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the managemerrt
representation letter dated March 31, 2023.

Management Consu/ tations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accountinq
matters, similar to obtaining a " second opinion" on certain situations. If a consultation involves applicatiori
of an accounting principle to the City' s financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor' s opiniori
that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountanit
to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were

no such consultations with other accountants.

Other Audit Findings or/ ssues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the significant events or transactions that occurreal
during the year, business conditions affecting the City and business plans and strategies that may affecl:
the risks of material misstatements, the application of accounting principles and auditing standards, with
management each year prior to retention as the City' s auditors. However, these discussions occurred in
the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition to our retention.

Other Matters

We applied certain limited procedures to the management' s discussion and analysis, the budgetary
comparison schedules for the general fund and major special revenue funds, the schedule of proportionate
share of the net pension liability, the schedule of plan contributions, the schedule of changes in the nei:
OPEB liability and related ratios, and the schedule of OPEB plan contributions which are requiredl
supplementary information  ( RSI) that supplements the basic financial statements.  Our procedures
consisted of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparingi
the information for consistency with management' s responses to our inquiries, the basic financiall
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We did'
not audit the RSI and do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI.

255



SL::
To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
City of Lathrop, California

We were engaged to report on the combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules, which
accompany the financial statements but are not RSI. With respect to this supplementary information, we
made certain inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing thE
information to determine that the information complies with accounting principles generall
accepted in the United States of America, the method of preparing it has not changed from the prior period,
and the information is appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements. We:

compared and reconciled the supplementary information to the underlying accounting records used to
prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves.

We were not engaged to report on the introductory section and statistical section, which accompany the
financial statements but are not RSI. Such information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financiai statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on it.

The following new Governmental Accounting Standards Board ( GASB) pronouncements were effective for
fiscal year 2021- 2022 audit:

GASB Statement No. 87, Leases.

GASB Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a Construction
Period.

GASB Statement No. 97, Certain Component Unit Criteria, and Accounting and Financial Reportinq
for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans.

The following GASB pronouncements are effective in the following fiscal years' audits and should be
reviewed for proper implementation by management:

Fiscal year 2023

GASB Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations.

GASB Statement No. 94, Public- Private and Public- Public Partnerships and Availability Paymen, t
Arrangement.

GASB Statement No. 96, Subscription- Based Information Technology Arrangements.

Fiscal year 2024

GASB Statement No. 99, Omnibus 2022.

GASB Statement No. 100, Accounting Changes and Error Corrections.

Fiscal year 2025

GASB Statement No. 101, Compensated Absences.

256



LSL::
To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
City of Lathrop, California

Restriction on Use

This information is intended solely for the use of the City Councii and management of the City of Lathrop
and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Very truly yours,

Brea, California

257



258



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT
ITEM 4. 5

APRIL 10, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       APPROVE MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

WITH LATHROP POLICE OFFICERS ASSOCIATION,

ADOPT A BENEFIT PLAN FOR THE UNREPRESENTED

CLASSIFICATIONS OF COMMANDER AND

LIEUTENANT,     AND ADOPT A RECRUITMENT

INCENTIVE PLAN FOR SWORN CLASSIFICATIONS

RECOMMENDATION:     Adopt a Resolution Approving a Memorandum of
Understanding   ( MOU)   with the Lathrop Police

Officers Association ( LPOA), Adopt a Benefit Plan for

the Unrepresented Commander and Lieutenant

Classifications, and Adopt a Recruitment Incentive

Plan

SUMMARY:

In March 2021, the City Council adopted Resolution 21- 4852 which approved the
creation and funding of the Lathrop Police Department. City staff immediately began
recruitment efforts and the transition process.  Staff began onboarding Police Officers
and Police Sergeants as early as in March 2022. The law enforcement transition from
the Sheriff' s Office to the Lathrop Police Department concluded at the end of June
2022, as the new Police Department went live on June 29, 2022. The proposed MOU
provided for approval with this staff report represents the first MOU negotiated with
the LPOA.

The City Council of the City of Lathrop adopted Resolution 22- 5163,  formally
rescinding and replacing Resolution 91- 152,  by amending the existing Employee-
Employer Organization Relations Resolution ( EERR) to include Peace Officers and the

right to be represented in separate units composed solely of such peace officers. The
Lathrop Police Officer Association provided a Petition for Recognition and Certification
as the exclusive employee organization representing the sworn positions of Police
Sergeant and Police Officers. Pursuant to the EERR, the City Manager recognized the
LPOA on October 24,  2022.   Staff began negotiations with LPOA on November 2,

2022 and concluded on April 6, 2023.   The Memorandum of Understanding ( MOU)

presented to Council for consideration and approval has been ratified by the members
of the LPOA.

259



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

APRIL 10, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVE RESOLUTION ADOPTING AN MOU WITH LPOA, BENEFT PLAN FOR

COMMANDER AND LIEUTENANT CLASSIFICATIONS,  AND RECRUITMENT

INCENTIVE PLAN

Resolution 23- 5242 approved a Sworn Compensation Plan to be used for the

recruitment of sworn classifications and included incentive pay for POST

certifications, education, uniform allowance and sick leave conversion at retirement.

This plan expires upon adoption of the LPOA MOU.    Since certain benefits were

extended to the Commander and Lieutenant, which are unrepresented classifications,

a benefit plan should be adopted to continue to offer these benefits to those
classifications.

The Sworn Compensation Plan also included recruitment incentives offered to sworn
candidates to attract them to employment with the Lathrop Police Department.   In

order to continue to offer recruitment incentives to qualified candidates a recruitment
incentive plan should be adopted.

BACKGROUND

The City Council approved the creation of the Lathrop Police Department in March
2021 and this initiated the transition away from contracted police services with the
San Joaquin County Sheriff' s Department to our own police department.    After

extensive recruitment efforts,  all lateral staff were hired,  and the Lathrop Police
Department began servicing the community on ] une 29, 2022.

Included in this report is a proposed MOU that is the result of good faith meet and
confer negotiations with the LPOA pursuant to the California Government Code and
the Employee- Employer Relations Resolution ( EERR)  22- 5163 adopted by the City
Council.  Pursuant to the City of Lathrop EERR, the City Manager recognized LPOA as
the exclusive recognized employee organization and bargaining representative for
Police OfFicers and Sergeants on October 24,  2022 and negotiations began on

November 2, 2022.

The MOU establishes wages,  hours,  benefits and other terms and conditions of

employment for employees represented by the LPOA.  The MOU includes, but is not

limited to, the following:

Term of Agreement ( expiring 7/ 1/ 26 to coincide with the term of the MOU' s
with other bargaining units)

Compensation

0 4% COLA' s which are the same as the other city employee MOU' s
o Overtime

o Special assignment pay
o POST Certification pay
o Education Incentive Pay
o Holiday Pay
o Call back and Stand- by pay
o Education Reimbursement

260



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

APRIL 10, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVE RESOLUTION ADOPTING AN MOU WITH LPOA, BENEFT PLAN FOR

COMMANDER AND LIEUTENANT CLASSIFICATIONS,  AND RECRUITMENT

INCENTIVE PLAN

In order to aid in the recruitment process,  the City Council adopted a Sworn
Compensation Plan that has been updated and extended through the process of hiring
sworn staff.  This document outlines certain pay and benefits that are typically
included as part of a negotiated MOU.  Since an association for the Police Officers and

Sergeants was not formed until after the majority of the current Police Officers and
Sergeants were hired, and it is a new department, there was not an MOU in place at
that time.  While the MOU will replace the items contained in the Sworn Compensation

Plan for those positions represented by LPOA, certain benefits were also extended to
the unrepresented classifications of Commander and Lieutenant.  Staff proposes that
Council adopt a benefit plan to include certain benefits to be provided to these
classifications.

The Sworn Compensation Plan also included recruitment incentives for hiring sworn
staff.   In a competitive market for sworn classifications, staff is recommending that
a recruitment incentive plan be adopted to continue to offer these valuable

recruitment incentives.  This plan can be implemented, as necessary, at the discretion
of the City Manager based on the need to offer such incentives.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

City Staff and LPOA have negotiated in good faith since November 2, 2022.  We have

agreed upon terms and conditions that are in the best interest of both parties to
provide competitive compensation and benefits to the employees represented by this
proposed MOU.  With the expiration of the current Sworn Compensation Plan, staff is

recommending that a benefit plan be adopted to continue to offer certain benefits to
the unrepresented classifications of Commander and Lieutenant.   Additionally, the
adoption of a recruitment incentive plan will allow the City to offer certain benefits
for sworn staff positions.  This will allow the City to remain competitive in the current
market for sworn classifications.

261



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 4

APRIL 10, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVE RESOLUTION ADOPTING AN MOU WITH LPOA, BENEFT PLAN FOR
COMMANDER AND LIEUTENANT CLASSIFICATIONS,  AND RECRUITMENT

INCENTIVE PLAN

FISCAL IMPACT:

The financial impact to the City contained in the compensation section above and
during the term of the proposed MOU is shown in the table below:

1 1 1        1

Total 151, 501 630, 243 655, 452 681, 670

ATTACH M ENTS:

A.  Adopt a Resolution approving the MOU with LPOA, a Sworn Compensation
Plan for Unrepresented Classifications of Commander and Lieutenant

Classifications, and a Recruitment Incentive Plan

B.  Lathrop Police Officers Association MOU

C.  Benefit Plan for Commander and Lieutenant Classifications

D.  Recruitment Incentive Plan

262



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 5

APRIL 10, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING
APPROVE RESOLUTION ADOPTING AN MOU WITH LPOA; BENEFT PLAN FOR
COMMANDER AND LIEUTENANT CLASSIFICATIONS,  AND RECRUITMENT

INCENTIVE PLAN

APPROVALS:

Y Z

Jul a a Burns Date

Director of Human Resources

a 73
Cari a s Date

Directo f Finance

z/'(    Y  Z o Z 3

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

l/'2
S en J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

263



ATTACHMENT A

RESOLUTION NO. 23-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP TO

APPROVE MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING ( MOU) WITH THE LATHROP

POLICE OFFICERS ASSOCIATION ( LPOA), ADOPT A BENEFIT PLAN FOR THE

UNREPRESENTED COMMANDER AND LIEUTENANT CLASSIFICATIONS, AND

APPROVE RECRUITMENT INCENTIVES

WHEREAS, in March 2021, the City Council adopted Resolution 21- 4852 which
approved the creation and funding of the Lathrop Police Department; and

WHEREAS, staff began onboarding Police Officers and Police Sergeants as
early as March 2022 and the Association for the Police Officers and Sergeants was
not formed until after the majority of the current Police Officers and Sergeants were
hired. Since it was a new department, there was not an MOU in place at that time;
and

WHEREAS,  pursuant to the City of Lathrop Employee Employer Relations
Resolution, the City Manager recognized LPOA as the exclusive recognized employee
organization and bargaining representative for Police Officers and Sergeants on
October 24, 2022; and

WHEREAS, City staff and representatives of LPOA met and conferred in good
faith to establish an MOU which establishes wages, hours, benefits and other terms

and conditions of employment for employees represented by the LPOA; and

WHEREAS, the term of the proposed LPOA MOU would be April 15, 2023 to

July 1, 2026 to coincide with the expiration date of the MOU' s with LMCEA and SEIU;
and

WHEREAS, adopting a Benefit Plan for the unrepresented classifications of
Commander and Lieutenant will allow those classifications to continue to receive

certain benefits including incentive pay for POST certifications, education incentive
pay, uniform allowance and sick leave conversion at retirement; and

WHEREAS,  adopting a Recruitment Incentive Plan will allow the City to
continue to offer recruitment incentives at the discretion of the City Manager to be
implemented as necessary based on the need to ofFer such incentives;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop does hereby approve the proposed MOU with LPOA, adopts a Benefit Plan for
the classifications of Commander and Lieutenant, and adopts a Recruitment Incentive

Plan.

Resolution 23-

264



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 10t'' day of April 2023, by the
following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

v— 

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

Resolution 23-

265



ATTACHMENT B

CITY OF LATHROP &

THE LATHROP POLICE OFFICERS ASSOCIATION

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

c z; 

z,  

f ,

s

aa      y y,    

y'
1

4

d

C1 R1. T''"''.

TERM

APRIL 15, 2023 TO JULY 1, 2026

266



Contents

ARTICLE I. PARTIES TO MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING.................................................................... 1

ARTICLEII. RECOGNITION.............................................................................................................................. 1

ARTICLE III. STATE AND FEDERAL LAW COMPLIANCE................................................................................... 1

ARTICLEIV. CITY RIGHTS............................................................................................................................... 1

ARTICLE V. DISCRIMINATION ........................................................................................................................ 1

ARTICLEVI. TERM.......................................................................................................................................... 1

ARTICLE VII. WORK PERIOD........................................................................................................................... 1

ARTICLE VIII. WORK SCHEDULE..................................................................................................................... 2

A.      Regular Workweek Police Professional Staff..................................................................................... 2

B.       Regular Workweek for Patrol............................................................................................................ 2

ARTICLEIX. WAGES ....................................................................................................................................... 2

A.      Salaries............................................................................................................................................... 2

B.      Step Increases.................................................................................................................................... 2

C.       Promotions........................................................................................................................................ 2

D.      Overtime Compensation.................................................................................................................... 3

E.       Special Assignment Pay..................................................................................................................... 3

F.       Cumulative benefits:.......................................................................................................................... 3

G.      Bilingual Premium Bilingual Pay 2. 5% ............................................................................................... 3

H.      Educational Incentive ........................................................................................................................ 4

I.       Peace Officer Standard Training Certificate Pay................................................................................ 4

1.       Court Appearance Pay....................................................................................................................... 4

K.       Holidays ............................................................................................................................................. 5

L.       Employees Working Holidays............................................................................................................ 6

M.     Floating Holiday................................................................................................................................. 6

N.      Uniform.............................................................................................................................................. 6

O.      Call back Pay...................................................................................................................................... 6

P.      Standby/ On- call Pay.......................................................................................................................... 6

Q.      Deferred Compensation .................................................................................................................... 7

R.      Shift differential................................................................................................................................. 7

ARTICLE X. HEALTH BENEFITS........................................................................................................................ 7

ARTICLEXI. SICK LEAVE ............................................................................................................................... 10

ARTICLE XIII. SICK LEAVE CONVERSION AT RETIREMENT............................................................................ 10

i

267



ARTICLE XIV. WORKERS COMPENSATION................................................................................................... 10

ARTICLE XV. MILITARY LEAVE...................................................................................................................... 10

ARTICLEXVI. PROBATION............................................................................................................................ 10

ARTICLE XVII. ASSOCIATION DUES.............................................................................................................. 11

ARTICLE XVIII. CATASTROPHIC LEAVE BANK............................................................................................... 11

ARTICLE XIX. EDUCATION REIMBURSMENT................................................................................................ 12

ARTICLEXX. SHIFT BIDDING ....................................................................................................................... 13

ARTICLE XXI. VACATION REQUESTS............................................................................................................ 13

ARTICLE XXII. VACATION, SICK LEAVE AND COMPENSATORY TIME OFF................................................... 13

APPENDIXA:................................................................................................................................................ 13

FINALAGREEMENT...................................................................................................................................... 14

ii

268



ARTICLE I. PARTIES TO MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

This Memorandum of Understanding is entered into by and between the CTTY OF LATHROP, a
municipal corporation, hereinafter referred to as" CITY", and the LATHROP POLICE OFFICERS

ASSOCIATION, hereinafter referred to as " ASSOCIATION OR POA", pursuant to Government
Code 3500, et seq. This Memorandum of Understanding applies to those classes of employment

set forth in Appendix " A" attached hereto and made part hereof.

ARTICLE II. RECOGNITION

The Association is the formally recognized employee organization for the Police Employees Unit.

The City Manager or designated representative is the representative of the City of Lathrop in
employer- employee relations matters.

ARTICLE III. STATE AND FEDERAL LAW COMPLIANCE

This Memorandum of Understanding complies with the provision of Section 3500, et seq., of the
Government Code of the State of California, in that parties have met and conferred in good faith

regarding wages, hours, and other terms and conditions of employment for the employees.

Further, the parties understand that the terms of this agreement must comply with the legal
requirements of State and Federal law. In the event that a term of this agreement does not comply

with legal requirements, the parties shall promptly meet to update the invalid language.

ARTICLE IV. CITY RIGHTS

The rights of the City include, but are not limited to, the exclusive right to determine the mission
of the its constituent departments, commissions, and boards; set standards of service; determine

the procedures and standards of selection for employment and promotional; direct its employees;
take disciplinary action; relieve its employees from duty because of lack of work or for other

legitimate reasons; maintain the efficiency of governmental operations determine the methods,
means, and personnel by which government operations are to be conducted; determine the content

of job classifications; take all necessary actions to carry out its mission in emergencies; and to
exercise complete control and discretion over its organization and the technology of performing
its work. The City' s use of its rights shall be consistent with the City' s adopted Personnel Rules.

ARTICLE V. DISCRIMINATION

The City and LPOA agree not to discriminate against any employee for Association activity or on
the basis of race, color, national origin, ancestry, sex ( including gender identity), religion, creed,

physical or mental disability, medical condition, marital status ( including registered domestic
partner status), sexual orientation, age, or any other basis protected by federal, state ar local law

ARTICLE VI. TERM

Memorandum of Understanding incorporates all modifications regarding wages, hours, and other
terms and conditions of employment. This Memorandum of Understanding shall be effective April
15, 2023 ( the first full pay period following City Council approval) and shall expire July 1, 2026.

ARTICLE VII. WORK PERIOD

City of Lathrop law enforcement employees have a 28- day work period.

1

269



ARTICLE VIII. WORK SCHEDULE

A.  Regular Workweek Police Professional Staff

The normal workweek for Police Professional Staff is defined as either the traditional

workweek consisting of 8 hours per day, 5 days per week; the alternate 9/ 80 work schedule
consisting of 9 hour work days Monday through Thursday, 8 hour workday on Friday with
every other Friday off; or the 4/ 10 schedule consisting of 10 hour work days, Monday- Friday.
Where operational requirements of a department require deviations from the present schedule,
the City Manager may institute alternate work schedules, consistent with provisions of the
State Law.

B.  Re ular Workweek for Patrol

The available work schedules for patrol are 4/ 10' s or 3/ 12' s.  Where needs of the department

require deviations from the present schedule, the Chief of Police may institute alternate wark
schedules, consistent with operational needs, and/ or by provisions of department policy, or

state law. The Chief of Police may change the beginning and ending times of a shift after
providing written notification to LPOA.

LPOA reserves the right to Meet and Confer in regard to the scheduled for a 4- 10 schedules on

expiration of this contract.

ARTICLE IX. WAGES

A.  Salaries

There shall be a four percent( 4%) cost- of-living increase for Fiscal Year 2023, 2024 and 2025;
beginning the first full pay period in July 2023, July 2024 and July 2025.

B.  Step Increases
Step increase will be issued upon completion of probationary period.  Non- probationary step

increases will be issued upon completion of 12 months of full- time satisfactory service in the
employee' s current step of the salary range and upon recommendation of the department head,

the employee shall advance to their next step in the salary range.

Step increases are recommended by the Police Chief and approved by the City Manager.

C.  Promotions

An employee who is promoted from one class to a class in a higher range shall be entitled to

the step in the higher range which will result in a base salary increase not less than one full
step; the salary increase shall be equivalent to at least five percent ( 5) but not more than the
maximum rate for that class.

2

270



D.  Overtime Compensation

When the number of hours worked by law enforcement employees exceeds eighty ( 80) hours
in a 14- day pay period, and the supervisor has approved those hours, the excess hours are
considered MOU overtime rather than FLSA overtime.

For purposes of MOU overtime, the City shall consider vacation, holiday, and compensatory
time off as hours worked.  Over time is based on the employee' s regular rate of pay at 1 ' h.
Base pay is the employee annual salary schedule calculated on an hourly rate.  Regular rate of
pay is base rate plus all additional compensated items required under FLSA calculations.

E.  S ecial Assignment PaX
Employees assigned to a specialized assignment shall receive an additional5% of their regular

pay rate during the period of assignment to recognize the more difficult scope of work and
higher level of responsibility that is required of specialized assignments.  Specialized

assignment pay shall be received by employees assigned by the Police Chief in the following
special assignments:

Canine Pay *   Safety Officer Training Premium

Community Resource Officer Field Training Officer)**
Detective and Detective Sergeant School Resource Officer

Motorcycle Patrol SWAT Officer

Canine Pay: The parties agree to meet during the term of this agreement to address canine
assignment pay.

Officers assigned to Field Training will only receive the special assignment pay when
performing the assigned duties of a Field Training Officer.

F.  Cumulative benefits:

A maximum of 5% Special Assignment pay will be provided for this benefit. The Specialty
Assignments are not stackable.

G.  Bilin ual Premium Bilinugal Pav 2. 5°10

City agrees to pay 2. 5% special compensation for using their skills in a language other than
English under the following conditions:

i.     The employee must be certified to speak, write and read in the language for which pay
is be provided; and

ii.     Following a request by the employee, the Department Head, as approved by the City
Manager, must determine that the language is a certified language and that there is a

benefit to the City for the employee to provide translation services in the language for
which compensation is requested; and

iii.     The City has approved the certification process to be used by the employee in advance
of the certification being obtained.

3

271



H.  EducationalIncentive

The City will pay a 2. S o incentive on the existing salary step for sworn employees who possess
an Associates of Arts degree. The City will pay a 5% incentive on existing salary step and
range for swarn employees with a Bachelor' s Degree or higher. A maximum of 5% education

incentive will be provided for Education Incentive.

I.   Peace Officer Standard Training Certificate PaX
Officers ( Maximum 5°Io):    Sergeants ( Maximum 5°Io):

2. 5% Intermediate Certificate 2. 5% Advanced Certificate

2. 5°Io Advanced Certificate 2. 5°Io Supervisory Certificate

J.   Court Appearance Pay
i.     Court appearances before or after shifts: Represented employees who make a court

appearance either thirty ( 30) minutes before the start of their scheduled shift or 30
minutes after the end of their scheduled shift, shall receive four ( 4) hours at one and

one half times the employee' s regular hourly rate of pay or the actual time spent for the
court appearance, whichever is greater.

ii.     Court appearances on scheduled da.: Represented employees who make a court

appearance on their regularly scheduled day off shall receive four ( 4) hours at one and

one half times the employee' s regular hourly rate of pay, or the actual time spent for
the court appearance, whichever is greater.

iii.     Telephonic court appearances: Employees served with a telephonic subpoena which

requires the completion of a telephone call on the employee' s off-duty time and does
not require the employee' s physical appearance in court or in any other administrative

venue, shall be compensated for a minimum of two ( 2) hours of pay at one and one half
times ( 1- 1/ 2) the employee' s regular hourly rate of pay.

iv.     Court Stand- By Pa   Employees who are required to be on stand- by for court

appearances shall be compensated for a maximum of two ( 2) hours of pay at one and
one half times ( 1- 1/ 2) the employee' s regular hourly rate of pay.

v.     Cancellations: Court cancellations are not subject to schedule or callback overtime

compensation. The City does not have control over Court cancellations. If such Court

appearance is cancelled and notification is given after 5: 00 PM the workday
immediately preceding the appearance, the employee shall be paid a minimum of two
2) hours of overtime. For Court appearance cancellations with notice before 5: 00 PM

the workday immediately preceding the appearance, the employee shall receive no
additional compensation.   It is the responsibility of the employee to confirm court
appearances.

4

272



i.     Multiple Subpoenas: Multiple subpoenas covering the same case in the day or multiple
subpoenas for either the morning or the afternoon do not count as the separate incidents for
purposes of minimum compensation. However, a subpoena to attend court for a second
case in the afternoon will count as a separate incident and 4 hours of minimum court

appearance compensation will apply.

K.  Holidays

The City recognizes that various special occasions occur during the course of a year which
warrant special celebrations and/ or observances. These occasions are generally designated by
Federal and/ or State Statute, or by tradition. In order to acknowledge these occasions, the City

has determined that it will recognize certain holidays throughout the year and allow City
employees to observe these occasions by granting employees time off work, with pay or giving
an additional day' s or shift' s pay.

Any day designated as a paid holiday by the City Council shall be considered a legal holiday
for City employees.

The City shall observe the following holidays:

HOLIDAY DATE OBSERVED

New Year' s Day January 1

Martin Luther King Jr. Day 3rd Monday in January

Washington' s Birthday 3rd Monday in February

Memorial Day Last Monday in May

Independence Day July 4

Labor Day lst Monday in September

Veteran' s Day November 11 th

Thanksgiving Day 4th Thursday in November

Day after Thanksgiving 4th Friday in November

December 24 December 24

December 25th December 25

December 31 New Year' s Eve

If a holiday falls on a Sunday, the following Monday will be observed as the holiday, except
that if December 24th or December 31st falls on Sunday, the preceding Friday will be observed
as the holiday. If a holiday falls on Saturday, the preceding Friday will be observed as the
holiday.  If December 24th or December 31 st falls on Friday, the preceding Thursday will be
observed as the holiday.

5

273



L.  Employees Working Holida

Regular full-time patrol officers required to work on a holiday may be permitted to take a
different day as the holiday, accrue the time as compensatory time or be compensated for the

holiday as approved by the Department Head. Compensation shall include ten ( 10) or twelve
12) hours of Holiday Pay ( based on employee work schedule), for full- time employees, plus

time and a half( 1- 1/ 2) their regular rate of pay for the number of hours actually worked.

M. Floatin H   olidaX

Employees shall be entitled to one ( 1) floating holiday to include ten ( 10) or twelve ( 12) hours
based on employee work schedule) each Fiscal Year. Floating Holiday time shall be accrued

during the pay period that includes July 1 st.  New employees hired after July 1 st shall not

accrue a floating holiday until the following July 1 st.

Floating holidays accrued shall be available for use the first day following the pay period in

which they are accrued, and shall be scheduled at a time mutually agreed upon between the
employee and Supervisor/ Department Head.

Floating holiday hours must be used in the fiscal year they are received. Any Floating holiday
hours remaining at June 30th shall be rolled over into the employee' s vacation bank.

N.  Uniform

The City will provide a uniform allowance of$ 1, 200 per year. Uniform allowance will be a

onetime payment, paid the first pay period in January, beginning in January 2024.

O.  Call back Pav

All represented employees required to report for an unscheduled shift shall be compensated in

the amount of one and one half( 1- 1/ 2) times their regular hourly rate of pay for three ( 3) hours
far call back or the number of hours actually worked, whichever is greater. For calculation

purposes, the compensation period for a call back while off duty under this section commences
at the time the employee is notified four( 4) hours prior to shift and ends when the officer is no
longer needed.

This Section will not apply if the employee is being called back to complete work that should
have been finished prior to the end of his/ her shift.

Employees required to conduct departmental business by telephone while off duty shall be
compensated to the nearest twelve ( 12) minute increment pursuant to the Fair Labor Standards
Act.

P.  Standby/ On- call PaX

Officers, Sergeants and Detectives assigned to standby/ on- call shall be compensated at$ 3 per
hour for each hour assigned to standby/ on- call duty.  Standby/ on-call pay is subject to City
Manager approval.

6

274



Q.  Deferred Compensation
Laterals exiting a 3% @ 50 pension plan or 3% @ 55 pension plan, or were members of a

Public Agency Retirement system prior to January 1, 2013 ( Pre- PEPRA) the City will offer
3, 000  ($ 115. 39 bi- weekly)  deferred compensation contribution on an annual basis.

Contribution will be prorated and paid bi- weekly:

R.  Shift differential

Graveyard shift differential for purposes of this section is defined as a shift of ten( 10) or twelve
12) hours when assigned to a graveyard shift.

Any employee who works an assigned regular time shift as described above, shall be paid an
additional five percent ( 5%) of their base hourly rate for each hour actually worked. No shift
differential will be paid on sick leave, vacation, CTO, Holiday or any other time off.

ARTICLE X. HEALTH BENEFITS

A.  Health Insurance Options: The City shall provide an option for health insurance coverage for
eligible employees and dependents.  All health and health- related plan or benefit years shall
coincide with the calendar year.

B.  Premium: The City will increase the maximum amount that it will pay for all benefits (medical,
dental, and vision) currently$ 1, 915 The City will increase the maximum amount that it will
pay for all benefits ( medical, dental, vision) to one half( 1/ 2) of any Ca1PERS, Region 1, San
Joaquin County plan ( excluding PORAC) premium increases during the term of this MOU,
but not to exceed an annual increase of six and one half( 61/ z°Io) percent.

C.  Cafeteria Benefits Plan: The City shall provide represented employees a cafeteria benefits plan
that will be funded with the Ciry' s employer' s health benefit contribution.

1. The City shall maintain a Cafeteria Benefits Plan for each represented employees
in regular employment status. Monies in and employee' s Cafeteria Benefit Plan

shall first be used for the following purposes:

2.C. 1. 1 Medical insurance.

2.C. 1. 2Dental insurance.

2.C. 1. 3 Vision insurance.

2. Upon first providing proof of inedical, dental and vision insurance coverage to the
City' s Human Resource Department, whether it be from the employee' s Cafeteria
Benefits Plan or a spouse/ partner/ parent' s employer provided health benefit
program, a representative employee may elect to use up to 35% of the City' s health
plan contribution to the Cafeteria Benefits Plan for one or more of the following
purposes:

2. C. 2. 1 Payments on the employee' s behalf to the City of Lathrop' s deferred
compensation providers;

2. C. 2. 2Payment to the City' s 125 plan administrator for reimbursement of the
Internal Revenue Code 125 eligible dependent care; or

2. C. 2. 3 As a taxable cash payment of the unused balance.

7

275



3.       Each represented employee shall provide the Human Resource Department in
writing, on a form provided and at times designated by the City each year, all
information necessary to administer the Cafeteria Benefits Plan during the 12
month period beginning the first day of each plan benefit year.

4. Each represented employee shall be responsible for providing immediate written
notification to the Human Resources Department of any change to the number of
his/ her dependents which affects the amount of the City payment on the behalf of
the employee. Changes in the cafeteria benefit payments required because of a
change in an employee' s number of dependent shall take effect at the start of the

first pay period in the month next following the month in which notice from the
employee was received by the Human Resources Department. No retroactive
payments shall be allowed.

D.  Effective Date of Covera e:  The effective date of coverage for new employee health, dental,

and vision insurance plans shall be in the month next following the date of appointment to
employment as a regular employee.

E.  Dental and Vision Insurance:   The City provides dental and vision insurance that is on a
calendar plan year. When an employee enrolls in either program, he/ she is expected to remain
enrolled during the term of this MOU, unless a permissible event, as described in the plan,
allows the employee to withdraw or modify coverage.

F.  Life Insurance:

Employees with more than 30 days of employment with the City shall receive an amount of
group term life insurance equal to the amount of their annual salary.

G.  State Disability Insurance:

The City shall purchase, and pay the full premium for, State Disability Insurance ( SDI). SDI

provides weekly benefits in the event an employee is unable to work due to an illness or injury
that is not job- related. Employees receiving benefits from SDI and who are supplementing
those benefits with accrued leave time to receive a full paycheck shall receive the City's
contribution to their Cafeteria Benefits Plan.

H.  Flexible Benefits:

Employees may participate in a flexible benefit program( as allowed and prescribed by Section
125 of the Internal Revenue Code and applicable IRC sections and regulations) that permits
the payment of unreimbursed eligible dependent care costs and/ or insurance premiums with
pre- tax dollars. This flexible benefit program may be expanded, provided that there is no cost
to the City, to include other unreimbursed expenses permitted by the Internal Revenue Code
and its related regulations.  Any Internal Revenue Code amendments that affect these
deductible medical expenses and/ or City liability shall void that portion of the flexible benefit
program.

8

276



L Continuation of Insurance Benefits While on Leave of Absence:

When an employee is on an authorized leave of absence without pay, the employee shall be
allowed at the employee' s own expense to remain under the health, dental, vision and life

insurance coverage for up to twenty six ( 26) bi- weekly pay periods provided that such
employee shall pay the applicable premiums at least two ( 2) weeks prior to the premium due
date. Specific arrangements for such coverage shall be made with the Finance Department.

Employees who must pay either all or a portion of their health, vision, dental and life benefits
shall either arrange for the payment to be deducted from their paychecks or, if the amount of
the paycheck is not sufficient, pay those benefits to the Human Resources Department twice
per month at least two( 2) weeks prior to the premium due date. Failure to pay for these benefits
two ( 2) weeks prior to each premium due date shall result in cancellations of the insurance

J.   Other Post- Employment Benefits —" OPEB"

In an effort to maintain fiscal solvency, the City will maintain post-employment benefit
obligations in the following manner:

1.  Maintain Irrevocable Trust Fund established by the City. —Medical Benefits

a.   Ca1PERS to administer

2.  Continue funding OPEB contributions and annual required contribution for term of
agreement:

3.  Other Post- Employment Benefits

a.   Medical post- retirement age eligible at 55
i.  All employees retiring after Dec. 31, 2014
ii.  All new hires

b.  Post- retirement medical for all represented employees:

i.  Retiree + 1

ii.  City- paid retiree medical 55- 65   =   same health benefits premium

contribution as active employees; continue existing City and employee
contributions; City will pay one half ( 50%) of the difference in premium

increase up to 6.5°Io; tied to the average plan cost. City-paid medical at
Medicare eligibility ( 65) = The City will pay the Ca1PERS Minimum
Employer Contribution ( i. e., $ 151/ month in 2023)

iii.  Retiree is responsible for paying the cost of inedical premiums as

established by Ca1PERS.
iv.  The City will process a reimbursement through the designated third- Party

Administrator ( TPA).   The TPA will process the reimbursement to the
retiree on or about the lst of each month.

4.  Maintain Post- Retirement Benefit Schedule

a.   Vesting based on years of service; 25% @ 5 yrs., 50% @ 10 yrs., 100% @ 15 yrs.
b.  The benefit stipend is a dollar amount equal to 100% of active average plan cost,

by category; i.e. retiree + 1

9

277



ARTICLE XI. SICK LEAVE

Employee shall accrue 96 hours of sick leave annually ( accrued bi- weekly).  Upon accumulation

of 96 hours of sick leave, up to 40 hours may be converted to vacation as outlined in the City' s
Personnel Rules and Regulations.

ARTICLE XIII. SICK LEAVE CONVERSION AT RETIREMENT

An employee who retires with at least ten ( 10) years of City Service may elect one of the following
options:

A.  Convert all accrued sick leave to a medical insurance bank. The value of the medical insurance

bank shall be determined by multiplying the number of accrued sick leave hours by the

employee' s hourly rate of pay. The retired employee and their dependents shall be entitle to
continued insurance coverage,  dental and / or vision coverage currently in effect,  with

premiums for such coverage being deducted from the medical insurance bank until said bank

is exhausted. Thereafter, the retiree and their dependents may continue in the City' s group

health plan, at group rates, provide the City receives the retiree' s payment for the premium by

the l0th of each month for the following month' s coverage.

B.  Convert to CALPERS service credit per the City' s current contract.   Terms of the Policy
Agreement with the City' s insurance carrier regarding coverage and eligibility shall apply to
the retiree and their dependents.

ARTICLE XIV. WORKERS COMPENSATION

Employees' worker compensation benefits for bargaining unit members are provided and governed
by California Labor Code, including Labor Code section 4850.

ARTICLE XV. MILITARY LEAVE

Military leave shall be granted in accordance with provisions of State and Federal laws. For
purposes of this section, " military duty" applies to both " active" and " inactive" military duty.

Employees who are ordered to active military duty shall provide the City with a copy of the Orders.

Employees who are required to engage in weeknight of weekend military drills as part of their
inactive military duty,  shall provide the City with documentation of the requirement.  All

employees entitled to military leave shall give the Chief an opportunity, within the limits of

military regulations, to determine when such leave shall be granted. An employee on military leave

of absence will be entitled to receive City salary for the first 30 calendar days of such absence. Pay
for such purposes shall not exceed 30 days in any one fiscal year.

ARTICLE XVI. PROBATION

All appointments, promotional appointments and reappointments shall be tentative and subject to
a probationary period dated from the time of appointment to a regular full- time or regular part-
time position. The probationary period for new appointments shall be for 15 months of actual

service The City Manager, upon written request of the Police Chief may grant an extension of the

probationary period up to a maximum of six ( 6) months beyond the end of such probationary
period, for a maximum total probation of 21 months.

10

278



The probationary period for promotional appointments and reappointments shall be for a twelve

12) month period of actual service. The City Manager, upon written request of the Police Chief,

may grant an extension of the probationary period up to a malcimum of six ( 6) months beyond the

end of such probationary period, for a maximum total probation of( 18) months.

ARTICLE XVIL ASSOCIATION DUES

It is mutually agreed that the City will, deduct dues from the pay of those employees who

individually provide written authorization for such dues in an amount certified to be current and

correct by the President of the POA or their designee. There shall be no more than one deduction

per pay period and the total of such deductions shall be remitted by the City to the POA.  The

Association shall indemnify, defend, and hold the City harmless against any and all claims,

demands, suits, orders, damages or judgments, or other forms of liability that arise out of or by

reason of this Dues Deductions section, or action taken or not taken by the City under this
Section.  This includes, but is not limited to, the Ciry attorney' s fees and costs.

ARTICLE XVIII. CATASTROPHIC LEAVE BANK

Conditions of Participation:

Application for receipt of catastrophic leave donations will be processed by the Human
Resources Department.

An employee becomes eligible to receive catastrophic leave donations when the employee

has exhausted or will soon exhaust all his/ her accrued leave, as a result of verifiable long-

term illness or injury suffered by the employee
An employee may request catastrophic leave donations, when the employee has exhausted

ar will soon exhaust all his/her accrued leave, as a result of verifiable long-term illness or
injury suffered by the employee' s spouse, children ( biological, adopted, legal guardian), or

register domestic partner.  Catastrophic leave bank is voluntary and it shall be the

responsibiliry of the sworn member to provide proof of eligibility to Human Resources.
Utilizing catastrophic leave on behalf of a spouse, domestic partner, or children shall not

exceed 3 months. Any extensions beyond 3 months, must be approved by the City
Manager.

Donation of Time:

Employees may donate accrued vacation, or compensatory time: sick leave may not be
donated.

Donations may be made in whole hour increments from a minimum of four ( 4) to

maximum of sixteen ( 16) hours per donor.

Donors must have an overall leave balance of 80 hours remaining after donated time has
been deducted.

Once donated to an individual, donated leave cannot be reclaimed by the donar.

Cumulative total of donated time received by the employee cannot exceed the minimum
amount of time needed by verification of the doctor.

11

279



Processing of Donations:

Upon receipt of an application for use of this section, Human Resources shall verify that

the employee has a long- term illness or injury that requires leave under this program.

Upon verification, the Human Resources Department shall notify Payroll of the eligibility
of the employee to receive catastrophic leave donations.

Upon receipt of donation authorizations, Payroll shall take the following actions:

Verify that the donating employee has the minimum required leave balance required for the

donation and convert donated time dollars at the hourly rate of the donor and subtract from the
designated leave category. Pay supplements which are a percentage of base salary ( except above

class pay and special assignment pay) shall be added to the base salary prior to converting the
value of the donated time to the recipient.

1. Convert donated dollars as computed above to work hours at the hourly rate of the recipient
and add the recipient' s sick leave balance.

2. Notify departments of changes in leave balances by noting payroll adjustments for the next
payday.

3. Retain a confidential file of donation authorization.

Treatment of Donated Time:

Donated time is treated as sick leave accrued by the recipient of the donation.
Donated time does not alter the employment rights of the county of the recipient, nor extend
or alter limitations otherwise applicable to Leaves of Absence of Sick Leave, except as

noted in this agreement.

Employees who are utilizing donated sick leave hours will continue to accrue vacation and

sick leave in accordance with the provisions of this Memorandum of Understanding;
however, they will not be eligible to receive sick leave conversion.

ARTICLE XIX. EDUCATION REIMBURSMENT

Educational Reimbursement In accordance with the City' s Tuition Reimbursement Program,

employees are eligible to receive tuition reimbursement for educational purposes which are
intended to improve his/her ability to accomplish his/ her City job for courses taken on the
employee' s own time. Courses taken at any college or university, business or technical school, or

courses given by a recognized correspondence school shall be recognized when they are:

a.   Related to the employee' s current position within the City
b.  Related to the employee' s potential development within the City
c.   Part of a program leading to a degree relating to the employee' s position or possible

development within the City

Reimbursement must be recommended by the Department Head and approved by the City
Manager prior to enrollment. Requests are to be submitted on the approved form. Requests will be
returned to the employee within fourteen ( 14) calendar days of submittal. Payment of education

funds is discretionary with a Department Head within appropriate budget limits:
12

280



a.   Costs not to exceed a maximum of$ 3, 000 per calendar year, per employee; including book
and materials and lab fees.

b.  Employee' s time and travel are at employee' s own expense.

c.   Class time must be on employee' s own time, unless the Department Head approves an

exception.

d.  A passing grade of C or better, or a certificate of completion, is required in each course for
reimbursement.

The City shall reimburse the employee within ( 30) calendar days of submitting the necessary

documentation. If an employee voluntarily separates within one year of receiving the educational
reimbursement, he/ she must reimburse the City of Lathrop within one year from the separation
date.

ARTICLE XX. SHIFT BIDDING

Management recognizes the right of employees to periodically change shifts. In January and July

of each year request for shifts based on seniority shall be accepted from the employee. Subject to

the rights of the Chief of Police or their Designee to deny such request if, in their opinion, the

obligation of the department to provide the public service of the highest quality will not be filled.

ARTICLE XXL VACATION REQUESTS

The officer will direct any pre scheduled vacation requests to their direct supervisor. The officer
can submit their request as soon as shift bids have been completed. The request must be submitted

no later than 30 days in advance.  If the request is submitted within 30 days, it is the officer' s

responsibility to find backfill before any vacation is approved. Prior to the 30 days will be the
agency' s responsibility to backfill for the officer. If a request is submitted on the same day, then

seniority shall determine who gets priority. Only one officer per shift can have a pre scheduled
vacation.

ARTICLE XXII. VACATION, SICK LEAVE AND COMPENSATORY TIME OFF

Annual accrual rates and maximum accrual amounts for vacation, sick leave and compensatory
time off are identified in the Personnel Rules and Regulations.

APPENDIX A:

This Memorandum of Understanding applies to the following employment classes:

1.  Police Officers

2.  Police Sergeants

13

281



FINAL AGREEMENT

Entered into this day of April, 2023, the parties agree that the above includes all items
discussed and agreed to by way of the meet and confer process.   This Agreement cannot be

amended to, subtracted from or added to except by mutual written agreement of both parties. The
persons executing this agreement each represent and warrant that they have been duly authorized

to do so and the agreement is a valid and binding obligation of both parties.

CITY OF LATHROP LATHROP POLICE

OFFICERS ASSOCIATION

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor Landon Lawson, POA President

Stephen J. Salvatore, Chief Blake Escobar, POA Vice

Negotiator President

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

David Garcia, POA

Representative - Goyette

Che Johnson, City Counsel -   Tony Arguelles, POA
Liebert Cassidy Whitmore Representative - Goyette

14

282



ATTACHMENT C

City of

390 Towne Centre Drive, Lathrop, CA 95330

Phone( 209J 941- 7220— Fax( 209) 941- 7229

www. ci.lathrop. ca. us

City of Lathrop Police Department
Benefit Plan for Unrepresented

Classi cations of Commander and lieutenant

Approved by Resolution No. 23-

In order to recruit and retain employees for the new Lathrop Police Department, the City has
identified the following compensation and benefits components to be considered during the
hiring and employment process for sworn positions not covered by an MOU.

Incentive pay referenced in this plan is based upon current salary step and range for the
employee. The incentive pays are cumulative unless specifically stated.  The items listed under

the Benefit Plan only apply to the Commander and Lieutenant positions to establish benefits not
already provided for by resolution or the Personnel Rules.

Police Officer Standards and Trainin ( POST) Certification

The Commission on Peace Officer Standards and Training ( POST), through the POST Professional
Certificates Unit, awards professional certificates at the following levels:  Basic, Intermediate,

Advanced, Supervisory, Management, Executive,

These POST Professional Certificate Programs provide education,  training,  and support

professionalism in law enforcement.    Participation in POST training raises the level of
competence of law enforcement officers and fosters cooperation between the Commission,

Public Safety Departments, and individuals.

Incentive pay for POST certification will be provided as follows:

Lieutenant and Commanders:

2. 5% Supervisory Certificate

2. 5% Management Certificate

Education Incentive

The City will pay a 2. 5% incentive on the existing salary step and range for sworn employees who
possess an Associates of Arts degree. The City will pay a 5% incentive on existing salary step and
range for sworn employees with a Bachelor' s Degree or higher.  A maximum of 5% education

incentive will be provided for this benefit.

Adopted 1

283



Sick Leave Conversion at Retirement

An employee who retires with at least ten (10) years of City service may elect one of the following
options:

1.  Convert all accrued sick leave to a medical insurance bank.  The value of the medical

insurance bank shall be determined by multiplying the number of accrued sick leave hours
by the employee' s hourly rate of pay. The retired employee and his/ her dependents shall
be entitled to continue medical insurance coverage, dental and/ or vision coverage

currently in effect, with premiums for such coverage being deducted from the medical
insurance bank until said bank is exhausted.   Thereafter,  the retiree and his/ her

dependents may continue to participate in the City' s group health plan, at group rates,
provided the City receives the retiree' s payment for the premium by the 10t'' of each
month for the following month' s coverage.

2.  Convert to CALPERS service credit per the City' s current contract.

Terms of the Policy Agreement with the City' s insurance carrier regarding coverage and eligibility
shall apply to the retiree and his/ her dependents.

Uniform

The City will provide a uniform allowance of $ 1, 200 per year.   Uniform allowance will be a

onetime payment, paid the first pay period in January, beginning in January 2024.

Adopted 2

284



ATTACHMENT D

City of

390 Towne Centre Drive, Lathrop, CA 95330

Phone( 209) 941- 7220— Fax( 209) 941- 7229

www. ci. lathrop. ca. us

City of Lathrop Police Department
Recruitment Incentive Plan

Approved by Resolution No. 23-

Recruitment Incentives: Applies to recruitment efforts for all sworn positions. This Recruitment

Incentive Plan will allow the City to offer recruitment incentives at the discretion of the City
Manager to be implemented as necessary based on the need to offer such incentives

Vacation

Vacation accrual hours shall include years of service at the agency the employee was employed
with as a sworn officer prior to being hired by the City. The accrual hours will be in accordance
with the years of service referenced in the Personnel Rules and Regulations. Additionally, newly
hired sworn personnel will be provided an initial vacation bank of 40 hours upon hire.

Sick Leave

Sworn employees hired will be provided an initial sick leave bank of 40 hours upon hire.

Deferred Compensation

Laterals exiting a 3% @ 50 pension plan or 3% @ 55 pension plan, or were members of a Public

Agency Retirement system prior to January 1, 2013 ( Pre- PEPRA) the City will offer the following
deferred compensation contribution on an annual basis. Contribution will be prorated and paid

bi- weekly:

o Chief: $ 5, 000 ($ 192. 31 per pay period)
o Commander: $ 4, 000 ($ 153. 85 per pay period)
o Lieutenant: $ 3, 500 ($ 134. 62 per pay period)
o Sergeant and Lateral Officer: $ 3, 000 ($ 115. 39 per pay period)

Si nin Bonus

Sworn personnel hired will receive a cash bonus of$ 5, 000 upon hire.

Adopted 1

285



286



ITEM 4. 6

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

APRIL 10, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       APPROVAL OF OUT- OF- STATE TRAVEL FOR ONE ( 1)

LATHROP POLICE DEPARTMENT SERGEANT TO

ATTEND CANINE PROGRAM MANAGEMENT COURSE

IN MAY 2023

RECOMMENDATION:     Adopt Resolution Approving Out- of- State Travel for
One  ( 1)   Lathrop Police Department Sergeant to

Attend the Canine Program Management Course in

South Lake Tahoe, Nevada from May 2, 2023 to May
4, 2023

SUMMARY:

The Lathrop Police Department ( LPD) has established a K- 9 Unit that consists of three
3)  K- 9 Teams ( handler and canine). The LPD K- 9 Unit is led by a Police Sergeant

who oversees the K- 9 Unit operations which includes the day- to- day operations and
deployments and field activities of each team. To efficiently and clearly understand
their role as a K- 9 supervisor, attending a canine program management course is
essential.  Staff is proposing Council approval to have one ( 1) Sergeant attend an

upcoming canine management course.

The management course will take place in South Lake Tahoe, Nevada. The cost for
one ( 1) LPD Sergeant to attend the canine program management course is $ 1, 182.

There are sufficient funds in the Lathrop Police Department' s training budget to cover
the cost of the training.

Staff recommends City Council approve the out- of- state travel for one  ( 1)  LPD

Sergeant to attend the Canine Program Management Course in South Lake Tahoe,

Nevada from May 2, 2023 to May 4, 2023.

BACKGROUND:

The Lathrop Police Department has established a K- 9 Unit that consists of three ( 3)

K- 9 Teams. Two ( 2) of the three ( 3) K- 9 Teams has completed the basic handler' s

course and is currently deployed and on patrol, with the third K- 9 Team in process.
These teams are supervised by a designated Sergeant who oversees the day- to- day
operations, which include training, schedules, handler evaluations, equipment, record
keeping, and deployments and field activities of each K- 9 Team.

The K- 9 Unit is regarded as one of the highest liability units within any law
enforcement agency.  To effectively manage K- 9 Teams,  the K- 9 Unit supervisor

should be knowledgeable and be up to date on all policies and regulations regarding
K- 9 deployment within law enforcement. The canine program management course
will help the supervisor utilize K- 9 Teams properly,  obtain consistent productivity

287



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

APRIL 10, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVAL OF OUT- OF- STATE TRAVEL FOR ONE   ( 1)  LATHROP POLICE

DEPARTMENT SERGEANT TO ATTEND CANINE PROGRAM MANAGEMENT

COURSE IN MAY 2023

from the K- 9 Teams, and understand legal concerns to help mitigate liability to the
City. Attending the canine program management course is essential for the growth
and development of the K- 9 Supervisor and Team.

As required by City policy, any out- of- state travel requires Council approval.  Staff

was able to secure a spot in an upcoming P. O. S. T certified canine program
management course taking place in South Lake Tahoe,  Nevada.  This three- day
course will cover K- 9 legal updates, K- 9 Use of Force, Critical Incident Reviews and

Scenarios, and many more essential topics that would equip our K- 9 Sergeant in the
day- to- day operations of the K- 9 Unit for the Lathrop Police Department.

The cost for one ( 1) LPD Sergeant to attend the canine program management course
is  $ 1, 182.  This includes the registration,  hotel,  and per diem cost for one  ( 1)

Sergeant.  There are sufficient funds in the Lathrop Police Department' s training
budget to cover the cost of the training.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

To effectively manage K- 9 Teams, the K- 9 supervisor should be knowledgeable and
be up to date on all policies and regulations regarding K- 9s within law enforcement.
Attending a canine program management course is essential to the growth and
success of our K- 9 Unit Supervisor and will provide our K- 9 supervisor the tools to
mitigate liabilities to the City.  Staff recommends City Council approve the out- of-
state travel for one ( 1)  LPD Sergeant to attend the Canine Program Management

Course in South Lake Tahoe, Nevada from May 2, 2023 to May 4, 2023.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The cost for one ( 1) LPD Sergeant to attend the canine program management course
is $ 1, 182. There are sufficient funds in the Lathrop Police Department budget to cover
the cost of the training.

ATTACHMENTS:    

A.       Resolution Approving Out- of- State Travel for One   ( 1)   Lathrop Police

Department Sergeant to Attend the Canine Program Management Course in

South Lake Tahoe, Nevada from May 2, 2023 to May 4, 2023

288



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

APRIL 10, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVAL OF OUT- OF- STATE TRAVEL FOR ONE   ( 1)  LATHROP POLICE

DEPARTMENT SERGEANT TO ATTEND CANINE PROGRAM MANAGEMENT

COURSE IN MAY 2023

APPROVALS:

3 z    2 

Raymond Bechler Date

Chief of Police

y l ao

Cari Ja s Date

Finance irector

30 -  Z   - 3
Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

23

Stephen J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

289



RESOLUTION NO. 23 -

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING OUT- OF- STATE TRAVEL FOR ONE   ( 1)   LATHROP POLICE

SERGEANT TO ATTEND THE CANINE PROGRAM MANAGEMENT COURSE IN

SOUTH LAKE TAHOE, NEVADA FROM MAY 2, 2023 TO MAY 4, 2023

WHEREAS, the Lathrop Police Department ( LPD) has established a K- 9 Unit

that consists of three ( 3) K- 9 Teams ( handler and canine); and

WHEREAS,  LPD K- 9 Unit is led by a Police Sergeant who oversees the K- 9
Unit operations which includes the day- to- day operations and deployments and field
activities of each team; and

WHEREAS, to effectively manage K- 9 Teams, the K- 9 supervisor should be
knowledgeable and be up to date on all policies and regulations regarding K- 9s within
law enforcement; and

WHEREAS, the canine program management course will help the supervisor
utilize K- 9 Teams properly, obtain consistent productivity from the K- 9 Teams, and
understand legal concerns to help mitigate liability to the City; and

WHEREAS, as required by City policy, any out- of- state travel requires Council
approval; and

WHEREAS, staff was able to secure a spot in an upcoming P. O. S. T certified
canine program management course taking place in South Lake Tahoe, Nevada; and

WHEREAS, the three- day course will cover K- 9 legal updates,  K- 9 Use of

Force, Critical Incident Reviews and Scenarios, and many more essential topics that
would equip our K- 9 Sergeant in the day- to- day operations of the K- 9 Unit for the
Lathrop Police Department; and

WHEREAS, the cost for one ( 1) LPD Sergeant to attend the canine program
management course is $ 1, 182. This includes the registration, hotel, and per diem for
one ( 1) Sergeant; and

WHEREAS,  there are sufficient funds in the Lathrop Police Department' s
training budget to cover the cost of the training.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop does hereby approve the out- of- state travel for one  ( 1)  Lathrop Police
Department Sergeant to attend the canine program management course in South
Lake Tahoe, Nevada from May 2, 2023 to May 4, 2023.

290



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 10th day of April 2023,
by the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:   APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

291



292



ITEM 4. 7

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

APRIL 10, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM: APPROVE AMENDMENT NO.  2 WITH ROBERT

HALF INTERNATIONAL,   INC.   TO PROVIDE

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES IN THE BUILDING

DEPARTMENT FOR THE ENERGOV

IMPLEMENTATION

RECOMMENDATION: Adopt Resolution Approving Amendment No. 2
with Robert Half International, Inc. to provide
Professional Services in the Building
Department for the EnerGov Implementation

SUMMARY:

City staff utilizes development services software to perform a variety of day- to- day
functions across many departments.  The City has been focusing on the EnerGov
implementation to optimize permit processing,  plan review,  workflow monitoring,

field inspections, and payment processing.

Additional services are necessary for the ongoing implementation. In April 2023, the
City entered into a Professional Services Agreement  ( PSA)  with Robert Half

International, Inc. ( Robert Half) to assist in the configuration of EnerGov software.

The City staff has been satisfied with the services received from Robert Half and has
requested a proposal for additional support services necessary for successfully
finalizing the implementation of EnerGov.

StafF is requesting Council approve Amendment No. 2 with Robert Half in the amount
not to exceed $ 187, 200. Sufficient funds have been allocated in the adopted Fiscal
Year ( FY) 22/ 23. Future cost increases beyond July 2023 will be covered in the CIP
GG 20- 15 presented to Council for FY budget 23/ 24 and 24/ 25.

BACKGROUND:

With the amount of development activity over the past few years, the City needed a
system that will provide developers and citizens with a reasonable turnaround time
for inspection and a plan review processes with electronic submissions and responses.
The ability to submit plans and schedule inspections electronically will eliminate daily
manual entry,  which includes the creation,  scheduling,  tracking,  and resulting of
inspections. Furthermore, integrating the City' s current processes and GIS system in
a single software solution will create higher productivity and more efficient handling
of data.

City Council approved the purchase of a new software system called EnerGov to
streamline permit processing, plan review, workflow tracking, field inspections and
payment processing.  City staff began implementing the new software system and in
April 2022 entered into a PSA with Robert Half to assist with EnerGov software.

293



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

APRIL 10, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVE AMENDMENT NO.    2 WITH ROBERT HALF TO PROVIDE

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES IN THE BUILDING DEPARTMENT FOR ENERGOV

IMPLEMENTATION

City staff has been pleased with the services provided by Robert Half and requested
a proposal for support services needed to complete the implementation of EnerGov.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

The City has been focusing on the EngerGov implementation to optimize permit
processing,   plan review,  workflow monitoring,  field inspections,  and payment

processing. Additional services are necessary for the ongoing implementation.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The contract cost associated with Amendment No. 2 is not to exceed $ 187, 200: which

will be paid on a time and material basis. There is currently $ 51, 100 available in the

current council approved operating budget for this Fiscal Year, within the Building
Fund, Account Number 2015- 50- 30- 420- 01- 00.  Staff does not anticipate contract

costs to exceed the budgeted amount prior to the Fiscal Year end. The future year
costs associated with Amendment No. 2, of approximately $ 136, 100 for the period
beginning Fiscal Year 23/ 24 will be incorporated into Capital Improvement Project
GG 20- 15:  EnerGov Development Services Module.  The funds connected to this

project will be presented to Council for approval during the budget process for Fiscal
Year 23/ 24 and 24/ 25.

ATTACHMENTS:

A.  Resolution Approving Amendment No.  2 with Robert Half International,  Inc.

Provide Professional Services In the Building Department For EnerGov

Implementation and Approve Budget Amendment

B.  Amendment No. 2 with Robert Half International, Inc. to Professional Services In

the Building Department for EnerGov Implementation.

294



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

APRIL 10, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVE AMENDMENT NO.    2 WITH ROBERT HALF TO PROVIDE

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES IN THE BUILDING DEPARTMENT FOR ENERGOV

IMPLEMENTATION

APPROVALS:

Za Z3
Ed Short Date

Chief B ilding Official

a 3
Cari Date

Finance Di ctor

j 1 , y ' 20 23

Michael King Date

Assistant City Manager

Z' z-

Salvador Navarrete Dat      

City Attorney

2 3

Step J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

295



RESOLUTION NO. 23-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING AMENDMENT NO. 2 WITH ROBERT HALF INTERNATIONAL, INC.

TO PROVIDE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES IN THE BUILDING DEPARTMENT FOR
THE ENERGOV IMPLEMENTATION

WHEREAS,  City staff utilizes development services software to perform a
variety of day- to- day functions across many departments. The City has been focusing
on the EngerGov implementation to optimize permit processing,  plan review,

workflow monitoring, field inspections, and payment processing; and

WHEREAS,  in April 2022,  the City entered into a Professional Services
Agreement ( PSA)  with Robert Half International,  Inc.  ( Robert Half) to assist with

EnerGov software configuration in the amount of $ 47, 000; and

WHEREAS, in August 2022, Amendment No. 1 was approved by Council not
to exceed $ 93, 600; and

WHEREAS,  Amendment No.  2 will allow for an amount not to exceed

187, 200. Sufficient funds have been allocated in the adopted Fiscal Year ( FY) 22/ 23.

Future cost increases beyond July 2023 will be covered in the CIP GG 20- 15 presented
to Council for FY budget 23/ 24 and 24/ 25.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop hereby approves Amendment No. 2 with Robert Half International, Inc. to

provide Professional Services in the Building Department for the EnerGov

Implementation.

296



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 10th day of April 2023, by the
following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:  APPROVED AS TO F RM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

297



ATTACNN ENT "       "
AMENDMENT NO. 2

TO THE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF LATHROP AND

ROBERT HALF INTERNATIONAL, INC. DATED APRIL 10, 2023

TO PROVIDE ADDITIONAL PROFESSIONAL SERVICES IN THE BUILDING

DEPARTMENT FOR ENERGOV IMPLEMENTATION

THIS AMENDMENT ( hereinafter " AMENDMENT NO.  2") to the agreement between

Robert Half International,  Inc.  and the City of Lathrop dated April2l,  2022,  ( hereinafter

AGREEMENT") dated for convenience this 10t'' day of April 2023, is by and between Robert
Half International, Inc.  ("CONSULTANT") and the City of Lathrop, a California municipal
corporation (" CITY");

RECITALS:

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained, experienced, and competent to perform
Professional Services in the Building Department for EnerGov Implementation, which are required
by this agreement; and

WHEREAS, CITY selected the CONSULTANT pursuant to said qualifications; and

WHEREAS, on April 21, 2022, CONSULTANT and CITY entered into an AGREEMENT

to provide Professional Services in the Building Department for EnerGov Implementation, in the
amount not to exceed $ 47, 000; and

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT has provided CITY with a scope of work attached hereto as
Exhibit " A" for Amendment No.  1 to provide Additional Professional Services in the Building
Department for EnerGov Implementation; and

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is willing to render such Professional Services in the Building
Department for EnerGov Implementation, as hereinafter defined, on the following terms and
conditions.

NOW, THEREFORE, CONSULTANT and the CITY agree as follows:

AMENDMENT NO. 2 TO AGREEMENT

1)      Scope of Service. Section ( 1) of the AGREEMENT is hereby amended to add
the following:

CONSULTANT agrees to perform Professional Services in the Building Department for
EnerGov Implementation in accordance with the scope of work and fee proposal provided
by CONSULTANT, attached hereto as Exhibit " A" in addition to the scope of work in the
original AGREEMENT dated April 21, 2022. CONSULTANT agrees to diligently perform
temporary staffing services in accordance with the upmost standards of its profession.

Page 1 of 3

298



CITY OF LATHROP— ROBERT HALF INTERNATIONAL, INC.

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES IN THE BUILDING DEPARTMENT FOR ENERGOV

IMPLEMENTATION

2)      Compensation.  Section ( 2) of the AGREEMENT for Professional Services is

hereby amended as follows:

City hereby agrees to pay CONSULTANT an additional cost of 187 200 for the services
set forth in Exhibit " A" of this AMENDMENT NO. 2. CONSULTANT shall be paid within
thirty (30) days of receipt of billings containing all information contained in Paragraph 5 of
the original AGREEMENT. Compensation for any task must be equal to or less than the
percentage of task complete. In no event shall CONSULTANT be entitled to compensation
for work not included in the original scope of work and this AMENDMENT unless a written

change order or authorization describing the extra work and payment terms has been
executed by CITY' S Authorized Representative prior to the commencement of the work.
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, CONSULTANT may at any
time, in its sole discretion, discontinue performance of the services once the Not- to-
Exceed Amount has been attained ( even if CONSULTANT continued to provide services
after the Not- to- Exceed Amount was reached).

3)      Effective Date and Term

The effective date of AMENDMENT NO. 2 is April 10, 2023, and it shall terminate no later

than June 30, 2024. AMENDMENT NO. 2 hereby extends the term of the original
AGREEMENT to June 30, 2024. All other terms of the original AGREEMENT shall remain

in full force and effect. The Estimated End Date set forth in section 2 of Exhibit A shall be

deleted and changed to June 30, 2024.

4)      Applicabilitv to Oriqinal PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

All terms and conditions set forth in the AGREEMENT dated April 21, 2022 are still in

effect and are incorporated by reference herein and said AGREEMENT is incorporated by
reference herein.

5)      Siqnatures

The individuals executing this AMENDMENT NO. 2 represent and warrant that they have
the right,  power,  legal capacity,  and authority to enter into and to execute this
AMENDMENT NO. 2 on behalf of the respective legal entities of the CONSULTANT and

the CITY. This agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties
hereto and their respective successors and assigns.

Page 2 of 3

299



CITY OF LATHROP— ROBERT HALF INTERNATIONAL, INC.

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES IN THE BUILDING DEPARTMENT FOR ENERGOV

IMPLEMENTATION

Approved as to Form:    City of Lathrop
City Attorney

z z3
Salva or Navarrete Date

Recommended for Approval:   City of Lathrop
Assistant City Manager

Michael King Date

Approved by: City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Stephen J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

Consultant:    Robert Half International, Inc.

10100 Trinity Parkway, Suite 330
Stockton, CA 95219

Phone: ( 925) 225- 0690

Federal ID # 94- 1648752

Lathrop Business License # 20402

Signature Date

Print Name and Title

Page 3 of 3

300



DocuSign Envelope ID: 7822C473- E664- 42CB- 6069- 23D557FC4CDB

EXHIBIT A

ROBERT HALF STATEMENT OF WORK

This Robert Half Statement of Work RH(" SOW"), effective as of March znd, zoz3, is entered into by and between City of Lathrop(" Client")

and Robert Half International Inc., through its technology practice group(" RH").

t.   Scope of Engagement. RH will assign one or more individual( s) to Client to assist Client with its completion of the following:

Consultant to be responsible for independently performing the full scope of routine and complex assigned duties to

bring the EnerGov platform to a Go Live Status. They are to receive task guidance from the Chief Building Official and

the ISD Management Analyst. The scope of tasks assigned will be specific to EnerGov Applications for the Permitting

Inspections modules, including but not limited to: 1. Core Configuration: CSS, EnerGov Permitting, EnerGov
Inspections, associated System/ Global settings.  ( a.) Custom Field/ Online Custom Fields— creation and updates ( b.)

Fee/ Fee Template/ Fee Automation— creation and updates c. Reviews/ Submittals/ Items/ Files/ Conditions— creation

and updates ( d.) Workflow/ Actions/ Steps/ Tasks, etc. — creation and updates ( e.) Holds — creation and updates. 2.

Report Configuration: ( a.) EnerGov SSRS Reporting, Crystal Reports maintenance and creation, SQL Queries. 3.
Automation:  ( a.)  Intelligent Objects,  Intelligent Actions,  GeoRules,  stored procedures,  and views creation,

modification and optimization specific to EnerGov Applications. 4. Testing: ( a.) Testing as configurations are made/

changed ( b.) Daily Documentation of Testing ( i.) Summary of Tasks Completed in Smartsheet to align with Timecard

Reporting • Task • Status• Time Spent on Task • Log into the EnerGov— remaining items Log. 5. Training: ( a.) Work

with Department Administrator to create Training Materials( b.) Assist with preparing for and performing Department
Training ( c.) Daily Zoom Sharing Meetings ( i.) Screensharing and training on items identified in daily work • 1 to 2

hours per day minimum. 6. Availability: ( a.) Necessity to being available on call and through email with a time

response of no more than an hour during expected business hours, unless notified of Out- Of-Office days/ hours.

z.   Professionals. RH will assign the following individual( s)( each a" Professional") to Client for this engagement:

Name of Professional Hourly Bill Rate Estimated Start Date Estimated End Date

Ricardo Mendoza 9o. 00 hr.  4/ z5/ zoZZ 613o1z4

3.   Contact Information.

Client Re resentative RH Re resentative

Name: Hailey Emery Name: Caleb Banks

E- mail: heme ci. lathro . ca. us E- Mail: caleb. banks roberthalf. com

Phone: zo9- 94- 7343 Phone: 4i5-564-34 7
Address: 390 towne centere drive Lathrop, CA 9533o Address: z 8o harvard st. suite z5o Sacramento, A 958i5

4.   Termination. Either party may terminate this SOW at any time upon[ thirty]([ 30]) days' prior written notice to the other party.

5.   General Conditions of Engagement. RH assigns the Professional( s) to Client pursuant to the General Conditions of Engagement attached

hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by reference.

Agreed to:      Agreed to:

City of Lathrop Robert Half Intemational Inc.
DocuSigned by:

By By
Authorized signature ss Pg t    signature

O Robert Half International Inc., 2023. All rights reserved.       Robert Half International Inc. is an Equal Opportunity Employer M/ F/ D/ V
Page of 5 v. ioz

301



DocuSign Envelope ID: 7822C473- E664- 42CB- 6069- 23D557FC4CDB

Name( type or print):   Name( type or print): ason Ki ng

Date:    Date: 3/ 2/ 2023

OO Robert Half International Inc., 2023. All rights reserved.       Robert Half InternaEional Inc. is an Equal Opportunity Employer M/ F/ D/ V
Page z of 5 v. ioz

302



DocuSign Envelope ID: 7822C473-E664-42CB-B069-23D557FC4CDB

Exhibit A

General Conditions of Engagement

Required Screening.
If Client requires RH to perform background checks or other placement screenings of the Professionals, Client agrees to notify RH

prior to the start of Services under this SOW. RH will conduct such checks or screenings only if they are described in a signed,

written amendment to this SOW. If Client requests a copy of the results of any checks conducted on RH' s Professionals, Client

agrees to keep such results strictly confidential and to use such results in accordance with applicable laws and solely for
employment purposes.

Scope of Assignment.

Client shall supervise the Professionals. Client will not permit or require a Professional( i) to perForm services outside of the scope

of his or her assignment;( ii) to sign contracts or statements;( iii) to make any final decisions regarding system design, software
development or the acquisition of hardware or software; ( iv) to make any management decisions; or( v) to use computers or
other electronic devices, software, services, tools, e- mail accounts or network equipment owned or licensed by the Professional.

Cash Handling and Other Financial Transactions and Activities
If Client permits or allows a Professional to sign, endorse, wire, transport or otherwise convey cash, securities, checks, or any
negotiable instruments or valuables, or conduct financial transactions or other related activities, Client accepts sole responsibility
for all claims, demands and liability that may arise from permitting these activities. Client represents and warrants that to the
extent Client permits or allows a Professional to engage in the activities described in this paragraph, Client will not permit or allow
a Professional to handle more than( i)$ i,000 per day if lient is a non- profit entity, or( ii)$ 25, 00o per day if Client is a for-profit
entity.

Workplace Safety.

Client agrees that Client has full responsibility for:( i) providing safe working conditions as required by law, including compliance
with all public health and occupational safety regulations and guidelines applicable to Client' s business, and ( ii) ensuring that
safety plans exist for, and safety related training is provided to, Professionals working on Client' s premises. To ensure the safety
of potentially vulnerable individuals on Client' s premises, Client agrees not to permit Professionals to have unsupervised or
unmonitored contact with() minors or( z) adults who are under Client' s care, custody or supervision because of inental health

impairments. If any assignment under this SOW is for work to be performed under a government contract or subcontract, Client
will notify RH immediately of any obligations in the government contract or subcontract relating to wages.

Operation of Vehicles and E uiment.
RH does not authorize a Professional to operate machinery( other than office machines) or vehicles. If Client wishes to permit a
Professional to drive for business purposes, Client accepts sole responsibility for all liability, damages, injuries or other claims that
may arise or be incurred as a result of such driving. If Client requires a Professional to drive a vehicle owned by Client or by a Client
employee, Client agrees to maintain such vehicle in good working condition and maintain all necessary and appropriate insurance
for the operation of such vehicle. Under no circumstances will Client permit a Professional to: make bank deposits; carry cash in
excess of$ ioo, negotiable instruments or other valuables while driving; or have passengers in the vehicle. It is agreed that Client
accepts full responsibility for, and that RH does not maintain insurance to cover any injury, damage, or loss that may result from
Client' s failure to comply with the foregoing.

Remote Work.

Client may request that a Professional provide services remotely( i. e., from a location other than Client' s or Client' s customer' s

premises) using a laptop and/ or other computer or telecommunications equipment provided by Client or RH ( collectively, the
Equipment").  In such case, Client acknowledges and agrees that RH shall have no control over, and Client shall be solely

responsible for, (i) the logical and physical perFormance, reliability and security of the Equipment and related devices, network
accessibility and availability, software, services, tools and e- mail accounts ( collectively, " Computer Systems") used by the

Professional, and( ii) the security or integrity of the data and other information stored therein or transmitted thereby. Moreover,
Client must not permit a Professional to save or store any Client files or other data on the Computer Systems provided by RH
including, but not limited to, any virtual desktop infrastructure solution). Client agrees that RH shall not be liable for any loss,

damage, expense, harm, business interruption or inconvenience resulting from the use of such Computer Systems.

laim .

O Robert Half International Inc., 2023. All rights reserved.       Robert Half International Inc. is an Equal Opportunity Employer M/ F/ D/ V
Page 3 of 5 v. ioz

303



DocuSign Envelope ID: 7822C473- E664- 42C6- 6069- 23D557FC4CD6

Client hereby agrees to waive all claims against Robert Half Intemational Inc. and its subsidiaries, divisions and affiliates, including
their respective employees, officers and di ectors( individually and together," Robert Half") and to defend and indemnify Robert

Half against any claim, demand or liability arising from Client' s failure to comply with the terms of this Agreement, including, but
not limited to, claims arising from any damage to goods, materials or other items. Client agrees that it is responsible for reporting
any claim to RH in writing during or within ninety( 90) days after the termination of the applicable assignment.  RH will not be

responsible for any claim related to the engagement, including, but not limited to, any Services performed during such
engagement, unless Client has reported such claim in writing to RH within ninety( 90) days after termination of the applicable
assignment.

Confidentiali.

Professionals will execute any confidentiality agreement that Client may require.  Client is responsible for obtaining the
Professional' s signature. Client agrees to hold in confidence the identity of any Professional and the Professional' s resume, social
security number and other legally protected personal information, and Client agrees to implement and maintain reasonable
security procedures and practices to protect such information from unauthorized access, use, modification or disclosure.

Limitation on Liability.

Circumstances may arise where, because of a default on RH' s part or other liability, Client is entitled to recover damages from RH.
Regardless of the basis on which Client is entitled to claim damages from RH ( including fundamental breach, negligence,
misrepresentation or other contract or tort claim), RH' s liability, if any, will, in the aggregate for all claims, causes of action or
damages, be limited to any actual direct damages up to an amount equal to the fees actually paid to RH for the services that are
the subject of the claim.  Under no circumstances is RH liable for any special, incidental, exemplary, indirect, lost profits; or
consequential damages( including, but not limited to, lost business, revenue, goodwill, or anticipated savings), even if informed
of the possibility. It is understood that Client is responsible for implementing and maintaining usual, customary and appropriate
internal accounting procedures and controls, internal controls and other appropriate procedures and controls ( including
information technology, proprietary information, creative designs and trade secret safeguards) for Client, and RH shall not be

responsible for any losses, liabilities or claims arising from the lack of such controls or procedures.

Employment Taxes, Withholdings and Insurance.

Each party will maintain workers' compensation insurance and commercial liability insurance. RH will be responsible, to the extent
applicable, for any workers' compensation insurance, federal, state and local withholding and unemployment taxes, social
security, state disability insurance or other payroll charges for the Professionals. RH reserves the right to re-assign any
Professional.

Guarantee.

RH guarantees Client' s satisfaction with the services of each Professional by extending to Client a five( 5) day( 4o hours) guarantee
period. If, for any reason, Client is dissatisfied with a Professional, RH will not charge for the first forty( 40) hours worked during
the applicable guarantee period, provided that Client allows RH to replace the Professional and Client contacts RH regarding its
dissatisfaction before the end of the applicable guarantee period. Unless lient contacts RH before the end of the applicable
guarantee period, Client agrees that the Professional is satisfactory. RH MAKES NO OTHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED WARRANTIES
REGARDING THE SERVICES,  INCLUDING,  BUT NOT LIMITED TO,  ANY WARRANTY OF QUALITY,  PERFORMANCE,

MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR ANY PURPOSE.

Services Provided on a Time and Materials Basis.

Notwithstanding any language to the contrary in this SOW with regard to fixed- price, deliverables or acceptance of deliverables,
RH shall be compensated on an hourly basis only. RH is not providing deliverables under this SOW.

If, for any reason, any Professional is unable to complete his or her assignment, RH will endeavor to provide a suitable
replacement, subject to Client' s approval. If RH is unable to identify a replacement acceptable to Client, this SOW will be
deemed to have automatically ended with respect to such Professional, except that Client shall remain liable to RH for services
provided by such Professional prior to his/ her termination.

O Robert Half International Inc., 2023. All rights reserved.       Robert Half International Inc. is an Equal Opportunity Employer M/ F/ D/ V
Page 4 of 5 v. ioz

304



DocuSign Envelope ID: 7822C473- E664-42C6- B069-23D557FC4CD6

Payment Terms.

Each Professional will present a time sheet or an electronic time record to Client' s or Client' s representative for verification and
approval at the end of each week.  RH will bill Client weekly for the total hours worked. RH' s invoices are due upon receipt,

including applicable sales and service taxes all of which are payable by lient. In the event that Client fails to pay the invoices
when due, Client agrees to pay all of RH' s costs of collection, including reasonable attorneys' fees, whether or not legal action is
initiated. Additionally, RH may, at its option, charge interest on any overdue amounts at a rate of the lesser of i'/: Y per month or
the highest rate allowed by applicable law from the date the amount first became due. RH may charge you a technology fee for
the provision of equipment or technology, if you request that our professional use equipment or technology provided by us. RH
may also increase its rates for the services provided under this SOW to reflect increases in RH' s own costs of doing business,
including costs associated with higher wages for workers and/ or related tax, benefit and other costs. RH will provide written or
verbal notice of the technology fees and/ or increase in rates for the services, and such increase will be prospective, starting as of
the efFective date RH specifies.

Overtime.

If applicable, overtime will be billed at i.5o times the normal billing rate. Federal law defines overtime as hours in excess of 40
hours per week, state laws vary. If state law requires double time pay, the double time hours will be billed at z. 00 times the normal
billing rate.

Exeonses.

Travel and/ or out-of-pocket expenses incurred by a Professional shall be reimbursed by Client immediately upon Client' s
receipt of invoice.

Hiring the Professional.

After Client evaluates the performance and potential of a Professional on the job, Client may wish to employ this person directly.
In such event, Client agrees to pay a conversion fee. The conversion fee is payable if Client hires the Professional, regardless of
the employment classification, on either a full- time, temporary ( including temporary assignments through another agency) or
consulting basis within twelve months after the last day of the Professional' s assignment. Client also agrees to pay a conversion
fee if a Professional is hired by ( i) a subsidiary or other related company or business as a result of Client' s referral of the
Professional to that company or( ii) one of Client' s customers as a result of the Professional providing services to that customer.
The conversion fee will be owed and invoiced upon Client' s hiring of the Professional, and payment is due upon receipt of the
invoice. The same calculation ve ill be used if Client converts the Professional on a part-time basis using the full-time equivalent
salary.

The conversion fee will equal Fifteen percent([ 5]%) of the Professional' s aggregate annual compensation, including bonuses.

Miscellaneous.

For a change to be valid, both parties must sign it. Additional or different terms in any written communication from Client( such
as a purchase order) are void. Any terms of this SOW which by their nature extend beyond the termination of this SOW will remain
in effect until fulfilled, including any payment obligations, and apply to each party' s respective successors and assignees. This
SOW is the complete agreement regarding the engagement( s) identified on the first page of this SOW, and replaces any prior oral
or written communications between RH and lient regarding such engagement( s).

O Robert Half International Inc., 2023. All rights reserved.       Robert Half International Inc. is an Equal Opportunity Employer M/ F/ D/ V
Page 5 of 5 v. toz

305



306



ITEM 4. 8

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

APRIL 10, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       APPROVAL OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

AGREEMENT WITH BUTLER AMUSEMENTS,  INC.  TO

PROVIDE LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES FOR

ANNUAL CARNIVAL EVENT ON APRIL 20,   2023

THROUGH APRIL 23, 2023

RECOMMENDATION:     Adopt Resolution Approving Professional Services
Agreement with Butler Amusement, Inc. to Provide

Law Enforcement Services for their Annual Carnival

Event on April 20, 2023 through April 23, 2023

SUMMARY:

Butler Amusements, Inc. ( Butler) is holding its annual carnival for 2023 at 1401 River
Islands Parkway ( APN 213- 310- 40). The event is scheduled to be held from April 20,

2023 through April 23, 2023. Set up for the event will begin on April 17, 2023 and

teardown will be on April 24, 2023.   Butler is contracting with a private security firm
to provide security for the duration of the event.  In addition, Butler ha's requested

law enforcement services from the City of Lathrop Police Department ( LPD) for their

event for additional security.  The Lathrop Police Department is requiring two  ( 2)

officers for the peak hours of the event as detailed in the table below:

Date No. of Hours Total

Officers Hours

Frida A ril 21 2 5PM - 9PM 4 hours 8 Hours

Saturda A ril 22 2 5PM - 9PM 4 hours 8 Hours

Sunda  , A ril 23 2 5PM - 9PM 4 hours 8 Hours

The total hours required for the duration of the event is twenty- four ( 24) overtime

hours. LPD is able to provide the required overtime hours for the carnival. Butler has
further agreed to pay the cost of additional law enforcement services should
circumstances require additional hours or mutual aid from other agencies to restore

or secure public safety at the event.

Staff recommends City Council approve the agreement to authorize LPD to provide
law enforcement services for Butler Amusement' s annual carnival event.

BACKGROUND:

Butler holds an annual carnival event during the month of April that attracts
thousands of local attendees from the City of Lathrop and the surrounding areas. In
previous years, Butler has contracted with the San Joaquin County Sheriff's Office to
provide law enforcement services. On June 29, 2022, the Lathrop Police Department
took over law enforcement services from the Sheriff' s Office for the City of Lathrop.

307



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

APRIL 10, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING
APPROVAL OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH BUTLER

AMUSEMENTS,   INC.   TO PROVIDE LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES FOR

ANNUAL CARNIVAL EVENT ON APRIL 20, 2023 THROUGH APRIL 23, 2023

Butler has requested LPD to provide law enforcement services for their annual
carnival this year, and LPD is able to provide the requested hours for the carnival.

The carnival event is scheduled from April 20, 2023 through April 23, 2023 and will

be held at 1401 River Islands Parkway, near the Welcome Center in River Islands.

The carnival will consist of nineteen  ( 19) amusement rides,  approximately eleven
11) game concessions and two ( 2) food concessions. Lathrop Police Department is

requiring a total of twenty- four ( 24)  hours for the duration of the event.  Lathrop
Police Officers will work the hours below:

Date No. of Hours Total Est. OT Estimated

Officers Hours Hourly Rate Total Cost

Frida A ril 21 2 5PM - 9PM 4 hours 8 Hours 104. 46 835. 68

Saturday, April 22 2 5PM - 9PM ( 4 hours)    8 Hours     $ 104. 46 835. 68

Sunda  , A ril 23 2 5PM - 9PM 4 hours 8 Hours 104. 46 835. 68

LPD officers will work on a voluntary and rotational basis, and officers working the
event will do so outside of their regularly assigned work schedule.

The total estimated cost for the 24 overtime hours requested is $ 2, 508. Butler further

agrees to pay the cost of additional law enforcement services should circumstances
require a mutual aid request from other City, County, or State agencies in order to
restore or secure public safety at the event.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

In previous years, the Sheriff' s Department has provided law enforcement services
to Butler for their annual carnival event. LPD is able to provide the services requested
and Butler has agreed to pay the overtime rate to cover the costs of sworn personnel.
Staff recommends Council approve the agreement to allow LPD to provide law
enforcement services for Butler' s annual carnival.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Overtime for the event is estimated at $ 2, 508. At the conclusion of the event, the

City will invoice Butler for the actual cost of providing law enforcement services.
Should circumstances arise requiring more hours than what was scheduled or mutual
aid from other agencies was needed, Butler will be responsible for reimbursement of

the actual hours worked and costs for mutual aid.

There is no fiscal impact to the City for this agreement,  however,  the budget

adjustment below is required to reflect the increase in revenue for staff time:

Increase Revenue: 1010- 40- 30- 341- 01- 01 ( Current Service Charges) $ 2, 508

Increase Expense: 1010- 40- 30- 410- 13- 00 ( Overtime) $ 2, 508

308



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

APRIL 10, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVAL OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH BUTLER

AMUSEMENTS,   INC.   TO PROVIDE LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES FOR

ANNUAL CARNIVAL EVENT ON APRIL 20, 2023 THROUGH APRIL 23, 2023

ATTAC H M E NTS:

A.       Resolution Approving Professional Services Agreement with Butler

Amusements,  Inc. to Provide Law Enforcement Services for Annual Carnival

Event on April 20, 2023 through April 23, 2023

B.       Professional Services Agreement with Butler Amusements, Inc. to Provide Law

Enforcement Services for Annual Carnival Event on April 20, 2023 through April

23, 2023

309



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 4

APRIL 10, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVAL OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH BUTLER

AMUSEMENT TO PROVIDE LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES FOR ANNUAL

CARNIVAL EVENT ON APRIL 20, 2023 THROUGH APRIL 23, 2023

AP OVALS•

3 L-    Z
Raymond Bechler Date

Chief of Police

3 3% t` Z3
Cari Jame   Date

Finance Dir ctor

Z p Z.

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

3•3-. 3
Stephen J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

310



RESOLUTION NO. 23 -

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH BUTLER

AMUSEMENTS,   INC.   TO PROVIDE LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES FOR

ANNUAL CARNIVAL EVENT ON APRIL 20, 2023 THROUGH APRIL 23, 2023

WHEREAS, Butler Amusements, Inc. ( Butler) is holding its annual carnival at
1401 River Islands Parkway ( APN 213- 310- 40); and

WHEREAS, the event is scheduled to be held from April 20, 2023 through April

23, 2023, with set up for the event to begin on April 17, 2023 and teardown will be
on April 24, 2023; and

WHEREAS,  the carnival will consist of nineteen  ( 19)  amusement rides,

approximately eleven ( 11) game concessions and two ( 2) food concessions; and

WHEREAS, Butler is contracting with a private security firm to provide security
for the duration of the event; and

WHEREAS,  in previous years,  Butler has contracted with the San Joaquin

County Sheriff' s Office to provide additional law enforcement services; and

WHEREAS, on June 29, 2022, the Lathrop Police Department took over law
enforcement services from the Sheriff' s Office for the City of Lathrop; and

WHEREAS, Butler has requested LPD provide law enforcement services for
their annual event this year, and LPD is able to provide the requested hours; and

WHEREAS, Government Code 53069. 8 allows the legislative body of any city
to contract with private entities to preserve the peace at special events or occurrences
and provide supplemental law enforcement services; and

WHEREAS, the Lathrop Police Department is requiring two ( 2) officers for the
peak hours of the event as detailed in the table below; and

Date No. of Hours Total

Officers Hours

Frida A ril 21 2 5PM - 9PM 4 hours 8 Hours

Saturda A ril 22 2 5PM - 9PM 4 hours 8 Hours

Sunda A ril 23 2 5PM - 9PM 4 hours 8 Hours

WHEREAS, the total hours required for the duration of the event is twenty-
four ( 24) overtime hours.

WHEREAS, officers will work on a voluntary and rotational basis, and officers
working the event will do so outside of their regularly assigned work schedule; and

311



WHEREAS, Butler further agrees to pay the cost of additional law enforcement
services should circumstances require a mutual aid request from other City, County,
or State agencies in order to restore or secure public safety at the event; and

WHEREAS, overtime for the event is estimated at $ 2, 508.

WHEREAS, there is no fiscal impact to the City for this agreement, however,
the budget adjustment below is required to reflect the increase in revenue for staff

time:

Increase Revenue: 1010- 4030- 341- 0101 ( Current Service Charges) $ 2, 508

Increase Expense: 1010- 4030- 410- 13- 00 ( Overtime) $ 2, 508

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop does hereby approve the agreement with Butler Amusements, Inc. to provide
law enforcement services for the annual carnival event on April 20, 2023 through

April 23, 2023.

312



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this lOth day of April 2023,
by the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:    APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

313



qttachment 6

CITY OF LATHROP

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH BUTLER AMUSEMENTS, INC. TO

PROVIDE LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES FOR ANNUAL CARNIVAL EVENT ON

APRIL 20, 2023 THROUGH APRIL 23, 2023

THIS AGREEMENT for law enforcement services to BUTLER AMUSEMENTS, INC. for the

ANNUAL CARNIVAL event( hereinafter" EVENT"), dated for convenience this day ofApri12023 is
by and between BUTLER AMUSEMENTS, INC., a separate and distinct entity (hereinafter` BUTLER")
and the City of Lathrop, a California municipal corporation( hereinafter" CITY"). The CITY and BUTLER

may be referred to herein as " Party" or collectively as" Parties".

RECITALS:

WHEREAS, BUTLER requests the CITY to provide law enforcement security services for its
EVENT; and

WHEREAS, the CITY desires to accommodate BUTLER' S request and has no objections to

providing law enforcement security services for the EVENT as allowed by Government Code 53069. 8 and
reserves the right to terminate EVENT for the purposes of public safety; and

WHEREAS, any costs associated with work hours pursuant to this AGREEMENT wherein Officers
worked at the EVEN'T shall be paid for by BUTLER at the rate indicated in the estimated cost schedule
below.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the recitals, covenants, terms, and conditions in this

Agreement, BUTLER and the CITY agree as follows:

AGREEMENT

1)       Scoue of Service

CITY's assigned police officers shall provide law enforcement security services to BUTLER' S
ANNUAL CARNIVAL EVENT located at 1401 River Islands Parkway, Lathrop, CA 95330 in
accordance with the terms and conditions contained in this Agreement.

A.  Each police officer shall be the CITY' s employee and shall be subject to the CITY' s
administration, supervision, and control.

B.  BUTLER agrees to the estimated costs for law enforcement security provided by the
Lathrop Police Department.

C.  The estimated costs is based on the understanding that CITY shall assign Police
Officers to cover the EVENT on each requested day on a rotational basis. Police
Officer( s) will work from a schedule with a total of 24 hours for the duration of the

EVENT as detailed in Section 2 Compensation below.

D.  The CITY shall be entitled to a reimbursement should circumstances arise requiring
more hours/ and or personnel and the estimated cost would be adjusted accordingly.

Page 1 of 7314



CITY OF LATHROP   -   PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH BUTLER

AMUSEMENTS,  INC. TO PROVIDE LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES FOR THE ANNUAL
CARNIVAL EVENT APRIL 20, 2023 THROUGH APRIL 23, 2023.

E.  BUTLER shall be entitled to a reduction for less hours worked should circumstances

such as rain and wind) cause the EVENT to be closed or impacted. Additionally,
event hours are estimates. If the EVENT closes early, officers may work less hours.

F.  BUTLER agrees to pay the CITY for all costs associated with providing law
enforcement services for the EVENT. In addition, if further resources are needed to

provide adequate security at the EVENT, including mutual aid from other agencies,
those cost will be the responsibility of BUTLER. Hourly rates for the additional
resources that are not included in the estimated cost schedule may vary.

2)       Compensation

BUTLER hereby agrees to the estimated cost for law enforcement services as detailed in the schedule
below:

Date No. of Hours Total Est. OT Estimated

Officers Hours Hourly Rate Total Cost

4/ 21/ 23 2 5PM - 9PM 4 hours 8 Hours 104. 46 835. 68

4/ 22/ 23 2 5PM - 9PM ( 4 hours)    8 Hours     $ 104. 46 835. 68

4/ 23/ 23 2 5PM - 9PM 4 hours 8 Hours 104. 46 835. 68

Total Estimated Cost 2 507. 04

CITY will invoice BUTLER for law enforcement services far actual hours of CITY personnel and
any additional resource costs incurred for the EVENT. Hourly rates for additional resources that may
be needed to provide adequate security at the EVENT that are not included in the estimated cost
schedule above may vary.

3)      Effective Date and Term

The effective date of this Agreement shall be from the date of its full execution through Apri123,

2023, unless terminated earlier by either party providing seven ( 7) days' written notice.

4)      Emplovment of Ofticer( s) and Assi nments

CITY shall retain control over supervision, wages, and other terms and conditions of employment of

the officers providing the services under this Agreement. The parties acknowledge that such officers
are held to the requirements of the law and CITY policies and procedures. BUTLER shall
immediately notify the CITY of any concerns regarding the performance of the assigned officers,
including, but not limited to, adherence to quality of services as detailed in this agreement.

CITY shall assign Police Officers to cover the EVENT on each requested day on a rotational basis.
Police Officer( s) will work from a schedule as detailed in Section 2 Compensation of the Agreement,
unless otherwise adjusted due to circumstantial events as referenced in the Agreement.

5)      Billings

CITY shall submit one invoice at the conclusion of the EVENT for actual law enforcement services

incurred and any additional resource costs incurred for the EVENT. BUTLER shall remit payment to
the CITY within thirty (30) days of receipt of invoice.

Page 2 of 7315



CITY OF LATHROP   -   PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH BUTLER

AMUSEMENTS,  INC. TO PROVIDE LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES FOR THE ANNUAL

CARNIVAL EVENT APRIL 20, 2023 THROUGH APRIL 23, 2023.

6)       Supplies & Equipment

CITY shall provide each officer with the following equipment:

A.       Police Vehicles: CitX shall,
1. Provide a standard patrol vehicle for each officer.
2. Maintain the motor vehicles assigned to each officer.

3. Purchase gasoline, oil, replacement tires, and other expenses associated with
the operation of each motor vehicle.

4. Maintain comprehensive general auto liability insurance on each motor
vehicle in an amount as is cunently provided through the Central San Joaquin
Valley Risk Management Authority.

B.       Wea ons and Ammunition

1. CITY shall provide the standard issued weapons( handgun, shotgun, and rifle)
and rounds of ammunition for each officer.

C.       Office Su plies
1. CITY shall provide each officer with the usual and customary office supplies
and forms required in the performance of their duties.

7)       Compliance With the Laws

The Parties shall keep themselves informed of and in compliance with all federal, state and local
laws, ordinances, regulations, and orders that may affect in any manner performance of the Services
or those engaged to perform Services under this Agreement.

8)      Insurance

A.       BUTLER shall maintain commercial general liability insurance coverage at least as
broad as Insurance Services Office( ISO) form CG 00 01, in an amount not less than

one million dollars($ 1, 000,000) per occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury,
and property damage, including without limitation, blanket contractual liability. If a
general aggregate limit applies, either the general aggregate limit shall apply
separately to this project%location or the general aggregate limit shall be twice the
required occurrence limit. BUTLER general liability policies shall be primary and
shall not seek contribution from the CITY' s coverage, and be endorsed using ISO
form CG 20 10 ( or equivalent) to provide that City and its officers, officials,
employees, and agents shall be additional insureds under such policies.  For
construction projects, an endorsement providing completed operations coverage for
the additional insured, ISO form CG 20 37( or equivalent) is also required.

B.       Any failure to comply with reporting provisions of the policies by BUTLER shall
not affect coverage provided the CITY.

C.       Coverage shall state that BUTLER insurance shall apply separately to each insured
against whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of

the insurer' s liability.

D.       Coverage shall contain a waiver of subrogation in favor of the CITY.

Page 3 of 7316



CITY OF LATHROP   —   PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH BUTLER

AMUSEMENTS,  INC. TO PROVIDE LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES FOR THE ANNUAL
CARNIVAL EVENT APRIL 20, 2023 THROUGH APRIL 23, 2023.

9)      Indemnification

A.       BUTLER shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the City, its officers, officials,
employees, and volunteers( hereafter collectively City Personnel) from and against
any and all liability, claims, damage, cost, expenses, awards, fines, judgments, and
expenses of litigation ( including, without limitation, costs, attorney fees, expert
witness fees and prevailing party fees and cost) of every nature arising out of or in
connection with the any services provided by the City or any City Personnel or their
performance of work or any failure to comply with any of the City' s duties
contained in the Agreement, except such loss or damage which was caused by the
gross or willful misconduct of City Personnel.

B.       In the event of concurrent negligence on the part of BUTLER or any of its officers,
directors, trustees, employees, agents or volunteers, and CITY or any of its officers,
officials, employees, agents or volunteers, the liability for any and all such claims,
demands and actions in law equity for such losses, fines, penalties, forfeiture, costs
and damages shall be apportioned under the State of California' s theory of
comparative negligence as presently established or as may be modified hereafter.

C.       If BUTLER rejects a tender of defense by the City or City Personnel under this
Agreement, and it is later determined that the City and City Personnel breached no
duty of care and/ or were immune from liability, BUTLER shall reimburse the City
and/ or City Personnel for any and all litigation expenses ( including, without
limitation, costs, attorney fees, expert witness fees and prevailing party fees and
cost). A duty of care ar immunity determination may be made by a jury or a court,
including a declaratory relief determination by a court after the City and/ or City
Personnel settles a liabiliry claim, with or without participation by BUTLER.

D.       The Parties acknowledge that it is not the intent of the Agreement to create a duty of
care by the City or City Personnel that they would not owe in the absence of the
Agreement. The Agreement does not create an affirmative duty of care( including,
without limitation, a duty to protect, a duty to deter and/ or a duty to intervene) by
the City or City Personnel and the absence of City Personnel is not a material breach
of this Agreement. The Parties further acknowledge that by entering into this
Agreement neither the City nor City Personnel intend to waive any immunities to
which they would be entitled in the absence of the Agreement.

10)     Integration of Prior Terms and Conditions

This Agreement, including all recitals, constitutes the entire agreement of the Parties. This
Agreement may be amended or modified only by the mutual written agreement of the Parties. This
Agreement is invalid unless approved by the legislative body of each Party, although it may be
executed by an authorized agent of each Party. An authorized agent of the City shall be a person
specifically authorized by the legislative body of the City to execute this Agreement, at the level of
City Manager or City Attorney or equivalent. The indemnity sections shall survive termination ar
expiration of this agreement.

11)     Termination

Either Party to this Agreement may for any reason terminate this Agreement at any time by giving

Page 4 of 7317



CITY OF LATHROP   —   PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH BUTLER

AMUSEMENTS,  INC. TO PROVIDE LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES FOR THE ANNUAL

CARNIVAL EVENT APRIL 20, 2023 THROUGH APRIL 23, 2023.

seven ( 7) days' written notice to the other party. Upon termination of this Agreement as herein
provided, BUTLER shall have no obligation to compensate of pay the CITY except for services
provided prior to termination.   

12)     Notices

All contracts, appointments, approvals, authorizations, claims, demands, Change Orders, consents,

designations, notices, offers, requests and statements given by either party to the other shall be in
writing and shall be sufficiently given and served upon the other party( 1) personally served,( 2) sent
by the United States mail, postage prepaid, by certified mail ( 3) sent by private express delivery
service and addressed as follows:

To City:       City of Lathrop
City Clerk
390 Towne Centre

Lathrop, CA 95330

Copy to: City of Lathrop
Lathrop Police Department
940 River Islands Parkway
Lathrop, CA 95330

To BUTLER: Butler Amusements, Inc.

Attn: Andrea Stillwell

P. O. Box 2210

Fairfield, CA 94533

13)     Miscellaneous

A.       Consent. Whenever in this Agreement the approval or consent of a party is required, such
approval or consent shall be in writing and shall be executed by a person having the express
authority to grant such approval or consent.

B.       Contract Terms Prevail. All exhibits and this Agreement are intended to be construed as a

single document.   Should any inconsistency occur between the specific terms of this
Agreement and attached exhibits, the terms of this Agreement shall prevail.

C.       Non-Discrimination. No party shall employ any discriminatory practices in its performance
hereunder, including its employment practices, on the basis of sex, race, color, religion,
national origin, ancestry, age, sexual orientation, or physical and mental disability.

D.       Controlling Law. The parties agree that this Agreement shall be governed and construed by
and in accordance with the Laws of the State of California.

E.       Force Majeure. Neither party shall be deemed to be in default on account of any delay or
failure to perform its obligations under this Agreement, which directly results from an Act of
God or an act of a superior governmental authority.

F. Headings. The paragraph headings are not a part of this Agreement and shall have no effect

Page 5 of 7318



CITY OF LATHROP   —   PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH BUTLER

AMUSEMENTS,  INC. TO PROVIDE LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES FOR THE ANNUAL

CARNIVAL EVENT APRIL 20, 2023 THROUGH APRIL 23, 2023.

upon the construction or interpretation of any part of this Agreement.

G.       Incorporation of Documents.   All documents constituting the Agreement documents
described in Section 1 hereof and all documents which may, from time to time, be referred to
in any duly executed amendment hereto are by such reference incorporated in the Agreement
and shall be deemed to be part of this Agreement.

H.       Integration. This Agreement and any amendments hereto between the parties constitute the
entire Agreement between the parties concerning the Project and Work, and there are no
other prior oral or written agreements between the parties that are not incorporated in this
Agreement.

I. Modification of Agreement. This Agreement shall not be modified or be binding upon the
parties unless such modification is agreed to in writing and signed by the parties.

J. Provision.    Any agreement,  covenant,  condition,  clause,  qualification,  restriction,

reservation, term or other stipulation in the Agreement shall define or otherwise control,

establish or limit the performance required or permitted or to be required of or permitted by
either party. All provisions, whether covenants or conditions, shall be deemed to be both
covenants and conditions.

K.       Severability. The invalidity in whole or part of any provision of this Agreement shall not
void or affect the validity of any other provision of this agreement. If a court of competent
jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision of this Agreement is void or unenforceable, the
provisions of this Agreement not so affected shall remain in full force and effect.

L.       Successors and Assigns. The provisions of this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of, and
shall apply to and bind, the successors and assigns of the parties.

M.      Venue. In the event that suit is brought by either party hereunder, the parties agree that trial
of such action shall be vested exclusively in the state courts of California in the County of
San Joaquin or in the United States District Court for the Eastern District of California.

N.       Recovery of Costs. The prevailing party in any action brought to enforce the terms of this
Agreement or arising out of this Agreement may recover its reasonable costs, including
reasonable attorney' s fees, incurred or expended in connection with such action against the
non- prevailing party

14)     Si natures

The individuals executing this Agreement represent and warrant that they have the right, power, legal
capacity, and authority to enter into and to execute this Agreement on behalf of the respective legal
entities of BUTLER and the CITY. This agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon
the parties hereto and their respective successors and assigns.

Page6of7319



CITY OF LATHROP   —   PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH BUTLER

AMUSEMENTS,  INC. TO PROVIDE LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES FOR THE ANNUAL

CARNIVAL EVENT APRIL 20, 2023 THROUGH APRIL 23, 2023.

In Witness Whereof, each Party to this Agreement has signed this Agreement upon the date indicated, and
agrees, for itself, its employees, officers, partners, and successors, to be fully bound by all terms and
conditions of this Agreement.

City of Lathrop:  Butler Amusements, Inc.:

Stephen J. Salvatore Date Andrea Stillwell Date

City Manager Butler Amusements, Inc.

Approved as to Form:

r

Z 2QZ 

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

Attest:

Teresa Vargas Date

City Clerk

Page7of7320



ITEM 4. 9

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

APRIL 10, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM: APPROVE COMMUNITY PARTNERSHIP

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF LATHROP

AND THE 7UNETEENTH COMMITTEE TO

COMMEMORATE THE JUNETEENTH NATIONAL

INDEPENDENCE DAY FEDERAL HOLIDAY

RECOMMENDATION:    Adopt Resolution Approving a Community
Partnership Agreement between the City
of Lathrop and the 7uneteenth Committee
to Commemorate the 7uneteenth National

Independence Day Federal Holiday

SUMMARY:

The Lathrop Juneteenth Committee, a local residents group, is currently permitted to
host a  ) uneteenth National Independence Day Special Event at the Generations
Center on Saturday,  June 24,  2023.     Staff met with the Lathrop Juneteenth
Committee at the Generations Center to discuss logistics for the Juneteenth National

Independence Day Special Event.  Additionally, the Juneteenth Committee was asked
to submit an email outlining the areas in which the Juneteenth Committee would like
to have directorial control and which areas the Juneteenth Committee would like to

have the City facilitate.    Staff suggested the use of the Community Partnership
Agreement to clearly identify the roles and responsibilities.    Staff received the

Juneteenth Committee request and worked with the  ] uneteenth Committee to

develop the attached Community Partnership Agreement, which would establish a
co- sponsored Juneteenth National Independence Day Federal Holiday Special Event.

The Inaugural Juneteenth National Independence Day Special Event will take place
on Saturday, June 24, 2023 at the Lathrop Generations Center from 10: 00 a. m. to
5: 00 p. m. The Juneteenth National Independence Day Special Event will feature food
trucks, entertainment, children' s activities, informational and community booths, and
craft and art vendor booths.  The ) uneteenth National Independence Day Special
Event is open to the public and is expected to have an estimated 400 people in
attendance.

BACKGROUND:

On June 17, 2021, President ] oe Biden signed the Juneteenth National Independence

Day Act into law, officially making June 19th a Federal Holiday and giving national
recognition commemorating the day of emancipation. The attached Community
Partnership Agreement will better serve the community by commemorating a co-
sponsored Juneteenth National Independence Day Federal Holiday Special Event. The

321



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

APRIL 10, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVE COMMUNITY PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF

LATHROP AND THE JUNETEENTH COMMITTEE TO COMMEMORATE THE

JUNETEENTH NATIONAL INDEPENDENCE DAY FEDERAL HOLIDAY

Inaugural Juneteenth National Independence Day Special Event would take place on
Saturday, June 24, 2023 at the Lathrop Generations Center from 10: 00 a. m. to 5: 00
p. m.

The attached proposed Community Partnership Agreement identifies that the Lathrop
Juneteenth Committee shall procure community partnerships, craft and art vendors,
food trucks,  cultural elements,  entertainment,  bounce houses,  amplified sound

equipment, event decor, event program and flyer. The City of Lathrop shall procure
the event layout,  Lathrop Police Department plan review,  Lathrop Manteca Fire
District plan review,   parking,   access,  traffic control,  garbage/ refuse disposal,

restrooms, security, twenty ( 20) tented vendor booths, invite Lathrop Manteca Fire
District to participate, host City of Lathrop Community Booths ( i. e. Parks, Recreation
and Maintenance Services,  Lathrop Police Department,  Animal Services  /  Pet

Adoptions and Public Works) and assist with the marketing of provided materials on
City social media platforms.

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends Council find the requested Community Partnership Agreement
between the City of Lathrop and the Lathrop Juneteenth Committee as a public
benefit to the community and approve the Community Partnership Agreement with
the Lathrop Juneteenth Committee.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The fiscal impact of co- sponsoring the Juneteenth National Independence Day Special
Event including stafFing and all Special Event logistics is estimated to be $ 14, 345.

Funds are available within the FY 22/ 23 budget to cover the Event staffing and
logistics.

ATTACH M ENTS:

A.  Resolution to approve a Community Partnership Agreement between the

City of Lathrop and the Juneteenth Committee in order to better serve
the community and celebrate the Juneteenth National Independence
Day Federal Holiday

B.  Community Partnership Agreement between the City of Lathrop and
Lathrop Juneteenth Committee

322



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

APPROVE COMMUNITY PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE
CITY OF LATHROP AND THE JUNETEENTH COMMITTEE TO
COMMEMORATE THE JUNETEENTH NATIONAL INDEPENDENCE DAY
FEDERAL HOLIDAY

APPROVALS:

3. 30. 3
Tod Sebastian Date

Director of Parks, Recreation and Maintenance Services

I-
Cari ames Date

Finance Dir tor

3o Go   S
Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

23
Ste en J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

323



RESOLUTION NO. 23 -

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING A COMMUNITY PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY

OF LATHROP AND THE UNETEENTH COMMITTEE TO COMMEMORATE THE

7UNETEENTH NATIONAL INDEPENDENCE DAY FEDERAL HOLIDAY

WHEREAS,  the Lathrop Juneteenth Committee,  a local citizens group,  is

currently permitted to host a Juneteenth National Independence Day Special Event
at the Generations Center on Saturday, June 24, 2023; and

WHEREAS, the Juneteenth Committee submitted an email outlining the areas
in which the Juneteenth Committee would like to have directorial control and which

areas the Juneteenth Committee would like to have the City facilitate and staff
suggested the use of the Community Partnership Agreement to clearly identify the
roles and responsibilities; and

WHEREAS, staff received the ) uneteenth Committee request and worked with

the Juneteenth Committee to develop a Community Partnership Agreement; and

WHEREAS,   the Community Partner Agreement will better serve the

community by commemorating a co- sponsored Inaugural Juneteenth National

Independence Day Special Event to take place on Saturday, June 24, 2023 at the

Lathrop Generations Center from 10: 00 a. m. to 5: 00 p. m.; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that this request provides a public benefit to
the community and the amount of the request is approximately $ 14, 345; and

WHEREAS, sufficient funds are available within the FY 22/ 23 budget.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT that the Council of the City of Lathrop approves
the Community Partnership Agreement between the City of Lathrop and the
Juneteenth Committee to commemorate the Juneteenth National Independence Day
Federal Holiday at a co- sponsored event to take place at the Generations Center on
Saturday, June 24, 2023 at a cost of $ 14, 345.

324



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 10th day of April 2023,
by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:  APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

325



A Community Partnership Agreement with the City of Lathrop
and the Lathrop Juneteenth Committee

This Community Partnership Agreement is made and entered into on April_, 2023, by and between the City of Lathrop,

hereinafter called the CITY) and the Lathrop Juneteenth Committee( hereinafter called the PARTNER), who agree as follows:

A.  Purpose

The purpose of this agreement is to grant the PARTNER recognition as a Community Partner in order to better serve the
community of Lathrop through the use of CITY facilities to celebrate the Juneteenth National Independence Day Federal

Holiday; subject to compliance with the terms of this Agreement and applicable laws and CITY policies, procedures and safety
guidelines.

2023 Juneteenth National Independence Day Federal Holiday Special Event
Date:      Saturday, June 24, 2023
Set- up:    8: 00 a. m. to 10: 00 a.m.

Event Time:       10: 00 a. m. to 5: 00 p. m.
Clean- up: 5: 00 p. m. to 7: 00 p. m.

B.  General Terms of Aqreement

1.   Both parties will designate a person to act as the primary contact to facilitate effective communications regarding the

Community Partnership Agreement. The primary contacts will maintain regular communication meetings to successfully
coordinate and uphold the terms of this agreement. Both parties will schedule in- person meetings two times per month
in April and May to finalize all event logistics antl ensure a smooth and successful event plan.

The CITY hereby designates:

Primary Contact: Director of Parks, Recreation and Maintenance Services— Todd Sebastian

The PARTNER hereby designates:

Primary Contact: Co- Chair, Lathrop Juneteenth Committee— Brandy Perkins

2.   Each party shall, to the fullest extent permitted by law, indemnify, defend, protect, and hold harmless the other party, and
its officers, employees, volunteers and agents from and against any and all liability, losses, claims, damages, expenses,
demands, and costs( including, but not limited to: attomey fees and costs, expert witness and consultant fees and costs,

and litigation costs) of every nature arising out of the indemnifying party' s performance or failure to perform under this
Agreement and caused by any negligent act or omission, willful misconduct or violation of law of or by indemnifying party
or its employees, volunteers, agents and subcontractors, except where caused by the sole negligence or willful
misconduct of the other party or as otherwise limited by law. This indemnity obligation shall survive the terrnination of the
Agreement.

Page 1 of 3

326



C. General Provisions

The PARTNER shall:

1.   Comply with and implement all requirements outlined in this Community Partnership Agreement.
2.   Not damage, deface, destruct or harm facilities, equipment or fumiture. If PARTNER or an employee, agent, contractor,

guest, participant, attendee or invitee damages, defaces, destructs or harms facilities, equipment or fumiture, then
PARTNER shall be liable for the costs of the necessary repairs or replacements. PARTNER shall give prompt written

notice to CITY of any damage or destruction.
3.   PARTNER at its sole cost and expense shall procure the following event amenities:

a.   Community Partnerships
b.   Up to Twenty( 20) Craft and Art Vendors( CITY will provide recent vendor list)

i.  Craft and Art Vendors must adhere to CITY vendor rules and submit the Release of Liability Waiver.
c.   Food Trucks( CITY will provide recent vendor list)

i.  Food Trucks must have a current business licenses with the CITY.

d.   Critical Cultural Elements

e.   All Stage Entertainment

i.  Stage Entertainment must submit the Release of Liability Waiver.
f.    Play Area" Bounce House" w/ Power Need and

i.  Bounce House must submit commercial general liability insurance with limits of at least$ 1, 000, 000

per occurrence endorsing the CITY, and its officers, employees, volunteers and agents as
additional insured.

g.   Event Program/ Marketing/ Flyer( with CITY logo and review)
h.   Dignitary List( Including City Council)
i.    Event Decor

j.   Amplified Sound Equipment/ Power Needs

The CITY shall:

1.   Agree to establish an annual CITY co- sponsored Juneteenth National Independence Day Federal Holiday Special Event.
2.   Agree to allow the use of CITY facilities at no cost in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.

3.   Agree to waive the PARTNER requirement of providing commercial general liability insurance with limits of at least
1, 000, 000 per occurrence endorsing the CITY, and its officers, employees, volunteers and agents as atlditional insured.

4.   Reserve the right for the Lathrop Police Department and the Lathrop Manteca Fire District Fire to suspend any and all

uses should it be necessary to correct any safety related condition or activity until such time that contlition of activities are
deemed safe and appropriate for public usage.

5.   CITY at its sole cost and expense shall procure and provide technical oversight on the following event amenities:
a.   Provide Event Layout/ Mapping

i.  Secure Lathrop Police Department Plan Review
ii.  Secure Lathrop Manteca Fire District Plan Review

b.   Manage Parking and Access
c.   Manage Traffic Control

d.   Manage Garbage/ Refuse

Page 2 of 3

327



e.   Manage Restroom Facilities

f.    Manage Non- Police Department Event Security based on estimated 400 anticipated attendees
g.   Stage powered with four( 4) outlets and basic overhead lighting
h.   Provide Twenty( 20) Tented Craft and Art Vendor Booth Locations
i.    Invite Lathrop Manteca Fire District to host a community booth.
j.    Host City of Lathrop Community Booths:

i.   Parks and Recreation

ii.  Lathrop Police Department
iii.  Animal Control/ Pet Adoptions

iv.  Public Works Water Reduction

6.   Marketing
a.   Post on social media( Facebook and Instagram). Initial Post 30- days prior, second post 14- days prior, and

last post day before event.
b.   Email blast 14- days prior to the event to Parks antl Recreation Department database.
c.   Post on CITY website under the special events page.

D.  Agreement

1.   Entire Agreement; Amendment: This writing represents the sole, final, complete, exclusive and integrated expression and
statement of the terms of this contract between the parties concerning PARTNER' s use of the facilities, and supersedes
all prior oral and/ or written negotiations, representations or contracts. This Agreement may be amended only by a
subsequent written contract approved and executed by both parties.

2.   Successors and Assignment: This Agreement shall bind and ensure to the benefit of the heirs, successors and assigns

of the parties; however, the PARTNER shall not subcontract, assign or transfer this Agreement or any part of it without
the prior written consent of CITY.

APPROVALS:

Date:  Date:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor Brandy Perkins, Lathrop Juneteenth Committee

APPROVED AS TO FORM•

Date:
5- g o  z 3

Salvador Navarrete, City Attomey

Page 3 of 3

328



ITEM 4. 10

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

APRIL 10, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM: APPROVE FISCAL YEAR 2023- 24 PRO7ECT LIST

ASSOCIATED WITH SENATE BILL 1

RECOMMENDATION: Adopt Resolution Approving a List of Projects
for Fiscal Year 2023- 24 Funded By Senate Bill
1, the Road Repair and Accountability Act of
2017

SUMMARY:

Senate Bill 1 ( SB 1), the Road Repair and Accountability Act of 2017, was passed by
the California Legislature and signed into law by the Governor in April 2017 in order
to address the significant transportation funding shortfalls statewide.  The State

Controller provides funds into the Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account
RMRA), which a percentage of these funds are to be apportioned to eligible cities for

road maintenance, rehabilitation, and critical safety projects on local streets and road
systems.

Local Streets and Roads  -  Projected Revenues estimate the City of Lathrop' s
apportionments at $ 774, 510 for Fiscal Year ( FY) 2023- 24. In order to be eligible for

the funding, cities must approve an annual project list by resolution. Using the City' s
existing Pavement Management System and through field inspections,   staff

generated the proposed project list for Fiscal Year ( FY) 2023- 24. The SB 1 project list
includes repairing,  rehabilitating and maintaining existing pavement at several
locations, including but not limited to:

Bizzibe Street Aztec Lane

O Street Warfield Road

Cambridge Drive Juliet Lane

Easy Street Somoa Lane

Honey Place Noel Lane

Aries Place Libby Lane
Mingo Way

Staff is requesting that City Council approve the proposed project list for local streets
and roads funding associated with SB 1, the Road Repair and Accountability Act of
2017.

BACKGROUND:

Over the next 10 years, California faces a $ 59 billion shortfall to adequately maintain
the existing state highway system. Within a similar time frame, cities and counties

face a $ 78 billion shortfall to properly maintain the existing network of local streets
and roads.

329



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

APRIL 10, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVE FISCAL YEAR 2023- 24 PRO) ECT LIST ASSOCIATED WITH SB1

In response to these roadway infrastructure needs, on April 28, 2017, the Governor
signed SB 1,  which is known as the Road Repair and Accountability Act of 2017.
Beginning November 1, 2017, new funding from SB 1 will be deposited into the newly
created Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account ( RMRA). A percentage of this
new RMRA funding is apportioned by formula to eligible cities and counties for basic
road maintenance, rehabilitation and critical safety projects on the local streets and
road systems.

SB 1 was approved with an emphasis on accountability and transparency.  As a result,

the program guidelines require that local agencies formally adopt a proposed project
list for the RMRA funds. While a project list must be submitted in order to receive
funds, the project list can be changed to adapt to local needs.

The proposed SB 1 project list for FY 2023- 24 was generated using the City' s existing
Pavement Management System. The project list includes repairing, rehabilitating and
maintaining the existing pavement at citywide locations. Specific project details are
listed below and included in Attachment B.

Project Description

The project may use slurry seal treatment, which is the application of a mixture of
water, asphalt emulsion, aggregate  ( very small crushed rock) and additives to an

existing asphalt pavement surface.  Benefits of slurry seal include sealing of cracks,
restoring lost flexibility to the pavement surface, reduction in construction time and
potential cost savings.

Proiect Locations

Bizzibe Street Aztec Lane

O Street Warfield Road

Cambridge Drive Juliet Lane

Easy Street Somoa Lane

Honey Place Noel Lane

Aries Place Libby Lane
Mingo Way

Proposed Schedule

Spring 2024:  Street Assessment / Prioritization

Summer 2024:       Bid / Award Project. Begin Construction

Fall 2024:       Complete and accept the improvements

Estimated Useful Life

Slurry Seal can extend the life of pavement surface 8 to 10 years.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

The California Transportation Commission issued annual reporting guidelines for the
RMRA funding.

330



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

APRIL 10, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVE FISCAL YEAR 2023- 24 PRO) ECT LIST ASSOCIATED WITH SB1

Prior to receiving this funding, local agencies must formally adopt an annual proposed
project list. Approval of this project list will allow the City to receive its allocated
funding.

FISCAL IMPACT:

No fiscal impact is anticipated.

ATTACH M ENTS:

A.  Resolution Approving a List of Projects for Fiscal Year 2023- 24 Funded By
Senate Bill 1, the Road Repair and Accountability Act of 2017

B.  Project Locations Map

331



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 4

APRIL 10, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVE FISCAL YEAR 2023- 24 PROJECT LIST ASSOCIATED WITH SB1

APPROVALS:

o3- . 2f - 2a

Angel arca Date

Assistant Engineer

r        

FaR 3 • 30 • Zo23

Brad Taylor Date

City Engineer

3
Cari Ja s Date

Director Finance

3 • 2$  2o z3

Michael King Date

Assistant City Manager

zy . Z d -i. 3
Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

3
St en J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

332



RESOLUTION NO. 23-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING A LIST OF PRO) ECTS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2023- 24 FUNDED BY

SENATE BILL 1,  THE ROAD REPAIR AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT OF 2017

WHEREAS, Senate Bill 1  ( SB 1), the Road Repair and Accountability Act of
2017, was passed by the California Legislature and signed into law by the Governor
in April 2017 in order to address the significant transportation funding shortfalls
statewide; and

WHEREAS,  SB 1 includes accountability and transparency provisions that
ensure the residents of the City of Lathrop are aware of the projects proposed for
funding and projects that have been completed each fiscal year; and

WHEREAS, the City of Lathrop must adopt a list of all projects proposed to
receive funding from the Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account  ( RMRA)

created by SB 1 by resolution, which must include a description and the location of
each proposed project, a proposed schedule for the project' s completion, and the

estimated useful life of the improvement; and

WHEREAS, this is the seventh year in which the City of Lathrop is receiving
SB 1 funding which can be utilized for essential road maintenance and rehabilitation
projects, safety improvements, and increasing access and mobility options for the
traveling public; and

WHEREAS, Local Streets and Roads - Projected Revenues estimate the City
of Lathrop' s apportionments at $ 774, 510 for Fiscal Year ( FY) 2023- 24; and

WHEREAS,  using the City' s existing Pavement Management System and
through field inspections, staff has generated the proposed project list for Fiscal Year

FY) 2023- 24; and

WHEREAS, the proposed SB 1 project list includes repairing,  rehabilitating

and maintaining existing pavement at several locations, including but not limited to:

Bizzibe Street Aztec Lane

O Street Warfield Road

Cambridge Drive Juliet Lane

Easy Street Somoa Lane

Honey Place Noel Lane

Aries Place Libby Lane
Mingo Way

WHEREAS, the project may use slurry seal pavement treatment; which has a
useful lifespan of approximately 8- 10 years; and

333



WHEREAS, the City of Lathrop anticipates commencement of construction of
the pavement maintenance project in the summer of 2024 and acceptance of the
improvements by City Council by fall 2024.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop does hereby approve the proposed project list for local streets and roads
funding associated with Senate Bill 1, the Road Repair and Accountability Act of 2017.

334



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 10t'' day of April 2023,
by the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

335



m ATTACHMENT

H
Z
w

j g :' n Y`  =^ t;,?' rt+    ",'    a a        ^      '  „.

r'      .." t t ,

2      i    `'   u y .     c sr+ w  ,    
ro  p '

U w   g*     
q S"`   j„"  '   r'     '•   ,     .     .

t     r
n ,    _  w+' E  ,

F- x A      

S     - 

y ( 3 a12 8Wbr    
tr      sm,..       ;;      , e t  ' 6  zv`       r     `+   .       .       .      

a k' <  . ro a e X3
x r

n un  + iJ , Mr r, w e us i M4 a6"+ rR a4 r Af st s i

a w•      ro

x,"     ,    t"t,',
4_"       `'

S      , x h,,    I            ' w w'",   
a v  `  ", r{ y

k '     
e

s     ' 4
r rv"     '     r: .

r    
rs.  

s  s

r ,      
a ,, y              v ad       ., 7 M

rs:      

serati ii i c  ,       '
f x;     w4

ai. r
f ;       (;'`      r      .     

e-

f a
r

m       .  }          .      °
x,          `        

i

E     d f
n.

hs             °             r:       r ,  .
8 e a

ly11 1I M/ tt ,
3        S      

v s           
x s I jrun t Es s i s MM"'" r      

x a

1' ' 
A",'.,      art

r mitY a'                   ,^      
Y

q      .._       . va     

W

2         $  3 
Y

i

t
i       ' 4 3   . l i       :   

ct      , 
i        4r Z+,"      g^. f    a      

4 q;im 6       .. i t''     r       .  
s''

R i '   Z=           t     ,      e.   i     
r           `;''' " <°':..

a
e s

ti    `  a

rk
9 ,  

Q `   .   "       
a.

a
a

v;"'         
K     !..  .

O w  ¢
tl  `.      

8
M# 1'     

s    

K   .- d4 .    
dr   '  .

eAr     
f'S    

L
@  pr, 

i       
a6'.$     ,^*-

X   ^       m  ..       d:  4 ..` 
r,    

1T

L "

r.

rO
e  ..    O Y"

F

y  < 

h,
a

a i.       .       .
11 T ẁ 6. p* m, i;  a  #

r
w# t i', 2',.`'      . zt= $! a' a.   

d
a

L
ti t     "...      

y

r.     ,   ,   

y4 a

j

m

a    

s  
P

E  

G   , F,   
b 

x

Y a':
k   

a
t t  n•       A,+ d        

as..       p    r

r ,,, 

z  u i     s ; 
k  *       `      `

au n a

pS i:       3 N I w'    y

x   .     
Ys, Y x  

w      ':,. "   r                 d

a     .  

m2;   F"       ` 
Y     ° ,'      

M

k. ,....:..,    . 
1 k

w    , C k: s     .e..       .       '    ;'    trs s        ay
iyf i /E M 1t t'

Hw!it'

ttt
rla f Y 1il f tttt ftt61 8Y[ t y ll Elfa,.    .. 2 r",

L..,    
Mts   *^    

8R d`     
yt  `  , ,   '°" dG;       y . 

fi

f

i'.      >„.      (1
x

g, 
ti 9 b    '` x !  "     •       ^

o-'`;  
w''        ' 7

t       y a p r as           x   . Py „ 9„ y,   
it

1
n 9 tX,. 1

3 a n

p          . w^,-       %
1 '{   

µ.
y `, r',      tilt S.         , a

t    "'
zH xr

j
7i      sf',   

a^.

F      
C   

r      .. w' a 2 r i

s    ;^- " y+     
g

r} a .'      ,.-  ;   r          
a"   .'',     

l,.,  '   

r      D n   A d 

r       

sd l a731
y  k          1       .+ r`'       t r       ,

Q
e

t         '`    
synn i,. a  '

t'„ y`         4 »,    

y    ,        c', I 
r uu nM s l, .      +

s

F ., i;,'

i
y

Y Y i p

W y.:
o-'   ,

w   

A

A a; w;  f

E    .    `  
P. i   4      i4F      '     " i dd    '.     @ E.      

p"`     
sn a      '.  te

w  »•   "  an   s,.     °   i
t",

P

n        
r       . F

tl,  ` 

t''      

w"
k     p-m,      yy,    ,.,  

p                A a    {    . }.

s ''
9u"      y

r e   .         ' ya    w       `   r  ° t;'' î' , "'` 
3 .,

p        `

K      ,         3. S JlS`d`'                      
s ,     " +       

sa" r r i f u s R t  ,    s, a

r nr...,        ks su t r*      „ ,°,"  "    
k ,     ',,    '``,

1              xYr r

m

1 w
fy;        n1'       

y
k      f ,      t     a,   '   

a      +.

i
it M     

ry, 4             
k

7, 

M       ;`     

O

a
F   ''       Z

g   -'      ,     µ

s   .
s ,,  

f-   V:   r  ,    t   `

d_  :       v  yi,   
x  '             : 

w     „:

i
r

k

t.  
s".     "".  .

A-

s y
w       ,.   

4 ..         Y., uw°      k+ r'      rN     `
w,

r Ni ',
r   '., 

m   
9      k

w       .    

1
v

k     . 7.,  

e     

i

r       '

r .

s

G

i F         g         4

aa+,      
Pi t

xWrn >+ Y»       
j       `   

C          ". t"k$'      .. - i,.' 
y

Csm a .  ^ a    -   `     ,

w   t,(

x,  w   . .. 
t     ,,     , y 1

r      
w 4

a1s# t" Mf i''     ,   
xs t  [ t rr r " S

fi!' ar h       
a o x ;       ° F r   " _       r

2,*,.,,,( 9.  ,. .       ,#

li{

V'

F#

I L'     ,'^+   

b
4(   /

f,."

4

Rl# l f lw

w

x{: f r    

a   . k..  

336



ITEM 4. 11

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

APRIL 10, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       APPROVE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

WITH ROBERTSON- BRYAN,    INC.,     FOR CITY' S

INDUSTRIAL PRETREATMENT PROGRAM

RECOMMENDATION:     Adopt Resolution Approving a Professional Services
Agreement with Robertson- Bryan, Inc., for the City' s
Industrial Pretreatment Program

SUMMARY:

Currently,  Robertson- Bryan,  Inc.,  ( RBI)  is providing services to update the City' s
Industrial Pretreatment Program ( IPP), which is essential for adhering to the National
Pollutant Discharge Elimination System  ( NPDES)  permit that governs the Lathrop
Consolidated Treatment Facility ( LCTF) effluent discharge into the San Joaquin River.
Staff has requested a proposal from RBI for additional services needed to support
staff in implementing the IPP for fiscal years ( FY) 2023/ 2024 and 2024/ 2025.  These

services will cost  $ 119, 256 and will be included in the budget Fund 6080  ( WW

Recycling Plant-# 1 MBR).

BACKG ROU N D:

The NPDES permit program addresses water pollution by regulating point sources
that discharge pollutants to waters of the United States.  Since 2005, Veolia had been

supporting the City on developing and implementing an IPP under an agreement that
expired in October 2022.  It is recommended that RBI support staff in executing the
updated IPP to align with new permit requirements.  RBI has submitted a proposal in
the amount of $ 119, 256 for FYs 2023/ 2024 and 2024/ 2025.

Staff requests City Council approve a professional services agreement with RBI to
assist the staff with the IPP implementation for FY 2023/ 2024 and 2024/ 2025.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

The proposed service by RBI will assist the City meet new NPDES permit requirements
that regulate discharge of LCTF effluent to the San Joaquin River.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The cost of the services are to be completed on a time and materials basis, not to

exceed $ 119, 256 and will be included in the budget Fund 6080 ( WW Recycling Plant-
1 MBR)  for FYs 2023/ 2024 and 2024/ 2025.   Additionally,  staff plans to invoice

individual industrial users to recoup any direct costs that are associated with their
businesses for this program.

337



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

APRIL 10, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVE PSA WITH ROBERTSON- BRYAN,  INC.,  FOR THE CITY LATHROP

INDUSTRIAL PRETREATMENT PROGRAM

ATTACH M ENTS:

A.  Adopt Resolution Approving a Professional Services Agreement with

Robertson- Bryan, Inc., for the City of Lathrop Industrial Pretreatment Program

B.  Professional Services Agreement with Robertson- Bryan, Inc., for the City of
Lathrop Industrial Pretreatment Program

338



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

APRIL 10, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVE PSA WITH ROBERTSON- BRYAN,  INC.,  FOR THE CITY LATHROP

INDUSTRIAL PRETREATMENT PROGRAM

APPROVALS:

p^- 3 23
Greg Gi on Date

Senior Civil Engineer

3 a
Cari Jame Date

Finance Di ctor

C'  3• 2 1 • Zo23

Michael King Date

Assistant City Manager

Z- ! p 'Z 3
Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

23
ephen J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

339



RESOLUTION NO. 23 -

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH ROBERTSON-

BRYAN,  INC.,  FOR THE CITY OF LATHROP INDUSTRIAL PRETREATMENT

PROGRAM

WHEREAS,  the Lathrop Consolidated Treatment Facility  ( LCTF)  provides

sewer treatment capacity for the Crossroads, Mossdale, River Islands, South Lathrop
Specific Plan, Gateway Specific Plan and Central Lathrop Specific Plan development
areas; and

WHEREAS,  Robertson- Bryan,  Inc.,  ( RBI)  is currently providing services to
update the City' s Industrial Pretreatment Program needed for compliance with the
National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System ( NPDES) permit regulating discharge
of Lathrop Consolidated Treatment Facility ( LCTF) effluent to the San Joaquin River;

and

WHEREAS, additional services from RBI are requested to assist City staff with
implementation of the IPP; and

WHEREAS, at the request of staff,  RBI has provided a proposal to provide
professional services for to assist the City with the IPP implementation; and

WHEREAS, the cost for the RBI' s services for FYs 2023/ 2024 and 2024/ 2025

are to be completed on a time and materials for a not- to- exceed cost of $ 119, 256;

and

WHEREAS, the cost of these services will be included in the budget Fund 6080
WW Recycling Plant-# 1 MBR) for FYs 2023/ 2024 and 2024/ 2025; and

WHEREAS, staff intends to invoice individual industrial users to recoup any
direct costs that are associated with their businesses under this program.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop does hereby approve a professional services agreement with RBI to assist
the City with IPP implementation for FY 2023/ 2024 and 2024/ 2025 for a time and
materials cost not to exceed $ 119, 256, to be paid from Fund 6080 ( WW Recycling
Plant# 1 MBR.

340



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 10t" day of April 2023, by the
following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:    APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

341



ATTACHIVIENT

CITY OF LATHROP

AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL CONSULTING SERVICES WITH ROBERTSON-

BRYAN, INC.

TO ASSIST CITY WITH INDUSTRIAL PRETREATMENT PROGRAM FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED TREATMENT FACILITY SURFACE WATER DISCHARGE

PROJECT

THIS AGREEMENT,  dated for convenience this April 10, 2023 is by and between
Robertson- Bryan,  Inc.  (" CONSULTANT")  and the City of Lathrop,  a California municipal
corporation (" CITY");

RECITALS:

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained, experienced, and competent to perform
Professional Consulting Services, which are required by this agreement; and

WHEREAS, CITY selected the CONSULTANT pursuant to said qualifications; and

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is willing to render such Professional Consulting Services, as
hereinafter defined, on the following terms and conditions;

NOW, THEREFORE, CONSULTANT and the CITY agree as follows:

AGREEMENT

1)       Scope of Service

CONSULTANT agrees to perform Professional Consulting Services in accordance with the
scope of work and fee proposal provided by CONSULTANT, attached hereto as Exhibit" A"
and incorporated herein by reference. CONSULTANT represents it is prepared to and can
diligently perform these services in accordance with the upmost standards of its profession
and to CITY' S satisfaction. The fee proposal shall include all reimbursable costs required for
the performance of the Scope of Services.   Payment of additional reimbursable costs

considered to be over and above those inherent in the original Scope of Services shall be

approved of in advance and in writing, by the CITY.

2)      Compensation

CITY hereby agrees to pay CONSULTANT a sum not to exceed $ 119, 256, for the
Professional Consulting Services set forth in Exhibit" A". CONSULTANT shall be paid any
uncontested sum due and payable within thirty( 30) days of receipt of billings containing all
information pursuant to Paragraph 5 below. Compensation for any task must be equal to or
less than the percentage of task complete.  In no event shall CONSULTANT be entitled to
compensation for work not included in Exhibit " A",  unless a written change order or

authorization describing the extra work and payment terms has been executed by CITY' s
authorized representative prior to the commencement of the work. Payment is made based
on a time and materials basis.

Page 1 of 11

342



CITY OF LATHROP— TO ASSIST CITY WITH INDUSTRIAL PRETREATMENT PROGRAM FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED TREATMENT FACILITY SURFACE WATER DISCHARGE PROJECT

3)      Effective Date and Term

The effective date of this Agreement is April 10, 2023, and it shall terminate no later than
June 30, 2024.

4)       Independent Contractor Status

It is expressly understood and agreed by both parties that CONSULTANT, while engaged in
carrying out and complying with any of the terms and conditions of this Agreement, is an
independent contractor and not an employee of the CITY.  As an independent contractor,

CONSULTANT is responsible for controlling the means and methods to complete the scope
of work described in Exhibit" A" to City's satisfaction. CONSULTANT expressly warrants not
to represent, at any time or in any manner, that CONSULTANT is an employee of the CITY.

5)      Billinqs

CONSULTANT shall submit invoices for completed work on a monthly basis, or as otherwise
agreed, providing without limitation, details as to amount of hours, individual performing said
work, hourly rate, and indicating to what aspect of the Scope of Services said work is
attributable.  CONSULTANT' S bills shall include a list of all tasks, a total amount due, the
amounts previously billed, and the net amount due on the invoice.  Except as specifically
authorized by CITY, CONSULTANT shall not bill CITY for duplicate services performed by
more than one person. In no event shall CONSULTANT submit any billing for an amount in
excess of the rates or the maximum amount of compensation provided in section ( 2) for
either task or for the entire Agreement, unless modified by a properly executed change
order.

6)      Advice and Status Reportinq

CONSULTANT shall provide the CITY with timely reports, orally or in writing, of all significant
developments arising during performance of its services hereunder, and shall furnish to
CITY such information as is necessary to enable CITY to monitor the performance of this
Agreement.

CONSULTANT shall submit to CITY such reports, diagrams, drawings and other work
products developed pursuant to the Scope of Services.

7)      Auditinp

CITY reserves the right to periodically audit all charges made by CONSULTANT to CITY for
services under this Agreement. Upon request, CONSULTANT agrees to furnish CITY, or a

designated representative, with necessary information and assistance needed to conduct
such an audit.

CONSULTANT agrees that CITY or its delegate will have the right to review, obtain and
copy all records pertaining to performance of this Agreement.  CONSULTANT agrees to

provide CITY or its delegate with any relevant information requested and shall permit CITY
or its delegate access to its premises, upon reasonable notice, during normal business
hours for the purpose of interviewing employees and inspecting and copying such books,
records, accounts, and other material that may be relevant to a matter under investigation for
the purpose of determining compliance with the requirement. CONSULTANT further agrees

Page 2 of 11

343



CITY OF LATHROP— TO ASSIST CITY WITH INDUSTRIAL PRETREATMENT PROGRAM FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED TREATMENT FACILITY SURFACE WATER DISCHARGE PROJECT

to maintain such records for a period of three ( 3) years after final payment under this
agreement.

8)      Assiqnment of Personnel

CONSULTANT acknowledges that the CITY has relied on CONSULTANT' s capabilities and
on the qualifications of CONSULTANT' s principals and staff as identified in its proposal to
CITY.    The services shall be performed by,  or under the direct supervision,  of

CONSULTANT' s Authorized Representative: Michael Bryan, Managing Partner.  CITY

shall be notified by CONSULTANT of any change of its Authorized Representative, and
CITY is granted the right of approval of all original, additional, and replacement personnel at
CITY's sole discretion,  and shall be notified by CONSULTANT of any changes of
CONSULTANT' s project staff prior to any change.

CONSULTANT shall assign only competent personnel to perform services pursuant to this
Agreement. If CITY asks CONSULTANT to remove a person assigned to the work called for
under this Agreement, CONSULTANT agrees to do so immediately, without requiring the
City to process a reason or explanation for its request.

9)      Assiqnment and Subcontractinq

It is recognized by the parties hereto that a substantial inducement to CITY for entering into
this Agreement was, and is, the professional reputation and competence of CONSULTANT.
Neither this Agreement nor any interest therein may be assigned by CONSULTANT without
the prior written approval of CITY' S authorized representative.  CONSULTANT shall not

subcontract any portion of the performance contemplated and provided for herein, other than
the subcontractors noted in the proposal, without prior written approval of the CITY' S
authorized representative.

10)     Insurance

On or before beginning any of the services or work called for by any term of this Agreement,
CONSULTANT, at its own cost and expense, shall carry, maintain for the duration of the
Agreement, and provide proof thereof that is acceptable to the CITY the insurance specified
in subsections ( a) through ( c) below with insurers and under forms of insurance satisfactory
in all respects to the CITY. CONSULTANT shall not allow any subcontractor to commence
work on any subcontract until all insurance required of the CONSULTANT has also been
obtained for the subcontractor. Verification of this insurance shall be submitted and made
part of this Agreement prior to execution.

a)      Workers' Compensation.  CONSULTANT shall, at CONSULTANT' S sole

cost and expense, maintain Statutory Workers' Compensation Insurance and
Employer's Liability Insurance for any and all persons employed directly or
indirectly by CONSULTANT.    Said Statutory Workers'  Compensation
Insurance and Employer' s Liability Insurance shall be provided with limits of
not less than one million dollars  ($ 1, 000, 000).     In the alternative,

CONSULTANT may rely on a self- insurance program to meet these
requirements provided that the program of self- insurance complies fully with
the provisions of the California Labor Code.  The insurer, if insurance is

provided, or the CONSULTANT, if a program of self-insurance is provided,
shall waive all rights of subrogation against the CITY for loss arising from

Page 3 of 11

344



CITY OF LATHROP— TO ASSIST CITY W ITH INDUSTRIAL PRETREATMENT PROGRAM FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED TREATMENT FACILITY SURFACE WATER DISCHARGE PROJECT

work performed under this Agreement.

b)      Commercial General and Automobile Liabilitv Insurance. CONSULTANT, at

CONSULTANT' S own cost and expense, shall maintain commercial general
and automobile liability insurance for the period covered by this Agreement in
an amount not less than one million dollars ($ 1, 000, 000) per occurrence,
combined single limit coverage for risks associated with the work

contemplated by this Agreement. If Commercial General Liability Insurance
or an Automobile Liability form or other form with a general aggregate limit is
used, either the general aggregate limit shall apply separately to the work to
be performed under this Agreement or the general aggregate limit shall be at
least twice the required occurrence limit.  Such coverage shall include but

shall not be limited to, protection against claims arising from bodily and
personal injury, including death resulting therefrom, and damage to properry
resulting from activities contemplated under this Agreement, including the
use of owned and non- owned automobiles.

Coverage shall be at least as broad as Insurance Services Office
Commercial General Liability occurrence form CG 0001  ( ed. 11/ 88) and
Insurance Services Office Automobile Liability form CA 0001  ( ed. 12/ 90)

Code 1 ( any auto).

Each of the following shall be included in the insurance coverage or added
as an endorsement to the policy:

i)       CITY,  its officers, employees, agents, and volunteers are to be

covered as insured with respect to each of the following: liability
arising out of activities performed by or on behalf of CONSULTANT,
including the insider' s general supervision of CONSULTANT;
products and completed operations of CONSULTANT; premises
owned, occupied or used by CONSULTANT.  The coverage shall

contain no special limitations on the scope of protection afforded to
CITY, its officers, employees, agents, or volunteers.

ii)       The insurance shall cover on an occurrence or an accident basis,
and not on a claim made basis.

iii)      An endorsement must state that coverage is primary insurance and
that no other insurance affected by the CITY will be called upon to
contribute to a loss under the coverage.

iv)      Any failure of CONSULTANT to comply with reporting provisions of
the policy shall not affect coverage provided to CITY and its officers,
employees, agents, and volunteers.

v)       Insurance is to be placed with California-admitted insurers with a
Best' s rating of no less than A: VII.

vi)      Notice of cancellation or non- renewal must be received by CITY at
least thirty days prior to such change.

Page 4 of 11

345



CITY OF LATHROP— TO ASSIST CITY WITH INDUSTRIAL PRETREATMENT PROGRAM FOR

THE CONSOLIDATED TREATMENT FACILITY SURFACE WATER DISCHARGE PROJECT

c) Professional Liabilitv.  CONSULTANT, at CONSULTANT' S own cost and expense, shall

maintain for the period covered by this Agreement professional liability insurance for
licensed professionals performing work pursuant to this Agreement in an amount not less
than Two Million Dollars ($ 2, 000, 000) per claim made and per policy aggregate covering the
licensed professionals' errors and omissions, as follows:

i)       Any deductible or self- insured retention shall not exceed $ 150, 000

per claim.

ii)       Notice of cancellation, material change, or non- renewal must be

received by the CITY at least thirty days prior to such change shall be
included in the coverage or added as an endorsement to the policy.

iii)      The policy must contain a cross liability or severability of interest
clause.

iv)      The following provisions shall apply if the professional liability
coverages are written on a claims made form:

1. The retroactive date of the policy must be shown and must be
before the date of the Agreement.

2. Insurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance

must be provided for at least five years after completion of the
Agreement or the work, so long as commercially available at
reasonable rates.

3. If coverage is canceled or not renewed and it is not replaced

with another claims made policy form with a retroactive date
that precedes the date of this Agreement, CONSULTANT

must provide extended reporting coverage for a minimum of
five years after completion of the Agreement or the work.
The CITY shall have the right to exercise at the

CONSULTANT' S cost, any extended reporting provisions of
the policy should the CONSULTANT cancel or not renew the
coverage.

4. A copy of the claim reporting requirements must be submitted
to the CITY prior to the commencement of any work under
this Agreement.

d) Deductibles and Self- Insured Retentions.  CONSULTANT shall disclose the self- insured

retentions and deductibles before beginning any of the services or work called for by any
term of this Agreement. During the period covered by this Agreement, upon express written
authorization of the CITY' s authorized representative, CONSULTANT may increase such
deductibles or self- insured retentions with respect to CITY, its officers, employees, agents,

and volunteers.   The CITY's authorized representative may condition approval of an
increase in deductible or self- insured retention levels upon a requirement that

CONSULTANT procure a bond guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigations,
claim administration, and defense expenses that is satisfactory in all respects to each of
them.

Page 5 of 11

346



CITY OF LATHROP— TO ASSIST CITY WITH INDUSTRIAL PRETREATMENT PROGRAM FOR

THE CONSOLIDATED TREATMENT FACILITY SURFACE WATER DISCHARGE PROJECT

e) Notice of Reduction in Coveraqe.    In the event that any coverage required under
subsections ( a), ( b), or( c) of this section of the Agreement is reduced, limited, or materially
affected in any other manner, CONSULTANT shall provide written notice to CITY at
CONSULTANT'S earliest possible opportunity and in no case later than five days after
CONSULTANT is notified of the change in coverage.

f)  In addition to any other remedies CITY may have if CONSULTANT fails to provide or
maintain any insurance policies or policy endorsements to the extent and within the time
herein required, CITY may, at its sole option:

i)       Obtain such insurance and deduct and retain the amount of the

premiums for such insurance from any sums due under the
Agreement;

ii)       Order CONSULTANT to stop work under this Agreement or withhold
any payment which becomes due to CONSULTANT hereunder, or

both stop work and withhold any payment, until CONSULTANT
demonstrates compliance with the requirements hereof;

iii)      Terminate this Agreement.

Exercise of any of the above remedies, however, is an alternative to other
remedies CITY may have and is not the exclusive remedy for
CONSULTANT' S breach.

11)     Indemnification - CONSULTANT' S Responsibilitv

As to the CONSULTANT' S work hereunder,  it is understood and agreed that  ( a)

CONSULTANT has the professional skills necessary to perform the work, ( b) CITY relies
upon the professional skills of CONSULTANT to perform the work in a skillful and
professional manner, and ( c) CONSULTANT thus agrees to so perform.

Acceptance by CITY of the work performed under this Agreement does not operate as a
release of said CONSULTANT from such professional responsibility for the work performed.
It is further understood and agreed that CONSULTANT is apprised of the scope of the work

to be performed under this Agreement and CONSULTANT agrees that said work can and
shall be performed in a fully competent manner in accordance with the standard of care
applicable to CONSULTANT' S profession.

CONSULTANT shall indemnify, defend, and hold CITY, its officers, employees, agents, and
volunteers harmless from and against any and all liability, claims, suits, actions, damages,
and causes of action arising out of any personal injury, bodily injury, loss of life, or damage
to property, or any violation of any federal, state, or municipal law or ordinance, to the extent
caused by the willful misconduct or negligent acts or omissions of CONSULTANT, its
employees, subcontractors, or agents, or on account of the performance or character of this
work, except for any such claim arising out of the negligence or willful misconduct of the
CITY, its officers, employees, agents, or volunteers.   It is understood that the duty of
CONSULTANT to indemnify and hold harmless includes the duty to defend as set forth in
Section 2778 of the California Civil Code.   Acceptance of insurance certificates and

Page 6 of 11

347



CITY OF LATHROP— TO ASSIST CITY WITH INDUSTRIAL PRETREATMENT PROGRAM FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED TREATMENT FACILITY SURFACE WATER DISCHARGE PROJECT

endorsements required under this Agreement does not relieve CONSULTANT from liability
under this indemnification and hold harmless clause.   This indemnification and hold

harmless clause shall apply whether or not such insurance policies shall have been
determined to be applicable to any of such damages or claims for damages.

12)     Licenses

If a license of any kind, which term is intended to include evidence of registration, is required
of CONSULTANT,  its employees, agents,  or subcontractors by federal or state law,
CONSULTANT warrants that such license has been obtained, is valid and in good standing,
and CONSULTANT shall keep it in effect at all times during the term of this Agreement, and
that any applicable bond has been posted in accordance with all applicable laws and
regulations.

13)     Business Licenses

CONSULTANT shall obtain and maintain a CITY of Lathrop Business License until all
Agreement services are rendered and accepted by the CITY.

14)    Termination

Either CITY or CONSULTANT may cancel this Agreement upon 30 days written notification
to the other party.  Upon termination, or completion of services under this Agreement, all

information collected, work product and documents shall be delivered by CONSULTANT to
CITY within ten ( 10) calendar days.

15)     Fundinq

CONSULTANT agrees and understands that renewal of this agreement in subsequent years
is contingent upon action by the City Council consistent with the appropriations limits of
Article XIII ( B) of the California Constitution and that the Council may determine not to fund
this agreement in subsequent years.

16)     Notices

All contracts, appointments, approvals, authorizations, claims, demands, Change Orders,
consents, designations, notices, offers, requests and statements given by either party to the
other shall be in writing and shall be sufficiently given and served upon the other party if( 1)
personally served, ( 2) sent by the United States mail, postage prepaid, ( 3) sent by private
express delivery service, or ( 4) in the case of a facsimile transmission, if sent to the

telephone FAX number set forth below during regular business hours of the receiving party
and followed with two ( 2) Days by delivery of a hard copy of the material sent by facsimile
transmission. Personal service shall include, without limitation, service by delivery and
service by facsimile transmission.

To City:       City of Lathrop
City Clerk
390 Towne Centre

Lathrop, CA 95330

Page 7 of 11

348



CITY OF LATHROP— TO ASSIST CITY W ITH INDUSTRIAL PRETREATMENT PROGRAM FOR

THE CONSOLIDATED TREATMENT FACILiTY SURFACE WATER DISCHARGE PROJECT

Copy to:      City of Lathrop
Department of Public Works

390 Towne Centre

Lathrop, CA 95330
MAIN:    ( 209) 941- 7430

FAX:      ( 209) 941- 7449

To Consultant: Robertson- Bryan, Inc.

3100 Zinfandel Dr., Suite 300

Rancho Cordova, CA 95670

Phone: ( 916) 714- 1802

17)     Miscellaneous

a)      Consent.   Whenever in this Agreement the approval or consent of a party is
required, such approval or consent shall be in writing and shall be executed by a
person having the express authority to grant such approval or consent.

b)      Contract Terms Prevail.   All exhibits and this Agreement are intended to be
construed as a single document.   Should any inconsistency occur between the
specific terms of this Agreement and attached exhibits, the terms of this Agreement

shall prevail.

c)      Controlling Law. The parties agree that this Agreement shall be governed and
construed by and in accordance with the Laws of the State of California.

d)      Definitions. The definitions and terms are as defined in these specifications.

e)      Force Majeure.  Neither party shall be deemed to be in default on account of any
delay or failure to perform its obligations under this Agreement, which directly results
from an Act of God or an act of a superior governmental authority.

f)       Headings. The paragraph headings are not a part of this Agreement and shall have
no effect upon the construction or interpretation of any part of this Agreement.

g)      Incorporation of Documents. All documents constituting the Agreement documents
described in Section 1 hereof and all documents which may, from time to time, be
referred to in any duly executed amendment hereto are by such reference
incorporated in the Agreement and shall be deemed to be part of this Agreement.

h)      Integration.   This Agreement and any amendments hereto between the parties
constitute the entire Agreement between the parties concerning the Project and
Work, and there are no other prior oral or written agreements between the parties
that are not incorporated in this Agreement.

i)       Modification of Agreement. This Agreement shall not be modified or be binding upon
the parties unless such modification is agreed to in writing and signed by the parties.

j)       Ownership of Documents.  All documents, photographs, reports, analyses, audits,
computer media, or other material documents or data, and working papers, whether

Page 8 of 11

349



CITY OF LATHROP— TO ASSIST CITY WITH INDUSTRIAL PRETREATMENT PROGRAM FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED TREATMENT FACILITY SURFACE WATER DISCHARGE PROJECT

or not in final form, which have been obtained or prepared under this Agreement,
shall be deemed the property of the CITY.  Upon CITY's request, CONSULTANT

shall allow CITY to inspect all such documents during the CONSULTANT' s regular
business hours.

k)       Provision.  Any agreement, covenant, condition, clause, qualification, restriction,
reservation, term or other stipulation in the Agreement shall define or otherwise

control, establish or limit the performance required or permitted or to be required of
or permitted by either party. All provisions, whether covenants or conditions, shall be
deemed to be both covenants and conditions.

I)       Severability. The invalidity in whole or part of any provision of this Agreement shall
not void or affect the validity of any other provision of this agreement.  If a court of

competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision of this Agreement is void or
unenforceable, the provisions of this Agreement not so affected shall remain in full
force and effect.

m)     Status of CONSULTANT.    In the exercise of rights and obligations under this
Agreement, CONSULTANT acts as an independent contractor and not as an agent

or employee of CITY. CONSULTANT shall not be entitled to any rights and benefits
accorded or accruing to the City Council members, officers or employees of CITY,
and CONSULTANT expressly waives any and all claims to such right and benefits.

n)      Successors and Assigns. The provisions of this Agreement shall inure to the benefit
of, and shall apply to and bind, the successors and assigns of the parties.

o)      Time of the Essence.  Time is of the essence of this Agreement and each of its
provisions.  In the calculation of time hereunder, the time in which an act is to be

performed shall be computed by excluding the first Day and including the last. If the
time in which an act is to be performed falls on a Saturday, Sunday or any Day
observed as a legal holiday by CITY, the time for performance shall be extended to
the following Business Day.

p)      Venue. In the event that suit is brought by either party hereunder, the parties agree
that trial of such action shall be vested exclusively in the state courts of California in
the County of San Joaquin or in the United States District Court for the Eastern
District of California.

q)      Recovery of Costs. The prevailing party in any action brought to enforce the terms of
this Agreement or arising out of this Agreement may recover its reasonable costs,
including reasonable attorney's fees, incurred or expended in connection with such
action against the non- prevailing party.

18)     Notice to Proceed

Prior to commencing work under this agreement, CONSULTANT shall receive a written

Notice to Proceed" from CITY. A Notice to Proceed shall not be issued until all necessary
bonds and insurances have been received. City shall not be obligated to pay CONSULTANT
for any services prior to issuance of the Notice to Proceed.

19)    Siqnatures

Page 9 of 11

350



CITY OF LATHROP— TO ASSIST CITY WITH INDUSTRIAL PRETREATMENT PROGRAM FOR

THE CONSOLIDATED TREATMENT FACILITY SURFACE WATER DISCHARGE PROJECT

The individuals executing this Agreement represent and warrant that they have the right,
power, legal capacity, and authority to enter into and to execute this Agreement on behalf of
the respective legal entities of the CONSULTANT and the CITY. This agreement shall inure

to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties hereto and their respective successors and
assigns.

Page 10 of 11

351



CITY OF LATHROP— TO ASSIST CITY WITH INDUSTRIAL PRETREATMENT PROGRAM FOR

THE CONSOLIDATED TREATMENT FACILITY SURFACE WATER DISCHARGE PROJECT

Approved as to Form:     City of Lathrop
City Attorney

3 Z   2 m -- 3

Salvador Navarrete Date

Recommended for Approval:   City of Lathrop
Assist City Manager

Michael King Date

Approved by: City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Stephen J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

Consultant:    Robertson- Bryan, Inc.

3100 Zinfandel Dr., Suite 300

Rancho Cordova, CA 95670

Fed ID # 68- 0460693

Business License # 20647

Signature Date

Print Name and Title

Page 11 of 11

352



OBE H RCR i ,HG
EXHIBR w

Solutions for Progress

March 13, 2023

DELIVERED BY EMAIL

Mr. Michael King
Assistant City Manager
City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Dr.

Lathrop, CA 95330

Subject:   Proposal to Provide Professional Services for the City of Lathrop Industrial
Pretreatment Program for Fiscal Years 2023/ 2024 and 2024/2025

Dear Mr. King:

Robertson- Bryan, Inc. ( RBI) is currently under contract to prepare an update to the City of
Lathrop' s ( City) Industrial Pretreatment Program ( IPP) for submittal to the Central Valley
Regional Water Quality Control Board ( Central Valley Water Board) for approval. This work
is being completed as part of RBI' s contract with the City to provide services to comply with
the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System ( NPDES) permit regulating the
discharge of Consolidated Treatment Facility ( CTF) effluent to the San Joayuin River. Per the
City' s request, RBI is providing this proposal to assist the City with implementing its IPP for
fiscal years ( FY) 2023/ 2024 and 2024/ 2025. A detailed scope of work and budget is provided
below.  Consistent with the City' s request, this proposal assumes that IPP inspections and the
City' s Fats Oil and Grease Control Program will be implemented by a separate vendor
directly contracted to the City.

I. SCOPE OF WORK

TASK 1: ANNUAL SURVEY

The federal pretreatment regulations require all possible industrial users that might be subject
to an adopted pretreatment program to be identified and located. The City conducted an
industrial user survey when its IPP was developed in 2005. The survey needs to be updated.
Providing an industrial user survey, along with a description of the methods used, is a
required component of the IPP submittal to the Central Valley Water Board. Furthermore, the
City must provide a list of significant industrial users ( SIUs) in its annual pretreatment
program report submitted to the Central Valley Water Board.

RBI will conduct a survey of users in the City to classify the businesses in accordance with
the City' s sewer use ordinance and IPP implementation procedures. Information regarding
how to classify the users will primarily be from water and sewer billing records and business
license records. The user survey will be documented in MS Excel for update in subsequent

3100 Zinfandel Drive, Suite 300 Phone 916. 714. 1801
Rancho Cordova, CA 95670 Fax 916. 714. 1804

www.robertson-bryan. com

353



Michael King C Roae son- B?1 qn,/ nt.

City of Lathrop
SolufionsfotP ogress

March 13, 2023

Page 2

years. The initial survey will be completed in summer/ fall 2023 for the IPP submittal. RBI

will conduct a second survey in summer/ fall 2024 to maintain a current inventory of users.

The City currently has three permitted SIUs and is in the process of permitting a fourth SIU
with RBI' s assistance through our existing contract). Additional businesses that should be

permitted as an SIU would be addressed under Task 2.

TASKS 2: PERMITTING AND COMPLIANCE ASSISTANCE

Work to be completed under this task includes preparing new or renewed SIU permits,
identifying and coordinating SIU inspections, maintaining an industrial database, reviewing
monitoring reports, preparing enforcement notices, and other related activities. Budget for this

task is for permitting six( 6) SIUs. As requested, RBI will setup billing under this task to
identify expenses attributable to each SIU.

Subtask 2. 1: Permit Development

RBI will assist the City with renewing permits for SIU currently permitted and preparing new
SIU permits for new dischargers. Our scope of services for either an SIU permit renewal or
issuance of a new SIU permit includes:

1) Reviewing the SIU application for completeness;

2) Interacting with the SIU to obtain supplemental information, if necessary;

3) Preparing a draft permit for City review;

4) Preparing a draft permit for SIU review;

5) Preparing a draft permit that addresses SIU comments, for City review;

6) Preparing a final permit;

7) One meeting with the City and SIU; and

8) Other coordination with the City.

Subtask 2. 2: Monitoring and Enforcement

SIUs conduct routine monitoring in compliance with their permits and submit monthly
monitoring reports. RBI will track when monitoring reports are due, advise the City on past-
due reports, and review each SIU monitoring report for completeness and compliance with the
permit, including discharge limits, reporting requirements, and discharge prohibitions. RBI
also will prepare a database in MS Excel format to track the following: ( 1) monitoring report
receipt date; ( 2) violations; ( 3) enforcement actions taken ( e. g., notices of violation) and
status; and ( 4) inspection dates. Budget assumes no more than one enforcement action per
SIU, for a total of six( 6) enforcement actions through the end of fiscal year 2024/ 2025.

354



Michael King C RosERrson- BRYpn, / nt.

City of Lathrop
SolutionsforProgress

March 13, 2023

Page 3

Subtask 2. 3: Inspection Coordination

The federal pretreatment regulations require at least annual monitoring and inspection of SIUs
by the City. RBI will coordinate with the City and its inspection contractor to conduct annual
inspections of SIUs. The purpose of inspections is to determine that the SIU is complying
with its wastewater discharge permit. RBI will review completed field inspection forms for
each SIU and debrief with the City regarding any issues encountered. RBI will hold a meeting
with the City and its inspection firm to discuss the inspection findings and follow- up actions
needed.

TASK 3: MEETINGS

RBI will meet with the City (video or phone conference) quarterly, for a total of eight( 8)
meetings, to discuss the IPP and review the status of various program implementation tasks,
such as inspections completed or to be scheduled, SIUs requiring permit renewal, and status
of SIU compliance actions.

TASK 4: PROJECT MANAGEMENT

This task provides hours for RBI' s Project Manager and Principal- in- Charge to oversee and
direct RBI staff efforts on each task and hold key conversations with City staff when needed.
In addition, this task provides time for project coordination by phone, email, and video
conference with other project team members, budget and schedule tracking, invoicing, and
other duties to coordinate/ administer the project.

Additional Assumptions of this Scope of Work

The level of effort for this scope is limited to the hours budgeted.  Should additional services
be requested due to additional requests of City staff that are not identified herein, or should
analyses of greater scope or depth than identified and budgeted herein be required, RBI will
notify the City to discuss the extent of any out- of-scope services needed/ requested. Should
out- of-scope services be requested by the City, RBI will submit a supplemental scope and fee
proposal for those services.

II. SCHEDULE

RBI can begin providing professional services associated with the tasks defined herein upon
receipt of a signed contract or written authorization to proceed.

III. CONTRACT AND BILLING ARRANGEMENT

The services to be provided in this proposal are for the period July 1, 2023, through June 30,
2025. RBI will complete the scope of work defined herein on a time- and- materials basis, with
an authorized budget of$ 119, 256, as shown in Attachment 1. RBI will not exceed the
authorized budget amount without written approval. Attachment 1 provides an estimated
breakdown of the total budget by task( Attachment 2). RBI will bill according to its 2023 rate
schedule for all services provided between July 1, 2023, and December 15, 2023. RBI will bill

355



Michael King 1'
Z RogER son- BRvp/ nc

City of Lathrop
Solutions/ orProgress

March 13, 2023

Page 4

according to its 2024 rate schedule for all services provided between December 16, 2023, and
December 15, 2024, and according to its 2025 rate schedule for all services provided between
December 16, 2024, and June 30, 2025.

If you have any questions regarding this proposal, please do not hesitate to contact me at
916) 405- 8918. We look forward to continuing to provide technical services to the City.

Sincerely,

Paul Bedore

Director of Wastewater and Stormwater Regulatory Services

Attachment 1: RBI Budget

Attachment 2: 2023 Fee Schedule

356



C''r"C RoeE xon- Bmr+n, lnc.
Solutions/ or Progress

ATTACHMENT 1

RBIBUDGET

Resource Staff

Director Associate Engineer II 2023 Task 2024 Task 2025 Task

Leonardo Subtotal Subtotal Subtotal 2023- 2025

Paul Michelle Urrego-  ( 25% Task ( 50% Task ( 25% Task Task

Bedore Brown Vallowe Hours)     Hours)     Hours)    Subtotal

Task 1: Annual Survey 2 24 40 $  3, 788 $  7, 879 $  4, 058 $   15, 725

Task 2: Permitting and Compliance Assistance 74,937

Subtask 2. 1: Permit De, elopment 12 48 96 $  8, 940 $ 18, 595  $  9, 577  $   37, 112

Subtask 2. 2: Monitoring and Enforcement 24 48 48 $  7, 476  $ 15, 550  $  8, OOS  $   31, 034

Subtask 2. 3: Inspection Coordination 4 8 16 $  1, 636  $  3, 403  $  1, 752  $    6, 791

Task 3: Meetings( 8)       24 24 3, 444 $  7, 164 $  3, 689 $   14, 297

Task 4: Pro' ect Mana ement 24 24 3,444  $  7, 164 $  3, 689  $   14, 297

Hour Subtotal 90 176 200

2023 Rates 292  $    282  $    195

2024 Rates( 4% Escalator Assumed on 2023 Rates)     $    304  $    293  $    203

2025 Rates( 3% Escalator Assumed on 2024 Rates)     $    313  $    302  $    209

357



RoeERnon- BRrAn, Inc.
Solutions for Progress

ATTACHMENT 2

2023 FEE SCHEDULE

Charges for project work performed by Robertson- Bryan, Inc. ( RB1) will be calculated and

billed at the hourly rates shown below.

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES RATE/ HOUR

Managing Partner 339. 00

Partner 332. 00

Principal Engineer/ Scientist 323. 00

Senior Consultant/ Department Head 306. 00

Resource Director 292. 00

Associate 282. 00

Senior Engineer/ Scientist II 275. 00

Senior Engineer/ Scientist I 261. 00

Project Engineer/ Scientist III 239. 00

Project Engineer/ Scientist II 229. 00

Project Engineer/ Scientist I 209. 00

Staff Engineer/ Scientist II 195. 00

StaffEngineer/ ScientistI 179. 00

Technical Analyst 167. 00

Graphics/ GIS 148. 00

Laboratory Compliance Specialist 144. 00

Administrative Assistant 111. 00

Intern 69. 00

Up to ten percent( 10%) of subcontractor charges will be added to cover administrative costs.

Hourly rates will be increased by a minimum of fifty percent( 50%) for depositions, trials, and

hearings. Rates will be adjusted annually. Rates are adjusted annually, effective December
16th

INVOICING AND PAYMENTS

Invoices will be issued on a monthly basis for all work performed on a project. Payment is
due upon receipt of the invoice.

358



ITEM 4. 12

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

APRIL 10, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       APPROVE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

WITH FGL ENVIRONMENTAL FOR WATER QUALITY
LABORATORY SERVICES FOR THE CITY' S DRINKING

WATER PROGRAM AND CTF WASTEWATER PERMIT

COMPLIANCE

RECOMMENDATION:     Adopt Resolution Approving a Professional Services
Agreement with FGL Environmental for Water

Quality Laboratory Services for the City of Lathrop' s
Drinking Water Program and Consolidated

Treatment Facility Wastewater Permit Compliance

SUMMARY:

Water Quality Laboratory Services are needed to maintain regulatory compliance for
permits associated with the City' s Drinking Water Program and Consolidated

Treatment Facility ( CTF).   Staff issued a Request for Proposals to six ( 6) qualified
firms on February 22, 2023.  Three ( 3) proposals from two ( 2) firms were received
on March 8, 2023.   After reviewing and ranking the proposals staff has determined
FGL Environmental to be the best qualified firm to provide these services for the City.

Staff requests Council approve a professional services agreement ( PSA)  with FGL

Environmental for Water Quality Laboratory Services for an annual cost of $ 21, 379

per year for the Drinking Water Program and $ 120, 754 per year for the CTF Permit
Compliance.

Funds for the water quality laboratory services will be allocated in the Fund 5620
Water) and Fund 6080 ( WW Recycling Plant-# 1 MBR) budgets for the 2023- 2024

Fiscal Year.

BACKGROUND:

The City' s water supply permit is administered by the State Water Resources Control
Board Division of Drinking Water Testing and monitoring of water quality is required
for conformance with the following regulations:

State of California Title 22 Drinking Water
Total Coliform Rule

Arsenic Rule

Lead and Copper Rule

Groundwater Rule ( pending)
Disinfectant Byproduct Rule Stage II

PFAS Monitoring Order

359



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

APRIL 10, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVE PSA WITH FGL FOR WATER QUALITY LABORATORY SERVICES FOR
THE CITY' S DRINKING WATER PROGRAM AND CTF WASTEWATER PERMIT

COMPLIANCE

The CTF currently disposes of disinfected tertiary recycled water to land under Waste
Discharge Requirements ( WDRs) Order R5- 2018- 0023.  The City is in the process of
transitioning the CTF effluent discharge to the San Joaquin River which is regulated
under the City' s National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System  ( NPDES)  permit
Order R5- 2022- 0044.   Both of these permits are administered by the Central Valley
Regional Water Quality Control Board.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

Water Quality Laboratory Services are needed to maintain regulatory compliance for
permits associated with the City' s Drinking Water Program and the CTF.  Staff issued

a RFPs to six ( 6) qualified firms on February 22, 2023.  Three ( 3) proposals from two
2) firms were received on March 8, 2023.   After reviewing the proposals staff has

determined FGL Environmental as the best- qualified firm to provide these services.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The estimated annual costs for the agreement with FGL Environmental to provide the
Water Quality Laboratory Services is $ 21, 379 for the Drinking Water Program and

120, 754 for the CTF Wastewater Permit Compliance.   Funds for the water quality
laboratory services will be allocated in the Fund 5620 ( Water) and Fund 6080 ( WW

Recycling Plant-# 1 MBR) budgets for the 2023- 2024 Fiscal Year.

ATTACH M ENTS:

A.  Resolution Approving a Professional Services Agreement with FGL

Environmental for Water Quality Laboratory Services for the City of Lathrop' s
Drinking Water Program and Consolidated Treatment Facility Wastewater
Permit Compliance

B.  Professional Services Agreement with FGL Environmental for Water Quality
Laboratory Services for the City of Lathrop' s Drinking Water Program and
Consolidated Treatment Facility Wastewater Permit Compliance

360



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

APRIL 10, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVE PSA WITH FGL FOR WATER QUALITY LABORATORY SERVICES FOR
THE CITY' S DRINKING WATER PROGRAM AND CTF WASTEWATER PERMIT

COMPLIANCE

APPROVALS:

o-...  O  20 23

Greg Gib n Date

Senior C il Engineer

yf3  z3

Brad ylor Date

City Engineer

r

3l3 ) z3

Cari James Date

Finance Director

3• 30• 2023

Michael King Date

Assistant City Manager

3 3p ` L-o Z 3
Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

23
St en J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

361



RESOLUTION NO. 23 -

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH FGL

ENVIRONMENTAL FOR WATER QUALITY LABORATORY SERVICES FOR THE
CITY OF LATHROP' S DRINKING WATER PROGRAM AND CONSOLIDATED

TREATMENT FACILITY WASTEWATER PERMIT COMPLIANCE

WHEREAS,  Water Quality Laboratory Services are needed to maintain

regulatory compliance for permits associated with the City' s Drinking Water Program
and Consolidated Treatment Facility ( CTF); and

WHEREAS, staff issued a Request for Proposals to six ( 6) qualified firms on
February 22,  2023, and three ( 3)  proposals from two ( 2) firms were received on

March 8, 2023; and

WHEREAS, after reviewing and ranking the proposals staff has determined
FGL Environmental to be the best qualified firm to provide these services; and

WHEREAS, staff requests Council approve a professional services agreement
with FGL Environmental for Water Quality Laboratory Services for an annual cost of

21, 379 per year for the Drinking Water Program and $ 120, 754 per year for the CTF
Permit Compliance; and

WHEREAS, funds for the water quality laboratory services will be allocated in
the Fund 5620 ( Water) and Fund 6080 ( WW Recycling Plant-# 1 MBR) budgets for

the 2023- 2024 Fiscal Year.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop does hereby approve a professional services agreement with FGL

Environmental for a total annual cost of $ 21, 379 per year for the Drinking Water
Program and $ 120, 754 per year for the CTF Permit Compliance to be paid from the
Fund 5620 ( Water) and Fund 6080 ( WW Recycling Plant-# 1 MBR) respectively.

362



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this lOth day of April 2023, by the
following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:    APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

363



ATTACHMENT
p,   „

CITY OF LATHROP

AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES WITH FRUIT GROWERS

LABORATORY, INC.

FOR CITY OF LATHROP WATER QUALITY TESTING LABORATORY SERVICES

THIS AGREEMENT, dated for convenience this 1 St day of July, 2023 is by and between Fruit
Growers Laboratory,  Inc. (" CONSULTANT") and the City of Lathrop, a California municipal
corporation (" CITY");      

RECITALS:

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained, experienced, and competent to perform
Drinking Water Quality Testing Laboratory Services, which are required by this agreement; and

WHEREAS, CITY selected the CONSULTANT pursuant to said qualifications; and

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is willing to render such Water Quality Testing Laboratory
Services, as hereinafter defined, on the following terms and conditions;

NOW, THEREFORE, CONSULTANT and the CITY agree as follows:

AGREEMENT

1)       Scope of Service

CONSULTANT agrees to perform Water Quality Testing Laboratory Services in accordance
with the scope of work and fee proposals provided by CONSULTANT, attached hereto as
Exhibits "A" and " B" and incorporated herein by reference.  CONSULTANT represents it is
prepared to and can diligently perform these services in accordance with the upmost
standards of its profession and to CITY' S satisfaction. The fee proposals shall include all
reimbursable costs required for the performance of the Scope of Services.  Payment of

additional reimbursable costs considered to be over and above those inherent in the original

Scope of Services shall be approved of in advance and in writing, by the CITY.

2)      Compensation

CITY hereby agrees to pay CONSULTANT a sum not to exceed$ 21, 379.00, for the Drinking
Water Quality Testing Laboratory Services set forth in Exhibit" A", and $ 120, 754. 00 for the

Wastewater Permit Compliance Water Quality Testing Laboratory Services set forth in
Exhibit" B". CONSULTANT shall be paid any uncontested sum due and payable within thirty
30) days of receipt of billings containing all information pursuant to Paragraph 5 below.

Compensation for any task must be equal to or less than the percentage of task complete.
In no event shall CONSULTANT be entitled to compensation for work not included in Exhibit
A", unless a written change order or authorization describing the extra work and payment

terms has been executed by CITY' s authorized representative prior to the commencement of
the work.  Payment is made based on a time and materials basis.

Page 1 of 10364



CITY OF LATHROP — CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH FRUIT GROWERS

LABORATORY, INC. FOR WATER QUALITY TESTING LABORATORY SERVICES

3)      Effective Date and Term

The effective date of this Agreement is July 1St, 2023 and it shall terminate no later than
June 30, 2024.

4)       Independent Contractor Status

It is expressly understood and agreed by both parties that CONSULTANT, while engaged in
carrying out and complying with any of the terms and conditions of this Agreement, is an
independent contractor and not an employee of the CITY.  As an independent contractor,

CONSULTANT is responsible for controlling the means and methods to complete the scope
of work described in Exhibit" A" to City' s satisfaction. CONSULTANT expresslywarrants not
to represent, at any time or in any manner, that CONSULTANT is an employee of the CITY.

5)      Billinqs

CONSULTANT shall submit invoices for completed work on a monthly basis, or as otherwise
agreed, providing without limitation, details as to amount of hours, individual performing said
work, hourly rate, and indicating to what aspect of the Scope of Services said work is
attributable.  CONSULTANT' S bills shall include a list of all tasks, a total amount due, the

amounts previously billed, and the net amount due on the invoice.  Except as specifically
authorized by CITY, CONSULTANT shall not bill CITY for duplicate services performed by
more than one person. In no event shall CONSULTANT submit any billing for an amount in
excess of the rates or the maximum amount of compensation provided in section ( 2) for
either task or for the entire Agreement, unless modified by a properly executed change
order.

6)      Advice and Status Reportinq

CONSULTANT shall provide the CITY with timely reports, orally or in writing, of all significant
developments arising during performance of its services hereunder, and shall furnish to
CITY such information as is necessary to enable CITY to monitor the performance of this
Agreement.

CONSULTANT shall submit to CITY such reports, diagrams, drawings and other work

products developed pursuant to the Scope of Services.
7)      Auditinq

CITY reserves the right to periodically audit all charges made by CONSULTANT to CITY for
services under this Agreement. Upon request, CONSULTANT agrees to furnish CITY, or a

designated representative, with necessary information and assistance needed to conduct
such an audit.

CONSULTANT agrees that CITY or its delegate will have the right to review, obtain and

copy all records pertaining to performance of this Agreement.  CONSULTANT agrees to

provide CITY or its delegate with any relevant information requested and shall permit CITY
or its delegate access to its premises, upon reasonable notice, during normal business
hours for the purpose of interviewing employees and inspecting and copying such books,
records, accounts, and other material that may be relevant to a matter under investigation for
the purpose of determining compliance with the requirement. CONSULTANT further agrees
to maintain such records for a period of three ( 3) years after final payment under this
agreement.

Page 2 of 10365



CITY OF LATHROP — CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH FRUIT GROWERS

LABORATORY, INC. FOR WATER QUALITY TESTING LABORATORY SERVICES

8)      Assiqnment of Personnel

CONSULTANT acknowledges that the CITY has relied on CONSULTANT' s capabilities and

on the qualifications of CONSULTANT' s principals and staff as identified in its proposal to
CITY.    The services shall be performed by,  or under the direct supervision,  of

CONSULTANT' s Authorized Representative: Jim Kavanaugh, CITY shall be notified by
CONSULTANT of any change of its Authorized Representative, and CITY is granted the
right of approval of all original, additional, and replacement personnel at CITY' s sole
discretion, and shall be notified by CONSULTANT of any changes of CONSULTANT' s
project staff prior to any change.

CONSULTANT shall assign only competent personnel to perform services pursuant to this
Agreement. If CITY asks CONSULTANT to remove a person assigned to the work called for
under this Agreement, CONSULTANT agrees to do so immediately, without requiring the
City to process a reason or explanation for its request.

9)      Assiqnment and Subcontractinq

It is recognized by the parties hereto that a substantial inducement to CITY for entering into
this Agreement was, and is, the professional reputation and competence of CONSULTANT.
Neither this Agreement nor any interest therein may be assigned by CONSULTANT without
the prior written approval of CITY' S authorized representative.  CONSULTANT shall not

subcontract any portion of the performance contemplated and provided for herein, other than
the subcontractors noted in the proposal, without prior written approval of the CITY'S
authorized representative.

10)     Insurance

On or before beginning any of the services or work called for by any term of this Agreement,
CONSULTANT, at its own cost and expense, shall carry, maintain for the duration of the
Agreement, and provide proof thereof that is acceptable to the CITY the insurance specified
in subsections (a) through (c) below with insurers and under forms of insurance satisfactory
in all respects to the CITY. CONSULTANT shall not allow any subcontractor to commence
work on any subcontract until all insurance required of the CONSULTANT has also been
obtained for the subcontractor. Verification of this insurance shall be submitted and made

part of this Agreement prior to execution.

a)      Workers' Compensation.  CONSULTANT shall, at CONSULTANT' S sole

cost and expense, maintain Statutory Workers' Compensation Insurance and
Employer' s Liability Insurance for any and all persons employed directly or
indirectly by CONSULTANT.    Said Statutory Workers'  Compensation
Insurance and Employer' s Liability Insurance shall be provided with limits of
not less than one million dollars  ($ 1, 000, 000).     In the alternative,

CONSULTANT may rely on a self-insurance program to meet these
requirements provided that the program of self- insurance complies fully with
the provisions of the California Labor Code.  The insurer, if insurance is

provided, or the CONSULTANT, if a program of self- insurance is provided,
shall waive all rights of subrogation against the CITY for loss arising from
work performed under this Agreement.

Page 3 of 10366



CITY OF LATHROP — CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH FRUIT GROWERS

LABORATORY, INC. FOR WATER QUALITY TESTING LABORATORY SERVICES

b)      Commercial General and Automobile Liability Insurance. CONSULTANT, at
CONSULTANT' S own cost and expense, shall maintain commercial general
and automobile liability insurance for the period covered by this Agreement in
an amount not less than one million dollars ($ 1, 000, 000) per occurrence,
combined single limit coverage for risks associated with the work

contemplated by this Agreement. If Commercial General Liability Insurance
or an Automobile Liability form or other form with a general aggregate limit is
used, either the general aggregate limit shall apply separately to the work to
be performed under this Agreement or the general aggregate limit shall be at
least twice the required occurrence limit.  Such coverage shall include but

shall not be limited to, protection against claims arising from bodily and
personal injury, including death resulting therefrom, and damage to property
resulting from activities contemplated under this Agreement, including the
use of owned and non- owned automobiles.

Coverage shall be at least as broad as Insurance Services Office

Commercial General Liability occurrence form CG 0001  ( ed. 11/ 88) and

Insurance Services Office Automobile Liability form CA 0001  ( ed. 12/ 90)

Code 1 ( any auto).

Each of the following shall be included in the insurance coverage or added
as an endorsement to the policy:

i)       CITY, its officers, employees, agents, and volunteers are to be

covered as insured with respect to each of the following: liability
arising out of activities performed by or on behalf of CONSULTANT,
including the insider' s general supervision of CONSULTANT;
products and completed operations of CONSULTANT; premises
owned, occupied or used by CONSULTANT.  The coverage shall

contain no special limitations on the scope of protection afforded to
CITY, its officers, employees, agents, or volunteers.

ii)       The insurance shall cover on an occurrence or an accident basis,

and not on a claim made basis.

iii)      An endorsement must state that coverage is primary insurance and
that no other insurance affected by the CITY will be called upon to
contribute to a loss under the coverage.

iv)      Any failure of CONSULTANT to comply with reporting provisions of
the policy shall not affect coverage provided to CITY and its officers,
employees, agents, and volunteers.

v)       Insurance is to be placed with California- admitted insurers with a
Best' s rating of no less than A: VII.

vi)      Notice of cancellation or non- renewal must be received by CITY at
least thirty days prior to such change.

Page 4 of 10367



CITY OF LATHROP — CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH FRUIT GROWERS

LABORATORY, INC. FOR WATER QUALITY TESTING LABORATORY SERVICES

c)  Professional Liabilitv.  CONSULTANT, at CONSULTANT' S own cost and expense, shall

maintain for the period covered by this Agreement professional liability insurance for
licensed professionals performing work pursuant to this Agreement in an amount not less
than Two Million Dollars ($ 2, 000, 000) per claim made and per policy aggregate covering the
licensed professionals' errors and omissions, as follows:

i)       Any deductible or self- insured retention shall not exceed $ 150, 000

per claim.

ii)       Notice of cancellation, material change, or non- renewal must be

received by the CITY at least thirty days prior to such change shall be
included in the coverage or added as an endorsement to the policy.

iii)      The policy must contain a cross liability or severability of interest
clause.

iv)      The following provisions shall apply if the professional liability
coverages are written on a claims made form:

1. The retroactive date of the policy must be shown and must be
before the date of the Agreement.

2. Insurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance

must be provided for at least five years after completion of the
Agreement or the work, so long as commercially available at
reasonable rates.

3. If coverage is canceled or not renewed and it is not replaced

with another claims made policy form with a retroactive date
that precedes the date of this Agreement, CONSULTANT
must provide extended reporting coverage for a minimum of
five years after completion of the Agreement or the work.
The CITY shall have the right to exercise at the

CONSULTANT' S cost, any extended reporting provisions of
the policy should the CONSULTANT cancel or not renew the
coverage.

4. A copy of the claim reporting requirements must be submitted
to the CITY prior to the commencement of any work under
this Agreement.

d) Deductibles and Self- Insured Retentions.  CONSULTANT shall disclose the self- insured

retentions and deductibles before beginning any of the services or work called for by any
term of this Agreement. During the period covered by this Agreement, upon express written
authorization of the CITY's authorized representative, CONSULTANT may increase such
deductibles or self- insured retentions with respect to CITY, its officers, employees, agents,
and volunteers.   The CITY's authorized representative may condition approval of an
increase in deductible or self- insured retention levels upon a requirement that

CONSULTANT procure a bond guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigations,
claim administration, and defense expenses that is satisfactory in all respects to each of
them.

Page 5 of 10368



CITY OF LATHROP — CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH FRUIT GROWERS

LABORATORY, INC. FOR WATER QUALITY TESTING LABORATORY SERVICES

e) Notice of Reduction in Coverape.    In the event that any coverage required under
subsections ( a), ( b), or( c) of this section of the Agreement is reduced, limited, or materially
affected in any other manner, CONSULTANT shall provide written notice to CITY at
CONSULTANT' S earliest possible opportunity and in no case later than five days after
CONSULTANT is notified of the change in coverage.

f)  In addition to any other remedies CITY may have if CONSULTANT fails to provide or
maintain any insurance policies or policy endorsements to the extent and within the time
herein required, CITY may, at its sole option:

i)       Obtain such insurance and deduct and retain the amount of the

premiums for such insurance from any sums due under the
Agreement;

ii)       Order CONSULTANT to stop work under this Agreement or withhold
any payment which becomes due to CONSULTANT hereunder, or
both stop work and withhold any payment,  until CONSULTANT
demonstrates compliance with the requirements hereof;

iii)      Terminate this Agreement.

Exercise of any of the above remedies, however, is an alternative to other
remedies CITY may have and is not the exclusive remedy for
CONSULTANT' S breach.

11)     Indemnification - CONSULTANT' S Responsibilitv

As to the CONSULTANT' S work hereunder,  it is understood and agreed that  ( a)

CONSULTANT has the professional skills necessary to perform the work, ( b) CITY relies
upon the professional skills of CONSULTANT to perform the work in a skillful and
professional manner, and ( c) CONSULTANT thus agrees to so perform.

Acceptance by CITY of the work performed under this Agreement does not operate as a
release of said CONSULTANT from such professional responsibility for the work performed.
It is further understood and agreed that CONSULTANT is apprised of the scope of the work

to be performed under this Agreement and CONSULTANT agrees that said work can and
shall be performed in a fully competent manner in accordance with the standard of care
applicable to CONSULTANT' S profession.

CONSULTANT shall indemnify, defend, and hold CITY, its officers, employees, agents, and
volunteers harmless from and against any and all liability, claims, suits, actions, damages,
and causes of action arising out of any personal injury, bodily injury, loss of life, or damage
to property, or any violation of any federal, state, or municipal law or ordinance, to the extent
caused by the willful misconduct or negligent acts or omissions of CONSULTANT, its
employees, subcontractors, or agents, or on account of the performance or character of this
work, except for any such claim arising out of the negligence or willful misconduct of the
CITY, its officers, employees, agents, or volunteers.   It is understood that the duty of
CONSULTANT to indemnify and hold harmless includes the duty to defend as set forth in
Section 2778 of the California Civil Code.   Acceptance of insurance certificates and

endorsements required under this Agreement does not relieve CONSULTANT from liability

Page 6 of 10369



CITY OF LATHROP — CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH FRUIT GROWERS

LABORATORY, INC. FOR WATER QUALITY TESTING LABORATORY SERVICES

under this indemnification and hold harmless clause.   This indemnification and hold

harmless clause shall apply whether or not such insurance policies shall have been
determined to be applicable to any of such damages or claims for damages.

12)     Licenses

If a license of any kind, which term is intended to include evidence of registration, is required
of CONSULTANT,  its employees, agents,  or subcontractors by federal or state law,
CONSULTANT warrants that such license has been obtained, is valid and in good standing,
and CONSULTANT shall keep it in effect at all times during the term of this Agreement, and
that any applicable bond has been posted in accordance with all applicable laws and
regulations.

13)     Business Licenses

CONSULTANT shall obtain and maintain a CITY of Lathrop Business License until all
Agreement services are rendered and accepted by the CITY.

14)    Termination

Either CITY or CONSULTANT may cancel this Agreement upon 30 days written notification
to the other party.  Upon termination, or completion of services under this Agreement, all

information collected, work product and documents shall be delivered by CONSULTANT to
CITY within ten ( 10) calendar days.

15)     Fundinq

CONSULTANT agrees and understands that renewal of this agreement in subsequent years
is contingent upon action by the City Council consistent with the appropriations limits of
Article XIII ( B) of the California Constitution and that the Council may determine not to fund
this agreement in subsequent years.

16)    Notices

All contracts, appointments, approvals, authorizations, claims, demands, Change Orders,

consents, designations, notices, offers, requests and statements given by either parry to the
other shall be in writing and shall be sufficiently given and served upon the other party if( 1)
personally served, ( 2) sent by the United States mail, postage prepaid, ( 3) sent by private
express delivery service, or ( 4) in the case of a facsimile transmission, if sent to the
telephone FAX number set forth below during regular business hours of the receiving party
and followed with two (2) Days by delivery of a hard copy of the material sent by facsimile
transmission. Personal service shall include, without limitation, service by delivery and
service by facsimile transmission.

To City:       City of Lathrop
City Clerk
390 Towne Centre

Lathrop, CA 95330

Page 7 of 10370



CITY OF LATHROP — CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH FRUIT GROWERS

LABORATORY, INC. FOR WATER QUALITY TESTING LABORATORY SERVICES

Copy to:      City of Lathrop
Department of Public Works

390 Towne Centre

Lathrop, CA 95330
MAIN:    ( 209) 941- 7430

FAX:      ( 209) 941- 7449

To Consultant: Fruit Growers Laboratory, Inc.
Corporate Office

853 Corporation Street

Santa Paula, CA 93012

Phone:     805- 392- 2000

17)     Miscellaneous

a)      Consent.   Whenever in this Agreement the approval or consent of a party is
required, such approval or consent shall be in writing and shall be executed by a
person having the express authority to grant such approval or consent.

b)      Contract Terms Prevail.   All exhibits and this Agreement are intended to be

construed as a single document.  Should any inconsistency occur between the
specific terms of this Agreement and attached exhibits, the terms of this Agreement

shall prevail.

c)       Controlling Law. The parties agree that this Agreement shall be governed and
construed by and in accordance with the Laws of the State of California.

d)      Definitions.  The definitions and terms are as defined in these specifications.

e)      Force Majeure.  Neither party shall be deemed to be in default on account of any
delay or failure to perform its obligations under this Agreement, which directly results
from an Act of God or an act of a superior governmental authority.

f)       Headings. The paragraph headings are not a part of this Agreement and shall have
no effect upon the construction or interpretation of any part of this Agreement.

g)      Incorporation of Documents. All documents constituting the Agreement documents
described in Section 1 hereof and all documents which may, from time to time, be
referred to in any duly executed amendment hereto are by such reference
incorporated in the Agreement and shall be deemed to be part of this Agreement.

h)      Integration.  This Agreement and any amendments hereto between the parties
constitute the entire Agreement between the parties concerning the Project and
Work, and there are no other prior oral or written agreements between the parties
that are not incorporated in this Agreement.

i)       Modification of Agreement. This Agreement shall not be modified or be binding upon
the parties unless such modification is agreed to in writing and signed bythe parties.

j)       Ownership of Documents.  All documents, photographs, reports, analyses, audits,
computer media, or other material documents or data, and working papers, whether

Page 8 of 10371



CITY OF LATHROP — CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH FRUIT GROWERS
LABORATORY, INC. FOR WATER QUALITY TESTING LABORATORY SERVICES

or not in final form, which have been obtained or prepared under this Agreement,
shall be deemed the property of the CITY.  Upon CITY' s request, CONSULTANT

shall allow CITY to inspect all such documents during the CONSULTANT' s regular
business hours.

k)       Provision.  Any agreement, covenant, condition, clause, qualification, restriction,
reservation, term or other stipulation in the Agreement shall define or otherwise

control, establish or limit the performance required or permitted or to be required of
or permitted by either party. All provisions, whether covenants or conditions, shall be
deemed to be both covenants and conditions.

I)       Severability. The invalidity in whole or part of any provision of this Agreement shall
not void or affect the validity of any other provision of this agreement.  If a court of
competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision of this Agreement is void or
unenforceable, the provisions of this Agreement not so affected shall remain in full
force and effect.

m)     Status of CONSULTANT.    In the exercise of rights and obligations under this
Agreement, CONSULTANT acts as an independent contractor and not as an agent

or employee of CITY. CONSULTANT shall not be entitled to any rights and benefits
accorded or accruing to the City Council members, officers or employees of CITY,
and CONSULTANT expressly waives any and all claims to such right and benefits.

n)      Successors and Assigns. The provisions of this Agreement shall inure to the benefit
of, and shall apply to and bind, the successors and assigns of the parties.

o)      Time of the Essence.  Time is of the essence of this Agreement and each of its
provisions.  In the calculation of time hereunder, the time in which an act is to be

performed shall be computed by excluding the first Day and including the last. If the
time in which an act is to be performed falls on a Saturday, Sunday or any Day
observed as a legal holiday by CITY, the time for performance shall be extended to
the following Business Day.

p)      Venue. In the event that suit is brought by either party hereunder, the parties agree
that trial of such action shall be vested exclusively in the state courts of California in
the County of San Joaquin or in the United States District Court for the Eastern
District of California.

q)      Recovery of Costs. The prevailing party in any action brought to enforce the terms of
this Agreement or arising out of this Agreement may recover its reasonable costs,
including reasonable attorney's fees, incurred or expended in connection with such
action against the non- prevailing party.

18)     Notice to Proceed

Prior to commencing work under this agreement, CONSULTANT shall receive a written

Notice to Proceed" from CITY. A Notice to Proceed shall not be issued until all necessary
bonds and insurances have been received. City shall not be obligated to pay CONSULTANT
for any services prior to issuance of the Notice to Proceed.

Page 9 of 10372



CITY OF LATHROP — CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH FRUIT GROWERS

LABORATORY, INC. FOR WATER QUALITY TESTING LABORATORY SERVICES

19)    Siqnatures

The individuals executing this Agreement represent and warrant that they have the right,
power, legal capacity, and authority to enter into and to execute this Agreement on behalf of
the respective legal entities of the CONSULTANT and the CITY. This agreement shall inure

to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties hereto and their respective successors and
assigns.

Approved as to Form:     City of Lathrop
City Attorney

3 -3 0 zp -

Salvador Navarrete Date

Recommended for Approval:    City of Lathrop
Assistant City Manager

Michael King Date

Approved by: City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Stephen J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

Consultant:    Fruit Growers Laboratory, Inc.
853 Corporation Street

Santa Paula, CA 93012

Fed ID #  95- 07550000

Business License # 20225

Signature Date

Print Narne and Title

Page 10 of 10373



City of Lathrop Water Quality Testing Fee Estimate 2023- 2024

Drinking Water Program

EPA Method/ Constituent Price per No. Extended

Sam le Sam les Price
H' 8..« j «

Weekly System Monitoring: 8 Sites

SM9223B/ Total& E. Coli Coliform 13 416 5408

Field Test— Field Chlorine Free 13 416 5408

Monthly Bacti Wells 6, 7, 8, 9 & 10

SM9223B/ Total& E. Coli Coliform- QT- Colilert- 100 13 60 780

Field Test— Field Chlorine Total 13 60 780

SM9215B HPC Standard Plate Count 34 60 2040

Quarterly LAWTF( CR) Monitoring
EPA 200. 8/ Metals, Total- As 11 4 44

Monthly LAWTF( CT) Monitoring
EPA 200. 7/ Metals, Tota1- Iron 11 12 132

Weekly LAWTF( CT) Monitoring
EPA 200. 8/ Metals, Total- As 11 52 572

Quarterly Stage 2 DBP Monitoring
EPA 551. 1/ Trihalomethanes( 4 Sites) 42 16 672

EPA 552. 2/ Haloacetic Acids( 4 Sites) 89 16 1424

Annual Arsenic Monitoring Wells 6, 7, 8, 9& 10

EPA 200. 8/ Metals, Total- As 11 5 55

Annual Nitrate Monitoring Wells 6, 7, 8, 9 & 10

EPA 353. 2 Nitrate/ Nitrite Nitrogen 13 5 65

Regulated VOCs Wells 7& 8

EPA 524. 2 VOCs 120 2 240

Regulated SOC Wells 6, 7, 8, 9& 10

SRL 524M- TCP/ 1, 2, 3 - Trichloropropane 68 5 340

Quarterly PFAS Wells 6, 7, 8, 9 & 10

EPA 533/ PFAS 295 5 1475

Total Price Quote=   19, 435

Add 10% Contingency for unscheduled testing 1, 944

TOTAL CONTRACT AMOUNT=  21, 379

374



City of Lathrop Water Quality Testing Fee Estimate Fiscal Year 2023- 2024
Wastewater Permit Compliance

EPA Method/ Constituent Price per No. Extended

Sam le Sam les Price

Daily Total& Fecal Coliform( EFF- 001)

SM9221B, E/ Total& Fecal Coliform 33 365 12045

Weekly BODS and Total Suspended Solids( INF- 001)

SM5210B/ Biochemical Oxygen Demand( BODS)    33 52 1716

SM2540D/ Total Suspended Solids( TSS)     20 52 1040

Electrical Conductivity @ 25 degrees Celsius 15 52 780

Weekly BODS( EFF- 001)

SM5210B/ Biochemical Oxygen Demand ( BODS)   33 52 1716

Monthly Total Dissolved Solids, Total Nitrogen( as N),
Total Sus ended Solids EFF- 001)

SM2540C/ Total Dissolved Solids( TDS)      20 12 240

Total Nitrogen 20 12 240

SM2540D/ Total Suspended Solids( TSS 20 12 240

Weekend and Holiday Effluent Monitoring( EFF- 002)
This monitoring will occur when the CTF is sending
water through the cooling ponds, which will typically

occur October—April, annually

Temperature 11 70 770

pH 11 70 770

Monthly Effluent Monitoring( EFF-001)
EPA 624. 1NOCs( DBCM, DCBM, Bromoform,   140 12 1680

Chloroform)

EPA 200. 7/ EPA 200. 8/ Individual Metals— Barium( Ba)     
11 12 132

EPA 300. 0/ SM4500/ Nitrate( NO3- N) 20 12 240

EPA 300. 0/ SM4500/ Nitrite( NO2- N)  20 12 240

Calculate from EPA 300. 0/ SM4500/ Nitrate+ Nitrite as N 20 12 240

NO3- N+ NO2- N

Quarterly Effluent Monitoring( EFF- 001)
SM 5310C/ Dissolved Organic Carbon 51 4 204

SM2340B/ Total Hardness( as CaCO3) 29 4 1 l6

EPA 1630/ Mercury— Methyl Mercury 165 4 660

EPA 1631/ EPA 1669/ Mercury- Total 95 4 380

EPA 200. 7/ EPA 200. 8/ Individual Metals— Lead( Pb) 11 4 44

Annual Effluent Monitoring( EFF- 001
orpyn os an iazinon—  . . et o 395 1 395

Method 8141, or equivalent GC/ MS method with a lower

Reporting Limit than the Basin Plan Water Quality
Objectives of 0. 015 µg/ L and O. lµg/L for chlorpyrifos
and diazinon

Whole Effluent Toxicity( WET) Testing( EFF-001)

Bioassay— Acute Toxicity, Rainbow Trout 580 4 2320

Bioassay— Chronic Toxicity, 3- Species, 6- Dilutions+    5960 4 23840

Control( lab water). [ An amendment to the NPDES

permit is anticipated in 2023 that will allow a standard 5-
concentration dilution series.] Include concurrent

reference toxicant test.

375



City of Lathrop Water Quality Testing Fee Estimate Fiscal Year 2023- 2024
Wastewater Permit Compliance

Pyrethroid- related Toxicity Testing( one location
RSW-002 or RSW- 003])

Bioassay— Acute Toxicity, Hyalella Azteca 775 4 3100

Monthly Receiving Water Monitoring( RSW- 002 and
RSW- 003

SM4500- NH3- N/ Ammonia Nitrogen( as N 21 24 504

Quarterly Receiving Water Monitoring( RSW- 002
and RSW- 003

SM 5310C/ Dissolved Organic Carbon 51 8 408

EPA 200. 7/ Hardness, Total( as CaCO3)       29 8 232

Pyrethroid Pesticides Monitoring( EFF-001 and one
RSW location[ RSW- 002 or RSW- 003]

Total Pyrethroi Pesticides— EPA 8270 or equiva ent 2g 1 8 2248

Method must be validated by the Central Valley Water
Board per the NPDES permit, Monitoring and Reporting
Program, section IX. D.

Total Organic Carbon( TOC)   45 8 360

Effluent and Receiving Water Characterization
Monitoring( EFF- 001 and RSW- 001) Constituents in

the NPDES permit, MRP, Table E- lOTable E- 10

constituents routinely monitored and listed above are
not included in the uote list below

EPA 624. 1NOCs Full List 140 8 1120

EPA 625. 1/ Semi- Volatile Organics 395 8 3160

EPA 200. 2/ Metals— Sample Prep 18 8 144

EPA 200. 7/ EPA 200. 8/ Priority Pollutant Metals 11 8 88

EPA 200. 7/ Boron ll 8 88

EPA 300. 0/ Chloride 20 8 160

EPA 4500- CN CE/ Cyanide, Total( as CN)     50 8 400

EPA 200. 7/ EPA 200. 8 Phosphorous, Total( as P)    31 8 248

EPA 300. 0/ Sulfate 21 8 168

SM 4500- S D/ Sulfide( as S)    21 8 168

EPA 6083/ Chlorinated Pesticides& PCBs 113 8 904

SM5540C/ Foaming Agents( MBAS)  42 8 336

SM2340B/ Hardness( as CaCO3)       29 8 232

SM2540C/ Total Dissolved Solids 20 8 160

SM4500- NH3 G or equivalent/ Ammonia( as N)      21 8 168

EPA 300. 0/ SM4500/ Nitrate( as N)     20 8 160

EPA 300. 0/ SM4500/ Nitrite( as N)     20 8 160

SRL 524M- TCP/ 1, 2, 3 - Trichloropropane 68 8 544

EPA 504. 1/ EDB & DBCP 95 8 760

EPA 5153/ Herbicides 106 8 848

EPA 525. 2/ EPA 507/ Pesticides, Full List 245 8 1960

EPA 531. 1/ Carbamates 124 8 992

EPA 548. 1Bndothal 165 8 1320

EPA 549. 2/ Diquat 106 8 848

Krones/ Tribulytin 255 8 2040

Annually( Water Supply)
SM2540C/ Total Dissolved Solids( TDS)      20 1 20

376



City of Lathrop Water Quality Testing Fee Estimate Fiscal Year 2023- 2024
Wastewater Permit Compliance

EPA 200/ Prep for Total Metals Analysis 18 1 18

EPA 200J/ EPA 200. 8 Standard Minerals 98 1 98

pH 5 1 15

Annually( Sludge Monitoring)

SM9221 B, E/ Total & Fecal Coliform 45 1 45

Solids, Total( or% moisture)( Solid)   13 1 13

SM4500- NH3H/ Ammonia Nitrogen( NH3- N)( Solid)       21 1 21

SM2510B/ Electrical Conductivity( EC) ( Solid)       15 1 15

EPA 300. 0/ Nitrate( NO3 or NO3- N)( Solid)  20 1 20

SM4500- Norg/ Nitrogen, Organic( TKN- NH3- N)( Solid)    
45 1 45

EPA 351. 1/ Total Kjeldal Nitrogen( TKN)( Solid)    38 1 38

EPA 9045/ pH( Solid)    25 1 25

SM2540C/ Total Dissolved Solids( TDS)( Solid)     20 1 20

EPA 200/ Prep for Total Metals Analysis 18 1 18

EPA 200. 7/ EPA 200. 8/ Individual Metals 1]   1 ll

EPA 8081 130 1 130

EPA 8082 130 1 130

EPA 8270 281 1 281

EPA 7471/ Mercury( Solid)     45 1 45

Industrial Pretreatment Program Monitoring in 2024
Per NPDES Permit, MRP, X.D. S. A( effluent testing

for the IPP will be ful lled with the effluent

characterization sam les in the table above

Influent— Federal Priority Pollutant List( except asbestos) 1145 1 1145

https:// www.epa.go v/ eg/ toxic- and- priori ty-po l lu tants-
under- clean- water- act# riorit

Biosolids— Federal Priority Pollutant List( except 1145 1 1145

asbestos) https:// www.epa.gov/ eg/ toxic- and- priority-
ollutants- under- clean- water- act# riorit

Field Services

Sample Pick Up, Standard Weekday 30 260 7800

Sample Collection Fee— Saturday/ Sunday 45 104 4680

Sample Collection Fee- Holiday 75 12 900

Total Price Quote=   90, 754

Contingency for unscheduled testing 30, 000

TOTAL CONTRACT AMOUNT=   120, 754

377



M

City of Lathrap RF'F February 22, 2023
Water Quality L,a6atatory Sen+ices{ Drinking Watec}

Bid Pricing from
ApFe dix B FGL Environmental

Provide a fee proposal by compl ting the unit and extended priccs tests presented below,
including a total pcice quote( including sampling fee}. The numbers of annual sarnples presented
are estunates for hid comparison purposes only and actual quantities under the c ntract rnay vary
from year ta year:

1. Drinking Water Tests( SWRCB-DDW letter dated Novem6er 30, 2022 and Public Drinking
Water Watch websitt( hctns:/ Isdwis. watsrbaards. ca. v/ PDW W/ 1)

EPAMethodiConstitueat Pricc per Sample No.   Eztepded Price

Sam ies

Wcekl S siem Mopttorin : 8 Sitts

SM9223B lTotal& E. Co} i Coliform 416

Field Tesi— Field Chlodne Free 41 b

EPA MethodJCanstituent PrEce per Saaaple No.  Exte ded Price

Ssm les

Monthl Bacti Wells ells b 7 8 9& 10

SM9223H/ Tfltal& c E. Coli Caliform $ 13 64

Fic d Tcst— FietQ Chlorine Tota!   60

SM9215B HPC Standarci Alate Coun t 34 60 Zpqp

EPA Method/ Constituent P ice per Samplr No.  Extended Pr3ce

Sam les
Annuaf Nitm en as Mon3torin eUs 6 7 8, 9&] 0

EPA 353. Z Nitrate/ Nitritc TIiGv en 13 5

EPA Method/ Constituent Price per Sample No.  zteaded Price

Sarn tes

3 esr Nitsfte aad 1Vitrate+ Nttr te Moaitorin ells 6 7 $ 9& 10

EPA353. 2NitratrJNitritcNitra on 5

EAAMethodlCoastituent PriceperSample No.  ExtentisdPrice

Sam l rs

3- ear R lated GMlGP Welis 6 7 9& 10

Various—GenerslMiaeral( Alkaliaity,    S qg5

Boron, Caloium, Carbonate, Chloride,      a S99

Coppe, Aggsessive Znde Bicarbanate,

Fiva ide, Foaming Agents, Hydroxidc,
ton, Langlier Inde Magnesium,

Manganrsa, Nitrate, Nitritc, pH,
Potassiusn, Sodium, SAR, Elcctrical

Conductivity, Sulfate, TDS, Total
Hardnes Zino
Various— IOCMetais( Alumiaum, 5 56

Mtirriony, Arsenic, Harium, Heryllium,     QS 112
Cadmium Ct rom'surn, L,oad, Mercury,
Nicket, Sclanium, Sitvcr,' I'hailium,
Var dadium

Veriaus— Geaeral Physicai( Calor, Qdor,  S 05
Turbidi 1

378



City of Lathrop RFP February 22, 2023
Water Quality Laboraiory Services{ Drinking Water)

Bid Pricing hom FGL
Enviranmental

EPA MethodlConsNtuent Price per Sampie No,  Extended Price
Sam tes

Voletile O nic Chemicals Welis ells 6 7 8 9& 18
EFA 524. 7NOCs 5

EPA Methoc lCunstituent Price per Sampie No.  Extended Price

Ssai les
R lat i S thetic O aic Chesnicals Wells eUs b 7 & 9& 10

DBCP/ EDB 5

AUszine& Siraezine 5

EPA MethodlConstitueni Price per Sample Nu.  Eztended Price

Sam les

Semi- Aanuai Pacchlorate elts 6 ? S 9& l0

BPA 314. 41Perchlorate 5

EPA Method/ Csnstitu nt Price per Sempte No.  Extendet! Price
Sam 1es

I Tric laro ro ane elis 6 7 8.4& 10

CASRL— 524M- TCP l4

EPA MethadtConstituent Price per Sample No.  Exteaded Price

Sam les

PFAS elis b . 9& l   usrterl Monttortn
EPA 533/ PFAS 2Q

EPA MethodlCons# ituent Price rer Sampis lYa.  Extendad Priee

Ssm ! es
Cross A! he olts 9& 10

Gross Al ha 2

EPA MethodlCo stitutnt Price per Samgle Na.  Exteadsd PrEce

Sam ! es
Urantum elis 4& 10

Uraninm 2

EPA MethodJConstituen4 Price ptr Sampie No.  Extended Price

Sam 1es

Redinm- 226 at d Rsdiam Z28 clls 4& IO

Uranium 2

EPA MethodlConstitutat Price per Saxnp[ e Na.  E: tended Price

Sam les

3- car Le d aad Co c30 sttes

EPA 2fl0. 7120U. 8 Capper( Cn) and Lead 22 3U 66fl
b

379



City af Lathrop RFP ebruary 22, 2023
Water Qualiry Laboratory Services{ flrinking Water)

Bfd Pricing firom
FGL Environmental

EPAMethoc! lConstituent Price per Sampls No.  Exteaded Price

Sam Ies

uarteri Drinkin Water Mouiiorin Sta e 2 DBFR Cam liance
BPASSi. 1/ Tribatomethanes 4Sites 1G

PA 552, 2J 9 16 1424
Haloacctic Acids 4 5ites

EPA M2i l0i/ CdltSt tllCA    Price per Sample No.  Eatended Price

81t1 NS

9- car Asbestas Monitorin Istribut on$ stem with AC Pl e
Asbutos 1

EPA MethodtConstituent rice per Sample No.  Extended PrIce

Satts les

LAWTF Cambined Treated WeeW Monitorin
F..QA204. 7/ EPA 2Q0. 8 individuai Mot ats-    I 1 S2 57
Arscnic

EPA MetltadlConstituent Price per Samgle No.  Extended Price

Ssm ! es
LAWTF Combincd Treated Moath) MonStorin

EPAZ40, 71EPA 2qU.$ Individuat Metals 12 Q$ 1 I    $ , 32
Iron

EPA MeihadlCanstituent Prtce per Sample No.  Esteaded Pr ce
Sam tes

LA1'VTF Cumbined Raw uarEerl Maniiorin
EPA2flU. 7/EPA200. 81ndividualMeials S11 4 1} q
Arscnia

2. Allowance for six( 6) unsch$ duled Bac- T tests for waker system maintenance and repairs, and

for two semi- annual manitoring events for TDS at five water supply weUs and trva monitoring
wells{ neither af these resuits are rcported to the State).

EPA MethodlConsittuent Price per Samplt 1Vo.  Extended PrIce
Sam les

Unschsduled Bac- T tpts tor Waker S stem Meintenaace
SM9223B R'otal& E.Coli Collform 13 6

Field Test— Fie d Chiorine Frt S13 6

Sam lin — Rontino Bacti Moaitorin 30 6

EPA Mett udlConstftuont Price per Sampie No.  E: tendad Price

5am 1ss

Semi- AnnualMuaitorin forTDS
EPA 16Q. 1 TDS 14

Tatal 4' rice Quote( Drinking Water Program};_$_ 29, 124. 00

Bid pricing from FGL Environmental

380



City af Lathrop RFP Eebrusry 22 2023
Waier Quality Laboratory Secvices( CTF)   

Bid Pricing from

Appendi B
FGL Environmental

Provide a fee proposal by compleEing ihe unic and extended prices tests presented belaw,
including a tatal price quote{ including ail fees), ' I' e numbers ofanneal samples presented are
estimates for bid comparison purposes only and actual quantities under the cantract may vary
from year to year:

i. WDR RS- 2416-4028- 03 REV3 Monitaring and Reporting Program     

EPA Method/ Canstitueot Pr ce er Sam 1e Na. Sa lss Extended Price

Dali Total& Fecsl Coliiorm EF

SM4221B FJi' atai& Fceal Coliform 365

EPA Mel4od/ Consiituent Price er Sam le No. Sam tes ExttndM PHce

Weekl BODS and Total Sus ended 5olids N

SM52fOBBiochcmicalOxygeeDemand 52 1716

QDS 33

SM2540D/ Tote1 Sus nded Sofids TS5 52 2Q

EPAMetl odJCoastituent Pcicr er Sam 1e Na. Sam ! es Extended Price

Wetkl BODS EF

SM5214H/ BiochemicalOxygcnDcmand     $ 33 32 1716

BODS

EPA MelhodJConst[ tuent Price cr Sam 1e iVa. Sam les Extcuded Price

Monthi Total pissofved Soli Totai Nitro en as N Toisl Sus ended Sollds E

SM2544C/ 1'otal Dissoived 5olids TDS 12

Total Nitra en 12

SM2540D1Tota1 Sus ended SoSids TSS 2

EPA Methad/ Constituent Price r Sam le No. Sam les Exteoded Price

Annual Pt ority Pollutants Listed in Table 1 and Tabla 2 of the WDRs MRP RS- 2016- 0428- Q3 REV3
Will be Fullilltti wiih Efiluent Chargcterization Tcsiin uoder tht NPDES craai ste table belaw,

NtA

EPA Method/ Caastituent Price r Sam ie No. Ssm 1es ExtsnBed Price

Annuall aterSu I

SM2340Cltotal Dissoiv d Salids DS 1

PA 20QtPn for Total MetaJs Mai is 1

EPA 2Q0. 71EPA 200. 8 Standerd Mincrels 1

H

381



City of Lathmp R.FP February 22, 2U23
Water Quality Laboratory Services( CTF}

Bid Pricing fram
FGL Environmental

PAMethocUConstitueat Price rSam te No. Sam tes ExteadedPrFce

Aanusl!  Stud e Monitorin
SM9221 B F/ Totat& Fecat Caiifocm 1

Solids Tatal or° maishsrc Soti      i

SMA50- NH3H/ AmmoniaNitrogen      $ 2  1 Z},
Solid

SM25t4BiElcctricalConductivity{ EC)   $ ig 1 15

Solid

EPA 300A/ hiitrate( NO3 orNC13- I      $ 2{  1 2p
Solid

SM4500- Narg/ Nitrogon, Organic( TKN-  $ qS 1 45

NH3-    Solid
EPA 331. lITotai Kjeldal Nitrogen( TKN} $ 3$  3$

Solid
EPA 9045/ H Solid 1

SM2540GTotal Dissolved Salids( TDS}  $ 2p 1 20

Salid

EPA 200/ Pre far Total Metals Ana! sis I

EPA 240. 7/ EPA 2U0. 8/ Individual Meials 1

EPA$ 08I 1

EPA 8082 1

EPA 8274 1

BPA 7471JMetcu Soltd t

PA MethodiCansbit ent Price r Sam le No. Sam ! es Ertended Price

FieiB Services

Sam le Picic U Standsrd Weskda Q

Sam 1eCaflectionFee— Saturda iSunda l04

Sam le CoSlcction Fe- Nolida 12

Tata! Quai( CTF WDR MRP): 31. 6Z5. OD

Bid Pricing from
FGL Environmental

382



City af Lathrop RFP February 22, 2023
Water Quality Laboratary Services{ CTF)

Bid Pricing frorn
FGL Envirr nmental

2. (? rder R5- 2022- 0044 NPD£ S CA0085359 Monitoring and Reparting Program( MRP)

EPA MethodJConstituent Pcice er Sam 1e No. Sam les Extended Prico

WeaW iaAnent Manitorin NF- 001

SM52tOBBiachemicalOuygee Demand 52 Z71g
H DS S33

SM2540D Total Sus andcd Salids TSS 52   $ 2ti

E ectncaf on ucttv      25 52   $ t5

EPA MethodtConstitneet Price r Sem le No, Sam les Extended Price

Daji EftiucntManitoria FF-0Oi

SM9221 S Efl"otal& Fecal Colifcfrm 365

EPA Mei ad/ Constituent Prke er Sam 1e No. Sam I, s Extcndrd Price

3lWetk EtfJueat Monitorin EFF-0Ol

SM52108BiochemicalOxygenDesnand 156 glqg
BODS

SM2540D Toial Sus ondtd Solids TSS 155   $ 20

EPA MethodlCanstitnant Price r Sam le io. Sam les Extended Price

Weekt Efilnent Monitoria EFF Opl

5M4540- NH3- N/ AmmoniaNitro en as N S2   $ 21

Elactncal Con uctivi 25 b 52 S 15

EPAMethod/ Congtttuent Price er Sam ie No. Sam les   xtended Prtce

Wcekend and Hoiiday Efilnent Maaitoring( EFF- 002)
This manidaring wlp occur when the CTF is settdl ng water through the cooting ponds, whlch will typicaliy

occur October—A ril snnual

Tem eratur     0

H 70

EPA Meihod/ Conatituent Price r Sam ! e No. Sam tes Extended Price

Moatht Eitlnent MonitaNn E F-001

EPA624. iNOCs( DBCM. DCBM,    $ 140 12 1680

Bromafarm Chlatnfarm

EPA 200.?/ PA 200.$/ Individual Matal S 11 t 2 132

Barium Ba

EPA3QQ. O/ SM4500Mitrate 03-       Z

SPA 3Q0. 0/ 5M4500Mitrite U2-N 2

Caiculata frorn EPA 304. O/ SM45d0/ Nitr ate 20 12 q

Nitrite as N 03-N+ NO2-

E!' A MethfldlCocstituent Price r Sam ! c lYo. Sam la EYtende i Price

uarleH Eflluent Moaitorin EF'- 601

SM 53! OClDissofv d O ic Carbon 4 S5]

SM234081Total Hardncss as CaCO3 g

EPA 16301M rou  — Meth 1 Meroor 4 5165

EPA 1631J£ PA 1669Rvterc   - Total 4 95

EPA 240.?/ EPA 200. S/ IndividueS 4 Q 1 I ( each)  $   44

Metals Lead b

383



City of Lathrop RFP February 22, 2fl23
Watsr Quality I.aboratory 5ervices( CTF)     

Bid Pricing from
FGL Environmental

EPA MethodtConstituent Price r Sam 1e No. Sam fes Extanded Price

Anausl Eff uent Maaitodn EFF-0Ol

Chlflrpyrifos end Diazinan— U. S. EPA 5395 395

Methad 625M, Mcthod 8141, ar equivel cnt
GGMS method with a bwor Rcpociing
Limit than thc Besin P1an Water Quality
Qbjectives of Q. O 15 EcgJi. and 4. i µg/ L. fo
chlo rifos and diazinon

EPAMethod/ Const tuent Prtce erSam te No. Sam Jes Extended Price

Who e Efflueni Toxic  Test n FF- 04i

Hioassa — Acute Toxici  . Rainbaw Trout 4   580

Biaassay— Chronic To ucity, 3- Spaci cs, G-       4 S396U     $ Z3& 10
Diluiions+ Conirol( lab waterj. [ An
amendmeni ta thc NfrDES permit is
anticipattd in 2023 that wip atiaw a

ssandard 5- concennation dilution stri es. J
Include cancurrentraferencatoxicant test

EPA MethodiConstituant PrIcc r Sam 1e iVo. Sam les Estended Pricc

refhroid- related Touici Testi one( ocation RSW- 4Q2 or RSW-003

Biaassa — Acute Toxici H a1eQa Azieca 4 5775

EPAMethoc} iCortstituent Price rSam le NaSam 1es ExteadedPrice

M athl Resejvio Water Monitoria lt5W- 4d2 aod R.SW- OU3

SM4S00- NH3- NtAmmania Nitro cn as 24

EPA MethodlCoasti# uent Price er Sam le No. Sam tcs Ext$ nded Price

uarterl RBCC YJp Water Manitor n W-002 snd RSW- 003

SM S310GUissolval O ic Carbvn 4

EPA 200.?/ Hardn Tota1 as CaCO3 4

EPA MethodlCottstituenE Price er Sam ! e No. Sam ! es E= tencled Price

P rethratd Pestic3drs Monitarin FF-00] a d one RSW locatian RSW- 110Z or RSW-003

Total Pyrethroid Pe$ ticida—EPA 8? 70 or     2gl 8 2248

equivalsn Moihod rnust ba vafidatsd 6y the
Central Valley WaterBaard pertheN DES
permiG Monitoring and Repcsrting Progam,
sectian[ X. D.

Toial O ic Carbon ' OC 8

EPA Methnd/ CanstEtuent Price er Sam le No. 5am la Eztended Price

E[ tlueat aad Recofviag Water Cbaracterizatioa Manitoring( EFF-0O1 and E, SW- 001)
Coastituents in the NPDES permit, MRP, Table E-] 0

Tab1e E- 10 canstitaeats rautlnel monitored and listed above are nat included[ n the uota list below
EPA 624. 1NOCs Full List 8

EFAG25. 1/ Semi- Volatile0 ics 8

EPA Z00. 2/ Metals— Satn le Pse 8

EPA204. 7/ EPA200. B/ PriorityPoltutant       $ li{permetal} 88

Metals

EPA 200. 7Bomn 8

EPA 300. 4JChloride 8

EPA 4500• CN CFJC id Total as CN 8

384



City af Lathrop RFP Febsvary 22, 2023
Water Quality Laboratary Services( CTF)    Bid Pcicing from

FGL Enviranmenta
PA 20p. 7/ EPA 20Q. 8 Phosphorous. Totai     $ 31 248

as P

EPA 304. 0/ Sulfate 8

SM 430Q- S DlSutfidc as S 8

EPA 608. 3/ Chlorinatcd Pesticidos& PCBs

SM5540GFoamin A ents AS 8

SM23408JHardness as CaCp3
SM2540ClTata! Dissolvod Solids 8

5M4540- NH3 G or cquivaleadAmrnooia{ as   $ l 8 168

EPA 300. OI5M45001Nitcate as 8

EPA 300. O/ SM45QO/ l+litrite as N 8

SRL 524M- TCP/ 1 3- Trichloro ro ane 8

EPA SD4, IIEDB 8c DBCP 8

EPA 5153/ Merbicides 8

6PA 525.ZIEPA SQ71Pesticides Full List
EPA 53!. l/ Car6amates

EPA 548. i tEndothal 8

EPA 544. 2JDi uat 8

Kmaes t Tri6ul in 8

EPA MethodlConstituent Price er Sam le No. Sam les   xtended Price

Fitld 5arvices

Sam le Pick U Standard Weekda 260

5am laCollectionFea— Saiurda / Sunda 104

Sam le Collcction Fee- Holida Z

EPA Method/ Canstituent PRfi2 r Ssm ! c iVo. Sam les EltCpdt{ PCIC@

Industrial Pretreatment Program MaaitoNng itt 2024
Per NPDES Perca it, MRP, X. D. S. A

ef luent tesiis for the iPP tva11 be fvlfilted with the offluent charactarizatian sam les in the tsbie abave
Influent— FedGra[ Priarity Follutant List       $, 145 j 2145
exccpt asbestos}

bttps:i/w vw.epagov/ cgJtaxic-and-priority-
iluUants- under-clean-ws#er- ac riori

Siosolids— Federal Psioriry PoUutant List      $ 1 45 2245
axceptasbestos}

hrips; llwww. epa. govisgJioxic- and- prioriry-
ollutants- under-cican- water-act# rion

Total Price Quote( CTF NPDES MRP): 120. fi47, 4Q

Bid Pricing from FGL Environmental

385



386



ITEM 4. 13

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

APRIL 10, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM: APPROVE CONTRACT CHANGE ORDER NO. 3 &

NO.     4 WITH CUSHMAN CONTRACTING

CORPORATION FOR THE CTF

DECHLORINATION FACILITY OF SURFACE

WATER DISCHARGE,   CIP WW 20- 17 AND

APPROVE BUDGET AMENDMENT

RECOMMENDATION: Adopt Resolution Approving Contract Change
Order Nos. 3 and 4 with Cushman Contracting
Corporation for the CTF Dechlorination Facility
of Surface Water Discharge,  CIP WW 20- 17

and Approving Budget Amendment

SUMMARY:

On September 13, 2021, City Council awarded a construction contract to Cushman
Contracting Corporation   ( Cushman)   for the construction of the Consolidated

Treatment Facility ( CTF)  Dechlorination Facility ( Project)  portion of Surface Water
Discharge, CIP WW 20- 17. At the time of contract execution, the National Pollutant
Discharge Elimination System  ( NPDES)  permit for CIP WW 20- 17 had not been
granted final approval.

Subsequent to contract' s execution, the NPDES permit was approved. Consequently,
requiring installing additional discharge analyzers than originally proposed in the
original bid documents. To address these changes, Cushman submitted a cost for

Contract Change Order ( CCO) No. 3 for $ 313, 916. 86 for the purchase and installation
of the additional analyzers.  Cushman also submitted a cost for CCO No.  4 in the

amount of $ 124, 118 as a reconciling change order to settle credits and expenses due
to the adjustments in the original bid quantities.

Staff requests Council approve CCO No.  3 for  $ 313, 916. 86 and CCO No.  4 for

124, 118 with Cushman.  Sufficient funds were not allocated in FY 22/ 23 for CCO

Nos. 3 and 4. Therefore, staff also requests Council approve a budget amendment

transferring $ 150, 000 from the Wastewater Connection Fee Fund ( 6030) to the CIP

Project Fund ( 6090) to fund the additional work represented by CCO Nos. 3 and 4.

BACKGROUND:

On September 13, 2021, City Council awarded a construction contract to Cushman
for $ 3, 620, 000, plus a 10% construction contingency of $ 362, 200 for a total Project
construction budget of $ 3, 982, 000.  At the time of contract execution,  the City' s
NPDES permit for Surface Water Discharge, CIP WW 20- 17 had not been issued.

387



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

APRIL 10, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVE CCO NOS.    3 AND 4 WITH CUSHMAN FOR THE CTF

DECHLORINATION FACILITY OF SURFACE WATER DISCHARGE, CIP WW 20-
17 AND APPROVE BUDGET AMENDMENT

The NPDES permit became effective on February 17,  2022,  and required the

installation of thirteen   ( 13)   additional discharge analyzers and associated

appurtenances than initially anticipated in the original bid quantities;  Cushman

presented the City with a cost of $ 313, 916. 86 ( CCO No. 3), to cover the purchase
and installation of these extra analyzers.   Upon assessment, staff determined that

the costs were reasonable and in line with unit costs submitted during the bidding
process. Cushman has also submitted a cost for CCO No. 4 in the amount of$ 124, 118

as a reconciling change order to settle credits and expenses due to the adjustments
in the original bid quantities.

CCO Nos. 1 and 2 previously approved for this contract total $ 327, 291. 84. This cost

funded necessary revisions to piping and structural work due to the broader
requirements of the NPDES permit as issued.

Staff requests City Council approve CCO Nos. 3 and 4 with Cushman for the Project
portion of Surface Water Discharge, CIP WW 20- 17 and budget amendment.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

The additional work listed in proposed CCO No. 3 is necessary for the City to comply
with the NPDES permit.   Proposed CCO No.  4 is necessary to ensure the correct
payment to Cushman for cost increases and decreases due to changed quantities of
various bid items in the original contract.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The approved contract with Cushman is for $ 3, 620, 000, with a 10% construction

contingency in the amount of $ 362, 000, for a total Project budget of $ 3, 982, 000.

The cost of CCO No.  3 is  $ 313, 916. 86,  and the cost of CCO No.  4 is  $ 124, 118.

Sufficient funds for CCO Nos.  3 and 4 were not allocated to the Project in the FY

2022- 2023 budget;  therefore,  Staff requests City Council approve a budget

amendment transferring $ 150, 000 from the Wastewater Connection Fee Fund ( 6030)

to the CIP Project fund ( 6090) as detailed below.

Increase Transfer Out

6030- 9900- 990- 9010 150, 000

Increase Transfer In

6090- 9900- 393- 0000 WW 20- 17 150, 000

Increase Appropriation

6090- 8000- 420- 12- 00 WW 20- 17 150, 000

388



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

APRIL 10, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING
APPROVE CCO NOS.    3 AND 4 WITH CUSHMAN FOR THE CTF

DECHLORINATION FACILITY OF SURFACE WATER DISCHARGE, CIP WW 20-

17 AND APPROVE BUDGET AMENDMENT

ATTACH M ENTS:

A.  Resolution Approving Contract Change Order Nos.  3 and 4 with Cushman

Contracting Corporation for CTF Dechlorination Facility  ( Project)  portion of
Surface Water Discharge, CIP WW 20- 17 and Approving Budget Amendment

B.  Contract Change Order No. 3 with Cushman Contracting Corporation for CTF
Dechlorination Facility ( Project) portion of Surface Water Discharge, CIP WW
20- 17

C.  Contract Change Order No.  4  ( Balancing CCO)  with Cushman Contracting
Corporation for CTF Dechlorination Facility ( Project) portion of Surface Water
Discharge, CIP WW 20- 17

389



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 4

APRIL 10, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVE CCO NOS.    3 AND 4 WITH CUSHMAN FOR THE CTF

DECHLORINATION FACILITY OF SURFACE WATER DISCHARGE, CIP WW 20-

17 AND APPROVE BUDGET AMENDMENT

APPROVALS

D t-...,.   "   3  Z S . Z 3
Steven Hollenbeak Date

Assistant Engineer

2^ z3
Ken Reed Date

Senior Construction Manager

Fo t 3 • 3• zo Z3

Brad Taylor Date

City ngineer

3- 0 3
Cari Jam -` Date

Finance Dir ctor

r--      3 • 28• Zo23

Michael King Date

Assistant City Manager

z y. ' Lo 2 3

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

23
Stephen J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

390



RESOLUTION NO.  23 -

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING CONTRACT CHANGE ORDER NOS.  3 AND 4 WITH CUSHMAN

CONTRACTING COROPORATION FOR THE CTF DECHLORINATION FACILITY

OF SURFACE WATER DISCHARGE, CIP WW 20- 17 AND APPROVING BUDGET

AMENDMENT

WHEREAS,  on September 13,  2021,  City Council awarded a construction
contract to Cushman Contracting Corporation ( Cushman) for the construction of the

Consolidated Treatment Facility  ( CTF)  Dechlorination Facility  ( Project)  portion of
Surface Water Discharge, CIP WW 20- 17; and

WHEREAS, the awarded contract between the City of Lathrop and Cushman
was for $ 3, 620, 000 plus a 10% construction contingency of $ 362, 000 for a total

project budget of $ 3, 982, 000; and

WHEREAS, the installation of additional discharge analyzers is required for

the City to comply with the Project' s National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System
permit; and

WHEREAS, Cushman has submitted a cost of $ 313, 916. 86 for CCO No. 3 to

install the discharge analyzers; and

WHEREAS, Cushman has also submitted a cost of $ 124, 118 for CCO No. 4 as

a Balancing Change Order for the Project; and

WHEREAS, staff requests City Council approve CCO No. 3 with Cushman for
313, 916. 86; and

WHEREAS, staff requests City Council approve CCO No. 4 with Cushman for
124, 118; and

WHEREAS, sufficient funding for this project was included in the FY 22/ 23
budget; however, sufficient funds were not allocated to the Project; therefore, staff

request City Council approve a budget amendment transferring $ 150, 000 from the

Wastewater Connection Fee Fund ( 6030) to the CIP Project Fund ( 6090) as follows:

Increase Transfer Out

6030- 9900- 990- 9010 150, 000

Increase Transfer In

6090- 9900- 393- 0000 WW 20- 17 150, 000

Increase Appropriation

6090- 8000- 420- 12- 00 WW 20- 17 150, 000

391



NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the City Council of the City of Lathrop
does hereby approve Contract Change Order No.  3 with Cushman Contracting
Corporation for $ 313, 916. 86 for the CTF Dechlorination Facility Project of Surface
Water Discharge, CIP WW 20- 17; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the City Council of the City of Lathrop does
hereby approve Contract Change Order No. 4 with Cushman Contracting Corporation
for $ 124, 118 for the CTF Dechlorination Facility Project of Surface Water Discharge,
CIP WW 20- 17; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Lathrop also
approves a budget amendment transferring   $ 150, 000 from the Wastewater

Connection Fee Fund ( 6030) to the CIP Project Fund ( 6090) as detailed above.

392



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this lOth day of April, 2023, by the
following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAI N:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO RM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

393



ATTACHMENT
g  ..

CHANGE ORDER NO. 3

LCTF Dechlorination Facility
CIP WW 20- 17 City of Lathrop

CONTRACT CHANGE ORDER NO. 3

LCTF DECLORINATION FACILITY, CIP WW 20- 17

Contractor: Cushman Contracting Corporation

Address:    P. O. Box 147

Goleta, CA 93116

Change Order Date:   April 10, 2023

Notice to Proceed Date:      November 4, 2021

Contract Execution Date:    September 13, 2021

This contract change order augments or changes the following:

1)  ADDITIONS TO CONTRACT

Pursuant to the provisions of the Contract Specifications and proposal attached as Exhibit A, you
are hereby directed to make the herein described changes to the plans and specifications, and
scope of work contracted for within the terms of the agreement between the City of Lathrop and
Cushman Contracting Corporation dated September 13, 2021.

I. CHANGES IN THE SPECIFICATIONS

A.       None

II.       ADDITION( S)/ SUBTRACTION( S) TO CONTRACT

NO. DESCRIPTION QTY UNIT UNIT PRICE TOTAL

1
Electrical Scope of Work

1 LS 313, 916. 86 313, 916. 86
Revisions

TOTAL ADDITIONAL COST FROM THIS CHANGE ORDER 313, 916. 86

ADDITIONAL COST FROM CHANGE ORDER # 1 129,444.75

ADDITIONAL COST FROM CHANGE ORDER # 2 197, 847. 09

ORIGINAL CONTRACT AMOUNT 3, 620, 000. 00

REVISED CONTRACT AMOUNT AFTER CHANGE ORDER # 3 4, 261, 208. 70

END OF CHANGES)

DESCRIPTION OF WORK

The NPDES permit became effective on February 17, 2022, and required the installation of
thirteen  ( 13)  additional discharge analyzers and associated appurtenances than initially
anticipated in the original bid quantities. The contractor shall provide all labor, material, equipment
and shall perform all incidental tasks as necessary to complete the change order.

TIME OF COMPLETION

No increase to the time frame of the original contract.

394



CHANGE ORDER NO. 3

LCTF Dechlorination Facility
CIP WW 20- 17 City of Lathrop

RELEASE AND WAIVER

Acceptance of this Contract Change Order constitutes a full and final resolution of all pending
disputes between City and Contractor regarding scope of work and payment for work. Contractor
accepts this Contract Change Order as full payment for all work performed to date and hereafter
to be performed, up to and including Contract Change Order No. 3. Contractor releases and
discharges City from any and all claims, demands, damages, actions and causes of actions and
causes of action for injuries,  damages or losses, whether known or unknown, foreseen or

unforeseen, arising directly from Contractor' s work on this contract. Contractor expressly waives
the provisions of California Civil Code, Section 1542, which reads as follows:

A general release does not extend to claims which the Creditor does not know or suspect
to exist in his favor at time of executing the release, which if known by him must have
materially affected his settlement with the debtor.

END OF SECTION)

395



CHANGE ORDER NO. 3

LCTF Dechlorination Facility
CIP WW 20- 17 City of Lathrop

Approved As
Zo Z 3

To Form:     

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney
City of Lathrop

Recommended

By:
Michael King Date

Assistant City Manager
City of Lathrop

Approved By:

r(y,   -  Stephen J. Salvatore Date

City Manager
City of Lathrop

Accepted By
Contractor:

Cushman Contracting Corporation Date

Print Name and Title

396



CUSHH TION A,
w UC .
i.

Santa SSarbar-q C.A

st. 1969

PROPOSED CHANGE ORDER NO. 3

Unit of Contract unit

Item#   Item Description Measure Estimated Qty price Item Bid total

Provide Blue- White Chemical Feed Pumps instead of Watson Marlow RFP

PCO10 10 LS 1. 00     $ 2, 192. 00 2, 192. 00

PCO 11. 1 Provide E& H instead of Siemens Flow meter RFP 11 LS 1. 00    $ 13, 902. 71       $ 13, 902. 71

PCO 12 Hach Analyzer Material Escalation LS 1. 00     $ 5, 838. 20 5, 838. 20

PCO 15 Delta 3, 3. 5, 3. 6 Analyzer Changes LS 1. 00 0. 00       $ 48, 788. 67

PCO 16 Electrical Feed Proposal Revisions( Transformer)    LS 1. 00 0. 00       $ 18, 355. 06

PCO 19 Floating Curtain Revision to replace Bid Item# 14&# 16 LS 1. 00 126,343. 97

PCO 21 Add Auto Composite Samplers per Delta 3. 7 LS 1. 00 71, 586. 43

PCO 23. 1 Re Test of De Chlorination Basin LS 1. 00 9, 837. 73

PCO 24. 1 Replace existing ARV at Plant Influent line( Per Paul' s Request)     LS 1. 00 10, 334. 66

PCO 25 Repair Existing ARV LS 1. 00 869. 28

PCO 29 Install Owner furnished Air Compressor LS 1. 00 3, 461. 98

PCO 30 Install new Sump at Pumps LS 1. 00 2, 406. 17

CCO 3 Total Gost 313, 916. 86

397



ATTACHMtIv

CHANGE ORDER NO. 4

LCTF Dechlorination Facility
CIP WW 20- 17 City of Lathrop

CONTRACT CHANGE ORDER NO. 4— BALANCING CHANGE ORDER

LCTF DECLORINATION FACILITY, CIP WW 20- 17

Contractor: Cushman Contracting Corporation

Address:    P. O. Box 147

Goleta, CA 93116

Change Order Date:   April 10, 2023

Notice to Proceed Date:      November 4, 2021

Contract Execution Date:    September 13, 2021

This contract change order augments or changes the following:

1)  Bid Schedule of LCTF DECLORINATION FACILITY, CIP WW 20- 17: Bid Item

Balancing Change Order

Pursuant to the provisions of the Contract Specifications, you are hereby directed to make the
herein described changes to the plans and specifications, and scope of work contracted for within

the terms of the agreement between the City of Lathrop and Cushman Contracting
Corporation dated September 13, 2021.

I. CHANGES IN THE SPECIFICATIONS

A.       None

II. ADDITION( S)/ SUBTRACTION( S) TO CONTRACT

B      
DESCRIPTION

CONTRACT UNIT FINAL
ADJUSTMENT

ITEM QTY PRICE QTY

7 16" - 24 " DIP w/ Fittin s Installed 250. 00 927. 00 246. 00 3, 708. 00

8 16" - 24 " C905 PVC w/ Fittin s Installed 700. 00 588. 00 816. 00 68, 208. 00

9 12" sch40 PVC Hi hline Installed 150. 00 350. 00 191. 00 14, 350. 00

10 Relocate 6" C900 RW Pi e Installed 80. 00 585. 00 100. 00 11, 700. 00

11 6" Schedule 80 Drain Pi e Installed 80. 00 550. 00 106. 00 14, 300. 00

13 Buried Service Butterfl Valves w/ stems 1. 00 33, 600. 00 4. 00 100, 800. 00

14 Cross Roads Basin A Liner Re lacement 8000. 00 7. 50 0. 00 60, 000. 00

15 PCC Pavin 1600. 00 19. 50 4624. 00 58, 968. 00

16 Storm Drain Gradin 1. 00 80, 500. 00 0. 00 80, 500. 00

SUBTOTAL 124, 118. 00

TOTAL ADDITIONAL COST FROM THIS CHANGE ORDER 124, 118. 00

ADDITIONAL COST FROM CHANGE ORDER # 1 129, 444. 75

ADDITIONAL COST FROM CHANGE ORDER # 2 197, 847. 09

ADDITIONAL COST FROM CHANGE ORDER # 3 313, 916. 86

ORIGINAL CONTRACT AMOUNT 3, 620, 000. 00

REVISED CONTRACT AMOUNT AFTER CHANGE ORDER # 4 4, 385, 326. 70

END OF CHANGES)

398



CHANGE ORDER NO. 4

LCTF Dechlorination Facility
CIP WW 20- 17 City of Lathrop

DESCRIPTION OF WORK

See additions and subtractions to contract. Increases/ decreases in bid quantities that occurred
during construction and are not otherwise accounted for in previous change orders.  The
contractor shall provide all labor, material, equipment and shall perform all incidental tasks as
necessary to complete the change order.

TIME OF COMPLETION

No increase to the time frame of the original contract.

RELEASE AND WAIVER

Acceptance of this Contract Change Order constitutes a full and final resolution of all pending
disputes between City and Contractor regarding scope of work and payment for work. Contractor
accepts this Contract Change Order as full payment for all work performed to date and hereafter
to be performed, up to and including Contract Change Order No. 4. Contractor releases and
discharges City from any and all claims, demands, damages, actions and causes of actions and
causes of action for injuries,  damages or losses, whether known or unknown, foreseen or

unforeseen, arising directly from Contractor' s work on this contract. Contractor expressly waives
the provisions of California Civil Code, Section 1542, which reads as follows:

A general release does not extend to claims which the Creditor does not know or suspect
to exist in his favor at time of executing the release, which if known by him must have
materially affected his settlement with the debtor.

END OF SECTION)

399



CHANGE ORDER NO. 4

LCTF Dechlorination Facility
CIP WW 20- 17 City of Lathrop

Approved As

To Form: Zy-  -

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney
City of Lathrop

Recommended

By:
Michael King Date

Assistant City Manager
City of Lathrop

Approved By:
Stephen J. Salvatore Date

City Manager
City of Lathrop

Accepted By
Contractor:

Cushman Contracting Corporation Date

Print Name and Title

400



ITEM 4. 14

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

APRIL 10, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       APPROVE PURCHASE FROM ZIMA CORPORATION

FOR HEADWORKS EQUIPMENT FOR THE

CONSOLIDATED TREATMENT FACILITY PHASE 3

EXPANSION, CIP WW 22- 38 AND APPROVE BUDGET

AMENDMENT

RECOMMENDATION:     Adopt Resolution Approving a Purchase from Zima
Corporation for Headworks Equipment for the

Consolidated Treatment Facility Phase 3 Expansion,
CIP WW 22- 38 and Approve Budget Amendment

SUMMARY:

The Lathrop Consolidated Treatment Facility Phase 3 Expansion  ( LCTF Phase 3

Expansion) Project is necessary to provide additional wastewater treatment capacity
to support new development.  On November 8, 2021, Council approved the creation
of Capital Improvement Project  ( CIP)  WW 22- 38 LCTF Phase 3 Expansion and

approved a Professional Services Agreement ( PSA) with PACE to provide engineering
consulting services for the design of the project.

PACE has completed the preliminary design and staff is requesting that City Council
approve the pre- purchase of headworks equipment from the Zima Corporation for a
cost of  $ 1, 513, 662.    This equipment is from the same vendor for the existing
headworks equipment and the proposed purchase is an extension of that facility.  It

is critical for the operation and maintenance of the LCTF that the equipment be from
the same vendor.     In accordance with Lathrop Municipal Code  ( LMC)  section

2. 36. 110, this purchase is considered a " sole source" and is exempt from bidding
procedures.

Sufficient funds were not included in the adopted Fiscal Year ( FY)  22/ 23 Budget;

therefore,  staff also requests Council approve a budget amendment allocating
1, 513, 662 of the Wastewater Connection Fee Fund 6030 to fund the purchase. Staff

also requests City Council authorize a 10% contingency of $ 151, 366 for a total cost

not to exceed $ 1, 665, 028.

BACKGROUND:

On November 8, Council approved the creation of Capital Improvement Project ( CIP)

WW 22- 38 LCTF Phase 3 Expansion and awarded a Professional Services Agreement
PSA)  with PACE to provide engineering consulting services for the design of the

project. At the time, staff recommended initiating design and concurrently working
with the development community on the project funding agreement which will
reimburse the City for fronting the design costs and pre- purchase of equipment.

401



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

APRIL 10, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING
APPROVE PURCHASE FROM ZIMA CORPORATION FOR HEADWORKS

EQUIPMENT FOR THE CTF PH 3 EXPANSION, CIP WW 22- 38 AND APPROVE

BUDGET AMENDMENT

PACE has completed the design and staff is requesting that City Council approve the
pre- purchase of headworks equipment from the Zima Corporation for a cost of

1, 513, 662.  This equipment is from the same vendor for the equipment installed at

the headworks for the LCTF Phase 2 Expansion.

CEQA STATUS: The Proposed Project falls within the scope of the previously Certified
Environmental Impact Report ( EIR) ( SCH# 2019029106) for the Lathrop Integrated
Water Resources Master Plan ( IWRMP).  Therefore, no further environmental review

is necessary.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

The LCTF Phase 3 Expansion Project is needed to provide additional wastewater
treatment capacity needed to support new development.   PACE has completed the

project design, and staff is requesting that City Council approve the pre- purchase of
headworks equipment from the Zima Corporation for a cost of $ 1, 513, 662, plus a
10% contingeney.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Sufficient funds were not included in the adopted Fiscal Year ( FY) 22/ 23 Budget for

this purchase,  therefore,  staff is also requesting that Council approve a budget
amendment allocating $ 1, 513, 662, plus a 10% contingency of $ 151, 366 for a total

not to exceed  $ 1, 665, 028 of the Wastewater Connection Fee Fund 6030 for the

proposed project pre- purchase the headworks equipment for the LCTF Phase 3
Expansion CIP WW 22- 38 as follows:

Increase Transfers Out

6030- 99- 00- 990- 90- 10 1, 665, 028

Increase Transfers In

6090- 99- 00- 393- 00- 00 WW 22- 38 1, 665, 028

Increase Expenditures

6090- 80- 00- 420- 12- 00 WW 22- 38 1, 665, 028

ATTACH M ENTS:

A.  Resolution to Approve Purchase from Zima Corporation for Headworks

Equipment for the Consolidated Treatment Facility Phase 3 Expansion, CIP WW
22- 38 and Approve Budget Amendment

B.  Proposal from Zima Corporation for Headworks Equipment for the Consolidated

Treatment Facility Phase 3 Expansion, CIP WW 22- 38

402



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

APRIL 10, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVE PURCHASE FROM ZIMA CORPORATION FOR HEADWORKS

EQUIPMENT FOR THE CTF PH 3 EXPANSION, CIP WW 22- 38 AND APPROVE

BUDGET AMENDMENT

APPROVALS:

q - 3 23
Ken Reed Date

Senior Construction Manager

3 •30 •Zc Z.3

Michael King Date

Assistant City Manager

3 ..
Cari Jame Date

Finance Di ctor

3  3 ` z- 3

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

23
Ste en J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

403



RESOLUTION NO. 23-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING A PURCHASE FROM ZIMA CORPORATION FOR HEADWORKS

EQUIPMENT FOR THE CONSOLIDATED TREATMENT FACILITY PHASE 3

EXPANSION, CIP WW 22- 38 AND APPROVE BUDGET AMENDMENT

WHEREAS, the Lathrop Consolidated Treatment Facility Phase 3 Expansion
LCTF Phase 3 Expansion)  Project is necessary to address and provide additional

wastewater treatment capacity to support new development; and

WHEREAS, on November 8,  2021, Council approved the creation of Capital

Improvement Project  ( CIP)  WW 22- 38 LCTF Phase 3 Expansion and approved a

Professional Services Agreement with PACE to provide engineering consulting
services for the design of the Project; and

WHEREAS, PACE has completed the preliminary design and staff is requesting
that Council approve the pre- purchase of headworks equipment from Zima

Corporation for a cost of $ 1, 513, 662; and

WHEREAS,  this equipment is from the same vendor for the existing

headworks equipment and the proposed purchase is an extension of that facility.  It

is critical for the operation and maintenance of the LCTF that the equipment be from

the same vendor.     In accordance with Lathrop Municipal Code  ( LMC)  section

2. 36. 110, this purchase is considered a " sole source" and is exempt from bidding
procedures; and

WHEREAS,   staff will work alongside the development community to

compensate the City for initially covering the expense; and

WHEREAS, sufficient funds were not included in the adopted Fiscal Year ( FY)

22/ 23 Budget; therefore, staff also requests Council approve a budget amendment

allocating $ 1, 513, 662 plus a 10% contingency of $ 151, 366 for a total not to exceed

1, 665, 028 of the Wastewater Connection Fee Fund 6030 for the proposed pre-
purchase of the headworks equipment; and

WHEREAS,  the Proposed Project falls within the scope of the previously
Certified Environmental Impact Report ( EIR)  ( SCH#  2019029106) for the Lathrop
Integrated Water Resources Master Plan   ( IWRMP).      Therefore,   no further

environmental review is necessary.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the City Council of the City of Lathrop
does hereby approve the pre- purchase of headworks equipment from Zima

Corporation for a cost of $ 1, 513, 662 for CIP WW 22- 38, LCTF Phase 3 Expansion;

and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the City Council of the City
of Lathrop hereby approves the budget amendment allocating  $ 1, 513, 662,  plus a
10% contingency of$ 151, 366 for a total not to exceed $ 1, 665, 028 of the Wastewater
Connection Fee Fund 6030 as follows:

404



Increase Transfers Out

6030- 99- 00- 990- 90- 10 1, 665, 028

Increase Transfers In

6090- 99- 00- 393- 00- 00 WW 22- 38 1, 665, 028

Increase Expenditures

6090- 80- 00- 420- 12- 00 WW 22- 38 1, 665, 028

405



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 10th day of April 2023, by the
following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

406



zima
Jagenberg Group

Manufacture. Quality. 5olutians.

Kusters Water Division

EQUIPMENT PROPOSAL

DATE:       March 24th 2022

REF.: KW/ 222096/ GK Rev. 4

T0:   City of Lathrop, CA ; Ken Reed

PROJECT:  Lathrop, CA ( Phase 1 Rerate)

ENGINEER: PACE

REPRESENTATIVE:       Saddleback Environmental - Steven Seymour

We are pleased to provide our revised equipment proposal for equipment in
accordance with the above referenced project.

Item A— Center Flow Screen with Inte ral Washin Compactor:

For the design and supply FOB Spartanburg, S. C., freight allowed to job site, of Two
2) Kusters Water ProTechtor Filter Band Screens - Center Flow,

Model FBS- CFWP 600x1000/ 2.

Screen Desi n Parameters:

Peak flow:       9. 0 mgd
Upstream Channel width:   3. 0 ft.

Pocket width:   5. 0 ft.

Downstream Channel width:       3. 0 ft.

Channel depth: 8. 33 ft.

Screenings discharge height:       3. 0 ft. approx. ( above floor level)

Size of clear openin: 2 mm nominat

Angle of screen:       90° from horizontal

Max. Upstream Water level C 30% blinding:  2. 64 ft.

Headloss C Peak Flow and 30% blinding:       21. 77 in.

I n 

physical addfess
i 101 Zima Park Or;ve

iSpananburg• SC 23301 USA

dependable, cost- effective salutions for water and wastewater treatment

meiiing address

Po eox 6, za Neadworks• eialogicai• Clarificatian Thickening • Biosolids
i Spartantwrg• SC 29304• USA

j i 85q 576- 066   9 0f

www.zimacarp.camlwater

www. kust¢ rswatecmm

407



Page 2

Each to include the following:

Fully automatic self- cleaning filter band screen inclined at 90°, complete with all

appurtenances - 316 stainless steel

Main frame constructed of minimum 3/ 16" - 316 stainless steel

Flanged base plate for mounting screen assembly to top of channel - 316 stainless
steel

Screen support rails provided front and back on each side of frame
Reptaceable UHMW screen band seals mounted to each side of frame

2 mm perforated filter screen elements, every fifth panel to have integral solids
lifting fingers attached to the bottom of the panel - UHMW

Screen panel spray washing system supplied with one ( 1) 1" Bronze Ball valve, one

1) 1. 5" 316 Stainless Strainer with Stainless Steel Screen, and one ( 1) 1. 5" XP

Bronze Solenoid Valve

Heavy duty roller type conveyor links - 316 stainless steel

The continuous band screen elements driven by two ( 2) drive shaft mounted 316
stainless steel discs

Drive tensioners - 316 stainless steel

Drive system to include 3. 0 hp, 1800 rpm, TEFC, gear motor suitable for use in a
Class 1, Div. 1, Group D environment and a 230/ 460Vac/ 3/ 60 electricat supply,
direct coupled to 316 stainless steel drive shaft

Integral screenings transport and dewatering unit - 316 stainless steel

2 mm perforated curved drainage section - 316 stainless steel

Rubber seals between each panel - Neoprene

Drainage collection pan with 6 inch dia. outlet connection - 316 stainless steel

8" diameter screw auger with torque tube - Hardox 400

Six ( 6) Replaceable wear bars — Alloy Steel 340 BHN
Compactor Drive system to indude 2. 0 hp, 1800 rpm, TEFC, gear motor suitable for
use in a Class 1, Div. 1, Group D environment and a 230/ 460Vac/ 3/ 60 electrical
supply, direct coupled to hi- strength alloy steel drive shaft
Wash zone with one ( 1) 1" Bronze Ball valve, one ( 1) 1" 316 Stainless Steel Strainer

with Stainless Steel Screen, and one ( 1) 1" XP Bronze Solenoid Valve

Discharge Piping 8" expanding to 12" Diameter - 316 Stainless Steel

a" 316 Stainless Steel Tank 24" flanged influent / effluent connections with load

bearing aluminum treadplate covers and aluminum handrail with toe plate
Fasteners - 316 staintess steel

Anchor bolts - 316 stainless steel

Surface Preparation and Finish - Acid Passivation of stainless steel

z+, 

physicai address

t01 Zima Park Or ve

i Spartantwrg• sc z so,• usa
dependabie, cost- effective salutions for water and wastewater treatment

mai5ng adtl¢ ss

P. o. e zs Headworks• Biologica! Ctarification• Thitkening BiosoGds
6partanburg yC 29304• USA

Rlgieletetl

i
t 86k 576- 0660 c t

www. zima[ orp. twNwatar

j www. kusterswa?eccom

408



Page 3

Controls•

Components and labor required to retrofit two ( 2) existing Ultrafine Screen NEMA
4x MCPs for proper operation of Centerflow Band Screens and Washer/ Compactors
Two ( 2) NEMA 7 Local Control Stations

Four ( 4) Siemens LU420 Ultrasonic Level Transducers and Mounting Hardware.
Two ( 2) High level alarm float switches.

Existin Fine Screen Tank Modifications:

Replace 18" flanged influent connection with 24" flanged influent connection - 316

Stainless Steel

Replace 18" flanged effluent connection with 24" flanged effluent connection -

316 Stainless Steel

Replace 18" flanged overflow connection with 24" flanged overflow connection -

316 Stainless Steel

Replace existing covers with load bearing Aluminum Treadplate Covers
Aluminum Handrail and Toe Plate

Existin Grit Trap Tank Modifications:

Replace 18" influent / effluent box with 24" influent/ effluent box

Relocate grit trap approximately 6" and extend concrete pad

Pipin Modifications:

Replace 18" influent piping with 24" Sch. 10 piping - 316 Stainless Steel

Replace 18" effluent piping with 24" Sch. 10 piping - 316 Stainless Steel

Replace 18" overflow piping with 24" Sch. 10 piping - 316 Stainless Steel

Provide three ( 3) 24" to 18" concentric reducers for new 24" piping to existing 18"
piping - Ductile Iron

Provide one ( 1) 24" Sch. 10 Tee for overflow - Ductile Iron

Replace 4" piping from grit pump to grit classifier - Ductile Iron

Replace 6" pipin from grit classifier cyclone overflow - Ductile Iron

Replace 6" or anics overflow piping from grit dassifier - Ductile Iron

Replace 18" x 24" effluent elbow with 24" x 24" - Ductile Iron

r.,,

physical add ess

t01 Zima Park Orive

Spartan6urg• sc z sm• usa

dependabie, cost- effective solutions for water and westewater treatment
j,   

ma7ing atldress

i P. o.eoxs za Heatiworks• Biolog'rta! Clarification• Thickening• Biosolids
Spartanburg• SC 29304• USA

RlgiSlBred b
i 5 86p 576- 066C1 r,A y

www. zimacorp. comJwater

wwW. kuStPtSWdtpi.[ WT

409



Page 4

Elevated Platform Additions / Modifications:

Elevated platform addition allowing maintenance access to the back side of the
existing 6mm Centerflow Band Screens including stairs, aluminum i- bar grating,
handrail and toe plates
Elevated platform addition allowing maintenance access to the back side of the
new 2mm Centerflow Band Screens including stairs, aluminum i- bar grating,
handrail and toeplates

Installation of new catwalks for fine and ultrafine centerflow band screens

On Site Installation:

One ( 1) crane

One ( 1) mechanical service truck with mounted crane

One ( 1) mechanical crew

Disconnect and remove ultra-fine drum screens and existing tanks
Install new ultra- fine centerflow band screens and associated tanks

Provide and install Sch 80 PVC water lines for new screens and compactors

Removal of existing 18" inlets and outlets and replace with 24" inlets and outlets
for fine centerflow band screens

Installation of new 24" connection between grit systems and ultrafine centerflow
tanks

Raise existing access platform elevation 18"

Site Service ( Kusters Water):

Site services of four ( 4) trips and twenty ( 20) days total for installation inspection,
startup and operator training.

LUMP SUM PRICE FOR ITEM A: $ 1, 513, 662

Items not listed above will be provided by others

zima carporarion

1 ty5tC8 8di tC54

i i47 2ima Park Oriue

Spartantwrg• SC. 2930t USA

dependabie, cost- effective solutions for water and wastewater ireatmentI
maHing dddrCss

Po. eoxe za Headwnrks• Bialogical• Ciarification • Thickening Biosolids
j Spartanburg 5C29304• USA

i 864 576- 4660 1

www.zimacorp.rnmlwater

wvnv. kustcrswater. com

i 410



Page 5

Comments and Clarifications to the Specifications

1.) Kusters Water is furnishing its standard equipment as outlined in this proposal.

Exclusions•

Taxes Any piping not proposed above
Offloading Valves except as noted

Installation Sandblasting or touch- up painting
Erection or testing Field / Finish painting
Supervision of erection Disconnect switches and junction boxes
Engineering re- design Electrical wiring or conduit
Civil Design Electrical connections

Buildings Electrical installation and wiring
Dumpsters Controls except as noted

Concrete, grout, or sealants Special shipping procedures
Thru- watl fittings Storage at our shop or jobsite
Hand railings except as noted Oil and grease
Stairways and Ladders Spare parts except as noted
Interconnecting walkways Tank surveying
Lights or light posts Field verification of elevations

Field verification of dimensions FRP Foul Odor Piping
New Influent Flow Meters Buried Overflow Piping

Absence of an exclusion herein will not be construed as meaning that the item is
inctuded, and Kusters Water will not issue credits, or accept deducts, for the provision
of the items noted above.

Terms•

NET 30 Days

15% at submittal approval

80% upon delivery to site
5% upon start-up and training completion or 120 days from delivery, whichever
occurs first.

1- 1/ 2% interest charges per month for late amounts due

Submittals:

10 weeks from acceptance of order.

Zims Cntporaticn

ysocal sddress

i t0 Zima Park nve

spa ra e„• sc zs3oi• usa
dependa6le, cost-effective solutions for water and wastewater treatment

m7iling addrRss

Po. eoxs, za Headworks• BiologicaE Clarification • Thickening• Biosolids
Spart nburg• 5C 29304• 45A

1664576- 666 

www. zima[ atp. com/ wafer

i www. kusterswater. tom

411



Page 6

Delivery•

20 weeks from receipt of approved submittal.

Warrantv:

12 months from equipment start up or 18 months after delivery, whichever occurs
first.

36 months from date of shipment, for all ProTechtor products.

Validitv•

Pricing is firm for acceptance within 30 days of the quote date.

Purchase Orders:

All purchase orders are to be issued, and mailed to:

Zima Corporation,

Kusters Water Division

P. O. 6128

Spartanburg, SC 29304

Please provide a copy of your tax exempt or direct pay certificate, project contact,
and a copy of the project payment bond with your purchase order.

Notes:

All spares and site service for start- up and operator training is available from our
Spartanburg National Service Center.

Liquidated Dama es:

Zima Corp. will not consider the addition of liquidated damages to our contract
unless it has been specifically identified and negotiated prior to the bid.  Zima

Corporation' s equipment supply contract will not be tied to the General
Contractor' s overall contract, and our delivery commitments shall be as stated in
this proposal.

Z mi CbryOfMicn

physica! address

iGll Zima Park Onve

Spartanburg• SC 29301• U5A

i dependabie, cost- effective solutions for water end wastewater treatment
mailing atldress

P. O, Box6128 Headwarks• Biolagicai• Clarifitation • Thickening• Biosolids
Spartanburg•$ C 24304• US0.   

8 b
I 1 864 576- Q660 r

www. zimaeorp. cain/ weter

www. kusterswater. tom

412



Page 7

BondinQ•

Bonding or bonding expenses are not included in this proposal and will not be
considered unless specifically identified and authorized by Zima Corp. prior to the
bid.

Insurance•

Pricing includes general liability policy with 1 million occurrence, 2 million
aggregate, and 4 million umbrella. If higher limit(s) is required, all costs will be
paid by the Buyer in addition to the quoted equipment price.

Frei ht:

All prices are quoted F. O. B. shipping point, with freight allowed to the Jobsite.
Buyer will be responsible for equipment off- loading.   All claims for damage or loss

in shipment shall be initiated by the Buyer. Buyer requests for selective shipments,
earty shipments, or separate shipment may directly affect the freight
allowance.  Any additional costs incurred due to this request by the Buyer will be
an additional cost to the purchase price and invoiced accordingly.

Sincerely,

e

George Kellum

Sales Manager, Municipal Products

Kusters Water Division

0. 864- 594- 5595

C. 864- 316- 3264

QeorQe. kellumC kusterswater. com
www. kusterswater. com

Iima Cnrporation

physrcal address

1012ima Park driue

sw ra at, 9 Sf 29301• USA

depeodable, cost- effective solutions for water and wastewater treatmenti

maiGng adtlress

P. o. s ze Headworks• Biologicai• Clarification • Thickening• Biosolids
ISpartanburg SC 29304• USA

R b
i 864 576- 0660 r

www. zimaecup. eomlwateri

www. kuvterswxt er, tom

413



414



ITEM 4. 15
CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

APRIL 10, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       RATIFY SAN OAQUIN COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS'

ANNUAL FINANCIAL PLAN

RECOMMENDATION:     Adopt Resolution Ratifying the San 7oaquin Council
of Governments ( S COG) Annual Financial Plan for

FY 2023- 24

BAC KG ROU N D:

Every year pursuant to Section 7( b) of the San Joaquin Council of Governments'

SJCOG)  Joint Powers Agreement,  in anticipation of the new fiscal budget year,
SJCOG requests that each member city ratify SJCOG' s Annual Financial Plan ( AFP)

for the upcoming fiscal year.

Attached and referenced herein as Attachment B, is the Approved SJCOG Fiscal Year

FY) Budget for 2023- 2024.   Similar requests from SJCOG have been submitted to

participating cities and ratified annually since the Joint Powers Agreement went into
effect December 7, 2000.

The SJCOG AFP for FY 2023- 2024, was adopted by their Board on March 23, 2023,

by Board Resolution No. R- 23- 104.  The AFP provides a detail of expenditures by cost
category and line item comparing the proposed FY 2023- 2024 budgets with the
current FY 2022- 2023 adopted budget.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

The SJCOG Joint Powers Agreement requires that the Annual Financial Plan be

delivered to its jurisdictional member agencies for ratification.    Therefore,  it is

recommended that the City Council ratify the SJCOG' s Annual Financial Plan for FY
2023- 2024.

FISCAL IMPACT:

No fiscal impact to Lathrop.  However,  the SJCOG letter dated March 27,  2023,

highlights the following significant changes for FY 23- 24 when compared to FY 22-
23:

S1COG Annua/ Financia/ P/an Summar

Revenue Funds FY 2022- 2023 FY 2023- 2024

Federal Grants 9, 646, 688 11, 175, 862

State Grants 12, 077, 932 22, 443, 157

Loca/ Funding 6, 847, 247 7, 988, 221

Interest & Other 80, 000 80, 000

Tota/ Revenues 28, 651, 867 41, 687, 240

415



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

APRIL 10, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

RATIFY SJCOG ANNUAL FINANCIAL PLAN FOR FY 2023- 24

S1COG Annua/ Financia/ P/an Summar

Expenditure Funds FY 2022- 2023 FY 2023- 2024

Salary & Benefits 5, 312, 473 6, 281, 809

Services & Supplies 1, 212, 800 1, 338, 500

Professional Services 21, 746, 094 33, 686, 431

Capital Outlay 380, 500 380, 500

Tota/ Expenditures 28, 651, 867 41, 687, 240

Highlights:

o General Fund Operating Revenues increased by $ 13, 035, 373

Federal Funding increased by 15. 85%
State Funding Sources increased by 85. 82%
Local Revenues increased by 16. 66%

o Budgeted Expenditures are $ 41, 687, 240

Salaries and Benefits increased 18. 25%

Services and Supplies increased by 10. 36%
Training & Travel increased by 25%

o Professional Services increased by 54. 91%
o No increase or decrease to Fixed Assets

ATTACHMENTS:

A.  Resolution Ratifying the San ) oaquin Council of Governments Annual Financial

Plan for FY 2023- 24

B.  Letter from S] COG Dated March 27, 2023, including SJCOG Resolution R- 23-
104, and Board Report Adopting the FY 2023- 24 Annual Financial Plan

416



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

APRIL 10, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

RATIFY S] COG ANNUAL FINANCIAL PLAN FOR FY 2023- 24

APPROVALS:

G

eresa Vargas Date

Government Services Director

City Clerk

F a c    3, 1Z o- z- 5

Cari James Date

Finance Director

z--  

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

f •Z

Step en J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

417



RESOLUTION NO. 23-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP RATIFYING

THE SAN .70AQUIN COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS' ANNUAL FINANCIAL PLAN

FOR FISCAL YEAR 2023- 2024

WHEREAS, every year pursuant to Section 7( b) of the San Joaquin Council of
Governments' ( SJCOG)  Joint Powers Agreement,  in anticipation of the new fiscal

budget year, SJCOG provides a letter,  resolution, and report requesting that each
City ratify SJCOG' s Annual Financial Plan for the upcoming fiscal year; and

WHEREAS, the Annual Financial Plan provides a detail of expenditures by cost
category and line item comparing the proposed 2023- 24 budgets with the current
fiscal year' s ( FY 2022- 23) adopted budget; and

WHEREAS, the SJCOG Board approved the Annual Financial Plan for FY 2023-

2024 on March 23, 2023, by Board Resolution No. R- 23- 104; and

WHEREAS, the SJCOG Joint Powers Agreement requires that the Financial

Plan be delivered to its member agencies for ratification;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop hereby ratify the FY 2023- 2024 Annual Financial Plan for the San Joaquin
Council of Governments.

The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this lOth day of April 2023,
by the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO ORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

Resolution No. 23-

418



DocuSign Envelope ID: 9D626793-E7E8-4D22- 6662-7E4DF2D96322

555!;. 61-'eber; 9vei ue • Stocklon, CaliTo• ndcr 95202 • P 2O9. 235. 0G00 • F209. 235. Os138 •  i vi+ ia. sjcoK. orK

March 27, 2023

Stephen Salvatore

City of Lathrop
390 Towne Center Drive

R, rx,•, a; k, u„

Lathrop, CA 95330
CHAIP,

m';`` r'"'
Dear Mr. Salvatore:

VICE CHAIR

I>>a E, K=' On March 23, 2023 the SJCOG Board adopted the Annual Financial Plan for FY 2023- 24.
EXE T"' E°' RE TOR

Attached is the board staff report as well as a copy of the adopting resolution.  Pursuant to
n„ 2h,: a e„, e.s SJCOG' s Joint Powers Agreement, following adoption of the budget by the SJCOG Board, it

ar Es oF

is to be delivered to member agencies for ratification by each governing body. Approval by aESCALON,

ATHROP,   majority of the governing bodies representing 55% or more of the county' s population is
oo,     considered ratification.

MANTECA,

RIPON,

sTocKroN,  Therefore, SJCOG requests you place SJCOG' s Annual Financial Plan for Fiscal Year
iRAc'",    

2023/ 24 on a forthcoming agenda prior to June 30, 2023, for ratification.
AND

THE COUNTY OF SAN

JOAQUIN The Annual Financial Plan implements the FY 2023/ 24 Overall Work Program ( OWP) that

was also adopted by the SJCOG Board on March 23, 2023.

The attached Annual Financial Plan ( AFP) provides detail of revenues and expenditures by
cost category and line item comparing the proposed FY 2023- 2024 budgets with the current
year( FY 2022- 2023) adopted budget, as most recently amended, along with FY 2021- 2022
actual expenditures. The total revenues and expenditures total $ 41, 687, 239. 71. The proposed
AFP represents the general fund budget for SJCOG. The revenues and expenditures in the
AFP are the same as the Overall Work Program ( OWP), however, presented in a traditional
line- item format compared to the work element format of the OWP.

Readers should note several differences between SJCOG and its member agencies' budgets:

SJCOG revenue sources are quite different from our member agencies.
SJCOG employs staff on an at-will basis, vis- a-vis civil service and has its own

employee handbook and policies.

SJCOG has its own Financial and Accounting Policy guiding our financial matters
including procurement procedures.
SJCOG employees are exempted from Social Security except for Medicare.
As noted below, SJCOG offers a defined contribution retirement plan to its
employees. SJCOG has no CaIPERS or post employments benefit obligations except
limited sick leave conversion as noted.

419



DocuSign Envelope ID: 9D626793- E7E8- 4D22- 66B2- 7E4DF2D96322

The following assumptions are incorporated in the budget:
1.  Work will not begin, and expenses will not be incurred unless anticipated revenue

sources are secured.

2.  The AFP anticipates SJCOG to be fully staffed. The budget includes a 5. 02% pool that
can be drawn upon for merit-based increases and potential promotions. The full impact of
that pool is incorporated into the salary- driven benefits ( retirement, Medicare, disability).

3.  SJCOG has no significant liability exposure for post-employment benefits.
a.  The employee retirement program is a defined contribution program managed by

the International City Managers Association Retirement Program ( Mission
Square Retirement).

b.  SJCOG employee vacation accruals are capped at two times the individual' s

annual leave.

c.  Upon separation with 50 years of age or 20 years of SJCOG employment, an
employee can convert accrued sick leave hours to be deposited into a Retirement

Health Savings Account to pay for health- related expenses. The conversion is
based upon the employee' s salary at retirement.

SJCOG staff would be pleased to appear before your policymakers to answer any questions they
might have regarding this matter. We request ratification prior to June 30, 2023. Please let me
know when this will be on your agenda.  If you have any questions regarding this matter, don' t
hesitate to contact me at( 209) 235- 0584.

Thank you for your assistance.

Sincerely,

CDocuSigned
by:

77C9E4A491524D2...

STEVE DIAL

Deputy Executive Director/Chief Financial Officer

Attachments:

R- 23- 104

FY 2023- 24 Annual Financial Plan Staff Report

FY 2023- 24 Annual Financial Plan Board Summary

420



DocuSign Envelope ID: 9D626793- E7E8-4D22-66B2-7E4DF2D96322

RESOLUTION

SAN JOAQUIN COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS

R- 23- 104

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE ADOPTION OF THE 2023- 2024

ANNUAL FINANCIAL PLAN

FOR THE SAN JOAQUIN COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS

WHEREAS, the San Joaquin Council of Governments is required by the Joint Powers
Agreement to adopt a budget ( Annual Financial Plan) annually, and

WHEREAS, the adopted budget is to be sent to the member agencies for ratification.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the San Joaquin Council of Governments

adopts the FY 2023- 2024 Annual Financial Plan and directs the Executive Director to transmit it

to the member agencies for ratification.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 23rd day of March 2023 by the following vote of the San
Joaquin Council ofGovernments, to wit:

AYES: Mayor Bellinger, Escalon; Supervisor Ding, SJC; Mayor Lincoln, Stockton;  Supervisor
Rickman, SJC; Mayor Singh, Manteca; Supervisor Villapudua, SJC; Councilmember Warmsley,
Stockton; Councilmember Wright, Stockton; Mayor Young, Tracy; Vice Mayor Zuber, Ripon

NOES:

ABSENT: Mayor Pro Temp, Craig, Lodi; Councilmember Lazard, Lathrop

ROBERT RICKMAN, Chair

421



DocuSign Envelope ID: 9D626793- E7E8-4D22- B6B2- 7E4DF2D96322

March 2023

SJCOG Board

STAFF REPORT

SUBJECT: FY 2023- 2024 Proposed Annual Financial

Plan (AFP)

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  That the Board Adopt Resolution 23- 104

Approving the FY 2023- 2024 Annual
Financial Plan

The attached proposed Annual Financial Plan (AFP) provides detail of revenues and
expenditures by cost category and line item comparing the proposed FY 2023- 2024 budgets with
the current year( FY 2022- 2023) adopted budget, as most recently amended, along with FY
2021- 2022 actual expenditures. The total revenues and expenditures total $ 41, 687, 240. 00. The

proposed AFP represents the general fund budget for SJCOG. The revenues and expenditures in
the AFP are the same as the Overall Work Program ( OWP), however, presented in a traditional
line- item format compared to the work element format of the OWP.

Below is a summary of revenues and expenditures in the AFP. For the detail for each of those
categories please refer to the attached.

Readers should note several differences between SJCOG and its member agencies' budgets:

SJCOG revenue sources are quite different from our member agencies.
SJCOG employs staff on an at-will basis, vis- a-vis civil service and has its own employee

handbook and policies.

SJCOG has its own Financial and Accounting Policy guiding our financial matters
including procurement procedures.

SJCOG employees are exempted from Social Security except for Medicare.
As noted below, SJCOG offers a defined contribution retirement plan to its employees.
SJCOG has no Ca1PERS or post employments benefit obligations except limited sick
leave conversion as noted.

Upon adoption by the board, pursuant to the SJCOG Joint Powers Agreement, the AFP will be
sent to the member agencies for ratification. Ratification is achieved when a majority of the
member agencies representing 55% of the county population approve the AFP.

The following assumptions are incorporated in the budget:
1.  Work will not begin, and expenses will not be incurred unless anticipated revenue

sources are secured.

2.  The AFP anticipates SJCOG creating two new positions and being fully staffed. The
budget includes a 7% pool that can be drawn upon for merit- based increases and potential
promotions. The full impact of that pool is incorporated into the salary- driven benefits
retirement, Medicare, disability).

422



DocuSign Envelope ID: 9D626793- E7E8-4D22- 6662- 7E4DF2D9B322

3.  SJCOG has no significant liability exposure for post-employment benefits.
a.  The employee retirement program is a defined contribution program managed by

the International City Managers Association Retirement Program ( Mission Square
Retirement).

b.  SJCOG employee vacation accruals are capped at two times the individual' s
annual leave.

c.   Upon separation with 50 years of age or 20 years of SJCOG employment, an
employee can convert accrued sick leave hours to be deposited into a Retirement

Health Savings Account to pay for health- related expenses.  The conversion is
based upon the employee' s salary at retirement.

REVENUES

Compared to the current year amended AFP, SJCOG general fund operating revenues are
proposed to increase from $28, 651, 867. 21 to $ 41, 687, 240. 00, an increase of$ 13, 035, 372. 79.

Overall, federal funding for
FY23 24 Reuenue Bud @t 2qp general fund activities is

1      
1, 529, 173. 80 or 15. 85% higher

22 aa lr
than FY 2022- 23 due primarily to

iooca0000 ii,i7s,,sr       y, xi Increased funds for I- 205 Managed

Lanes Widening and consumption
S0Q0° D0 of one year of Congestion

o Mitigation/ Air Quality funds
F e. a s++       .    M.& CMAQ) for dibs, SJCOG' s
G""`'     G""" ia'°`  

Transportation Demand
un ng egory

FederalGraMs     sute rsms     toca      Interest& Other Management program.

State funding sources are higher by $ 10, 365, 224. 58 or 85. 82% due to:

Regional Early Action Planning ( REAP) 2. 0 grant in the amount of$ 10,400,000.
801, 535. 98 drawdown on REAP 1. 0

Receipt of$ 1, 750, 000 Regional Climate Collaborative grant.
1, 063,328. 18 drawdown on prior year' s Freeway Service Patrol funding.

097, 293 is available for FY 23- 24 future years of Freeway Service Patrol funding.
330, 214. 72 drawdown has occurred on three years of Senate Bill l ( SB1) Sustainable

Transportation Planning Grants offset by a FY 23- 24 allocation of$ 341, 671.
295, 837. 54 drawdown on prior year' s State Transportation Improvement Program
STIP) for planning offset by FY 23- 24 allocation of$290, 000.

Expenditure of$ 1, 538, 053 from the state grant for Sustainable Transportation Equity
Project ( STEP).

Clean Mobility Options grant in the amount of$ 500, 970
31, 777 drawdown on Affordable Housing& Sustainable Community grant.

State Transit Assistance increased by $46,037.

Local revenues are higher by $ 1, 140, 974. 41 or 16. 66% due to increased sales tax receipts on

Local Transportation Fund by $ 104, 835 and Measure K by $ 1, 370, 030.

423



DocuSign Envelope ID: 9D626793-E7E8-4D22-B6B2-7E4DF2D9B322

Decrease in Regional Transportation Fund by $ 170, 500. Decrease in Roth Road funding by
148, 390. 59 and decrease in other miscellaneous funding by $ 15, 000.

EXPENDITURES

Salaries and Benefits are
FY23/ 24 Expenditures

roro      rSai 6s tao proposed to increase by
33, au, a e

969, 336. 07 or 18. 25% from

N

2° 0°°" 0°      

5, 312, 472. 93 to $ 6, 281, 809. 00
i'      compared to the FY 22- 23

Q.     2°" 0°°'     
e. zoo, s s

amended budget. The budget

x includes creating two new
s0000 o            i.zas. soo 3so soa

planning positions and filling
existing position vacancies. It also

s. a s., w.. na worwrw. i awai

e«, u s pr.     s. w,     o n.,,  includes a$ 300, 294. 00 or 7. 0% of
Expenditure Class total salaries pool for merit- based

salarks& eenet a  Servkasand5uppiks  Professionai5ervkes  Ceptteioutwy raises. The salary- driven benefits
adjust accordingly.

Services and Supplies are proposed to increase by$ 100, 700.
Computer software and licensing is increasing by $ 25, 000 to support both a return to the office,
working remotely and heightened cybersecurity. Liability insurance is increasing by $ 58, 700.
Building maintenance is increasing by $ 17, 000 due to increased utilities, security upgrades, and
vandalism repairs.

Transportation, Travel, and Training increase by $25,000.
With several new board members and new employees, more training expenses are expected.
This budget is increased by $ 25, 000 up to $ 125, 000. This will help to support such activities as
the annual One Voice trip.

Professional Services— Increases $ 11, 940, 336. 77 from FY 22- 23 $ 21, 746, 094. 28 to

33, 686, 431. 05

There is consumption of various grants and funding sources. For example, the SB- 1 Sustainable
Communities Grants consumed $ 179, 039.29 While the Regional Early Action Plan ( REAP 1. 0)
has consumed $ 1, 1 16, 535. 98, we are budgeting $ 9, 300, 000 for REAP 2. 0. The Sustainable
Transportation Equity Project( STEP) has consumed $ 1, 738, 053. 00. We are budgeting

223, 965. 04 for the CMO Voucher is program and $ 1, 650, 000 for San Joaquin Regional Climate

Collaborative. Lastly, $ 3, 800, 000 is programmed for the I- 205 Managed Lanes Widening
project.

Position Classi cation and Salary Schedule

Per board policy, the salary ranges at both the minimum and maximum levels are adjusted by the
CPI change.

FISCAL IMPACT

All revenues in the AFP are secured and available. The Annual Financial Plan is required to be
adopted by the Board of Directors prior to April 1 each year and disseminated to the member

424



DocuSign Envelope ID: 9D626793- E7E8- 4D22- 6662- 7E4DF2D96322

agencies for ratification. The Annual Financial Plan is the traditional line- item budget

identifying estimated revenues and expenditures for the fiscal year. The Annual Financial Plan
is complementary to the Overall Work Program.

RECOMMENDATION

That the Board adopt Resolution 23- 104 approving the FY 2023- 24 Annual Financial Plan.

Prepared by: Steve Dial, Deputy F ecutive Director/ CFO, and Grace Oroscq Manager of Finance

425



DocuSign Envelope ID: 9D626793- E7E8- 4D22- B662- 7E4DF2D9B322

San Joaquin Council of Governments

ANNUAL FINANCIAL PLAN

Fiscal Year 2023/ 24

Proposed Final March 23, 2023

CHAIR

Supervisor Robert Rickman, San Joaquin County

VICE- CHAIR

Mayor David Bellinger, City of Escalon

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mayor Pro Tem Lisa Craig City of Lodi
Councilmember Diane Lazard City of Lathrop
Mayor Gary Singh City of Manteca
Mayor Kevin J. Lincoln II City of Stockton
Councilmember Kimberly Warmsley City of Stockton
Councilmember Dan Wright City of Stockton
Supervisor Miguel Villapudua County of San loaquin
Supervisor Steven Ding County of San Joaquin
Mayor Nancy Young City of Tracy
Vice Mayor Leo Zuber City of Ripon

EX OFFICIO DIRECTORS

Dennis Agar, Director Caltrans District 10

Gary Giovanetti, Director San Joaquin Regional Transit District

William R. Trezza, Commissioner Port of Stockton

SUBMITTED BY:

Diane Nguyen

Executive Director

Steve Dial

Deputy Executive Director/
Chief Financial Officer

426



DocuSign Envelope ID: 9D626793- E7E8- 4D22- 66B2- 7E4DF2D9B322

San Joaquin Council of Governments

ANNUAL FINANCIAL PLAN

Fiscal Year 2023/ 2024

Proposed Final March 23, 2023

FY 2021- 22 FY 2022- 23       " K' 2 2 4,`;       +/-     

REVENUES Actual Amendmenttf3   ,   IP.>     Change Change

Federel Grents 5, 095,875.06 9, 646,68810 9?+` i 1, 529,173.80 15. 85%

StateGrants 3, 592,632. 34 12,077, 932.42   ,+„   10, 365, 224. 58 85. 82%

Local 5, 778,14134 6, 847, 246. 59 7;, 1,:    1, 140,974.41 16.66%

Interest 30, 723.00 20, 000.00                0. 00%

Other 73, 824.96 60, 000. 00 ,  ,,`    0. 00%

14, 551,196J0 28,651,867. 21 r,  13, 035,372J9 45. 50%

EXPENDITURES s°'

Salaries& Benefits 4, 486, 781. 28 5, 312,472. 93     
3    _     

969, 336.07 18.25%

Services& Supplies 1, 077, 170.21 1, 212, 800. 00    t3'      125, 700. 00 10.36%
t,

Office Expense 336,434. 13 313, 000. 00      t Q;       25, 000. 00 7. 99%

Communications 60, 810.26 60,000. 00       t;    0.00%

Memberships 34, 890. 58 45,000.00 4S Q 0. 00%
x ;

Maintenance- Equipment 5, 199J4 10,000.00    `  ,,;    0. 00%

Rents& Leases- Equipment 51,493J4 131,000.00      +°,     0. 00%

Transportation, Trevel& 7raining( In& Out of State) 83, 703. 41 100,000.00      :      25, 000.00 25. 00%

Publications& Legal Notices 3, 919.22 7, 500.00 0. 00%

Insurence 174, 019.45 146, 300. 00           58, 700. 00 40. 12%

Building Operetions& Maintenance 217, 331.92 20Q000.00 1"li'k`'       17, 000. 00 8. 50%

S1COG Building Debt Service Principal and Interest 109, 367J6 20Q000.00 s QI};;    0. 00%

Professional5ervices 8, 059,048.90 21, 746,094.28   3, i,., r>   11, 940,336J7 54. 91%

CapitalOutlay 120,336. 29 380,500.00 3 1Q, Q;    0. 00%

Unallocated/ Reserve

SJCOG OPERATING EXPENDITURES 13,743,336.68 28, 651,867. 21 „.; N ,  13,035, 372.84 45. 50%

427



428



ITEM 4. 16

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

APRIL 10, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       RATIFY CITY MANAGER' S EXECUTION OF A

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT WITH NOR- CAL

CONCRETE COMPANY FOR TEMPORARY ANIMAL

SHELTER CONCRETE,  CIP GG 23- 06 AND APPROVE

BUDGET AMENDMENT

RECOMMENDATION:     Adopt Resolution Ratifying City Manager' s Execution
of a Construction Contract with Nor- Cal Concrete

Company for Temporary Animal Shelter Concrete,
CIP GG 23- 06 and Approving Budget Amendment

SUMMARY:

On October 10, 2022, Council approved the creation of Capital Improvement Project

CIP) GG 23- 06 Temporary Animal Shelter. This subject scope of work includes the
construction of concrete slabs at the Corporation Yard  ( Project)  upon which pre-
purchased modular animal shelter buildings will be placed.   The Project will also

provide modifications to concrete curb  & gutter at the Lathrop Police Station to
accommodate K- 9 housing.

The bid solicitation package for the construction of the Project was advertised on
January 30,  2023 in accordance with Informal Bidding Procedures in CA Public
Contract Code 22034 ( California Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Act)
and Lathrop Municipal Code ( LMC) 3. 30. 060 and 3. 30. 070.

Public Works received and opened six ( 6) bids on February 14, 2023. Based on the

review and evaluation of the bids, the lowest responsive and responsible bidder for

the Project was determined to be Nor- Cal Concrete Company ( Nor- Cal), with a bid of

76, 590.

Due to anticipated inclement weather and the immediate need to construct the

concrete slabs, Nor- Cal was instructed to commence the Project' s construction right

after the bidding, taking advantage of a predicted clear weather period. Therefore,
Staff requests Council adopt a resolution ratifying the City Manager' s signing of a
construction contract with Nor- Cal for CIP GG 23- 06 Temporary Animal Shelter
Concrete in the amount of $76, 590 and authorize a 20% construction contingency of

15, 318 bring the total Project cost not to exceed $ 91, 908.

Staff also requests Council authorize an additional   $ 100, 000 to fund site

improvements, and approve a total budget amendment in the amount of $ 191, 908

see Fiscal Impact).

429



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

APRIL 10, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

RATIFY CITY MANAGER' S EXECUTION OF A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT

WITH NOR- CAL CONCRETE COMPANY FOR TEMPORARY ANIMAL SHELTER
CONCRETE, CIP GG 23- 06 AND APPROVE BUDGET AMENDMENT

BACKGROUND:

October 10, 2022, City Council approved the creation of CIP GG 23- 06 Temporary
Animal Shelter to provide a facility for the subject services until the City' s permanent
animal shelter is constructed. The Project consists of minor grading and excavation,
and the construction of six ( 6) concrete slabs and a concrete mow strip.  The slabs

will be used as foundations for the placement of two ( 2) 6- kennel and one ( 1) 18-

kennel modular animal shelter structures.

The concrete mow strip will provide the base for an outdoor steel- fenced animal run
to be installed as a function of a separate project following placement of the modular
buildings, and will discourage animals from digging under the fence. The Project also
includes minor modifications to concrete curb & gutter at the Lathrop Police Station,
which will accommodate placement of kennels for Lathrop Police Department' s K- 9
dogs.

City staff prepared the plans and technical specifications. The informal bid solicitation
package for the construction of the Project was advertised on ) anuary 30, 2023 in

accordance with Informal Bidding Procedures in CA PCC 22034 and LMC 3. 30. 060
and 3. 30. 070.

Six  ( 6)  bids,  all determined to be responsive and from responsible bidders were
received and opened by Public Works on February 14,  2023.  The bid results are

summarized in Table 1 below:

Table 1: Summar of Bid Resu/ ts
Contractor Total Bid

Nor- Cal Concrete Com an 76, 590. 00

MG and JC Concrete, Inc. 103, 846. 00

Bianchi Concrete 109, 790. 80

Westside Landsca e & Concrete, Inc.      123, 677. 64

B& M Builders, Inc.   138, 380. 00

Diede Construction, Inc.  173, 526. 00

Staff reviewed and evaluated the bids, and determined that the lowest bid is from
Nor- Cal. Due to anticipated inclement weather and the immediate need to construct
the temporary animal shelter, the City Manager executed the contract with Nor- Cal
to enable construction of the Project immediately following bidding when a window
of clear weather was anticipated.  Therefore,  Staff requests City Council adopt a
resolution ratifying the City Manager' s execution of a construction contract with Nor-
Cal in the amount of $ 76, 590.

430



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

APRIL 10, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

RATIFY CITY MANAGER' S EXECUTION OF A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT

WITH NOR- CAL CONCRETE COMPANY FOR TEMPORARY ANIMAL SHELTER

CONCRETE, CIP GG 23- 06 AND APPROVE BUDGET AMENDMENT

Staff also requests City Council authorize a 20% construction contingency of$ 15, 318,

and authorize staff to spend the contingency as necessary to achieve the goals of the
project for a total Project cost not to exceed $ 91, 908.

Staff also requests City Council authorize an additional $ 100, 000 to fund necessary
site improvements for CIP GG 23- 06 Temporary Animal Shelter, including parking,
concrete flatwork and landscaping and approve a total budget amendment of

191, 908.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

The City of Lathrop animal shelter services were previously provided by the City of
Manteca ( Manteca). As the City' s permanent animal shelter is approximately 2 years
from completion, approval of the subject contract will support the timely construction
of the temporary facility to ensure uninterrupted provision of the City' s animal shelter
services.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Table 2 below is a summary of the budget and expenses to date for CIP GG 23- 06,
Temporary Animal Shelter.

Table 2: Pro' ect Financia/ Summar   - CIP GG 23- 06

Bud et Ex enses

ITEM VALUE ITEM VALUE

Reso 22- 5168 - 10/ 12/ 22 $ 502, 000 Shelter Materials 26, 778. 14

Reso 23- XXX - 4/ 10/ 23    $ 191, 908 Modular Kennels 322, 433. 00

Site Im rovements 82, 554. 91

Concrete slabs 76, 590. 00

Securit Cameras / Software      $  17, 132. 10

TOTAL BUDGET:  $ 693, 908 TOTAL EXPENSES TO DATE:   $ 525, 488. 15

Staff requests City Council ratify the City Manager' s execution of a construction
contract with Nor- Cal in the amount of $ 76, 590 and authorize a 20% construction

contingency of $ 15, 318, for a total Project cost not to exceed $ 91, 908.

Staff also requests City Council authorize an additional $ 100, 000 for necessary site
improvements for CIP GG 23- 06 Temporary Animal Shelter,  including parking,
concrete flatwork and landscaping.

Sufficient funds were not included in the adopted FY 22/ 23 budget. Therefore, Staff

requests City Council approve a budget amendment to fund the estimated total
construction costs for CIP GG 23- 06,  Temporary Animal Shelter transferring

431



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 4

APRIL 10, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

RATIFY CITY MANAGER' S EXECUTION OF A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT

WITH NOR- CAL CONCRETE COMPANY FOR TEMPORARY ANIMAL SHELTER

CONCRETE, CIP GG 23- 06 AND APPROVE BUDGET AMENDMENT

191, 908 from the General Fund Reserve ( 1010) to the CIP Project Fund ( 3010) as

detailed below.

Increase Transfer Out

1010- 9900- 990- 9010 191, 908

Increase Transfer In

3010- 9900- 393- 0000 GG 23- 06 191, 908

Increase Ex,penditures
3010- 8000- 420- 12- 00 GG 23- 06 191, 908

ATTACHMENTS:

A.  Resolution Ratifying City Manager' s Execution of a Construction Contract with
Nor- Cal Concrete Company for the Temporary Animal Shelter Concrete, CIP

GG 23- 06 and Approving Budget Amendment

B.  Executed Construction Contract with Nor- Cal Concrete Company for

Temporary Animal Shelter Concrete, CIP GG 23- 06

432



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 5

APRIL 10, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

RATIFY CITY MANAGER' S EXECUTION OF A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT

WITH NOR- CAL CONCRETE COMPANY FOR TEMPORARY ANIMAL SHELTER

CONCRETE, CIP GG 23- 06 AND APPROVE BUDGET AMENDMENT

APPROVALS:

3 . zg ,23

Steven Hollenbeak Date

Assistant Engineer

3 -2 aZ
Ken Reed Date

Senior Construction Manager

y' S/ Zo23

Brad aylor Date

City Engineer

3  3
Cari Jam Date

Director Finance

3- 28  23

Michael King Date

Assistant City Manag r

3 . 3 o-  Z

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

23
Stephen J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

433



RESOLUTION NO. 23-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP RATIFYNG

CITY MANAGER' S EXECUTION OF A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT WITH NOR-

CAL CONCRETE COMPANY FOR TEMPORARY ANIMAL SHELTER CONCRETE,

CIP GG 23- 06 AND APPROVING BUDGET AMENDMENT

WHEREAS, on October 10, 2022, City Council approved the creation of Capital
Improvement Project ( CIP) GG 23- 06 Temporary Animal Shelter to provide a facility
for the subject services until the City' s permanent animal shelter is constructed; and

WHEREAS,  the work contemplated by this contract will provide concrete
improvements at the Corporation Yard for the placement of modular animal shelter
buildings and modifications to concrete curb & gutter at the Lathrop Police Station
for Police K- 9 kennels ( Project); and

WHEREAS,  City staff prepared and distributed the plans and technical
specifications for informal bid solicitation on January 30,  2023 in accordance with

Informal Bidding Procedures in CA Public Contract Code 22034 ( California Uniform

Public Construction Cost Accounting Act) and Lathrop Municipal Code 3. 30. 060 and
3. 30. 070; and

WHEREAS, a total of six ( 6) bids were received and opened by Public Works
on February 14, 2023; and

WHEREAS, upon review and evaluation of the bids, the lowest responsive and

responsible bidder for the Project was determined to be Nor- Cal Concrete Company
Nor- Cal) with a bid of $ 76, 590; and

WHEREAS, the City Manager has executed a construction contract with Nor-
Cal for $ 76, 590; and

WHEREAS, staff requests Council ratify the construction contract with Nor- Cal
in the amount of $ 76, 590 for the construction of the Project; and

WHEREAS,   staff also requests Council authorize a 20%   construction

contingency in the amount of $ 15, 318 and authorize staff to spend the contingency
as necessary to achieve the goals of the Project for a total Project cost not to exceed

91, 908; and

WHEREAS, sufficient funds were not included in the adopted Fiscal Year 22/ 23

budget for CIP GG 23- 06 to fund the Project construction and related site

improvements; therefore, staff requests City Council approve a budget amendment
transferring $ 191, 908 from General Fund Reserve to the Project CIP fund as follows:

434



Increase Transfer Out

1000- 9900- 990- 9010 191, 908

Increase Transfer In

3010- 9900- 393- 0000 GG 23- 06 191, 908

Increase Expenditures

3010- 8000- 420- 12- 00 GG 23- 06 191, 908

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop hereby ratifies the City Manager' s execution of a construction contract with
Nor- Cal Concrete Company for Temporary Animal Shelter Concrete, CIP GG 23- 06
for a cost of $ 76, 590; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Lathrop does
hereby authorize a 20%  construction contingency in the amount of $ 15, 318 and

authorizes staff to spend up to this amount as necessary to accomplish the goals of
the Project; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Lathrop does
hereby authorize an additional $ 100, 000 for related site improvements for CIP GG

23- 06, Temporary Animal Shelter; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Lathrop does
hereby ratify approve a budget amendment transferring $ 191, 908 from General Fund
Reserve to the Project CIP fund as detailed above.

435



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 10t" day of April, 2023 by the
following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

A BSTAI N:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:    APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

436



DocuSign Envelope ID: 3DOC3934- AA3A- 4014- 977C- 9F9D47C783BC
A ACH T

8
w..+..

SECTION 00500

ANIMAL SHELTER CONCRETE, CIP GG 23- 06

CUPCCAA INFORMAL BID SOLICITATIO;V CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT

This Contract, dated March 1     , 2023, is entered into by and bettiveen the City of Lathrop, a
municipal corporation of the State of California ( City), and Nor- Cal Concrete Company ( Contractor),
whose Taxpayer ldentification Number is 94- ll44610

For and in consideration ofthe following covenants, terms and conditions, City and Contractor( the
parties) agree:

t.       Term. This Contract shall commence on, and be binding on the parties on, the date of execution of
this Contract, and shall expire on the date of recordation of the Notice of Substantial Completion,

or, if nQ such notice is required to be filed, on the date that final payment is made hereunder, subject
to the earlier termination of this Contract.

2.       General Scope of Pro1ect and Work. Construction Documents for Animal Shelter Concrete, CIP

GG 23- 06 ( Project).   Contractor shall furnish labar, services, materials and equipment in

connection with the construction of the Project and complete the Work in accordance with the

covenants, terms and conditions of this Contract to the satisfaction of City.

The vork to be performed under this contract includes all work contained in the Construction
Documents, as detailed in Paragraph 3 below, including, but not limited to sawcutting and removal
of asphalt paving and concrete, and construction of concrete curb and flatwork and any task
necessary to accomplish the aforementioned tasks at the City' s Corporation Yard and Police
Sta# ion.

The vork shali be eompleted within 30 working days following issuance of Notice to Proceed.

The Work shalt be complete, and all appurtenant work, materials, and services not expressly shown
or cal( ed for in the Construction Documents which may be necessary for the complete and proper
construction of the Work in good faith shall be performed, furnished, and installed by the
Contractor as though originally specified or shown. The Contractor will be compensated for actual
work performed in accordance with the unit prices and provisions contained in these Construction
Documents.

Base Bid Total: 76, 590.00(, Seventv- Six Thousand Five Hundred Ninetv Dollars)

2.  Construction Documents.  This Contract shall include the Construction Documents which are on

file with the Public Works Department and are hereby incorporated by reference ( i. e. Project
Specifications,  Project Pians,  addenda,  certification of insurance,  workers compensation

certification, and guaranty) and the Bid Documents submitted by Nor- Cal Concrete Coi any on

February 14, 2023. For the purposes of construing, interpreting and resofving inconsistencies
between the provisions of this Contract, these documents and the provisions thereof are set forth in
the order of precedence described in Article 3 of the General Conditions.

3.  Compensation.  In consideration of Contractor' s performance of its o6ligations hereunder, City
shall pay to Contractor the amount set forth in Contractor' s Bid in accordance with the provisions
of this Contract and upon the receipt of written invoices and all necessary supporting
documentation within the time set forth in the Construction Documents. Contractor hereby shall
not be permitted to invoice the City nor accept compensation for work not yet complete.

00500- 1

437



DocuSign Envelope ID: 3D C3934- AA3A- 4014- 977C- 9F9D47C7838C

SECTION 00500

ANIMAL SHELTER CONCRETE, CIP CG 23- 06

CUPCCAA IIVFOItN1AL BID SOLICITATION CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT

In no event, shall the Contractor be entitled to payment for work not included in the approved scope
of work, a written task order, or change order signed by the City' s Public Works Director prior to
commencement of any work.

5.       Insurance. On or before the Date of Execution, Contractor shall obtain and maintain the policies
of insurance coverage described in Section 5. 2 of the General Conditions on terms and conditions
and in amounts as may be required by the City.  City shall not be obligated to take out insurance
on Contractor' s personal property or the personal property of any person performing labor or
services or supplying materials or equipment tinder the Project. Contractor shall furnish City with
the certificates of insurance and with original endarsements affecting coverage required under this
Contract on or before the Date of Execution. The certificates and endorsements for each insurance
policy shall be signed by a person who is authorized by that insurer to bind coverage in its behalf.
Proof of insurance shall be mailed to the Project Manager to the address set forth in Section I S of
this Contract.

6.       lndemnification.  Contractor agrees to protect, defend, indemnify and hold City, its City Council
members, officers, employees, engineer, and construction manager harmless from and against any
and all claims, demands, liabilities, losses, damages, costs, expenses, liens, penalties, suits, or
jt dgments, arising in whole or in part, directly or indirectly, at any time from any injury to or death
of persons or damage to property as a result of the willful or negligent act or omission of Contractor,
or which results from Contractor' s noncompliance with any Law respecting the condition, use,
occupation or safety of the Project site, or any part thereof, or rvhich arises from Contractor' s failure
to do anything required under this Contract or for doing anything which Cantraetor is required not
to do under this Contract, or which arises from conduct for which any Law imposes strict liability
on Contractor in the performance of or failure to perform the terms and conditions of this Contract,
except as may arise from the sole tivillfuf or negligent act or omission of City or any of its City
Council members, officers, employees.  This indemnification shall extend to any and all claims,
demands, or liens made or filed by reason of any construction, renovation, or remodeling work
performed by Contractor under this Contract at any time during the term of this Contract, or arising
thereafter.

7.       Assumption of Risk. Contractor agrees to vol mtarily assume any and a( 1 risk of loss, damage, or
injury to the property of Contractor which may occur in, on, or about the Project site at any time
and in any manner, excepting such loss, injury, or damage as may be caused by the sole willful or
negligent act or omission of City or any of its City Council members, officers, or employees.

8.       Waiver. The acceptance of any payment or performance, or any part thereof, shall not operate as
a waiver by City of its rights under this Contract. A waiver by City of any breach of any part or
provision of this Contract by Contractor shall not operate as a waiver or continuing waiver of any
subsequent breach of the same or any other provision, nor shall any custom or practice which may
arise between the parties in the administration of any part or provision of this Contract be construed
to waive or to lessen the right of City to insist upon the performance of Contractor in strict
compliance with the covenants, terms and conditions of this Contract.

oosoo- 2

438



DocuSign Envelope ID: 3DOC3934- AA3A- 4014- 977C- 9F9D47C7838C

SECTION 0050

ANIi 1AL SHELTER CONCRETE, CIP GG 23- 06

CUPCCAA INFORMAL BID SOLICITATION CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT

9.       Compliance with Laws. Contractor shall comply with all Laws now in force or which may hereafter
be in force pertaining to the Project and Work and this Contract, with the requirement of any bond
or fire underwriters or other similar body now or hereafter constituted, with any discretionary
license or pennit issued pursuant to any Law of any public agency or official as well as with any
provision of all recorded documents affecting the Project site, insofar as any are required by reason
of the use or occupancy of the Project site, and with all Laws pertaining to nondiscrimination and
affirn ative action in employment and hazardous materials.

DEPARTMENT OF INDUSTRIAL R LATIOI IS- COMPLIANCE MONITORING UNIT

DIR Registration.

a)  Contractor and Subcontractor Compliance. Strict compliance with DIR registratian requirements

pursuant to Labor Code Section 1725. 5 is a materiai obligation of the Contractor under the Contract
Documents.   The foregoing includes without limitation, compliance with DIR Registration
requirements at all times during perfonnance of the Work by the Contractor and all Subcontractors
of any tier. The failure of the Contractor and alf Subcontractors of every tire to be DIR registered
at all times during the performance of the Work is the Contractor' s default of a material obligation
of the Contractor under the Contract Documents.

b)  No Subcontractor Performance of Work Without DIR Registration.  Na portion of the Work is
permitted to be performed by a Subconkractor of any tier unless the Subcontractor is a DIR
Registered contractor.

c)  Contractor Obligation to Verify Subcontractor DIR Registration Status.  An affirmative and on-
going obligation of the Contractor under the Contract Documents is the Contractor' s verification

that all Subcontractors, of all tiers; are at all times during performance of Work in full and strict
compliance with DIR Registration requirements.  The Contractor shall not permit or allow any
Subcontractor of any tier to perform any Work without the Contractor' s verification that all such
Subcontractors are in full and strict compliance with DIR Registration requirements.

d)  Contractor Obligation to Request Substitution of Non- DIR Registered Subcontractor.  If any
Subcontractor identified in the Contractor' s Subcontractor List submitted with the Contractor' s

propasal for the Work is nat DIR Registere at the time of opening of proposals for the Work or if
a Subcontractor' s DIR regish•ation lapses prior to or during a Subcontractor' s performance of
Work, the Contractor shall request the CITY' s cansent to substitute the non-DIR registered
Subeontractor pursuant to Labor Code Section 1771. 1( c)( 3) and/ or Labor Code Section 1771. 1( d).

Certified Payroll Records

a)   Compliance with Labor Code Section 1771. 4 and 1776. A material obiigation of the Contractor
under the Contract Documents is: ( i) the Contractor' s strict compliance with the requirements

pursuant to Labor Code Section 1771. 4 and 1776 for preparation and submittal of Certified Payroll
Records (" CPR"); and ( ii) the Contractor' s enforcement of CPR preparation and submittal for all
Subcontractors of every tier.

b)  Express Condition Precedent to Payment of Contact Price.   Strict compEiance with CPR

requirements established pursuant to Labor Code Section 1776 is an express condition precedent
to the CITY' s obligation to: ( i) process any request for payment of any portion of the Contract
Price; or( ii) to disburse any portion of the Contract Price to the Contractor.

00500- 3

439



DocuSign E velope ID: 3DOC3934- AA3A- 4014- 977G9F9D47C783BC

SECTION 00500

AYIbiAL SHELTER CONCRETF,,CIP GG 23- 06

CUPCCAA INFOItIYIAL BID SOLICITATION CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT

The Contractor shatl demonstrate strict campliance with CPR preparation and submittal
requirements by delivery to the CITY of electronic files or hard copies of all CPR' s submitted by
the Contractor and/ or Subcontractors for Work pursuant to Labor Code Section 1771. 4 and 1776
concurrently with the submittal thereof to the Labor Commissioner.  The CITY: ( i) shall not be

obligated to process or disburse any portion of the Contract Price; or( ii) shall not be deemed in
defatilt of the CITY' s obligations under the Cantract Documents unless the Contractor' s

demonstrates strict compliance with CPR preparation and submittal requirements.

c)  PWR Monitoring and Enforcement.   During the Work pursuant to Labor Code Section
1771. 4( a)( 4), the Department of Industrial Relations shall monitor and enforce the obligation of the

Construction and Subcontractors of every tier to pay the laborers perForming any portion of the
work the PWR established for the classification of work/ labor performed.

RECORD OF WAGES PAID: 1NSPECTION

Pursuant to Labor Code section ] 776, Contractor stipulates the following:

a)  Contractor and each st bcontractor shall keep an accurate payroll record, showing the name,
address, social security number, vork classification, straight time and overtime hours worked each
day and week, and the actual per diem wages paid to each journeyman, apprentice, vorker, or other
employee employed by him or her in connection with the public work under the Facilities lease and
Construction Provisions.

Such records shall be on forms provided by the Division of Labor Standards Enfarcement or shall
contain the same information of such forms. The payroll records may consist of payroll data that
are maintained as computer records, ifprintouts contain the same information as the farms provided
by the divisian and the printouts are verified as specified in subdivision( a) of Labor Code section
1776.

b)  The payroll records enumerated under subdivision ( a) shall be certified and shall be available for

inspection at all reasonable hours at the principal office of Contractor on the following basis:

1) A certified copy of an employee' s payroll record shall be made available for inspection or
furnished to such employees or his or her authorized representative on request.

2} A certified copy of all payroll records enumerated in subdivision ( a) sha11 be made
available for inspection or furnished upon request to a representative of the CITY, the

Division of Labor Standards Enforcement, and Division of Apprenticeship Standards of
the Department of Industrial Relatians.

3) A certified copy of all payroll records enumerated in subdivision ( a) shall be made
available upon request by the public for inspection or copies thereof. However, a request
by the public shall be made through either the CITY, the Division of Apprenticeship
Standards, or the Division of Labor Standards Enforcement.  If the requested payroll
records have not been provided pursuant to paragraph( 2), the requesting party shall, prior
to being provided the records, reimburse the costs of preparation by Contractor,
subcontractors, and the entity through which the request was made. The public shall not
be given access to such records at the principal office of Contractor.

c)  Contractor shall file a certified copy of the records enumerated in subdivision ( a) with the entity
that requested such records within ten( 10) days after receipt of the written request.

00500- 4

440



DocuSign Envelope ID: 3DOC3934- AA3A- 4014- 977C- 9F9D47C7838C

SECTION 00500

ANIMAL SHELTER CONCRETE, CIP GG 23- 06

CUPCCAA INFOR IAL BID SOLICITATION CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT

d)  Any copy of records made available for inspection as copies and furnished upon request to the

public or any public agency, by the CITY, the Division of Apprenticeship Standards, or the division
of Labor Standards Enforcement sha11 be marked or obliterated in such a manner as to prevent
disclosure of an individual' s name, address and social security number. The name and address of
contractor awarded the contract ar performing the contract shall not be marked or obliterated.

e)  Contractor shall inform the CITY of the location of the records enumerated under subdivision( a),

including the street address, city, and county, and shall, within( 5) working days, provide a notice
of a change of location and address.

In the event of noncompliance with the requirements of this Article, Contractor shall have ten( 10)

days in which to comply subsequent to receipt of written notice specifying in what respects
Contractor must comply with this Article. Should noncompliance still be evident after such 10- day
periad, Contractor shall pay a penalty of One- Hundred Dollars ($ 100. 00) to the CITY for each

calendar day, or portion thereof, for each tivorker, unti] strict compliance is effectuated. Upon the
request of the Division of Apprenticeship Standards or the Division of Labor Standards
Enforcement, such penalties shall be withheld from the progress payment then due.

The responsibility for compliance with this Article shall rest upon Contractor.

10.      Bonds.  As a condition precedent to City' s obligation to pay compensatian to Contractor, and on
or before the date of Execution, Contractor shall furnish to the Project Manager the Bonds as
required under Section 00700- 5. 1 A.

i l.      Representations and Warranties. In the supply of any materials and equipment and the rendering
of labor and services during the course and scope of the Project and Work, Contractor represents
and warrants:

1)      Any materials and equipment which shall be used during the course and scope of the
Project and Work shall be vested in Contractor;

2}      Any materials and equipment which shall he used during the course and scope of the
Project and Work shall be merchantable and fit to be used for the particular purpose for
which the materials are required;

3)      Any labor and services rendered and materials and equipment used or employed during the
course and scope af the Project and Work shall be free of defects in workmanship for a
period of one( 1) year after the recordation of the Notice of Substantial Completion, or, if
no such notice is required to be filed, on the date that fina( payment is made hereunder;

4)      Any manufacturer' s warranty obtained by Contractor shall be obtained or shall be deemed
obtained by Contractor for and on behalf of City.

5}      Any information submitted by Contractor prior to the award of Contract, or thereafter, upon
request, whether or not submitted under a continuing obligation by the terms of the
Contract to do so, is true and correct at the time such information is submitted or made

available to the City;

00500->

441



DocuSign E velope ID: 3DOC3934- AA3A- 4014- 977G9F9D47C783BC

SECTION 00500

ANIi14AL SHELT R CONCRETE, CIP GG 23- 06

CUPCCAA INFOI2,11AL BID SOLICITATION CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT

6)      Contractor has not colluded, conspired, or agreed, directly or indirectly, with any person in
regard to the terms and conditions of Contractor' s Bid, except as may be permitted by the
Notice to Contractors;

7)      Contractor has the power and the authority to enter into this Contract with City, that the
individual executing this Contract is duly authorized to do so by appropriate resolution,
and that this Contract shall be executed, detivered and performed pursuant to the power
and authority conferred upon the person or persons authorized to bind Contractor;

8)      Contractor has not made an attempt to exert undue influence with the Project Manager or

any other person who has directly contributed to City' s decision to award the Contract to
Contractor;

9)      There are no unresolved claims or disputes between Contractor and City which would
materially affect Contractor' s ability to perform under the Contract;

10)    Contractor has furnished and will fiirnish true and accurate statements, records, reports,

resolutions, certifications; and other written information as may be requested of Contractor
by City from time to time during the term of this Contract;

11)    Contractor and any person performing labor and services under this Project is duly licensed
as a contractor with the State of California as required by California Business &
Professional Code Section 702$, as amended; and

12)    Contractor has fully examined and inspected the Project site and has full knowledge of the
physical conditions ofthe Project site.

12.      Assignment. This Cantract and the performance required hereunder is personal to Contractor, and
it shall not be assigned by Contractor. Any attempted assignment shall be null and void.

13.      Claims of Contractor. All claims pertaining to extra work, additional charges, or delays within the
Contract Time or other disputes arising out of the Contract shall be submitted by Contractor in
accordance with the General Conditions.

14.      Audits by City. During the term ot' this Contract and for a period of not Iess than three ( 3) years
after the expiration or earlier termination of this Contract, City shall have the right to audit
Contractor' s Project- related and Work- related writings and business records, as such terms are

defined in California Evidence Code Sections 250 and 1271, as amended, during the regular
business hours of Contractor, or, if Contractor has na such hours, during the regular business hours
of City.

I5.     Notices.  Al! contracts, agreements, appointments, approvals, authorizations, claims, demands,

Change Orders, consents, designations, notices, offers, requests and statements given by either
party to the other shall be in writing and shall be sufficiently given and served upon the other party
if( 1) personally served, ( 2) sent by the United States mail, postage prepaid, ( 3) sent by private
express delivery service, or( 4) in the case of a facsimile transmission, if sent to the telephone FAX

number set forth below during regular business hours of the receiving party and followed with two
2) days by delivery of a hard copy af the material sent by facsimile transmission, in accordance

with { 1), ( 2) or( 3) above. Personal service shall include, without limitation, service by de( ivery
and service by facsimile transmission.

00500- 6

442



DocuSign Envelope ID: 3L1OC3934- AA3A- 4014- 977C- 9F9D47C7838C

SECTION 00500

ANIiVIAL SHELTER CONCRETE, CIP GG 23- 06

CUPCCAA INFORNIAL BID SOLICITATION CO' STRUCTION CONTRACT

To City:      City of Lathrop
City Clerk
390 Tawne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

To City:      City of Lathrop
Department of Public Works

390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330
PHONE: ( 209) 941- 7430

FAX:     ( 209) 94l- 7449

ATTitiT:   Senior Construction Manager

To Contractor: Nor- Cal Concrete Company

Mailing Address:    PO BoY 521, Suisun, CA 94585

Phone: j707 425- 6144
norcalconcrete@sbcglobal . net

Email:
oe Ardave

ATTN:

16.      Miscellaneous

I)      Bailee Disclaimer.  The parties understand and agree that City does not purport to be
Contractor' s bailee, and City is, therefore, not responsible for any damage to the personal
property of Contractor.

2)      Consent.  Whenever in this Contract the approval or consent of a party is required, such
approval or consent shall be in writing and shall be executed by a person having the express
authority to grant such approval or consent.

3)      Controlling Law. The parties agree that this Contract shall be governed and construed by
and in accordance with the Laws of the State of California.

4}      Detinitions. The definitions and terms are as defined in these specifications.

5)      Force Majeure. Neither party shall be deemed to be in default on account of any delay or
failure to perforrn its obligations under this Contract, which directly results from an Act of
God or an act of a superior governmental attthority.

6)      Headings. The paragraph headings are not a part of this Contract and shall have no effect
upon the construction or interpretation of any part of this Contract.

7)      Incorporation of Documents.  All documents constituting the Construction Documents
described in Section 3 hereof and all documents which may, from time ta time, be referred
to in any duly executed amendment hereto are by such reference incorporated in this
Contract and shall be deemed to be part of this Contract.

8)      Integration. This Contract and any amendments hereto between the parties constitute the
entire contract between the parties concerning the Project and Work, and there are no other
prior oral or written contracts between the parties that are not incorporated in this Contract.

oosoo- 7

443



DocuSign Envelope ID: 3DOC3934- AA3A- 4014- 977C- 9F9D47C783BC

sECTroN oosoo

ANII 4AL SHELTER CONCRETE, CIP GG 23-06
CUPCCAA INFORIYIAL BID SOLICITATION CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT

9)      Modification of Contrac#.  This Contract shall not be modified or be binding upon the
parties unless such modification is agreed to in writing and signed by the parties.

10)    Provisian. Any contract, covenant, condition, clause, qualification, restriction, reservation,
terrn or other stipulation in the Contract shall deftne or otherwise control, establish, or limit

the performance required or permitted or to be required of or permitted by either pariy. All
provisions, whether covenants or conditions, shall be deemed to be both covenants and
conditions.

l l)    Resolution.  Contractor shall submit with its Bid a copy of any corporate or partnership
resolution or other writing, which authorizes any director, officer or other employee or
partner to act for or on behalf of Contractor or which authorizes Contractor to enter into
this Contract.

12)    Severability.  If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision of this
Contract is void or iinenforceable, the provisions of this Contract not so affected shall
remain in full force and effect.

13)    Status of Contractor.   In the exercise of rights and obligations under this Contract,

Contractor acts as an independent contractor and not as an agent or employee of City.
Contractor shall not be entitled to any rights and benefits accorded or accruing to the City
Council members, officers or employees of City, and Contractor expressly waives any and
all claims to such rights and benefits.

14)    Sticcessors and Assigns. The provisions of this Contract shall inure to the benefit of, and
shall apply to and bind, the successors and assigns of the parties.

15)    Time of the Essence. Tirne is of the essence of this Contract and each of its provisions. In
the calculation af time hereunder, the time in which an act is to be performed shal] be
computed by excluding the first Day and induding the last. If the time in which an act is
to be performed falls on a Saturday, Sunday, or any Day observed as a legal 1loliday by
City, the time for performance shall be extended to the following Business Day.

16)    Venue.  In the event that suit is brought by either party hereunder, the parties a ree that
trial of such action shall be vested exclusively in the state courts of California in the County
of San Joaquin or in the United States District Court for the Eastern District of California.

17)    Recovery of costs. The prevailing party in any action brought to enforce the terms of this
Contract or arising out of this Contract, including the enforcement of the indemnity
provision( s), may recover its reasonable costs, including reasonable attorney' s fees,
incurred or expended in connection with such action against the non- prevailing party.

18)    Contractor and subcontractors must comply with all applicable standards, orders, or
requirements issued under Section 306 of the Clean Air Act ( 42 USC 1857( h}), Section

508 of the Clean Water Act ( 33 USC 1368), Executive Order 11738, and Environmental

Protection Agency Regulations at 40 CPR Part 15.
19)    Contractors and subcontractors must comply with mandatory standards and policies

relating to the energy efficiency which are contained in the State Energy Conservation Plan
issued in complianee with the Energy Policy and Conservation ACT( Public Law 94- 163,
89 stat 871).

00500- 8

444



DocuSign Envelope ID: 3DOC3934- AA3A- 4014- 977C- 9F9D47C783BC

SECTION 00500

ANIi 1AL SHELTER CONCRETE, CIP GG 23- 06
CUPCCAA INFOR: 4IAL BiD SOLICITATION CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT

20)    The Contractor shall provide access to the site for the Environmental Protection Agency
and its duly authorized representatives, and the City.

21)    If during the course of construction evidence of deposit of historical or archaeological

interest is fotmd, the Contractor shall cease operation affecting the find and shall notify the
City, who shall notify the EPA and the State Historic Preservation Officer.  No further

disturbance of the deposits shall ensue until the Contractor has been notified by the City
that construction may praceed. The City will issue a notice to proceed only after the state
official has surveyed the find and made a determination to the EPA and the City.
Compensation to the contractor, if any, for lost time or changes in construction to avoid
the find, shall be determined in accordance with changed conditions or change order

provisions of the Construction Dact ments.

22)    Notice to Proceed. Prior to commencing work under this Contract, CONTRACTOR shall
receive a written" Notice to Proceed" from CITY. A Notice to Proceed shall not be issued

unti] al) necessary boncis and insurances have been received. City shall not be obligated to
pay CONTRACTOR for any services prior to issuance of the Notice to proceed.

23)    Signatures. The individuals executing this Contract represent and warrant that they have
the right, power, legal capacity, and authority to enter into and ta execute this Contract on
behalf of the respective Iegal entities of the CONTRACTOR and the CITY. This Contract

shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upan the parties hereto and their respective
successors and assigns.

24)    This project is a public works project: Contractor shall comply with requirements of
California Labor Code § 1700 and follo ving, and prevailing wages shall be paid for work
performed on this project.

25)    The statutory provisions for penalties for failing to comply vith the State of California
wage and labor la vs be enforced, as well as that for failing to pay prevailing wages.

EXHIBITS:

EXHIBIT A: Contractor' s Submitted Bid Packet

Certification of inszirance, performanee and payment boncls, and tivorker' s compensation
certification shall be fiirnishecf to the Ciry by the Contractor after Ciry Coa ncil' s appr•oval
with resolz tion.

00500- 9

445



DocuSign Envelope ID: 3DOC3934- AA3A- 4014- 977C- 9F9D47C7836C

SECTION 00500

ANIMAL SHELTER CONCRETE, CIP GG 23-06

CUPCCAA INFORMAL BID SOLICITATION CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on the date first above stated in
Lathrop, California.

CONT abY:

By.
Dt, QV'. Av t,

Name:
7oe Ardave

Title:      Presi dent

CITY OF LATHROP Council Meeting 04/ 10/ 2023
APPROVED AS TO FORM:   

S° lution No. 23-

By:
Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

RECOMMENDED FOR APPROVAL:

BY         
Michael King, P. E., Assistant City Manager

APPROVED:

By:
Steph n J. Salvatore, City Manager

END OF SECTIOI

oosoo- 10

446



DocuSign Envelope ID: 3DOC3934- AA3A- 4014- 977C- 9F9D47C783BC

R w

SECTION b0300

ANTUNAL SHELTER CONCRE'!' E- CiP GG 1A6
CUPCCAA tNFbRMAL BID 50LICITATION gm pgpppgpi, Fpg ys

ANIMAL 3HELTER CONCRETE. CIP GG 23-06

BID SCHEDULE

BID
STTE DESCRIPTION QCJANIITY U1yTI' S       

T T ED
iTEM PRICE TOTAL

i P
Sawcut! Remove

68 SF
PCC Sid walk 2        `' jQ . 4 C

2 P      
O  

330 SF
a l    l Z . o o    . 3 6 0.00

P      330 SF
o    «, ao

Fam& ParPC7C
4 P     

s, 
33Q SF       

5 ( S    yyso. 0(

Fomt& PburPOC
s P

s v. a.
g

5. oo    $ 3 l. od

c
76 P

S   
b4 SF      2 • U   . ' t,6cl• d0

Famt Aotub

7 C PCC Stabs a16"  3,954 SF j L• L}( j  .a S's,. Jr.! b

Ft& PaaPCC
g C      4ao F Z   0     ' b, y a• C

r: roc cie sr nort c: cu erox, non v u

TOTAL BID: S
F
SC'/D, I U

TOT., sin uv woans: Se. e r-  „ r_ h d..  itJ d.,o j a. s C

OU304- 2

447



DocuSign Envelope ID: 3DOC3934- AA3A- 4014- 977C- 9F9D47C783BC

SEGTiUN 00300

Axnrrai. sa t. e ct xc- c cc z- es
CITPCCAA INFORMAL B1D SOL1C!' I'ATION BID PROPOSAI, FORMS

INFCIRMATIUN RE+UUIRED OF BIDDER

The Bidder( Contractor) shaIl furnish the fotiowing informacion. lfiis information is coasidered
essential in euabiing the Project Manager ta deterneine if the Bidder is experience,ci in similar types
of work and if the Bid is based oa a cazeful study of inethods applic ble to the work aad full
realization of the various factors which may affect the progress of the work. Failur ta comalv
with this reuuiremeat mav render the Bid nan- re,cponsive and tnay cause its reiecdon Additional
sheets shall be atiached as required.

BIDDER' S 1NFORMATION

I)    Biddt c' s name and address:   }, r  j•
r

0  a x     -a'?  

u; cU+•, Cf-.+   , CY   l S85

2)    Bidder' s telephone numbcr.--' t-- -, e
4 (,_

3)    Bidde s fax number. __    6   ! Z S S $"
1''''

4)    Bidder' s Contractor' s License( Class}:      C ' 

LicenseNa.:   2. 3

E:      -- 3 i - 2 

5)    Petson who inspected site of groposed work for Contractor' s fum:

Name: t1 v dtr-  Date of Inspection:    ' 2 3

6)      List 5 projects of a nature semilar to this project:

Project Contract Name, Addfess and

Price Telephone Nutnber of Owner

C  - z k 5 b y- 3d3 d 11 p  . 
a    —]- rae•t°

z Z 5

f e. e f+ s. c

O c,.. GCi' . ' l S,D( E
e' 

i.G vb4--e K' o jlCo S'"

Z 6     G Qd V 4' t C/

do til,  MU t• -; e v Co n S C-1-' o v ,/
t ǹ`ic t'S-' t  I!'- g       ZU !     ( 8 C    ` 2,- s"

R, verl LtC, Lo1 h cYs,'. y /

0o e p g Z

f iSh l el•-„ 7   / 2 3 oc  w.      cd- c e.L
6 v,  r    30 c .   G r Cd gGQB G _, S4d

04300- 3

448



DocuSign Envelope ID: 3DOC3934- AA3A- 4014- 977C- 9F9D47C7838C

SECTiON 40300

xzn, s. e coKc- c cc. e`

CUPCCAA INFORhfAL HiD SQLICtTATION BID PROPOSAL FQRMS

List fl#'Sebcontractars:

The Bidder shall[ ist below the name aud busines.c address af each subcontractor who will perform
work under this Bid in excess ofone-halfof ons per ent of the Contractor' s Total Bid Price, and
shall also list the portion af the WURK which wiil be done by sucb subconizactor, in accordance
with Secdon 4107 of the Public Contract Code. ARer the opening of bids, na changes or
substitt ons will be allowed except as otherwise provided by law. The listing af more t} an ane
subcontractor for each item ofwork to be perfonned with the words" andJor" wili not be permitted.
Failure to co ly with this requiremeut may rend r the Bid non-responsive and may cause its
rejeclion. Should the ContractQr pmvide a bid that does not require a svbcantractor, the Contractor
shall note that an this page by writing" Not Applicabte" in the list belgw.

5ubcontra+ t€r

License Percent of

Work to be Perf' ormed Nnmber Total Contract S bcontr ctor' s Name& Address

io Ca b G.

2.

3.

4,

5.

G.

Nate: AEiach additipnal sheets ifnaqt ia+ d.

Q0300-

449



DocuSign Envelope ID: 3DOC3934-AP 3A-4014-977C-9F9D47C7838C

SECTION OQ3U4

wxn L se t.r coHc rE_c r cc z
CUPCCAA INFORMAL SiD 50LiC17'A? iON BID PROPUSAL FORMS

ADDENDA

Biddet acknawiedges receipt of the following addendum( addenda):

Respectfully submitted,

2- I- 2 3 l 8 +-       ln• t e, 
Dated Legai Name ofFnm

Si o Authorized Representative

Sea!)

If Bidder is a cocporatioq show State in whic incarporated.)

The full names and post o ce addresses ofall persons and paities interested in the foregoing Bid
as principals are as follows:

NOTICE):  Give fust and last aames m futl; en case of corparatioq give namts of Presidont,
Secremry, Treasurer, and Mauiager, and in case of partnerships and joint vcnhttes, give names and
Post Of' ice addresses ofall the individual members.

Jo_   .       -  P S. 

1        G:(+     cra ct

I G/  tl.   11,..   , r.,f. l p c         _

04300- 5

450



DocuSign Envelope ID: 300C3934- AA3A- 4014- 977C- 9F9D47C783BC

aild IVO. CS$ A- 2 02$

SECT OT i     

A:VI13. L Stl£ LTER CC3ttiCRETk,- CiP GG 23- 2&
C 7i' CAA 3N ORMAL BiD S03. ICi'TATBUN BID PR( 1PaSA1. FCIStMS

8 Yi i7 I7V YU

W AL, i lEN BY' i'HESE FRESE 4TS:

THf T WE Nor- ai Ca crete Ccxnt any

as Ri1 Cl L, anci d1d Ret t iic 5urei+ Com anv

as SURE? Y are held; and fircnly l nd unto kh City of La hrcap zn the penal sum of TEN
PE CE` { IO°r'4} OF TNE TCJTAL AMC7UN?' OF THE BID of it e Principal abt ve named,

submitted by the Principal tc the City of Laihrop fssr the work descrabed 6elow, ' or the paymea t
of which sum in iawful maney ofthe llnited Siates, t ell and truly to hs made to the Ciiy of Lathrnp
to which the bid was s bmitted, we bind ourselves, Qur heirs, executors, administrators and
successc rs, jointly an i severaIly, # irmly by tttc se presents.  Tn n case shall the Iiabiiity of the
surecy hercund r exceed t} e sum of$' e P c n:; t0%) of the Amc unt 8.

TH C P4I3 TIflA J' I'H1S CiBL1GATit} N IS SllCH,

A3', VF EREAS, tf3e Principal has subr itt the abave meniione bid to the City of
Latt ro for cer#airt cons# rtactios specifac lly described as fol o vs, for ti; hirh bids re to be apened
at the Public Wc rks Depa tfneni, 39fl Towne Centr° I7riv, Laihrc p, CA: AN3t tAL SNELTER
CON tET, Cl#' G+G 23- 0.

NOW, ' HEREF( ait, if t a Prin igal is a varded tbe contra t and within t} e time a d

anner cequired under the sp cifications, af er the pr scribed farms rc: presentefl zo him fcrr
signature enters into a written contraci in ihe prescribed foma, in accordance with the bid, and filcs

two bonds with the City, one fo guarantee faiihful performance, and the other io guarantee payment
fc r labor aa d rnaterials as reyuired by 1aw, then tbis obiigation shali be nutt and vaid; athenvise, it
shali be and ren ain in fu11 farce.

Ofl300- 6

451



DocuSign Envelope ID: 3DOC3934- AA3A- 4014- 977G9F9D47C783BC

SECTION 00300

ANLAiAL 5fiELTER Ci)? CRETE- C1P G!G 23-0b
CUPCCAA iNFOitMAL 8iD SOLICLTATtON Btb PxOPUSAL FflR LfiS

IN Wi'' NESS WHEREaF, we have hereunta sct our hands and seals an this 7th day
of 2U23.

N C  oracrete C st Seal) U!d Repubifc Sure1Y Com00nY  { SeaI)

Sea1)   A%- BsI}
tselsea lore, A iomey-in- Fact  "

Address; P. o. ox 52i Address: 1 10 R St. Su"rte 300

Suisun C#v, CA 94585 SacrameMo CA 9589'!

NOTE:    Signatures of those executing for the surety must b properiy acknciwiedged.

tu: z, rr Ccl' rer: r? r' tt- j e, rrase
rkxoxdz gatnA lt_'ne,4 e

4i1300- 7

452



DocuSign Envelope ID: 3DOC3934- AA3A- 4014- 977C- 9F9D47C7838C

i.. 3

A ncatary public as c iher ai er c.z m le't ng   "
cert icate veri ies tx14y th ide ttity oF i e irKi'sv's sa1
w9 o signed th dflcur ent to whi fhis certifrcate is

ailached, and not the truthfulness, accu a y, or
v lid'   of th t document.

Si te of C iiforn#a

County of rler to

F 0 7 2023
ary ibea-at re, t lc tary PublicC)n b fur me,

insert name anti ti#e of ttae offic. r)

ersonaily ppeared
Chetse l,i t tor

vs o prrwed ta me ara the b sis o# satisfaciar} r ev denc to be# he;. ferson( s} whose name{ s) is/ are
subscxiberi to# w in i sirum t and ackt c wledged ta me tt a# helshe!#f ey sxecuted the s ine in
hislh rliheir au#hor'¢ ed capacity{ ies}, and thai y h ertti eir signature{ s) on the instrument the

ersr n( s), c r the entity upon behaK ot r3aict t e rson{ s) ac.te i, execu#ed the i strurnent.

1 t a-ti€y under P 3AL`! C} F PERJJt3RY urs er fihe lavrs af fi e 5taie Qf Cakforr ia# hat the fofegcting
par grap is 4rue acx c srec#.

Z,: tNAn L18c1A70RE
1' J'J fi13} I 78 it BTiC O ICS S.',     

f:   !+ o; arfFua ic- ia!: lornia
x

z` : o-'   ,
t SacraTentoCo nly

t       { am,r.issior 723 772
y''

Mf Lcr..-, E: p res F i; 1., 2 21

StiJ6 3f U( LrE 3

453



DocuSign Envelope ID: 3DOC3934- AA3A- 4014- 977G9F9D47C7838C

8carxi t*Ea. CS9A- 23f12R

r' k**

EPUBLIC     C( JIY P.A:

P      A r Y

dC7VN ALt, 1EP1 8Y' SE W2ESEt*t7S' 1" OliS f2 PU6LPC. tR 7Y CC] h Ai iY. a       " sta c" d make. a Dw and

ap Daniei'    a say. A,•turo Ryata, S1u ur#? aze[ e Osiram. Frat ic s. D. St ng,
ue St. We a.       AisEan             . Ca

its inse ar,d 3arr. d Ai' c3: r. y( j; ss'"' ad. with fisffi prnver aas. t ir and txt haN oi ir+e s     , W ex cute a

deiver arsd a tt tt+ se tif e tlse lo{ i a is      3 bm d, u destakirigs, res tir.nnces or ta# set v+e en ot ig.i rx in the na', re Chereol,
othcr lf. n d ck»cy bond s,   o{ dna.   end r# a

gc+e: ar iy      , s N-k scrrua rtcg A g carbt, cit lung ba,^# s), ss      .

ALL W£2t" T iU IN5TFdt l'.E43T5

a ad! 01 9£ N_ D R Pt1 d iC SURET'Y CCI+. PPw^lY ch teby. a ai t a* b of sak# ra Fad. ta! es ri., ase rat5e catta s i

Titis a n4 is 5atle tm det aY7Q Dy a d tta     mm(       81 a 5pr.a3i en ttir' laa3c! on Fc6nsacy 18, 1 a82.
1' hi Ptr r Qt A ttsrtscy is sSgs ed a sd ser ed by a i by U e t d tt e r ol ,   adopkd m+f tt Aoaazf o! e# iseaas ci the OlD
R r Û8 4C SL1FtETY CtFM AldY as      18 1982.

RE"aCk UUED sh. ihe y ' t v v ta 1f or zsty aiy, may     ' n!

attaTaeys-" v-- fat3 a agtrns wiftr atatltiaity as ar Gra itc 1 in'      r  '    '  the    `  t in eat casz, fa acS m o{ he cat ar,y! o
e arod c s er r, d a the sE o( 4* e' sng' ta bcu, irnlersak's s, rrcrx, rsiza s. and surciys# ip at s d a9 kfr arsd sa affrcees may
n: ttarn any su a4iorTac}+ r€act a x ri revc t: gt Po ves aP/ 1f24rr y xevioszsi+       W se h pCc on.

R. z'
i V£ IJ F1.3i3 NER. lh2t 8iry bts°1d, V     ••, t}. P° mzar% ce, ot Shqi Obi$ 0EOt1 fi.*  ' titf tteradilsg tepon C C C tty

i} whers sspned by he presiGen'., any v: r e presi4ent as ass, sLarr! rice xrrtsiaea4 and ali x3ted ana sealed( i a seal De re araz3) by any secae! ary nr assa ian!
a

ii  wnen xigned hy tfre praside t. aay vice F+rsiC: st or assistana r u presiCrni. sersetary or assisunt aerretary, antl counttrs gr,ecl an bealtd{# a ual be
by a duly a af1' ttxixesi a±'i f-dn. tad 6r agerd; tzr

ii)  Nfiei1 tk. y rxeCU€£ d 9Ealeci { a SCat I7e      } bX OISC CN te C s3$ ac# Qt k9 m+ b ' ' ! he tat Nr ai 501ity
e'      try ihe P of ANarn}+'     try ttse car:aparryt io sudr ptrson persxxrs.

FiESOt.YE33 U: Tii qsal E e '      cs! mry a    " d     . ars ifine sr, of the m y 6e Cy 4n ay o` tltlr y Or
cm o4 z!       cst: y G sd.     tu su ty+',Ta s     s a( 6x m s, rr,, f suct

sSgnaRure 3 se l r!; en so us.ed 58+2 S a e tl same tt artd e eCc i s ugh

AI Y1ATFt'ESa k'di f RE{), ( x D 6? EF' 11i Y, 3R,-. TY 7L"7Y t3d5 bmES#.       1A k      .[' p i.*5 pt°4geY C f, cat7d d3      ¢`#.' S+_'s3 tA i?C

mtE4xetPtttis 3rd
y   

Ncavarntset 2422

w's,"j, 01. D REPU6llC SUR TY CO Ai Y

jK s+ n', ii

Y

5ElAL; i
r., nra seasa

w,

d

S iATE C NflSC t+I.'ilti. Gf319'ViY C}= 1` Al)§CE..r"xl+Z-" afi

C+ ttas             d y czf No' rersa r       ,  2fl22  , Came Isetare mC.    Al ti'. i3Y.._

a,nd Karen 9 Si Af sae c ta me krsotim ta be e k s ami flTficera oi the t D} t}C SURE7Y COAAPANf

v txs e cec leci ove i rrrra-rtt, ani t#5ey eact mr tt; a44e. ged it e excatbr,n o! 1Sse sarase, asrd lse+ng try ma dcd,+sWcm, d+d se veraly deyacs e and say that
t#;_ry are tl'+e sa: d oi5ce s o# the cdrynratiori afnres'..t'ai, ar d ifaat Y e s ai atfia ed! o Ptee a ove i sUts- eent is ihe se af ihe carg: or; itim, asxf Ihai satl ccx. wralr seal
nna t err s+tms+.sc suar a i x ae, dy a'' ed a+ ta ttse taad' t y d e      or» hoani ar s or    

e

y

o..

P
t r i+ te  _.._....._..._

iAy C.aNM1ttS+ On 5.   $'-:
Ss. t ' Y-.---

CERTIF' K'.ATE d  '     df Wlo'' f t rS e! f YS c sAt}

t, 4tae a tlx CJ4, D       Si3 tY tXNF.QAt+tY, a V Ast' rsirt aoepo tatian. CERitF1' Riia! ea lcstt+go'vK zrsd atiafiesi
F' cx r d Atiorney temains in fiR} fex ai7d ha:s ru4 bee» m r.d; a i bvtiscamoto, t e Rt3t ti9ioro of Gte bostti ot dxedms aEt fm9h dn Cre Pov+ W

Attcmey, are t r Ei t c. N....`.,
w

e r+';

pa+w" t+tY 4
74 72d2 4 ' Ly;;   

aaad sa st at& ae Cky at& a, Ndf    7 s      
y 

Febnsa y 2s323

or sc z t} os

4`--,..+''"     

s. z,

Gommeraa Surety Sond 81ns

454



DocuSign Envelope ID: 3DOC3934- AA3A-4014- 977G9F9D47C7838C

CALIFC3RNIA A. L PURPC3SE ACKN JWLEDGMENT

A notary public or other afFicer ct mpleting this certi cate verifi s only the identity of the individual vho

signed tl e docUment, to tivhich this cer ificate is atta hed, and nat the truthfufness, accuracy, ar validi[ y of
that document

STATE OF GAIiFORNIA

CtJUNTY i F 0 LA

C n E f— 13  2 23 beforQ me, M M! t i     .., P PAt...      Natary
pofe insen rVome and Title of the of ter

Putalic, personallya peared   ' i L  -{ ARt" tA  ,. DAU+C

Namc{ s) a' Sigr er sj-

uvho proved to me on the basis af satisfactory evidence to be ihe person# s whase name4s} is/ afe

subscrihed to the withfi instrument and ackno, vledged to me tl at he/ shs, r.t ey executed the same in
his/ her7'tthe3r authorized capacEty( es), and khat by his/ h' eir signaturefs) on the instrument the

person{ x}, or the entity upon behalf af which the person{ sr acted, executed the instr ment.

i certify untler PENA TY O PERlURY under the laws of the State of CaHfornia Lhat the foregaing paragraph
is true anc3 correct,

WiTNESS my hand and oF# icial seal.    

l        

q+{NpT
COFAM* 233i309

v ns tx• 

f  ,     

SOUWfl COUN7Y      ''

Cwrnvt.    SEP 3. ZQ24

Signature:_  l'  

W______ OP IONAL--.--...____       -----------__--___._.___.____.._

Though this settion is optional, compieting this infarmotion con deter alterotian of the document or fraudul nt
otfachment of this form to an unintended dDcument.

Description af Attached Document

7iiis or Type of Document;   Document Da#e:

Number of Pages;      Signer{ s) Other Than Named Above;

Capacity ies} Claimed by Signer{ sj
Signers Name:     Signers Name:

r

0 Carporate{ ificer— iitRe( s}   Corpor icer— Title{ s)

C Partner- C l.imited Genera ner- CI Limi[ ed Cl General
C7 Individual      Attorne  '  Fact C1 Individual      Attorney in Fact
0 Trustee Gu   an or Conservator C] Trustee OGuardian ar Conservatar

Other; Other:

Signer is Representing:  Signer is Representing:

455



DocuSign Envalape ID: 3DOC3934- AA3A- 4014- 877G9F9D47C783BC

t{) d}{

ANIhlAL 5i1£ i.TER CtllVCR" i'E- CiP GG 23-0G
CilPCCAA UtiFUR14 AL Bl.tf SOL1C[' I'AT1fJN Bli} PRt) POSAL FORMS

NC} NC{ lLLUSION A 1 AVIT

S'TATE OF

ss,

COUNTY OF

A IJ  U tt Q , being first duly svvorn, de oses and says that he or she is

CO 2C.  + n., e'    of 0(' Cq'  ', otl Gce.'CQ,. the party making the foregoing bid
that the id is not niade in the interest of or on behalf of an u   'y ndisclosed person, partnership,
company, association, organizat on, or cor} Sc ratic n; that the bid is genuine and not collusive or

s aan, th i t e bidder as noi directly ar indirecily induced r r strliciied auy other bidder io put in a
false or sham bid, and has nat dire tly or indirectly colluded, conspired, connived, ar agreed wich
any bidder or anyane etse to pnt in a sham bid, ar that anyone shall r frain from bidding; that the
bidder has nc t in any manner, dire t.ly or ind'arecti}, sou t by ageemeni, communication, or

conference with anyone to fix the bi price of the bidder or a y ather bidder, or of that of any other
bidder, or to secure any advantage againsk the public body awarding the contract af anyone
in#eresfed in the proposed c ntract; that all statert ents cc€ atain d in ihe bid are true; and, furiher,
that the bidder has not, directly or indirectty, s b nitted his ar her bisi gr ce or any breakdown
thereflf, or the c ntents thereof, ar divulged inf'armatic n c r daia relarive thereto, ar paid, and will
not pay, any fee to any corporation.,parfiership, company assc ciaied, organizaiion, bid depository,
or to any membcr or agent thereof t effectuate a c ive or sham bid.

s,!

f`_..-----.'_
S nature of Presadent, Secretary,
Manager, Prc ject Manager or Represencative

The County of C3+ O
A notary pub'•ic or oiher officer completing thls

1 .„ certffcata verlhe5 onSy the identlry af the

til" atE O p,.1\ C 1( 6ndividual who si9ned the document to whith this
cer; ifica; e Is a sached, and not the truth(Utness.

accuracy, or validlty ot ihat dotument,

Subscribed and sworn to{ or affim ted) before rne

on khis_ day of  ' 2 CUA(" t , 20 Z, by

l' f 7 N L i!  /! I C IS 1U- U P proved to
me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the Cat t. i ss3i30      }
person(, s} v rho a pear d befare me. r+nne uc* a+uwnre++ 

sow o couarr     }

r, rwY- v, r o mrn.

www'rwtir-v

Signature

n1, u5T  l P P t_       
go oo- s

456



DocuSign Envelope ID: 3DOC3934- AA3A-4014977G9F9D47C7838C

SECTION 003#){}

x.xu i. sx. u carrc- c cc a- es

Gt7PCCAA INFORMAL BCD SOLICITA170N BtD PROPOSAL FOitR S

PUBLIC CC9NT C'I' CODE ECTi{} N t3162 QUESTIONNAIRE

In accordance with Fhabli Cc ntisct Cotle Secti an 1 1G2, the Bidder shall compiete, under penalty
af PerjurY, the folIt wing questic unaire:

Has the Bidder, any o#"'icer of the Bidder, or a y employee of the Bidder, who has
a proprietary interest in the Bidder, ever been disqualified, nemoved, or atharwise

prevented from bidding on, or compieting a fatlerat, state, or local government
prtject because of a violatio n of iaw ar a safety reg, la#.ifln?

Yes NQ   

If ihe answer is yes, cxpEain the circumsiances i ths following space.

PUBLIC Ct3Ni' RACT SECTION 1t 232 STATEMENT

In accordance with Public Contra t Code 5ectios 1 232, the Contractor hereby states under
pcnalty of perjury, ihat no rnore than o e final unappealab e finding of contempt af court by a
federal courE has beea issued against the Cc ntracior within thc immediately preceding two year
pQriad because of khe Contractor' s failure to comply with an order of a federal court whicb orders
the Contractor to compiy with an order of the National Labar Rclations Board_

NO' fE: Tt s above Statemeut and Questionnaire are part vf the Pcv}? osal.  Signing this
propasal ou the signahue portion thereof shal[ also constitute signature af this
Sraitemenc and Questsannaire.

Bidders are caut oneci tha# making a false certificarion may subject the certifier to
crirninal prc secuEion.

END OF SECTIO+Ij

d0340- 9

457



458



ITEM 4. 17

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT
APRIL 10, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM: RATIFICATION OF THE CITY MANAGER' S

SIGNATURE AND APPROVE OPTION AND

TOWER LEASE AGREEMENT WITH VERIZON

WIRELESS FOR USE OF CITY OWNED TOWER

RECOMMENDATION:       Adopt Resolution Ratifying City Manager' s

Signature and Approving Option and Tower
Lease Agreement With Verizon Wireless for

Use of City Tower.

SUMMARY:

River Islands Development,  LLC  ( RID")  completed construction of a large utility

facility that includes water tanks, a water booster pump station, a significant sewer
pump station, and a SCADA tower. RID decided to construct a SCADA tower that was
taller than required so that the tower could include cell antennae to improve cell
service in the River Islands Project and create a revenue stream from the lease

payments by telecom companies  (" rent").    RID transferred the land within the

Employment Center to River Islands Employment Center,  LLC ( RI- EC). Therefore,

that is the entity with whom the City will enter into the Agreement for Operations of
a Communications Tower in River Islands (` Agreement").

Verizon Wireless has requested the City to enter into an Option and Tower Lease
Agreement ( Lease Agreement") to lease space on the City cell tower site and on the
cell tower itself.  The Lease Agreement has been negotiated with Verizon Wireless,

who will occupy the second to the top location on the cell tower ( the top location is
reserved for the City facilities) and will provide monthly rent for $ 2, 250 to the City,
to reimburse RID based on the approved Agreement.

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a resolution to ratify the City Manager' s
signature and approve Option and Tower Lease Agreement with Verizon Wireless.

BACKGROUND:

Various entitlements require RID as the developer for the River Islands Project to

construct certain public facilities and infrastructure that will be of benefit to their
property. RID completed the construction of a large utility facility that includes water
tanks, a water booster pump station, a significant sewer pump station, and a SCADA
tower. RID developed a communications tower site (' Site") within the Employment

Center District of the River Islands at Lathrop project and erected a communications
tower (' Tower") to serve national cellular communication providers  ( Providers"),

including the City of Lathrop (" City"), River Islands, related public agencies, Lathrop
Police Department and Lathrop- Manteca Fire District.

459



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

APRIL 10, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

RATIFICATION OF THE CITY MANAGER' S SIGNATURE AND APPROVE OPTION
AND TOWER LEASE AGREEMENT WITH VERIZON WIRELESS FOR USE OF CITY
OWNED TOWER

RID transferred the land within the Employment Center to River Islands Employment

Center, LLC ( RI- EC).

The Site provides space for the equipment to serve four (4) separate cell companies,
and the tower itself includes an area for four ( 4) cell antennae.   Now that the City
owns the Site and Tower, the City can enter into lease agreements with Providers.

Verizon Wireless has requested the City of Lathrop enter into an Option and Tower
Lease Agreement (" Lease Agreement") to lease space on the Site and the Tower. The

Lease Agreement has been negotiated with Verizon Wireless, who will occupy the

second to the top location on the cell tower ( the top location is reserved for the City
facilities)  and will provide monthly rent for  $ 2, 250 to the City,  to be used for

reimbursement with RI- EC based on the approved Agreement.   Under the Lease

Agreement,  rent paid by Verizon will increase by three  ( 3)  percent each year,

beginning in year two ( 2). The initial term of the lease will be ten ( 10) years and will
automatically renew for four ( 4) additional five ( 5) year terms.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

By placing their cell antennae on the cell tower, Verizon will enable the increase and
improvement of wireless and cellular mobile communications capacities, for not only
businesses and residents within the area but also for essential emergency response,

community safety, commerce, recreation, and tourists/ commuters/ travelers that rely
on consistent and reliable wireless communication all along the Interstate 5 corridor.
Police vehicles in the River Island area experience network service issues while the

officers are attempting to utilize the equipment within the vehicles such as computers
and radios. This cell tower would improve the network service in this area and rectify

this issue, allowing officers to work more efficiently and efFectively. Additionally, the
City will be paid monthly rent during the time the tower is used.  Staff recommends

that the City Council adopt a resolution to ratify the City Manager' s signature and
approve Option and Tower Lease Agreement with Verizon Wireless.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Lease payments ($ 27, 000) received will be shared between the City and River Islands
Employment Center, LLC ( RI- EC), 75% until fully reimbursed and 25% to the City in
accordance with the Agreement for Operations of a Communications Tower in River

Islands. Verizon Wireless will make payment to The City and the City will pay 75% of

the payment to RI- EC. The total amount that will be reimbursed in a single year will
be  $ 20, 050 to RI- EC.  The amount due to complete reimbursement fully is

246, 798. 40. The City will recognize the revenue of $ 6, 750 in Fiscal Year budget

2022- 23.  Lease payments will fully fund maintenance of the site and the tower
structure and will repay River Islands for increasing the tower height. The City' s share
of the lease payments in excess of the maintenance costs will be available to the City
for any use.

460



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

APRIL 10, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

RATIFICATION OF THE CITY MANAGER' S SIGNATURE AND APPROVE OPTION

AND TOWER LEASE AGREEMENT WITH VERIZON WIRELESS FOR USE OF CITY
OWNED TOWER

Staff requests the following budget amendment for FY 2022- 2023:

Increase Revenue

Communications

1010- 15- 10- 371- 90- 01 6, 750

ATTACH M ENTS:

A.  Resolution to Ratify City Mangers signature and approve Option and Tower
Lease Agreement with New Verizon Wireless for Use of City Tower and
Related Budget Amendment

B.  Option and Tower Lease Agreement with Verizon Wireless

461



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 4

APRIL 10, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

RATIFICATION OF THE CITY MANAGER' S SIGNATURE AND APPROVE OPTION

AND TOWER LEASE AGREEMENT WITH VERIZON WIRELESS FOR USE OF CITY

OWNED TOWER

APPROVALS:

tif '   ` d 

nandes Date

Infor ation Systems Director

o

C i J Date

Finance Di ctor

I—'  --   y I / Zo

Michael King Date

Assistant Ci y Manager

y• . a.i... .   .....

Y:

f -..;-,,:.   5  

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

f•l• Z3
en J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

462



RESOLUTION NO. 23-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP RATIFYING

CITY MANGER' S SIGNATURE AND APPROVING AN OPTION AND TOWER

LEASE AGREEMENT WITH VERIZON WIRELESS FOR USE OF CITY TOWER.

WHEREAS,  River Islands Development,  LLC,  (" RID") the developer for the

River Islands Project,  is required under various entitlements to construct certain

public facilities and infrastructure that will be of benefit to their property; and

WHEREAS, RID is completing construction of a large utility facility that
includes water tanks, a water booster pump station, a significant sewer pump station,
and a SCADA tower; and

WHEREAS,  RID has developed a communications tower site ( Site") within

the Employment Center District of the River Islands at Lathrop project to erect a
communications tower (" Tower") to serve national cellular communication providers

Providers"),  including City,  River Islands,  related public agencies and possibly
Lathrop- Manteca Fire District; and

WHEREAS,  RID has transferred the land within the Employment Center to
River Islands Employment Center, LLC ( RI- EC), and so that is the entity with whom
the City will enter into the Agreement for Construction and Operations of a
Communications Tower in River Islands ( Agreement"); and

WHEREAS, it has been determined that the additional height of the Tower can

only be allowed if the City of Lathrop (" City") owns the facility, and so RI- EC offered
to dedicate the Site and the Tower to the City; and

WHEREAS, Verizon Wireless has requested the City of Lathrop enter into an
Option and Tower Lease Agreement (" Lease Agreement") in order to lease space on

the cell tower site and the cell tower; and

WHEREAS, Verizon Wireless will occupy the second to the top ( ocation on the
cell tower ( the top location is reserved for the City facilities) and will provide monthly
rent in the amount of$ 2, 250 to the City, to be shared with RID based on the approved
Agreement; and

WHEREAS,  accordance with the Lease Agreement,  rent paid by Verizon
Wireless will increase by 3 percent each year beginning in year two ( 2; and

WHEREAS,  the initial term of the lease will be ten  ( 10)  years,  and will

automatically renew for four ( 4) additional five ( 5) year terms; and

WHEREAS, Lease payments ($ 27, 000) received will be shared between the

City and River Islands Employment Center, LLC ( RI- EC), 75% until fully reimbursed

463



and 25%  to the City in accordance with the Agreement for Construction and
Operations of a Communications Tower in River Islands; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop does hereby ratify City Manager' s signature and approve Option and Tower
Lease Agreement with Verizon Wireless for the use of City- owned tower.

464



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 10t'' day of April 2023,
by the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

465



Market Northem Califomia

Cell Site Number: 558247

Search Ring Name: Ncw Lathrop
Cell Site Name• Cimis Court

OPTION AND TOWER LEASE AGREEMENT

THIS OPTION AND TOWER LEASE AGREEMENT(" Agreement"), dated as of the latter of the

signature dates below( the" Effective Date"), is entered into by the City of Lathrop, a California municipal
corporation, having a mailing address of 390 Towne Centre Drive, Lathrop, CA 95330(" Landlord"), and

Sacramento- Valley Limited Partnership, a California limited partnership d/ b/ a Verizon Wireless, having a
mailing address of One Verizon Way, Mail Stop 4AW100, Basking Ridge, New Jersey 07920, Attention:
Network Real Estate(" Tenant").

BACKGROUND

Landlord owns that certain plot, parce) or tract of land, as described on Exhibit 1, improved with a
tower structure( the" Tower"), together with all rights and privileges arising in connection therewith, located
in the City of Lathrop, County of San Joayuin, State of California ( collectively, the " Property").  Tenant

desires to use a portion of the Property in connection with its federally licensed communications business.
Landlord desires to grant to Tenant the right to use a portion of the Property in accordance with this
Agreement.

The parties agree as follows:

1.       OPTION TO LEASE.

a)      Landlord grants to Tenant an option ( the " Option") to lease a portion of the Property
consisting of:

i)      approximately three hundred ( 300) square feet of ground space including the air
space above such ground space, as described on attached Exhibit 1, for the placement of Tenant' s
Communication Facility;

ii)      space for any structural steel or other improvements to support Tenant' s eyuipment
collectively, the space referenced in( i) and( ii) is the" Equipment Space");

iii)     the portion ofthe Tower selected by Tenant and dedicated for Tenant' s exclusive use
with a rad center of ninety feet ( 90') above ground ] evel as generally depicted on Exhibit 1 ( the " Tenant
RAD Center"), and consisting of an envelope of five ( 5) contiguous vertical feet above the Tenant RAD
Center and five ( 5) contiguous vertical feet below the Tenant RAll Center ( for an aggregate of ten ( 10)
contiguous vertical feet of space)( collectively, the" Antenna Space Envelope"). Tenant shall have the right

to locate, operate or maintain its communication equipment and improvements within the Antenna Space

Envelope. The Antenna Space Envelope includes any area on a horizontal plane, extending in all directions
from the Tower, that is perpendicular to such ten foot( 10') vertical envelope; and

iv)     those certain areas where Tenant' s conduits, wires, cables, cable trays and other

necessary connections( and the cables, wires, and other necessary connections and improvements of such third
parties related to Tenant, such as Tenant' s utility providers) are located between the Equipment Space and the
Antenna Space Envelope, and between the Equipment Space and the electric power, telephone, fiber and fuel
sources for the Property ( hereinafter collectively referred to as the " Connection Space").  Landlord agrees

that Tenant shall have the right to install connections between TenanYs equipment in the Equipment Space

and Antenna Space Envelope; and between Tenant' s equipment in the Equipment Space and the electric

power, telephone, and fuel sources for the Property, and any other improvements. Landlord further agrees
that Tenant shall have the right to install, replace and maintain utility lines, wires, poles, cables, conduits,
pipes and other necessary connections over or along any right-of-way extending from the aforementioned

67288092v l Verizon Site( Cirrus Court) Option and Tower Lease Agreement

466



public right- of-way to the Premises. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Tenant, to the extent feasible, shall locate
all lines, wires, conduits and cables on existing poles extending from the roadway into Landlord' s Property.
The Equipment Space, Antenna Space, and Connection Space, are hereinafter collectively referred to as the
Premises."

b)      During the Option Term, and during the Term of this Agreement, Tenant and its agents,
engineers, surveyors and other representatives will have the right to enter upon the Property to inspect,
examine, conduct soil borings, drainage testing, material sampling, radio frequency testing and other
geological or engineering tests or studies of the Property( collectively, the " Tests"), to apply for and obtain
licenses, permits, approvals, or other relief required of or deemed necessary or appropriate at Tenant' s sole
discretion for its use of the Premises and include, without limitation, applications for zoning variances, zoning
ordinances, amendments, special use permits, and construction permits ( collectively, the " Government
Approvals"), initiate the ordering and/ or scheduling of necessary utilities, and otherwise to do those things
on or off the Property that, in the opinion of Tenant, are necessary in Tenant' s sole discretion to determine
the physical condition of the Property, the environmental history of the Property, Landlord' s title to the
Property and the feasibility or suita.bility of the Property for Tenant' s Permitted Use, all at Tenant' s expense.
Tenant will not be liable to Landlord or any third party on account of any pre-existing defect or condition on
or with respect to the Pmperty, whether or not such defect or condition is disc( osed by Tenant' s inspection.
Tenant will restore the Property to its condition as it existed at the commencement of the Option Term,
reasonable wear and tear and loss by casualty or other causes beyond TenanYs control excepted.

c)      In consideration of Landlord granting Tenant the Option, Tenant agrees to pay Landlord the
sum of Five Hundred and No/ 1o0 Dollars ($ 500. 00) within thirty( 30) business days of the Effective Date.
The Option will be for an initial term of one( l) year commencing on the Effective Date( the" Initial Option
Term") and may be renewed by Tenant for an additional one( 1) year( the" Renewal Option Term") upon

notification to Landlord and the payment of an additional Five Hundred and No/ 100 Dollars($ 500. 00) prior
to the expiration date of the Initial Option Term. The Initial Option Term and any Renewal Option Term are
collectively referred to as the" Option Term."

d)      The Option may only be sold, assigned or transferred at any time by Tenant to an Affiliate of
Tenant.  Otherwise, the Option may not be sold, assigned or transferred without the written consent of
Landlord, such consent not to be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed. From and after the date the
Option has been sold, assigned or transferred by Tenant to an Affiliate or a third party agreeing to be subject
to the terms hereof, Tenant shall immediately be released from any and all liability under this Agreement,
including the payment of any rental or other sums due, without any further action.

e)      During the Option Term, Tenant may exercise the Option by notifying Landlord in writing.
IfTenant exercises the Option, then Landlord leases the Premises to Tenant subject to the terms and conditions

of this Agreement. If Tenant does not exercise the Option during the Option Term or any extension thereof,
this Agreement will terminate and the parties will have no further liability to each other.

If during the Option Term, or during the Term of this Agreement, Landlord decides to
subdivide, sell, or change the status of the zoning of the Premises, Property or any of Landlord' s contiguous,
adjoining or surrounding property ( the " Surrounding Property", which includes without limitation the

remainder of the Tower) or in the event of foreclosure, Landlord shall immediately notify Tenant in writing.
Landlord agrees that during the Option Term, or during the Term of this Agreement if the Option is exercised,
Landlord shall not initiate or consent to any change in the zoning of the Premises, Properiy or Surrounding
Property or impose or consent to any other use or restriction that would prevent or limit Tenant from using
the Premises for the Permitted Use. Any and all terms and conditions of this Agreement that by their sense
and context are intended to be applicable during the Option Term shall be so applicable.

2

Verizon Site( New Lathmp) Option and Tower Lease Ageement

467



2.       PERMITTED USE.   Tenant may use the Premises for the transmission and reception of
communications signals and the installation, construction, maintenance, operation, repair, replacement and

upgrade of its communications fixtures and related equipment, cables, accessories and improvements, which

may include a suitable support structure, associated antennas, I beams, equipment shelters or cabinets and
fencing and any other items necessary to the successful and secure use of the Premises ( collectively, the
Communication Facility"), as well as the right to test, survey and review title on the Property; Tenant

further has the right, but not the obligation, to add, modify and/ or replace equipment in order to be in
compliance with any current or future federal, state or local mandated application, including, but not limited
to, emergency 911 communication services, at no additional cost to Tenant or Landlord ( collectively, the

Permitted Use"). Landlord and Tenant agree that any portion of the Communication Facility that may be
conceptually described on Exhibit 1 will not be deemed to limit Tenant's Permitted Use. IfExhibit 1 includes
drawings of the initial installation of the Communication Facility, Landlord' s execution of this Agreement
will signify Landlord' s approval of Exhibit i. Landlord grants Tenant, its subtenants, licensees and
sublicensees, the right to use such portions of Landlord' s Surrounding Property as may reasonably be required
during construction and installation of the Communication Facility. Tenant has the right to install and operate
transmission cables from the equipment shelter or cabinet to the antennas, electric lines from the main feed to

the equipment shelter or cabinet and communication lines from the Property' s main entry point to the
equipment shelter or cabinet, and to make other improvements, alterations, upgrades or additions appropriate

for Tenant' s Permitted Use, including the right to construct a fence around the Premises, install warning signs
to make individuals aware of risks, install protective barriers, install any other control measures reasonably
reyuired by TenanYs safety procedures or applicable] aw, and undertake any other appropriate means to secure
the Premises at Tenant' s expense. Tenant has the right to install, modify, supplement, replace, upgrade,
expand the eyuipment, increase the number of antennas or relocate the Communication Facility within the
Premises at any time during the Term of this Agreement. Tenant will be allowed to make such alterations to
the Property in order to ensure that Tenant' s Communication Facility complies with all applicable federal,
state or local laws, rules or regulations. In the event Tenant desires to modify or upgrade the Communication
Facility, in a manner that requires an additional portion of the Property( the" Additional Prem ises") for such

modification or upgrade, Landlord shall comply with all Federal and State laws and agrees to negotiate a
reasonable amended compensation structure to this Agreement in a timely manner, and will not unreasonably
withhold approval.

3.       TERM.

a)      The initial lease term will be ten ( 10) years(" Initial Term"), commencing on the first day
of the month following Tenant' s exercise of the Option ( the " Term Commencement Date"). The Initial

Term will terminate on the tenth( 10') anniversary of the Term Commencement Date.
b)      This Agreement will automatically renew for four( 4) additionai five( 5) year term( s)( each

additional five( 5) year term shall be defined as an" Extension Term"), upon the same terms and conditions

unless Tenant notifies Landlord in writing of TenanYs intention not to renew this Agreement at least sixty
60) days prior to the expiration of the Initial Term or then- existing Extension Term.

c)      Unless( i) Landlord or Tenant notifies the other in writing of its intention to terminate this
Agreement at least six( 6) months prior to the expiration of the final Extension Term, or( ii) the Agreement is
terminated as otherwisc permitted by this Agreement prior to the end of the final Extension Term, then upon
the expiration of the final Extension Term this Agreement shall continue in force upon the same covenants,
terms and conditions for a further term of one( 1) year, and for annual terms thereafter(" Annual Term") until

terminated by either party by giving to the other written notice of its intention to so terminate at least six( 6)

months prior to the end of any such Annual Term. Monthly rental during such Annual Terms shall be equal
to the Rent paid for the last month of the final Extension Term.

d)      The Initial Term, any Extension Terms and any Annual Terms are collectively referred to as
the" Term".

3

Verizon Site( New Lathrop) Option and Tower Lease Agreement

468



4.       RENT.

a)      Commencing on the Term Commencement Date( which is also referred to herein as the" Rent
Commencement Date"), Tenant will pay Landlord on or before the fifth( 5`) day of each calendar month in
advance Two Thousand Two Hundred fifty and No/ 100 Dollars($ 2, 250. 00)( the " Rent"), at the address set

forth above. In any partiat month occurring after the Rent Commencement Date, Rent will be prorated. The
initial Rent payment will be forwarded by Tenant to Landlord within sixty ( 60) days after the Rent
Commencement Date.

b)      In year two ( 2) of the Initial Term, and each year thereafter, including throughout any
Extension Terms exercised, the monthly Rent will increase by Three Percent( 3. 0%) over the Rent paid during
the previous year.

c)      All charges payable under this Agreement such as utilities and taxes shall be billed by
Landlord within one ( 1) year from the end of the calendar year in which the charges were incurred; any
charges beyond such period shall not be billed by Landlord, and shall not be payable by Tenant. The foregoing
shall not apply to monthly Rent which is due and payable without a requirement that it be billed by Landlord.
The provisions of this subsection shall survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement.

5.       APPROVALS.

a)      Landlord agrees that Tenant' s ability to use the Premises is contingent upon the suitability of
the Premises and Property far Tenant' s Permitted Use and Tenant' s ability to obtain and maintain all
Government Approvals. Landlord authorizes Tenant to prepare, execute and file all required applications to
obtain Government Approvals for Tenant' s Permitted Use under this Agreement and agrees to reasonably
assist Tenant with such applications and with obtaining and maintaining the Government Approvals.

b)      Tenant has the right to obtain a title report or commitment for a leasehold title policy from a
title insurance company of its choice and to have the Property surveyed by a surveyor of its choice.

c)      Tenant may also perform and obtain, at Tenant' s sole cost and expense, soil borings,
percolation tests, engineering procedures, environmental investigation or other tests or reports on, over, and
under the Property, necessary to determine if TenanYs use of the Premises will be compatible with Tenant' s
engineering specifications, system, design, operations or Government Approvals.

6.       TERMINATION.  This Agreement may be terminated, without penalty or further liability, as
follows:

a)      by either party on thirty( 30) days prior written notice, if the other party remains in default
under Section 15 of this Agreement after the applicable cure periods;

b)      by Tenant upon written notice to Landlord, if Te ant is unable to obtain, or maintain, any
required approval( s) or the issuance of a license or permit by any agency, board, court or other governmental
authority necessary for the construction or operation of the Communication Facility as now or hereafter
intended by Tenant;

c)      by Tenant, upon written notice to Landlord, if Tenant determines, in its sole discretion, due

to the title report results or survey results, that the condition of the Premises is unsatisfactory for its intended
uses;

d)      by Tenant upon written notice to Landlord for any reason or no reason, at any time prior to
commencement of construction by Tenant; or

e)      by Tenant upon sixty( 60) days' prior written notice to Landlord for any reason or no reason,
so long as Tenant pays Landlord a termination fee equal to three( 3) months' Rent, at the then- current rate,
provided, however, that no such termination fee will be payable on account of the termination of this
Agreement by Tenant under any termination provision contained in any other Section of this Agreement
including the following: 6( a) Termination, 6( b) Termination, 6( c) Termination, 6( d) Termination, 11( d)
Environmental, 18 Condemnation or 19 Casualty.

4

Verizon Site( New Lathrop) Option and Tower Lease Agrecment

469



7.       INSURANCE.

a)      During the Term, Tenant will carry, at its own cost and expense, the following insurance: ( i)

workers' compensation insurance as required by law; and ( ii) commercial general liability( CGL) insurance
with respect to its activities on the Property, such insurance to afford protection of up to Three Million Dollars

3, 000, 000) per occurrence and Six Million Dollars ($ 6, 000, 000) general aggregate, based on Insurance
Services Office( ISO) Form or a substitute form providing substantially equivalent coverage. Tenant' s CGL
insurance shall contain a provision including Landlord as an additional insured as their interests may appear
under this Agreement. Such additional insured coverage:

i)      shall be limited to bodily injury, property damage or personal and advertising injury
caused, in whole or in part, by Tenant, its employees, agents or independent contractors;

ii)     shall not extend to claims for punitive or exemplary damages arising out of the acts
or omissions of Landlord, its employees, agents or independent contractors or where such coverage is

prohibited by law or to claims arising out of the gross negligence of Landlord, its employees, agents or
independent contractors; and

iii)     shall not exceed Tenant' s indemnification obligation under this Agreement, if any.
b)      Notwithstanding the foregoing, Tenant shall have the right to self-insure the coverages

required in subsection( a). In the event Tenant elects to self-insure its obligation to include Landlord as an

additional insured, the following provisions shall apply( in addition to those set forth in subsection( a)):
i)      Landlord shall promptly and no later than thirty( 30) days after notice thereof provide

Tenant with written notice of any claim, demand, lawsuit, or the like for which it seeks coverage pursuant to
this Section and provide Tenant with copies of any demands, notices, summonses, or legal papers received in
connection with such claim, demand, lawsuit, or the like;

ii)     Landlord shall not settle any such claim, demand, lawsuit, or the like without the
prior written consent of Tenant; and

iii)     Landlord shall fully cooperate with Tenant in the defense of the claim, demand,
lawsuit, or the like.

8.       INTERFERENCE.

a)      Prior to or concunent with the execution of this Agreement, Landlord has provided or will
provide Tenant with a copy of the pre- existing Lease to New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC, a Delaware limited
liability company (" Cingular Lease") and a list of radio frequency user( s) and frequencies used on the
Property as of the Effective Date.  Tenant warrants that its use of the Premises will not interfere with the

tenant' s currently permitted use under the Cingular Lease or the existing radio frequency uses on the Property,
as long as the tenant under the Cingular Lease and those existing radio frequency user( s) operate and continue
to operate within their respective frequencies and in accordance with all applicable laws and regulations.

b)      Landlord will not grant, after the Effective Date of this Agreement, a lease, license or any
other right to any third party, if thc exercise of such grant may in any way adversely affect or interfere with
the Communication Facility, the operations of Tenant or the rights ofTenant under this Agreement. Landlord
will notify Tenant in writing prior to granting any third party the right to install and operate communications
equipment on the Property.

c)      Landlord will not, nor will Landlord permit its employees, tenants, licensees, invitees, agents
or independent contractors to interfere in any way with the Communication Facility, the operations of Tenant
or the rights of Tenant under this Agreement. Landlord will cause such interference to cease within two( 2)

business days after receipt of notice of interference from Tenant. ln the event any such interference does not
cease within the aforementioned cure period, Landlord shall cease all operations which are suspected of
causing interference ( except for intermittent testing to determine the cause of such interference) until the
interference has been corrected.

d)      For the purposes of this Agreement," interference" may include, but is not limited to, any use
on the Property or Sunounding Property that causes electronic or physical obstruction with, or degradation
of, the communications signals from the Communication Facility.

5

Verizon Site( New Lathrop) Option and Tower Lease Agreement

470



9.       INDEMNIFICATION.

a)      Tenant agrees to indemnify, defend and hold Landlord harmless from and against any and all
injury, loss, damage or liability ( or any claims in respect of the foregoing), costs or expenses ( including
reasonable attorneys' fees and court costs) arising directly from the installation, use, maintenance, repair or
removal of the Communication Facility or Tenant's breach of any provision of this Agreement, except to the
extent attributable to the negligent or intentional act or omission of Landlord, its employees, agents or
independent contractors.

b)      Landlord agrees to indemnify, defend and hold Tenant harmless from and against any and all
injury, loss, damage or liability ( or any claims in respect of the foregoing), costs or expenses ( including
reasonable attorneys' fees and court costs) arising directly from the actions or failure to act of Landlord, its
employees, agents or independent contractors, or Landlord' s breach of any provision of this Agreement,
except to the extent attributable to the negligent or intentional act or omission of Tenant, its employees, agents

or independent contractors.

c)      The indemnified party:( i) shall promptly provide the indemnifying pariy with written notice
of any claim, demand, lawsuit, or the like for which it seeks indemnification pursuant to this Section and
provide the indemnifying party with copies of any demands, notices, summonses, or legal papers received in
connection with such claim, demand, lawsuit, or the like;( ii) shall not settle any such claim, demand, lawsuit,
or the like without the prior written consent of the indemnifying pariy; and( iii) shall fully cooperate with the
indemnifying party in the defense of the claim, demand, lawsuit, or the like. A delay in notice shall not relieve
the indemnifying party of its indemnity obligation, except( 1) to the extent the indemnifying party can show
it was prejudiced by the delay; and( 2) the indemnifying party shall not be liable for any settlement or litigation
expenses incurred before the time when notice is given.

10.     WARRANTIES.

a)      Tenant and Landlord each acknowledge and represent that it is duly organized, validly
existing and in good standing and has the right, power and authority to enter into this Agreement and bind
itself hereto through the party set forth as signatory for the party below.

b)      Landlord represents, warrants and agrees that:( i) Landlord solely owns the Property as a legal
lot in fee simple, and solely owns the Tower;( ii) the Property is not and will not be encumbered by any liens,
restrictions, mortgages, covenants, conditions, easements, leases, or any other agreements of record or not of
record, which would adversely affect Tenant' s Permitted Use and enjoyment of the Premises under this
Agreement; ( iii) as long as Tenant is not in default beyond all applicable notice and cure periods, then
Landlord grants to Tenant sole, actual, quiet and peaceful use, enjoyment and possession of the Premises
without hindrance or ejection by any persons lawfully claiming under Landlord;( iv) Landlord' s execution and
performance of this Agreement will not violate any laws, ordinances, covenants or the provisions of any
mortgage, lease or other agreement binding on Landlord; and( v) if the Property is or becomes encumbered
by a deed to secure a debt, mortgage or other security interest, then Landlord wili provide promptly to Tenant
a mutually agreeable subordination, non- disturbance and attornment agreement executed by Landlord and the
holder of such security interest.

11.     ENVIRONMENTAL.

a)      Landlord represents and warrants that, except as may be identified in Exhibit 11 attached to
this Agreement,( i) the Property, as of the Effective Date of this Agreement, is free of hazardous substances,

including asbestos- containing materials and lead paint, and ( ii) the Property has never been subject to any
contamination or hazardous conditions resulting in any environmental investigation, inquiry or remediation.
Landlord and Tenant agree that each will be responsible for compliance with any and all applicable
governmental laws, rules, statutes, regulations, codes, ordinances, or principles of common law regulating or
imposing standards of liability or standards of conduct with regard to protection of the environment or worker
health and safety, as may now or at any time hereafter be in ef' ect, to the extent such apply to that party' s
activity conducted in or on the Property.

6

Verizon Site( New 1. athrop) Oplion and Tower Lease Agreement

471



b)      Landlord and Tenant agree to hold hannless and indemnify the other from, and to assume all
duties, responsibilities, and liabilities at the sole cost and expense of the indemnifying party for, payment of
penalties, sanctions, forfeitwes, losses, costs or damages, and for responding to any action, notice, claim,
order, summons, citation, directive, litigation, investigation or proceeding (" Claims") to the extent arising

from that party' s breach of its obligations or representations under Section 11( a). Lar dlord agrees to hold
harmless and indemnify Tenant from, and to assume all duties, responsibilities and liabilities at the sole cost
and expense of Landlord for, payment of penalties, sanctions, forfeitures, losses, costs or damages, and for
responding to any Claims, to the extent arising from subsurface or other contamination of the Property with
hazardous substances prior to the Effective Date of this Agreement or from such contamination caused by the
acts or omissions of Landlord during the Term. Tenant agrees to hold harmless and indemnify Landlord from,
and to assume all duties, responsibilities and liabilities at the sole cost and expense of Tenant for, payment of
penalties, sanctions, forfeitures, losses, costs or damages, and for responding to any Claims, to the extent
arising from hazardous substances brought onto the Property by Tenant.

c)      The indemnifications of this Section 11 specifically include reasonable costs, expenses and
fees incurred in connection with any investigation of Property conditions or any clean- up, remediation,
removal or restoration work required by any governmental authority. The provisions of this Section i l will
survive the expiration or termination of this Agrecment.

d)      In the event Tenant becomes aware of any hazardous substances on the Property, or any
environmental, health or safety condition or matter relating to the Property that,  in Tenant' s sole
determination, renders the condition of the Premises or Property unsuitable for Tenant' s use, or if Tenant
believes that the leasing or continued leasing of the Premises would expose Tenant to undue risks of liability
to a govemment agency or other third- party liability, then Tenant will have the right, in addition to any other
rights it may have at law or in equity, to terminate this Agreement upon written notice to Landlord.

12.     ACCESS. At all times throughout the Term of this Agreement, and at no additional charge to Tenant,

Tenant and its employees, agents, and subcontractors, will have twenty- four( 24) hour per day, seven( 7) day
per week pedestrian and vehicular access (" Access") to and over the Property, from an open and improved
public road to the Premises, for the installation, maintenance and operation of the Communication Facility
and any utilities serving the Premises.  As may be described more fully in Exhibit 1, Landlord grants to
Tenant an easement for such Access and Landlord agrees to provide to Tenant such codes, keys and other
instruments necessary for such Access at no additional cost to Tenant. Upon TenanYs request, Landlord will
execute a separate recordable easement evidencing this right. Landlord shall execute a letter granting Tenant
Access to the Property substantially in the form attached as Exhibit 12; upon TenanYs request, Landlord shall
execute additional letters during the Term. If Tenant elects to utilize an Unmanned Aircraft System(" UAS")

in connection with its installation, construction, monitoring, site audits, inspections, maintenance, repair,
modification, or alteration activities at the Property, Landlord hereby grants Tenant, or any UAS operator
acting on Tenant' s behalf, express permission to fly over the applicable Property and Premises, and consents
to the use of audio and video navigation and recording in connection with the use of the UAS. Landlord
acknowledges that in the event Tenant cannot obtain Access to the Premises, Tenant shall incur significant

damage.  lf Landlord fails to provide the Access granted by this Section 12, such failure shall be a default
under this Agreement.

13.     REMOVAL/ RESTORATION.   All portions of the Communication Facility brought onto the
Property by Tenant will be and remain Tenant' s personal property and, at Tenant' s option, may be removed
by Tenant at any time during or after the Term.   Landlord covenants and agrees that no part of the
Communication Facility constructed, erected or placed on the Premises by Tenant will become, or be
considered as being affixed to or a part of, the Property, it being the specific intention of Landlord that all
improvements of every kind and nature consiructed, erected or placed by Tenant on the Premises will be and
remain the property of Tenant and may be removed by Tenant at any time during or after the Term. Tenant
will repair any damage to the Property resulting from Tenant' s removal activities.  Any portions of the
Communication Facility that Tenant does not remove within one hundred twenty( 120) days after the later of

7

Verizon Site( New Lathrop) Option and Tower Lease Agreement

472



the end of the Term and cessation of TenanYs operations at the Premises shall be deemed abandoned and

owned by Landlord. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Tenant will not be responsible for the replacement of
any trees, shrubs or other vegetation.

14.      MAINTENANCE/ UTILITIES.

a)      Tenant will keep and maintain the Premises in good condition, reasonable wear and tear and
damage from the elements excepted.

b)      Landlord will maintain and repair the Property and access thereto, the Tower, and all areas
of the Premises where Tenant does not have exclusive control, in good and tenantable condition, subject to
reasonable wear and tear and damage from the elements. Landlord will be responsible for maintenance of

landscaping on the Property, including any landscaping installed by Tenant as a condition of this Agreement
or any required permit. Landlord shall maintain the Tower' s structural integrity at all times( which shall mean
that at no time will Landlord allow the Tower' s condition to become, or remain, overstressed under the
applicable structural standards set forth in the then- current version of the ANSI TIA- 222). Landlord shall at

all times during the Term of this Agreement reserve and have ready for Tenant' s immediate use sufficient
structural loading capacity on the Tower to support Tenant' s installation of up to thirty- five thousand squarc
inches( 35, 000 sq. in.) of Wind Load Surface Area, in the aggregate, of Communication Facilities anywhere
on the Tower( the" Allowed Wind Load Surface Area")." Wind Load Surface Area" means the Flat Plate

Equivalent Area, as defined in ANSI TIA standards, of any appurtenance( excluding all mounts, platforms,
cables and other non- operating equipment) at ninety degrees( 90°) perpendicular to wind direction, possessing
the characteristics of flat material, with associated drag factors. Landlord shall be responsible for the costs of
all structural modifications to the Tower, including the costs of related Government Approvals or other
approvals, to support the Allowed Wind Load Surface Area. In the event that Tenant has used the Allowed

Wind Load Surface Area and an installation of a portion of the Communication Facility within the Antenna
Space Envelope will require structural modifications to comply with the structural standards generally
accepted within the telecommunications industry, Tenant will pay Landlord for the portion of the structural
modifications that is necessary to support Tenant' s loading in excess of the Allowed Wind Load Surface Area.
In no event shall Tenant be responsible for Tower modification costs to support the installations of other

tenants, licensees or other users of the Tower, or for the Tower to comply with applicable Laws so long as
Tenant' s installation is within the Allowed Wind Load Surface Area.

c)      Tenant will be responsible for paying on a monthly or quarterly basis all utilities charges for
electricity, telephone service or any other utility used or consumed by Tenant on the Premises. In the event
Tenant cannot secure its own metered electrical supply, Tenant will have the right, at its own cost and expense,
to submeter from Landlord.  When submetering is required under this Agreement, Landlord will read the
meter and provide Tenant with an invoice and usage data on a monthly basis. Landlord agrees that it will not
include a markup on the utility charges. Landlord further agrees to provide the usage data and invoice on
forms provided by Tenant and to send such forms to such address and/ or agent designated by Tenant. Tenant
will remit payment within forty- five( 45) days of receipt of the usage data and required forms. As noted in
Section 4( c) above, any utility fee recovery by Landlord is limited to a twelve( 12) month period. If Tenant
submeters electricity from Landlord, Landlord agrees to give Tenant at least twenty- four( 24) hours advance
notice of any planned interruptions of said electricity. Landlord acknowledges that Tenant provides a
communication service which requires electrical power to operate and must operate twenty- four( 24) hours
per day, seven( 7) days per week. If an interruption in electrical power service occurs for an extended period
of time, in Tenant' s reasonable determination, Landlord agrees to allow Tenant the right to bring in a
temporary source of power for the duration of the interruption. Landlord will not be responsible for
interference with, interruption of or fai[ ure, beyond the reasonable control of Landlord, of such services to be
furnished or supplied by Landlord.

8

Verizon Site( New Latl rop) Option and Tower Lease ABreement

473



d)      Tenant will have the right to install utilities, at TenanYs expense, and to improve present
utilities on the Property and the Premises. Landlord hereby grants to any company providing utility or similar
services, including electric power and telecommunications, to Tenant an easement over the Property, from an
open and improved public road to the Premises, and upon the Premises, for the purpose of constructing,
operating and maintaining such lines, wires, circuits, and conduits, associated equipment cabinets and such
appurtenances thereto, as such companies may from time to time require in order to provide such services to
the Premises. Upon Tenant' s or the service company' s request, Landlord will execute a separate recordable
easement evidencing this grant, at no cost to Tenant or the service company.

15.      DEFAULT AND RIGHT TO CURE.

a)      The following will be deemed a default by Tenant and a breach of this Agreement:( i) non-
payment of Rent if such Rent remains unpaid for more than thirty( 30) days after written notice from Landlord
of such failure to pay; or( ii) Tenant' s failure to perform any other term or condition under this Agreement
within forty- five( 45) days after written notice from Landlord specifying the failure. No such failure, however,
will be deemed to exist if Tenant has commenced to cure such default within such period and provided that
such efforts are prosecuted to completion with reasonable diligence. Delay in curing a default will be excused
if due to causes beyond the reasonable control of Tenant. If Tenant remains in default beyond any applicable
cure period, Landlord will have the right to exercise any and all rights and remedies available to it under law
and equity.

b)      The following will be deemed a default by Landlord and a breach of this Agreement:  ( i)

Landlord' s failure to provide Access to the Premises as required by Section 12 of this Agreement within
twenty- four ( 24) hours after written notice of such failure; ( ii) Landlord' s failure to cure an interference

problem as required by Section 8 of this Agreement within two( 2) business days after written notice of such
failure; or( iii) Landlord' s failure to perform any term, condition, or breach of any warranty or covenant under
this Agreement within forty- five ( 45) days of written notice from Tenant specifying the failure.  No such
failure, however, will be deemed to exist if Landlord has commenced to cure the default within such period
and provided such efforts are prosecuted to completion with reasonable diligence. Delay in curing a default
will be excused if due to causes beyond the reasonable control of Landlord. If Landlord remains in default
beyond any applicable cure period, Tenant will have: ( 1) the right to cure Landlord' s default and to deduct

the costs of such cure from monies due to Landlord from Tenant, and( 2) any and all other rights available to
it under law and equity.

16.     ASSIGNMENT/ SUBLEASE. Tenant will have the right to assign this Agreement or sublease the

Premises and its rights herein, in whole or in part only to Affiliate or subsidiary of the Tenant, without
Landlord' s consent. Upon notification to Landlord of such assignment, Tenant will be relieved of all future

performance, liabilities and obligations under this Agreement to the extent of such assignment.

17.     NOTICES.  All notices, requests and demands hereunder will be given by first class certified or
registered mail, return receipt requested, or by a nationally recognized ovemight courier, postage prepaid, to
be effective when properly sent and received, refused or returned undelivered. Notices will be addressed to
the parties as follows:

If to Landlord:   City of Lathrop
Attn: City Clerk
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

With a copy to:  City of Lathrop
Attn: City Attorney
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

9

Verizon Site( Ncw Lathrop) Option and Tower Lease Agreement

474



If to Tenant:      Sacramento- Valley Limited Partnership
d/ b/ a Verizon Wireless

180 Washington Valley Road
Bedminster, New Jersey 07921
Attention: Network Real Estate

Site: New Lathrop Cirrus Court

Either party hereto may change the place for the giving of notice to it by thirty( 30) days' prior written notice
to the other as provided herein.

18.     CONDEMNATION. In the event Landlord receives notification of ar y condemnation proceedings
affecting the Property, Landlord will provide notice of the proceeding to Tenant within forty- eight( 48) hours.
If a condemning authority takes all of the Property, or a portion sufficient, in Tenant' s sole determination, to
render the Premises unsuitable for Tenant, this Agreement will terminate as of the date the title vests in the
condemning authority.   The parties will each be entitled to pursue their own separate awards in the
condemnation proceeds, which for Tenant will include, where applicable, the value of its Communication

Facility, moving expenses, prepaid Rent, and business dislocation expenses. Tenant will be entitled to
reimbursement for any prepaid Rent on a prorated basis.

19.     CASUALTY.  Landlord will provide notice to Tenant of any casualty or other harm affecting the
Property within foriy-eight( 48) hours of the casualty or other hann. Ifany part of the Communication Facility
or the Property is damaged by casualty or other harm as to render the Premises unsuitable, in Tenant' s sole
determination, then Tenant may terminate this Agreement by providing written notice to Landlord, which
termination will be effective as of the date of such casualty or other harm. Upon such termination, Tenant will
be entitled to collect all insurance proceeds payable to Tenant on account thereof and to be reimbursed for
any prepaid Rent on a prorata basis. Landlord agrees to permit Tenant to place temporary transmission and
reception facilities on the Property, but only until such time as Tenant is able to activate a replacement
transmission facility at another location; notwithstanding the termination of this Agreement, such temporary
facilities will be governed by all of the terms and conditions of this Agreement, including Rent. If Landlord
or Tenant undertakes to rebuild or restore the Premises and/ or the Communication Facility, as applicable,
Landlord agrees to permit Tenant to place temporary transmission and reception facilities on the Property at
no additio al Rent until the reconstruction of the Premises and/ or the Communication Facility is completed.
If Landlord determines not to rebuild or restore the Property, Landlord will notify Tenant of such
determinatio within thirty( 30) days after the casualty or other harm. If Landlord does not so notify Tenant,
and Tenant decides not to terminate under this Section, then Landlord will promptly rebuild or restore any
portion ofthe Property interfering with or reyuired for TenanYs Permitted Use of the Premises to substantially
the same condition as existed before the casualty or other harm. Landlord agrees that the Rent shall be abated
until the Property and/ or the Premises are rebuilt or restored, unless Tenant places temporary transmission
and reception facilities on the Property.

20.     WAIVER OF LANDLORD' S LIENS.  Landlord waives any and all lien rights it may have,
statutory or otherwise, concerning the Communication Facility or any portion thereof. The Communication
Facility shall be deemed personal property for purposes of this Agreement, regardless of whether any portion
is deemed real or personal property under applicable law; Landlord consents to Tenant' s right to remove all
or any portion of the Communication Facility from time to time in TenanYs sole discretion and without
Landlord' s consent.

21.     TAXES.

a)      Landlord shall be responsible for ( i) all taxes and assessments levied upon the lands,

improvements and other property of Landlord including any such taxes that may be calculated by a taxing
authority using any method, including the income method, ( ii) all sales, use, license, value added,

l0

Verizon Site( New Lathrop) Option and Tower Lease Agreement

475



documentary, stamp, gross receipts, registration, real estate transfer, conveyance, excise, recording, and other
similar ta ces and fees imposed in connection with this Agreement, and( iii) all sales, use, license, value added,
documentary, stamp, gross receipts, registration, real estate transfer, conveyance, excise, recording, and other
similar taxes and fees imposed in connection with a sale of the Property or assignment of Rent payments by
Landlord.  Tenant shall be responsible for ( y) any taxes and assessments attributable to and levied upon
Tenant' s leasehold improvements on the Premises if and as set forth in this Section 21 and( z) all sales, use,

license, value added, documentary, stamp, gross receipts, registration, real estate transfer, conveyance, excise,
recording, and other similar ta ces and fees imposed in connection with an assignment of this Agreement or
sublease by Tenant. Nothing herein shall require Tenant to pay any inheritance, franchise, income, payroll,
excise, privilege, rent, capital stock, stamp, documentary, estate or profit tax, or any tax of similar nature, that
is or may be imposed upon Landlord.

b)      In the event Landlord receives a notice of assessment with respect to which taxes or

assessments are imposed on TenanYs leasehold improvements on the Premises, Landlord shall provide Tenant
with copies of each such notice immediately upon receipt, but in no event later than thirty( 30) days after the
date of such notice of assessment_ If Landlord does not provide such notice or notices to Tenant in a timely
manner and Tenant' s rights with respect to such taxes are prejudiced by the delay, Landlord shall reimburse
Tenant for any increased costs directly resulting from the delay and Landlord shall be responsible for payment
of the tax or assessment set forth in the notice, and Landlord shall not have the right to reimbursement of such

amount from Tenant.  If La dlord provides a notice of assessment to Tenant within such time period and
requests reimbursement from Tenant as set forth below, then Tenant shall reimburse Landlord for the tax or

assessments identified on the notice of assessment on TenanYs leasehold improvements, which has been paid
by Landlord.  If Landlord seeks reimbursement from Tenant, Landlord shall, no later than thirty( 30) days
after Landlord' s payment of the taxes or assessments for the assessed tax year, provide Tenant with written
notice including evidence that Landlord has timely paid same, and Landlord shall provide to Tenant any other
documentation reasonabiy requested by Tenant to allow Tenant to evaluate the payment and to reimburse
Landlord.

c)      For any ta c amount for which Tenant is responsible under this Agreement, Tenant shall have

the right to contest, in good faith, the validity or the amount thereof using such administrative, appellate or
other proceedings as may be appropriate in the jurisdiction, and may defer payment of such obligations, pay
same under protest, or take such other steps as permitted by law. This right shall include the ability to institute
any legal, regulatory or informal action in the name ofLandlord, Tenant, or both, with respect to the valuation

of the Premises. Landlord shall cooperate with respect to the commencement and prosecution of any such
proceedings and will execute any documents required therefor. The expense of any such proceedings shall
be borne by Tenant and any refunds or rebates secured as a result of Tenant' s action shall belong to Tenant,
to the extent the amounts were originally paid by Tenant. In the event Tenant notifies Landlord by the due
date for assessment of TenanYs intent to contest the assessment, Landlord shall not pay the assessment
pending conclusion of the conlest, unless required by applicable law.

d)      Landlord shall not split or cause the tax parce) on which the Premises are located to be split,
bifurcated, separated or divided without the prior written consent of Tenant.

e)      Tenant shall have the right but not the obligation to pay any taxes due by Landlord hereunder
if Landlord fails to timely do so, in addition to any other rights or remedies of Tenant. In the event that Tenant
exercises its rights under this Section 21( e) due to such Landlord default, Tenant shall have the right to deduct

such ta c amounts paid from any monies due to Landlord from Tenant as provided in Section 15( b), provided
that Tenant may exercise such right without having provided to Landlord notice and the opportunity to cure
per Section 15( b).

Any tax- related notices shall be sent to Tenant in t6e manner set forth in Section 17. Promptly
after the Effective Date, Landlord shall provide TenanYs notice address to the ta.acing authority for the
authority' s use in the event the authority needs to communicate with Tenant. In the event that Tenant' s tax
address changes by notice to Landlord, Landlord shali be required to provide Tenant' s new tax address to the
taxing authority or authorities.

11

Verizon Site( New Lathrop) Option and Tower Lease Agreement

476



g)      Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Section 21, Tenant shall have no

obligation to reimburse any ta c or assessment for which the Landlord is reimbursed or rebated by a third
party.

22.      SALE OF PROPERTY.

a)      Landlord shall not be prohibited from the selling, leasing or use of any of the Property or the
Sunounding Property except as provided below.

b)      If Landlord, at any time during the Terrn of this Agreement, decides to rezone or sell,
subdivide or otherwise transfer all or any part of the Premises, or all or any part of the Property or Surrounding
Property, to a purchaser other than Tenant, Landlord shall promptly notify Tenant in writing, and such
rezoning, sale, subdivision or transfer shall be subject to this Agreement and Tenant' s rights hereunder. In
the event of a change in ownership, transfer or sale of the Property, within ten (] 0) days of such transfer,

Landlord or its successor shall send the documents listed below in this subsection( b) to Tenant. Until Tenant

receives all such documents, Tenant shall not be responsible for any failure to make payments under this
Agreement and reserves the right to hold payments due under this Agreement.

i.       Old deed to Property
ii.       New deed to Property
iii.      Bill of Sale or Transfer

iv.      Copy of current Taac Bill
v.       New IRS Form W- 9& CA FTB Form 590

vi.      Completed and Signed Tenant Payment Direction Form

vii.     Full contact information for new Landlord including phone number( s)

c)      Landlord agrees not to sell, lease or use any areas of the Property or Surrounding Property for the
installation, operation or maintenance of other wireless communications facilities if such installation,
operation or maintenance would interfere with Tenant' s Permitted Use or communications equipment as

determined by radio propagation tests performed by Tenant in its sole discretion. Landlord or Landlord' s
prospective purchaser shall reimburse Tenant for any costs and expenses of such testing. If the radio
frequency propagation tests demonstrate levels of interference unacceptable to Tenant, Landlord shatl be
prohibited from selling, leasing or using any areas of the Property or the Surrounding Property for purposes
of any installation, operation or maintenance of any other wiretess communications facility or equipment.

d)      The provisions of this Section shall in no way limit or impair the obligations of Landlord
under this Agreement, including interference and access obligations.

23.      RENTAL STREAM OFFER lf at any time after the Effective Date of this Agreement, Landlord

receives a bona fide written offer from a third party seeking an assignment or transfer of Rent payments
associated with this Agreement(" Rental Stream Offer"), Landlord shall immediately furnish Tenant with a
copy of the Rental Stream Ofticer. Tenant shall have the right within thirty( 30) days after it receives such
copy to match the Rental Stream Offer and agree in writing to match the terms of the Rental Stream Offer.
Such writing shall be in the form of a contract substantially similar to the Rental Stream Offer. If Tenant
chooses not to exercise this right or fails to provide written notice to Landlord within the thirty ( 30) day
period, Landlord may assign the right to receive Rent payments pursuant to the Rental Stream Offer, subject
to the terms of this Agreement. If Landlord attempts to assign or transfer Rent payments without complying
with this Section, the assignment or transfer shall be void. Tenant shall not be responsibie for any failure to
make payments under this Agreement and reserves the right to hold payments due under this Agreement until
Landlord complies with this Section.

12

Verizon Site( New Lathrop) Option and Tower Lease Agreement

477



24.     MISCELLANE011S.

a)      Amendment/ Waiver. This Agreement cannot be amended, modified or revised unless done

in writing and signed by Landlord and Tenant. No provision may be waived except in a writing signed by
both parties. The failure by a party to enforce any provision of this Agreement or to require performance by
t6e other party will not be construed to be a waiver, or in any way affect the right of either party to enforce
such provision thereafter.

b)      Memorandum/ Short Form Lease.   Contemporaneously with the execution of this
Agreement, the parties will execute a recordable Memorandum of Lease substantially ia the form attached as
Exhibit 24( b). Either party may record this Memorandum of Lease at any time during the Option Term or the
Term, as the case may be, in its absolute discretion. Thereafter during the Term of this Agreement, either
party will, at any time upon fifteen ( 15) business days' prior written notice from the other, execute,
acknowledge and deliver to the other a recordable Memorandum of Lease.

c)      Limitation of Liability.  Except for the indemnity obligations set forth in this Agreement,
and otherwise notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, Tenant and Landlord each waives
any claims that each may have against the other with respect to consequential, incidental or special damages,

however caused, based on any theory of liability.
d)      Compliance with Law. Tenant agrees to comply with all federal, state and local laws, orders,

rules and regulations (" Laws") applicable to Tenant' s use of the Communication Facility on the Property.
Landlord agrees to comply with all Laws relating to Landlord' s ownership and use of the Properiy and any
improvements on the Property.

e)      Bind and Benefit. The terms and conditions contained in this Agreement will run with the

Property and bind and inure to the benefit of the parties, their respective heirs, executors, administrators,
successors and assigns.

Entire Agreement. This Agreement and the exhibits attached hereto, a11 being a pari
hereof, constitute the entire agreement of the parties hereto and will supersede all prior offers, negotiations
and agreements with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement. Exhibits are numbered to correspond

to the Section wherein they are first referenced. Except as otherwise stated in this Agreement, each party
shall bear its own fees and expenses( including the fees and expenses of its agents, brokers, representatives,
attorneys, and accountants) incurred in connection with the negotiation, drafting, execution and performance
of this Agreement and the transactions it contemplates.

g)      Governing Law. This Agreement will be governed by the laws of the state in which the
Premises are located, without regard to conflicts of law.

h)      Interpretation.  Unless otherwise specified, the following rules of construction and
interpretation apply: ( i) captions are for convenience and reference only and in no way define or limit the
construction of the terms ar d conditions hereof; (ii) use of the term" including" will be interpreted to mean
including but not limited to"; ( iii) whenever a party' s consent is required under this Agreement, except as

otherwise stated in this Agreement or as same may be duplicative, such consent will not be unreasonably
withheld, conditioned or delayed;( iv) exhibits are an integral part of this Agreement and are incorporated by
reference into this Agreement; ( v) use of the terms " termination" or " expiration" are interchangeable; ( vi)

reference to a default will take into consideration any applicable notice, grace and cure periods; ( vii) to the
extent there is any issue with respect to any alleged, perceived or actual ambiguity in this Agreement, the
ambiguity shall not be resolved on the basis of who drafted the Agreement; ( viii) the singular use of words

includes the plural where appropriate and ( ix) if any provision of this Agreement is held invalid, illegal or
unenforceable, the remaining provisions of this Agreement shall remain in full force if the overall purpose of
the Agreement is not rendered impossible and the original purpose, intent or consideration is not materially
impaired.

i)      Affiliates. All references to" TenanY' shall be deemed to include any Affiliate of Tenant
using the Premises for any Permitted Use or otherwise exercising the rights of Tenant pursuant to this
Agreement. " Affiliate" means with respect to a party to this Agreement, any person or entity that( directly
or indirectly) controls, is controlled by, or under common control with, that party. " Control" of a person or

13

Verizon Site( New Lathrop) Option and Tower Lease Agreement

478



entity means the power( directly or indirectly) to direct the management or policies of that person or entity,
whether through the ownership of voting securities, by contract, by agency or otherwise.

j)      Survival.  Any provisions of this Agreement relating to indemnification shall survive the
termination or expiration hereof. In addition, any terms and conditions contained in this Agreement that by
their sense and context are intended to survive the termination or expiration ofthis Agreement shall so survive.

k)      Standard Payment Direction Form/ W- 9/ FTB 590. As a condition precedent to payment,
Landlord agrees to provide Tenant with a properly completed( i) Standard Payment Direction Form of Tenant;
and( ii) IRS Form W- 9 and CA FTB Form 590, or their respective tax form equivalents, upon execution of

this Agreement and at such other times as may be reasonably requested by Tenant, including, any change in
Landlord' s name or address.

1)      Execution/ No Option. The submission of this Agreement to any party for examination or
consideration does not constitute an offer, reservation of or option for the Premises based on the terms set

forth herein. This Agreement will become effective as a binding Agreement only upon the handwritten legal
execution, acknowledgment and delivery hereof by Landlord and Tenant. This Agreement may be executed
in two( 2) or more counterparts, all of which shall be considered one and the same agreement and shall become

effective when one or more counterparts have been signed by each of the parties. All parties need not sign
the same counterpart.

m)     Attorneys' Fees. In the event that any dispute between the parties related to this
Agreement should result in litigation, the prevailing party in such litigation shall be entitled to recover from
the other party all reasonable fees and expenses of enforcing any right of the prevailing pariy, including
without limitation, reasonable attorneys' fees and expenses. Prevailing party means the party determined by
the court to have most nearly prevailed even if such party did not prevail in all matters. This provision will
not be construed to entitle any party other than Landlord, Tenant and their respective Affiliates to recover
their fees and expenses.

n)      WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL. EACH PARTY, TO THE EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW,

KNOWINGLY, VOLUNTARILY AND INTENTIONALLY WAIVES ITS RIGHT TO A TRIAL BY JURY

IN ANY ACTION OR PROCEEDING UNDER ANY THEORY OF LIABILITY ARISING OUT OF OR

IN ANY WAY CONNECTED WITH THIS AGREEMENT OR THE TRANSACTIONS IT

CONTEMPLATES.

o)      Incidental Fees. Unless specified in this Agreement, no unilateral fees or additional costs or

expenses are to be applied by either party to the other party, including review of plans, structural analyses,
consents, provision of documents or other communications between the parties.

p)      Further Acts.  Upon request, Landlord will cause to be promptly and duly taken, executed,
acknowledged and delivered all such further acts, documents, and assurances as Tenant may request from
time to time in order to effectuate, carry out and perform all of the terms, provisions and conditions of this
Agreement and all transactions and permitted use contemplated by this Agreement.

Signatures appear on following page)

14

Verizon Site( New Lathrop) Option and Tower Lease Agreement

479



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be effective as of the last date
written below.

LANDLORD:   TENANT:

City of Lathrop,  Sacramento- Valley Limited Partnership, dba Verizon
a California municipal corporation Wireless

Bv` By: AirTouch Cellular Inc., its
me:   ephen J. Salvatore General P

Its: City Manager
Date:       Z• tt- Z'; By:

Name:

Its:   

Date:    ,? /? 3
APPROVED AS TO FO M:

By:
Name: Salvador Navarrete

Its: City Attorney
Date:  L` $' ZO Z 3

CwlejGu-  ry coww.(   r..,r t. T

I5

Verizon Site( New Lathrop) Option and Tower I, ease Agreement

480



EXAIBIT 1

DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY& PREMISES

2
to the Option and Tower Lease Agreement dated as of bYl/    

I

21 by and between the
City of Lathrop, a Califomia municipal corporation, as Landlord, and Sacramento- Valley Limited
Partnership, dba Verizon Wireless, as Tenant.

The Proaertv is legallv described as follows:

THE LAND REFERRED TO HEREIN BELOW IS SITUATED IN THE CITY OF LATHROP, COUNTY
OF SAN JOAQUIN, STATE OF CALIFORNIA AND IS DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

Being a portion of Parcel 1, as said parcel is shown on the map entitled" Tract 3876, River Islands, Phase 1 B,
Large Lot Final Map", filed Mazch 31, 2016, in Book 42 of Maps and Plats, at Page 56, official records of
San Joaquin County, more particularly described as follows:

BEGINNING at a point on the East line of J7 court, as said court is described in Document No. 2020- 076610,

of Official Records of San Joaquin County;

Thence along said East line, along a curve to the leR, having a radius of 56. 00 feet, from which point the
radius point bears South 50° 36' S8" West, through a central angle of OS° 11' 29", an arc distance of 5. 07 feet;

Thence, along a reverse curve, having a radius of 17. 00 feet, through a central angle of 44° 34' 31", an arc

distance of 13. 23 feet;

Thence, North 24. 30 feet; thence, leaving said East line, East 90. 00 feet; thence, South 40.00 feet; thence,
West 81. 72 feet to said point of beginning.

The Premises are described and/ or denicted as follows:

100% Construction Drawings( Sheets T- 1; C- 1; G2; A- 1; A- 2; A-3; A-4; A-5; A-6; A- 7; D- 1; D- 2; D-3;

D- 4; D- 4. 1; E- l; E- 2; E- 3; G- 1; G- 2) Dated November, 2022, Prepared by Allstates Engineering&
Surveying, and Consisting of twenty( 20) Pages, Appear on Following Pages]

Notes•

1.   THIS EXHIBIT MAY BE REPLACED BY A LAND SURVEY AND/ OR CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS OF THE PRF.MiSES ONCE
RECEIVED BY TENANT.

Z.   ANY SETBACK OF THE PKEMISES FROM THE PROPERTY' S BOUNDARIES SHALL BE THF, D STANCE REQUIRED BY THE
APPLICABLE GOVERNMENTAL AUTHORITIES.

3.   WIDTH OF ACCESS ROAD SHALL BE THE WIDTH REQUIRED BY THE APPLICABLE GOVERNMENTAL AUTHORIT[ ES,
1NCLUDING POLICE AND FIRE DEPARTMENTS.

4.   THE TYPE, NUMBER AND MOUNTINC POSITIONS AND LOCATIONS OF ANTENNAS AND TRANSM[ SSION LINES ARE
ILLUSTRATIVE ONLY. ACTUAL TYPES, NUMBERS AND MOUNTING POSITIONS MAY VARY FROM WHAT IS SHOWN ABOVE.

16

Verizon Site( New Lathrop) Option and Tower Lease Agreement

481



A 8 R

C  #  p  
3

a o€
O a

N ff    g3    ~ 
g3

R

Y      

IY k    = Q c    N     
i     4 J      90

F       

e    

g=         

t  - '     g        3E

F

o<   r    

Z

0 0 0   
Z 

o;  m

W
o

d

o            '   o a

Z
W             

CCo=  a
a V ''

Z        ss S    s; s'     a x

E€€ p    
Ad

3 z    a z a a  a;  
F.     Q t

a

F:   a
n..  _ nT.: s 3       a

i i 1 1 i i l o n c o o v o 080}` d
U  rn

a
t.'   o b z'{

O R'   

j
9 W    

Z^   p ifd a
o

F  E          -

d   

Y =

a C a

W , gq Z  =   
4b 6_- 

j  3"''     F-        -     j

J Q o  s W     
s 5g jg S   baS 7   

o W a. 9%
o 5    a sty=  a Yr; e..      

m e  a`

a g LL
m       a s;      g  a   `   ^

kk Z    y€ a W s$
p   eE' Q ti O a v i Q

r    '
3

F

2  `' u 55  2. a         
L2' 8~

g
5 C! 4 M

Z Z     a   . 4a w w Qff$ s    W3
m cv U U_ v. c

p   a e' y
g          

W Y     &   
5 0    

3<:" 
S   

w ff

j
V   6

d ff O~ E a      y a         oo`'°   E S
WO    ' stS n' a13' G     z    ' S   g    os    w

y 
ilsru    S    .   5 ,    w G-   y r-   .

v   f s 4 a   3  5  9    oi u  z abE r
N    =  k$   ae    4'   SW'   ap4 ° 

o  

W    °        na s: : a 
r U H QW S F  V' W U pZ O

ozao; k z a  
wc° d n aaa W W 8   ,     

o kg 
2

W   '  

S CF 3         :   

Y  d  S C 
o N      a x   '_     

o

Q       o  b b; n g I I  '  I
o   

e   

w ,  ,  

I
O W  ii: 3 aRoRh»» sii: 

I   I I I I I
Z Rx 18 9
W T F g  a m     s    3 aF

y

y        

q}    0  b£ G'  -, y: r o   I i{        t. a " 5 
i g

e 4 a a     

s        B     U g r N   < f ed 3` J` o3nSW : C3i= 9

o o

N
s

W
Q

z

O     
a x>{'

8                
z

V    :          °
W 3

N 4

0    G$ $ g   •    
y

E

o       
a g   A_ 

Z

aa a
v

9   Yij j S
F fr rr F

2f   ............ 

482



3t 

y

YYYY

i=     3 5
G"  Y p0o

i5 g Q M

O  a      

b:   

00..     W

N 3           _   g R   o` X       s.. 3       

L        vw]    3 c   
e,"   °       °   

Z N   N    
V

g 3   •¢. 3 p ns
r z ox

8

CGa dn

9 3

FZ
3

I
I         $$ 8$ rg_  S S R R e S Y s  

7 : t
a'

R W3W.,..

N$'    

ffi

n^ €  

g
@

R      
y 9

yd i 

888 8 88636;.   p             a                  

8 8 8 S$ 8 8

s$$$$
18$$$$ z 0

u     '      

il Sy RB^    ca     a      3 a

k
y       

I ro y   €.     

M1,  

E

z      "        '   

p    '

g    
g ,      

3 a       

nIi a. e•      i

J

l ma' y w siro'   
i

I  ,
vf,   qoa3:'       : o•.      

v

Rx
Q

r.    

g

9\   i rA83uuabwe zN iao  —   

wea• te u    a i    -. oc'   SS^ g
l^   h eS         

6 OtrR„ S

f ag  `    i. 6 4 4

a R

b a 3 g a 5  R? es        
j noocr--      -       -------      

r,

ssnoo ena I

tit s:
ry.   

l

3    
s•'•'' A-'       1 ' t• ' rY' C r.'     l e/  S    

s•;     . •.      : 
r

NulOM 1CWl•     
y

d

y,

f.

Ctp  j  
M EFW

f    

SF

F

I ` p 

Ffj 
s    • 4ih' ti 8 tlQi¢'    a 

g g y      <
e `       a.            c.

y  €   
@ f   g r ° s   .. g 

3 8     ,

y     `\__":

o tl^       
d      : se#  #? S:        

b    

e

ixne, san. M. ow... w, wu.-, yv. n en=     a y

d

4   
s.    

ug
R , 
f_^-b   

I 
u n 3mn rmr i maw- ua is

o

A
s

8

tli    
g 9

r  

x        8:

y 3
Y a

Y S

y            

O

g              
k EA            $     ig     :

s 9 3 a     a   _                 '` 

g     

y    t     s            7 =_         
tnb     ut a            

kg ss         ea o?

2      
a'         t       S h         u       

@@ 
5   Y    6

i     p       F 8   

e      

i

W     -,: 

IQ k

t Y
g

F2 i        `     
g          R '   

R      i W

S Q.  p  4          ° 
O

8 g     gbd   8r             gY       
RCC                O

ffi      
r   g$ ste g B

oa>
o"   

n Yt     S E'

g i   €           
g               .,

p o' o   € _    ` y „ ge   
n                 _

y

y   
@ e    8  `      " a   < 8.  3    8

P 3    '             R' 4   4 e          be    c   ,        t       

I I I i   $
g
E    

y# `    
s     < R stqeR< ,- B Sp`      

I  I  I I I   z_ d ri s . .: ri8 :   $    g 3R  i    Ye  

483



R

Y   Y Y Y

6 Y

O        0    
C       Gb OA~    Or

N ',       va  a a       c   o< X  x`   N6    ^-'       y Q i .  ! 
e 3' pt   rWaW         r

L
g

p       

W 
M

J S R  
g

E  C       ^
r,'

ar  

s S
S 3 N O H  f M IOr i U

R 5   •" Q.    
E   

C
r

Z  = n

F2C<        iwg      —   »
e

z     R      ,     b  €

7             
s        9     @           

z z e
o              

s       

R  

ffi               n             e g  8      =
s         

y

@     _                         .       
s

3 4g        g    +     4     g   t    g 
f h     

9 S

QQs a      $          '  a     a
R' 

i g=   ; 
8    

ya        €   
a                  :  k  

9   g
91  y R    

@6       L`  '  $' Y.   
8     

b        ei d8 C C3 3 3 3

s p  

3     S    N< S   

R p
d  ' d

xt $ g    ao     g       W }           $ s             3         €  
S s

g                
d s    g a €    ia g              

a is
E                  

p  . o                 g  a 
R aA 2n @         4  K

S   $    w   $
y            b''         €„     

i y a        " .  
s:       

L   6 s a       
g            

e   '     3   

o     _ gk s               
a

p    '         

o   rt' g ' ag   s a        3    a

ui 8   
Y  

e   
a     [  

7  

o   

g   

e
e      o   "       .     +

1   .    g 9       e   _    

a     .     &     7@ e   "   

s                < S ` 
Ic   E  S  

o      

f a         .  .-  4k
r                    as   < o s s  : `

x     l    x,?'         e   ° e         em  a"   "         Y R    &     6gn5   
t R                         . 

a  9 g q     a g_  € t    ' W

N       .  p   y             ' F               g  " 
b=   

3 
4  -      E 4 E E B , gR` a   @9 7b

6 ,#  . b . a   $     8 e 3R  <      N € $ a  m 

484



A     ..       
x

j

a        
o        o   

3
d     `:  s 4        .         4 F Fgg    :     N 3    ; 

p-    o

a @0 s,   o-       
f     go a        G Q

i.. Rg a

R       

e    ii'        3
a z 5      

o. .      
r

r

a E' AR'T FtD
w    

s    ,,      

aa    / 

a        

xw' "'
i

i

r  

i   + i  

i      i   

i i      
i

I I ,         1
I 1 I o

I I     II     1 0      
I         zo       `\

j I          
I i,

i         
a   o

I '      I a  

I I

I /

i       I           

I      

I    
I

II I
1

I           W      
I

a I    
I

e         I  O
I  _   I   _ 

r-   -  o  ,     
i

r i

i i       \
i i

i     i i i
h--     -    

I I;  
1 I v
I I I I

I Y' L

1 1  : I       8            
I       

I 1  ,     '. r I          c.>

I I i e I    

1 1 I I               
1  /       I                 

I I

I I      (  I          ti

I l       i I j I

1 1

I /    j         gI

1
I----      W

J.----------- I

L      

II------------ fi     1T
Tl

t

c_ /'      L__ ER.. WE i
I  I II II II W

O

485



A
a

y

gy    = 
a   

a         a

N S
C    Y

3

tl G        

e  

t      ]

F    = 0<
U h N    \

Y

6

W

6 0  s8 i g o 8    W t Qi      
J=

y
F   -      

a •

s"       eR W=        
a z g Z
d r

i x

i

i

i

o

I 1S

P

g ¢ 1 1o

a I      -     -----     i
I i I

I

1      - I oo"•'•

i  l I 1   '           
m--;     _          

i i      

1           I

i I  -,     '  I         .           

I
I   ___\  \          ' .

Y   ";`    `    

r

i

9            11
J. SII2IlII/ J,2If10 Gf ------- 5 ------      i

II

g
i

w
r N

j .    

i   

z
w

486



f-- s A   

R R

O        o w

N 3 i    a¢ 
3   4        `  ,       

3 e      g   ~'
z  

3 5    (+ 7
a  ?    

g    
ad     

L        
5   . p  

0
F     

o ,

S

C'       

C    i S$     W Ny   Z PA 9 S

Q

6 
W

o.       

O-' OY
N

r-     

i a

Y
I

I L

eg    I

I
J

I

I ----     -----  :-.   --  i
I

I

I

c,,,'        

I   --       
i

g          

L  
s$  >

R        o     i`,` i.:    I
t     ii i

a                
I

3

I  3

I       

ya I

I    
p      \\\'\a
v

I ?  
a     

i

3Y!

ub

I I ' 

I
Z

I
r,      a   g

I F      _   y a

F 3 1   ,+^    :„' n:   '<:.:     <.:''
Fx F

E        

t'  '"      ';

I
1

Y
g

r na':,  .;;;. h'   ,;..-
y'       

N

I
y

Q        

r,      

w
I i' i     i

O

I
Q„ a.----   

a

I Z
I I N

o
r!---

I
9

g
Z
W

487



r

R A

F y

O  r'g W'• 6 E
a       `  '             

p    
W a3   S3 P     :  3 Q -      x     J ' a

N - S    -- v •    
J

a
k    O<    wF    

Qi W    _      
96    63     gz$    oo   

Z3.,  a

G     
g 

a

F           

w 5    ' oS   
F

E      e°     

Z

a

a   -

x

aS

rF

3w. vn wn moada. e

I
oa

w. a owo>.. u. iarm wzn mxaosa

t b O-. 1

5 5:. 
J.  ' `   I

w+ l," ZiI       # s

Mf  ,

i,   
e ,, I.

i

11

I., .' fi
s 

i y   i

ll T' ' 

T /     

t
I

r11 r11 I ___
1 O I

F-'- i i I T I
11           II    //  I k

2 g      
u

r
n       i

Q       i ii i"  ii   i i Ip WI
P,        

i j 1L_ 1 p . a. l" ri
IL_ J  . Nc:.': i_':,...   __

J  __`-___  

s       '   ,:' a:    u    ,°; a    u
r   :.,;      nn   ---

i
s:: e^' r,:'"       II A .(` t.  

tt„'     

r =

a    '
c i4 '.

Y
T

i

I C
f,

t£,   ^;,.

t

4£^ aJi    

Iw , A..,     ,.. n, n:''; r't,+.brfi_   ,+     
i§  i i i,  i ii

I"  u

w-.     ..

n    ..-.     .. II     .
t- F    % w      . e- h   =   '°      

Ii n
u

G G

s

g a n   
ss      z

a
o

a       `       g
W

d

O
W

G

WN
O
a

0
Q
a

488



A 8 R

g J`=
i

z

uJ`- 

z8  $ 7  
a  

n      

6   

N  a" 
g'     

e             ¢ g      o    n3    --_       s

g
a

Y g 64 i g g 8    g    QW      _. ,  
6      W q?    _   A G 3 Z S      =

3 r

o

x

d

c

00o
J

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 o Z

0 o g
o

p
o a

5
O

g

Q2

2WH2Q
Z

H

Nx
W

N

m

s f  3 £ o° 3 e
e'} ffi  i  ;     g

B       

3      
g

m

A

K
H h

n

o    -     -     -  -  -  -  -
s

Q  

V   

h    a  a      a q
O      O

a

4    4 4    4 4    4 p 0

o     -  -     -  -     -  - O z: n,       oei`s°R'rlwev„

o
oY

o     o  `
oQ

O

O

O .

a      
U

g
F V V

W

U a

b       a         g
u"       u       u      

p               Z

G t u         8 a

g^       r      
a

R g 8 b      P R_ o WU

s s N
i  'Y          O

o  '     " 1  -     S u G ii 0
vw v

e

v a vwwro Q
a

489



R R e

g   o.     
p0 S 3 d  1 Qi          , •

i      ¢     _     
o

Z ( pF- d`    c       N r -    y   q      $      `     Q3 a        6 C c
6 g G W

L   w      '             F       eR W s"    E W    
Q:.'        Z  S

m

Ai- Jiir

I

SYM1l1NV M3IMMYJ tl3n10( 3) JO rti1H3J OYM  _____.__"_—_—   __ __.___.—   ¢   
b

J.' 101i y   -

e;

I k   ,
S  

y

i b  

i

i

0

o

0

Z
O

o Q

e

s e x

4 3t 3
O
2

E 7E 2

F-

NX
W

N

s

mu aaw. nri so aoi

i-acir icuana.i( a) ao
i-ans

siww Awn( a)+ o naun ava

W- 1n

a31aW) alnlO( 3) l M31nn a' M

G-. 1JIi

VIMIM lilllA MN iiPO1Y l U1113J U' tl o1
p  

I

jI

j  5  %
f

y
II    I  3

d

i    
t        

I i
g  

e     

O

I Z

a

o              
r Q       -   

s     g   s  
c

Y  i       y
0
a
0

a

490



v
A R     A

C g 3     wz    s

YJ 3   
d F ` ' a[ iJ.'   F i    

N  $ a         ti
C

i w     --- g a    BC o

o-       
6    gi$          Q

Y   °       

g          
b

T

aa u a, so eoi

g5cci.     

2nunHw[ a) r roa

a- uis  _'__.... ._  

o

Ciw w. uua( a) o n lru aw W
o b

AI- llli
F

x iaem a3n t l. o aa. n m-n

3g-'  `
3b ei

a al
e

I       
O

O

O

4 o
ea e

F-
Y 5ff 5 a

g W
a J

E
F

NQ
W

7
2

N

W

N

aon iriur n do aol

rwc s

31LU0 W( 3) d0 Mi

d- blli

lN'tlH 41dLA( i) iD M3lNiJ Wtl

A- uis

cvrenirn naiuur a nia h) n n u n a. a
I d-. as

6YN1LM' 13M1' d WA_.—.. JO YIINiJ OW b b

I           

a

5  :
I

I  y '      

q

I i `+I
o

d

0

I
o

Oi3        

s  s .  ;   a

N
xv

a a            o
W
N
O
a

0

a

491



A R R R

3

y   W
O S'3 4• d3 4Q        :.           g     xo     o     r

N  i-      F— g 3 9 a' g Y ¢    
o      Z      

1

f'         vW]    ._" 
a       -    6 0 p 8 3 h&     a     4 s d

w  g          
W

F

3

b Y!    =   a

o(       k
Z

W

N
E   

n„ s
e   

a n      . o          

a

t

t<,,.,,:   

e

30

Q o

E r;r

4
a o

r   '       
W

s       " L '     p

s r•  7 e

LL

e{.;..+'..'.;  :%,.;. H.)    Q     C

r   ,1 a a  p     a
@? 5    V  e

vno` vaev u3u

d $

i b Q 8 1      z  

V

fiy p    O N Z

5 a U
a e+

r.i   . a- z d- a . L
t

W
if   a

ii
s  &     s

t t,
a

F

e.    tlu   - A' A       `    '-      

Y

C

I O m   t'A+

e     b o      e 3 aa  3F
k         

2 aa    5     
r. t A-. t   , o-     

Yq       
y  E      b"

z     s a  =  a as
Y

k
Wz

r 

Y 4 6b 6$  3 g3':    
6L

C      
k n3  y y Y : i

p 8       R, ,    . .   

e a   
Z_s  , 

R
Gq     

re•       .,.. n., r,-..' r'    a

i.   §
W,

t db   a
9   m

i+ w  P
8' g 3"

a inY'
3     

F  .,,_ s c: e 5cb
Y p E  .      ...........

w

IA

1
IT

2Y

y
G $

Q   "_
A f A- A x_

a§ a a
ts

8
g Y 9 W

aa

tg m5 5
H        y

2         y^

b

i. 4+:3

R    :  , :

cc,:;  
t:

I
a

Y
tW   

O W     g a  

N     a $ a 3      bi
i

A J I
a    14 X g      

N

9 3a       
s o. c ra a•    .. 3  a..    ...,

1-. 9 y

492



r

p R A
t

E

a

N   
e  

3

r       ,, •           o    _     N
L

6 4    

o ,       

8 3      
W     

R    .      
A

ti W
i      i a    

z  3      ' a

o< r e
O

W

N

c  K
p

1y i n F yW

xX l ^   5 g     
5

Lr 2     s 3     0.

4 k     $      e- a o-, r

A c '   E W

z 

F

p

d-. c p. f`'--

P 
3 

9       4
s

U
J   

d    
tl

j
Q i

H J

W      -     
i

a
u x

G- C  `  Y 3    "       d '       
k

F    s
pv       a       ^              3

t

P   $       _.       s s } i 3
t W E' Io 0 9 O r      = A-    4' R`      " ~      n i W

m              Q R 3              `            °" y      >     o  Y            Q
LL S ieS    ° 3       $ 

A      s             

S

n a

i    

2    
lF Mc     = a

rF
r c8 u    ` n' r

Izl Oo'

P 6 FQ
5  ">     

3i    e       C.1

3
a  g      9    

d``•     a  

a     ; ne F     
3a s s„     8     w

Y 

3 p n     ° tl

ac I e  ^    
O 1 a 5 m

aJ
y ^  

3 W W gg 
e  

E p o lo aa e
o a a n  =

g

S  s

x „     N N
gW                

yB$& @
F

gq 
o t.. r.      W W

5 ? 
e   3 F

p y5
o S

F      

N t7    ' n E J C C   8 8 e 

W 1 10

4         ft
q a

a

it
r a   o r

a

s: a e

3 1 z
z
o kr     `      uu+u+»..       ,

H         y       m
o W

e .:•§    
W

Y,
C     

a        6 5 a   

o

r i 3$ a<„.< 3 0

Z W      .............   

493



8 R R A

q g   

a

aF
j a    '--'= 

46
S

9 
E

a o   

W <    „

O 3 E3   t 3`   ' 4,           o a    
o     M

N  ' 3 F—" z
g s °   p    -$ 3      

W       
W     F gD    

a ,

cP"       e 3i`'$    a    ' 
Q          Z  g

W   

a t

C N

G YY      }
y y j:

g 

r,,,.p._.       ,  . ..   ......... a         

3 d      St y S 8 Y

i 35      og       4E R

Y
LL

m.

3

a
z

z
o

w cse $      r« ~  :      

Z z c7

a     • Y a Z Z

t.           
w

s O
a a a       F    a

z

s  3 g    
a

s . . . . .
u Q     P ff
z

ro u a

9 at a j'

i}   i
R

Y
0°       0

0 / 0°

e

J

o    
e1   ^ 

i

a

N

z
ooz    

p   
Z            

n

W

Z       '   
a

E i;     $    Q e
o'G wi     .      

a

ER   Z   °     
a

V  a 
f

R

4
U

Q    a F a   a  8om;       Z
01     o

m A

P    
W

r. 3  £<       
n"    

5

s       ,            
ti'        

X   
H•. '          4, S

r      t E
u1' a„     

e

r

4 «:  .

r

DC A' SI

g

i  .

X

3 y  •  

3
R

Z       r 4

g3 0 g          O
3    ;_ i Q       a     

o  ?    i i V o    
3 V

N

LL
z

a u.
I ^    i V Q a V

x     ncis. 9i     I an     °         N
p   '     

1

itlna
ac'    a5i     . vi              

Z      •-••     R a Y

494



a t R A

O;    _ 6 3 9  
y

O       
W    

rc

O S s     ¢=  5 F    = g    y  

N e- 3    —;  
p

d;     " t`,   
1    8 9S x

o-      636, 3 goy$    Wz=   

z       

C/]

y   

i 
Ry a

9

g8
S

Si
R    

g    '<  
f

Y

3 o z S

a
N r

d

F bo o  

R'      ..     0
i

ST            X       1 4 M=
ei

Yi  )       x j-  -   o
g r;  c SG

d      Z{  
z Ct  z J       ----

b Z i g  Q
o F

V 

i
al F

r.,

a    j d
S j C 4        

y             p           J

G"_             .
1        

ff e a       V        1 F
g        aa,   i z  ry     4'  !  :     a W    

eLLo:  . :     3       a 
a   m     a

bi83      bJ 

r
p

L L FNww la!       
t W ` Up F ry

W

g Z   5    
u o  Z

i 7 W iS wFw w a {(  
W

LE 03       31 C  

i M

b     h i

Y           

z

0

t Wt
n"   ..-..-.

Il0    a     
i u

I     -\__.________.__'__._.'."       
L:

s      .,_ t_'_'____ \      

F    

a' <>   A  '''   
3 •   o  

9     ~   QZ    
a iy

U

X k.

a,      

4R
i

e

G     

a

e    $%   t. w1 a

n

g ' ; J------- i.._,--

d• J
S`      

E
W m 0

Z 

p 1

e g F.__

1 a a-

I
9

j,
z     

i—       
1. 

y
i

J C7
k         O

y

m Z

g 
r z

5
a      

o

H   = M1 Y   _: J    :   W;     

p
b z

s         
5  r W      

n$      

3W W   

cm   x x
p       j o

0 0
A

S„     .   -       

V Z z
W

7

495



A A A e pp

C   r       
d

a       z   
3 G: 3 4        :.                 a    

N     e        _.   f    
g' 

s   `
o     

i/ g g°       4
6 

e 3$   W    0

W 
2., 

R  6

a7t
W  ' d€A         

dtl    
z g W   `

o.       rag

r'     ,   ;
e Ef     ; f e[      ; r   [    

If   c     i   rE      )   ef

4)     j1 r t
t    ii!).     ll 1 t

i i    ;     pp  ' !      a

i   `     '    

J  -  -"   

t 111 I

I"            
t  !''  ' 

ef   !{ aEi   f i  I      
R    

I.... I........... I.....  I. I.       
Rc                            

j I j   (     
j       !  M(            E           j Z ll      -- I    f  1             
6  '.... . 7...... I...  ' .. ..     6       

I  f1{ i       ;!{ t z   

l. . .. ... ...........      ....... .   

i

i     

j   .     1  I   1    i l,,I.......... i........
f

9      a  1
i  ;

f j  ' 1  I  i`  ' f    -  ; 6
6  '........ .. ..... .....   6 i       9  

r '  

iI
i

i i l 1 j
I h l t i

a t

r             

s    
r    R a

i    !:  
3              

a  3E  o11
i

t      —      0 I

1      '         ; 1L i .     _      .  1 ,. 1

496



r

y A 8
Yt       

pi  a     W z  
S

3 o a   
W o

O ,  Q'",    r       .` S ,            xo    iZ    
N      3    ~' '     

o   a_e i      

V]    — k       6

6 
F '

c       

aR w=% i        

W

z

Z  g       

o

A      

ff<          W
o   o     <           _  = 3 g     ;          

s ;  g          :    o      a         `-
W           j 3    

y,    
W    _      W          o W            

g     3 5 

t        a    W        j  
j; c  W 4 a s   zp        j   sx a $      " o  " e  a

k, o  p a  
m? ag      g 

a  } 9v-         a        s.      W        
a= y go .      -   3=   Y   a K r  '

s ? r  "<  r    -     

c           5     @-         x x          `      
34   ..  $   $     a"  

r       & o G      $  $ e   

g 4   
5 

y 4    c' g       €         6   ' s

d 
x'  €  a a d=  g    y TS 3    "    `       ° a  

e   t C a  `     xo#„   a, e a,  
ot a e    a  a E  

9,.     e a  
W     Vz   .

i       a xE u       a B„ -   a „  e     a    <

S s 
3 x  a

y   
x    a§  

o Y s   `     
o ";,, oS g "' ' " a  i y   -    

i 3a e 8 g  =   oa i ,  $
Q       ;        as "' sa    o      -  .      e„ a6    < e s

e  e 5     
y

P x a
6    '      

os  
aa    § g  

a

jR3 Y 5€  , S C. Q 6 g. e   A8Wffi
g g   9= 5 i t

s         a W G       °    3 9  `- C 6     r o          iW'

y      
o   o    g    ;,   a  W    '                     t

s

4,  a      t       ° a  ot    °   s    6      ,               Y°               FY

a  a    e o      $
s"  

6 D  " 
e   j s      a      z      "        '

5
R e 5  '  o        

Q"  

e   g   

s  "    §      £   a         3 
g      a        e e e;  . e    e  k ;, d  ^ o a^   , t C        §

t a    z        € e 8s o  a q  z    ¢   o         s    „         :
4   

3          

u  

F  a  sa ae           "    

W          

g8 R       a 3 E       -  3 d.    e    F g n        
b

a z  : g   W     a.    g.   r§x  €        6

ax q"  ag          a  '°  _ s
o               ' §   

my      ^         g   
6 

6
E  _  e P  S  - o     

fgz   W        

Y.    
7  }  i    .'' ff   3

6
cs 3• W                  Y '   -        a   ,          .   t      <          ` >      a a   Y ns  W   

b

aq  _     '                    R  W    a„ :    n             o
a g      =   r R   ' 

a         :   '       
W    r     oo      3   yW

j                    
s       -   -      e_             5  e

r   

W        &  °      

t         

E ga  € a s       i s s  a a: g        €      B    ff         
e m  : c°`        j  •^W§_

Y 
o,  6 

s8 2   "-'    
05    '   n  §$      

s    

i Y     s     '    
ls   g      §    # y         

e g      s  a wx g           W     ,   

e§ 9 °     e< = 3z  Y  i      a  i$ § =+   <  d s   d    x  -

Q`     _      "      "'  -      -     

o a      _    ,.       ,

o      

i       i
s

W        b a        ' m  ia              w  3a     a  psi a
o  t      ° z a

e  ^ 3   -
a §    g 3g § as     o      €:   WS.  `       o         a  >       }  a

gs  ,'; 6  g   } x  -
3 sY '       5        s,  W. o g

k   j   aa et    

V--=          

o

t W

W         x t^.              
a  Y= 

g   3 '     .     ff a a  
wW  q   n c

s
c 6      x;   s . _€   $-    

ay
a S Y€ s  «., 3 • s..   W

R       o  §   

a    .

a    g  ff   a      r^ E    3 s    ' j a°-     
g e     5             =- Ya    s  -  ° e  ,  e r5      KW -   na  €       z       <  

t  F     9   ; gn   ,  
a  $   S

ff a ff.      k o e      a p sg Y  -          . eWW  $-ni  o ' W r E     4 3    ``   it  ^ 
9  ' SY', E   o   ' 3; yd , 3 § 5§  i d  '`

s       '     s   c  ^    a   '   t    e-       y     , e -   a             ;
o s. o<    §      

W3= sp o Wa' sa a^  „§ a  a   
a  z e. o    a = o=      €=   "    x       '- 

a      
a aa     3 v e'   3ar°  3 o   $-. y e ' E   = 3       `

J       .,  

WK .$  

p

e $•  eoa o   
x      a   $ $ a

wp 
a"     { g  

6 a  
4.      `       Y3 IJ

o wos  ,     6-     gp '       og8 y-  y  B 9   iP{    o  a    
G"    c Wo W' a.'  o  " J      '"` is     `   - F aa      +  s  _   aks, W,            ' 

W

s a   r F-   ; W 

9   
oj 

e 3a ? _  s=y  WJ  R      
s_  mJo     €

g  § aEa e a Wo"          '         e
n   rc { S" 8

J' ''      

o'       ' 3, y^ an 3" W 4     '`    '' E" " 9 '`'   
n 

e g a    
x   ,  

g. a -  ..   e.^   W=  
3 a  p ' o

J

y d^  _  
g 

3 <,_ € W  

e 
g;     _ e$

a=  

9` a a° F           b    n g,.

s  . ^ ag rr e   s "'   t s    aK z z  
s` a   ,  ¢ a., ff

Y    „ x  §

r` 

o'- e                   a= o     _   '.  __ "       

W      _ "  § 

o qY-   .        e.   n'  S x _        3   ° a  3    °  a  Y a 4

W' 

o    
F,  

r-  
S s

g. s 
y =

a o$       
a:=  o         . c€

s   
s  

W       .. Wa   fa ;
o a!    3_     32 s . a    

g         
a" S     o°  go       3 o 

e     § 
e„  W>         o        - o               

on s  a=,

s a°  ,      ta 3 o  

o 
3`     a  §. aff a. ,  <„ 

o      

o

q 6j d§ g   ;
o     s W   te   z 

u  „. 
n

g a= a ",      _      4-g aC Eg   a4 00      

3ff3 B a K a3 b Y x: j i a e s      ; ?  _ 
n A   .    . ,.   <. s -      -   "  -- -  R n fi       a  c   e    s x a  a e       _                 .  

497



A
R R R

g
a    .. i !+     

t
m

7
p

F-- 6  

3

a, '  
O  ¢     ar  

u

s 3   
s      ¢

F x g    '_   N
W g  g           _       ;    so o   ,;     
L g g     --'      g9

o "`'

u==    Wo   
W

t<    c„ a  '
jj ° ~    

e d
Z  ' S z c'

z

o< 

e

e       

N

a

e
Y

R    
s Y'    a g    

c 

a   

a 3 Wg
@x   

5 a  

V

rm     -    -    
e a

a C;      5  .- Yn
K n 11  ,

c

o   $

f g     

a
W_     

y gy Q

z
o J

J4

Z

N

a l+1 N

W;. W

o oa    ,     
o                     

k
k    6    b     

g W, 6  § ff Ys"=     t a a s s

t                      g    
sa i

y F 

Y

y6 F a     
4m l i    • R  t'

sa; 3f       -         '     >  s          R`  

g
S  

z      
F           r 6a°         3

e
3      3                

p S
6   

A
9 i gj°x   

2       ~         
Y        gf'  g b g       

e Wm        
b           q5    K g

W o .      y n  
j S 6    '-  y^   «       c : s e      

eak a -        $    
g

r
p

g -           a    ; b p       
y q

d sa

ia: d
Z  

3! ' yka     e Y 9            a= Y    k m    d 6

o    g  a   Y a         o   f  _  a      

g   
t" r
o      9

t 3 i i t _

e r   . 6. g;       ,  
e         a    § a   

1    ' II Ilp llll
3"     

iii n iiiiiiii'. 9     ff
ni u muim o x     ffi   r 9Y  3
mui

npnn E
8 a R    A _

i 6 hi   z    }    ~ ?  
b ni n imnn

i € `  9  $ ff  u R

4       , "   
Z    

5   2E   g   ` g     a

z 
y

zk   i 6       £
N

o g

M1 ^   

s           5     
s  q

x d  ° 5 °   eWa  
8 e

5  
w

t   &      •      

t  a.     = a  §     p 

o      €   s c,  4   K   z   g c
2 6 6    

g     € WW g      J    
b W

U       
C 4N        3   '[ 9  o  ep     g ax-   -

U
a

a     s 33 li
v'Q e e a ai     ¢        <    

W

4
9 W    

n   .   +  

3
P

3    `.".  j w

p s = .. a        a
a w a

498



A

3    ==   
a

A R

o S      a

N 6a    ..-. 3g x '      e j    g og o         
M

L  W      ` g g      
a e 3°      a     

W
R 6 S

C e$    W
i

r    ' W    Z  S
W

o< r

e N
8        

r c           3y   
a  

a,   
r, iti    ..   

n-    

g      
o

gPCE Q
i

YK- 1
E^     

i5     yy  
A i L

G 66   5.      £ '     I.
C

Q 3':

K g a
W ff 3  d t7

u

2

t-r      .., X y.  a e=       z
s      

f w          z  € W         g S " s       

z   5 z        5 Y E    t" E=
m m a ,  §   § ..- Sa       
a     

v         ° °
y  `; gj       

o'V 9
V V        ¢¢

kg 3T ¢$ 3 8   ` - Y 3
Z

m cb a        E' s 7 R   s iii V

o

o

m n        v
E

j  r

o
g B    

8 3       „W;,  W      o
W      

y  

W a        

Y      s W 

r      [[ Y g    
O- 4a ":  ass "

8 
d :

t

Y,  
gI I

2 
Y

u 

C
L

o d

a

gg rIY
C  :    bb 8 

g s i5 5 Q 6e Z

n f'u a  a 
oc

s'      m F I   €  a=¢ ' F'gd`      a e     

Fg g      V       "=_
e   

L
u.       

ooqi; O
7 z        n              e¢ a O" 4 Z E_   I W`_   >

a z
s ag v      _  

a 
a  Y go g r   r  

a            §      

O       "     W L I   Y    " a  
F-

v
e Y

J      

r-- p    $$   E mW       _., Q 2Q
J TTT/ 9$q

c4H a    gf W     pj Y f    
8 q W   l    3 E8 92 U

W s i3$   W 3` x 6 
a' d

Z 3 d

499



a R R A

g q    
y    9      o a. t

n,     c+ o   i

N 3

Je           o a   _    
T—

g
w      —'

m  ¢    80       i gzo$    " 5    L W    ¢  6P
Z=

x    i F   
a S o

t

l9 N

gog       5
x

y-       3
7 v i!       3 3      7

r
xF W xF 3

g k 
r'  

ig t i       _
3 9 J

g

b

e i
c     S   

d ;         

o
o     +       

ee     W J
Y 3    o 

g`.           s

O W    ^ O           t

o       a    a      Y
m 5 C£$    jo " gg 5'   \  Zz YE,  &,

8  i a

Q
C7 CS 7

ro u er

5       F     i W

MM      5!

o

ao s
d       3  

ec

r

aE

E  ,      

y J

Z W

U y
4 ,      Z U

W o   o
o

y ° 
Y a u

Cl  
Q

R

J
4  °   

Z

I     €

0

V/       V 3°
Z

a c,     r

ro

Y
r

Y
o

S             g   33    y     R           s     3             a       "  

Y
J

d         "     8           x     ¢ o       6
e      '<  "` s m e g€=  ri       :         

g  ?        z     s          '   g    a   d 2 W            
t

t                  

F3 g   #     

93E         ? R Y  8      g  yo  

3    $'
d  g;§        

g"      
a   

g
B          3  nyj< a o ' $  k ff       s  &

a sso       z-  3 t     &     ; W     o   °
4'   "-      

o    
Y     $        G     o    ;      

g     W a$ s  
4         

my
W Q sga             

o     e  a        $  
s aY 

a

b 
e  ,  

xj o          :
a  E             ;  sb     o

a g   3 s°§   _$ g   g   

a $     o  G          
d ^; 

C o; a g   a       m
tl  °$  `

Y 
n ff"    < §

W   

i+ _       e: 3     j  
3  '     g -       x   o_   :        g

4,     o g     _         a = W'. o . gg 3e3-             C" ae o
Y  E 3 } S o .  -_    a aX pr    '     3'• `  ;    9

6 Z

g 
a ' py    ; 

gg ¢ S3
e g     $ -(  g  rs K  :   B §

g°F, e d 3, a  g  „
i    .

p  

i  

d i$ 
C  Y

b< Ok 1   

Y   

X'  
d

7 '( j   ` WJn  ¢ y
u(

i `  gV 3   
n 6 Pi Z

a
8 e W  j    n  '         x s  x

j s  oB r 3Y€ e   j$  o            o
i  € `     j     „ . < " s   a   '   

e s   a$        <      n A  .  .  .    e        _  =  a s c R F IC A F F 0

500



A R A A

Y

g    
r——! d  a

N  8;     e3
e            g    Z    N

a

i d g    —_~—+ a a           6 C 34    a g   ' '    "        e

z  5

a o       

R     

ol
u

y

O3 s J   
fi   

b

f

g         
a 5       y,'',/     s:

r              i   ``    p

e          

a a       .    tf  \1

y I 1
t"sv a    '    x-

n          Y 9     iia§        

a r Y       `      

t'        ----       

i      f 
F   

QgaE

5p 3   6
Q 3        

j;      ` P P
i   =  

8   g e

i ii 
g g

1 ; Yf         I_ 1- 1-- r-- t ft——r f----f
a r     

h
I I 11 I I

r
rr g       

@   '   I I II 1

k; 6       i i ii i i
Ja       '"      b b '      d d S

y 

bb  J         0
ye

j   °  

r

LfY i Y i MI j
ov _:_ _ S

N

i

S g
a-

S    
s

x

r

0 Q
0

Q

y

p        

0    o- C
O

p O

I j
e

b

m           6 
t

i
G € g %

3

9 $      Y 

501



EXHIBIT 11

ENVIRONMENTAL DISCLOSURE

Landlord represents and warrants that the Property, as of the Effective Date of this Agreement, is free of
hazardous substances except as follows:

1. NONE.

167288092vi Verizon Site( Cirrus Court) Option and Tower Lease Agreement

502



EXHIBIT 12

STANDARD ACCESS LETTER

FOLLOWS ON NEXT PAGE]

167288092v1 Verizon Site( Cirrus Couri) Option and Tower I.ease Agreement

503



Landlord Letterhead]

DATE

Building Staff/ Security Staff
Landlord, Lessee, Licensee

Street Address

City, State, Zip

Re:   Verizon

Dear Building and Security Staff,

Please be advised that we have signed a lease with Sacramento- Val( ey Limited Partnership, dba Verizon
Wireless(" Verizon") permitting Verizon to install, operate and maintain telecommunications equipment at
the properiy.   The terms of the lease grant Verizon and its representatives, employees, agents and
subcontractors(" representatives") 24 hour per day, 7 day per week access to the leased area.

To avoid impact on telephone service during the day, Verizon representatives may be seeking access to the
property outside of normal business hours.

Please grant the bearer of a copy of this letter access to the property and to leased area. Thank you for your
assistance.

Landlord Signature

167288092v1 Verizon Site( Cirrus Court) Option and Tower Lease Agreement

504



EXHIBIT 24( b)

MEMORANDUM OF LEASE

FOLLOWS ON NEXT PAGE]

167288092v1 Verizon Site( Cirrus Courl) Option and Tower Lease Agreement

505



Doc iJ:  2023- 016055
03/ 01/ 2023 12: 04: 29 PM
Page:  1 of 6 Fee: $ 37. 00
Steve J. Bestolarides

Recording Requested By San Joaquin Cou ty Recorders
When Recorded Return To:      Paid By: SHOWN ON DOCUMENT

CITY OF T OP IIII L, M' L'+ L' II III
ATTN: CITY CLERK

390 TOWNE CENTRE DRIVE

LATHROP, CA 95330

APN: 210- 210- 010

Space Above This Line For Recorder' s Use Only)

City of Lathrop
County: San Joaquin

MEMORANDUM

OF

LEASE

This Memorandum of Lease is entered into on February 16, 2023, by and between the City of Lathrop, a
California municipal corporation,  having a mailing address of 390 Towne Centre Drive,  Lathrop,  CA
95330(" Landlord"), and Sacramento- Valley Limited Partnership, dba Verizon Wireless, a California limited
partnership, having a mailing address of One Verizon Way, Mail Stop 4A100, Basking Ridge, New Jersey 0792U,
Attention: Network Real Estate(" TenanY').

1.   Landlord and Tenant entered into a certain unrecorded Option and Tower Lease Agreement dated as of

February 16, 2023 (" Agreement"), for the purpose of installing, operating and maintaining a
communication facility and other improvements. All of the foregoing is set forth in the Agreement.

2.   The initial lease term will be ten ( 10) yeazs commencing based upon the effective date of written
notification by Tenant to Landlord of Tenant' s exercise of its option, with fow( 4) successive automatic
five( 5) year options to renew.

3.   The portion of the land being leased to Tenant and associated easements are described in the Agreement,
attached hereto as Exhibit 1.

4.   The Agreement gives Tenant a right of first refusal in the event Landlord receives a bona fide written
offer from a third party seeking an assignment or transfer of the Rent payments associated with the
Agreement.

5.   This Memorandum of Lease is not intended to amend or modify, and shall not be deemed or construed
as amending or modifying, any of the terms, conditions or provisions of the Agreement, all of which are
hereby ratified and affirmed. In the event of a conflict between the provisions of this Memorandum of
Lease and the provisions of the Agreement, the provisions of the Agreement shall control.  The

Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties and their respective heirs,
successots, and assigns, subject to the provisions of the Agreement.

506



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Memorandum of Lease as of the day and year
first above written.

LANDLORD: TENANT:

City of Lathrop,     Sacramento- Valley Limited Partnership, dba Verizon
a California municipal corporation Wireless

g •    By: AirTouch Cellular Inc.
Name:   ephen J. Salvatore Its: General Pa er

Its: City Manager
Date:       Z' te• Z3 BY:

Name: Hartong( Fred) Zhu
Its: Executive D recto

Date: 2 Z

By:
Name: Salvador Navarretc

Its: City Attorney
Date:       Z! O - LD Z, 3

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS APPEAR ON FOLLOWING THREE( 3) PAGESJ

507



LANDLORD ACKNOWLEDGMENT

A notary public or other officer completing this
certificate verifies only the identity of the individual
who signed the document to which this certificate is

attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or

validity of that document.

State of

CaliforniaS a.jvn
County of

On 1' C v u  020   beforeme,    CT f a 5   ' `/ '/ l/
insert name and title of the officer)

personally appeared           '  - Sal 7v 
who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person whose name is/    subscribed to the

within instruinent and acknowledged to me that he/ sr(altl s3c executed the same in his/    4fieir authorized

capacity(, and that by his/ k SLt au' signature( on the instrument the person( or the entity upon behalf of
which the person acted, executed the instrument.

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing paragraph is
true and correct.

WITNESS my hand and official seal.

Signature Seal)

TERESA VARGAS

Notary PubHc- Calltornia
San Jo quin County     

Commission K 2277t 30

My Gomm. Explres Mar 9, 2023 +
r w r r

508



TENANT ACKNOWLEDGMENT

A notary public or other officer completing this
certificate verifies only tlie identity of the individual
who signed the document to which this certificate is
attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or

validity of that document.

State of Califomia

County of 0Y1}' 1r' C jS^} Q

On Z' E},>>^ iJQ rT . 2 02.3 before ne,     C D 2 LQ'1701 eQ f   0  N G Ar y Pu 1 l cJ
insert naine and title of the officer)

personally appeared 1'" 1 a 1  G n I   ' 1V

who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person e' j whose name   s subscribed to the

within instrument and ack wledged to ine that    e/ t y executed the same i is r/t tr authorized

capacity( j), and that b i r/ tl ir signaturef on the insh•ument the person j, or the entity upon behalf of
vhich the person acte , executed the instrument.

I certify under PENALTY OF PERNRY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing paragraph is
true and correct.

WITNESS my hand and official seal.

NfCOLE LONGYEA

Signah re Seal)    NoWry Public• C lHorma   
Contn Costa County     

Commissio s 227l104

My Comm. Expires Mar 22, 2023

509



CALIFORNtA ALL- PURPOSE ACKNOWLEDGMENT CIVIL CODE § 1189

A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the individual who signed the document
to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or validiry of that document.

State of California

County of   + 7c7G1  

On       U( L' J before me,  W I  Y.kil Ci1f1 r  v'`       ,

Dote Here Insert Name and Tiile of t e O cer

personally appeared U` r  ` @lliti' v

Name(s) of Signer(sJ__       

who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person( whose name(  is re subscribed

to the within instrument and acknowl g ed to me tha she/ they executed the same in is her/ their
authorized capacity( i, and that by(hi her/ their signa ure( on the instrument the person  ), or the entity

upon behalf of whic( the person(`) ac ed, executed the insfrument.

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the
laws of the State of California that the foregoing

TA M`INA tAF 80LD
ara ra h is true and correct.

roon w+c• ts ttam+a P 9 P
san 4+ CouM7r

c: s a+ z. ouss
WITNESS my hand and official sea.

My coTIR.. wn u. mu

Signature

Place Notary Seol and/or Stamp Above i nature of Notory PubliC

OPTIONAL

Completing this information can deter alteration of the document or
fraudulent reattachment of this form to an unintended documeni.

Description of Attached Document
n

Title or Type of Document:  M cI' m 1[)

Document Date:   Number of Pages:

Signer(s) Other Than Named Above:

Capacity( ies) Clalmed by Signer( s)
Signer' s Name:    Signer' s Name:

Corporate Officer— Title( s):   Corporate Officer— Title( s):

Partner—  Limited  General Partner—  Limited  General

Individual Attorney in Fact Individual Attorney in Fact
Trustee Guardian of Conservator     Trustee Guardian of Conservator

Other:    Other:

Signer is Representing:   Signer is Representing:

02017 National Notary Association

510



1

EXHIBIT 1

TO MEMORANDUM OF LEASE

DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY

The Propertv is legally described a_s_ follows:

THE LAND REFERRED TO HEREIN BELOW IS SITLJATED IN THE C1TY OF LATHROP, COUNTY OF SAN
JOAQUIN, STATE OF CALIFORNIA AND IS DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

Being a portion of Farccl l, as said parcel is shown on the map entitled" Tract 3876, River Islands, Phase 1B, Large
Lot Final Map", filed March 31, 2016, in Book 42 of Maps and Plats, at Page 56, official records of San Joaquin

County, more particularly described as fol(ows:

BEGINNING at a point on the East line of J7 court, as said court is described in Document No. 2020- 0? 6610, of
Official Records of San Joaquin County;

Theuce along said East line, along a curve to the left, having a radius of 56. 00 feet, from which point the radius point
bears South 50° 36' S8" West, through a central angle of OS° 11' 29", an arc distance of 5. 07 feet;

Thence, along a reverse curve, having a radius of 17. 00 feet, through a central angle of 44° 34' 31", an arc

distance of 13. 23 feet;

Thence, North 24. 30 feet; thence, leaving said East line, East 90. 00 feet; thence, South 40. 00 feet; thence, West 81. 72
feet to said point of beginning.

511



512



ITEM 4. 18

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

APRIL 10, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM: RATIFY THE PURCHASE OF CAMERA

SURVEILLANCE SYSTEMS FOR MAJOR CITY

PARKS CIP GG 22- 35

RECOMMENDATION:       Adopt a Resolution Ratifying a Service Contract
with ICU Technologies,  Inc.  for Major City
Parks CIP 22- 35

SUMMARY:

At the September 12, 2022 City Council Meeting, Council approved a budget to cover
the cost of a camera surveillance system for the first phase of Capital Improvement
Project  ( CIP)  GG 22- 35 Camera Surveillance Systems for Major City Parks.  The

approved budget of  $ 246, 950 will cover the cost of the initial three parks as
recommended by IXII Group,  Inc.  for a camera surveillance system for the first

phase. The first phase includes three ( 3) parks listed below.

Apolinar Sangalang Park - 13470 Slate Street

Manuel Valverde Park - 15557 Fifth Street

Woodfield Park - 801 Lathrop Road

Staff requested proposals from ICU Technologies, Inc. ( ICU) for the hardware and

services required at each park. ICU is an authorized seller of surveillance cameras
that meets the hardware specification of the City' s standard camera surveillance
system for all city parks. Furthermore, ICU is certified to perform the configuration
and installation of these cameras. Due to supply chain demand and shipping delays,
the City ordered surveillance cameras systems for the three  ( 3)  major parks in
January 2023 with ICU totaling a sum of  $ 146, 184.   This amount includes

configuration and installation services required to place the camera systems in
operation.

In addition to a camera surveillance system, other components are required to build

the infrastructure and network communication to implement the systems. The costs
of the additional components totals $ 39, 375, as listed in Table 1 on the following
page.

513



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

APRIL 10, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

RATIFY THE PURCHASE OF CAMERA SURVEILLANCE SYSTEMS FOR

MA] OR CITY PARKS CIP GG 22- 35

Table 1:

Ray' s Radio Industrial Wireless Network Installation & 16, 444

Communications Sales, Inc.      Confi urations

Vigilant Solutions, LLC Automatic License Plate Reader 7, 754

ALPR

GHA Technolo ies Uninterru ted Power Source UPS 4, 307

Solid Networks Inc.   Network Hardware 10, 870

Total Cost of Camera Surveillance

S stem Infrastructure Phase 1 39, 375

Tonight,  Staff is requesting City Council adopt a resolution to ratify the service
contract with ICU Technologies, Inc. for a sum not to exceed $ 146, 184 and approve

additional purchases with various vendors for infrastructure and network

communication equipment totaling $ 39, 375 for a total sum of $ 185, 559.

BAC KG ROU N D:

On September 13, 2021, City Council approved the creation of Capital Improvement
Project ( CIP) GG 22- 35 for Camera Surveillance Systems for Major City Parks. One
year after on September 12, 2022, Council approved Resolution 22- 5150 authorizing
a budget to cover the cost of a camera surveillance system for the first phase of CIP
GG 22- 35 Camera Surveillance Systems for Major City Parks. The approved budget
for the first phase was $ 224, 500 with a 10% contingency of$ 22, 450 for a final budget

of $246, 950. The phase included initial three parks listed below.

Apolinar Sangalang Park - 13470 Slate Street

Manuel Valverde Park - 15557 Fifth Street

Woodfield Park - 801 Lathrop Road

At Council direction, Staff requested proposals from ICU Technologies, Inc. ( ICU) for

installation required for each park. ICU is an authorize seller of surveillance cameras
that meets the hardware specification of the City' s camera surveillance system
standards for all city parks. Furthermore, ICU is certify to perform the configuration
and installation of these cameras.

ICU presented an estimate of $ 146, 184 to provide and install a camera surveillance
system at each of the city parks identified in the first phase of CIP GG 22- 35.   In

January 2023, the City ordered equipment from ICU.  The vendor' s estimate was

within the budget authorizes by Council for phase one.

ICU Technologies,  Inc.  currently holds an active contract with the U. S.  General

Services Administration ( GSA) - GSA Contract No. 47QSWA18D003K in Security &

514



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

APRIL 10, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

RATIFY THE PURCHASE OF CAMERA SURVEILLANCE SYSTEMS FOR

MA] OR CITY PARKS CIP GG 22- 35

Protection and Information Technology Hardware   &  Software.   This program,

administered by the United States Government, provides government agencies with
discounted pricing schedules,  and establishes purchasing contracts with vendors
through a competitive bidding process. The GSA' s competitive bidding process is in
conformance with the Office of Procurement, Department of General Services of the

State of California exemption as described in the Lathrop Municipal Code Section
2. 36. 110.   Furthermore, ICU has provided and installed other camera surveillance
systems at numerous City facilities.

The remaining budget is reserve for the purchase of a network infrastructure for each
camera surveillance system at Apolinar Sangalang Park, Manuel Valverde Park, and
Woodfield Park. In addition to a camera surveillance system, other components are

required to build the infrastructure and network communication to implement the

systems. The costs of the additional components totals $ 39, 375 and are within City
Manager' s signing authority. They are described below to show the progress of the
project.

Through a competitive bidding process, Staff selected the vendors listed in Table 1
to procure the additional components needed to implement the camera surveillance
systems.

Wireless Network Installation & Configurations - $ 16, 444

The City has an active agreement with Ray' s Radio to provide maintenance, repair

and on- call services for the City' s wireless communication towers. The vendor works
exclusively with the City' s communication equipment to ensure consistency and
integration with other equipment as well as limit exposure and access to sensitive

information. This vendor has access to the network security to install, configure and
maintain network equipment.

Automatic License Plate Reader ( ALPR) - $ 7, 754

The Automatic License Plate Reader ( ALPR) equipment required for this project is
proprietary in nature. Therefore, for this unique project, the City is requesting to use
specialized equipment that can only be obtained from Vigilant Solutions,  LLC

Vigilant) as they are the sole manufacturer of the L5F License Plate Reader ( LPR)

Camera System and do not have other distributors of the equipment. The City of
Lathrop currently uses Vigilant Solutions ALPR system exclusively to ensure

consistency and integration with current systems and maintain the ability for the
ALPR to communicate with the Lathrop Police Department software and throughout
the City network.  Due to equipment supply delays, Staff placed an order with Vigilant
for this specialized equipment in February 2023 to ensure all the components arrive
timely to complete the installation of each system at one time. The costs of the

equipment and services procured with Vigilant was $ 7, 754.

Uninterrupted Power Source ( UPS) - $ 4, 307

Staff requested quotes from vendors for Uninterrupted Power Source ( UPS) from ten

515



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 4

APRIL 10, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

RATIFY THE PURCHASE OF CAMERA SURVEILLANCE SYSTEMS FOR

MAJOR CITY PARKS CIP GG 22- 35

10) and received three ( 3) quotes as shown in Table 2. This equipment is to ensure
that in the event of a power outage that the system will remain unafFected.
Surveillance Systems are becoming an increasingly essential part in solving crimes.
It is crucial to procure more than one UPS to allow continuous surveillance during a
power outage.  GHA Technologies provided the lowest estimate with the earliest
availability for four ( 4) UPS units.

Table 2:

GHA Technolo ies Inc.     4, 307

CDW- G 4, 452

Connection Public Sector 4 547

Network Hardware - $ 10, 870

Staff requested quotes for Network Data Switches from six ( 6) vendors and received

five ( 5) quotes as shown in Table 3. Solid Networks presented the lowest quote of
10, 870. Solid Networks is contracted with the City to provide professional services

for Co- Management of Servers, security network, virtual environment, and storage
area network. The vendor has exclusive security access to the City' s network systems
to perform professional services and ensure business security and service continuity.

Table 3:

Solid Networks Inc.       10 870

GHA Technolo ies 10, 910

Insi ht Public Sector 13, 593

Staples 13, 954

Connection Public Sector 15, 563

Allied Network Solutions No Bid

Tonight,  Staff is requesting City Council adopt a resolution to ratify the service
contract with ICU Technologies, Inc. for a sum of $ 146, 184 and approve additional

purchases with various vendors for infrastructure and network communication
equipment and services totaling $ 39, 375 for a total sum of $ 185, 559 as summarized

in Table 4.

Table 4:

r r    . •   

ICU Technologies, Inc.    Camera Surveillance Systems 146, 184

Ray' s Radio Industrial Wireless Network Installation &    16, 444

Communications Sales, Inc.   Configurations

516



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 5

APRIL 10, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

RATIFY THE PURCHASE OF CAMERA SURVEILLANCE SYSTEMS FOR

MAJOR CITY PARKS CIP GG 22- 35

Vigilant Solutions, LLC Automatic License Plate Reader 7, 754

ALPR)

GHA Technolo ies Uninterrupted Power Source ( UPS) 4, 307

Solid Networks Inc. Network Hardware 10 870

Total Costs 185 559

StafF performed some of the services onsite as well as utilized available equipment
and recovered a saving of $ 51, 107 or 21% of the approved budget for these three

3) parks.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

The Camera Surveillance System procured through ICU Technologies, LLC for CIP GG
22- 35 for Camera Surveillance System for Major City Parks represents an effort to
utilize technology to deter crimes, expedite crime solving, and proactively monitor
activities to enhance crime prevention and citizens' safety.

FISCAL IMPACT:

There are sufficient funds available in CIP GG 22- 35 to cover the cost and installation

of a camera surveillance systems procured through ICU Technologies, Inc. and the
additional purchases for the network infrastructure required to implement the camera
surveillance systems.

ATTACHMENTS:

A.  Resolution Ratifying the Agreement with ICU Technologies, Inc. to Provide and
Install Camera Surveillance Systems and Approve the Purchases of Hardware

and Services for the Network Infrastructure for Major City Parks Surveillance
Systems at Apolinar Sangalang, Manuel Valverde & Woodfield Park, CIP GG

22- 35

B.  Service Contract with ICU Technologies,  Inc. to Provide and Install Camera

Surveillance System at Apolinar Sangalang, Manuel Valverde & Woodfield Park

517



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 6

APRIL 10, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

RATIFY THE PURCHASE OF CAMERA SURVEILLANCE SYSTEMS FOR

MA70R CITY PARKS CIP GG 22- 35

APPROVALS:

a 

ernandes Date

In ormation Systems Director

r

d

Ca '       e Date

Finance Di ctor

f Z o z3

Michael King Date

Assistant City Manager
a....

4   
Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

23
Stephen J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

518



RESOLUTION NO.  23 -

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP RATIFYING

A SERVICE CONTRACT WITH ICU TECHNOLOGIES,  LLC TO PROVIDE AND

INSTALL CAMERA SURVEILLANCE SYSTEMS AND APPROVE THE PURCHASES

OF HARDWARE AND SERVICES FOR THE NETWORK INFRASTRUCTURE FOR

MAJOR CITY PARKS CAMERA SURVEILLANCE SYSTEMS AT APOLINAR

SANGALANG, MANUEL VALVERDE, AND WOODFIELD PARK CIP GG 22- 35

WHEREAS,  on September 12,  2022 City,  Council approved a budget to

covered the cost of a camera surveillance system for the first phase of Capital
Improvement Project ( CIP) GG 22- 35 Camera Surveillance Systems for Major City
Parks; and

WHEREAS, the approved budget of $246, 950 will cover the cost of the initial

three parks as recommended by IXII Group, Inc. for a camera surveillance system
for the first phase; and

WHEREAS, the first phase includes ( 3) three parks, Apolinar Sangalang Park,
Manuel Valverde Park, Woodfield Park; and

WHEREAS, Staff requested proposals from ICU Technologies, Inc. ( ICU) for

installation required for each park. ICU presented an estimate of $ 146, 184 to provide
and install a camera surveillance system at each of the city parks identified; and

WHEREAS, in addition to a camera surveillance system, other components

are required to build the infrastructure and network communication to implement the

systems. The costs of the additional components totals $ 39, 375; and

WHEREAS, through a competitive bidding process, Staff selected vendors with
the lowest quote and earliest availability for each component needed.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the City Council of the City of Lathrop
does hereby ratify the service contract with ICU Technologies, Inc for a sum not to
exceed $ 145, 184 to provide and install camera surveillance systems and approve the
purchases of hardware and services totaling $ 39, 375 for the Network Infrastructure

for a total cost of $ 185, 559 for CIP GG 22- 35 Major City Parks Surveillance Systems
at Apolinar Sangalang, Manuel Valverde & Woodfield Park.

519



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 10t" day of April 2023, by the
following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST: APPROV AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

520



DocuSign Envelope ID: A01ED843- 4D36- 4A98- B9F6- 6CEFBa56BADB

SERVICE C NTRACT BET1fVEEN THE CITY F ATHROP AND

IGU TECHNOLOG ES, INC.

PR VIDE AND INSTALL CAMERA SURVEILLANCE SYSTEMS FOR
MAJOR CITY PARKS AT AP LINAR SANGALQNG, MANUEL

VALVERDE & W ODFIELD PARK CIP GG 22-35

TH1S SERVICE CONTRACT ( hereinafter" Contract"} is made on 27 day af
January 2023, by and between the City of Lathrop, a municipal corporatian o# the
State of Califomia ( hereinafter" City") and ICU Technologies, Inc. ( hereinafter

Contractor"}, whose Taxpayer ldentification Number is 27- 31189 8.

For and in consideration ofi the following covenants, terms and conditions, City and
Contractor ( the parties} agree:

SCOPE OF W4RK

Cantractor agrees to perform servicas of camera surveillance systems for major
city parks,  provide consulting services related to technology systems platform and
equipment associated with gathering video data at various park locatians within the city,
attached hereto as Exhibit" A", °B" and " C',  incorporated herein by reference. Contractor
agrees to diligently perform these services in accordance with the upmost standards of
its profession and to Gity' s satisfaction.

CONTRACT PRICE

The City agrees to pay and the Contractor agrees ta accept, in full payment for the
work above agreed to be done based on time and materials basis nat to exceed

14fi, 184. 27 set forth in the below Exhibits:

Exhibit "A" $ 35, 968. 03 Est# 2022-217Q Woodfield Park— 801 Lathrop Road

Exhibit " B" $ 58, 649. 39 Est # 2022- 2171 Apolinar Sangalang Park —i 3470 State St

Exhibit" C" $ 51, 566. 85 Est# 2022- 2172 Manuel Vafverde Park— 15557 " 5th" Street

TIME FQR PERF RMANCE

The effective date of this contract is t day of January 2023 and shall terminate no
iater than 30t'' of June 2023,

1NSPECTION BY CITY

The Cantractar shall at all times maintain proper facilities and provide safe access
for inspection by the City to all parts of the work, and to the shops wherein the work is in
preparation.  Where the Specifications require work ta be specially tested or approved, it
shall not be tested or covered up without timely, written approval by the City.

Attachment " B"
521



DocuSign Emetope ID: A01 ED843- 4D36- 4A9& B9F6- 6CEFB0568ADB

SERVlCE CONTRACT BETWEE1d THE CITY OF LATHR4P AND

ICU TECHN4LaGIES, INC.

PR4VIDE AND iNSTALL CAMERA SURVEILLANCE SYSTEMS FOR
MAJOR GITY PARKS AT APOLINAR SANGALANG, MANUEL

VALVERDE & WOUDFIELD PARK CIP GG 22- 35

Should any such work be covered up without such notice, approval, or consent, it must,
if required by City, be unct vered for examinatian at the Contractor's expense.

NOTICE

Any notice fram one party to the other under the Contract shall be in writing and
shall be dated and signed by the party giving such notice or by a duly authorized
representative af such party.   Any such notice shall not be effective for any purpase
whatsoever unless served in the foilowing manner.

a)      If the notice is given to the City, by personal delivery thereof to the City' s
Director of Information Systems, or by depositing the same in the United
States mail,  enclosed in a sealed envelope,  addressed to the City's
Department of Information Systems, postage prepaid and certified;

b)      If the notice is given to the Contractor, by personal delivery thereof to said
Contractor or to its duly authorized representative at the site of the project,
or by depositing the same in the United S#ates mail, encfosed in a sealed
envelope,  addressed to the Contractor at the address set forth in the
Contractor' s Bid postage prepaid and cert'rfied; or

c)      If the notice is given to the surety or any other person, by personal delivery
to such surety or other person, or by depvsiting the same in the United
States mail, enclosed in a sealed envelape, addressed to such surety or
other person, as the case may be, at the address of such surety or person
last communicated by it tv the party gi ing the notice, postage prepaid and
certified.

ACCIDENT PREVENTION

Precaution shall be exercised at all times for the protection af persons ( including
employees)  and property.  The safety provisions of appficable laws,  building and
construetion codes shall be observed.  Machinery, equipment, and other hazards shall be
guarded or eiiminated in accordance with the safety provisians of the Construction Safety
Orders issued by the Occupatianal Safety and Heal#h Standards Baard of the State af
California.

CONTRACTOR' S WARRANTY

The City shall not, in any way ar manner, be answerable or suffer loss, damage,
expense or liability for any loss or damage that may happen to said building, work, or
equipment or any part thereof, or in, on, or about the same during its construction and

Page 2 of i 1

522



DocuSign Envetope ID: A01E0843- 4D36- tA98- B9F6- 6CEF80568ADB

SERVICE CONTRACT BETWEEN THE CITY OF LATHROP AND

ICU TECHNOL4GIES, INC.

PR VIDE AND INSTALL CAMERA SURVEILLANCE SYSTEMS FOR
MAJOR CITY PARKS AT APOLINAR SANGALANG, MANUEL

VALVERDE & WODDFIELD PARK CIP GG 22- 35

before acceptance.  Contractor unqualifiedly warrants all work and materials ta be free of
defects whether performed or installec! by Et or by any subcontractor or supplier in the
project which is the subject of this Contract for a period of one year from #he date of the
agreement.

APPRENTICES

a)      The Contractor's attentian is directed ta the provisions of Sections 1777.5,
1777. 6, and i777J of the Califomia Labor Code conceming emp{oyment
of apprentices by the Contractor or any subcontractor under him.    In

addition,  Contractor shall obtain a certificate of apprenticeship before
employing any apprentice pursuant to Sections 1777. 5, 1777. 6 and 1777. 7
of the Califomia Labor Code.

b)      Informatian refative to apprenticeship standards,  wage schedules,  and

other requirements may be obtained from the Director of Industrial
Relations, ex officio the Administrator of Apprenticeship, San Francisco,
Califomia, or from the Division of Apprenticeship Standards and its branch
offices.

c)      Knowing violations of Section 1777.5 will result in forfeiture not to exceed
one hundred dollars  {$ 1 p0)  for each calendar day of non- compliance
pursuant #o Section 1777. 7.

HOURS OF WORK

Eight ( 8) hours of work in any calendar day shalf constitute a legal day' s work. The
Cantractor and each subcontractar shafl forfeit, as penalty to the City, twenty- five dollars

25) for each worker employed in the execution of work on the Project by the Gontractor
or any subcontractor under him for each calendar day during which such worker is
required or permitted tv work more than eight { 8 hours in any one Galendar day and forty
4Q} hours in any calendar week in violation of the provisions of the Labor Code, and in

particular, Section 1810 to Section 1815, thereof, inclusive, except that work performed
by employees of the Contractor and his subcontractars in excess of eight hours per day
at not less than one and one half times the basic rate vf pay, as provided in Labor Code
section 1815.

PAYROLL REC RDS

Pursuant to La or Code section 177fi,  as amended from time to time,  the

Contractor and each subcontractor shall keep recards shawing the name, address, social
security number, wark classification, straight time and overtime hours paid each day and

Page 3 af 11

523



DocuSign Envelope ID: A41 ED843- 4D38- 4A98- B9F6- 6CEFBU588ADB

SERVICE CUNTRACT BETWEEN THE CiTY OF LATHR P AND

ICU TECHNQL GIES, INC.

PRQVIDE AND INSTALL CAMERA SURVEILLANCE SYSTEMS FOR
MAJOR CITY PARKS AT APOLINAR SANGALANG, MANUEL

VALVERDE & WOUDFIELD PARK CIR GG 22- 35

week, and the actual per diem wages paid to each journeyrnan, apprentice, worker or
other employee employed by him or her in connection with the work.

The certified payroll records shall be on forms provided by the Division of Labor
Standards Enforcement or shall contain the same information as the forms provided by
the Division. The payroll records shall be certified and shall be available for inspection at
all reasonable hours at the principal office 4f the Contractor on the following basis:

a}      A certified copy of the employee' s payr411 records shall be made available
for inspection or furnished to such employee or his or her authorized

representative on request.

b)      A certified copy of all payrall records shall be made avaifable for inspection
or furnished upan request, or as required by Labor Cade section 1771. 7 to
the City, the Division of Labor Standards Enforcement and the Divisian of
Appr nticeship Standards of the Department of Industrial Relations.

c      A certified copy of all payroll records shall be made available upon request
to the public for inspection or copies thereof made;  provided, however, that
if request by the public shall be made through either the City, the Division
of Apprenticeship Standards,   or the Division of  abor Standards

Enforcement, if as requested, payroll records have been provided pursuant
to paragraph ( b), the requesting party shakl, prior to being provided the
records,    reimburse the cast of preparation by the Contractor,
subcontractors and the entity through which the request was made.  The

public shall not be given access to such records at the principal office of the
Contractor.

The Contractor shall file a cerfified copy of the payroll records with the entity that
requested such records within ten ( 10) calendar days after receipt of a written request.
Any copy of records made a ailable for inspection as copies and fumished upan request
to the public or the City, the Division of Apprenticeship Standards, or the Divisian of Labor
Standards Enforcement, shall be marked or obliterated in such a manner as to prevent
disclosure of an individual' s name, address, and sociai security number.  The name and
address of the Contractor or any subcontractor performing work on the Project shall not
be marked or obliterated.

The Contractor shall inform the City of the location of the payroll records, including
the street address, city and county, and shall, within five ( 5) calendar days, provide a
notice of a change of location and address.

Page 4 of 11

524



DocuSign Envelope Ip: A41E0843- 4D36- 4A9& 89F6- 6CEF80568AD8

SERVICE CONTRACT BETWEEN THE CITY OF ATHROP AND

ICU TECHNO GIES, tNC.

PROVIDE AND INSTALL GAMERA SURVEILLANCE SYSTEMS FQR
MAJ R CITY PARKS AT APOLINAR SANGALANG, MANUEL

VAI.VERDE & WOODFIELD PARK CIP GG 22-35

In the event of noncompliance with the requirements of this section, the Contractor
shall have ten ( 10) caiendar days in which to comply subsequent to receipt of written
notice specifying in what respects the Contractor must comply with this section.  Should
noncompliance still be evident after such ten ( 10) calendar day period, the Cantractor
shall, as a penalty to the City, forfeit twenty-five doNars ($ 25} for each calendar day, or
portion thereofi, for each worker until strict compliance is effectuated.  Upon tha request

of the Division of Labor Standards Enforeement, such penalties shall be withheld from
payments due Contractar.

PREVAILING WAGES

a)      The Contractor is aware of the requirements of California Labor Code
Sections 17 0 et seq. and 177a et seq., as well as Califomia Code of
Regulations, Title 8, section 16000 et seq. (" Prevailing Wage Laws") which

require the payment of prevailing wage rates and the performance of other
requirernents on certain " public works" and " maintenance" projects.  Since

this Contract involves an applicable "public works" or" maintenance" project,
as defined by the Prevailing Wage Laws, and since the to#al compensation
is $ 1, 000 or more, Contractor a rees to fully comply with such Prevailing
Wage Laws.  The Contractor shall obtain a copy of the prevailing rates of
per di m wages applicable to the work to be performed by subcontractors
from the website of the Divisian of Labor Statistics and Research of the
Department of Industrial Relations located at

http:// www. dir.ca. gavldlsr/ PWD/ index. htm.  In the altemative, the City shall
provide Contractor with a copy of the prevaifing rates of per diem wages
applicable to the work to be performed by subcontractors.  Contractor shall

make copies af the prevailing rates of per diem wages for each craft,
classification or type af worker needed to perform work on the Project
available to interested parties upon request, and shall post copies at the
Cantractor' s principal place of business and at the Project site.

Contractor shall defend, indemnify and hold the City, its efected officials,
officers,  employees and agents free and harmless from any claims,
liabilities,  casts, penalties ar interest arising out of any failure ar allege
failure to comply with the Prevailing Wage Laws.

b)      The Contractar and each subcontractor shall fvrfeit as a penalty to the City
not more than fifty doHars ($ 50} for each calendar day, or portion thereof,
for each worker paid less than the stipulated prevailing rate for any work
done by him, or by any subcontract under him, in violation of the provisions
of the Catifomia Labar Code.   The differ nce between such stipulated
prevailing wage rate and the amount paid to each worker for each calendar

Page 5 of 11

525



DocuSign Envelape IR: A01EQ843- 4D36-0A98- B9F6- 6CEFB056BADB

SERVICE CONTRACT BETWEEN TNE CITY t)F LATHR P AND

ICU TEGHNOLQGIES, ING.

PROVIDE AND INSTALL CAMERA SURVEILLANCE SYSTEMS FOR
MAJOR CITY PARKS AT APOLINAR SANGALANG, MANUEL

VALVERDE & W t3DFiELD PARK CIP GG 22- 35

day or portion thereaf for which each worker was paid less than the
stipufated prevailing wage rate shall be paid to each worker by the
Contrac#or.

INSURANCE

On or before beginning any of #he services or work called for by any term of this
Agreement, CONTRACTOR, at its own cost and expense, shall carry, maintain for the
duration of the Agreement, and provide prdof thereof that is acceptable to the CtTY the
insurance specified in subsections (a) through (c) below with insurers and under forms of
insurance satisfiactory in all respects to the CITY.

C4NTRACTOR shall not allaw any subcontractor to commence work on any
subcontract until all insurance required of the C4NTRACTQR has also been obtained far

the subcontractor.  Verification of this insurance shall be submitted and made part of this
Agreement prior to execution.

a}      Workers'      Compensation.    C NTRACTCIR shafi,      at

CONTRACTQR' S sole cost and expense,   maintain Statutory
Warkers'   Compensation lnsurance and Employer' s Liability
Insurance #or any and alf persons employed directly or indirectly by
CONTRACTOR.  Said Statutory Workers' Compensation Insurance
and Employer' s Liability Insurance shall be provided with limits of not
less than one milliQn dollars  ($ 1, 0OO, OaO).    In the alternative,

CONTRACTOR may rely on a self- insurance program to meet these
requirements provided that the pragram of self-insurance complies
fully with the provisians of the California Labor Code.  The insurer, if

insurance is provided, or the CONTRACTOR, if a program of self-
insurance is provided, shal! waive all rights of subrogation against
the CITY for loss arising from work performed under this Agreemenf.

b}      Commercial General and Automobile Liability Insurance.

CCINTRACTOR, at CQNTRACTOR' S own cost and expense, shall
maintain commercial general and automobile liability insurance for
the period covered by this Agreement in an amount not less th n one
million dallars per occurrence ($ 1, 000,000), combined single limit

coverage for risks associated with the work contemplated by this
Agreement.   If Commercial General Liability Insurance or an

Automobile Liability form or other farm with a general aggregate limit
is used, either the general aggregate limit shall apply separately to
the work to be performed under this Agreement or the general

Page 6 of i 1

526



DocuSign Envelope ID; AQ1ED843- 4D36- 4A98- B9F6- 6CEFB0568ADB

SERVICE C NTRACT BETWEEN THE CITY OF 1. ATHROP AND
ICU TECHNOLC GIES, INC.

PR4VIDE AND INSTALL CAMERA SURVEILLANCE SYSTEMS F4R
MAJOR CITY PARKS AT APQLINAR SANGALANG, MANUEL

VALVERDE & WQQDFIELD PARK CIP GG 22-35

aggregate limit shall be at least twice the required occurrence limit.

Such coverage shall include but shall not be limited to, protection
against claims arising from bodily and personal injury,  including
death resulting therefram, and damage to property resulting from
activities contemplated under this Agreement, including the use of
owned and non- owned automobiles.

Coverage shall be at least as broad as Insurance Services ffice
Commercial General iability occurrence form CG 0 01 ( ed. 11/ 88

and Insurance Services Office Automobile Liability form CA OOa1
ed. 12/ 90) Code 1 { any auto).

Each of the following shall be included in the insurance coverage or
added as an endorsement to the poficy:

i)       CITY,  its officers,  employees,  and volunteers are to be

cavered as insured with respect to each of the following:
liability arising out of activities performed by or an behalf of
CONTRACTOR,   products and completed operations of

CONTRACTOR;  premises owned,  occupied or used by
CONTRACTOR.    The coverage shall Gontain no special

limitations an the scope of protection afforded to CITY,  its
afficers, employees, agents, ar volur teers.

ii)      The insurance shall cvver on an occurrence or an accident
basis, and nat an a claim made basis.

iii)      An endorsement must state that cQverage is primary

insurance and that na other insurance affected by the CITY
will be called upon to contribu#e to a loss under the coverage.

iv}     Any failure of CaNTRACTOR to comply with reporting

provisions of the poficy shall not affect coverage provided to
CfTY and its officers, employees, agents, and volunteers.

v}      Insurance is to be placed with California- admitted insurers
with a Best' s rating of no less than A: VII.

vi}     Notice af cancellation ar non- renewal must be received by
CITY at least thirty days priar to such change.

c)      Deductibles and Self- Insured Retentions.    C4NTRACTOR shall

disclose the self- insured retentions and deductibles before beginning
any of the services or work called for by any term of this Agreement.

Page 7 of 11

527



DocuSign Enveiope Ip; A01 ED843- 4D36- 4A98- 89F6- 6CEFB4566Ab6

SERVICE GQNTRACT BETWEEN THE C1TY { F LATHROP AND

ICU TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

PROVIDE AND tNSTALL CAMERA SURVEtLLANCE YSTEMS FC R
MAJOR CITY PARKS AT APOL NAR SANGALANG, MANUEL

VALVERDE & W40DFIELD PARK CIP GG 22- 35

During the period covered by this Agreement, upon express written
authorization of CITY Manager, CON7RACTQR may increase such
deductibles or self- insured retentians with respect to CITY,  its

officers, emplayees, agents, and volunteers.   The ClTY Manager

may condition approval of an increase in deductible or self- insured

retention levels upon a requirement that CONTRACTQR procure a
bond guaranteeing payment of losses and related investiga#ions,
claim administration, and defense expenses that is satisfac#ory in all
respects to each of them.

d)      Notice af Reduction in Caveraqe.   In the event that any coverage
required under subsectinns  ( a),  ( b},  or ( c)  of this section of the

Agreement is reduced, limited, or materially affected in any other
manner,  CONTRACT R shall provide written notice to CITY at
CONTRACTQR' S earliest possible opportunity and in no case later
than five days after CONTRACTOR is notified of the change in
coverage.

e)      In addition ta any other remedies CITY may have if CQNTRACT R
fails ta provide or maintain any insurance policies or policy
endorsements ta the extent and within the time herein required, CITY
may, at its sole option:

i)       Obtain such insurance and deduct and retain the amount of
the premiums for such insurance from any sums due under
the Agreement;

ii)      rder CONTRACTaR to stop work under #his Agreement or
withhold any payment which becomes due to eONTRACT4R

hereunder, or both stop work and withhold any payment, until
CONTRACTOR demonstrates compliance with the

requirements hereof;

iii)     Terminate this Agreement.

Exercise of any of the above remedies, hawever, is an alternative to other remedies CITY
may have and is nat the exclusive remedy for CONTRACTOR' S breach.

1NDEMNIFICATI4N

Cantractor agrees to protect, defend,  indemnify and hold City,  its City Council
members, officers, employees, engineer, and consultants harmless from and against any

Page 8 of 11

528



DocuSign Ernelope Ib: A01ED843- 4d36-4A98- B9F8- 6CEF60568AD8

SERVICE CONTRA T BETWEEN THE CITY QF LATHROP AND

ICU TECHNOLQGIES, INC.

PROVIDE AND INSTALL CAMERA SURVEfLLANCE SYSTEMS F R

MAJOR CITY PARKS AT APaLINAR SANGALANG, MANUEL
VALVERDE & WOODFIELQ PARK CtP GG 22- 35

and all claims, demands, liabilities, losses, damages, costs, expenses, liens, penalties,
suits, or judgments, arising in whole or in part, directly or indirectly, at any time from any
injury to or death of persons or clamage to property as a result of the wiNful or neg)igent
act or omission of Contractor, or which results from Contractor' s noncompliance with any
Law respecting the condition, use, occupation or safety of the Project site, or any part
hereof,  or which arises from Contractor's failure ta do anything required under this

Contract or for doing anything which Contractor is requir d not to do under this Contract,
or which arises from conduct for which any Law imposes strict liability on Cantractar in
the performance of or failure to perform the terms and conditions of this Contract, except
as may arise from the sole willful or negligent act ar omission of City or any of its City
Council members, officers, employees.

This indemnification shall e ctend to any and all claim, demands, ar liens made or
filed by reason of any canstruction,  renovation,  or remodeling work performed by
Gontractor under this Contract at any time during the term of this Gontract, or arising
thereafter.

SEVERABILiTY

Nothing contained in the Cantract shall be construed so as to require the
commissian of any act contrary to law.   Should a conflict arise between any provision
cantained herein and any present or future statute, law, ardinance or regulation contrary
to which the parties have no legal right t contract or act, the latter shall prevail and the
pravision of this Gontract which is affected shall be curtailed and limited bu# only ta the
ex#ent necessary ta bring it within the requirements of the law.   If such curtailment or
limitation is not possible, the affected provision shall be of no force and effect.  Except as

aforesaid, such illegality shali not affact the validity of this Contract.

COMPLETE AGREEMENT

This Contract supersedes any and all agreements, either oral ar in writing, between
the Parties with respect ta the subject matter herein.  Each party to this Contract
acknowledges that no representation by any party which is not embodied herein or any
other agreement, statement, or promise not contained in this Contract shall be valid and
binding.

iNTERPRETATI N

a)      The par#ies hereto acknowledge and agree that each has been given the
opportunity to independently review this Contract with legal counsel, and/ or
has the requisite experience and sophistication to understand, interpret and
agree to the particular language of the provisions of the Contract.

Page 9 of 11

529



DocuSign Envelope ID: A01 ED& l3-4D36- 4A9& 69 6- 6CEF8056BAD8

SERVICE C NTRACT BETWEEN THE CITY OF LATHROP AND
ICU TECHNQLCIGIES, INC.

PRUVIDE AND INSTALL CAMERA SURVEILLANCE SYSTEMS FOR
MAJOR CITY PARKS AT APOLINAR SANGALANG, MANUEL

VALVERDE & W 4DFIELD PARK CIP GG 22- 35

b)      In the event of a controversy or dispute between the parties concerning the
pravisions herein,  this document shall be interpreted according to the
provisions herein and no presumption shaN arise concerning the

draftsmanship of such provision.

APPLICABLE LAW

a)      The parties hereto understand and agre that the terms of this Contract,

and its Exhibits, have been negotiated and executed within the State of

California and shall be governed by and construed under the laws of the
State of California.

b)      In the event of a dispute conceming the ierms of this Contrac#, the parties
hereto expressly agree that the venue for any Isgal action shall be with the
appropriate court in the County of San Joaquin, State of California.

SIGNATURES

The individuals executing this Agreement represent and warrant that they have
the right,  power,  legal capacity,  and authority to enter into and to execute this
Agreemant on behalf of the respective iegal entities of the CONTRACTOR and the
CITY.  This agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties
hereta and their respective successors and assigns.

Page 10 of 11

530



DocuSign Envelope ID: A01 ED843-4D3fr4A98-B9F6-&CEF80568AD6

SERVICE CQNTRACT BETWEEN THE CtTY OF LATHRtJP AND

ICU TECHNOLQGIES, INC.

PR4VIDE AND fNSTALL GAMERA SURVEILLANCE YSTEMS F R

MAJOR GITY PARKS AT AP LINAR SANGALANG, MANUEL

VALVERQE  WOODFIELD PARK CIP GG 22- 35

Approved as to Form:  City of Lathrop
City Attorney

7  _ -.' -      } Z ( ._ zC Z.3
S IvadcS'r Navarrete Date

Recommended for Approval: City of Lathrop
Director of Information Systems

s:

wy t., c. s 1/ zo/ 2oz3

2DE839924888400,

Tony Fernandes Date

Approved By:       City af Lathrop
39a Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

r     "—     

Fosz 27- 2.GZ3

Stephen J. Saivatore Date

City Manager

Contractor.  ICU Technologie5, Inc.

1382 Blue Oaks Blvd., Suite 110

Roseville, CA 95678

Fed iD # 27-3118908

Lathrap Business License # 41814

nocusqo. a ey:

1/ 20/ 2023
J

Signature Date

Tommy Smith
CEO

Print Name and Title

Page 11 of 11

531



DocuSign Envelope ID: A01 ED643- 4D36- 4A98- 69F6- 6CEF60568AOB

EXHIBIT A

1CU Technolo9ies, Int.    

Est i m atet 382 lue oaks Bivd, 5uire 1 t3
Roseville, CA 9567' 8
U ited 5tates

2022- 217a

e f t o TOTAL

City df L, throp
City ot tathrop
3gb Towne tentre Dr

Lathrop CA g5330
United Siates

Date: l0t! 1/ 2022

Ship To E cptratton Project Contract

Ciry of tathrop 01tt 0i2 23 Ctty of l.athrop: Ciry Parks G5A 47QSVVA16a003K

ity af Lathrop Video SvluEion
394 Towne Centre Dr

Lathrop CA 95334
United States

SIN Item Qu t[ty Rate Amount

33 i22t     1SC- H4A- 3M} i-270 1 i, 720. 47 51, 720.47

3X5 MP, WDR, LightCat her, 2. 8mm, Camera Only

33422Q 20C• H4A- 4MFE- 350 1 52, 007. 2Z 52, 007. 22

4X5 MP, WDR, lightCatther, 2.Smm, Camera On{y

OLM Pp354 4 5448. 54 31, 794. 00

Pelco PP350 Parapet Wafl Mount

UI. M ttU tSA• MISC 4 S1{? Q. OQ 5400. Q0

FMP Poie Mount Adapter ior WMP- S adnWMP- L

334220 114AMN- Aa-IRIL1 1 S315. 41 5315. 41

Optlonal 1R illuminator ring, up to 3 m t10aft), for use
with Ff4AMH• t U• COVR1.

O! M H4AMH- DO- COYR1 2 5129. 6     5259. 20

Dome bubbie and caver, for outdaar surFate mount or
pendant mount, tlear.

Olt i i i4AMH• AD- PfNDi Z Sib2. 00 5324. 00

Outdoar pendant rnount adapter, must arder one oF
tRPT1- MNT- WALi. 1 or IRPTZ- MNT- HPTAi and one of
H4AMN- DQ-C VRt or H4AMH- dO-COVRt- SMOKE.

S3LM IRPTZ- MNTfiIPTA' 1 4 44. 55 S1T$. ZO

Maunt, Pend NPT Adapter. lR PTZ

33422U 2.00- H42R TZ- DP3o- wP 2 53, 178. 98 56, 357. 96

2MP H4 IR PiZ, with Wiper 30X, Self- learning anatytics,
IKtU, IP66, 254m IR

334220 VMA- AS3 8P& NA 2 52,552. 59 55, 105. 18

HD Yideo Appffance 8-part 8't6; NA. ACC liCertses sold
separatety

33A22a att7•ENT 4 S25&. 39 5, 033.56

ACC 7 Enterprlse Edition tamera IMcense

01.M PaE-1PiJ2- 60VI NA Z 5117. 66 5235. 32

Indoor single port Gigabii Pof++ pW

N

i at3

2022•3i70

532



DocuSig Envelope ID: A41 D843- 4D36- 4A98- 69F6- 6CEFB0568ADB

1CU Tech alog,; n.    

Est i r ate1382 Hlue Oaks Blvd, 5uite t 1Q
RosevQie, CA 95678
Unfted StaEes

2Q22- 2170

S! M ltem Quantky Rate Amo t

aLM POE- INJ2- 95W- NA Z f324. Q0 5648. d0

Iridnar singie Part PoE In ector G gabit, 95W, NA power
tord, foc ttse witfi H4IR P

OlM ICU• GSA• MISC S& 11. 00 3841. 40

RSU Enciosure indudinq pole mount

OE_M ICU- GSA- MISC 1 51. 400.( J{?   f'i, 400. Q0

Misc InsWltation materials, including cabling, conduit,
ftttings, blatks, ton eaors, and patth cabtes

O Nt ICU- GSA- MISC t 5743. 82 f703.82

l.aw Prafile vertical V1faR Mount Enclosure 361nth Serve
Depth Patch Panel tabinet 91ack

541330.     Secu ity Tethnician i b4 3127. 27 SB, t 45. 28

Expert in securiry system design and Instaltatla.
Provides advice, counsel, review servicez, and a nions

an a wide variety a!`matters pertaiMng to secu ry
systems ope ations and systems managemen[.

541330L Pro, ct lead 6 5161. 54 5969. 24

eads and dlrecu the performance af a varlety of
reiated Secu iry and surveillarxe technolQgy project.
Responsible Eor ensurfng hic h qua[ Iry praducts and
services tt at are de!"wered according to the agrcied
sthedule and budget of the applfcable task/ deiivery
order.

54t330     5etu ity Eagineer 3 5171. 33 5513. 99

torrtribute in the executlon af the day-to-day tasks and
support of the proJett along wtth impEementing and
deployfng the maaor portlon$ of the soiuti n. Applies
engIneerTng expertise and knowledge of state- of- the- art
saftware, h dware, network lnfrastructure, and/ ar
infarmat on technology in support of lntegratton of
securfty and survefllance tecfinoingy systems.

5a/ 3304 Praject Manager 3 5195. 80 S587. 40

Oversees and leads asslQned tasks of prajecis for law
enfarcement, hamelanddefense, emergency

Preparedness, K- 12 campus saiety and security
ntormatian technology cfler ts. Gufdes projects from the

original concept through final implementation, Defines

pro ect scape and obJectives, including deve pfag
detailed wark plans, day- ta-day management direction,
schedutes, praject estlrnates, resource pians, status
reports, and praject tratking and anaFysis. Condurts
project meetings and ensures quality stendards.
Provides advanted techNtat and strategic guldance to
mult(pie pro)ett teams and uverse z proJett
deiiverables. Responsibie fa' asslstirtg in aq aspects oF
prajett technical, c tractuai, admin stratnre, dnd
tin ncEsl perfarmance.

Subtatal 533, 539. 25

iF Chargt 0.75S6%      S253A2

OLM       ; Cil- SHIPPING 1 5225. 00 5225. 00

Freight to customer lotation

IIti111 111 1 111! 1       2° 3

z.,

533



DocuSign Envelope iD: A01 ED843- dp3f 4A98- B9F6- BCEFBQ566ADB

ICU Technologies ln,    

Es i mate1382 Slue Daks B vd, Suite 110
RoseviHe, G4 95678
United States

C U ozz-z o

subcuta s3a. o, 7. 67

Tax Total{! L)    51, 95. 36

Tatal 535, 968. 03

t oa osaaa
Emdil Order Lo ar ier_<pic wtpchinccorn

Payment by credtt card wfp intiude a 4% protessing fee

Accepted By:

Atcepted ate:

1 1

3 c 3

2or2- 2» o

534



DocuSign Envelope ID: A01 ED843- 4D36- 4q98- B9F6- BCEF8056BAD$

EXHIBIT B

ICU Technolo ies Inc.    
t

382 glue oaks B vd, Suite t t o
Roseviile, CA 95678
United States

c u 202- 2171

s; u' ti T07'AI.

City of Lathrop
Ciry of Lathrop
39{ I Towne Certcre Dr Q   / .

UntedSta es       t

Date: 1011112022

5h}p To E kad  Projett Contratt

City of LaEhrop Ui/ 12/ 20Z3 Cicy of lathrop: City Parfcs GSA it dTQSWA18 Q03K

City of Lathrap Video Sotutton

390 Towne Cencre Dr

Lathrap CA 9533a
United 5tates

SIN item Quandty Rau Rmount

33422Q 15C- H4A• 3MM- 270 51, 720. 47 SS, 161. 41

3X5 MP, WDR, LlghtCatther, 2. 8mm, Camera nly

3342Z0 ZOC• H4A- 4MH- 360 1 f2. 007. 22 52, 007. 22

4X5 MP, WDR, I. ightCatcher, 2.8mm, Camera Only

tM PP350 6 S44$. SQ 52, 69i.

Pelcn PP35Q parapet Wall Mount

Q M ICtt• G5A• MISC 141. 00 5246. 00

PMp Pale Maunt Adapter tor WMP- s adnWMP• L

334220 H4AMH- AD- IRIt1 4 3 5. 41 S1, 2b1. b4

Qptional iR illuminator ring, up to 30m i ft}. or use

nnth N4AMH- Df• CdVR1.

A M H4AMN- DU- C VR1 4 5129. 60 SSi$. 4Q

Dors e bubble and cover, for outdoor surface mount or

pendant mounc, ciear.

OlM H4AMti- AQ- PEFiD1 4 ft62. 00 5648. 00

OutdoQr pendant mount adapter, must order one of
IRPTZ- MA1T• WALL! ar IRPTI- MNT- NPTR1 enct o te of
N4AMH• Od- COVR1 or HdAMH• DO- COVRI- SMQKE.

QtM IRP7Z• MNT NPTA1 6 S44. 55 5267. 30

Mouni, Pend NPT Adapter,! R PTZ

334220 2.00• H4IRPT[? P30 WP S3, i7898 56, 357. 96

2MP H4 IR PlZ, with Wiper 30X, Self•{earning analytics,
IKiO, IP66, 250m iR

OlM VMA- AS3- 24P24- NA 1 58. 720. 11 S$, 72a. 11

ND Video Appilance 24Part 4T8

334220 ACC7• ENT 5 5258. 39 x1, 550. 34

ACC 7 Enterprise Edition camera license

OLM POE- INj2 50W- NA 4 St i 7. 66 5470. b4

indaor singte pon Gigabit FaE+ 60W

lll f     IIN I
f

2022- 21T1

535



flocuSign Envelape tD: A01ED843- 4Q36- 4A98- B9F6- 6CEFB056BAD6

3CU Technologies, lnt.    
382 Blue Oafcs Btvd, Suite 11U L

Roseville, CA 95678
United States

2Q22- 21 ? 1

SIN item Qusntity Ratt Arnount

OLM POE- IN] 2-95W- NA 2 5324. QD 5648. 00

tndoor single Port PaE tn{e tor Glgabit, 95W, NA pawer
to d, fot use with H4[ R P'' Z

C1lM IGU- GSA- MISC 5 S1, 4Cr9. 92 57, 349. 60

Avigi an ES- P5-S4- Fiber 5witth

OLM ICU- GSA• MISC 2 5841. 00 51, 682. 00

RSU Enclosure induding pole mou t

OLM ICU- GSA- MI5C 1 S1. 6W. 00 51, 600. 0

Mist InstallaElo materlafs, fnduding cabling, canduit,
fittings, blocks, connectars, and patch cables

t7Lt       ICU- GSA- MLSC 1 5703. 82 5703. 82

Loti+r P afile Vertica) WaH Mount Enclosure 36 lnch Server
Oepth Patch panei Gabinet Biatk

54i3301 SecurityTechnicianl 80 5127. 27 St0. t81. 6t1

E cpert in sewrity system design and inttallatlon.
Provides advice, caunsel, review services, and opinlons

on a wide variety af matters pertalntng to security
syscems aperatlons and systems managemenG

541334L Project Lead S 5161. 5d 1, 292. 32

Leads and directs the pertarmance of a variery of
related 5ec riry and surveiliance tethnaiogy p oJecEs.
Responslble for ensurMg high quafiry products a d
servlces that are delivered according to the agreed
schedule and budget af the appfica6le task/ det'rv ry
order.

54133 1 Seturity Engineer 3 S171. 33 SS1. 99

Contribute in the exetution af che day- to-day tasks and
support of ihe projett alnng wtth implement ng and
deploying the major portlons of the 5c lution. App(fes
engineering expertfse and k wledge of state- of-the- art
software, hardware, netwark infrasiructur, andlar
information technology in suppart of fntegradon of
security and surveiilance technniogy systems.

54t33ot project Manager 3 Si45. 8Q 5587. 40

Oversees and teads asstgned tasks ot pr etts iar taw
enforcerr ent, homela d defense, emergency
preparedness, K- 12 campus safecy and seturiry
nfo matian Eechno ogy[ lients. Guides pra ects from the
or mal cancept through final imp ementation. Defines
pro ect scope and ot ectFves, lnctud'eng developing
detatlad wofk plans, day-to-day management direttfon,
schedutes, proJect estimates, resource p[ans, status
reports, and project tracking and a alysis, Conducts
pro ect meet ngs and ensures qualiry standards.
Provides advanced technkal and strategEc guidance co
muitipie proJect tearns and oversees p oject
deirverables. Respon5ible far assisting in at) aspects af
pro ect technkai, cantractuai, administrative, and
Einanciat performance.

subcccal ssa,as8.7s

iFF harge 4. 755696 Sa11. 49

ilil ll llii i f
z` 3

2022-2471

536



DoeuSign Envelope IQ: A01 E0843- 4036- 4A9H- 89F6- BCEFB056BA08

ItU Technologies Inc.    

Esti mate13$ 2 Slue O ks B vd, Suite 114
RaseviUe. CA 95578
United States

2UZ2- 2171

5IN Item Qusntity Rate JI tount

Oi.M ICU- SHIPpIIVG 1 SISO. dQ 525t3. 08

Frelght ta custamer tocation

Subtotal 555, 120.24

Taz Totat( 94j 53, 529. 15

7otal SS8, 6A9. 39

DIR# ti000tI64885

Email Order to p: LS 1ts13 Ghi. LQID

Payment by trec it tard wNl lnttude a 4! i processing fee

Atee{ ted By:

Accepted pate:

a     M i       3 0

2D22- 2fTt

537



DocuSign Enve(ope ID: A01 ED843- 4p36- 4A98- 69F8- 6CEFH0566ADB

EXHIBIT C

ICU Technatagies, Inc.    

ate1382 Blue Daks 8lvd, Suite 11
RosevilEe, CA 95b78
United States

2Q22- Z 172

g t ro TCITAL

Ciry o athrop
Ciry ot Lathrc p
390 Towne Cenire Or

Lathrop CA 95330
U lted States

nat: a inosz

5hip' fo ExpEtatbn ProJect tontntt

City of athrop 01/ 12/ 20 3 CIry of athrop: City Parks GSA 47QSWAt 8D0U3K
City of Lathrop Vldeo 5alutlon
390 Towne Centre Dr

Lathrop CA 95334
Un ted Scates

lxem Quant{ ty itace Amounc

334220 15GH4A- 3MIi- 27d 3 51, 720. 47 S5, ib1. 41

3X5 MP, WpR, LlghtCatcher, 2.8mm, Camera Only

33AZ2Q ZOC- H4A- 4MH• 360 2 S2. a07. 22 4. 014. 44

4X5 MP, WDR, t ghtCatcher,. 8mm, Camera Only

OLM Pp350 3 S448. 5Q 51, 345. SQ
Pelco PP350 Parapet Wap Maunt

OLM ICU- SA- MISC 3 5100. OQ S30a. Qp

PMP Pole Mount Adapter for WMp- 5 adnWMP»!,

33-0220 M4AMH- AD- IRI1. 9 5 1315. 41 3i, 577.05

Optiona! IR il minator ring, up to 30m( t00ft), for use
with N4AMH- DO- COVRt.

OlM H AMN- DQ• COVR7 5 5129. b0 5648.00

Dome bubble and caver, far outdaor surface mount or
pe dant mount, dear.

OLM N4AM1i- Ab- PENDt 5 St62. 00 5810. 00

Outdoar pandanc mount adapter, must order one ot
IRPT'Z- MNT-WAl.L1 or IRPTl- MINY- NP' i'A1 and one oi
H4AMH- D4-tOVR1 or NAAMN- Od- L VRI- SMQKE.

OLM IRP' IZ- IVII T- WAGL1 3 576. 95 S230.85
Mount, Pend wa11, IR PTZ

331t220 H4MT- CRPiR1 3 S87. i5 5243.45

Corner mount adapter for use with N4A- MT-WALLt, H4-
BC JBOX1, H45L, H4F and H4 PTZ cameras.

QlM IRPTZ• MNT NP A1 4 544. 55 5178. Z0

Mount, Pend NPT Adapter. tR PTZ

334220 x.00• N4IRPTZ• Op30- WP 2 i3,178. 98 56, 357. 96

2MP H4! R PTZ, wtch Wiper 30X, Self-feaming anafy[ ic,
KIQ, tP66, 7SOm iR

334220 ACCJ- ENT 7 5258. 39 Si, 80$. 73
ACC 7 Enterpri3e Edi€ n tamera iicense

qllfal lllll0 a f

Zo22• 2 r2

538



DocuSign Envelape ID: A01EQ843- 4036- 4A98- B9F6- 6CEFBQ56BAD8

3sevileeC.A9568 `$
uit ,° Esti mate

United States

2022-2172

SIN Item Quantlty Rate Amoant

OLM P EINJ2 60W- NA 5117. 66 5117. 66

Indaor single po t Gigabit FoE++ bpw

DLM POH INJ2- 95V11- NA S32Q. 00 5648, 0

Indaor Single Port PoE Inlector Gtgabl 95W, NA pawer
cord, for use with H43R P' Z

aLNI F' D- 9512G 1 51, 876. 58 f 1. 87658

MItROCHlP PO-9512GGAC- U512-PORT LEGACY bOW/
PORT MANAGEDfEEE8Q2. 38T

I. M tCU• GSA- MISC 3 51, 469. 92 S4, 4U9. 76

Avtgibn ES- P5- S4- Fiber Swftth

OlM 1CU- GSA- MISC 1 1, 600. Q0 S1, 60Q. 00

Misc installadan materiais, indud[ng tabEing, condult,
fitttngs, btocics, tonnectas, and patch cabtes

OCM ItU- GSA• MISC 1 5703. 82 5703. 82

Law Prafile Verticat WaH Mount Enclasure 361nch Seroer
Depth Patch Panet Cabinet Btack

Sa 33a     Security Technician I 1t?4 5127. 27 S13, 236, 08

Expert in securlty system desigr and lnstailatton.
Provides advice, taunsei, revlew se+rwces, and opInions

on a wide variety oEmatters pertaEning to securiry
systems operatlons and systems management.

54133Qt Projectlead 12 S16t. 54 51, 438. 48

eads and direcis che perFormance vf a variery of
retated Security and sunreitlance tect nology proJects.
Respons ble for ensuring high quaNty praducts and
services that are del vered accardfng to the agreed
sthedute and butfget of the apptfca6le tasWdelivery
order.

541330L 5ecurity Engineer 5171. 33 5513. 94

Contribute in the execudon of the day-io-day tasks and
support af the prvject along with impiement ng and
deployir the major port ns of the solution. Apptfes
eng neer ng expertise and knowledge of state- of-the-art
so tware, hardware network inirastructure, and/ or
informatfon tethna Ogy In uppoR of Integratlon of
zecuriry and surveiliance[ echnology systems.

541330t Projert Manayer 5195. 88 5587. 40

f3versees and leads assigned tasks ot projects fa-iaw
enfv ctment, homelanddtfense, emergency
preparedness, K- 12 campus safety and security
informatton technology tllents. Gufdts proJects from the
ari nal cancept ttuough final lmplementatlon. Defines
pro ett scope and objectives, inciuding devetoping
detalied work plans, day taday management direction,
schedules, praject esc mates, reseurce p[ans, status
repoRs, andprojea vackln and ana[ysis. Canducts
project meetings and ensures quatity standards.
Qrovides ad+ anced technical and strate k guidance ro
multipie proJect cearns and oversees prcr ect
deaverabks. Rtspor sibk far assistinq tn afl aspects of
p oject technkat, contractual, admin strative, and
financlal performance.

r i i
0 3

021_2y74

539



DocuSign Envelope ID: A01 E0843- 4D36- 4A98- B9F6-&CEFB058BADB

ICU Tethnologies,# nc.    
C 738 Biue ak Bivd, Suite 910

Roseville, CA 95G78
Unitecf States

C V zo- 2 7

SIN item
Quanttty Rate Amnunt

Su6totai 548, 3Q7. 3b

iF Charge Q. 7 5696 S365At

OLM ICU- SNIPPING 5250, d0 f250.

Freight to customer location

Subtotal 4g, g22, 37

Tax Tatai 4gb)    52, 644. 48

Tatat 551, 566.85

i IR 1000064885
Email Cwder ta nr Lrs t u. terhinc_ om
Payment by tred{ t card wi irttlude a 44 protessing fee

Accepced 8y:

Accepted Oate:

I 3 af 3

2022• 2172

540



ITEM 4. 19

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

APRIL 10, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       CREATE CIP PS 23- 18 FOR MCKINLEY AVENUE

PAVEMENT REHABILITATION,     AND APPROVE

BUDGET AMENDMENT

RECOMMENDATION:     Adopt Resolution Creating CIP PS 23- 18 for McKinley
Avenue Pavement Rehabilitation and Approving
Budget Amendment

SUMMARY:

McKinley Avenue is a north south collector between Lathrop Road and Yosemite
Avenue. The existing pavement condition is poor with a Pavement Conditions Index

PCI)  rating of 63.   As a result, staff is proposing to create Capital Improvement
Project  ( CIP)  PS 23- 18 for McKinley Avenue Pavement Rehabilitation  ( Project) to

address and repair deteriorated pavement surface.

The proposed Project consists of a Full- Depth Reclamation ( FDR) flexible pavement
treatment on the most impacted segments along McKinley Avenue from Louise
Avenue to Yosemite Avenue. The segment of McKinley Avenue from Lathrop Road to
Louise Avenue does not require maintenance at this time. The scope of work entails

reconstructing the road' s structural section, wearing course, and the installation of
new striping.

Staff requests that City Council approve the creation of CIP PS 23- 18 for McKinley
Avenue Pavement Rehabilitation. Sufficient funds were not allocated in the approved

FY 22/ 23 budget,  and therefore staff requests approval of a budget amendment

transferring    $ 100, 000 from the Transportation Development Act   -    Local

Transportation Fund ( TDA- LTF) ( 2140) to the CIP Project Fund to create the project
and fund the design engineering services.

BACKGROUND:

McKinley Avenue is a ( 2) lane minor arterial that runs north- south from Lathrop Road
to the southerly City of Lathrop limits. The area is bounded by Service Commercial,
Limited and General Industrial zoning, which permits heavy truck usage.

Through field observations and utilizing the City' s Pavement Management System
PMS), staff assessed and determined the need to rehabilitate McKinley Avenue from

Louise Avenue to Yosemite Avenue. The segment of McKinley Avenue from Lathrop
Road to Louise Avenue does not require maintenance at this time. Staff proposes to
create CIP PS 23- 18 for McKinley Avenue Pavement Rehabilitation to maintain and
repair deteriorated pavement surface. The proposed Project consists of a Full- Depth
Reclamation flexible pavement treatment on the most affected segment along
McKinley Avenue from Louise Avenue to Yosemite Avenue.

541



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

APRIL 10, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

CREATE CIP PS 23- 18 FOR MCKINLEY AVENUE PAVEMENT REHABILITATION,
AND APPROVE BUDGET AMENDMENT

FDR is an in- place recycling method for reconstructing existing flexible pavements
using the existing pavement section material as the base for the new roadway-
wearing surface.  This process can include adding chemicals to the base layer to
increase its strength capacity. Treating the base layer and recycled asphalt provides
a stronger foundation for heavy truck traffic.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

Creation of the Project is necessary to repair and rehabilitate existing pavement
deficiencies on McKinley Ave,  such as alligator cracks,  small potholes,  and faded

striping. Cracks provide an opening for water to enter the asphalt and the subbase,
and with raining, the cracks and damages will increase significantly.

Approving the creation of CIP PS 23- 18 will allow the City to begin planning and
designing phases for the proposed project. Staff will return to Council at a later date
to award a construction contract.

FISCAL IMPACT:

To initiate the project and fund the design phase, staff is also requesting City Council
approve a budget amendment transferring  $ 100, 000 from the fund balance ( TDA-

LTF) ( 2140) to the CIP Project Fund ( 3310) as follows:

Increase Transfer Out

2140- 9900- 990- 9010 100, 000

Increase Transfer In

3310- 9900- 393- 0000 PS 23- 18 100, 000

Increase Appropriation

3310- 8000- 420- 1200 PS 23- 18 100, 000

ATTACH M ENTS:

A.  Resolution Creating CIP PS 23- 18 for McKinley Avenue Pavement Rehabilitation
and Approving Budget Amendment

B.  Location Map - CIP PS 23- 18 for McKinley Avenue Pavement Rehabilitation

542



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

APRIL 10, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

CREATE CIP PS 23- 18 FOR MCKINLEY AVENUE PAVEMENT REHABILITATION,
AND APPROVE BUDGET AMENDMENT

APPROVALS:

03 -- 2d- 2 23

An ca Date

Assistant Engineer

3- 28 -? z_
Ken Reed Date

Senior Construction Manager

y/ 3 zo23
Brad T ylor Date

City Engineer

H•  • zo2 3

Michael King Date

Assis nt Ci nager

3 
Cari Jame Date

Finance Di ctor

Z ' • zoZ 

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

l3
Step en J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

543



RESOLUTION NO. 23-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

CREATING CIP PS 23- 18 FOR MCKINLEY AVENUE PAVEMENT

REHABILITATION, AND APPROVE BUDGET AMENDMENT

WHEREAS, McKinley Avenue is a ( 2) lane minor arterial that runs north- south

from Lathrop Road to the southerly City of Lathrop limits. The area is bounded by
Service Commercial,  Limited and General Industrial zoning,  which permits heavy
truck usage; and

WHEREAS,  through field observations and utilizing the City' s Pavement
Management System ( PMS), staff assessed and determined the need to rehabilitate

McKinley Avenue from Louise Avenue to Yosemite Avenue; and

WHEREAS, the segment of McKinley Avenue from Lathrop Road to Louise
Avenue does not require maintenance at this time; and

WHEREAS, staff is proposing to create Capital Improvement Project ( CIP) PS
23- 18 for McKinley Avenue Pavement Rehabilitation ( Project) to address and repair

deteriorated pavement surface; and

WHEREAS, the proposed Project consists of a Full- Depth Reclamation ( FDR)

flexible pavement treatment on the most impacted segments along McKinley Avenue
from Louise Avenue to Yosemite Avenue; and

WHEREAS,  the work entails reconstructing the road' s structural section,
wearing course, and the installation of new striping; and

WHEREAS,  sufficient funds were not allocated in the approved FY 22/ 23

budget,  and therefore request approval of a budget amendment transferring
100, 000 from the Transportation Development Act  -  Local Transportation Fund

TDA- LTF) ( 2140) to the CIP Project Fund to create the project and fund the design
engineering services as follows:

Increase Transfer Out

2080- 9900- 990- 9010 100, 000

Increase Transfer In

3310- 9900- 393- 0000 PS 23- 18 100, 000

Increase A propriation
3310- 8000- 420- 1200 PS 23- 18 100, 000

544



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop hereby approves the creation of Capital Improvement Project ( CIP) PS 23-

18 for McKinley Avenue Pavement Rehabilitation; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Lathrop also
approves a budget amendment transferring  $ 100, 000 from the Transportation

Development Act - Local Transportation Fund ( TDA- LTF) ( 2140) to the CIP Project

Fund ( 3310) as detailed above.

545



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 10th day of April 2023, by the
following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:    APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

546



ATTACHMEPvr

P

LOUISE AVE
u

i y .   a  ` 
S;     

A' t    . nk'#  e&'      

4',.    

sl

i   ,,`

q `,      

t;

2     r

a-

k.,.    ,. ^-* S
s

e a

m;
r F   / 4"

5"% xyd'./^   

g

E    iY /.    
y§,    

3  ,   
r .'. .   ", 

M1   

9

a d a
i'    

x, ,
s ,'          "

a

f    i.,y   
y  /   

r y

s".,.. ,       '
r ",     

N    tff. .      
a     

Z,

g,   .       ,+ 1`

a

i a b.,  
5    :   

fµ     
1" i , y%!       .,

rt`   
y,,.     Y .      W ifi xN ""      '      

Y,.',' rv"'     ..,.

A .     " 

p
e

s e t. ag

d             .' f

v           t

l`'

x     

rt,:    ....            
e;

y.      9   ' 3 _ y'..wu

i
t   ,

a      .   m a3 rt"       '   
s

tl      
h`  ,,    

x E

f

y y 

a
ti

M      g " y( r    

R^„ °    
w

o:,,   '
s* :

flr   o-. 

w.       `:    .    

e       

ti_'':   r
r

a a.:.
rvm

W z 

t            

J    . '
a,,

x           d Z r

w       r s,
t      

r"
i, 

r3 w ` __
ren"    

ti^ b", a

Ay.     /     .      
i

y,:.§      .    ^.° ;`,      .

A

fl.;"$.

c'+ d

r r  ,

q
r     . , .

v' r   
Yi   &'     t

S '     r  2.    $' 

f4   ,,, 7 ;
t

u      
w.

Wr`,     ;    

hF,,      

I I'       '

1r::.. aa  , q,` z,:'      

IY'' 1 a 1  ` 4 4      
v    ,     

n, 1
f      

i

YOSEMITE AVE    
r    

b    .,,   

M  

A,,     ,,„, 
m .            

z q
1

t
5_ >$"'`

V(' r R' 
F r,' y   +

d" '' IP a.      ,      

a t. 

m

PROJECT LOCATION MAP

547



548



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT
ITEM 4. 20

APRIL 10, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       GRAND 7URY REPORT RESPONSE UPDATE

RECOMMENDATION:     Direct the City Attorney to Submit a Letter to the
Presiding udge of the San 7oaquin County Superior
Court Responding with an Update to the Findings
and Recommendations of the Grand 7ury Report On
Cybersecurity.

SUMMARY

On September 12,  2022 at its regularly scheduled City Council meeting, the City
Council accepted the 2021/ 2022 San Joaquin County Grand Jury Final Report for
Case No.  0321 regarding cyber security  ( Attachment A")  and directed the City

Attorney to send a response letter   (" Attachment B").   Within Findings and

Recommendations 3. 3 and 3. 4, The Grand Jury recommended the City develop,
adopt and implement a formal, written Business Continuity Plan and develop, adopt
and implement formal,  written,   internal policies and procedures for potential
ransomware attacks.

The City agreed with Findings and Recommendations 3. 3 and 3. 4, and instructed

staff to draft written cyber security policies and procedures.

BACKGROUND

On September 12,  2022 at its regularly scheduled City Council meeting, the City
Council accepted the 2021/ 2022 San ] oaquin County Grand ] ury Final Report for
Case No.  0321 regarding cyber security and directed the City Attorney to send a
response letter. Within Findings and Recommendations 3. 3 and 3. 4, The Grand Jury
recommended the City develop,  adopt and implement a formal,  written Business

Continuity Plan and develop, adopt and implement formal, written, internal policies
and procedures for potential ransomware attacks.

City staff, with the assistance of hired consultants and the City' s insurer, drafted

Information Systems Department procedures and provided drafts of those policies
regarding cyber security to the Grand Jury on March 28, 2023 as further response

to the Final Report for Case No. 0321 Findings and Recommendations 3. 3 and 3. 4.

The Grand Jury provided the requested edits or changes. Therefore, to finalize the
City' s response,  staff requests City Council approval of the following updated
responses:

Grand ) ury Finding F3. 3: " The City of Lathrop does not have an approved
Business Continuity Plan, rendering the City relatively unprepared to restore
essential services in a disruptive event."

549



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

APRIL 10, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

GRAND ) URY REPORT RESPONSE UPDATE

Grand Jury Recommendation R3. 3: " By January 1, 2023, the Lathrop City
Council,  in conjunction with the City' s IT department,  develop,  adopt and

implement a Business Continuity Plan."

City Council Original Response:  The City of Lathrop has an unwritten
Business Continuity Plan but not a written one.  The City of Lathrop City
Council agrees with Grand Jury Finding F3. 3 and Recommendation R3. 3 and
documentation is anticipated to be complete by January of 2023.

Proposed Followup Response: The City worked with its consultant on the
development and standardization of the City' s unwritten Business Continuity
Plan.  Because those policies include confidential details that would allow a
potential hacker to gain easier access to the City' s Information Technology
resources, those were shared confidentially with the Grand ) ury on March 28,
2023 and Council adopts the same in compliance with the Grand Jury' s
recommendation.  Redactions on the attached Business Continuity- Disaster
Recovery Plan are intended to protect security information.

Grand  ) ury Finding F3. 4:  " The City of Lathrop does not have a formal
internal policy or procedure to address ransomware attacks. This absence of
policy could cause confusion, delay and greater loss of security in the event
of such an attack."

Grand ury Recommendation R3. 4: By November 1,  2022, the Lathrop
City Council, in conjunction with the City' s IT department, develop, adopt and
implement a formal internal policy and procedure for a ransomware attack."

City Council Original Response:  The City of Lathrop has an unwritten,
internal procedure to address ransomware attacks and, in addition to such,
has hired a consultant whom will assist the City in development and

implementation of a formal written policy for procedures to address

ransomware attacks. The City of Lathrop City Council agrees with Grand Jury
Finding F3. 4 and Recommendation R3. 4 and anticipates documentation will
be complete by January of 2023.

Proposed Followup Response: The City worked with its consultant on the
development of the City' s unwritten,   internal procedures to address

ransomware attacks and standardize those into internal policies.  Because

those policies include confidential details that would allow a potential hacker
to gain easier access to the City' s Information Technology resources, those

were shared confidentially with the Grand Jury on March 28,  2023 and

Council adopts the same in compliance with the Grand Jury' s
recommendation. Redactions on the attached Information Security Policy and
the inclusion of only the Executive Summary and Introduction of the Incident
Response Plan are intended to protect security information.

550



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

APRIL 10, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

GRAND JURY REPORT RESPONSE UPDATE

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends City Council consider approval of the City' s proposed updated
responses to the Grand Jury and direct the City Attorney to submit responses to the
Presiding Judge of the San Joaquin County Superior Court to the findings and the
recommendations outlined in the Grand Jury Final Report for Case No. 0321.

FISCAL IMPACT:

None, except for staff time to prepare this report.

ATTACHMENTS:

A.       Grand Jury Final Report, Case No. 0321
B.       Letter to San Joaquin County Superior Court Presiding Judge in

response to Grand Jury Final Report Case # 0321 dated September 13,

2022.

C.       Draft Letter to San Joaquin County Superior Court Presiding Judge in
follow- up response to Grand ) ury Final Report Case # 0321

D.       City of Lathrop Draft Incident Response Plan Executive Summary and
Introduction

E.       City of Lathrop Draft Information Security Policy
F.       City of Lathrop Draft Business Continuity- Disaster Recovery Plan

551



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 4

APRIL 10, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

GRAND JURY REPORT RESPONSE UPDATE

APPROVALS:

a 
To ernandes Date

irector of Information Systems

4 5 2' 1r
Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

23
Stephen J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

552



Attachment A

2021- 2022 San Joaquin County Grand Jury

w• s.

r

San loaqujn County and Its Seven Cities:
Cybersecurity: Local Defense Against a Global Threat

Case# 0321

Summary

We hear reparts on a daify basis of cyberattacks occurring araund the worid. These attacks a e
becoming increasingly sophisticated, disruptive and expensive. Attacks on government agencies
can dtsrupt essential services, c ippling communitks. Agencies small and la ge are equally
vulnerabl. There is an ever-growing demand for stolen data in an underground market.
Comprornise of information has proven to be a serfous threat on the cyber battleground, both
domestically and internationally. Bad acto s hack intelligence, media and essential service systems.
Oth r disasters such as floods, fires, stonr s or p olonged power outages can tnterrupt essential
services if providers' information systems are not adequately secure. According to one expert
witness interviewed by the 2021- 2022 Grand 1ury," World War itl wiii be fought in cyberspace, not
on the battlefield."

Grand Jury memben are nat technical experts but saught to understand the cybersecurity
iandscape and local governments' ma agtment of their cybersecurity risks and vutnerabilities. In
this investigation of inforrnation secn ity of San Joaquin County and its seven cities, the 2021-2022
Grand! ury made a" point in time" ass ssment of each entity' s information Systems Department
ISDj, focusing primarfiy on tybersecu ity. The Grand Jury considered nine elements of any ISD and,

through research of elevant Iiterature and input f om industry experts, established an expected
standard for each of those elements. The G and 1ury then evaluated each of the agencies with
respect to those expectations.

The Grand 1ury conduded that San Joaquin Courrty( S1C) has mature and robust security policies
and systems. The County' s security arthitecture provided a model in evaluating each city' s systems.
The Grand ury determined that Escalon, lodi and Stockton met a tay person' s expectations for
cybersecurity but were lacking efther a formal Business Continuity Plan( BCP) or Disaster

553



P epared ess Plan( PP), Lath op, Manteca and' fracy were found to have adequate security
systems in place but lack documented plans for both Business Continuity and Disaster
Preparedness. Ripon was found to-need improvtment in meeting several of the Gra d 1ury' s
expectations, with lack of personnel being thefr g eatest chalienge.

The Grand 1ury ecommends that the County and affetted cities:

dcvelop, adopt and implernent a Busincss Continuiry Plan;
develop, adopt and implement an IT Disaster Preparedness Plan;
remedy specific cybers curiry risks found in this investigation; and
the City of Ripon undergo a data system security rcvi w by an expert third party to assess the
Ciry' s tT systems and protocois.

1'he Grand 1ury recognizes that cybersecurity is a dynamic process, a continually moving target
which needs constant monito i g and updating.

Glossary

Acxess:  The ability and means to commu icate with or otherwise interact with a system; to use
system resources to manage information; to gain knowledge of the information the system
contains; to control system components and functions.

Actor. bad actor, t6reat actor or attacker:  An individual, group, organizatian or government
that attempts or exocutes an attack.

Attack:   An inte tiona) attempt tv gain unauthoriud access to system sen+ices, resources or
infocmation; an attempt to compromise system integrity.
Aut6eutication: The process of verit3+ing the identity or other aurilwtes af an entity( user, proctss
or device).

Aatborization:  A process of deternrining, by evaluating applicable access control information.
whether a subject is aliowed to have the specified types of aecess tn a particula rosource.
HCP:   Business Continuity Plan. A document thai scu foKh procodares for the continued
performance of core capabilities, critical operations and user services during any disruption or
potential disruption.
CCISDA: Californis Counry Infonnation Services Dircctors Association. This is the official
o genization of thc county IT dit+eetors and chief infamation vfficers throughout the state of
California. CCISDA repnsents all 58 California counties in the area of infannation technology
in county government.
CIO: Chief lnformation 4fficer.

Computer Aided Diapsteh Systems: Used by dispatchers, call- takcrs, and 911 opecators to
prioritize and record incident calls, identify the status and iocations of responders in the field and
eflcctively dispatch rospondecs.

Coniideati lity: A properry of information that is not disclosed to users, processes ar devices
unless they havc been authorized to access the informatian.
Cyber event or iacident: An occunence that actually or potentially results in adverst
consequences to an infonnation system or he information that the system processes, storcs or
transmits and that may rtx uice a response action to mitigat the consequences. An occurrence
that constitutes a vialation ar immintnt thrcat of vialatian of stcurity poticies, sccurity
procedures or aeceptable use policies.

2

554



Cybersecurity: 7he activity, process, sbility, capability or state whereby information and
communications systems and tfie information contained therein are protocted frorn at dlor
defended against damage, unauthorized use, modification or exploitatian.
DPP: Disaster Preparedness Plen. A document that sets forth policies and procedures for
restoration of information systems after a critica! incident or event from any sowce. The pian
addnesses interim restorstion of iaformation operations in the short and medium term and ful!
restoration ofa11 capabilides in the longer tenn.

Daa iategrity: The property that data is complete, intact and trusted and hss not been modified
or destroyed in an unauthorized or accidentai manner.

Data security policy: A rulc or set of ruks thst govems the acceptable use of an organiution" s
information and services to a level of acceptable risk and the mesns for protecting the
organization' s infomtation assets.

Eneryptioa: The process of convecting data into a form that cannot be easily understaod by
unaut wrized p ople or sgents.
FirewaU: A capabil'tty to limit netwark traffic between networks andlor information systems. A
hardware! softwarc device, or a software pcogram, thst limiu netwodc traffic according to a set of
nsles of what access is and is not aliawod or authorized.
Hacker. An unsuthoriud user wtw atternpts to or gains accass to en information system.
ISD: Infonr adon Systems Departmtnt.

IT: Information Technology.

KnowB4: A proprietary szcurity aw reness training pfatform. KnowB4 is usod by agencies for
simuleted phishing activities and other email compromise tests, as welt as for othor IT sccurity
training nceds.
Ms lw are: SoRwnre that cornpromises the operation of a system by performing an unauthoriud
functian or pracess.
Mobik device maa ement tool: A security sottwaro tool designed to help organiaations
secure, managa and monitor mobile devices such as smartphones and tablets.
Multi-fnctor authe tkatioa: An electronic authentication mechanism in which a user is
granted access to an appiication only after presenting two or nwre piec s of evidence( fsctocs or
keys only the authcntic user knows or possesses}.
Multi- tayer security acceas: Multi- layer security refers ta a system that uses numerous
components to shield the IT infrasuucture. [ t is a defense mechanism that mitigatts, delays or

prevcnts thrr,ats.
Network or eyber iafrastrnMuro: The infotmation and communication systems and services
composexi of all hardwsre and software that process, store and communicate information; any
combinstion of sll these elements.

Ne ct-gaoeration aystema: Security systems consisting of both firewall and intrusion prevention
systems built in, ather than as edd- ons, abng with the feawres of basic fircwalls.
Ph hing: A digital form of sc cial rngineering to deceive individuals iato providing sensitive
infocmation.

Ph ahing tat: A socurity training exercise designed to test usecs' wlnerability and rcinforce
vigilance.

Preaidential E tecuNve Order 14028: " Improving thc Nation' s Cyb rsecurity"( issued May 12,
2021) reyuires agencies to enhance their cybersecurity system integrity.

3

555



Rsesomware: A type of maficious software designed to block access ta a computer systern
unti) a sum of monay is paid.
Ransomware attack respoose plan: A set of prcdetermined and documented procedurcs to
detect and respond to a cyber incident involving demand for ransom for recovery and restoration
of data or systems.

Records Management System:  The managemcnt of records for an organization throughout the

records' life cycle.

Redundancy: Additionai or alternative systems, sub-systems, assets or processes that maintain
a degtee of overal) functionality in case of loss or failure of another system, sub- system, asset or
process. Typicalty applied ta power supplies and data backup systems.
Vuloerability: A characuristic oc specific weakness that rendcrs an organization or asset( such
as information or an information system) open to exploitation by a given thrcat or susceptible to
a given hazard.
Wi-Fi network: A family of wirekss nctwork protocols used for local area networking of
devices and int rnet ccess, allowing nearby digital devices to exchang data by radio waves.

Background

The 2 8- 2009 San, loaquin County Grand Jury reported on information technolagy security, finding
that seve a! County departments and two of the seven cities in the counry met expectations for
information Technology(! i')security, while some County departments and five cities did not.
Recommendations were made and generally accepted in agency responses. In terms of technology,
200& 2009 was at ieast a generation ago. Government agencies use and store vast amounts of

sensitive data on their residents and their employees, including personal identification data,
financiat data, health data and legal data. AdditionaHy, these agencies provide services essentiai to
our day-to-day lives, including publit safety police and fire), public works, health servites, water
services and commun9ty developme t. The Grand 1ury recognizes that we are lay people, ha dly
experts, in the fieid of IT. It was the intent of the 2021- 1022 6rand Jury to examine how the county
and city governments within San Joaqufn County are exercising due diligente to protect
information, defend agatnst future cyberattacks, maintain current disaster plans and provide on-
going training to employees in these matters.

Reason for I vestigation

As stated in Presidential Executive Order 24028,"... the prevention, detection, assessment and

remediation of tyber incidents is a top priority and essential to nationai economic security."

5an Joaquin County has experiencecf ransomware and cybe secuNty attacks firsthand. SChool
districts, municipalities and county agencies have been victimized in recent years. Given the ise in
compiexity of IT, the current sophistication of cybercrime, and the essentiai natu e of govemment
servtces provided, the Z021- 2022 Grand Jury u dertook an investigation i to the current state of
security and disaster prepar dness of the IT systems of San loaquin County and the seven
incorporated cities within the county.

556



Method of Investigation

The 2021- 2422 Grand Jury surveyed six San oaquin Counry 17" depactment hcads and th City
Manager or City Administretor of esch of the seven cities in the caunty; each resptmded to the
survey. Subaequently, an sgency IT depsrtment head or staff member, an IT consuhant or a city
administrator was interviewed to cl rify responses and to provide additionel material wi en
applicable. The Grand Jury also interviewed independent cybersecurity experts. The expert
witnesses have collectively more than 50 years' experience at diverse tevels of gove nment ranging
from county to state to national infonr atlon systems and cy6ersecurity. R executives from one
school dist ict were also interviewed. For this investigation, the Grand! ury intenriewed 16
individuais and attended cybersecurity presentatlons.

The Grand Jury also reviewtd numerous websites and newspaper and magazine articles relevant to
this investigation. Additionally, the Grand 1ury reviewed dacuments provided, including network
diagrams, ransomware Msurance polkies and other items.

Materisis Reviewed

2021• 2022 San Joaquin Counry Grand Jury surveys
Biden. Joseph. Executive Order o Improving the Natian' s Cybersscuriry. 12 May 2021.
Exccutive(? rdei# 14028

CaIfornia Jofnt Cyber Incfdent Response Gufde. California Office of Emergency Strvices Cyber
Security Integration Center, 2 Aug. 2021
CyberAtockPreparedness! n Contra Casta County. Contra Costa County Civil C3rand Jury,
2021. Report 2104

Digilal Services arrd In»ovation Strategy. San Joaquin County, 19 Nov. 2020
How to Devslop a Ransonnvare Renudiatlon Plan. Rubrik, 2021
Informmton Technology Security. 2018- 2019 Santa Barbara County Grand Jury, 2019
Irrformation Technology Secta ity: Cities and San Joaquin County. 2008/ 2009 San Joaquin
Courtty Grand Jury, 2009. Report No.03- 0$
Rarrsomware Deferrse for Dumnii s--2rid Edition. 2nd ed., Cisco Umbrella, 2021

Websites Visited

Cybersecurity& Infrsstructurc Security Agency." CYBERSECURITY CISA." Cisa. gov,
Cybersecucity and Infrashucture Security Agency, 2019, www. cisagov/ cybersecw ity. Accesaed
6 May 2022.
Federal 7rade Commission. and Alvaro Puig." Cybersecurity Advice to Pmtcct Your Conrrocted

Devices and Accounts:' SJgay. org, 24 Mar. 2022, www.sjgov. otg/ department/ da/ consumer-
ale ts/consumer-slertsl'2022/ 03/ Z4/cybersacurity- edvice-to-protect•your-cannected- devices- and-
accounts. Accessed 6 May 2022.
Kuykendall, By Kristal." Cybecsecuriry Experts Call for More Tcanspacency and Immediate
Resources for Schools-" The Journal, l7 Mar. 2022,

thejournal. com/ Articles/ 2022/ 03/ 17/ Cybersecurity- Experts- Call- For•More- Transparancy- and-
lmmediate-Resources-for-Schools.aspx?Page= 1. Accessed 6 May 2022.

S

557



Marcum Accounts Advisors." What Is a SOC 2T' T'Jre SSAE 18 Repor i»g Standard• SOC 1 -
SOC 2- SOC 3( Formerly SSAE 16), 81an. 2022, www.ssae- 16.com/faq/ what- is•a•soc- 2/.
Accessed 30 Apr. 2022.

National lnstitute for Cybersecuriry Carcers and Studies." Cybersecuriry Glossary National
Initiative for Cybersecurity Careers and Studiea." Niccs. cisa.gov, nices. cisa. gov/ about-
niccs/ cy[ rstcurity- glossary. Accessed 6 May 2022.
Unisys." Cyber Attacks•- What You Need to Know" Unisys, 2022, www. unisys. com. Accessed 6

May 2022.

Discussions, Fndings and Recommendations

General Discussion

The Grand 1ury recognizes cybersecurity is an extremely complicated topic. Specialized knowledge,

experience and expertise are requi ed fo a deep understanding of what is necessary for adequate
policfes, systems and architecture. Lack ng such specialized knowledge, the Grand Jury resea ched
numerous sources, including recognized experts in this fieicf to detemnine the fotlowing elements of
any ISD and to deflne the foUowing expectations for adequate cybersecurity in today' s
environment.

Expectations

Orgaoizxtion: Each ocganization should have a dctailcd Organizetion Chart demanstrating the
structure of its independent IT department. Cities lacking an independent IT department should
have a chart showing where IT resides in their overall structure.
Network Dlagram: Each organization should have a detailed necworlc diagram indicating the
rclationships between all IT architectural elements. Best- practice guidelints suggtst that this
diagram bc conlidential.

Data Contident ality:  Each organization should have an organization- wick poticy determining
data confidentiality and access control. Policy for data access should ba clearly defined and desk-
specific or station- specific.

DAta Security: Each organizatian shouid have next- gcneration systems and controls to ensure
both physical and cybor secu ity for a111T assets. Next- gcneration firewalls and endpoint
management systems provide protection against ever- evolving means of cyberattack. Data
should be protected with daily or continuous backup and srchival systems. Backups should be
protccted against corruption, extemal encryption and or deswction. Agencies should require
multi- factor authentication for aecess to netwvrk systems.

Busibess Contiauity Plan ( BCP): Each organization should have a detailed, current,

comprehensive plan for restoring scrvices in the event of disruption from any source.
Disaster Prepsredness Plaa ( DPP): Each organization shouid have a formal, detailed plan to
prepare for various possible IT disruptions. This plan should be tested frequently and updated
regularly.
Ransomware Policy: Each organization shauld have an intemal ( confidmtial) documented

policy for agency response to a ransomware attack.

6

558



Cyber Event Insurance: E h organization shoutd havc insurance coverage to help offset
economic Iosses from cyber events.

Ongoiag Ewployea Training: Each organization shouid provide rigorous, frcquent training and
ongoing testing of al! ernployees as an integral part of its cybersecurity profile.

Survey Results:
The tabte below indicatas whether an agency met( M), did not meet( N1Vn or was in the process
of ineeting( IP) the nine d finad expoctations.

oR    e       o. a osa a      on    oa w. n c a. r T+ rr

awc a.a. n  co lwa Mt  s. wr nr Mqr      w, a

S1G M M M M M M NM M M

Escsbn M M M M NM M M M M

t,athrop M M M M NM M NM NM M

trodi M M M M IP M M M M

MaMeq M M M M M M iP IP M

Rlpon M M M M NM NM NM M M   

Stockton M M M M M M NM M M

Trary M M    ;      M M IP IP NM M M

1.0 San Joaquin County—Discussion

In Novtmber 2020, San loaquin County released a three-year( 2020-2023) strategic plan for
ensuring continuing security, efficacy, cost- effectiveness and best- service outcomes to a11 end- users
of County services and systems. The plan document" San Joaquin County Digitai Services and
Innavatian Strategy" estabiished goals fer County digital service systems. fihese gaals—

Modernizing and leveraging OurTechnology Environment— address objectives fcr a security

posture:

1.  Acquire and implemcnt cybersecurity technotogy to enable SJC to devefop industry- leading
capabilities to help mitigate and addrcss cybecsecurity risk.

2.  Develop snd mature security govemance end processes to meet dr exceed industry standards,
enhanee security enforcement partnerships, and strcngthen Caunty pcaetiees.

3.  Develop a robust security training program for thc County workforce, including enhanced
trainin and develo ent for the securi workforce.

Excerpt fram" S n Joaquin County Digitel Services md lnnovation Strategy," November 19, 2020( page 6)

San 7oaquin County has met these objectivts and continues tn update and enhance these processes as
the cybersecurity landscape continues to evolve.

7

559



San Joaquin County ISD oversces sil Co nty departmcnts, making it ane of the largest county ISDs
in California. San loaquin County ISD is an activ participant in the Califomia Counry lnformation
Systems Depertment Association( CCISDA). This association provides opportunities for counties ta
sharc information and exp ricnces and offers$ uidance, such as standards fvr best-prectice policies.
Several latgc and specialiud departments within the County have their own IT departments and
deparqnent chicfs who tcport to thc County' s Chief 1nfaRnation Officer. Additionally, SJC has a
dedicated Information Security Officer. All these IT executives form a cybersecurity governance
committee which meets monthly, with subgroups mceting more frequently as needed.
Counry 1SD and Human Resource Depanments conduct frequent and on- going employee training
and testing using proprietacy software. ln addition to these Counry depamnents, sevcral Independent
Special Districts in S3C use County IT scrvices through various memoranda of understending.
The only element of the defined expectations aot met by SJC is having an interna) dvcumented
policy for response to a ransomwart attack.
San Joaquin County is a modei agency in the realm of information technology and maintenance of
cybersecurity.

Findings

Fi. i San laaquin County does not have a formal intemal policy concerning payments or
procedures in ransomware attacks. This absence of policy could cause confusion, delay and g eater
loss of securiry i the event of such an attack.

F1. 2 San Joaquin County has an exemplary proffle regarding tyberseturity nd should serve es
modei for oiher govemment agencies within San Joaquin County.

Recommendations

Rl. i By Novembe 1, 2022, the San Joaquin County Board of Supervisors, in conJunction with San
loaqu n County ISD, develop, adopt and implement a formal internal policy and procedure for
respo se to a ransomware attack.

2.0 tity of Escalon—Discussion

The City of Escalon does not have an independent IT department but has a contract agreement
with Mid Valley IT to provide al! IT servlces. In the City organization, IT functions repart to the
Finance and HR Dtrectors. Each ernployee is given a level of access according to assig ed
esponsibilities within their department. All empioyees receive info matlo security trainfng

sp cific to their responsibitities as wel) as general security awareness training. The IT consultant
employs an aggressive multt- fayered approach ta mitigate security threats through wftware and
hardware protection measures. Critical o cnnfidential data is stored in multiple cloud- based

lacations and systems employing numerous safeguards, including use of multi- factar
authentication for access.

IT funttions a e protected with a standby generator and redundant backups in case of a system
failure. The generator is tested periadically for functionality.

8

560



The ty of Escalon met all but one of the expectations for adequate cybersecu ity. Escalon is by far
the smatlest city irt San loaquin County, but by using a contraded IT secvice provider, Escalon is
meeting its cybersecurity needs. The Gty of Escafon dces not have a documented Business
Continuity Plan.

Findings

F2. 1 The City of Escalon does not have a documented 8usiness Continuity Plan, leaving the City
relatfvely u prepared ta restor essential services in a disruptive event.

Recommendations

R2.1 By lanuary 1, 2023, the Escalon C'ity Council, in conjundion with Mtd Valley IT, develop,
adopt and implement a Business Continuity Pian.

3.0 City o l.athrop- Diszussion

The Gty of lathrop met six of the expectations for the ntne elements considered in this
investigation. Lathrop' s IT organization includes a Directar of I formation Technology at the cabinet
teadership level, a palicy strongly recommended by an R expert for maximum R security. Including
the Di edor of IT in frequent, regular meetings with other depanment heads allaws effective

communication of IT secuNty needs to all City departments.

Expectations for data confidentiality and data security were met. However, use of muftl-factor
authentication for system access was not universal at the time of this investigation, leaving LaChrop
at higher risk af attack. lath op provides an unsecured public Wi- fi etwark, separate fram the
City' s setu e business network and accessible to any user. Hackers or other bad actors could take
advantage of the unsecured network, possibly resulti g in compromise of log• in credentlals from
that network and passibly exposing the City to costly liability sufts. Lathrop w s in the process of
developtng and approving a BCP and OPP pian at the time af this investigatlon. Similarly, the Clty
was updating an intemal pollcy for response to a ranwmware attack. At the time of this
investigation, lathrop ladced insurance agalnst losses tncurred in a cybenecurity inddent.

Find ngs

F3. 1 The C'ity of E. athrop does not employ mufti- fador authenUcation unive sally, leaving City
systems more vulnerabte to the activities of bad actors.

F3. 2 The Clty of Lathrop provides an unsecured public Wi- Fl network. Misuse of this unsecured
network could expose the City to liability risks.

E3. 3 The City of i.athrop does not have an approved Business Continuity Ptan, rendertng the City
relatively unprepared to restore essential services in a disruptive ev nt.

4

561



F3. A The City of lathrop daes not have a formal intemat policy or procedure to address
ransomware attacks. This absence of policy cautd cause confusion, delay and greater loss of
stcurity in the event of such an attadc.

F3. 5 The City of Lathrop does not have an insurance polity covering financial bsses f om a
cyberattack, possibly exposing City financial resources.

Recommendattons

R3. 1 By November 1, 2022, the Lathrop Clry Councif, in conjunction with the Cit} s IT
department, develop, adopt and implement a procedu e for universal multi- facto authentication
for access to City data.

R3. 2 By November 1, 2022, the Lathrop City Council, in conjundion with the C1ty' s IT
department, provide a secure public Wi- Fi networic.

R3. 3 By January 1, 2023, the lath op City Councfl, i canjunction with the City' s IT depanment
develop, adopt and implement a Business Continuity Plan.

R3. 4 By Novembtr 1, 2022, the Lathrop City Council, in conjunction with the City' s I7
department, devefop, adopt and implement a formal inte nai policy and procedure for a
ransomwa e attack.

R3. 5 By 3anuary 1, 2023, the lath op City Council, in conjundion with the City' s IT department,
obtai an insurante policy to mitigate fiscai impact resulting from cyberattadc or othe crrtical
information system loss.

4.0 City of I.odi—Discussion

The City of lodi has a large IT division, responsibie for ati IT functions of the City. The division is
responsibte for the integrity of the City' s cyber infrastructu e, maintenan e and support of all
hardware and software, and assuring secure access to all network esources. lodi fell victim to a
ransorn attacic in Aprii 2019. 1'hat unfortunate event caused the City to change its management of
cybersecurity, significantly elevating the importance of vigilance by all Gty staff. lodi has
implementtd a robust cyber awareness training prograrn fo alt City employees, incorparating
education in tactics used by bad actors both inside and outside the City' s network. Monthiy training
is foliowed by testing in topics covered. Citywide campaigns oaur quarterly to test empioyee
response to phishing and other email-based attacks. The IT division head reports directly to the
Deputy City Manager and meets egulariy with all City department heads. The City of lodi met a! 1
expectations for cybersecurity except for having a compieted, vp-to-date Business Continuity Plan.
The City has contracted a business cansuhing fi m to create a BCP, projected to be completed and
implemented by the end of June 2022.

10

562



Findings

F4. 1 The City of lodi does not have an approved 8usiness Continuity Plan, rende ing the City
relatively unprepared to rcstore essent al services in a disruptive event.

F4. 2 The Gty of Lodi has fmplemented an excellent cyber awareness tra(ni g program for sll
emplayets minimizing risk to darnage from cyberattack.

Recommendations

R4. 1 By lanuary 1, 2023, the lodi City Courxil, in conjunction with the City' s IT division, develop,
adopt and implement a Business Continuity Plan.

5.0 City of Manteca- Discussion

The City af Manteca met seven of the nine expectations considered in this investigation. Manteca' s
Info matian Technolagy department is independent in the City' s orga ization. The department
director reports dJrcctly to the City Manager and meets weelciy with othe City departrnent heads.
User level of access is determined by position, badcg ound and other departmental factors.
Employees are trained on a rcgular basis. The training is mandatory for sll employees. Hard drives
are encrypted, and a Mobile Device Managament tool Is used for tablets,( aptops and phanes.

Manteca' s ISD is cu rently updating its Information Technology Seturity Poltcy.' 1' his comprehdnsive
policy has r ot been updated since 2010. Manteca's Oepartment of Informatio Technology and
Innaystion is colla6orating with Gty administration and the qty Attorney to update all policies
relating to information technolagy security. Similarly, the City is in the process of bringing both
hardwa e and software systems up to ext-generation standards with new flrewall, malwa t, user
access, backup systems and applicatw s in place. Employee t aining is executed th augh KnowB4,
an industry- standard cybersecurity training program which includes phishing and other email
compromise testing.

Rega ding firewalls and switches, roughly 6096 stiU operate off single nther than dual or redundant
power wpplies. Over the next five years, the tity is phasing out aldcr devites as they reach end-of-
life.

indings

F5. 1 The City of Manteca has an Information Technology Security Policy whkh has not been
updated since 2010, feaving the City relatively unprepared for a cyber event.

F5. 2 The Qty of Manteca lacks a policy and procedure for ransomwa e attacks. This absence of
policy could cause co fusion, delay, and g eater loss of secu ity in the event of such an attack.

F5. 3 The C' ty of Manteca has a significant number of security devices with single power suppltes.
This latk of redundant power presents vulnerabiitty in major or p obnged power outages.

11

563



Recommendations

R5. 1 By lanuary 1, 2023, the Manteca City Cou cil, in conjunction with the City' s 15D, develop,
approve and implement an updated Information Technology Security Policy.

R5. 2 By 3anuary 1, 2023, the Manteca City Council, in conjunttion with the City' s IS, develop,

apprave and implement a confidential polky and procedure for esponse to a ransomware attack.

RS. 3 By March 1, 2023, the Manteca Gty Council, in co junction with the Ciry' s ISD, develop,
approve and adopt an updated timeline to repiace single- owe ed units with dual-powered or

redundant- powe ed units in thei network architecture.

6.0 City of Ripon- Oiscussion

7he City of Ripon has experienced turnover and vacancies in the IT Department in the past year.
The Director of IT resigned in eariy 2021. Subsequently, anothe IT Directar was hired but resigned
within three manths. The City has contracted with a former IT employee as a temporary IT Director
and is currently updating the job descriptfon for a permanent director of the R functions.

The City' s organizatiqn chart does not include an IT department or department head. The only IT
position shown is within the Police Department.

Oata confidentiality is maintained through a three• tiered access structure. Management
supervisors far each City department determMe who has access to appropriate info mation.
Sensitive data is held within a Computer Aided Dispatch Program or a Recards Management

System within the IT division of the Ripon Poilce Depa trr ent. The se sitivity of data with afl other
City departments is determined by superoisors.

Findings

F6. 1 It is unclear in the City of Ripon' s Organization Chart whe e responsibilities for IT and IT
security lie, creating confusion over who is respansible to act in a disruptive event.

F6. Z The City of Ripon has a rudimentary network diagram outlini g the City's router and firewall
relationship with networks used, but the diagrain lacks detail, leaving uncertainty about data
security.

F6. 3 Although the City of Ripon met expectations in the areas of data confidentiaiity and

security, lack of IT staff and leadership leaves these areas vuinerable to cyberattack.

f6. 4 The City of Ripon lacks a Business Contlnuity Ptan, rendering the City relatively unprepared
to restore essential services in a disruptive event.

Fb.S The City of Ripon does not have a Disaster Preparedness Plan, leaving the tity at risk for
significant delay and cost to restore IT systems in the event o# a disaster.

F6. 6 The City of Ripon does not have formal policy or procedure to address ansomware
attacks. This absence of policy could cause tontusion, delay and greater loss of security in the event
of an attack.

12

564



Recommendations

R6. 1 ByJanuary 1, 2023, the Ripon City Council develop and make public an updated Gfty
Organization chart showing details of the City' s IT functions, including ail IT posit ons.

R6. 2 Sy January 1, 2023, the Ripon City Coundl develop and adopt a detaikd Network Diagram
to decrease security vufnerabilfties.

R6. 3 By January 1, 2023, the Ripon Qty Council obtain a third-party security review of the City' s
IT department assets, positio s, a d po icies and an evaluation of data confldentiality, secu ity
systems and protocols.

R6. 4 Bylanuary 1, 2023, the Ripon Gty Councit develop, adopt and impleme t a formai Business
Continuity Pl n.

R6. 5 By January 1, 2023, the Ripon City Cound! develop, adopt and implement a formai isaster
Preparedness Plan for IT functio s.

R6. 6 6y lanuary 1, 2023, the Ripon City Councli develop, adopt and implement a formal internal
policy and procedure for response ta a ransomware attack.

7.0 City of Stockton- Discussion

The City of Stotkton has a large IT department that oversees IT functions for all the Cit s other
departments. Data confidenttality and user auess are determined departmentally, foilowing
uniform standards. Information is protected by many safegua ds aiming not only to minimize risk of
penetration but also to detect any breach that might occur. Stockton has both a BCP and a DPP.
Stockton is one of very few dties havi g license to use a cyberucu ity tool integrating the City with
the State of California' s Office of Emergency Senrices. Stockton' s IT Director meets weekly with
other department heads, updating them on all matters related to cybtrsecurity.

Stockton met eath of the cybe security expectations except for the presence of a documented
i temal policy and procedure fo response to a ransomware attack. However, the City daes have a
Cybersecurity Response Book detaifing response procedu es far other cyber events. Employee
secur ty awareness training is requfred every six months.

Findings

F7. 1 The City of Stockton does not have a formal intemal pollcy concerning payments o
procedures in ransomware attadcs. This absente of pollcy could cause confusion, delay and greater
loss of security in the event af an attack.

F7. 2 7he City of Stackto has a large IT Department which places cybersecurity and disaster
preparedness at a high priority, minimizing risk to the City' s information and service systems.

13

565



Recommendations

R7. 1 By Movember 1, 2022, the Stockton City Councii, in conjunction with the City' s IT
depanment, develop, adopt and implement a formai internai policy and procedure fo response to
a ransomwa e attack.

8.0 qty of Tracy—Discussion

The Cty of Tracy met aii expectations for cybersecurity or was in the process of ineeting them
when surveyed. The City has an Info mation Technology Divisicwn, which is pan of the Finance
Department. This division supports ail departments and functiont of the City except water
treatment. Data confidentiality and secu ity are guaranteed with industry• leading, next• ge eration
firewalis and network access controls. Data storage, backup and cybersecuriry are monito ed
cantinually. The lT Manager meets every two weeks with all other City department heads to

address IT iswes, including cybersecuriry.
Tracy does not require encryption of thumb drives used on City devices a requirement that is
considered a" best practice" by an expert wit ess.
Tracy does not have either a formal Buslness Continuity Pian ar Disaster Preparedness Plan in piace
but is in the p ocess af developing both. The BCP was scheduled to be complete in April 2022.
Completion date fo the DPP was not specified by tf e City.

Fi dings

F8. 1 Lacking a requirement fo entryption of thumb drives used on City devices exposes the City
of Tracy to potential data tfuft and contamination.

F8. 2 The City of Trary lacks a completed 8usiness Continuity Plan, rendering T aty relatively
unprepared to restore essential services in a disruptive event.

F8. 3 Th City nf Tracy lacks a compieted Disaster Prepa edness Pian, leaving Tracy at risk for
delay and cost to restore iT systems in the event of a disaster.

Recommendations

R8. 1 By November 1, 2022, the Tracy City Councii, in conjunctlon with the IT division, develop
adopt and implement a policy requiring encryption of thumb drives used on City devices.

R8. 2 By Ja uary 1. 2023, the Tracy City Council, in conjunction with the IT division, develop,
adopt and implement a fonnal Buslness Contlnuiry plan.

R8. 3 By January 1, 2023, the Tracy City touncil provide the Grand Jury with an updated formal
Disaster Prepared ess Plan.

l4

566



Conclusion

San loaquin[ ounty is well pratected regarding tyberseturity. The seven cities in the county vary
with respect to Grand 1ury expectations, most being wefi secured but latking deflned plans for
Bustness Continuity and IT Disaster Prtparedness. Cybersecuriry is an evolvin concern and
requires ongafng efforts by government entities tc remain current and vigilant against isks to their
information Systems.

in this investigation the Grand Jary learned fram cyberseturity experts that three key elements
lead to maximum agency cybersecurity:

a dedicated information security position within each organization,

a" sest at the table" with other agency department heads in regular meetin s, and

a rigoroas employee education a d training program in cybersecurity matters.

Disclaimers

Grand 1ury reports a e based on documentary evidence and the testimony of sworn ar admonished
witnesses, not on conjectu e or opinion. However, the Grand 1ury is precluded by law from

disclosing such evidence except upon the specific approval of the Presiding ludge of the Superior
Court, or another judge appointed by the Presiding Judge( Penal Code Section 911. 924.1( a) and
929y. Similarly, tfie Grand 1ury is precluded by law from disclosing the identity of witnesses except
upon an order of the court for narrowly defined purposes Penal Code 5ections 924.2 and 929}.

Response Requirements

California Penal Code Sections 933 and 933.05 require that speti t responses to all findings and

recomrnendations contained in this report be submitted to the Presiding Judge of the San loaquin
County Superior Court within 90 days of receipt of the repart.

7he San loaquin County Board of Superviso s and the City Countils of each city addressed shall
respond to all findings and recommendations specific to their city.

Mail o hand delive a hard copy of the response to:

Nonorable Michael D. Coughlan, Presiding Judge

5an Joaquin County Superior Court
180 E Weber Ave, Suite 1306J

Stockton, California 95202

Alw, please email a copy of the response to Ms. Trisa Martinez, Staff Secretary to the Grand 1ury,
at arandlurx sicourts. ora

IS

567



Attachment B

Ciiy of

O ace of the City Attorney
390 Towne Centre Drive- Lathrop, CA 95330
Phone 209- 941- 7235 Fax 209- 941- 7233
www. ci.lathrop. ca. us

September 13, 2022

Honorable Michael D. Coughlan, Presiding Judge
San Joaquin County Superior Court
180 East Weber Avenue, Suite 1306J
Stockton, CA 95202

Re:     Response to Grand Jury Final Report Case No. 0321 ( 2021/ 2022).
Report received by the City of Lathrop on June 15, 2022

Honorable Michaet D. Coughlan,

Pursuant to Penal Code Section 933 and 933. 05, this letter is to inform you that on
September 12, 2022 at a regularly scheduled City Council Meeting, the Cily Cuusxcll uf the City
of Lathrop reviewed and approved the above referenced Grand Jury Final Report and directed
me to write this letter of response on their behalf.

The 2021/ 2022 Grand Jury Final Report found that:

Grand Jury Findin F3. 1: " The City of Lathrop does not employ multi-
factor authentication universally, leaving City systems more vulnerable to the
activities of bad actors."

Grand Jury Recommendarion R3. 1: " By November 1, 2022, the Lathrop
City Council, in conjunction with the City' s IT deparirnent, develop, adopt and
implement a pracedure for universal multi- factor authentication for access to City
data."

Citv Council Response: The City of Iathrop City Council agrees with
Grand Jury Finding F3. 1 and Recnmmendation R3. 1 and multi- factor

authentication security has been implemented and in effect since June of 2022.

Grand Jury Findinff F3. 2: " The City of Lathrop provides an unsecured
public Wi-Fi network. Misuse of this unsecured network cauld expose the City to
liability risks."

Page  1

568



Grand Jury Rec mmendation R3. 2: " By November 1, 2022, the Lathrop
City Council, in conjuncrion with the Cifiy' s IT department, provide a secure
public Wi- Fi network."

City_Council Re,gponse: The City of Lathrop disagrees with Grand Jury
Finding F3. 2 and Recommendation R3. 2 because by definition, publicly available
Wi-Fi is inherently" unsecured", although this designation is a misnomer because

it eludes to an idea that publicly available Wi- Fi can either be secured nr
unsecured, and that unsecured is less " safe" or more" risky" than secured. Neither
are the case. An " unsecured network" only means that such Wi-Fi is publicly
available for anyone to use. Wi-Fi networks, either secured or unsecured, cannot
merge end- users between those networks. Secured and unsecured networks, and

the end- users utilizing either, remain completely isolated from one another; it
would be unfeasible for someone with access to only an unsecured Wi- Fi network
to also have the ability to gain access to a separate, secured Wi-Fi network.

The commonly perpetuated idea of" risk" associated with the use of an unsecured
Wi-Fi network inconectly shapes such " risk" as something that happens upon an
end- user re ardless of their use of the unsecured Wi-Fi network, when in reality,

risk can develop and potentially increases the more limited an end- user' s
understanding of how their digital presence on the internet affects their
wlnerability and security. End- users should be encouraged to utilize personal
checks and balances to verify the Wi-Fi networks they choose to cannect to are
verifiable and reputable, that their presence an the internet is not made easily
availahle ta be tracked by others, and that they are visiting legitimate websites, in
order to further maintain security of their personal data and informatzon.

Publicly available Wi-Fi is a critical asset to cities around the country. Publicly
available Wi-Fi provides the public the opportunity to connect to critical and
important information equitably and provides a consistent source of access to
such information, promoting economic inclusion within the community. The City
of Lathrop cutrently hosts an unsecured public Wi-Fi network entitled " Ciry of
Lathrop Guest Cloud 1" and end- users who connect to this network to access the

internet must agree to the terms and conditions of its use, and which the public is
only able to remain connected to for time increments of thirty ( 30) minute,
between 7am and 7pm, seven( 7) days per week.

Grand Jury Finding F3. 3: " The City of Lathrop does not have an approved
Business Continuity Plan, rendering the City relatively unprepared to restore
essential services in a disruptive event."

Grand Jury Recommendation R3. 3: " By January l, 2023, the Lathrop City
Council,  in conjunction with the City' s IT department,  develop,  adopt and
implernent a Business Continuity Plan."

City Council Response: The City of Lathrop has an unwritten Business
Continuity Plan but not a written one. The City of I,athrop City Council agrees

Page  2

569



with Grand Jury Finding F3. 3 and Recommendation R3. 3 and documentation is
anticipated to be complete by January of 2023.

Grand Jury Findina F3. 4: " The City of Lathrop does not have a formal
internal policy or procedure to address ransomwaze attacks. This absence of
policy could cause confusion, delay and greater loss of security in the event of
such an attack."

Grand Jury Recommendation R3. 4: " By November l, 2022, the Lathrop
City Council, in conjunction with the City' s IT department, develop, adopt and
implement a formal internal policy and procedure for a ransomware attack."

City Council Response: The City of Lathrop has an unwritten, internal
procedure to address ransomware attacks and, in addition to such, has hired a
consultant whom will assist the City in development and implementation of a
formal written policy for procedures to address ransomware attacks. The City of
Lathrop City Council agrees with Grand Jury Finding F3. 4 and Recommendation
R3. 4 and anticipates documentarion will be complete by January of 2023.

Grand Jury Findin F3,5: " The City of Lathrop does not have an insurance policy
covering financial losses from a cyberattack, possibly exposing City financial
resources."      

Gran.d Jury Recomm ndafiion R3. 5: " By January 1, 2023, the Lathrop City
Council, in ccmjunation with the City' s IT department, obtain an insurance pnlicy
to mitigate fiscal impact resulting from cyberattack or other critical information
system lass."

Citv Council Respanse: The City of Lathrop City Council paztially agrees
with Grrand Jury Finding F3. 5 and Recommendation R3. 5 and would like to
further clarify that staff confirmed that the City of Lathrop does in fact have
cybersecurity insurance coverage,  and is currently in discussions with Risk
Management to enhance said coverage.

Respectfully submi    .,_.__-
r--'`  ..__

Salvador V. Navarrete

City Attorney

SVN/ trb

Cc: Trisa Martinez at randiury a sjcowts-arA

Page  3

570



Attachment C

City of

O ce of the City ttorney 390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330
Phone 209- 941- 7235

www.ci.la throp.ca.us

April 1 l, 2023

Honorable Michael D. Coughlan, Presiding Judge
San Joaquin County Superior Court
180 East Weber Avenue, Suite 1306J

Stockton, CA 95202

Re:     Followup Response to Grand Jury Final Report Case No. 0321 ( 2021/ 2022).

Honorable Michael D. Coughlan,

This letter is provided to the Grand Jury as a followup response to the City of Lathrop
response to Grand Jury Final Report for Case No. 0321 ( 2021/ 2022). At its regularly scheduled
City Council Meeting on April 10, 2023, the City Council of the City of Lathrop reviewed and
approved the policies described herein and directed me to write this letter of response on their
behalf.

The 2021/ 2022 Grand Jury Final Report for Case No. 0321 stated the following:

Grand Jury Finding F3• 3: " The City of Lathrop does not have an approved
Business Continuity Plan, rendering the City relatively unprepared to restore
essential services in a disruptive event."

Grand Jury Recommendation R3. 3: " By January 1, 2023, the Lathrop City
Council,  in conjunction with the City' s IT department,  develop,  adopt and

implement a Business Continuity Plan."

City Council Original Response: The City of Lathrop has an unwritten
Business Continuity Plan but not a written one. The City of Lathrop City Council
agrees with Grand Jury Finding F3. 3 and Recommendation R3. 3 and

documentation is anticipated to be complete by January of 2023.

Followup Response:  The City worked with its consultant on the
development and standardization of the City' s unwritten Business Continuity
Plan.  Because those policies include confidential details that would allow a
potential hacker to gain easier access to the City' s Information Technology
resources, those were shared confidentially with the Grand Jury on March 28,

Page  1

571



2023 and Council adopts the same in compliance with the Grand Jury' s
recommendation.  Redactions on the attached Business Continuity- Disaster

Recovery Plan are intended to protect security information.

Grand Jury Finding F3• 4: " The City of Lathrop does not have a formal
internal policy or procedure to address ransomware attacks.  This absence of
policy could cause confusion, delay and greater loss of security in the event of
such an attack."

Grand Jury Recommendation R3. 4: " By November l, 2022, the Lathrop
City Council, in conjunction with the City' s IT department, develop, adopt and
implement a formal internal policy and procedure for a ransomware attack."

City Council Original Response: The City of Lathrop has an unwritten,
internal procedure to address ransomware attacks and, in addition to such, has
hired a consultant whom will assist the City in development and implementation
of a formal written policy for procedures to address ransomware attacks. The City
of Lathrop City Council agrees with Grand Jury Finding F3. 4 and

Recommendation R3.4 and anticipates documentation will be complete by
January of 2023.

Followup Response:  The City worked with its consultant on the
development of the City' s unwritten, internal procedures to address ransomware
attacks and standardize those into internal policies. Because those policies include
confidential details that would allow a potential hacker to gain easier access to the
City' s Information Technology resources, those were shared confidentially with
the Grand Jury on March 28, 2023 and Council adopts the same in compliance
with the Grand Jury' s recommendation. Redactions on the attached Information
Security Policy and the inclusion of only the Executive Summary and
Introduction of the Incident Response Plan are intended to protect security
information.

Respectfully submitted,

Salvador V. Navarrete

City Attorney

SVN/ trb

Cc:     Trisa Martinez, Grand Jury Staff Secretary, San Joaquin County Superior Court via email at
grandj urv(a,sjcourts. org

Page  2

572



Attachment D

u`

d
N h,      

b  ,,

O'¢ City of Lathrop Incident Response Pian

Incident Response Plan

Version History

Version Date Author Reason/ Comments

1. 8 March 2023 Document Origination

573



t
J,Nwn

o

F   

U-         r

t

1a

A City of lathrop Incident Response Plan

Executive Summary
A Cyber Security incident is defined as an event that breaches ar violates the Confidentiality, Integrity or

Availability( CIA) of City of Lathrop Information systems. Failure to act quickly and efficiently in accordance

with best practices and relevant requirements can result in a loss of functionality a d reputation damage, but

aiso potential steep financial penaities. To avoid the worst fallout of a cyber- incident, it' s vital that the

companents of your incident response plan( IRP) are built with consideration of industry guidelines, cyber

legislation, and your arganizations unique isk profile.

Incident Response Plan

An Incident Respanse plan is important to address issues that were not stopped by preventative systems and

procedures. No system can be 100% secure. Reasonable steps and best practices such as Information Security

Policies, Encryption guidelines, Secu ity Awareness training and other measures are implemented to prevent

incidents from accurring. However, when an attacker is successful in penetrating the layers of security, a plan

of actian needs ta be predefi ed ta ensure efficient containment and remediation of the event.

This policy provides the framework to addresses the seven steps necessary to minimize the negative effects

of a security breach. These steps are as fallows:

Preparation: Identify risks and establish roles and responsibilities to address those risks.

Identification and Assessment: Training and evaluation for defining and detecting a threat and to

determine if there is a need to activate the plan.

Containment and Intelligence: The containment section will autline the strategies for limiting the

scope of the incident.

Eradication: The procedures for removing the threat from all affected systems througn to the

recovery of all affected systems.

Recovery: Implementation of restore functions of the Data Backup and Retention Polity ta recover
lost or damaged informatian as well as replacement or reconfiguration of damaged systems.

Lessons Learned: Once the incident is resolved it must be determined how the breach occurred,

how to prevent similar incidents and preparation of a plan to address necessary changes.

Introduction

The City of Lathrop Incident Respanse Plan has been developed to provide guidance to the handling of

informatian security incidents that adversely affect City of Lathrop information Resources. The City of

lathrap Incident Response Plan applies to any person charged by the City of lathrop Incide t Response

Commander with a response to information security related incide ts.

The purpose of the Incident Response Plan is ta allow the City of Lathrop to respond quickly and

appropriately to information security incidents.

574



NWp,

o4d`     G"

ir'    

a

City of Lathrap incident Response Plan

Eveni De nition

Any abnormal observable accurrence in system, network, environment, process, workflaw, or personnel.

Events may or may not be negative in nature.

Adverse Events Deflnition

Events with a negative consequence. This plan oniy applies to adverse events that are computer security

related, not events caused by natural disasters, power failures, etc, which are covered in the Business

Continuity- Disaster Recovery Plan.

incident Definition

A violatian or imminent threat of violation of computer security poiicies, acceptable use policies, or standard

security practices that jeopardizes the confidentiality, integrity, or availability of information resaurces or

operations. A security incident may have one or more of the following characteristics:

A.  Violatio of an explicit or irnplied City of Lathrop security policy
B.  Attempts to gain u authorized access to a City of Lathrop Information Resource
C,   benial of service to a City of Lathrop Information Resource
D.  Unauthorized use of City af Lathrop Information Resources
E.   Unauthorized rnodification of City of Lathrop information
F.   Loss of City of lathrap Confidential or Protected infarmation

r,

575



Attachment E

i" u' r,

w.,

FT
x     #     .

x.    

R'`-''   In{ armation 5ecurity Rolicy

City of i.athrop lnformation Security Policy

Version Histor

Version Date Author Reason/ Camments

1. 8 March 2023 Document Originatian

576



tN r

V.  i

Information Security Palicy

Table of Contents

City af lethrr p lnfatmauarr Security Pc licy..........................................,..................,..,...,.................................... 1

Versic n H r̀stoty.....................»..........,,,..,.................,...........,,.,..,....,.................................,.,,..,..,,.....,..,..,.,....,,.. 1

Tableof Cc ntents .......................................................................................................................................2

lntrt ductian,..,...,...................................,........,_.............._........................,.....,..........,....................,.....       ....... 4

ContactInfarmation'.................................,........,.....,..,..............................,.....,................,...............,....,..,.......... 5

Ratesand Responsibi6ities..................................................................................................................................... 6

ChieF# nfa rmation tlfficer{ CIO......................................................................................................................... 5

Cyber Securiry tnformation Se currty Te m{ CSfST)........................................................................................... 6

C5i5T Commander......................................................................................................... 5

I fQrmation S turity Team Memb rs`................................................................................................................. 7

Informat an S cunty Framework.....................,.. ........,.......,,.,,,....,..,....,...,,,...,.,,..,,.......................,.................,

Phase i— Organitatianal5ecutity.................................................................... a,.,....,,,......,.,

Phase tl-- Functional itesponsibii' rties............................................................................,...........................,.,....,.. 8

Phase I— Sepa ativn af uti s...................................................................................................................,..,.. 1

Phase fV—! rs# ormati n Risk tdlanagement..................................................................,,............................,........ 11

Ptras V— InformatiQa Classification nd Nandling............................................................................................ 11

PhaseVf— lnformation 5haring......................................................................................................,..,.......,..,.... 12

Phase Vf!— IT ilsset Mana emer t..._..._............................._...,....,......,,,.,.,,,...,,....,.......,......,......,.................... 14

Phas Vfll— Petsonnel5eeurity..............................................................-------..._....................._...........,.....,.... lA

l hase!? t— Ir, formaiian eturity Incident Management............................._............,...,.,,,.,,,,,..,..,.,.,,..,.,..,....,.,.. I5

Phase X— Physical and Environmenta! Securicy..............._..........,................,...,..,...,.,.........,. ... ......._....,.......... 16

t hase X1— Accr unt Nlanagement artd Access Eontrol....................................,........._...........................,,.,...,.... 16

Pk1 5E XII- SyS l' 1{.' CUil/.................<,.,......,...,.........,...,...,.....,........._.,..................,................,.,.......,...,,..,...,..

Phase XIII— Collaborauve computing D uices.................................................................................................... 2p

Phase X[ V— Vulnerability Manager ent............................................................................................................. 21

Ph se XV— t7peration5 Security.............................................................._......._....,..........,.,.........................,...... 1

Reference..................................................................................................................,........................,..,........,.. 24

Appenc3ix!; 5e curity Awareness Eleferences...................................................................................................... 24

Accepiable Use of Technology IX7 17........................................_.,.................................._._......,.,,.,.............,....... 25

Vendor Remate log- tn Questionnaitt...................................._..........._........,.,..........,...,....,.,.,..,,...,.............._..... 32

CannputerSetup Checktist................................................................................................................    ..........., 33

577



i.

i

A' t   

In#ormat on Seeurity Palicy

Cont ct In( ormation........................................................................_..._.,,....       .......,..,....... 34

Information Security Team Me nber................................................................:............................................... 35

578



Nwr.

Ok       
i

u`+'.  T.'

n'     Information Security Folicy

Introduction

This policy defines the mandatory minimum information security requirements as defined belaw under

Scope. Any department within the City of lathrap may, based on its individual business needs and spetific

lega! and federal requirements, exceed the security requirements put forth i this palicy, but must, at a

minimum, achieve the security fevels required by this policy.

Scope

This palicy applies to all employees, consultants, contractors, and vendors working on behalf of the City, that

use or access any IT resource far which the City af I.athrop has administrative responsibility. While a vendor

may adopt a different policy, it must inclutle the requirements set forth in this ane.

This policy encompasses aN systems, automated and manual, for which the arganization has administrative

responsibility, including systems managed ar hosted hy vendars on behalf of the organizatian.

lnformation

This policy acts as an umbrella document t all ather seturity policies and assaciated standards. This palicy

defines the responsibility af all empfayees, consultants, cantractors, and vendors working on behalf of the

City to:

pratect and maintain the confidentiality, integrity, and availability of information and related
infrastructure assets;

manage the risk of security exposure or compramise;

ensure a secure and stable information technology{ IT environment;

identify and respond to events involving information asset misuse, loss, or unauthorized disclpsure;
monitor systerns far anomalies that might indicate compromise; and

promote and increase the awareness oi information security.
Failure to secute and protect the confidentiality, integrity, nd availability af infarmation assets in taday' s

highly networked environmer t can darnage or shut dewn systems that operake critical infrastructure,

financlal and business transactions, and compromise data which cauld result in iegal and regufatary non-
compliance,

Compliance

This policy shall take effect upon publication. Policies and standards may be amended at any time as see fit

by the Chief Informatian 01 f̀icer( CIO.

Gity af Lathrop employees who violate ihis policy may be subject ta appropriate disciplinary action up to and

including discharge as well as both civil and criminal penalties. Non- City employees, including, without

limitatian, contractors, may be subject to termination c f contractual agreements, denial oF access to iT

resources, and other actions as well as both civil and criminal penalties.

Exceptions

No exteptions to ihis olicy will be appraved.

579



otJ
H r

e

u`!.,      ..

s

Information Security Policy

Contact Information+

trsted personnel rhaf shoutd be contacted in the evenf of data lass incidents.

Updated March 2023

j Name Titfe Ro1e Contact Information Escalation _

1- 3)*

Information Security Risk  ' CSIST

Coordinator I Commander
Asset Manager CSIST

Commander

lnfrastrutture Manager    ;T
Manager

Cl0 CI0  _    .    _ ,

Communications CSIST member

Manager t

Legal CSIST member

Risk Manager CSIST member
E

HR Representative CSIST member

Physical Securiry CSIST member
i

Representative i

a
Party Support

r

i

FBI Regulatory/ Government

Reporting Body

Escalation level determines order in which notification should occur in the event of a data loss incident:

1 Notify Crst, required on all incidents
2.   Required on al4 moderate or hlgh• severity incidents
3 Involve as needed

This information may be revised f om time to time, as internal[ ity personnef and external organizations change. For the most

up ta date copy, please see Contaci lnfarma£ ion located in Appendix l: He( erence.

580



U,

tN+'.

u`^     

A, ,

O±! T°      Inforrnation Security PolicV

Roles and Responsibilities

Chief Information Officer ( CIO)

Ensure service level agreements with service providers clearly define expettations of ihe organization and
the service pravider in relation ta hardware and software.

Ensure policies related to Information Security accurately represent the goals ot the city.

Ensure Cyber Insurance is maintained as necessary and appropriate stakeholders are informed.

Establish and maintain a security team and functiorr witt the ability to identify, proteci, detett, responti,
and recover from attacks against City informa# ion resources.

Develop and maintain a centralized incident response plan capable of addressing major compramises of
City information resources.

Cyber Security Information Security Team ( 5{ST)

Consists of legal experts, risk managers, and ather department managers that may be consulted or
notified during data documentation and pplicy creation,

Advise on Information Security policy activities relevant to their area of expertise.

Ensure Information Security activities are in accorda ce with legal, contractual, and regulatory
requirements.

Respansibte for internal communications pertaining to lnformation Security.

CSIS7 Cammander

Cyber Security Infarmation 5ecurity Team Commander oversees development and is respansible for

implementing and monitoring the lnformation Security Plan. Managing and appraving the Servite Level

Agreements( SLAs) in place with third parties, and the roie third parties may play in lnfarmation Security.

Further responsibilities:

Assemble a Cyber Security Informatian Security Team{ CSISi').

Ensure personnel tasked with Information Security responsibilities are tra'rned and knowledgeable on how
to periorrn Asset documentatian and mainienance.
U date securit olicies as needed

Review the security policies

Ensure team activities comply with legal and industry requirements for Information Security procedures.
Act as the primary Asset Manager, responsible for Asset integrity and confidentiality, managing team
respanse activities.

Be aware af Cyber Insurance Policies, contact mechanisrns, and when to initiate Cyber tncident Respanse

Team Notification.

581



ur.

4

s

Informati4n Security PolicV

Information Security Team Members
Updated March 2Q23

1' he Asset Manager{ tfl is supported by a team af technical staff that work directly with Information systems

ta canfigure, perform, and dacument assets.

Further responsibifities:

No.   CSIRT Member RoEe

1 CSIST Cammander

2 Network SubJect Matter Expert

3 Network Subject Mat#er Expert

4 Senior IT Staff

S Systems Engineer

6 Recorder

7 Recorde      

il

m

This information may be revised from tirne ta time, as internal City personnet and external arganiza[ ions change. or the most

up to date copy, please see lrrformotion 5ecurity Teom Members located in Appendix 1= Reference.

582



ii iµ w

4 Ot       
s`      ;'

a p     information Security Folicy

Information Security Framework
Phase I — Organizational Security

Information security requires

and an information technalogy security functian. It is recommended that the

functions be per#ormed

1. The Information Security Risk Caordinator is responsible ta certify that information risk

management functions are met, ensuring that:

i. risk- related considerations for information assets and individuaf information

systems, including autharization decisions, are viewed wholly from the perspective

of the City of lathrop regarding the overaU strategic goals and objectives af the City

of Lethrop in carrying out its core missions and business functions; and

ii. the management af information assets,

mission/ business success.

2. The Infarmation Security Risk Coordinator is responsible to certify that information

technoiogy security functions are met.

Phase I1 — Functional Respansibilities

The City of lathrop CIO is responsible for:

2. identifying City of Lathrop information securi; y responsibiHtles and goals and

integrating them into relevant processes;

3. supporting the consiste t irnplementatian of information security policies and
standards;

4. supporting security within the City af Lathrap through clear directian and
demonstrated commitment of appropriate resou ces.

5. promoting awareness of infarmation security best practices through the regular

dissemination of materiafs provided by the Information Security Rick Coordinator
rfl;

4.

583



Hf or,

O..

t 4,
u, v:  y

A`°      Informatian Security Policy

6. implernenting a process for determini g infr rmatian classification and

categorizatian, based an industry recommended practices, State directives, and

legal and egulatory requirements, to deterrnine the appropriake levels of

protection for that infarmation;( Appendix t: 5ecurity Awareness References. F1PS

199 Standards for Security Categarization of Federa! tnfvrmatran and Jnformation

SysremsJ.

implementing the pracess for intormation asset identification, handling, use,

transmissian, and disposal based on information classification and categorizakian;

8. determining who, within the City of Lathrop, will be assigned and serve as

infarmation owners while maintaining ultimate responsibility far the confidentiality,

integrity, ancf avaiiability of the data;

9, parti+ ipating in the response to security incidents;

10. complying with applicable notification requirements in the event af a breach o€

private informatian;

11. adhering to specific legal and regulatary requirements related to in#ormation

security;

12. communicating the requirements of this palicy and the associated standards,

including the consequences of nan- compliance, to the City af lathrop workfarce

and third parties, and addressing adherence in third party agreements.

The City of lathrop lnformation 5ecurity Risk Coordinator{ tf) is responsible for:

1. maintaining familiarity with the City of l.athrap business functions and
requirements;

2. maintaining an adequate level of current knowledge and proficiency in

information security through annual Continuing Professianaf Education( CPE) credits

directly related to information security;

3. assessing City of Lathrop complianc with information security policies and iegal

and regulatory information security requirements;

4. evaluating infarmatian security risks and assisting the City af lathrop in

understanding its informatian security risks and how to appropriately manage those

risks;

5. representing and ensuring security architecture consideratians are addressed;

6. advising on security issues relateci to procurement af products and services;

584



p

yj11l tlh,

V         .

r

Information Securicy Policy

7. escalating security concerns that are not being adequately addressed according

to the applicable reporting and escalation procedures;

8. disseminating threat informatian to apprapriate parties;

9. par#icipating in the response to potentia) security incidents;

l0. participating in the development of enterprise policies and standards that

consider the City of Lathrop needs; and

11. promoting information seeurity awareness.

The City of I. athrop Infrastructure Manager( tf} is responsible for:

1. supporting security by providing clear direction and cansideration of security

controls in the data processing infrastructure and computing network{ s) which

support the informatian owners;

2. providing resources needed to maintain a level of informatian security control

cansistent with this palicy;

3. identifying and implementing all processes, policies, and contrals relatiue to

security requirements defined by the City af Lathrop business and this policy;

4. implementing the praper controls for information owned by the City of Lathrop

based on ihe City af Lathrop classification designatians;

S. providing training ta appropriate technical staff on secure operatians{ e.., secure

coding, secure configurationj;

6.{ ostering the participatian of information security and technical staff in pratecting

information assets, and in identifying, selecting, and implementing apprapriate and

cost- ef#ective security controls and procedures; and

7. imp{ ementing business continuity and disaster recovery plans

The Gity of athrop workforce is responsible for:

1.  understanding the baseline information security controls necessary to pratec#

the confidentiality, integrity, and availability of information entrusted to City af

Lathrop;

2.   protecting City af Lathrop information and resources from unauthorized use ar
disclasure;

3.   protecting persanal, private, sensitive information( PP51} from unautharized use
or disclasure;

585



SµRur., C+t

fp4
MRA"Rb   Informatian Securitv Policy

4.  abiding by City af Lathrop Policy, Acceptabie Use af Infarmation Technalogy
Resources( Appendix i: Securrty Aworeness References. Acceptable Use of

Technology 00-17j.

S.   reparting suspected information security incidents ar weaknesses to the

appropriate manager and clesignated security representatives.

Phase III — Separation of Duties

i'he City af Lathrap shall maintain:

Phase IV — Information Risk Management

The City of Lathrop shall maintain:

b. Risk assessments are required for new projects, implementations aF new

technalogies, any significant updates, or changes ta the aperating environment, ar

in respanse to the discovery of significant vulnerabi4ities. Risk assessments are

required regardless if the work is done by City of Lathrop, vendorJcontractar, or any

other third party on behalf of the City af Lathrop.

c. Risk assessment results, and the decisions made hased on these results, must 6e

documented.

Phase V — Information Classification and Handling
The City af Lathrop shall maintain:

a. A{ I information, which is created, acquired, ar used in support of City af tathrop

business activities, must only be used for its intended business purpase.

586



dk
x unr r,`

v•  s=

ifi'..,
A°'   Information Security Policy

b. AI1 information assets must have an information owner established by the City of

Lathrop' s Enformatian Services Department( ISD}.

c. Information must be properly managed from its creation, through authorized use,

to proper disposal.

d. All inFormation assets must be reviewed

Any changes to the individual data elements of an information asset requires

an immediate review by the CiO.

f. lf the City of Lathrop

h. All repraductions of infarmation in its entirety must carry the same

canfidentiality category as the original. Partial reproductians need to ae evaluated

by the CIO to determine if a new category is warranted.

i. Each category has an approved set of baseline controls designed to protect the
data asset and

j. The City of lathrap must cammunicate the requiremer ts for secure handling of
information to its workforce.

Phase Vi — Information Sharing
The City af Lathrop content made available to the general public must be reviewed by the City of

Lathrop Attarney' s affice, defined and appraved according to the Public Records Act( PRA}. The process must

indude the review and approval of updates to publicly available cantent and must consider the type and
classification of informatian posted:

587



j„1NIu1 .

4

t    
r,.      +.,.

r
Q"'°     

information Security PolicY

b. For non- public infarmation to be released outside the City of lathrop or shared
between the City of Lathrap and external entities, a process must be estabiished
that, at a minimum:

1. ensures that an information categorizatian has been perfarmed and
dacumented for the informatian to be released or shared;

2. documents the intended use of the information;

3. identifies the responsibilities of each party fo protecting the
informakion;

A. defines the process and minimum cantrols required to iransmit, stare,
and use the information;

5. records the measures that each party has in place to protect the
information;

6. defines a method for compliance measureme t;

7. provides a signoff procedure for each party to atcept responsibilities,

8. establishes a schedule and procedure for reviewing the controls; and

9. identifies an end date far the use of the informatian if applicable).

c. ln additian ta the requirements in Phase VI 5ectian b, when infarmation

categarized as having a High- impact Confidentiality requirement is ta be released ar

shared, the City af Lathrop Attorney' s office must ensure that they:

1. have a farmai written agreement( e. g., Non- Disclosure Agreement( N DA),
Acceptable Use Palicy, Memorandum of Understanding{ MOU), etc., which

contains the requirements for the handling of inforrnation, in place prior to

sharing that information with any other third- party. 

2. designate the level of management who can give written approval far:

i

588



1'tpR

s

s    " .r'''+!'°   

information 5ecurity Palicy

Phase Vll — IT Asset Management

The City of Lathrop shall maintain.

a. All IT hardware and software assets must be assigned by the City of Lathrop infdrmation

Senrices Department( ISQ} to a designated business unit or individual within the Gity of

lathrop for its use, however the asset continues ta be owned by I5D.

b.' the City af Lati rop ISfl are required to rnaintain an inventory of hardware and so{ tware

assets, ir cluding all system components( e. g., network address, machine name, software

versian} at a level of granularity deemed necessary for tracking and reparting

Phase VII1 — Personnel Security
The City of athrop shall maintain:

a. The City of l. athrop workforce must receive general infarmation security awareness

training, to include recognizing and reporting insider threats, within 30 days of hire.

Additiona! training on City af Lathrop specific infarmation security procedures, if required,

must be completed beFare access is provided to specific City of Lathrop sensitive

information not covered in the general information security training. A11 information security

training must be reinforced at least annually and must be tracked by the City of lathrop
lnformation 5ystems Department( ISD).

b. The City of lathrop must require# he w rkforce ta abide by the following policies:

i.     Policy 00- 15, Cellular and Personal Qigital Assistant
ii.     Palicy 00- 16, Password Control
iii.     Palicy 00- 17, Acceptable Use of Technalagy
iv.     Policy 00- 18, Automatic Lagoff Palicy
v.     Palicy 00- 19, Physical Entry Contral Security

vi.     Policy 00- 20, User Account
vii.     Pa#icy 00- 21, Workstatian Security

viii.     Policy 00-22, Data 8ackups
ix.     Policy 0- 23, IT Helpdesk
x.     Policy OQ- 24, Operatians and Fault Logs

xi.     Palicy 00-25, Security Deuice and Media Cantrol
xii.     Policy 00- 26, Website Links
xiii.     Policy 40- 27, Website Policy
xiv.     Palicy 00- 28, Television Broadcast
xv.     Policy 00• 29, Social Media
xvi.     Policy 00- 30, Video Monitoring and Retention
xvii.     Polity 00- 31, Remote Working

1J

589



11llpt"^.

4    

E°   

Information Security Policy

c. All job positions must be evaluated by the City of Lathrop Human Resources( HR)

department along with approval by the direct department head to determine whether they

require access to sensitive information and/ or sensitive information technology assets.

d. For those job positions requiring access to sensitive information and sensitive information

technology assets, the City of lathrop CIO must conduct workforce suitability

determinations, unless prohibited from doing so by law, regulation, or contract. Oepending

on the risk level, suitability determinations may include, as appropriate and permissible,

evaluation of criminal history record information or other reports from federal, state, and

private sourcesthat maintain public and non- public records. The suitability determination

must provide reasonable grounds for the City of Lathrop Ci0 to conclude that an individual

will likely be able to perform the required duties and responsibilities of the subject position

without undue risk to the City of Lathrop.

e. A process must be established within the City of Lathrop to repeat or review suitability

determinations periodically and upon change of job duties or position.

f. City of lathrop Department Superviso s are responsible for ensuring al) City of Lathrop

issued property is returned to HR prior to an employee' s separation.

g. City of Lathrop ISD are responsible for ensuring accounts are disabled and access is

removed immediately upon notification from HR of an employee' s separation# rom the City

of lathrop.

h. HR is responsible for providing ISD proper notification of each employee' s separation

from the City of Lathrop.

i. For sensittve positions, HR will provide notification to ISD pflOf to an employee' s

separation from the City of Lathrop.

ii. For on-sensitive positions, HR will provide notification to ISD within ten{ 101

minutes of an employee' s separation from the Ci[ y of lathrop

i. Within 24 hours, each department is responsible to provide ISD a Technical Service

Request( TSR) with instructions on archiving or deleting the separated employee' s data,
which includes emails.

Phase IX — Infarmation Security Intident Management
City of Lathrop must have an incident response plan, consistent with NIST sta dards, to effectively

respond to information security incidents.

a. All obsen ed or suspected information security incidents or weaknesses are to be reported

the City of Lathrop Information Services Department( ISD) as quickly as possible. If a
member of the workforce feels that information security concerns are not being
appropriately addressed, they may confidentially contact the CIO directly.

f

590



SN%Ut.'r

r:

oE       ,

cZ;i y

y`

Op v     
in#ormation SecuritY PolicY

b. The Cyber Security tncident Response Team must be notified

incident

Phase X — Physical and En ironmental Security
The City of lathrop shall maintain;

b. An annuai risk assessment must be perfarmed by ISD far information processing and storage

faciiities to determine whether existing controls are operating carrectly and if additional physica!

security measures are necessary.

c. Information technolagy equipment must be physically p otected from security threats and

environmental hatarcls. Special controls may also be necessary to protect supporting infrastructure

and facilities such as electrical supply and cabling infrastructure.

d. All information technology equipment and inforrnation media must be secured

e. Visitors to information pracessing and storage facilities, including maintenance personnel, must be

always escorted, Any maintenance performed remotely must be virtually escoried.

Far City of I. athrop information that has a High Confidentiality requirernent, software r

automated processes must be implemented to keep track af individual electronic documents and

files, devices, or media and the individuals who have passession of them. City of lathrop

infarmation is currently monitored by

Phase Xt — Account Management and Access Cantrol

The City af I. ath op shall maintain:

a. AH accounts must have an individual em la ee or grau assi ned ta be res onsible for account

management

b. Access to systems must be provided through the use of individually assigned, unique identifiers
known as user- IDs.

c. Associated with each user- ID is an authentication token{ e. g., passwordj which must be used to

authenticate the identity of the person or system requesting access.

591



J"N W!
d

ti t

i    ,'.' S'

Information SecutitY Po GV

d. Automated techniques and controis must be implemented to lack a sessian and require

authentication or re- authentication a ter a period of inactivity far any system where authentication

is required. Infarmatian on the screen must be replaced with publicly viewable information( e. g.,

screen saver, blank screen, ctock) during the session lock.

e. Automated techniques and controls must be implemenked to terminate a session after specific

cflnditions are met. Specific conditions include:

1.   Group Policy rule wi!! be rmplemented that ferminates session--
rnacfivity.

f. Tokens used to authenticate a person or process must be treated as confidentia) and protected

appropriately.

g. Passwords must not be stored on paper, or in an electronic file, hand- held device, ar browser,
unless they can be stored securely has been approved by
the Chief Infarmation Officer{ CIQ).

h. Information owners are respansibie for determining who shou{d have access ta pratected

esources within their jurisdiction

i. Access privileges will be granted by the City of I. athrap CIO in accordance with the user' s job title
and will be limitec#only to thase necessary to accomplish assigned tasks in accordante with Ciry of
Lathrop missions and business functians

j. Users of privileged accounts

k. Lagon banners must be implemented an aq systems where that feature exists to inform aH users

that the system is for City of Lathrop business or ather approved use cansistent with City af Lathrop
policy, and that user activities may be monitored, and the user should have no expectation of

privacy.

I. Advance appravaf far any remote access connection must be provided by tne City of Lathrop. An

assessment must be perforined and documented to determine the scope and methad of access, the

tethnical and business risks invalved, and the contractual, process, and technical contrals re uired
for such tonn

m. All remote connections must be made through managed paints- of-entry reviewed by the CIO.

Working# rom a remote location must be authorized by the City of lathrop City Manager and CIO,

and best practices which ensure the appropriate protection of City of lathrop data in remote
environments must be shared with the individual rior to the individual bein ranted remote

592



Y
i

q         ,

y

a!!`?`°¢   
Informatian Security Policy

Phase XII — System Security
The City af athrop shall maintain:

a. Systems include but are not limited to servers, platfarms, networks, cammunications, databases, and
software appiications.

2. The City of lathrap information Services Department( ISOf must ae assigned responsibility for

maintenance and administration of any system depEoyed on behalf of the City af lathrop.

Z. { nformation security must be required at system inception and documented via electronic

helpdesk ticket andjor change request form, as part of the decision to create ar modify a system

Appendix!: Security A4vareness References. Computer Setup Check tisi).

3. A! I systems must be cieveloped, mainiained, and decommissioned in accordance

4. Each systern must have a set of controls commensurate with the categorizatian o( any information

that is stored on ar passes thraugh the system( drj.

S. All system clocks must synchronize to a centralized reference time set to UTC{ Coordinated

Universal Time which is itself s nchronized to st least three s nchranized time sources source

6. Environments and test plans must be established to validate the system works as intended prior to

deployment in production

8. Formal change contral procedures for all systems must be developed, implerriented, and enforced.

a. DatabasQs and software

1. All software written far or deployed an City of lathrap

593



Nx ir,

i

u,   

y
RrARATtV

lnformation 5ecurity Policv

or

ii. sensitive data is masked ar overwritten with fictional information.

4. Where technicaily feasible, development saftware and tools must not be

maintained on production systems.

7. P ivileged access to production systems by development staff must be restricted

whenever possible.

8. Migration processes must be dacumented and implemented to govern the

transfer of software from the develapment environment up through the production
environment.

b. Netwark Systems:

1. Connections between systems must be au#horized by the City of Lathrop Chief

Informatian Qfficer( CIO) of aH relevant City of Lathrop sites and protected by the
implementation ot appropriate controls.

2. All connections and their configurat+ ons must be documented, and the

dacumentation must be reviewed by the City of la#hrop CIO annuaUy, at a
minimum, to ensure:

594



tH or,Crti

Information Security Palicy

i. the business case for the connection is stitl ualid and the con ection is still

required; and

ii. the security controls in place

are appropriate and functioning correctly.

3. A network architecture must be maintained that inciudes, at a minimum, tiered

network segmentation 6etween:

i.

ii.

an ot er systems; an

iii.

5. Two- factor auihentication( 2FA) is requi ed for all users cannecting ta City af

Lathrop internal systems.

6. Network Authentication is required for all devices connecting ta City of Lathrop
internal networks.

7. Only City of lathrop Information 5ervices Qepartment{ ISD} personnel may

capture or manitar network traffic unless authorized by CIO for auditing purposes.

8. A risk assessment must be performed in consultation with the City af Lathrap CIO

before the initiation of, or significant change to, any network technnlogy ar project,

including but not limited to wi eless technology.

Phase XIII — Collaborative computing Devices
The City of lathrop Informatian Services pepartment ISDj shall purchase and maintain:

1, Collaborative camputing devices, including, for Example, networked white boards, cameras, and
microphones.

2. Collaborative computing devices must:

a. prphibit remote activation; and

b. provide users physicatly present at the devices with an explicit indication of use.

3. City af lathrop must provide simple methods ta physically disconnect callabarative computing

devices. Simpfe methods include physicaUy unplugging collaborative computing device from the
computer or completely shutting down the computer.

595



wr
JJ       

1<;.:    a.     s

l"

iN.    .. ...

tnformation SecuritY Policy

Phase X! V — Vulnerability Management
The City af Lathrop shall maintain:

b.

Phase XV — Operations Security
The City af Lathrop shall maintain:

a. All systems, and# he physical facilities in which they are stored, must adhere ta the aperating
instructions, menagement processes, and farmal incident management procedures listed within this
docum n

b. System configurations must fallow CIO approved configuratian standards.

c. Advance planning and preparation must be performed to ensure the availability of adequate

capacity and resaurces. System capacity must be monitored on an angoing basis.

596



Naar,'
4

u„
I

Informatian Security Policy

d. Where City of Lathrop provides a server, application, ar network service to another site,

operational and management respansibilities must be coordinated by all impacted sites.

e. Host based firewal s must be instaped and enabled on all City oF Lathrop workstations to protect

from threats and to restrict access to only that which is needed.

f. Controls must be implernented across

City of lathrap systems

i. Cantrals must be in place to allaw only City of Lathrop approved saftware to run on a system and

prevent executian of all other software.

j. All systems must be maintained at a vendor-supported level to ensure accuracy and integrity.

I. Any system, software, ar Operating System environment which is no langer supparted and cannot

be patched to current versions( e.g. end vf life hardware/ software) must be decommissioned and
removed from service.

q. Contingency plans( e. g,, bu5iness continuity plans, disaster recavery plans, continuity of

operations plans

2.

597



xAor.

y

o+•  t;,

c,'    

informatian Security Policy

s. 8ackups and restoration must be tested manthly. Separation of duties must be applied ta these

funttions( drJ.

598



Sy1 tN!

Ot

c?       a      >;

R+t tto,+
tnfarmation Security Policy

Reference

Appendix I: Security Awareness References

599



r'

Q?'°   information Security Policy

600



zµxcir,
e=,.

s
r;

informatian Security Policy

CITY QF LATHROP Acceptable

ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATIQN Use of

Technology
oo-.

Querview

The intention for publishing an Acceptable Use Policy is to clarify restrictions
consistent witF the City of Lathrop established culture of openness, trust and
integrity.

We are committed to protecting City of Lathrop' s employees and the City from illegal
or damaging actions by individuals, either- knawing{y ar unknowingly.
InternetJlntranet/ Extranet- rekated systems, including but not limited ka computer
equipment, software, operating sys ems, storage media, network accounts

providing electranic mail, WWW browsing, and FTP, are the property af City of
Lakhrop. These systems are to be used for business purposes in serving the
inter sts a the Gity, and of our customers in the course af narmaf operations.

Effective security is a team effart ir volving the participation and support af every City
af La hrop employee and a liate who deals with information andjor information

systems. It is the responsibility of every camputer user to know khese guidelines,
and to canduct their activities accordingly.

Ciky af Lathrop' s Acceptable Use Policy helps to safeguard system assets and data,
incfuding Electronic Protected Information ( EPI), against unaufihorized use,

disclosure, modification, damage, or loss.

Questions about this palicy should be directed via e- mail to the informatian
Technologies Manager at helpdesk@ci. Iathrap. ca. us.

Purpose

The purpos of the Accepkable Use Palicy is to desc ibe City of Lathrop' s requirements
for operations and is to outline the acceptable use of camputer equipment at City of
athrop. These ru(es are in place to protect the employees and the Cifiy.

Inapprapriate use exposes City of Lathrop to risks including virus attacks,
compramise of nefiwark systems and services, and legal issues.

Scr pe
This palicy applies to all City of Lathrop and a liate em layees, including temporary

employees and employees of affiliated third- party organizations. This policy also
applies ta all equipment that is owned, leased, operated, o maintained by City of
Lathrap.

Revision Information

601



tµaor, G
a``       

r,

boArl. v`*
info mation Securitv PalicY

When this document is updated, the reason for revision wi( I appear here.

Policy
General Use and Ownership

1.  While City of Lathrop' s netwark administration desires ta pravide a reasonable
levef af privacy, users should be aware that the d ta they create on the City
systems r rnains the property of City of Lathrop. Management does not

guarantee the canfidentiality af information stared on any netwark d vice
belonging to City of Lathrop.

2,  Employees are responsible for exercising goad judgment regarding fihe
reasonableness af personal use and at department head discretion.

3.  The City recornmends that any informatic n that users cansider sensitive ar
vulnerable be encrypted.

4.  For security and netwark maintenance purposesr authorized individuals within
City of athrop may monitor equipmenk, systems and network traffic at any
time.

S.  Cifiy of Lathrap reserves the right to audit networks and systems on a perivdic
basis to ensure compliance with this policy.

Security and Proprie#ary Information
1.  Th user interface for information contained on lnternet/ Intranet/ xtranek-

related systems shoufd be cfassified s either confidential or not confidential, as

defined by the City confidentiality guidelines to be public ar confidential, details
of which can be found in Human Resaurces policies. Examples of canfidential
infarmation include but are not limited to: Ernployee information, Payroll,

customer lists, medical information, social security numbers, credit card
numbers, vendar and bidder sensitive information, and lawyerJclient

correspondence, research data. Ernployees should take al) necessary steps to
prevent unauthorized access to this information.

2.  Aufihorized users are assigned accaunts for their specific use based on their

defined needs. Users are responsible for the security of their accounts.
3.  Passwords are pravided to enable us rs to keep their account secure. Keep

passwords secure and do not share accounts. Authorized users are responsible

for the securi y of thei passwords and accounts. System level passwords are to
be changed every 90 days; user level passwords should be changed every 60
days.

4.  All PCs, laptops and workstatians should be secured wifih a password- protected
screensaver with the autamatic activation feature set at 10 minutes or {ess, or

by logging- aff (controi- alt-delete for Windows users) when the host wili be
unattended.

602



x

v  

Information Securitv Policy

5.  Because information contained an portable computers is especialiy vuinerab# e,

fihe computer' s hard drive is encrypted to prevent access to the data in the case
of the computer being lost or sto{ en. Password and user accounts are not t be

displayed or written anywhere in the portable computer.
6.  Postings by employees from a City af Lathrop email address to newsgroups

should contain a disciaimer stating that the apinions expressed are strictly their

own and not necessarily those of City af Lathrop, unless posting is in the course
of business duties.

7.  AH hasts used by the employee that are connected ta the Ci y of Lathrop

InternetJlntranet/ Extranet, wt ether owned by the employee or City of Lathrap,
shall be continually executing approved virus- scanning software with a current
virus database.

8.  Ernployees must use extreme caution when apening e- mail attachments
received from unknown senders, which may contain viruses, e- mail bombs, or
Trojan horse code.

Unacceptable Use

The fiollowing activities are, in general, prohibited. Information Technologies Staff
may be exempted from these restrictions during the eourse of their legitimate job
respansibilities ( e. g., there rnay have a need to disable the network access af a
host if that host is disrupting production services}.  Under na circumstances is an

employee of City af Lathrop authorized to engage in any activity that is iilegal under
local, state, federal or international law while utilizing City of athrap owned
resau rces.

The lists below are by no means exhaustive, but attempt ta pravide a framework

for activities which fall inCo the categary af unacceptable use.

The following ac ivities are strictly prohibited, with no exceptions:

1.  Violations of the rights of any person or protected by copyrighk, trade secret,

patent ar ather intellectual property, ar similar laws ar regulations, including,
but not lirnited to, he installation or distribution of " pirated" or other software

products that are not appropriaCely licensed far use by City of Lathrap .
2.  Unauthorized capying of copyrighted material including, but n t limited to,

digitization and distribution of photographs from magazines, baoks or other
capyrighted saurces, copyrighted music, and the installation of any copyrighted
software for which City of Lathrap ar the end user does not have an active
license is strictly prohibited,

603



KxAar

e

u.,,    

i:;

OR"'"     Information Security Policv

3.  Exporting software, technical information, encryption software or technolagy, in
violatian of internationai or regional export confirol laws, is iliegal. The

appropriafie management should be consulted prior to export of any material
that is in questian.

4.  Introduction af malicious programs into the netwark or serv r ( e. g., viruses,

worms, Trojan horses, e- mail bombs, etc.}.

5.  Revealing your accaunt passwo- d to others or allowing use af your account by

others. This includes family and other household members when work is being
done at home.

6.  Using a City of l.athrop computing asset to actively engage in procuring or
transmitting mafierial that is in violation of sexual harassment or hostile

workplace laws in the user's local jurisdictian.
7.  Making traudulent affers of products, items, ar services originating from any City

af Lathrop account.
8,  Making statements aboufi warranty, expressly or implied, unless it is a part of

narmal job duties.
9.  E ecting security breaches or disruptions o P network communication, Security

breaches include, but are not limiteti ta, accessing data of which the employee is
not an intended recipient or logging into a server or account that the employee
is not expressly authorized to access, un[ ss these duties are within the scope of

regular duties. For purpases of this section, " disruption" includes, but is not

limited to, network sni ng, ping d flaads, packet spaofing, denial of service,
and farged routing infarmation for maliciaus purposes.

10. Port scanning or security scanning is expressly prohibited unless prior
natificatian to the IT Department is made.

i1. Executing any form of netwark monifiaring which wil) intercept data not intended

fior the employee' s host, unless this activity is a part of the employee' s norma{
jab/ duky.

1z. Circumv nting user authentication or security of any ha t, netwark ar account.
13. Interfering with ar denying service ta any user other than the rnployee' s host

for example, denial of service attack).

14. Using any pragramjscript/ cammand, or sencfing messages of any kind, wikh the
intent to interfere with, ar disabfe, a user' s terminal session, via any means,
locally or via the Internet/ fntranet/ Extranet.

15. Providing infarmation about, or lists of, City of Lathrop employees ko parties
outside City of Lathrop,

16. Sending of "junk mail" or other advertising material to individuals who did not
speci cally request such rnaterial ( email spam).

17. Any f rm of harassment via email, paging, whether through language,
frequency, or size of inessages.

604



J,.µrur.'

4-     ti    
r'

Y'""?!     information Security Policy

18. Unauthorized use, or- forging af emaii header infarmatian.
3. 9. Soiieitatian af email From any other email address, other than that of the

past r' s account, with the intent to harass or to collect replies.
20. Creating or for-warding " chain ( etters", " Panzi'" or ather " pyramid" schemes of

any type.

21. Use of unsalicited email originating from within City of Lathrop ' s networks af
other Internet/ Intranet/ Extranet service providers an behalf of, or to advertise,
any service hosted by City of Lathrop or connected via City of l.athrap ' s
network.

22. Posting the same or similar non- business- related messages ta large numbers of

Usenet newsgroups { newsgroup spam).

23. Video, audio and Jor any type of internet streaming not for business purposes.

Electronic Data Access

nly Department Heads or the Information Systems Manager with the approval pf fihe
City Manager can authorize the reading of electronic media infarrnation, which
includes, but is not limited to, e- mail and voicernail messages, for employees under

their supervision. For City Manager would have fio be approved by at {east three
City Caunci) Members. The City wil! also respond ta legal processes and fuffiEl any
obligations to third parties with the approval af the City Attorney.

Privacy
1.  All information created by emplayees or use by employees is not confidential or

private. All of the City' s electronic media and informa ion relating to these
electronic media are City property infarrnatian and records are also subject to

cEisclosure to he public. Although employees have passwords that restrict acces

to their computers, the City reserves the right to and routineiy does acce s this
inforrnation.

2.  It should e nated that even though information or files may have been deleted

from electronic media, it daes nat mean khat they have been permanently
erased from khe systems. This includes e- mail and messages stared on external

electronic rnedia systems such as Microsoft Hotmail or Instant Messaging that
may have been viewed, read, printed, or stored ( permanently or temporarily),
on City equipment.

3.  In addition to the foregoing provisions, employees should be aware that certain
kinds of electranic media information may be subject to recard retentian
requirements employees may not delete any such pratected records, either as
public records" or pursuant to discovery in litigation.

605



Kxsor,

1'

lnformation 5ecurity Poiicy

Wireless Network Equipment
1.  Written permission must be obtained from the IT Manager and authorized before

any wireless network device can be connected to City af Lathrop networks.
2.  Deployment of ANY wireless access points without IT Manager' s pe mission is

strictly prohibited.
3.  All wireless network devices onnecting ta City netwarks must be configured by

the IT Department. A[ no time should laptop computers, handheld camputers or
PDAs { Personal Digital Assistant), ar other wireless devices be conn cted ta the

City' s internal netwark without the prior approval of the IT DeparCment. The

exceptian would be any designateci public wireless access point ar public hotspot
cieployed by fihe City of Lathrop.

nforcement

DiscipEinary actions tor City staff are de ned in the City' s Personnel Rules &
Regulations Manual.

Definitions

Term Definition

Spam Unauthorized and/ or unsolicited

electronic mass mailings

EPI Electronic Protected Information -

Examples are; Employ e
information, Payroll information,

customer lists, medical information,

soclal security numbers, credit card
numbers, etc.

606



j,t xar.
o

p

u s.   >',..

tti.

Infarmation Security Poiicy

Vendor Remote I. og- In Questionnaire

In/ ormatlon Systems Depanment 390 TOwne Ce tt'e Dr.- 1. 0thrOp, CA 9533Q
Pt nna( 209) 941- 7A300- Fax( 204) 941- 7219

www. Cl. ldthrop. ca. us

Remote Lo   -In Cluestionnaire

RequestorSignature Oate

Gry of Lathrop[ IQ 5ignature Date

607



tH ur. ti

u.         . Y.

a

44i' 1i'"'°"*`°   
I formation Security Poiicy

608



i,z« c;

a.
Information Security Policy

Contact Information

tis[ ed persanne! thai should be contocted in the event af data loss incidents.

Updoted March 2023
w_._.  _   

Name Title Role Cantact Informatian Escalat on '

1- 3}'"

Information 5ecurity Risk   CSIST

Coordinatar Cornmander

Asset Manager CSlST

Commander

Infrastructure Manager    ` CSIST

Manager

cio    __   cio
W_._

M    ______  _ _________ w._   __ _____  _  _

Communications CSI5T member

Manager

Legal i CSIST member

Risk Manager C515T member

HR Representative CSIST member

physical Security        CSIST member

Representative

3'
a

Party Support__       _

i

RegulatoryJGovernrnent

v

Reporting Bady

i I

Escalation leve! determines order in which notification shauld ocwr in the event o a ata oss incident:

1.   Notify tErst, required on a! I incidents
2.   Required on atl moderate vr high 5everity intidenis
3 involue as needed

609



Kxor

O  Apt

Tj.
y:

j;

q .,

information Securitv Palicy

Information Security Team Members
Updated March 2023

No.   CSIRT Member Ro( e

1 CSIST Commander

2 Network Subject Matter Expert

3 Network Subject Matter Expert

4 Senior IT Staff

5 Systems Engineer

6 Recarder

7 Recorder
d

610



Attachment F

rt" K"''"+

D1 AFTu*,.•..,       s';

f'

yR' Ma b

City of Lath• o  Business Continuity- Disaster Recovery Pl n

Version Histor 

Versio     Date Author ReasonjCamments

1. S March 2023 Document Origination

611



r
J,irw r r 4 .

a

p.... .        '...

dl

CllAtF,

P

Table ot Contents

City o# L khfop Busines Continuity- f isaster Recrnrery Plan................................................................................ 1

Versic n History..................................................................................................................... ........................... 1

T b[ C cyf' antCnts .............................................................................,...,.........,.,...................,..,...........,.._.. 2

Part1...................................................................................................................................................................... 3

Intrc dttctian................................._......,._....---............,...,.,..,.,,,...,......,................      3

Parti]..................................................................................................................................................................... 4

C esign oF the Plan............................................................................................................................................. 4

ConkactInf+ a mation....................................................................................................................
a.....,..............,.... 7

Parifl1....................................................................................................................................................................

Ralesand Respc nsibilities................................................................................................................................. 8

Chi f Inforrtja tion C3Eficer CIO}........................................................................................  8

8us[ ness C ntinuity Management" Ceam{ BCMT)......................................................................................... 8

art IV................................................................................................................................................................. 10

8us'rness Cantinuity Framewa rk..................................................................................................................... 10

Ph se I— Uisaster Detecticsn and Aetermination....................................................................................... 10

Phase II— Notification of Persc nne! Responsible for Recouery................................................................. 11

Phase Ifl— Initiat the 6usiness Ca tinuity Pfan...............................................................,,...,..,.,,..........,. 11

Pta se IV- d i aster Retc very 5trategy.............................................................,......,.....,,.,,,.,...,.,......,...,.. a 12

Scope of the 6usiness Continuity Plan...... a................................................................................................ 13

InFrarmation Systems listed by isk Category.,..,................................................................,....,....,.....,,.....,..,.... 14

612



J,ti
wc

R4a
T

u;  

A`
QiRMRATSP

Pa rt I

Introduction

Planning for the business continuity af City ot Lathrop in the aftermath of a disaster is a complex task.

Preparation for, response ta, and recovery from a disaster affecting the business functions of the City af

lathrop requires the cooperative efforts of the Business Cantinuity Team( BCi'} in partnership with the

essential departments of the City of lathrop. This dacument records the Plan that autlines and caardinates

these efforts, reflecting the analyses by the City of Lathrap Chief Information Officer, Tony Fernandes.

The purpose of the City af lathrop Business Continuity- Disast r Recovery P{ an is ta aUow City af lathrop to

respond quickly and appropriately to servic2 interrupting incidents.

Event Definitian

Adve se Events De( inition

How to Use This Document

Use this document to learn about the issues involved in pfanning far the continuity of the critical and

essential business functions at City af Lathrop, for training personnel, and for recavering from a disaster. This

dacument is divided into four parts, as described below.

Part Contents

Part I- Information about the dacument itself.

Purt II- pesign of the Plan that this document recards, including infarmation about the overal) structure af

business continuity planning at Gty af l. athrop.

Fart III- General responsibilities of the i dividual City of Lathrop Suppart Teams that together form the
Business Continuity Management Team, emphasizing the function of each team and its preparation
respansibilities.

Part IV- Recavery actions for the City of athrop 5upport' feams and important checklists such as the

notificatian list for a disaster and an inventory of resources required for the environment.( Nate: If a

disaster" situatian arises, Section IV of the Pla is the only section that needs to be referenced. It contains a! I
the procedures and suppart informatian for recovery.

613



a
J,tawr c,4

4  

5.  .=

T
i

rnlMT b

Audience

This document addresses several groups within the City of Lathrap central administration with differir g levels

and types of responsibilities for busi ess continuity, as folfows:

Administratian

E3usiness Continuity Management Team( BCMT}

City of Lathrop 6usiness Continuity Team( BCT)

External C} rganizations

It shauld be emphasized that this dacument is addressed particularly ta the members of the Business

Continuity Management Team, since they have the responsibility of preparing for, responding to, and

recovering from any disaster that impacts City of Lathrap. Part NI of this document describes the composition

of the Business Cpntinuity Management Team in detaii.

Distribution

As the written recard of City af Lathrop' s Business Cantinuity Plan, this document is distributed to each

member of the Business Continuity Management Team.

It is also distri6uted ta City of Lathrop Department Fieads and other Cammunity Organizatians and while nat

primarily involved with the direct recover effort, will require ativanced knawledge of planned actions and

needs. Community Qrganizations include Physical Plants, security prouided by the Palice, and service

pravided by the Fire Depa tment.

Part II

Design of the Plan

Part II describes the philosaphy of business continuity planning at City of Laihrop generally, and the kind af

analysis that produced this Plan, It alsa provides an overview of the functions of the Business Continuiry

Management Team in implementing this Plan.

Pu rpose

City of lathrap increasingly depends on computer-supported information processing and

telecommunications. The increasing dependency on computers and telecommunications for aperationa)

suppart poses the risk that a lengthy ioss of these capabilities could seriously affect the overall business

performance of the City of lathrop_

City ot lathrop Infarmation Services Department recognizes the low probability of severe damage to data

pracessing telecammunications and computer information systems. Nevertheless, because af the potential

614



av,;tuKor, car
o

v"•  

Rh+ trp a

impact ta City of Lathrap,

The Business Continuity Plan( BCP) identifies the critical functions of the City of Lathrop and the resources

required to support them. The BCP provides guidelines for ensuring that needed personne{ and resources are

available 1`or both disaster preparatian and response and that the praper steps will be carried out to perrnit

the timely restoration of services.

This 8CP specifies the responsibilities of che Business Cantinuity Management Team, whose mission is to

establish ity of l.athrap level pracedures to ensure the continuity of City of lathrop' s business functians. In

the event af a disaster affecting any of the functional sites, the Business Continuity Management Team

serves as liaison between the functional site( s) affected and other community organizations praviding major
services. These services inciude the support provided by Physical Piants, security provided by the Palice,

service provided by the Fire Department, and public information dissemination handled by the City af

lathrap Communications 7eam, among other.

Assumptions

The City of latt rap Plan is predicated on the validity of the following three assumptions:

It shauld be noted hawever, that the Plan will still be functiona! and eFfective even in an

area- wide disaster,

The Plan is a document that reflects the changing environment and requirements of City of

Lathrop. Therefare, the Plan requires the continued allocation of resources to maintain t

and to keep ii in a canstant state of readiness.

Develapment

City of Lathrop' s Chief Information C} fficer is responsible for developing the City of lathrap' s

Business Continuity Plan. Development and support of individual City of Lathrap Department Plans
are the responsibility of the Department F{ eads planning far recovery.

615



tt ur

a

t.

RhIRAt p

Maintenance

nsuring that the Flan reflects an oing changes to resaurces is cr ccial. This task includes updating

the Pian and revising this dacument to reflect updates; testing the updated Plan; and training

personnel. The Business Continuity Management Team Coordinatars are responsible far this
comprehensive maintenance task.

The Business Continuity Management Team Coordinators ensures that a formal review is initiated

whenever there is a significant change required for the plan. Annually, the Business Continuity
Management Team Coordinators initiates a c mpieke review of the P{ an, which cou( d result in major

revisions to this document. These revisions will be distributed to ali autharized personnel, who

exchange their old plans for the newly revised plans. At that time the Caordinatars will provide an

annual status repart on continuity planning to the City of I. athrop Chief fnformation Officer.

Testing

616



i wr,
i

s

y

M. ass°.'`

Contact Inforrnation"
tlpdated March 2a23

Name Title Role Contact Information Escalation

1-3j•
Business Continuity        BC mana er

Management Team

Coordinator

Infrastructure Manager BC Manager

n. s v____......_,__..___.___._.....___. e_a..

CI(]   CIO

Comrnunications BCMT

Manager member
mm_, . v__._     __,..______.._____

legal BCMT

member

Risk Manage BCMT

member
e_.     __.____.

NR Representative 6CM' t

i member

Physical Security         BCMT       

Representative i member
m

3` Party Network
Support

FBI Regulatory/ Government :.

j Reporting Body

Escalation level determines order in which notificatian should accur;
1.   Notify tirst, required on aii incidents
2.   Aeguirad on all moderate or high-severity incidents
3.   involve as needed

This information may be revised from time to time, as lnternal ity persannei and external organizations change. For the
most up ta date copy, please see Contact lnjormation located in Appendix 1,- Supporting Dorument Lrst.

617



tit ur,

s

i ,,

4'*
Ar°

Part III

Roles and Responsibilities

Chief Informatian Officer ( CIO)

Seek approva{ from City Manager far the administration of the Business Continuity Frogram.
Caordinate response activities wikh department heads and external resources as needed to
minimize damages to iniormation resources.

Provitte updates on response activities to Business Gontinuity Management Team ( BCMT} and
ather stakeholders during an incident.
Ensure service level agreements with service providers clearly define expectations of the
organizatian and the service provider in relation to Business Gantinuity.
Ensure policies related to recavery management accurately represent the goals of the City of
Lathrop.
Fieview the Business Continuity Plan (° the Plan"} to ensure khat it meets policy abjectives and
accurately reflects the goals of ihe City.
Ensure Cyber insurance is maintained as necessary and appropriate stakeholders are informed.
Ensure lessons learned are applied/ weighed based o risk for Business Continuity incidents.

Business Continuity Management Team ( BCMT)

Under the overal) direction of the Business Continuity Manager, support is provided ta assist City of lathrop

functional site' s recouery by the Business Continuity Team memhers and external vendors. These teams uvork

the problem candition to restore services and provide assistance at the City of Lathrop level. Support from

external vendors is generally documented in a procedure' s manual for the City of Lathrop. The eusiness
Cantinuity Plan is an adjunct ta that documentation and highlights the interfaces between the vendor ievel

service and the Business Continuity Team aperations requirements. In cases where the documentation in this

Plan and the vendor' s dc cume ts differ, the vendor' s documentatian has precedence,

Advise on recovery response activities relevant to their area of expertise.
Maintain a general understanding of the Plan and poficies pf the City o# Lathrop.
Ensure business continuity activities are in accordance with legal, ca tractual, and regulatory
requirements.

Participate in tests of the Business Continuity pfan and procedures.
Responsible tor i terna! and external communicatians pertaining to recavery activities.

3usiucss Cn iti iuity ltlar uger

The Bus ness Continuity manager aversees and prioritizes actions during the incident. They are also

responsible for conveying the special requirements of high severity activities ta the rest of the City of Lathrop
personnef. AdditionaUy,# hey are responsible for understanding the SLAs in pface with third party vendors,
and the role third parties may play in specific response scenarios.

Further responsibilities:

Assernble a Business Continuity Respanse Team{ CSIRTy.
Ensure personnel tasked with business continuity responsibilities are trained and knowledgeable on
how to respqnd to incidents.

618



avr.

i

v!;.   s`

ry i1, M11AY p

Update Business Continuity PEan and procedures as needed

Initiate tests of the business Cantinuity Plan
Ensure team activities compiy with legal and industry requirements for Business Continuity

pracedures.

t Act as the primary Business Continuity Manager, responsible for declaring a disaster intident,
managing team response activities, and approving close of recovery incidents.

l3uci res Couti ruih' Tean1 A1cnrGers

The Business Continuity Manager is supported by a team af technica! staff that work directly with the

affected informatian systems to restore service to end users. Team members are typically comprised af

subject matt2r experts( SMEs}, senior level IT staff, third part+es, autsourced security, or forensic partners.

Teams and responsibilities:

Damage Assessment/ Salvage Team. Headed by the Infrastructure Manager and activated during the
initial stage of an emergency, the team repvrts directly to the Business Continuity Management
Team, evaluates the initial staws of the damaged functional area, and estirnates both the time to

reoccupy the facility and the salvageability of the remaining equipment.

Transportation Team. A ternporary City of i.athrop Support Team headed jointly by the Infrastructure
Manager and Physical Security Representative responsible for transporting resources, personnel,
equipment, and materials to back- up sites as necessary.
Telecommunications' fearn. Headed by the Infrastructure Manager is responsibfe for establishing
voice and data communications between the affected site and the City af athrop.

619



ttuar,

C„  
u.__.

s

a,£ £

x u. O'

TAltl. h: 1: CITl QF LATHROP I3US1 Ili55 CON' f1iVlIITY TE;AM1I 1 IE1111tiERS'

tlpdoted March 2a23

o.   BCT Member Role
i__     

1 Business Continuity Manager
w. i

2 Network SME ______   

3 Network SM E

4 Seniar IT Staff

S Systems Engineer
S

6 Business CantinuityTeam Member m Recorder

7 Business Continuity Team Mernber- Recorder

Tl is information may 6e revised from time ta time, as internat City personne end external argankzatac, ns cta: arti e, Fcsr th* rran t
up to date coPY, please see Table 1° City of tathrop Business Continuity Feam A+fembers Ir cat c in Ag, enrtix f S; rnnrrir cr
3rscument l.ist.

Part IV

Business Continuity Framework

4. isaster Recavery Strategy

Each subsec#ion below identifies the organization( s} and/ a position( s) responsible for each af these
respor ses.

Phase I — Disaster Detection and Determination

620



a°

JS
r

t' t;;M a

Phase li - Notification of Personnei Responsible for Recovery
When a situation occurs that could result in interruption of processing

The Business Cantinuity Managerl

The Business Continuity Teaml

f7eJer to puge T; Contact tnfarmotron

Phase III - Initiate the Business Continuity Plan
Initiation of this Plan is the responsitaility af the Business Continuity Management Team Coordinator ar any

member af the Business Continuity Management Team.

Activation of a Designated Hot Site

Hot Site:

The respansibility for activating any af the designated hot sites or back-up resaurces is delegated ta Ghief

Information Clfficer( CIO). tn the absence of the G0, responsibility reverts to the tommunitations Manager.

ihe CIC?, or aiternate, determines

Infrastructure Manager and[ ommunications Manager.

Disseminatian of Public Information

The Communications Manager is responsible for directing al( meetings and diseussians with the news media

and the public, and in conjunction with the BCT Manager and necessary BC7 personnel not actively

participating in the ecovery operatian. In the absence of khe Cammunications Manager, the responsibiiity
reverts to the senior afficia! present at the scene.

Recovery Status lnformation Number
ISO Helpdesk;   is th2 predefined number estahlished as the voice mail information number far

posting recc very status and information natices.

621



ZN ur

u`!.

4;'

RMutf

Provision of Support 5ervlces to Aid Recavery
During and follawing a disaster, at the directian ot the CIO, each department head shail have their respected

department personnel availabie

Phase IV - Disaster Recovery Strategy
The disaster recovery strategy explained below

Subsectians below explain the context in which the City of Lathrop' s

Business Continuity Pla operates.

7his section addeesses th ee phases of disaster recovery:

1.

2.

8.

Emergency Phase
The emergency phase begins with the initial response to a disaster. During this phase, the existing emergency

plans and procedures are impfemented for direct effarts ta protect life and property. Security aver the area is

established as lacal suppart services such as the Police and ire Departments are enlisted through existing
mechanisms. The 8usiness Continuity Manager is alerted and begins to monitar the situation.

622



wr.

4..
w

u!-. '       i,

M R!( St

Back- up Phase

Fiecovery Phase
The time required for recouery of the functianal site and the eventual restoration of normal processing

depends an the dama e caused by the disaster.

The primary goal is to restore normal operations

as saan as possibte.

Scope of the Business Continuit Plan

The object of this Plan

Nore:

t

623



r%

x A

Tab1e 7: Categorizotion of Federal Information and InPormntinn Systems

624



SNwr,

a       

4 k
v,.;   r.;

i;+++a p.

information Systems listed by Risk Category

Deliverable Pending}

625



w.

o J!     ',"
u`!',. r'

4+'MtxsN`

Appendix I:  Supporting Document List
Tt e fr flowing dc cuments have been defined to assist in incident respanse Eor the City af lathrop.

Contatt Information

Table 1: Citv of Lathrop Business Continuitv Team Membe s     '

626



iJSN wr. t i,`
u`

1 n{ M At p

Contact Information
Updo# ed Morch 2Q23

Name Title Role Contact Information Escalatio `

13«

Business Continuity BC manager

Management Team       (

Caordinator

Infrastructure Manager BC Manager

cio cio

Communications BCMT

Manager rnember

Legal BCMT

member

Risk Manager CMT

member

NR Representative  BCMT

member
Y_. ,  .  

Physical Security BCMT

Representative member

3"' Party Network 
Suppart

BI Regulatory/ Government `       --_______

i Reporting Body
3

1
I

v   .,...,.  -a.r.,...._  .._ _.     .,>.d_.....v_ w.  __... __

Escalation leve# determines order in which notification should accur

i,   Natify iirst, required on all incidents
2.   Required on ail morferate ar high- seuariry incidents
3.   Involve as needed

627



ot,.

uur.

v+:'

a

4y'

OIIX1 p

Table 1: City of Lathrop Business Continuity Team Members
tlpdated March 2Q23

No.   BCT Member Role

1 Bustness Continuity Manager

2 Network SME
J„_~

3 iVetwork SME

4 Senior IT Staff

S Systems Engineer

6 Business Continuity Team Member- Recorder

7 Business Continuity Tearn Member- Recorder

628



ITEM 4. 21

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

APRIL 10, 2023 REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING

ITEM: AUTHORIZE THE FORMATION OF COMMUNITY

FACILITIES DISTRICT NO.   2023- 1   ( RIVER

ISLANDS PUBLIC SERVICES AND FACILITIES
2)

RECOMMENDATION:       Adopt a Resolution of Intention to Establish

City of Lathrop Community Facilities District
No.  2023- 1 ( River Islands Public Services and

Facilities # 2) and a Future Annexation Area to

Finance Public Services and Facilities

SUMMARY:

As part of their development agreement requirements,  master developers are

required to submit to the City a fiscal impact analysis.  The purpose of a fiscal impact
analysis is to estimate the overall financial impacts a development will have on the

City.  This analysis enables the City to estimate the difference between the costs of
providing services to a new development and the revenue the new development will
generate.

In 2013, River Islands completed a fiscal impact analysis for their project.  The fiscal

impact analysis projected that the River Islands  ( Developer)  development would

produce a shortfall to the City' s General Fund.   In order for the City to ensure that
development continued to pay its own way, Community Facilities District ( CFD) No.

2013- 1  ( River Islands Public Services and Facilities)  was formed to cover the

shortfalls.  Since that time, River Islands and the City has reviewed project revenues
and expenses annually to ensure the project continues to perform as projected.

In January 2023, the City and San Joaquin County ( S] C) amended their property tax
sharing agreement for the West Lathrop Specific Plan  ( WLSP), which includes the

River Islands Development. The amended agreement will revise the property tax
formula for new development within the River Islands tax area from a 90%-
County/ 10%- City tax split to a 60%- County/ 40%- City tax split.     While this
agreement has no immediate effect on property tax revenue received,  it may
generate substantially more property tax revenue than previously anticipated in the
future development area.

As a result of the change in the property tax revenue, a new CFD will need to be
created for all future development to allow the City flexibility to adjust the
assessment if or when the shortfall is reduced.   The new CFD will apply to future
development and will not impact current residents.      Currently,   the future

development area is owned by the developer.

629



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

APRIL 10, 2023 REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2023- 1 FORMATION

It is recommended Council authorize the attached Resolution of Intention to establish

the City of Lathrop Community Facilities District No. 2023- 1 ( River Islands Services

and Facilities # 2)  ( the " District") and to levy a special tax to finance the costs of
certain public facilities and services of benefit to the properties within the District.

BACKG ROU N D:

City Staff, the Financing Team and the Developer have had several discussions to help
formulate the proposed District and the special tax to be levied,  which has been

approved by the developer and will be calculated and levied as set forth in the Rate and
Method of Apportionment of Special Tax  ( attached to the Resolution of Intention

Attachment A)).

The District will initially include three ( 3) parcels and is setup with the contemplation
that additional land areas ( the " Future Annexation Area")  will be annexed into the

District in the future upon the consent of the then owner/ developer as the area

develops.

The District will have a single tax rate formula, for the levy of the " Special Tax", for the

purpose of funding services, and will convert to the purpose of funding facilities in the
future.

The description of the services authorized to be paid for by the Special Tax, as well as
the facilities/ public improvements are described in the " List of Services and Facilities"

Exhibit A of Attachment A).  The services shall include:

Services

Police Protection Services

Maintenance of open space; including irrigation and vegetation control
Maintenance of roads and roadways;  including street sweeping, street repair,

street striping and repair and repainting of sound walls
Storm protection;  including operation and maintenance of storm drainage
system

Landscaping of public areas; including irrigation, tree trimming and vegetation
maintenance and control

Facilities

Roadway and related improvements
Bradshaw' s Crossing Bridge improvements
Water Infrastructure

Sewer Infrastructure

Public Landscaping and Recreational Features

630



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

APRIL 10, 2023 REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2023- 1 FORMATION

The City Council has four documents for consideration:

1.  The Resolution of Intention  ( Attachment A)  - The resolution sets forth the

intention to establish the District,  designates the name of the District,

identifies the services and facilities to be funded, and states the City' s intention

to levy a special tax to pay for the services and in the future to pay for the
acquisition,  construction,  and associated costs of the public facilities.   The

Resolution also sets June 12, 2023 as the date for a hearing on the matters
set forth therein.

2.  List of Services and Facilities ( Exhibit A of Attachment A) - Lists the services

and projects that are authorized to be funded from special tax revenues
generated within the District.

3.  The Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Tax ( Exhibit B of Attachment

A) is a key document in that it provides for the security for the funding of the
District.  This document presents how the revenues from the District are to be
collected and also sets forth the purpose and level of the taxes from the
various different types of properties.

4.  The District Boundary Map ( Attachment B) - Details the legal parcels which
will make up the properties within the boundaries of the District, showing the
area initially to be taxed and the area that may be taxed later if annexed to
the CFD as the " Future Annexation Area."

Today' s resolution sets the public hearing date at which time the City Council will hear
a presentation on the proposed District.  At the same time the election of the property
owners is expected to be completed.  The election results will unanimously favor the
District formation, as the Developer,  as the only property owner within the District
boundaries, will be voting.   It is expected that the Developer will waive a number of

noticing and election procedures that make it possible for the proposed district to be
formed in a relatively short period of time.

At the public hearing on the District, protests against the establishment of the District,
the extent of the District,  or the furnishing of specified types of public facilities or
services within the District may be made orally or in writing by any interested persons
or taxpayers.  Any protests pertaining to the regularity or sufficiency of the proceedings
shall be made in writing and shall clearly set forth the irregularities and defects to which
objection is made.  All written protests shall be filed with the City Clerk on or before the
time fixed for the hearing.  The City Council may waive any irregularities in the form or
content of any written protest and at the hearing may correct minor defects in the
proceedings.   Written protests may be withdrawn in writing at any time before the
conclusion of the hearing.   If the City Council determines at the conclusion of the
hearings to proceed with the establishment of the District,  the proposed voting
procedure shall be by landowners voting in accordance with the Mello- Roos Community
Facilities District Act of 1982, as there are less than twelve registered electors residing
within the proposed district boundaries.

631



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 4

APRIL 10, 2023 REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING
COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2023- 1 FORMATION

Notice of the Public Hearing will be published in the same manner as the City' s other
public hearing notifications at least seven days prior to the hearing date.  Furthermore,

a notice of the hearing will be mailed to each property owner and registered voter within
the proposed District boundaries ( unless otherwise waived).

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

Staff has worked with River Islands to complete a fiscal impact analysis for their
project.     The fiscal impact analysis has determined that the River Islands

development will produce a shortfall to the City' s General Fund.  In order for the City
to ensure that development continues to pay its own way, a Community Facilities
District ( CFD) needs to be formed to cover the shortfalls.  River Islands and the City

has committed to an annual review of project revenues and expenses to ensure the
project continues to perform as projected.

In order to form the CFD, Council needs to adopt the Resolution of Intention.   The

Resolution is required to be adopted by a majority approval of the City Council.

FISCAL IMPACT:

River Islands has funded the forming of the CFD.

ATTACHMENTS:

A.   Resolution of Intention to Establish Community Facilities District
Exhibits to Attachment A:

A.  Description of Authorized Services and Facilities

B.  Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Tax

B.   Community Facilities District No. 2023- 1 Boundary Map

632



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 5

APRIL 10, 2023 REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2023- 1 FORMATION

APPROVALS:

L,.v/ '    o D

Cari Jam    
f

Date

Director ' Finance

F    3 •3 0• ZoZ3

Brad Taylor Date

City Engineer

D z--

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

23

St en J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

633



RESOLUTION NO. 23-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP OF
INTENTION TO ESTABLISH CITY OF LATHROP COMMUNITY FACILITIES
DISTRICT NO. 2023- 1 ( RIVER ISLANDS PUBLIC SERVICES AND FACILITIES

2) AND A FUTURE ANNEXATION AREA TO FINANCE PUBLIC SERVICES AND
FACILITIES

WHEREAS, under the Mello- Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, Chapter
2. 5 of Part 1 of Division 2 of Title 5, commencing at Section 53311, of the California
Government Code ( the Act"), the City Council ( the Council") of the City of Lathrop
the " City") is authorized to establish a community facilities district and to act as its

legislative body; and

WHEREAS, this Council,  having received a request from the owners of the
area of developing land proposed to be included in the proposed community facilities
district within the City,  now desires to proceed with the establishment of such
community facilities district to finance costs of certain public services required to
meet the demands of new development of such land; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 53339. 2 of the Act, this Council further desires
to undertake proceedings to provide for future annexation of territory to the proposed
community facilities district.

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS RESOLVED as follows:

1.       Authoritv. This Council proposes to conduct proceedings to establish a
community facilities district pursuant to the Act, and hereby determines that public
convenience and necessity require that a future annexation area be established
pursuant to the Act.

2.       Name of CFD:  Future Annexation Area.  The name proposed for the
community facilities district is City of Lathrop Community Facilities District No. 2023-
1 ( River Islands Public Services and Facilities # 2) ( the CFD").

The name proposed for the territory proposed to be annexed into the CFD in
the future is " City of Lathrop Community Facilities District No. 2023- 1 ( River Islands

Public Services and Facilities # 2) ( Future Annexation Area)" ( the " Future Annexation

Area").

3.       Boundaries Described. The proposed boundaries of the CFD and the
Future Annexation Area are as shown on the map of it on file with the City Clerk,
which boundaries are hereby preliminarily approved and to which map reference is
hereby made for further particulars.  This Council finds that the map is in the form
and contains the matters prescribed by Section 3110 of the California Streets and
Highways Code. This Council directs the City Clerk to certify the adoption of this
resolution on the face of the map, and to file a copy of the map in the office of the

634



City Clerk in accordance with Section 3111 of the California Streets and Highways
Code, and within 15 days of the date of adoption of this resolution but in no event

later than 15 days prior to the public hearing provided for herein transmit the map
to the County Recorder for recording in the Book of Maps of Assessment and
Community Facilities Districts in the office of the County Recorder of the County of
San ) oaquin.

Parcels within the Future Annexation Area shall be annexed to the CFD only
with the unanimous approval ( each, a " Unanimous Approval") of the owner or owners

of each parcel or parcels at the time that parcel or those parcels are annexed and all
or any portions of territory that annex into the CFD from the Future Annexation Area
or otherwise may be annexed into a separate zone or improvement area to be
designated at the time of such annexation, all without any requirement for additional
public hearings, resolutions of the City Council or other additional proceedings.  In

connection with establishing such zone or improvement area,  all proceedings for
approval of an appropriations limit,  the rate and method of apportionment and

manner of collection of special taxes,  and the authorization to incur bonded

indebtedness may differ from other designated areas of the CFD, all as set forth in
the Unanimous Approval, and shall apply only to the parcel or parcels within such
zone or improvement area.

4.       Services and Facilities.  The types of public facilities and services
proposed to be provided within the CFD and the Future Annexation Area are set forth
on Exhibit A attached to this Resolution ( the " Services" and " Facilities").  The Council

hereby finds that these Services and Facilities are necessitated by new development
occurring and anticipated within the CFD and the Future Annexation Area and the
Council hereby determines that the increased services and facilities are necessary to
meet increased demands placed upon local agencies as the result of development
occurring or to occur within the CFD and the Future Annexation Area. The Council
hereby finds and determines that the public interest will not be served by allowing
the property owners in the CFD to enter into a contract in accordance with Section
53329. 5( a) of the Act. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Council, on behalf of CFD,
may enter into one or more contracts directly with any of the property owners with
respect to the construction and/ or acquisition of any portion of the Facilities.

The City Manager is hereby authorized and directed to enter into joint
community facilities agreements with any entity that will share in providing the
Services and Facilities, as may be necessary to comply with the provisions of Section
53316. 2( a)  and  ( b)  of the Act.  The Council hereby declares that such joint
agreements will be beneficial to owners of property in the area of the CFD.

5.       Special Tax. Except to the extent that funds are otherwise available, the

City will levy the special taxes ( together, the ' Special Tax") to pay directly for the
Services and Facilities. The Special Tax will be secured by recordation of a continuing
lien against all non- exempt real property in the CFD, will be levied annually within
the CFD, and collected in the same manner as ordinary ad valorem property taxes,
or in such other manner as this Council or its designee shall determine,  including
direct billing of the affected property owners.  The proposed rate and method of

Page 2 of 6

635



apportionment of the Special Tax among the parcels of real property within the CFD
in sufficient detail to allow each landowner within the proposed CFD to estimate the
maximum amount such owner will have to pay, are described in Exhibit B attached
hereto and hereby incorporated herein ( the Rate and Method").

This Council hereby finds that the provisions of Section 53313. 6, 53313. 7 and
53313. 9 of the Act ( relating to adjustments to ad valorem property taxes and schools
financed by a community facilities district) are inapplicable to the proposed CFD.

As required by Section 53339. 3( d) of the Act, the Council hereby determines
that the special tax proposed to pay for one or more Services and Facilities to be
supplied within the Future Annexation Area will be equal to the special taxes levied

to pay for the same Services and Facilities for similarly designated parcels in the
original area of the CFD.

6.       Exempt Property. Except as may otherwise be provided by the Act, by
law or by the rate and method of apportionment of the Special Tax for the CFD, all
lands owned by any public entity, including the United States, the State of California
and/ or the City, or any departments or political subdivisions thereof, shall be omitted
from the levy of the Special Tax to be made to cover the costs and expenses of the
Services and Facilities and the CFD. In the event that a portion of the property within
the CFD shall become for any reason exempt, wholly or in part, from the levy of the
Special Tax, this Council will, on behalf of the CFD, increase the levy to the extent

necessary upon the remaining property within the CFD which is not exempt in order
to yield the required annual expenses of the CFD, subject to the provisions of the
rate and method of apportionment of the Special Tax.

7.       Election. The levy of the Special Tax shall be subject to the approval of
the qualified electors of the CFD at a special election. The proposed voting procedure
shall be by mailed or hand- delivered ballot among the landowners in the proposed
CFD, with each owner having one vote for each acre or portion of an acre such owner
owns in the CFD.

A special tax shall be levied in the Future Annexation Area only with the
Unanimous Approval of the owner or owners of each parcel or parcels at the time
that parcel or those parcels are annexed, without any requirement for further public
hearings or additional proceedings.

8.       CFD Report. The City' s Finance Director, as the officer having charge
and control of the Services and Facilities in and for the CFD, or the designee of such

officer, is hereby directed to study said proposed Services and Facilities and to make,
or cause to be made,  and file with the City Clerk a report in writing,  ( the " CFD

Report") presenting the following:

a) A description of the Services and Facilities by type which will be
required to adequately meet the needs of the CFD.

Page 3 of 6

636



b)  An estimate of the fair and reasonable cost of the Services and

incidental expenses in connection therewith.

c) An estimate of the fair and reasonable cost of the Facilities including
the cost of acquisition of lands,  rights- of- way and easements, any physical
facilities required in conjunction therewith and incidental expenses in

connection therewith.

The CFD Report shall be made a part of the record of the public hearing
specified below.

9.       Public Hearina.  Monday, June 12,  2023,  at 7: 00 p. m.  or as soon as

possible thereafter,  in the Council Chambers,  390 Towne Centre Drive,  Lathrop,

California 95330, be, and the same are hereby appointed and fixed as the time and
place when and where this Council, as legislative body for the CFD, will conduct a
public hearing on the establishment of the CFD and the Future Annexation Area and
consider and finally determine whether the public interest, convenience and necessity
require the formation of the CFD, the Future Annexation Area and the levy of the
Special Tax.

At the hearing,  testimony concerning the CFD,  the extent of the CFD and

Future Annexation Area or the furnishing of the particular types of Services and
Facilities will be heard and protests will be considered from registered voters residing
within the CFD and persons owning real property within the CFD.   Written protests

by a majority of the registered voters ( if at least six such voters protest), or by the
owners of a majority of the land  ( by acreage) which would be subject to special

taxation within the proposed the CFD will require the suspension of proceedings for
at least one year.  Written protests must be filed with the City Clerk at or before the
time fixed for the hearing.  If such protests are directed only against certain elements
of the proposed Services and Facilities or proposed special tax, and if such protests
constitute a majority protest,  only those elements shall be deleted from the
proceedings.

10.     Notice of Hearina. The City Clerk is hereby directed to cause notice of
the public hearing to be given by publication one time in a newspaper published in
the area of the CFD and the Future Annexation Area.  The publication shall be
completed at least seven days before the date of the public hearing specified above.
The City may also cause notice of the hearing to be given to each property owner
within the CFD by first class mail, postage prepaid, to each such owner' s address as
it appears on the most recent tax records of San Joaquin County or as otherwise

known to the City to be correct. Such mailing shall be completed not less than 15
days before the date of the public hearing. Each of the notices shall be substantially
in the form specified in Section 53322 of the Act, with the form summarizing the

provisions hereof hereby specifically approved.

11.     Billing of Special Tax. It is anticipated that the special tax will be billed
as a separate line item on the regular property tax bill.    However,  this Council

reserves the right, under Section 53340, to utilize any method of collecting the special

Page 4 of 6

637



tax which it shall, from time to time, determine to be in the best interests of the City,

including, but not limited to, direct billing by the City to the property owners and
supplemental billing.

12.     Further Action. The Mayor, City Manager/ Treasurer,  Finance Director,

City Attorney, City Clerk and all other officers and agents of the City are hereby
authorized and directed to take all actions necessary or advisable to give effect to
the transactions contemplated by this Resolution.

13.     No Obligation.   This Resolution shall in no way obligate the Council of
the City to form the CFD. The formation of the CFD shall be subject to the approval
of this Council by resolution following the holding of the public hearing referred to
above.

Page 5 of 6

638



I hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was regularly introduced and
adopted by the City Council of the City of Lathrop at a meeting held on the lOth day
of April, 2023, by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

Page 6 of 6

639



EXHIBIT A

CITY OF LATHROP

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2023- 1

RIVER ISLANDS PUBLIC SERVICES AND FACILITIES# 2)

DESCRIPTION OF AUTHORIZED SERVICES AND FACILITIES

Services

The services to be funded, in whole or in part, by the community facilities district (CFD) include
all direct and incidental costs related to providing public services and maintenance of public
infrastructure within the River Islands area including the area initially included in the CFD, as well
as any future annexation area of the CFD and areas adjacent to the foregoing. More specifically,
the services shall include, but not be limited to: ( i) police protection services, ( ii) maintenance of

open space, including trails and habitat areas, with services to include, but not be limited to,
irrigation and vegetation control;( iii) maintenance of roads and roadways, with services to include,

but not be limited to, regularly scheduled street sweeping, repair ofpublic streets, striping of streets
and repair and repainting of sound walls and other appurtenances; ( iv) storm protection services,

including, but not limited to, the operation and maintenance of storm drainage systems, ( v)

landscaping in public areas and in the public right of way along public streets, including, but not
limited to, irrigation, tree trimming and vegetation maintenance and control; and ( vi) any other
public services authorized to be funded under Section 53313 of the California Government Code
that are not already funded by another community facilities district on the property within the CFD.

The CFD may fund any of the following related to the services described in the preceding
paragraph: obtaining, constructing, furnishing, operating and maintaining equipment, apparatus or
facilities related to providing the services and/ or equipment, apparatus, facilities or fixtures in areas
to be maintained, paying the salaries and benefits ofpersonnel necessary or convenient to provide
the services, payment of insurance costs and other related expenses and the provision of reserves
for repairs and replacements and for the future provision of services.  The services to be financed
by the CFD are in addition to those provided in the territory of the CFD before the date of formation
of the CFD and will not supplant services already available within that territory when the District
is created.

Facilities

The CFD may also fund all or any portion of the costs of the following facilities to be located
within or in the vicinity of the CFD:

Roadway and related improvements, including, but not limited to, construction of the roadways
currently identified on Vesting Tentative Map No. 3694 as Stewart Road, Golden Valley Parkway,
South River Islands Parkway, North River Islands Parkway, Broad Street, Commercial Street, J8
Street, BS Street, B6 Street and Cl Street, as well as other backbone and arterial streets, including,
but not limited to, grading, fill, pavement section, curb gutter and sidewalk, joint trench, water,
sewer, reclaimed water, storm drainage, and other utility improvements necessary for, or incidental

1

640



to, road construction.  Roadway improvements may also include landscaping, street lights and
signage, and traffic signals and striping.

Bradshaw' s Crossing Bridge improvements, including, but not limited to, design, construction,
utility connections,  mitigation payments,  right- of-way acquisition,  and other improvements

required for, or incidental to, construction of the bridge.

Water infrastructure, including, but not limited to, tanks, pump stations, distribution lines, and
other improvements necessary for, or incidental to, the delivery of potable or reclaimed water.

Sewer infrastructure, including, but not limited to, treatment facilities, sanitary sewer collection
lines and force mains, effluent holding and storage, pump stations, lift stations,  and other
improvements necessary for, or incidental to, the delivery of sanitary sewer service.

Public landscaping and recreational features along rivers, lakes, within parks, and along and
including pathways.

Offsite public infrastructure, including, but not limited to, the extension of sanitary sewer lines and
payment of license fees ( e. g., to Caltrans or UPRR) and any other incidental fees or exactions.

The facilities authorized to be funded by the CFD shall include the costs of design, engineering,
surveys, reports, environmental mitigation, soils testing, permits, plan check, inspection fees,
impact fees, insurance, construction management, and any other costs or appurtenances related to
any of the foregoing.

Administrative Expenses

The administrative expenses to be funded by the CFD include the direct and indirect expenses
incurred by the City of Lathrop ( City) in carrying out its duties with respect to the CFD including,
but not limited to, the levy and collection of the special taxes, the fees and expenses of attorneys,
any fees of the County of San Joaquin related to the CFD or the collection of special taxes, an
allocable share of the salaries of any City staff directly related thereto and a proportionate amount
of the City' s general administrative overhead related thereto, any amounts paid by the City from
its general fund with respect to the CFD or the services authorized to be financed by the CFD, and
expenses incurred by the City in undertaking action to foreclose on properties for which the
payment of special taxes is delinquent, and all other costs and expenses of the City in any way
related to the CFD.

Other

The incidental expenses that may be funded by the CFD include, in addition to the administrative
expenses identified above, the payment or reimbursement to the CFD of all costs associated with
the establishment and ongoing administration of the CFD.

2

641



EXHIBIT B

CITY OF LATHROP

COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO. 2023- 1

RIVER ISLANDS PUBLIC SERVICES AND FACILITIES# 2)

RATE AND METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT OF SPECIAL TAX

Special Taxes applicable to each Assessor' s Parcel in the City of Lathrop Community Facilities
District No. 2023- 1 ( River Islands Public Services and Facilities# 2) shall be levied and collected

according to the tax liability determined by the City or its designee, through the application of the
appropriate amount or rate for Taxable Property, as described below.  All of the property in the
CFD, unless exempted by law or by the provisions of Section F below, shall be taxed for the
purposes, to the extent, and in the manner herein provided, including property subsequently
annexed to the CFD unless a separate rate and method of apportionment of Special Tax is adopted
for the annexation area.

A.      DEFINITIONS

The terms hereinafter set forth have the following meanings:

Accessory Unit" means a second residential unit of limited size ( e. g., granny cottage, second
unit) that shares a Parcel with a single- family detached unit.

Act" means the Mello- Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as amended, being Chapter 2. 5
commencing with Section 53311), Part 1, Division 2, of Title 5 of the Government Code of the

State of California.

Administrative Expenses" means any or all of the following:  expenses of the City in carrying
out its duties with respect to the CFD, including, but not limited to, the levy and collection of
Special Taxes, the fees and expenses of its legal counsel, costs related to annexing property into
the CFD, charges levied by the County in connection with the levy and collection of Special Taxes,
costs related to property owner inquiries regarding the Special Taxes, costs associated with appeals
or requests for interpretation associated with the Special Taxes and this RMA, costs associated
with foreclosure and collection of delinquent Special Taxes and all other costs and expenses of the

City and County in any way related to the establishment or administration of the CFD.

Administrator" means the person or firm designated by the City to administer the Special Taxes
according to this RMA.

Assessor' s Parcel" or" Parcel" means a lot or parcel shown on a County Assessor' s Parcel map
with an assigned County Assessor' s Parcel number.

Authorized Facilities" means the public facilities authorized to be financed, in whole or in part,
by Facilities Special Taxes collected within the CFD, pursuant to the documents adopted by the
City Council at CFD Formation.

Ciry ojLathrop CFD No. 2023- 1 1 March 2, 2023

642



Authorized Services" means those services that are authorized to be funded by Services Special
Taxes collected within the CFD, pursuant to the documents adopted by the City Council at CFD
Formation.

CFD" means the City of Lathrop Community Facilities District No. 2023- 1 ( River Islands Public
Services and Facilities# 2).

CFD Formation" means the date on which the Resolution of Formation to form the CFD was

adopted by the City Council.

City" means the City of Lathrop.

City Council" means the City Council of the City of Lathrop.

County" means the County of San Joaquin.

Developed Property" means, in any Fiscal Year, the following:

for Single Family Detached Property, all Parcels of Taxable Property for which a
Final Map was recorded on or prior to June 30 of the preceding Fiscal Year

for Multi-Family Property and Single Family Attached Property, all Parcels of
Taxable Property for which a building permit for new construction of a residential
structure was issued on or prior to June 30 of the preceding Fiscal Year

for Non-Residential Property, all Parcels of Taxable Property for which a building
permit for new construction of a structure was issued on or prior to June 30 of the
preceding Fiscal Year.

Development Agreement" means the 2003 Amended and Restated Development Agreement

dated February 4, 2003 and recorded on March 31, 2003 in the San Joaquin County Recorder' s
Office as Document No. 2003- 069319, as has been amended and as may be amended in the future.

Escalation Factor" means, in any Fiscal Year, the lesser of( i) the increase from the prior Fiscal
Year, if any, in the Local Consumer Price Index ( CPI) for the San Francisco-Oakland-San Jose
Area for All Urban Consumers, or( ii) four percent( 4%). The CPI used shall be as determined by
the Bureau of Labor Statistics from April to April beginning with the period from April 2022 to
April 2023.

Facilities Special Tax" means a special tax levied in any Fiscal Year after the Trigger Event has
taken place to pay the Facilities Special Tax Requirement.

Facilities Special Tax Requirement" means the amount necessary in any Fiscal Year after the
Trigger Event to pay the costs ofAuthorized Facilities to be funded directly from Facilities Special
Tax proceeds.

City of Lathrop CFD No. 2023- 1 2 March 2, 2023

643



Final Map" means a final map, or portion thereof, approved by the City and recorded by the
County pursuant to the Subdivision Map Act( California Government Code Section 66410 et seq)
that creates SFD Lots.  The term " Final Map" shall not include any large lot subdivision map,
Assessor' s Parcel Map, or subdivision map or portion thereof, that does not create SFD Lots,
including Assessor' s Parcels that are designated as remainder parcels.

Fiscal Review Process" means the River Islands Annual Fiscal Review Process, which is

required pursuant to the Development Agreement, and which process is described in detail in
Exhibit B of the Development Agreement.

Fiscal Year" means the period starting July 1 and ending on the following June 30.

Maximum Facilities Special Tax" means the greatest amount of Facilities Special Tax that can
be levied on a Parcel in any Fiscal Year after the Trigger Event, as determined in accordance with
Section C below.

Maximum Services Special Tax" means the greatest amount of Services Special Tax that can
be levied on a Parcel in any Fiscal Year, as determined in accordance with Section C below.

Maximum Special Taxes" means, collectively, the Maximum Facilities Special Tax and the
Maximum Services Special Tax that can be levied on a Parcel in any Fiscal Year.

Multi-Family Property" means, in any Fiscal Year, all Parcels of Taxable Property for which a
building permit or use permit has been issued or is expected to be issued far construction of a
residential structure with five or more Units that share a single Assessor' s Parcel number, are

offered for rent to the general public, and cannot be purchased by individual homebuyers.

Non- Residential Property" means all Assessor' s Parcels of Taxable Property for which a

building permit was or is expected to be issued for an office, commercial, retail, industrial or
mixed- use building, as determined by the City.

Non-Residential Square Footage" means the net leasable square footage used by or designated
for non- residential uses within a building as reflected on the condominium plan, site plan, building
permit for new construction, or other such document. If a structure on a Parcel ofNon-Residential
Property includes Units, such Units shall be categorized and taxed as Residential Property, and the
square footage of such Units shall not be counted as Non- Residential Square Footage for purposes
of determining the Maximum Special Taxes pursuant to Section C below.

Proportionately" means, for the Services Special Tax, that the ratio of the actual Services

Special Tax levied in any Fiscal Year to the Maximum Services Special Tax authorized to be levied
in that Fiscal Year is equal for all Assessor' s Parcels of Developed Property.  For the Facilities

Special Tax, " Proportionately" means that the ratio of the actual Facilities Special Tax levied in
any Fiscal Year to the Maximum Facilities Special Tax authorized to be levied in that Fiscal Year
is equal for all Assessor' s Parcels of Developed Property.

City of Lathrop CFD No. 2023- 1 3 March 2, 2023

644



Public Property" means any property within the boundaries of the CFD that is owned by or
irrevocably offered for dedication to the federal government, State of California, County, City, or
other local governments or public agencies.

Residential Property" means, collectively, Single Family Detached Property, Single Family
Attached Property, and Multi- Family Property.   If a building includes both Units and Non-
Residential Square Footage, the Units within the building shall be categorized as Residential
Property for purposes of this RMA.

RMA" means this Rate and Method of Apportionment of Special Tax.

Services Special Tax" means a special tax levied in any Fiscal Year to pay the Services Special
Tax Requirement.

Services Special Tax Requirement" means the amount of revenue needed in any Fiscal Year to

pay for: ( i) Authorized Services, ( ii) Administrative Expenses, and ( iii) amounts needed to cure

any delinquencies in the payment of Services Special Taxes which have occurred or ( based on
delinquency rates in prior years) may be expected to occur in the Fiscal Year in which the tax will
be collected. In any Fiscal Year, the Services Special Tax Requirement shall be reduced by surplus
amounts available ( as determined by the City) from the levy of the Services Special Tax in prior
Fiscal Years, including revenues from the collection of delinquent Services Special Taxes and
associated penalties and interest.

SFD Lot" means an individual residential lot, identified and numbered on a recorded Final Map,

on which a building permit was or is permitted to be issued for construction of a single family
detached unit without further subdivision of the lot and for which no further subdivision of the lot

is anticipated pursuant to an approved tentative map.

Single Family Attached Property" means, in any Fiscal Year, all Parcels of Taxable Property
for which a building permit was or is expected to be issued for construction of a residential
structure consisting of two or more Units that share common walls, have separate Assessor' s Parcel
numbers assigned to them ( except for a duplex unit, which may share an Assessor' s Parcel with
another duplex unit), and may be purchased by individual homebuyers ( which shall still be the
case even if the Units are purchased and subsequently offered for rent by the owner of the unit),
including such residential structures that meet the statutory definition of a condominium contained  
in Civil Code Section 4125.

Single Family Detached Property" means, in any Fiscal Year, all Parcels of Taxable Property
for which a building permit was or is expected to be issued for construction of a Unit that does not
share a common wall with another Unit.  An Accessory Unit that shares a Parcel with a single-
family detached unit shall not be considered a separate Unit for purposes of this RMA.

Special Taxes" means, collectively, the Facilities Special Tax and the Services Special Tax.

Taxable Property" means all of the Assessor' s Parcels within the boundaries of the CFD which
are not exempt from the Special Taxes pursuant to law or Section F below.

City of Lathrop CFD No. 2023- 1 4 March 2, 2023

645



Tax Zone" means a mutually exclusive geographic area within which Special Taxes may be
levied pursuant to this RMA. All of the properry within the CFD at the time ofCFD Formation
is within Ta rZone 1. Additional Tax Zones may be created when property is annexed to the CFD,
and separate Maximum Special Taxes shall be identified for property within the new Tax Zone at
the time of such annexation. The Assessor' s Parcels included within a new Tax Zone established
when such Parcels are annexed to the CFD shall be identified by Assessor' s Parcel number in the
Unanimous Approval Form that is signed by the owner( s) of the Parcels at the time of annexation.

Unanimous Approval Form" means that form executed by the record owner of fee title to a
Parcel or Parcels annexed into the CFD that constitutes the property owner' s approval and
unanimous vote in favor of annexing into the CFD and the levy of Special Taxes against his/ her
Parcel or Parcels pursuant to this RMA.

Trigger Event" will be deemed to have occurred in any Fiscal Year if, on or before June 30 of
the prior Fiscal Year, the City has made a finding that, for the third year in a row, the Fiscal Review
Process has demonstrated that fiscal surpluses will be generated to the City' s general fund from
development within the River Islands Master Plan area, and, as part of the Fiscal Review Process
in each of the prior three years, the Services Special Tax revenue factored into the fiscal analysis
was based on the Services Special Tax being levied at only 47. 43% of the Maximum Services

Special Tax that could have been levied in each of those three years. Once the Trigger Event has
occurred, the reduced Services Special Taxes and the Facilities Special Taxes determined for each

Tax Zone pursuant to Section C shall be the applicable Maximum Special Taxes in all future Fiscal
Years regardless of the results of future Fiscal Review Processes.

Unit" means a single family detached unit or an individual unit within a duplex, triplex, halfplex,
fourplex, condominium, townhome, live/work, or apartment structure.

B.       DATA FOR ADMINISTRATION OF SPECIAL TAXES

On or about July 1 of each Fiscal Year, the Administrator shall identify the current Assessor' s
Parcel numbers for all Parcels of Developed Property within the CFD.  The Administrator shall

also determine: ( i) within which Tax Zone each Parcel is located; ( ii) which Parcels of Developed

Property are Residential Property and Non- Residential Property; ( ii) the Non- Residential Square

Footage of buildings on each Parcel of Non- Residential Property; ( iii) for Single Family Detached

Property, the square footage of each SFD Lot,( iv) by reference to the condominium plan, site plan,
or other document, the number of Units on each Parcel of Single Family Attached Property and
Multi-Family Property; ( v) whether the Trigger Event has occurred; and ( vi) the Services Special

Tax Requirement and, if the Trigger Event has occurred, the Facilities Special Tax Requirement

for the Fiscal Year.  To determine the square footage of each Parcel of Single Family Detached

Property, the Administrator shall reference Assessor' s Parcel Maps or, if the square footage is not
yet designated on such maps, the small lot subdivision map recorded to create the individual lots.

In any Fiscal Year, if it is determined that: ( i) a parcel map for property in the CFD was recorded
after January 1 of the prior Fiscal Year ( or any other date after which the Assessor will not
incorporate the newly- created parcels into the then current tax roll), ( ii) because of the date the

parcel map was recorded, the Assessor does not yet recognize the new parcels created by the parcel

City of Lathrop CFD Na 2023- 1 S March 2, 2023

646



map, and ( iii) a building permit was issued on or prior to June 30 of the prior Fiscal Year for
development on one or more of the newly- created parcels, the Administrator shall calculate the
Special Taxes for Units and/ or Non- Residential Square Footage within the subdivided area and

levy such Special Taxes on the master Parcel that was subdivided by recordation of the parcel map.

C.      MAXIMUM SPECIAL TAXES

1.       Services Special Tax, Tax Zone 1

Table 1 below identifies the Maximum Services Special Tax for Developed Property within Tax
Zone l, both before and after the Trigger Event. A different Maximum Services Special Tax may

be identified for property that annexes into the CFD and is part of a separate Tax Zone.

TABLE 1

MAXIMUM SERVICES SPECIAL TAX

TAX ZONE 1

Maximum Services Maximum Services

Special Tax Special Tax

in Tax Zone 1 in Tax Zone i

Prior to After the

Type of Property
the Trigger Event Trigger Event

Lot Size Fiscal Year 2022- 23 *       Fiscal Year 2022- 23 *

Residential Propertv:

Single Family Detached Property Greater than 7, 000 SqFt      $ 432. 29 per SFD Lot 205. 02 per SFD Lot
Single Family Detached Properiy 5, 801 to 7, 000 SqFt 349. 02 per SFD Lot 165. 53 per SFD Lot
Single Family Detached Property 4, 801 to 5, 800 SqFt 320. 21 per SFD Lot 151. 87 per SFD Lot
Single Family Detached Property 4, 000 to 4, 800 SqFt 272. 18 per SFD Lot 129. 09 per SFD Lot
Single Family Detached Property Less than 4, 000 SqFt       $ 252. 96 per SFD Lot 119. 97 per SFD Lot
Single Family Attached Property Not Applicable 0. 00 per Unit 0. 00 per Unit
Multi- Famil Pro e Not A licable 0. 00 er Unit 0. 00 er Unit

0. 00 per 0. 00 per
Non- Residential Property Not Applicable Non- Residential Non- Residential

Square Foot Square Foot

On July 1, 2023 and on each July 1 thereafter, all gures shown in Table 1 above shall be increased by the
Escalation Factor.

City ojLathrop CFD No. 2023- 1 6 March 2, 2023

647



2.       Facilities Special Tcrr, Tax Zone 1

Table 2 below identifies the Maximum Facilities Special Tax for Developed Property within Tax
Zone 1 both before and after the Trigger Event; a different Maximum Facilities Special Tax may

be identified for property that annexes into the CFD and is part of a separate Tax Zone.

TABLE 2

MAXIMUM FACILITIES SPECIAL TAX

TAX ZONE 1

Maximum Facilities Maximum Facilities

Special Tax Special Tax

in Tax Zone i in Tax Zone 1

Prior to After the

Type of Property
the Trigger Event Trigger Event

Lot Size Fiscal Year 2022- 23 *       Fiscal Year 2022- 23 *

Residential Propertv:

Single Family Detached Property Greater than 7, 000 SqFt      $  0. 00 per SFD Lot 227. 27 per SFD Lot
Single Family Detached Properiy 5, 801 to 7, 000 SqFt 0. 00 per SFD Lot 183. 49 1per SFD Lot

Single Family Detached Property 4, 801 to 5, 800 SqFt 0. 00 per SFD Lot 168. 34 per SFD Lot
Single Family Detached Property 4, 000 to 4, 800 SqFt 0. 00 per SFD Lot 143. 09 per SFD Lot
Single Family Detached Property Less than 4, 000 SqFt 0. 00 per SFD Lot 132. 99 per SFD Lot
Single Family Attached Property Not Applicable 0. 00 per Unit 0. 00 per Unit
Multi- Famil Pro e Not A licable 0. 00 er Unit 0. 00 er Unit

0. 00 per 0. 00 per
Non- Residential Property Not Applicable Non- Residential Non- Residential

Square Foot Square Foot

On July 1, 2023 and on each July i thereafter until the first Fiscal Year after the Trigger Event, all figures
shown in Table 2 above shall be increased by the Escalation Factor. On July 1 of the first Fiscai Year after the
Trigger Event, and on each July 1 thereafter, the Maximum Facilities Special Taxes shall increase by two
percent( 2%) of the amount in effect in the prior Fiscai Year.

3.       Maximum Special Taxes for Mixed- Use Buildings

If, in any Fiscal Year, the Administrator determines that a Parcel of Developed Property is built or
proposed to be built with both Units and Non-Residential Square Footage, the Maximum Special
Taxes for the Parcel shall be the sum of( i) the aggregate Maximum Special Taxes for all Units on

the Parcel, and ( ii) the Maximum Special Taxes determined for all of the Non- Residential Square

Footage on the Parcel.

4.       Reduction of the Maximum Special Taxes

If,in any Fiscal Year, the City determines pursuant to the Fiscal Review Process that the Maximum
Special Taxes within one or more Tax Zones should be reduced, the Maximum Special Taxes

within the Tax Zones may be reduced without a vote of the qualified CFD electors. An Amended Notice
of Special Tax Lien reflecting the reduced Maximum Special Taxes shall be recorded against the Parcels
within such Tax Zones.

Ciry of Lathrop CFD No. 2023- 1 7 March 2, 2023

648



D.      METHOD OF LEVY OF THE SPECIAL TAXES

1.       Services Special Tax

Each Fiscal Year, the Administrator shall determine the Services Special Tax Requirement for the
Fiscal Year, and the Services Special Tax shall be levied on each Parcel of Developed Property
within the CFD in the amount of either ( i) the Maximum Services Special Tax, or ( ii) the

Proportionately determined percentage of the Maximum Services Special Tax required to generate
the Services Special Tax Requirement, whichever is less.

2.       Facilities Special Tcrr

Each Fiscal Year after the Trigger Event, the Administrator shall determine the Facilities Special
Tax Requirement for the Fiscal Year, and the Facilities Special Tax shall be levied on each Parcel

of Developed Property within the CFD in the amount of either( i) the Maximum Facilities Special
Tax, or ( ii) the Proportionately determined percentage of the Maximum Facilities Special Tax
reyuired to generate the Facilities Special Tax Requirement, whichever is less.

E.       MANNER OF COLLECTION OF SPECIAL TAXES

The Special Taxes shall be collected in the same manner and at the same time as ordinary ad

valorem property taxes, provided, however, that the City may directly bill, collect at a different
time or in a different manner, and/ or collect delinquent Special Taxes through foreclosure or other

available methods.

The Facilities Special Tax shall be levied for thirty ( 30) Fiscal Years, beginning the first Fiscal
Year after the Trigger Event has taken place.  Under no circumstances may the Facilities Special
Tax on a Parcel in residential use be increased in any Fiscal Year as a consequence of delinquency
or default in payment of the Facilities Special Tax levied on another Parcel or Parcels by more
than ten percent( 10%) above the amount that would have been levied in that Fiscal Year had there

never been any such delinquencies or defaults.  The Services Special Tax may be levied and
collected in perpetuity.

F.       EXEMPTIONS

No Special Taxes shall be levied on Public Property or any other Parcels in the CFD that are not
Residential Property or Non- Residential Property, as defined herein.

G.      INTERPRETATION OF SPECIAL TAX FORMULA

The City may interpret, clarify, and/ or revise this RMA to correct any inconsistency, vagueness or
ambiguity as it relates to the Special Tax rates, the method of apportionment, the classification of
properties or any definition applicable to the CFD, by resolution or ordinance. The City, upon the
request of an owner of land within the CFD which is not Developed Property, may also amend this
RMA in any manner acceptable to the City, by resolution or ordinance following a public hearing,
upon the affirmative vote of such owner to such amendment and without the vote of owners of any

other land within the CFD, provided such amendment only affects such owner' s land.

Ciry of Lathrop CFD No. 2023- 1 8 March 2, 2023

649



oo
a O LL z Ud

N
w o N g n

a c —     g W
Z O            

v
x z x a      p Q

ZO

Q a m J Q7 w0¢  0

H z LL   v wp QF    OQ      
X O o Y OLL¢    Y

y F WLLU Q
W V Z LL a w a m w NOya    a R VEF(  u A
Z Q J O       ''  a¢    

c     
o    Fo      ?      

w     W V w         a F m         

F 0 O O F o l'  
H 

U 3 U UJ Z ZQ    
U V   } j

Q
Z N F          

U U tn

i
1       N

H  =      1— w cai LL       e`  y U
Z U 4J     

LL YYYZ
N

8    L    
O W 1-  F F-     W LL( p j 7      

Q Ll_  F— V U Q QLL 2     N   ? oUQ 7t i

O J J Z      ° LLZ W o gF   
U oo w° o o YIQW°a a FQ o     <

Z V
LL

C!   O    ¢  ~  m   n wLLv~i
O UNO

m z Z U w w¢     

0 N w O
y F J

F

W
U  r nig LL Q2O

N
C/

Oa
w

O J OU30Y'JS3dOH NVHl3

a V   
oQ

ar.

T-...    da d . aK
I    

z
UQ

J\        >. Z

OP  o       e Z

v      '  Y          7
b e

Q     —` I    "      "

yZ

bi  

o      
o     

z      

5      oPo 
q zo

r q,r(r    .
r

P

y .,   5      d
a

J'
Q. /   \      .             

a, . o

j

4

N

d o

Q' .           U
b

o w?
z pJ m  , w

N'   g    h <
OQ' '.           .    nti   aP     cwi cu'i j °

QQ'    
0

a a" 
a
w

0 w o o i a
y`       N,      W w w 

J     aa° LL

O          

p I
w

g r
Ua    ^ o

Jw a
U o r. i

a nx x
o I

o    „ e      .       .  g     . i .      w o   

7.
d

1.       OV d A
2

C J
s       .       

W 2rh3
0

a

N

V W

Q Q
a fi b''°

8g
BEL4 o••, m    

B  °'" SR

Z  aea
8

ee eed" ee} eea

I
oz eaea" a" e" aa m: m
N

W~ 2
y3z

j Q
a

650



ITEM 4. 22

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

APRIL 10, 2023, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       ACCEPT PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS FROM RIVER

ISLANDS DEVELOPMENT,  LLC FOR TRACTS 3994,

3995,  4015,  4016,  4020,  4021, 4030, 4031, 4060,

4111, AND ACCEPT RIVER ISLANDS PARKWAY WITH

ASSOCIATED CONDITION

RECOMMENDATION:     Adopt Resolution to Accept Public Improvements

from River Islands Development,  LLC for Tracts
3994,  3995,  4015,  4016, 4020, 4021, 4030, 4031,

4060, 4111, and Accept River Islands Parkway with
Associated Condition

SUMMARY:

River Island Development,  LLC  ( RID)  has completed construction of the public
improvements listed in the GASB 34 reports ( Attachment C") for Tract 3994, 3995,
4015, 4016, 4020, 4021, 4030, 4031, 4060, and 4111 (" Tracts"), in accordance with

the associated Subdivision Improvement Agreements ( SIA).

RID has also substantially completed construction for a portion of River Islands
Parkway ( RIP) from Somerston Parkway to Walera Drive in accordance with the SIA' s
for Tract 3834, 3908, and 4032. However, the lake connect line between Lake 10 and

11 requires repairs in order to be completely operational.

These improvements have been inspected by staff and deemed complete by the City
Engineer, except for the repair of the lake connect pipe between Lake 10 and 11. RID
provided one- year warranty bonds based on 10% of the completed improvement

construction cost, and lien releases for the proposed accepted improvements. Vicinity
Maps for the Tracts are included as Attachment " B".

Staff recommends City Council accept the completed Public Improvements for the
Tracts and accept RIP from Somerston Parkway to Walera Drive, with the exception
of a segment of RIP depicted in Attachment D", contingent upon the repair of the

lake connect pipe between Lake 10 and 11.

BACKGROUND:

On March 27, 2007, Council approved Vesting Tentative Map ( VTM) 3694, and later

amended VTM 3694 with updated Conditions of Approval ( COA) on June 1, 2015. The

Tracts comply with the amended COA' s of VTM 3694.

As required by the City' s subdivision ordinance, the final maps for the Tracts within
the Villages included a Subdivision Improvement Agreement  ( SIA)  to guarantee
public improvements. Completion of the public improvements listed in the GASB 34
reports fulfills the associated obligations of the SIAs.  The Council approval dates &

resolution numbers are detailed in Table 1 below.

651



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

APRIL 10, 2023, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ACCEPT PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS FROM RID FOR TRACTS 3994, 3995, 4015,

4016,  4020,  4021,  4030,  4031,  4060,  4111,  AND ACCEPT RIP WITH

ASSOCIATED CONDITION

Table 1: Council A roval Dates and Resolutions

Council Approval
Village Tract

Date
Resolution Number

3994 10/ 8/ 2018 18- 4461
T

3995 12/ 9/ 2019 19- 4661

4015 9/ 9/ 2019 19- 4627
W

4016 11/ 9/ 2020 20- 4810

X 4020 11/ 9/ 2020 20- 4811

4021 5/ 11/ 2020 20- 4720

4030 5/ 10/ 2021 21- 4874

S 4031 8/ 9/ 2021 21- 4934

4060 1/ 11/ ZOZl 21- 4829

4111 12/ 13/ 2021 21- 5008

The Performance and Labor & Materials Bonds will be released and replaced with the

Warranty Bonds upon acceptance of the improvements.    The bond values and

numbers are detailed in Table 2 below.

Table 2: Bond Values and Numbers

Village Tract
Performance Bond Labor & Materials Warranty Bond

Number/ Value Bond Number/ Value Number/ Value

3994 0757337/$ 560, 904 0757337/$ 280, 452
T 0757337/$ 232, 500

3995 0757337/$ 560, 904 0757337/$ 280, 452

4015 0757331/$ 136, 866 0757331/$ 68, 433
W 0757331/$ 202, 566

4016 0757331/$ 136, 866 0757331/$ 68, 433

X 4020 0757350/$ 3, 401, 448 0757350/$ 1, 700, 7z4 0757350/$ 432, 854

40Z1 0757341/$ 4, 602, 505 0757341/$ 2, 301, 253

4030 0757341/$ 4, 602, 505 0757341/$ 2, 301, 253

S 4031 0757341/$ 4, 602, 505 0757341/$ 2, 301, 253
0757341/$ 460, 251

4060 0757341/$ 4, 602, 505 0757341/$ 2, 301, 253

4111 0757341/$ 4, 602, 505 0757341/$ 2, 301, 253

Table 3 below details the Tracts that required the construction of River Islands

Parkway as part of their SIA.

652



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

APRIL 10, 2023, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ACCEPT PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS FROM RID FOR TRACTS 3994, 3995, 4015,

4016,  4020,  4021,  4030,  4031,  4060,  4111,  AND ACCEPT RIP WITH

ASSOCIATED CONDITION

Table 3: Council A roval Dates and Resolutions

Council Approvai Guaranteed
Tract

Date
Resolution Number Portion of River

Islands Parkwa

3834
11/ 21/ 2016 16- 4158

From Somerston to

Villa e M Dell' Osso

3908
7 g 2018 18- 44Z6

From Dell' Osso to

Lar e Lot Sta e 2B boundar

4032
From Stage 2B

Large Lot
6/ 8/ 2020 20- 4739 boundary to Walera

Drive

To ensure that the unfinished improvements are completed, the bonds listed in Table

4 below will remain in place until all SIA requirements for Tract 3834, 3908, and 4032
are completed, inspected by staff, and deemed complete by the City Engineer.  Upon

completion the bonds will be released, and maintenance will begin.

Table 4: Bond Values and Numbers

Tract
Performance Bond Labor & Materials Bond Warranty Bond

Number/ Value Number/ Value Number/ Value

3834
Set- Aside Letter dated, April 23, 2018 for $ 52, 889

Villa e M

3908
Set- Aside Letter dated, June 26, 2018 for $ 450, 000

0799682/$ 526, 400

Lar e Lot 0757345/$ 1, 029, 300

4032 0757345/ 
0757345/$ 2, 985, 263

Lar e Lot 5 970, 525

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

Staff has inspected the improvements listed in the GASB 34 Reports for the Tracts

and confirmed that the improvements have been completed in accordance with City
specifications and deemed complete by the City Engineer.

Construction of the public improvements for River Islands Parkway from Somerston
Parkway to Walera Drive is substantially complete and have been inspected by City
staff to ensure conformance with the approved plans.

Staff recommends City Council accept the completed Public Improvements for the
Tracts and accept RIP from Somerston Parkway to Walera Drive, with the exception
of a segment of RIP depicted in Attachment D", contingent upon the repair of the

lake connect pipe between Lake 10 and 11.

RID has submitted lien releases and one- year maintenance bonds for the

improvements being accepted.

653



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 4

APRIL 10, 2023, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ACCEPT PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS FROM RID FOR TRACTS 3994, 3995, 4015,

4016,  4020,  4021,  4030,  4031,  4060,  4111,  AND ACCEPT RIP WITH

ASSOCIATED CONDITION

FISCAL IMPACT:

The City' s maintenance costs will increase because of the additional improvements
that have to be maintained. The warranty bonds cover any repairs or replacements
due to defective materials or workmanship for the completed improvements that
become necessary during the one- year period, beginning with this acceptance. The
City' s Service Maintenance CFD 2013- 1 has been established to fund City
maintenance and operating costs.

ATTACH M ENTS:

A.       Resolution to Accept Public Improvements from River Islands Development,

LLC for Tracts 3994,  3995, 4015, 4016, 4020, 4021, 4030, 4031, 4060,

4111 and Accept River Islands Parkway with Associated Condition

B.       Vicinity Maps - Tracts and River Islands Parkway

C.       GASB 34 Reports

D.       Vicinity Map - Conditional Acceptance Vicinity Map for River Islands Parkway

654



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 5

APRIL 10, 2023, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ACCEPT PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS FROM RID FOR TRACTS 3994, 3995, 4015,

4016,  4020,  4021,  4030,  4031,  4060,  4111,  AND ACCEPT RIP WITH

ASSOCIATED CONDITION

APPROVALS:

T22      3/ 3 0 23
Bellal Nabizadah Date

Assistant Engineer

03 -
Ken Reed Date

Senior Construction Manager

H 3 20 23
Brad T ylor Date

City Engineer

U/ 2 L    I3 / ZDZ' 3

Cari James     Date

Finance Director

3 • 30• Zoz3

Michael King Date

Assistant City Manager

z- Q 3O

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

1+3

Step en J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

655



RESOLUTION NO. 23-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP TO ACCEPT

PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS FROM RIVER ISLANDS DEVELOPMENT,  LLC FOR

TRACTS 3994, 3995, 4015, 4016, 4020, 4021, 4030, 4031, 4060, 4111, AN D

ACCEPT A PORTION OF RIVER ISLANDS PARKWAY WITH ASSOCIATED

CONDITION

WHEREAS, on March 27, 2007, the City Council approved Vesting Tentative
Map ( VTM) 3694, and later amended VTM 3694 with updated Conditions of Approval

COA) on June 1, 2015. The Tracts comply with the amended COA' s of VTM 3694;
and

WHEREAS, required by the City' s subdivision ordinance, the final maps for the
Tracts within the Villages included a Subdivision Improvement Agreement ( SIA) to

guarantee public improvements. Completion of the public improvements listed in the
GASB 34 reports fulfills the associated obligations of the SIAs.  The Council approval

dates & resolution numbers are detailed in Table 1 below; and

Table 1: Council Approval Dates and Resolutions

Council Approval
Village Tract

Date
Resolution Number

3994 10/ 8/ 2018 18- 4461

T

3995 12/ 9/ 2019 19- 4661

4015 9/ 9/ 2019 19- 4627
W

4016 11/ 9/ 2020 20- 4810

X 4020 11/ 9/ 2020 20- 4811

4021 5/ 11/ 2020 20- 4720

4030 5/ 10/ 2021 21- 4874

S 4031 8/ 9/ 2021 21- 4934

4060 1/ 11/ 2021 21- 4829

4111 12/ 13/ 2021 21- 5008

WHEREAS, the Performance and Labor & Materials Bonds will be released and

replaced with the Warranty Bonds upon acceptance of the improvements.  The bond
values and numbers are detailed in Table 2 below; and

656



Table 2: Bond Values and Numbers

Village Tract
Performance Bond Labor & Materials Warranty Bond

Number/ Value Bond Number/ Value Number/ Value

3994 0757337/$ 560, 904 0757337/$ 280, 452

T 0757337/$ 232, 500

3995 0757337/$ 560, 904 0757337/$ 280, 452

4015 0757331/$ 136, 866 0757331/$ 68, 433

W 0757331/$ 202, 566

4016 0757331/$ 136, 866 0757331/$ 68, 433

X 4020 0757350/$ 3, 401, 448 0757350/$ 1, 700, 724 0757350/$ 432, 854

4021 0757341/$ 4, 602, 505 0757341/$ 2, 301, 253

4030 0757341/$ 4, 602, 505 0757341/$ 2, 301, 253

0757341/$ 460, 251

S 4031 0757341/$ 4, 602, 505 0757341/$ 2, 301, 253

4060 0757341/$ 4, 602, 505 0757341/$ 2, 301, 253

4111 0757341/$ 4, 602, 505 0757341/$ 2, 301, 253

WHEREAS,  Table 3 below details the Tracts that required the construction of

River Islands Parkway as part of their SIA; and

Table 3: Council Approval Dates and Resolutions

Council Approval
Guaranteed

Tract
Date

Resolution Number Portion of River

Islands Parkway

3834
11/ 21/ 2016 16- 4158

From Somerston to

Village M Dell' Osso

3908
7 9/ 2018 18- 4426

From Dell' Osso to

Large Lot Stage zB boundary

4032
From Stage 2B

Large Lot
6/ 8/ ZOZO ZO- 4739 boundary to Walera

Drive

WHEREAS, to ensure that the unfinished improvements are completed, the

bonds listed in Table 4 below will remain in place until all SIA requirements for Tract
3834, 3908, and 4032 are completed, inspected by staff, and deemed complete by
the City Engineer.  Upon completion the bonds will be released, and maintenance will
begin; and

657



Table 4: Bond Values and Numbers

Tract
Performance Bond Labor & Materiais Bond Warranty Bond

Number/ Value Number/ Value Number/ Value

3834

Village M
Set- Aside Letter dated, April 23, 2018 for $ 52, 889

3908 0799682/$ 526, 400

Large Lot
Set- Aside Letter dated, June 26, 2018 for $ 450, 000

0757345/$ 1, 029, 300

4032 0757345/ 
0757345/$ 2, 985, 263

Large Lot 5, 970, 525

WHEREAS,  staff has inspected the improvements listed in the GASB 34

Reports for the Tracts and confirmed that the improvements have been completed in

accordance with City specifications and deemed complete by the City Engineer; and

WHEREAS,  construction of the public improvements for portion of River
Islands Parkway  ( RIP)  from Somerston Parkway to Walera Drive is substantially
complete and have been inspected by City staff to ensure conformance with the
approved plans; and

WHEREAS,  staff recommends City Council accept the completed Public

Improvements for the Tracts and accept RIP from Somerston Parkway to Walera
Drive, with the exception of a segment of RIP depicted in Attachment " D" of the City
Manager' s Report, contingent upon the repair of the lake connect pipe between Lake
10 and 11; and

WHEREAS,  RID has submitted lien releases for the improvements being
accepted, one- year warranty bonds, and as- built drawings for said improvements;
and

WHEREAS,  the City' s maintenance costs will increase because of the

additional improvements that have to be maintained. The warranty bonds cover any
repairs or replacements due to defective materials or workmanship for the completed
improvements that become necessary during the one- year period,  beginning with
this acceptance. The City' s Service Maintenance CFD 2013- 1 has been established to
fund City maintenance and operating costs.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop accepts the above detailed public improvements from River Islands

Development,  LLC for Tracts 3994,  3995,  4015,  4016,  4020,  4021,  4030,  4031,

4060, 4111, and accepts River Islands Parkway from Somerston Parkway to Walera
Drive, with the exception of a segment of RIP depicted in Attachment " D" of the City
Manager' s Report, contingent upon the repair of the lake connect pipe between Lake
10 and 11.

658



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 10th day of April 2023, by the
following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:      APPROVED AS T FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

659



i  ..

1•     ,,            
I, I,,,,,   ,,, ;' ,

I      . 

I I    I   ,
E a;:  n :, rr

II I II 

j11Ij  `     1
1   j

1, j    ,

iii
1  1 Q

i     . j I I   •

1      ,     t ',I I      ' ' '111     I
I,    , 1        1

1 i •V         I , %%11 1  III     1
1 j     h 11111     I

I    ,      `    I j 11      t 111111 1
r , 

x x   a  

I,      rt'",
Q

W.  

1111111111111''

1111  11111111 1111111 .I
r

r.     .,•.    ,•.   ..   
t       ii

i i   1i,,      l 1
i i    .   

j1       
I I:: ' IIII   11111111111111111111    I

I II%%j11111 1111

1 I/111 
1  1111

j   111  1111     ..,     . .            11
1 1• 

11111/  II 7

1\ 1  /jili  !  i 111
a a aia a i   111 11  1 I  

i    II
i ìia si  

rj      f
1 

j    '1
r

I

I
I

660



ii..

I, I,,,,,   ,,, ;, `
1

I I    I 

II I I     

Ij11jj  `'     1
1        j

j i 1 j    ,

Oi  
1  1 Q i

i,ii    ' J• 1 I,
I I 1  : a

1      ,     t ',I I 111 1     I
I  1

i       I     11 1  III    Ij 1       % V    j I   I I  11111     I

11       <    ,,`.,,  111111 1   
1 

1       
1       

r 
i'    I    

II IIII  \ III II  11 111 .

111i,  

i ii 1
i.+ I  i

1 l
j:,  j ii  

f F

1

ij;   ,  ,,
i   ;, I'  1     a

I           

l111  1111111 111111  e7

1   / jili  =  i 111
aia a a a i   111;\ 1 1  

i`iii il  
s  =,±  ;    .

r,    `
1i

r

I

I

I

661



i ii..

1,     ,,            
I, I,,,,,   ,,, ;, `

1

1 ..    .;;, 
f+ 1"''   f +'' rt4`%

I  ',',,, ,,.;,,,

I

I    

i ,'''''••   
p

ji  I 

j.      i i     j ji i   .

1      ,     t , I I       ' '111     /
j.j  II    , 1  .      1

1 i i v       I  IIjj1 11  III     I
I  11111     I

F> , 111   111111 I   
1

i
1             i I
i i 1111111  IIIIIII
i1         II 1111  1111111  111111 .

j1   .  I   IIII
r     ,,•,    ,.,   ,,   

i,   ii
i i!   1i,,    l 1

i    .   I::    IIII i  , 11111111111111111111    I
I+  ; :.     .. I   111111 11111

r I ',,,  1111  111

IIII 1111  ; 1111111 111111         11
5 1 1 l111  ' 1111111 111111  t_7

1\   I/jili  '.  i 111
7iiiiiiiiii I   ''I

aa 1    
a_        

iiii i  

ii      f
r l
r

I

I

I
662



I' ;;   ,; r
II 1  ,         ,

1 .;,;.    .:;,,,
I      I    I 

f ., :

I   I  .   

j   r

1        f     .,,, 1 '

i 1   i 0
iii i   

I•,I,,,,,' '' , .- 

1   1 t ,,  I, I    ,,    111/ 1/        1

j              I  11  1111     1

ii     I  11111     I

j,      t        ,,    ,,,     II 111111 1   

I
r     ',  i

I

i i!'   1i,,      l
j i    .   

1       j1::    111;  ; 111111111111111111111    I

r  ; :- .    •.- 11 j1%%111111 11111I; ,,, II  1111

j I
1111  1111111 111111    I    ,   11111/  1111111 111111  t__7

11
1

iljil  aiai a aiaii ii 111

I`  iliiii

f
r.       r;

r r
i

I
663



ATTACHMENT

CITY OF LATHROP

PROJECT ACCEPTANCE

GASB 34 REPORT)

Submitted by:      Date:    3/ 23/ 2023

Tract No.:     River Islands Village T- Tract 3994( 51 Lots)

Item Unit Unit Price Amount

3" ACPaving SF 31, 400     $       1. 50      $     47, 100. 00

4. 5" AC Paving SF 118, 200     $       2. 25      $    265, 950. 00

4" Aggregate Base SF 149, 600     $       0. 60     $     89, 760. 00

Vertical Curb and Gutter( with AB cushion)   LF 3, 960     $      15. 00     $     59, 400. 00

Rolled Curb and Gutter( with aB cushion)    LF 4, 800     $      15. 00      $     72, 000. 00

Concrete Sidewalk SF 43, 500     $       5. 00      $    217, 500. 00

Driveway Approach EA 51      $     600. 00     $     30, 600. 00

Handicap Ramps EA 19      $   2, 500. 00     $     47, 500. 00

Survey Monuments EA 13      $     300. 00     $      3, 900. 00

Traffic Striping& Signage LF 4, 560     $       5. 00      $     22, 800. 00

CatchBasins( rypeAinlet) EA 26      $   2, 400. 00     $     62, 400. 00

Catch Basins( type A in/et overtype I manhole base)    EA 7      $   2, 800. 00     $     19, 600. 00

Catch Basins( type A inlet overtype II manhole base)    EA 7      $   5, 000. 00     $     35, 000. 00

Field Inlet EA 2      $    1, 200. 00     $      2, 400. 00

15" Storm Drain Pipe LF 1, 320     $      34. 00     $     44, 880. 00

18" Storm Drain Pipe LF 1, 120     $      46. 00     $     51, 520. 00

24" Storm Drain Pipe LF 640     $      65. 00     $     41, 600. 00

30" Storm Drain Pipe LF 260     $      80. 00     $     20, 800. 00

36" Storm Drain Pipe LF 520     $      95. 00     $     49, 400. 00

42" Storm Drain Pipe LF 240     $     120. 00     $     28, 800. 00

Manholes( rype I)       EA 4      $   3, 000. 00     $     12, 000. 00

8" Sanitary Sewer Pipe LF 3, 600      $      28. 00     $    100, 800. 00

Manholes EA 15      $   4, 000. 00     $     60, 000. 00

4" Sewer Service EA 50      $     600. 00     $     30, 000. 00

Plug& Stub EA 1      $    1, 000. 00     $      1, 000. 00

8" Water Line( including all appurtenances)    LF 4, 640     $      32. 00     $    148, 480. 00

1- 1/ 2" Water Service EA 50     $   2, 000. 00     $    100, 000. 00

Fire Hydrants EA 9      $   4, 000. 00     $     36, 000. 00

Blow Off Valve EA 5      $   4, 000. 00     $     20, 000. 00

Air Release Valve EA 2     $   2, 500. 00     $      5, 000. 00

Resilent Valve EA 31      $    1, 550. 00     $     48, 050. 00

Water Plug& Stub EA 1      $    1, 000. 00     $      1, 000. 00

Civil Engineering/ Design LS 1      $  33, 670. 00     $     33, 670. 00

Surveying/ Staking LS 1      $  36, 720. 00     $     36, 720. 00

Joint Trench/ Utilities LS 1      $  25, 500. 00     $     25, 500. 00

Plan Check and Inspection Fees LS 1      $ 106, 925. 51      $    106, 925. 51

Total     $  1, 978, 000. 00

T. 25500- Rlver Islands Phase 1A Estimates\ GASB 34 Reports\ Stage 2A\ Village 11Village T- Tract 3994. x1s

664



CITY OF LATHROP

PROJECT ACCEPTANCE

GASB 34 REPORT)

Submitted by:      Date:    3/ 23/ 2023

Tract No.:     River Islands Village T- Tract 3995( 52 Lots)

Item Unit Unit Price Amount

Driveway Approach EA 52      $     600. 00     $     31, 200. 00

4" Sewer Service EA 52      $     600. 00     $     31, 200. 00

1- 1/ 2" Water Service EA 52      $   2, 000. 00     $    104, 000. 00

Civil Engineering/ Design LS 1      $  34, 330. 00     $     34, 330. 00

Surveying/ Staking LS 1      $  37, 440. 00     $     37, 440. 00

Joint Trench/ Utilities LS 1      $  26, 000. 00     $     26, 000. 00

Plan Check and Inspection Fees LS 1      $ 109, 022. 09     $    109, 022. 09

Total     $    373, 000. 00

T: 25500- River Islands Phase 1A\ Estimates\ GASB 34 RepoRSW^ tage 2A\ Village T1Village T- TraM 3995. xis

665



CITY OF LATHROP

PROJECT ACCEPTANCE

GASB 34 REPORT)

Submitted by: Date:     3/ 23/ 2023

Tract No.:     River Islands Village W- Tract 4015( 44 Lots)

Item Unit Q!    Unit Price Amount

3" AC Paving SF 52, 800      $ 1. 50      $     79, 200.00

4. 5" AC Paving SF 65, 600      $       2. 25      $    147,600. 00

6" Aggregate Base SF 21, 800      $ 0. 90      $     19, 620. 00

7" AggregateBase SF 31, 100      $ 1. 05      $     32, 655. 00

8" Aggregate Base SF 65, 600      $ 1. 20      $     78, 720. 00

Vertical Curb and Gutter( with AB cushion)      LF 2, 590      $      15. 00      $     38, 850. 00

Rolled Curb and Gutter( with AB cushion)       LF 4, 040      $      15. 00      $     60, 600. 00

Concrete Sidewalk SF 33, 750      $ 5. 00      $    168, 750. 00

Driveway Approach EA 44      $     600. 00      $     26, 400. 00

Handicap Ramps EA 12      $    2, 500. 00      $     30, 000.00

Survey Monuments EA 16      $     300.00      $      4, 800.00

Traffic Striping& Signage LF 3, 420      $ 5. 00      $     17, 100. 00

Catch Basins( type A inlet)     EA 19      $    2, 400. 00      $     45, 600.00

Catch Basins( type A inlet over type 1 manhole base) EA 2      $    2, 800. 00      $      5, 600.00

Catch Basins( type A inlet over type lI manhole base) EA 2      $    5, 000. 00      $     10, 000.00

15" Storm Drain Pipe LF 1, 030      $      34. 00      $     35, 020.00

18" Storm Drain Pipe LF 380      $      46.00      $     17, 480. 00

24" Storm Drain Pipe LF 490      $      65. 00      $     31, 850. 00

36" Storm Drain Pipe LF 200      $      95.00      $     19, 000.00

42" Storm Drain Pipe LF 400      $     120. 00      $     48, 000. 00

Manholes( type q EA 3      $    3, 000. 00      $      9, 000.00

Manholes( rype Iq EA 1      $    5, 000. 00      $      5, 000. 00

8" Sanitary Sewer Pipe LF 3, 130      $      28.00      $     87, 640.00

Manholes( rype q EA 13      $    4, 000. 00      $     52, 000.00

Manholes( droprtrunk) EA 1      $    6, 000. 00      $      6, 000.00

4" Sewer Service EA 44      $     600. 00      $     26,400. 00

8" Water Line( includingallappurtenances) LF 2, 920      $      32.00      $     93, 440. 00

10" Water Line( including all appurtenances)       EA 590      $      40.00      $     23,600. 00

1- 1/ 2" WaterService EA 44      $    2, 000. 00      $     88, 000. 00

Fire Hydrants EA 6      $    4, 000. 00      $     24,000. 00

Blow Off Valve EA 8      $    4, 000. 00      $     32, 000. 00

Air Release Valve EA 6      $    2, 500. 00      $     15, 000. 00

8" Resilent Valve EA 14      $    1, 550. 00      $     21, 700. 00

10" Resilent Vaive EA 4      $    2, 500.00      $     10, 000. 00

Civil Engineering/ Design LS 1      $  28,642.00      $     28,642. 00

Surveying/ Staking LS 1      $  31, 680.00      $     31, 680. 00

Joint Trench/ Utilities LS 1      $  22, 000.00      $     22, 000. 00

Plan Check and Inspection Fees LS 1      $   77, 551. 43      $     77, 551. 43

Total     $  1, 570, 000. 00

T:\ 25500- River Islands Phase 1A\ Estima es\ GASB 34 Reports\ Stage 2A\ Village NAVllage W- Tract 4015. x1s

666



CITY OF LATHROP

PROJECT ACCEPTANCE

GASB 34 REPORT)

Submitted by: Date:     3/ 23/ 2023

Tract No.:     River Islands Village W- Tract 4016( 62 Lots)

Item Unit          Unit Price Amount

3" AC Paving SF 28,700      $ 1. 50      $     43, 050. 00

6" Aggregate Base SF 11, 400      $ 0. 90      $     10, 260. 00

7" Aggregate Base SF 17, 400      $ 1. 05      $     18, 270. 00

Vertical Curb and Gutter( with AB cushion)      LF 100      $       15. 00      $      1, 500. 00

Rolled Curb and Gutter( with AB cushion)       LF 1, 530      $       15. 00      $     22, 950. 00

Concrete Sidewalk SF 7, 350      $ 5. 00      $     36, 750.00

Driveway Approach EA 62      $     600. 00      $     37, 200.00

Survey Monuments EA 5      $     300. 00      $      1, 500.00

Traffic Striping& Signage LF 680      $ 5. 00      $      3, 400. 00

Catch Basins( type A inlet)     EA 6      $    2,400. 00      $     14, 400.00

15" Storm Drain Pipe LF 490      $      34. 00      $     16, 660.00

18" Storm Drain Pipe LF 30      $      46.00      $      1, 380.00

8" Sanitary Sewer Pipe LF 670      $      28. 00      $     18, 760.00

Manholes( type 1)     EA 3      $   4, 000. 00      $     12, 000. 00

4" Sewer Service EA 60      $     600. 00      $     36, 000.00

8" Water Line( including all appurtenances) LF 730      $      32.00      $     23, 360.00

1- 1/ 2" WaterService EA 60      $    2, 000. 00      $    120, 000.00

3" Water Service EA 1      $    2, 000. 00      $      2, 000.00

Fire Hydrants EA 2      $   4, 000. 00      $      8, 000. 00

Blow Off Valve EA 4      $    4, 000. 00      $     16, 000. 00

Air Release Valve EA 2      $    2, 500. 00      $      5, 000. 00

8" Resilent Valve EA 1      $    1, 550. 00      $      1, 550. 00

8" Non- Potable Water Line( including all appurtenances)    LF 470      $      35. 00      $     16,450. 00

3" Non- Potable Water Service EA 1      $    2, 000. 00      $      2, 000. 00

Blow Off Valve EA 1      $    4, 000.00      $      4, 000. 00

Resilent Valve EA 1      $    1, 550. 00      $      1, 550. 00

Civil Engineering/ Design LS 1      $  40, 358. 00      $     40, 358. 00

Surveying/ Staking LS 1      $  44,640. 00      $     44,640. 00

JointTrench/ Utilities LS 1      $   31, 000. 00      $     31, 000. 00

Plan Check and Inspection Fees LS 1      $ 109, 277. 01      $    109, 277. 01

Total     $    699,000. 00

T:\ 25500- River Islands Phase 1A\ Estimates\ GA58 34 Reports\ Stage 2A\ Vllage VNVillage W- Tract 4016. x1s

667



CITY OF LATHROP

PROJECT ACCEPTANCE

GASB 34 REPORT)

Submitted by:  Date:     3/ 22/ 2023

Tract No.:     River Islands Village X- Tract 4020( 57 Lots)

Item Unit          Unit Price Amount

3" AC Paving SF 73, 500      $ 1. 50      $    110, 250. 00

4. 5" AC Paving SF 35, 500      $       2. 25      $     79, 875. 00

6" Aggregate Base SF 34, 300      $ 0. 90      $     30, 870. 00

7" Aggregate Base SF 39, 200      $ 1. 05      $     41, 160.00

8" Aggregate Base SF 35, 500      $ 120      $     42, 600. 00

Vertical Curb and Gutter( with AB cushion)      LF 1, 960      $      15. 00      $     29, 400. 00

Rolled Curb and Gutter( with AB cushion)       LF 4, 330      $       15. 00      $     64, 950. 00

Concrete Sidewalk SF 26, 900      $ 5. 00      $    134, 500. 00

Driveway Approach EA 57      $     600.00      $     34, 200. 00

Handicap Ramps EA 8      $    2, 500.00      $     20, 000. 00

Survey Monuments EA 16      $     300.00      $      4, 800. 00

Traffic Striping& Signage LF 3, 100      $ 5. 00      $     15, 500. 00

Catch Basins( type A inlet)     EA 11      $    2, 400.00      $     26, 400. 00

Caich Basins( type A inlet over type 1 manhole base) EA 8      $    2, 800.00      $     22, 400. 00

Catch Basins( type A inlet over type ll manhole base) EA 2      $    5, 000.00      $     10, 000. 00

Field Inlet EA 1      $    1, 200.00      $      1, 200. 00

15" Storm Drain Pipe LF 490      $      34. 00      $     16, 660. 00

18" Storm Drain Pipe LF 660      $      46.00      $     30, 360. 00

24" Storm Drain Pipe LF 650      $      65. 00      $     42, 250. 00

30" Storm Drain Pipe LF 270      $      80. 00      $     21, 600. 00

36" Storm Drain Pipe LF 160      $      95. 00      $     15, 200. 00

Manholes( type q EA 2      $    3, 000.00      $      6, 000. 00

8" Sanitary Sewer Pipe LF 3, 100      $      28.00      $     86, 800. 00

4" Sewer Service EA 59      $     600.00      $     35, 400. 00

Manholes( rype 1)     EA 12      $    4, 000. 00      $     48,000. 00

8" Water Line( includingallappurtenances) LF 3, 170      $      32. 00      $    101, 440. 00

1" Water Service EA 1      $     800.00      $ 800. 00

1- 1/ 2" Water Service EA 57      $    2, 000.00      $    114, 000. 00

2" Water Service EA 2      $    2, 000.00      $      4, 000. 00

3" Water Service EA 1      $    2, 000.00      $      2, 000. 00

Fire Hydrants EA 8      $   4, 000. 00      $     32, 000.00

Water Sampling Station EA 1      $    3, 000. 00      $      3, 000. 00

Blow Off Valve EA 5      $    4, 000. 00      $     20, 000. 00

Air Release Valve EA 2      $    2, 500. 00      $      5, 000. 00

Resilent Valve EA 15      $    1, 550. 00      $     23, 250. 00

8" Non- Potable Water Line( including all appurtenances)    LF 920      $      35. 00      $     16, 450. 00

3" Non- Potable Water Service EA 1      $    2, 000. 00      $      2, 000.00

Blow Off Valve EA 1      $   4, 000.00      $      4, 000.00

Air Release Valve EA 1      $    2, 500. 00      $      2, 500.00

ResilentValve EA 1      $    1, 550. 00      $      1, 550. 00

Civil Engineering/ Design LS 1      $  37, 000. 00      $     37, 000. 00

Surveying/ Staking LS 1      $  40, 320. 00      $     40,320. 00

Joint Trench/ Utilities LS 1      $  28, 500.00      $     28, 500. 00

Plan Check and Inspection Fees LS 1      $ 132, 938. 82      $    132, 938. 82

Total     $  1, 541, 000. 00

T: 25500- River Islantls Phase 1A\ Es[ ima[ es\ GASB 34 Reports\ Stage 2A\ Vllage X\Village X- Trac[ 4020. x1s

668



CITY OF LATHROP

PROJECT ACCEPTANCE

GASB 34 REPORT)

Submitted by: Date:     3/ 24/ 2023

Tract No.:     River Islands Village S- Tract 4021 ( 44 Lots)

Item Unit Qt    Unit Price Amount

3" AC Paving SF 29, 900      $ 1. 50      $     44, 850. 00

4. 5" AC Paving SF 71, 600      $ 2. 25      $    161, 100. 00

6" Aggregate Base SF 13, 900      $ 0. 90      $     12, 510. 00

7" Aggregate Base SF 16, 000      $ 1. 05      $     16, 800. 00

8" Aggregate Base SF 71, 600      $ 1. 20      $     85, 920. 00

Vertical Curb and Gutter( with AB cushion)      LF 1, 700      $       15. 00      $     25, 500. 00

Rolled Curb and Gutter( with AB cushion)       LF 4, 040      $       15. 00      $     60, 600. 00

Concrete Sidewalk SF 32, 500      $ 5. 00      $    162,500. 00

DrivewayApproach EA 36      $     600. 00      $     21, 600. 00

Handicap Ramps EA 10      $    2, 500. 00      $     25,000. 00

Survey Monuments EA 12      $     300. 00      $      3, 600. 00

Traffic Striping& Signage LF 2, 850      $       5. 00      $     14, 250. 00

Catch Basins( type A inlet over type 1 manhole base) EA 4      $    2, 800.00      $     11, 200.00

Catch Basins( type A inlet over type ll manhole base) EA 1      $    5, 000. 00      $      5, 000. 00

Field Inlet( type C inlet ove type l manhole base)   EA 20      $    2, 800.00      $     56, 000. 00

Field Inlet( type C inlet over type 11 manhole base)   EA 2      $    5, 000.00      $     10, 000. 00

15" Storm Drain Pipe LF 2, 260      $      18. 00      $     40, 680.00

18" Storm Drain Pipe LF 710      $      20. 00      $     14, 200. 00

24" Storm Drain Pipe LF 770      $      31. 00      $     23, 870. 00

30" Storm Drain Pipe LF 770      $      45. 00      $     34, 650. 00

36" Storm Drain Pipe LF 290      $      55. 00      $     15, 950. 00

Manholes( rype q EA 2      $    3, 000. 00      $      6, 000. 00

Manholes( type ll)    EA 5      $    5, 000. 00      $     25, 000. 00

8" Sanitary Sewer Pipe LF 3, 430      $      28. 00      $     96, 040. 00

Manholes( type I)     EA 12      $    4, 000.00      $     48, 000. 00

Cleanouts EA 47      $     500. 00      $     23, 500. 00

4" Sewer Service Lateral EA 1      $     600. 00      $ 600. 00

6" Sewer Service Line EA 11      $    1, 000. 00      $     11, 000. 00

8" Water Line( includingallappurtenances) LF 3, 820      $      32. 00      $    122, 240. 00

Water Service( one 2" waterservice and one watermanifold with( wo

1" watermetersforeachpod)    EA 72      $    2, 000.00      $    144, 000. 00

2" Water Service EA 1      $    2, 000. 00      $      2, 000. 00

Fire Hydrants EA 10      $    4, 000. 00      $     40, 000. 00

Blow Off Valve EA 1      $    4, 000. 00      $      4, 000. 00

Air Release Valve EA 1      $    2, 500. 00      $      2, 500. 00

8" Resilent Valve EA 18      $    1, 550. 00      $     27, 900. 00

Civil Engineering/ Design LS 1      $  63, 385. 00      $     63,385. 00

Surveying/ Staking LS 1      $  26, 462. 00      $     26, 462. 00

Joint Trench/ Utilities LS 1      $  25, 846. 00      $     25, 846. 00

Plan Check and Inspection Fees LS 1      $  23, 925. 62      $     23, 925. 62

Total     $  7, 538, 000. 00

T:\ 25500- River Islands Phase tA\Estimates\ GASB 34 Reports\ Stage 2A\ Vllage 5\Vllage S- Trect 4021. x1s

669



CITY OF LATHROP

PROJECT ACCEPTANCE

GASB 34 REPORT)

Submitted by:  Date:     3/ 24/ 2023

Tract No.:     River Islands Village S- Tract 4030( 43 Lots)

Item Unit          Unit Price Amount

Cleanouts EA 11      $     500. 00      $      5, 500. 00

6" Sewer Service Line EA 11      $    1, 000. 00      $     11, 000. 00

Civil Engineering/ Design LS 1      $  61, 944. 00      $     61, 944. 00

Surveying/ Staking LS 1      $  25, 860. 00      $     25, 860. 00

Joint Trench/ Utilities LS 1      $  25,259. 00      $     25, 259. 00

Plan Check and Inspection Fees LS 1      $  23, 381. 85      $     23, 381. 85

Total     $    153, 000. 00

T:\ 25500- River Islands Phase 1A\ EsAmates\ GASB 34 Reports\ Stage 2A\ Vllage S\ Ilage S- Tract 4030. x1s

670



CITY OF LATHROP

PROJECT ACCEPTANCE

GASB 34 REPORT)

Submitted by:  Date:     3/ 24/ 2023

Tract No.:     River Islands Village S- Tract 4031 ( 48 Lots)

Item Unit          Unit Price Amount

Cleanouts EA 12      $     500. 00      $      6, 000. 00

6" Sewer Service Line EA 12      $    1, 000. 00      $     12, 000. 00

Civil Engineering/ Design LS 1      $  69, 147. 00      $     69, 147. 00

Surveying/ Staking LS 1      $  28, 867. 00      $     28,867. 00

JointTrench/ Utilities LS 1      $  28, 196. 00      $     28, 196. 00

Plan Check and Inspection Fees LS 1      $  26, 100. 68      $     26, 100. 68

Total     $    170,000. 00

T:\ 25500- River Islands Phase 1A\ Estimates\ GASB 34 Reports\ Stage 2A1VIlage S\ Village 5- Tract 4031. x1s

671



CITY OF LATHROP

PROJECT ACCEPTANCE

GASB 34 REPORT)

Submitted by:  Date:     3/ 24/ 2023

Tract No.:     River Islands Village S- Tract 4111 ( 8 Lots)

Item Unit Q    Unit Price Amount

Cleanouts EA 2      $     500. 00      $      1, 000. 00

6" Sewer Service Line EA 2      $    1, 000. 00      $      2, 000. 00

Civil Engineering/ Design LS 1      $   11, 524. 00      $     11, 524. 00

Surveying/ Staking LS 1      $    4, 811. 00      $      4, 811. 00

Joint Trench/ Utilities LS 1      $    4, 699. 00      $      4, 699. 00

Plan Check and Inspection Fees LS 1      $    4, 350. 11      $      4, 350. 11

Total     $     28, 000. 00

T125500- River Islands Phase 1A\ EstlmateslGASB 34 ReportslS[ age 2A\ Village S\ Village S- Tract 4111. z1s

672



CITY OF LATHROP

PROJECT ACCEPTANCE

GASB 34 REPORT)

Submitted by:     Date:   3/ 23/ 2023

Tract No.:     River Islands- River Islands Parkway( From Somerston Parkway to Walera Drive)

Item Unit Unit Price Amount

Phase 1 B( Somerston Parkway to Dell' Osso Drive)
5. 5" AC Paving SF 166, 920      $      2. 75      $   459, 030. 00

19" Aggregate Base SF 166, 920      $      2. 85      $   475,722.00

Vertical Curb and Gutter ( with AB cushion)  LF 4, 110      $     15. 00      $     61, 650.00

Type F Median Curb( with AB cushion)      LF 4, 040      $     18. 00      $     72, 720. 00

Concrete Sidewalk SF 33, 700      $      5. 00      $    168, 500.00

Handicap Ramps EA 6      $  2, 500. 00      $     15, 000. 00

Survey Monuments EA 2      $    300. 00      $       600. 00

Traffic Striping& Signage LF 2, 250      $      5. 00      $     11, 250.00

Bus Stops LS 1 10, 000      $     10, 000. 00

Catch Basins( typeAin/et)       EA 3      $  2, 400.00      $      7, 200.00

Catch Basins( type A in/et over type 1 manho/ e base)    EA 5      $  2, 800. 00      $     14, 000. 00

Catch Basins( type C inlef over type 1 manho/ e base)    EA 1      $  2, 400. 00      $      2, 400. 00

Catch Basins( rype C in/ et over type ll manhole base)   EA 1      $  5, 000. 00      $      5, 000. 00

15" Storm Drain Pipe LF 1, 060      $     34. 00      $     36, 040. 00

18" Storm Drain Pipe LF 430      $     46. 00      $     19, 780.00

24" Storm Drain Pipe LF 370      $     65. 00      $     24, 050. 00

30" Storm Drain Pipe LF 110      $     80. 00      $      8, 800. 00

36" Storm Drain Pipe LF 180      $     95. 00      $     17, 100. 00

Manholes( type I)       EA 1      $  3, 000. 00      $      3, 000. 00

Manholes( rype Ip EA 1      $  5, 000. 00      $      5, 000. 00

8" Sanitary Sewer Pipe LF 230      $     28. 00      $      6, 440. 00

12" Sanitary Sewer Pipe LF 120      $     42.00      $      5, 040.00

30" Sanitary Sewer Pipe LF 2, 250      $    180. 00      $   405, 000. 00

Manholes( type 1)       EA 7      $  4, 000. 00      $     28, 000. 00

8" Water Line( inc/ uding all appurtenances)   LF 240      $     32. 00      $      7, 680. 00

20" Water Line( including all appurtenances)  LF 2, 310      $    100. 00      $   231, 000. 00

2" Water Service EA 3      $  2, 000. 00      $      6, 000. 00

3" Water Service EA 1      $  3, 000. 00      $      3, 000. 00

4" Water Service EA 1      $  4, 000.00      $      4, 000. 00

Fire Hydrants EA 5      $  4, 000. 00      $     20, 000. 00

Blow Off Valve EA 5      $  4, 000.00      $     20, 000. 00

Air Release Valve EA 4      $  2, 500. 00      $     10, 000. 00

ResilientValve EA 4      $  1, 550. 00      $      6, 200. 00

Butterfly Valve EA 6      $  2, 500.00      $     15, 000.00

12" Non- Potable Water Line( including all appurtenances)      LF 2, 310      $     60. 00      $    138,600. 00

1 1/ 2" NPW Service EA 1      $  2, 000.00      $      2, 000. 00

2" NPW Service EA 3      $  2, 000.00      $      6, 000. 00

4" NPW Service EA 1      $  2, 000. 00      $      2, 000.00

Blow Off Valve EA 7      $  4, 000. 00      $     28, 000. 00

Air Release Valve EA 7      $  2, 500. 00      $     17, 500. 00

Buttertly Valve EA 4      $  4, 000. 00      $     16, 000. 00

12" Recycled Water Line( including all appurtenances) LF 2, 310      $     55. 00      $    127, 050.00

Blow Off Valve EA 5      $  4, 000.00      $     20, 000.00

Air Release Valve EA 5      $  2, 500. 00      $     12, 500.00

Butterfly Valve EA 5      $  4, 000. 00      $     20, 000.00

14" Lake Fill Line( inc/ uding all appurtenances) LF 420      $     35.00      $     14, 700. 00

3" Aeration Line( including all appurtenances) LF 420      $      4. 00      $      1, 680. 00

Subtotal     $  2, 590,232. 00

673



Stage 2A( Dell' Osso Drive to Aquarius Avenue/ Norbeck Street)

7" ACPaving SF 317,500      $      3. 50      $  1, 111, 250.00

11" Aggregate Base SF 299, 200      $      1. 65      $   493, 680. 00

13" Aggregate Base SF 18, 400      $      1. 95      $     35, 880.00

12" Lime Treatment SF 299, 200      $      1. 10      $   329, 120.00

Vertical Curb and Gutter( with AB cushion)  LF 9,600      $     15. 00      $    144,000.00

Type F Median Curb( with AB cushion)      LF 9, 100      $     18. 00      $    163, 800. 00

Roundabout Concrete SF 2,400      $      5. 00      $     12,000.00

Bus Stap EA 3      $ 10, 000. 00      $     30, 000. 00

Concrete Sidewalk SF 77, 400      $      5. 00      $    387, 000. 00

Handicap Ramps EA 20      $  2, 500.00      $     50, 000.00

Survey Monuments EA 7      $    300. 00      $      2, 100. 00

Traffic Striping& Signing LF 4, 710      $      5. 00      $     23, 550. 00

Catch Basins( type A in/et)       EA 24      $  2, 400. 00      $     57, 600. 00

15" Storm Drain Pipe LF 1, 110      $     34. 00      $     37, 740. 00

18" Storm Drain Pipe LF 220      $     46. 00      $     10, 120. 00

24" Storm Drain Pipe LF 780      $     65. 00      $     50, 700. 00

8" Sanitary Sewer Pipe LF 340      $     28. 00      $      9, 520. 00

12" Sanitary Sewer Pipe LF 1, 610      $     42. 00      $     67, 620. 00

15" Sanitary Sewer Pipe LF 710      $     60. 00      $     42, 600.00

18" Sanitary Sewer Pipe LF 1, 120      $     80. 00      $     89, 600. 00

24" Sanitary Sewer Pipe LF 390      $    150. 00      $     58, 500. 00

30" Sanitary Sewer Pipe LF 4, 490      $    180. 00      $   808,200.00

Manholes( Trunk)      EA 24      $  4, 000. 00      $     96, 000. 00

8" Water Line( inc/ uding all appurtenances)   LF 740      $     32. 00      $     23, 680.00

10" Water Line( including all appurtenances)  LF 280      $     40. 00      $     11, 200. 00

20" Water Line( including all appurtenances)  LF 4, 630      $    100. 00      $   463, 000. 00

Fire Hydrants EA 16      $  4, 000. 00      $     64, 000. 00

2" Water Service EA 1      $  2, 000. 00      $      2, 000.00

3" Water Service EA 1      $  2, 000. 00      $      2, 000.00

4" Water Service EA 4      $  3, 000.00      $     12, 000. 00

Air Release Valve EA 1      $  2, 500.00      $      2, 500. 00

Blow Off Valve EA 15      $  4, 000.00      $     60, 000. 00

20" Butterfly Valve EA 11      $  5, 250. 00      $     57, 750. 00

8" Recycled Water Flushing Line( including alI appurtenances)  LF 80      $     45. 00      $      3, 600.00

12" Recycled Water Drain Line( inc/uding all appurtenances)    LF 150      $     55. 00      $      8, 250. 00

16" Recycled Water Line( including all appurtenances) LF 4, 650      $     65. 00      $   302, 250. 00

Butterfly Valve EA 5      $  4, 000.00      $     20, 000. 00

8" Non- Potable Water Line( inc/ uding all appurtenances)       LF 650      $     35. 00      $     22, 750.00

16" Non- Potable Water Line( inc/uding all appurtenances)      LF 4, 660      $     80. 00      $   372, 800. 00

2" Non- Potable Water Service EA 1      $  2, 000. 00      $      2, 000. 00

3" Non- Potable Water Service EA 1      $  2, 000. 00      $      2, 000. 00

4" Non- Potable Water Service EA 4      $  3, 000. 00      $     12, 000. 00

Blow Off Valve EA 7      $  4, 000. 00      $     28, 000. 00

16" Buttertly Valve EA 2      $  4, 000. 00      $      8, 000. 00

16" Lake Fill Line( including al/ appurtenances) LF 4, 820      $     50. 00      $   241, 000. 00

3" Aeration Line( including all appurtenances) LF 4, 820      $      4. 00      $     19, 280. 00

Air Release Valve EA 1      $  2, 500. 00      $      2, 500. 00

Blow Off Valve EA 2      $  4, 000. 00      $      8, 000. 00

Buttertly Valve EA 4      $  4, 000. 00      $     16, 000. 00

Subtotal     $  5, 877, 140.00

674



Stage 2B( Aquarius Avenue/ Norbeck Street to Walera Drive)

7„ AC Paving SF 261, 400      $      3. 50      $   914, 900. 00

13" Aggregate Base SF 261, 400      $      1. 95      $   509, 730. 00

12" Lime Treatment SF 261, 400      $      1. 10      $   287, 540.00

Vertical Curb and Gutter ( with AB cushion)  LF 7, 800      $     15. 00      $    117, 000. 00

Type F Median Curb( withAB cushion)      LF 7, 300      $     18. 00      $    131, 400.00

Concrete Sidewalk SF 62, 720      $      5. 00      $   313, 600. 00

Handicap Ramps EA 13      $  2, 500.00      $     32, 500. 00

Survey Monuments EA 7      $    300. 00      $      2, 100. 00

Traffic Striping& Signing LF 4, 000      $      5. 00      $     20, 000. 00

Catch Basins( typeAin/et)       EA 10      $  2, 400. 00      $     24, 000. 00

CatchBasins( typeAin/ etovertype/ manho/ebase)    EA 4      $  2, 800. 00      $     11, 200. 00

CatchBasins( typeAin/ etovertypelllmanholebase)   EA 2      $  7, 500.00      $     15, 000. 00

15" Storm Drain Pipe LF 730      $     34. 00      $     24, 820. 00

18" Storm Drain Pipe LF 390      $     46. 00      $     17, 940. 00

24" Storm Drain Pipe LF 170      $     65. 00      $     11, 050. 00

60" Storm Drain Pipe LF 130      $    140. 00      $     18, 200. 00

8" Sanitary Sewer Pipe LF 135      $     28. 00      $      3, 780. 00

10" Sanitary Sewer Pipe LF 95      $     35. 00      $      3, 325. 00

10" Sanitary Sewer Force Main Pipe LF 2, 010      $     85. 00      $    170,850. 00

12" Sanitary Sewer Pipe LF 95      $     42. 00      $      3, 990. 00

24" Sanitary Sewer Pipe LF 2, 860      $    150. 00      $   429, 000. 00

Manholes( Trunk)      EA 9      $  6, 000.00      $     54, 000. 00

Force Main Air Release Valve EA 2      $  2, 500. 00      $      5, 000. 00

8" Water Line( inc/uding all appurtenances)   LF 170      $     32. 00      $      5, 440. 00

10" Water Line( including all appuRenances)  LF 150      $     40. 00      $      6, 000. 00

20" Water Line( including all appurtenances)  LF 4, 000      $    100. 00      $   400, 000. 00

Fire Hydrants EA 14      $  4, 000. 00      $     56, 000. 00

2" WaterService EA 12      $  2, 000. 00      $     24, 000. 00

Air Release Valve EA 2      $  2, 500. 00      $      5, 000. 00

Blow Off Valve EA 9      $  4, 000. 00      $     36, 000. 00

8" Gate Valve EA 7      $  2, 000. 00      $     14, 000. 00

10" Gate Valve EA 3      $  2, 700. 00      $      8, 100. 00

20" Butterfly Valve EA 13      $  6, 000. 00      $     78, 000. 00

16" Recycled Water Line( including all appurtenances) LF 3, 980      $     65. 00      $   258, 700. 00

Air Release Valve EA 2      $  2, 500.00      $      5, 000.00

Blow Off Valve EA 2      $  4, 000. 00      $      8, 000. 00

Butterfly Valve EA 7      $  4, 000. 00      $     28, 000. 00

S" Non- Potable Water Line( inc/uding all appurfenances)       LF 140      $     35. 00      $      4, 900. 00

10" Non- Potable Water Line( including all appurtenances)      LF 120      $     50. 00      $      6, 000. 00

16" Non- Potable Water Line( including all appurtenances)      LF 3, 990      $     80. 00      $   319,200.00

2" Non- Potable Water Service EA 12      $  2, 000. 00      $     24, 000. 00

Air Release Valve EA 2      $  2, 500. 00      $      5, 000. 00

Blow Off Valve EA 8      $  4, 000. 00      $     32, 000. 00

8" Gate Valve EA 2      $  2, 000. 00      $      4, 000.00

10" Gate Valve EA 2      $  2, 700.00      $      5, 400.00

16" Butterfly' Valve EA 10      $  4, 500.00      $     45, 000.00

16" Lake Fill Line( includingall appurtenances) LF 1, 160      $     50. 00      $     58, 000.00

3" Aeration Line( including a/ l appuRenances) LF 1, 160      $      4. 00      $      4, 640. 00

Air Release Valve EA 1      $  2, 500.00      $      2, 500. 00

Blow Off Valve EA 2      $  4, 000. 00      $      8, 000.00

Butterfly Valve EA 3      $  4, 000.00      $     12, 000. 00

4, 583, 805. 00

675



Soft Cost

Civil Engineering/ Design LS 1      $ 335, 000. 00      $   335, 000.00

Surveying/ Staking LS 1      $ 151, 750. 00      $    151, 750. 00

Joint Trench/ Utilities LS 1      $ 109, 500.00      $    109, 500. 00

Plan Check and Inspection Fees LS 1      $ 879, 042. 44      $   879,042.44

Subtotal     $  1, 475, 292. 44

Total     $ 14, 526, 000. 00

676



i             

I

I I   I I       

i                     „      
i      ,i ; i    ,,;;     
i   i,   i       

i   i i      
i,

i
ii   i   •

0          1 I II   :J ..  I I 1i ij  t ,,I, I    ,      11111  ,
j         ,  I  j 1  I

iiV  ,     I I  1

j                 ,   1/  11

i     a w   .      

i i y     

1111111  11
I         1 1111  1111 1  11

i            
1    % I       ` ' 

1 j ',      
i,I; 11    I:,

j   r   i i

j,',     II/ II Ilf r

r          
I.     ii  iiii  i  =

I
i    ,   i  i  :

1 il  = iaiaiaiaia a
I  rI, s1  I 1      , I

1
i`aii i

rl
I

I
w

677



678



ITEM 5. 1

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

APRIL 10, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       PUBLIC HEARING     ( PUBLISHED NOTICE)     TO

CONSIDER MUNICIPAL CODE AMENDMENT TO

AMEND THE ZONING ORDINANCE AND MOSSDALE
URBAN DESIGN CONCEPT TO LIMIT HOTEL

DEVELOPMENT IN THE CENTRAL LATHROP SPECIFIC
PLAN AND MOSSDALE VILLAGE ( TA- 23- 32)

RECOMMENDATION:     Council to Consider the Following:
1.  Hold a Public Hearing; and
2.  First Reading and Introduction of an Ordinance to

Add Chapter 17. 78 Hotel Limitations and Modify
Section 17. 62. 072 of the Central Lathrop
Commercial Office Zoning District of the Lathrop
Municipal Code; and

3.  Adopt a Resolution Amending the Permitted and
Conditional Land Use List for Mossdale Landing,
Mossdale Landing East,  and Mossdale Landing
South Urban Design Concepts to Regulate and

Limit Hotel Development in the Central Lathrop
Specific Plan and Mossdale Village.

SUMMARY:

The proposed Municipal Code Text Amendment ( TA) is a Council- initiated proposal to
limit hotel establishments in the City. The areas of limitation are the Central Lathrop
Specific Plan and Mossdale Landing development areas.

The amendments include adding a new Chapter 17. 78  Hotel Limitations"  and

amending Section 17. 62. 072 of the Central Lathrop Commercial Office Zoning District
of the Lathrop Municipal Code ( LMC). In addition amendments are proposed for the
Permitted and Conditional Land Use Lists for the Mossdale Landing, Mossdale Landing
East, and Mossdale Landing South Urban Design Concepts ( UDC).

BACKGROUND:

On February 13,  2023, the City Council discussed the potential limitation of hotel
establishments in the City. The discussion was prompted by a disproportionately large
number of applications for entitlements and construction permits for hotels. Following
this discussion, the City Council instructed staff to prepare amendments to ensure
that adequate land is available for a variety of potential commercial development
such as retail, office, services, etc., within the undeveloped commercial land along
Interstate- 5.

679



CITY MANAGERS REPORT PAGE 2

APRIL 10, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING
HOTEL LIMITATIONS

At the end of the discussion, the City Council provided direction to staff to prepare
an Ordinance to limit new hotel developments in the Central Lathrop Specific Plan
and Mossdale Landing development areas.

On March 29,   2023,   the Planning Commission voted unanimously   ( 4- 0)   to

recommend the City Council adopt an Ordinance regarding the proposed
amendments to the Lathrop Municipal Code and Mossdale Landing UDC' s.   Planning
Commission Resolution No. 23- 4 is attached ( Attachment # 8) for reference.

ANALYSIS:

According to the Lathrop Municipal Code, amendments to the Zoning Ordinance must
be reviewed by the Planning Commission and forwarded to the City Council for
approval.   Before any recommendation to approve by the Planning Commission, or

final approval by the City Council, the finding that the proposed amendment will be
consistent with applicable provisions of the General Plan must be made. In regards
to Mossdale Landing, the Urban Design Concept considers modification of permitted
and conditionally permitted uses as a ' Major Amendment". Major Amendments are
referred to the Planning Commission for approval; however, since the amendments
are associated with each other,  they are being referred to the City Council as a
combined action. The following is a general overview of the proposed changes to the
LMC and UDC' s.

New LMC Chapter 17. 78: Hotel Limitations ( Attachment # 7

This chapter identifies the zoning districts where hotel establishments are limited.
The total number of hotels that are permitted to operate at any given time is six ( 6).
The affected zoning districts are as follows:

CO- CL, Commercial Office, Central Lathrop
CS- MV, Service Commercial, Mossdale Village

CH- MV, Highway Commercial, Mossdale Village East
CS- MV, Service Commercial, Mossdale Village East
CS- MV, Service Commercial, Mossdale Village South

Revised Section 17. 62. 072   ( Permitted Uses)   of the CO- CL Zoning District
Attachment # 3

This section is amended with a new footnote that any new hotel establishment is
subject to Chapter 17. 78 Hotel Limitations as described above.

Revised UDC Permitted and Conditional Land Use List

In similar fashion to Section 17. 62. 072 amendment, the UDC' s for Mossdale Landing
Attachment # 4),  Mossdale Landing East ( Attachment # 5), and Mossdale Landing

South ( Attachment # 6) include a new footnote that any new hotel establishment is
subject to Chapter 17. 78 Hotel Limitations of the LMC.

680



CITY MANAGERS REPORT PAGE 3

APRIL 10, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

HOTEL LIMITATIONS

PUBLIC NOTICE:

A Notice of Public Hearing was advertised in the Manteca Bulletin on March 31, 2023
and email notification sent to Public Hearing subscribers on March 30,  2023.  In

addition, the meeting agenda was posted at the Council Chambers bulletin board and
three ( 3) other locations accessible to the public.  The agenda is also posted to the
City' s website. As of the writing of this report, no comments were received in favor
or against the proposed amendment.

RECOMMENDATION:

The Planning Commission and staff recommend that the City Council consider all
information provided and submitted, take and consider all public testimony and, if

determined to be appropriate, introduce an Ordinance to ( 1) Add Chapter 17. 78 Hotel

Limitations and Modify Section 17. 62. 072 of the Central Lathrop Commercial Office
Zoning District of the Lathrop Municipal Code; ( 2) Adopt a Resolution Amending the
Permitted and Conditional Land Use List for Mossdale Landing,  Mossdale Landing
East, and Mossdale Landing South Urban Design Concepts to Regulate and Limit Hotel
Development in the Central Lathrop Specific Plan and Mossdale Village.

CEQA STATUS:

The proposed Municipal Code Text Amendment is exempt according to the California
Environmental Quality Act  ( CEQA)  Article 5  § 15061 by the  Common Sense

Exemption" that CEQA applies only to projects that have a potential for causing a
direct physical change in the environment,  or a reasonably foreseeable indirect
physical change in the environment. Specific development projects undertaken in the
future pursuant to the amended Municipal Code would be required to comply with
CEQA at that time.

FISCAL IMPACT:

There is no fiscal impact to the City of Lathrop, only staff time to prepare this report.

ATTACH M ENTS:

1.       Ordinance Approving Hotel Limitations
2.       Resolution Approving Mossdale Landing Amendments
3.       Mark up of Section 17. 62. 072 CO- CL Zoning District.
4.       Mark up of CS- MV, Mossdale Landing.
5.       Mark up of CH & CS- MV, Mossdale Landing East.
6.       Mark up of CS- MV, Mossdale Landing South.
7.       New Chapter 17. 78 Hotel Limitations.

8.       Planning Commission Resolution No. 23- 4

681



CITY MANAGERS REPORT PAGE 4

APRIL 10, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

HOTEL LIMITATIONS

APPROVALS:

z 3

Cagui D te

ssistant ommunity Development Director

F'  ` f ZO? 3

M rk iss er Date

Community Dev lopment Director

y -- o z.

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

s -23
Ste n ). Salvatore Date

City Manager

682



ORDINANCE NO. 23-

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

AMENDING TITLE 17 OF THE LATHROP MUNICIPAL CODE TO LIMIT HOTEL

DEVELOPMENT IN THE CENTRAL LATHROP SPECIFIC PLAN DEVELOPMENT

AREA ( TA- 23- 32)

WHEREAS,  the City of Lathrop Planning Commission held a duly noticed
public hearing at a Special meeting on March 29, 2023, at which they adopted PC
Resolution No.   23- 4 recommending City Council adopt Municipal Code Text

Amendment No. TA- 23- 32 pursuant to the Lathrop Municipal Code; and

WHEREAS,  the City of Lathrop City Council held a duly noticed public
hearing at a regular meeting on April 10,  2023 to review and consider adding
Chapter 17. 78 Hotel Limitations and Modify Section 17. 62. 072 of the Central

Lathrop Commercial Office Zoning District of the Lathrop Municipal Code to

Regulate and Limit Hotel Development in the Central Lathrop Specific Plan; and

WHEREAS, the proposed code amendment is limited to the Central Lathrop
Specific Plan; and

WHEREAS,  chapter 17. 124 of the Lathrop Municipal Code mandates the
transmittal of a Planning Commission recommendation to the City Council by
resolution; and

WHEREAS,  the proposed code amendment is exempt according to the
California Environmental Quality Act  ( CEQA)  Article 5  § 15061 by the  Common

Sense Exemption" that CEQA applies only to projects that have a potential for
causing a direct physical change in the environment, or a reasonably foreseeable
indirect physical change in the environment; and

WHEREAS,  the City Council finds that the proposed code amendment is
consistent with applicable provisions of the Lathrop General Plan and will implement
the City' s Economic Development goals by facilitating a variety of retail,  office,

services, etc. within the undeveloped commercial land along Interstate 5 ; and

WHEREAS, proper notice of this public hearing was given in all respects as
required by law; and

WHEREAS,  the City Council has reviewed all written evidence and oral
testimony presented to date.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop based on substantial evidence in the administrative record of proceedings
and pursuant to its independent review and consideration,  does hereby approve
Municipal Code Amendment as shown on Attachments ' 3" and 7" of the April 10,

2023 City Council Staff Report, incorporated by reference herein.

683



NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP DOES

HEREBY ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1.      The Lathrop Municipal Code is hereby amended as shown in

Attachments  " 3"  and  " 7"  of the staff report that accompanied this ordinance,

incorporated by reference herein.

Section 2.     This ordinance is not intended to and shall not be construed or given
effect in a manner that imposes upon the city or any officer or employee thereof a
mandatory duty of care toward persons and property within or without the city so
as to provide a basis of civil liability for damages, except as otherwise imposed by
law.

Section 3.     Severabilitv.     If any section,   subsequent subdivision,   paragraph,
sentence,  clause or phrase of this Ordinance is for any reason held to be

unconstitutional or otherwise invalid, such a decision shall not affect the validity of
the remaining portions of this Ordinance.   The City Council hereby declares that it
would have passed each section,  subsection,  subdivision,  paragraph,  sentence,

clause or phrase of this Ordinance irrespective of the unconstitutionality or

invalidity of any section,  subsection,  subdivision,  paragraph,  sentence,  clause or

phrase.

Section 4.     Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall take legal effect 30 days from and

after the date of its passage.

Section 5.     Publication.   Within fifteen days of the adoption of this Ordinance, the

City Clerk shall cause a copy of this Ordinance to be published in full accordance
with Section 36933 of the Government Code.

684



THIS ORDINANCE was introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council of the
City of Lathrop on the 10t" day of April 2023, and was PASSED AND ADOPTED at

a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Lathrop on by
the following vote, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

SONNY DHALIWAL, MAYOR

ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

685



RESOLUTION NO. 23-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

AMENDING THE MOSSDALE LANDING URBAN DESIGN CONCEPT TO LIMIT

HOTEL DEVELOPMENT IN THE MOSSDALE VILLAGE DEVELOPMENT AREAS

TA- 23- 32)

WHEREAS,  the City of Lathrop Planning Commission held a duly noticed
public hearing at a Special meeting on March 29, 2023, at which they adopted PC
Resolution No.   23- 4 recommending City Council adopt Municipal Code Text

Amendment No. TA- 23- 32 pursuant to the Lathrop Municipal Code; and

WHEREAS,  the City of Lathrop City Council held a duly noticed public
hearing at a regular meeting on April 10, 2023 to review and consider amendments
to the Permitted and Conditional Land Use List for Mossdale Landing,  Mossdale

Landing East, and Mossdale Landing South Urban Design Concepts to Regulate and
Limit Hotel Development in Mossdale Village; and

WHEREAS,  the proposed the proposed amendment is limited to Mossdale
Landing,   Mossdale Landing East,   and Mossdale Landing South Urban Design

Concepts of Mossdale Village; and

WHEREAS,  major amendments to the Mossdale Landing Urban Design

Concept requires Planning Commission approval which can be deferred to the City
Council; and

WHEREAS,  the proposed code amendment is exempt according to the
California Environmental Quality Act  ( CEQA)  Article 5  § 15061 by the  " Common

Sense Exemption"  that CEQA applies only to projects that have a potential for
causing a direct physical change in the environment,  or a reasonably foreseeable
indirect physical change in the environment; and

WHEREAS,   the City Council finds that the proposed amendment is

consistent with applicable provisions of the Lathrop General Plan and will implement
the City' s Economic Development goals by facilitating a variety of retail,  office,

services, etc. within the undeveloped commercial land along Interstate 5 ; and

WHEREAS, proper notice of this public hearing was given in all respects as
required by law; and

WHEREAS,  the City Council has reviewed all written evidence and oral
testimony presented to date.

686



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop hereby make the following findings:

Section 1.   That certain documents entitled Permitted and Conditional Land

Use List for  " Mossdale Landing,  Mossdale Landing East,  and Mossdale Landing
South"  Urban Design Concepts,  as illustrated and incorporated by reference as
Attachment 4,  5,  and 6  ( respectively)  of the City Council Staff Report is hereby
approved.

Section 2.   The criteria herein shall become effective upon the date of this

Resolution.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Lathrop
based on substantial evidence in the administrative record of proceedings and
pursuant to its independent review and consideration,   does hereby approve

amendments to the Permitted and Conditional Land Use List for Mossdale Landing,
Mossdale Landing East, and Mossdale Landing South as shown on Attachments 4",

5"  and  " 6"  of the April 10,  2023 City Council Staff Report,  incorporated by
reference herein.

687



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 10t" day of April 2023, by the
following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

688



CO- CL: Commercial Office Zoning District— Chapter 17. 62 Mark- Up ATTACHMENT 3

New text is shown by underline; deleted text is shown by 

Chapter 17.62 CO- CL: Commercial Office Zoning District

17. 62. 072 Permitted uses.

G •]

B.    Service retail uses including, but not limited to:

1.    Fur repair and storage

2.    Automobile repair

3.    Automobile upholstery and top shops

4.    Banks/ credit unions/ savings and loans/ financial institutions

5.    Facial/ massage

6.    Cafeterias

7.    Catering

8.    Cleaning, pressing and dyeing establishments ( using noninflammable and
nonexplosive cleaning fluid)

9.    Day care centers

10.  Emergency medical/ dental clinics, and prescribing pharmacies within

11.  Electronics repair

12.  Employment agency

13.  Equipment rental

14.  Rug cleaning and dyeing

15.  Hotel/ e/ apartment hotels ( stibject to Chapter 17. 78 Hotel Limitations)

16.  Inns providing temporary visitor accommodations and accessory recreational and
commercial facilities

G • l

689



CS- MV: Mossdale Landing UDC Mark- Up ATTACHMENT 4

New text is shown by underline; deleted text is shown by *
r;vo*, r^„ n,

Permitted and Conditional Land Uses— Service Commercial, Mossdale Landing

Conditional Uses:

Administrative offices- City, county, state, and federal
Auditoriums / Concert Hall

Adult Novelty Store
Ambulance Stations

Any facility or business serving alcoholic beverages or selling hard alcohol.
Any facility or business producing excessive noise, sounds or music.
Billiards/ Pool Hall

Bowling Alley
Business and professional schools and colleges
Car Wash

Church/ Religious Facility
Cocktail Lounge/ Bar

Community/ Civic Centers
Skating rinks and other similar commercial recreation facilities.
Expansion or remodeling of an existing non- conforming use of a structure or land,
up to 50°Io or less of the value of the structure, or reestablishment of a nonconforming
use which has been damaged, except non- conforming signs and
outdoor advertising structures, non- conforming uses occupying a structure with
an assessed valuation of less than $ 200, and non- conforming fences, walls and
hedges.

Fire/ Police Station

Gaming/ Gambling/ Bingo Parlor
Gas and electrical transmission lines

Gas/ Service Station/ Convenience store

Governmental offices

Hospital / Medical center

Hotel ^^ ( subject to LMC Chaptei• 17. 78 Hotel Limitations)

Library
Museums

Nightclub/ Micro- brewery
Recreational facility/ Indoor
Senior/ Youth Centers

Temporary Christmas tree lot
Temporary pumpkin patch
Theater ( Dinner, Movie, Live, etc.)

Transit Stations

Urban Design Concept Page 25

690



CH- MV & CS- MV: Mossdale Landing East UDC Mark- Up ATTACHMENT 5

New text is shown by underline; deleted text is shown by l

Permitted and Conditional Land Uses — Highway Commercial, Mossdale Landing East

Conditional Uses:

Administrative offices- City, county, state, and federal
Amusement/ Arcade

Auditoriums / Concert Hall

Adult Novelty Store
Ambulance Stations

Any facility or business producing excessive noise, sounds or music.
Beer/ Wine store

Billiards/ Pool Hall

Bowling Alley
Business and professional schools and colleges
Car Wash

Church/ Religious Facility
Community/ Civic Centers
Skating rinks and other similar commercial recreation facilities.
Expansion or remodeling of an existing non- conforming use of a structure or land,
up to 50% or less of the value of the structure, or reestablishment of a nonconforming
use which has been damaged, except non-conforming signs and
outdoor advertising structures, non- conforming uses occupying a structure with
an assessed valuation of less than $200, and non- conforming fences, walls and
hedges.

Fire/ Police Station

Gaming/ Gambling/ Bingo Parlor
Gas and electrical transmission lines

Gas/ Service Station/ Convenience store

Governmental offices

Hospital/ Medical center

Hotel ^^ sub ject to L,MC Chaptei• 17. 78 Hotel Limitations)

Library
Museums

Nightclub / Cocktail Lounge/ Bar

Private Clubs

Recreational facility/ Indoor
Senior/ Youth Centers

Temporary Christmas tree lot
Temporary pumpkin patch
Theater ( Dinner, Movie, Live, etc.)

Transit Stations

Urban Design Concept Page 27

691



CH- MV & CS- MV: Mossdale Landing East UDC Mark- Up ATTACHMENT 5

Permitted and Conditional Land Uses— Service Commercial, Mossdale Landing East

Conditional Uses:

Administrative offices- City, county, state, and federal
Amusement/ Arcade

Auditoriums/ Concert Hall

Adult Novelty Store
Ambulance Stations

Any facility or business producing excessive noise, sounds or music.
Beer/ Wine store

Billiards / Pool Hall

Bowling Alley
Business and professional schools and colleges
Car Wash

Church/ Religious Facility
Cocktail Lounge/ Bar

Community/ Civic Centers
Skating rinks and other similar commercial recreation facilities.
Expansion or remodeling of an existing non- conforming use of a structure or land,
up to 50% or less of the value of the structure, or reestablishment of a nonconforming
use which has been damaged, except non-conforming signs and
outdoor advertising structures, non- conforming uses occupying a structure with
an assessed valuation of less than $ 200, and non-conforming fences, walls and
hedges.

Fire/ Police Station

Gaming/ Gambling/ Bingo Parlor
Gas and electrical transmission lines

Gas/ Service Station/ Convenience store

Governmental offices

Hospital/ Medical center

Hotel r (subject Co LMC Chapter 17. 78 Hotel Limitations)

Library
Museums

Nightclub

Private Clubs

Recreational facility/ Indoor
Senior/ Youth Centers

Temporary Christmas tree lot
Temporary pumpkin patch
Theater ( Dinner, Movie, Live, etc.)

Transit Stations

Urban Design Concept Page 37

692



CS- MV: Mossdale Landing South UDC Mark- Up ATTACHMENT 6

New text is shown by underline; deleted text is shown by l

Permitted and Conditional Land Uses— Service Commercial, Mossdale Landing South

Conditional Uses:

Administrative offices- City, county, state, and federal
Amusement/ Arcade

Auditoriums/ Concert Hall

Ambulance Stations

Any facility or business producing excessive noise, sounds or music.
Billiards/ Pool Hall

Bowling Alley
Business and professional schools and colleges
Car Wash

Cocktail Lounge/ Bar

Community/ Civic Centers
Skating rinks and oCher similar commercial recreation facilities.
Expansion or remodeling of an existing non-conforming use of a structure or land,
up to 50% or less of the value of the structure, or reestablishment of a nonconforming
use which has been damaged, except non-conforming signs and
outdoor advertising structures, non- conforming uses occupying a structure with
an assessed valuation of less than $ 200, and non- conforming fences, walls and
hedges.

Fire/ Police Station

Gaming/ Gambling/ Bingo Parlor
Gas and electrical transmission lines

Gas/ Service Station/ Convenience store

Governmental offices

Hospital / Medical center

Hotel ( subject to LMC Chapter 17. 78 Hotel Limitations)

Library
Museums

Nightclub

Private Clubs

Recreational facility/ Indoor
Senior/ Youth Centers

Temporary Christmas tree lot
Temporary pumpkin patch
Theater ( Dinner, Movie, Live, etc.)

Transit Stations

Water quality ponds/ associated facilities

Urban Design Concept Page 25

693



Chapter 17. 78 Hotel Limitations ATTACHMENT 7

New text is shown by underline; deleted text is shown by 1

Chapter 17J8 Hotel Limitations

17. 78,() l{) Purpc se

1_ 1; pui- 7tie a l int nc of thi; i:h rr ter is to delii i; t} e r_oi in< distric. t virer hc tcl

cstahlish ents are limitetl.  Ttie p• ovisions af this chapter are in acidition ta ar v other perrnits,
licenses and approvals which ma b quired to o erate i hotel establishment business in the
citv.

17.78.020 Applicabilitv

This section ap lies to the followin zoning districts:

CO- CL Commercial Office, Central Lathrop

CS- MV Service Commercial Mossdale Villa e

CH-MV, Highway Commercial, Mossdale Villa e East

CS- MV, Service Commercial, Mossdale Village East

CS- MV, Service Cor lmercial, Mossdale Village South

17. 78. 030 Maximum Allowed

The number of hotels permitted to operate in the city within the zonin districts li ted in
Section 17. 78. 020 at any one given time shall be a total of six ( 6).

694



A Tl H 1EiVT ,  8     „

CITY OF LATHROP

PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION NO. 23- 4

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANI IING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

RECOMMENDING CITY COUNCIL AMEND TITLE 17 OF THE LATHROP

MUNICIPAL CODE AND APPROVE AMENDMENTS TO THE MOSSDALE

LANDING URBAN DESIGN CONCEPT TO LIMIT HOTEL DEVELOPMENT IN THE
CENTRAL LATHROP SPECIFIC PLAN AND MOSSDALE VILLAGE

DEVELOPMENT AREAS ( TA- 23- 32)

WHEREAS, the City of Lathrop Planning Commission held a duly noticed public hearing to
consider the text amendment pursuant to the Lathrop Municipal Code; and

WHEREAS, the proposed text amendment applies to the Central Lathrop Specific Plan and
Mossdale Village development areas; and

WHEREAS, Chapter 17. 124 of the Lathrop Municipal Code mandates the transmittal of a
recommendation to the City Council by resolution; and

WHEREAS, major amendments to the Mossdale Landing Urban Design Concept require
Planning Commission approval; and

WHEREAS,  the proposed text amendment is exempt according to the California
Environmental Quality Act ( CEQA) Article 5 § 15061( b)( 3) by the " Common Sense Exemption" that
CEQA applies only to projects that have a potential for causing a direct physical change in the
environment, or a reasonably foreseeable indirect physical change in the environment; and

WHEREAS, the Planning Corrunission finds that the proposed text amendment is consistent
with applicable provisions of the Lathrop General Plan and will implement the City' s Economic
Development goals; and

WHEREAS, proper notice of this public hearing was given in all respects as required by
law; and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has reviewed all written evidence and oral testimony
presented to date.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Planning Commission of the City of
Lathrop based on substantial evidence in the administrative record of proceedings and pursuant to its
independent review and consideration, does hereby recommend the City Council ( 1) adopt an

Ordinance to add Chapter 17. 78 Hotel Limitations and modify Section 17. 62. 072 of the Central
Lathrop Commercial Office Zoning District of the Lathrop Municipal Code; ( 2) adopt a Resolution

amending the Permitted and Conditional Land Use List for Mossdale Landing, Mossdale Landing
East, and Mossdale Landing South Urban Design Concepts Limit Hotel Development in the Central
Lathrop Specific Plan and Mossdale Village development areas as shown in Attachments 2 through
6 of the Staff Report, incorporated by reference herein.

Planning Commission Resolution No. 23- 4 Page 1 of 2

695



PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Planning Commission of the City of Lathrop at a
Special meeting on the 29`' day of March, 2023 by the following vote:

AYES:  Rhodes, Ishihara, Gatto, Ralmilay

NOES:  None

ABSTAIN:    None

ABSENT:      Jackson

Gloryanna Rhodes, Chair

ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM:

ark eis ner,    cretary Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

Planning Commission Resolution No. 23- 4 Page 2 of 2

696



ITEM 5. 2

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

APRIL 10, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM: RECEIVE UPDATE FOR AQUIFER STORAGE AND

RECOVERY, APPROVE AMENDMENT NO. 1 WITH

CAROLLO ENGINEERS, INC. CIP PW 22- 36 AND

APPROVE BUDGET AMENDMENT

RECOMMENDATION:       Adopt Resolution to Approve Amendment No. 1

with Carollo Engineers,  Inc.  for the Aquifer

Storage and Recovery,  CIP PW 22- 36 and

Approve Budget Amendment

CEQA STATUS:  Staff has determined the CEQA status for the

project to date as exempt according to

California Environmental Quality Act Article 18
15262, Feasibility and Planning Studies"

SUMMARY:

Aquifer Storage and Recovery ( ASR) is a water resources management technique for
actively storing water underground during wet periods for recovery when needed.
The injection and extraction of water is accomplished using a well and is permitted
though the State Water Board.

On January 10, 2022 Council approved the creation of Capital Improvement Project
CIP) PW 22- 36 ASR and a professional services agreement with Carollo Engineers,

Inc. ( Carollo) for completing the engineering feasibility study and preliminary design
for the project. As a result of Carollo completing the ASR feasibility study and initial
design,  they determined that the proposed site location is feasible for the ASR
project.  At the request of staff, Carollo has provided a proposal to provide additional
engineering services needed to support the next design and bidding phases of the
project.

Staff requests that Council approve Amendment No.  1 with Carollo for the services

included in Tasks 1- 6 of their proposal for a cost of  $ 1, 547, 242 for additional

research, design and bidding assistance services.  Sufficient funds were not included

in the adopted FY 22/ 23 Budget for CIP PW 22- 36;  therefore, staff requests that

Council approve a budget amendment allocating   $ 1, 701, 966   ( including 10%

contingency) of the Water Fund 5620.

BACKGROUND:

The City' s drinking water comes from two sources, local groundwater and surface
water purchased from the South San Joaquin Irrigation District ( SSJID). The City' s
water supply historically has been very reliable and staff has taken the necessary
steps to plan for future growth and the corresponding water needs; however, there
are emerging risks that the ASR project could help mitigate.

697



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

APRIL 10, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVE AMENDMENT NO.   1 WITH CAROLLO ENGINEERS,   INC.   FOR

AQUIFER STORAGE AND RECOVERY, CIP PW 22- 36 AND APPROVE BUDGET

AMENDMENT

These risks include but are not limited to, prolonged droughts, new State regulatory
requirements, emerging groundwater contaminants, and management of upstream
reservoirs.

On January 10, 2022 Council approved the creation of CIP PW 22- 36 Aquifer Storage
and Recovery and a Professional Services Agreement with Carollo Engineers,  Inc.

Carollo for completing an engineering feasibility study and preliminary design for the
project.   Carollo has completed the ASR feasibility study and initial design and has
determined that the proposed site location in River Islands is favorable for the ASR
project.  Carollo Engineers,  Inc.  has provided a proposal to provide additional
engineering services required for the next phases of the ASR project.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

An ASR project would considerably enhance reliability and mitigate emerging risks to
the City' s water supply by pumping and storing surface water acquired from SSJID
during wet periods into the ground allowing for later retrieval and utilization during
dry seasons, droughts, or instances of water supply shortage.

CEQA STATUS:

Staff has determined the CEQA status for the project to date as exempt according to
California Environmental Quality Act Article 18  § 15262,  " Feasibility and Planning
Studies".  Staff will be retaining the De Novo Planning Group to prepare an Initial
Study/ Mitigated Negative Declaration for this project during this next phase.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Amendment No.  1 in the amount of $ 1, 547, 242 for the ASR design and bidding
assistance services with Carollo.    Staff requests that Council approve a budget
amendment allocating $ 1, 701, 966 ( including 10% contingency) of the Water Fund

5620.  Sufficient funds were not included in the adopted Fiscal Year 22/ 23 budget for

these costs, and therefore, staff is requesting Council approve the following budget
amendment:

Increase Transfers Out

5620- 99- 00- 990- 90- 10 1, 701, 966

Increase Transfers In

5690- 99- 00- 393- 00- 00 PW 22- 36 1, 701, 966

Increase Expenditures

5690- 80- 00- 420- 12- 00 PW 22- 36 1, 701, 966

698



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

APRIL 10, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVE AMENDMENT NO.   1 WITH CAROLLO ENGINEERS,   INC.   FOR

AQUIFER STORAGE AND RECOVERY, CIP PW 22- 36 AND APPROVE BUDGET

AMENDMENT

ATTACH M ENTS:

A.  Resolution Approving Amendment No.  1 with Carollo Engineers, Inc. for the

Aquifer Storage and Recovery,   CIP PW 22- 36 and Approving Budget

Amendment

B.  Amendment No.  1 with Carollo Engineers, Inc. to Provide the Lathrop Aquifer
Storage and Recovery Well Design Services , CIP PW 22- 36

699



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 4

APRIL 10, 2023 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVE AMENDMENT NO.   1 WITH CAROLLO ENGINEERS,   INC.   FOR

AQUIFER STORAGE AND RECOVERY, CIP PW 22- 36 AND APPROVE BUDGET

AMENDMENT

APPROVALS:

if'^ r   JaL

Greg G'  son Date

Senior Civil Engineer

FpR I S 2023

Brad Taylor Date

City Engineer

l- a..3
Cari J Date

Finance Di ctor

2023

Michael King Date

Assistant City Manager

2i
1

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

L3
Steph       . Salvatore Date

City Manager

700



RESOLUTION NO. 23-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING AMENDMENT NO. 1 WITH CAROLLO ENGINEERS, INC. FOR THE

AQUIFER STORAGE AND RECOVERY,   CIP PW 22- 36 AND APPROVING

BUDGET AMENDMENT

WHEREAS,   the City' s drinking water comes from two sources,   local

groundwater and surface water purchased from the South San Joaquin Irrigation
District ( SSJID); and

WHEREAS, the City' s water supply historically has been very reliable and staff
has taken the necessary steps to plan for future growth and the corresponding water
needs; however, there are emerging risks that the ASR project could help mitigate;
and

WHEREAS, these risks include but are not limited to, prolonged droughts, new
State regulatory requirements,    emerging groundwater contaminants,    and

management of upstream reservoirs; and

WHEREAS, an ASR project would considerably enhance reliability and mitigate
emerging risks to the City' s water supply by pumping and storing surface water
acquired from SSJID during wet periods into the ground allowing for later retrieval
and utilization during dry seasons, droughts, or instances of water supply shortage;
and

WHEREAS, on January 10, 2022 City Council approved the creation of Capital
Improvement Project PW 22- 36 Aquifer Storage and Recovery and a Professional
Services Agreement with Carollo Engineers,  Inc.  for completing an engineering
feasibility study and preliminary design for the project; and

WHEREAS, Carollo has completed the ASR feasibility study and initial design
and has determined proposed site location is favorable for the ASR project; and

WHEREAS,  at the request of staff,  Carollo Engineers,  Inc.  has provided a
proposal to provide additional engineering services for the next phases of the ASR
project described under Tasks 1- 6 of their proposal for a cost not to exceed

1, 547, 242; and

WHEREAS, sufficient funds were not included in the adopted Fiscal Year ( FY)
22/ 23 Budget,  so therefore,  staff is requesting that Council approve a budget
amendment allocating $ 1, 701, 966 ( including an approximate 10% contingency) of

the Water Fund 5620 for Carollo to continue provide engineering design services for
the CIP PW 22- 36 ASR project; and

WHEREAS, the CEQA Status for this project to date has been determined by
staff to be exempt according to California Environmental Quality Act Article 18

15262, " Feasibility and Planning Studies".

701



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the City Council of the City of Lathrop
does hereby approve Amendment No.  1 with Carollo Engineers, Inc. in the amount

of $ 1, 547, 242 for continued engineering support services for the CIP PW 22- 36
Aquifer Storage and Recovery; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the City Council of the City
of Lathrop hereby approves the budget amendment to the following accounts:

Increase Transfers Out

5620- 99- 00- 990- 90- 10 1, 701, 966

Increase Transfers In

5690- 99- 00- 393- 00- 00 PW 22- 36 1, 701, 966

Increase Expenditures

5690- 80- 00- 420- 12- 00 PW 22- 36 1, 701, 966

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the City Council of the City
of Lathrop hereby determines this action is exempt according to California

Environmental Quality Act Article 18 § 15262, Feasibility and Planning Studies".

702



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 10th day of April 2023, by the
following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

703



AMENDMENT NO. 1

TO THE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF LATHROP AND
CAROLLO ENGINEERS, INC.

TO PROVIDE THE LATHROP AQUIFER STORAGE AND RECOVERY
WELL DESIGN SERVICES, CIP PW 22-36

THIS AMENDMENT  ( hereinafter  " AMENDMENT NO.  1")  to the agreement

between Carollo Engineers,  Inc.,  and the City of Lathrop dated April 10,  2023

hereinafter" AGREEMENT") dated for convenience this day of April 2023, is by and
between Carollo Engineers,  Inc.  (" CONSULTANT")  and the City of Lathrop,  a

California municipal corporation (" CITY");

RECITALS:

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is specially trained, experienced, and competent to
perform Professional Engineering Consulting Services for the City of Lathrop, which are
required by this agreement; and

WHEREAS, CITY selected the CONSULTANT pursuant to said qualifications; and

WHEREAS,  on January 10,  2022,  CONSULTANT and CITY entered into an

AGREEMENT to provide the Lathrop Aquifer Storage and Recovery and Feasibility Study
and Funding Support, CIP PW 22- 36, not to exceed $ 301, 744; and

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT provided scope of work attached hereto as Exhibit " A"
for Amendment No. 1 for Lathrop Aquifer Storage and Recovery Well Design Services,
CIP PW 22-36.

NOW, THEREFORE, CONSULTANT and the CITY agree as follows:

AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO AGREEMENT

1)      Scope of Service.   Section ( 1) of the AGREEMENT for Consulting is
hereby amended to add the following:

CONSULTANT agrees to perform Engineering Services in accordance with Tasks
1 — 6 of the scope of work and fee proposal provided by CONSULTANT, attached
hereto as Exhibit " A" in addition to the scope of work in the original AGREEMENT

dated January 10, 2022.

CONSULTANT agrees to diligently perform these services in accordance with the
upmost standards of its profession and to CITY' S satisfaction.

Page 1 of 3704



CITY OF LATHROP — CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT AMENDMENT NO. 1

WITH CAROLLO FOR LATHROP AQUIFER STORAGE AND RECOVERY WELL

DESIGN SERVICES, CIP PW 22- 36

2)      Compensation.     Section  ( 2)  of the AGREEMENT for Consulting
Services is hereby amended as follows:

City hereby agrees to pay CONSULTANT an additional sum of 1 547 242 for

services set forth in Tasks 1- 6 listed of Exhibit " A" of this Amendment No. 1, with a

total sum not to exceed of $ 1, 848, 986 ($ 301, 744 for the original AGREEMENT,

1, 547, 242 for AMENDMENT NO. 1). CONSULTANT shall be paid within thirty
30) days of receipt of billings containing all information contained in Paragraph 5

of the original AGREEMENT. Compensation for any task must be equal to or less
than the percentage of task complete. In no event shall CONSULTANT be entitled
to compensation for work not included in the original scope of work and this

AMENDMENT unless a written change order or authorization describing the extra
work and payment terms has been executed by CITY' S Authorized Representative
prior to the commencement of the work.

3)      Effective Date and Term

The effective date of AMENDMENT NO. 1 is April       , 2023, and it shall terminate

no later than June 30, 2024. All other terms of the original AGREEMENT shall

remain in full force and effect.

4)      Applicabilitv to Oriqinal Consultant AGREEMENT

All terms and conditions set forth in the AGREEMENT dated January 10th, 2022
are still in effect and are incorporated by reference herein and said AGREEMENT
is incorporated by reference herein.

5)      Siqnatures

The individuals executing this AMENDMENT NO.  1 represent and warrant that
they have the right, power, legal capacity, and authority to enter into and to execute
this AMENDMENT NO.  1 on behalf of the respective legal entities of the

CONSULTANT and the CITY.  This agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be

binding upon the parties hereto and their respective successors and assigns.

Page 2 of 3705



CITY OF LATHROP - CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT AMENDMENT NO. 1

WITH CAROLLO FOR LATHROP AQUIFER STORAGE AND RECOVERY WELL

DESIGN SERVICES, CIP PW 22- 36

Approved as to Form: City of Lathrop
City Attorney

y y_ z ` 3

Salvador Navarrete Date

Recommended for Approval: City of Lathrop
Public Works Director

Michael King Date

Approved by:       City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Stephen J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

Consultant:  Carollo Engineers, Inc.

2880 Gateway Oaks Drive, Suite 300
Sacramento, CA 95833

Federal ID #

Business License #

Signature Date

Print Name and Title

Signature Date

Print Name and Title

Page 3 of 3706



EXHIBIT A

SCOPE OF SERVICES

CITY OF LATHROP

AND

CAROLLO ENGINEERS, INC.

AQUIFER STORAGE AND RECOVERY WELL DESIGN

PURPOSE OF PROJECT

This Scope of Services defines Carollo Engineers, Inc.' s ( CONSULTANT) scope, schedule, and

budget for furnishing design services for the Aquifer Storage and Recovery ( ASR) Well Design
Project ( Project). The project scope generally includes design of a new ASR well ( Well ASR1)
with a proposed production capacity of 900 gpm ( aquifer storage of up to 1450 acre-feet per
year[ AFY]), site mechanical improvements, electrical facilities, and ancillary piping. Treated
surface water will be supplied to the ASR well from the nearby South San Joaquin Irrigation
District ( SSJID) turnout ( see Attachment 1). Production water will be discharged to the existing
storage tanks adjacent to the ASR well site.

This scope of services has been developed based on prior work and findings from the Aquifer
Storage and Recovery Feasibility Study and Funding Support Project ( CIP PW 22- 36) and
includes preliminary and detailed design, project bidding and engineering services during
construction, ASR well commissioning, and related support tasks.

CONSULTANT' S SERVICES

CONSULTANT will perform the following services:

Task 1: Project Coordination and Administration

Task 2: Data Collection and Preliminary Design
Task 3: DWSAP Report and Outside Agency Permitting
Task 4: Detailed Design

o Package 1: ASR Well Drilling, Development, and Testing
o Package 2: ASR Well Equipping and Site Improvements

Task 5: Permitting Assistance

Task 6: Bidding Assistance

Task 7: Package 1 ( Well Drilling) Engineering Services During Construction
Task 8: Package 2 ( Well Equipping) Engineering Services During Construction
Task 9: ASR Well Commissioning

Optional Task 10: Additional Monitoring Well Depth and Coring
Optional Task 11: Grant Administration Support

pw:/ ICarollo_ 200000/ Documents/ CA1Lathrop\ 200919- 000000101 Project Management\ Ot Pre- Contract\Design Page 1 of 12

March 2023

707



TASK 1 — PROJECT COORDINATION AND ADMINISTRATION

This task provides for the following:

Task 1. 1 Project Monitoring and Administration

Maintain project coordination between the City of Lathrop ( CITY) and CONSULTANT team
members, including subconsultants. This task includes development of the QA/ QC plan and
Project Guide, preparation of monthly status reports, internal team meetings, regular
correspondence with team members, and review of work progress for quality and completion.
Monthly status reports will include the following:

Description of work completed in reporting period
Percentage complete to date by task and subtask
Schedule and budget status

Deliverable status

Key decisions and action items
Potential project issues

Task 1. 2 Kickoff and Project Progress Meetings

Monitor project schedule and budget on a continuous basis and prepare monthly invoices and
progress reports for submittal to CITY.

This task includes one project kickoff meeting, monthly ( virtual) design progress meetings, and
three project progress meetings to convene with CITY staff, discuss review comments, and

track key decision items. The kickoff meeting will be held shortly after Notice to Proceed. Project
progress meetings are scheduled to occur after CITY review of the draft Preliminary Design
Report, 60% design, and 90% design deliverable milestones.

Task 1 Deliverables

QA/ QC Plan and Project Guide

Monthly invoices, project status reports, and schedule updates

Meeting agendas and minutes

Decision item, action item, and comment log updates

Task 1 Meetinqs

Kickoff meeting ( in- person)
Preliminary Design Report review workshop ( in- person)
60% design review workshop ( in- person)
90% design review workshop ( in- person)
Monthly design progress meetings ( 12 assumed; virtual conference)

TASK 2 — DATA COLLECTION AND PRELIMINARY DESIGN

This task provides for the following:

Task 2. 1 Data Collection and Review

Available project data will be collected and reviewed by CONSULTANT. This includes record
drawings, local utility information, hydrogeologic data, groundwater quality information, water
distribution system data, San Joaquin County Environmental Health Department data, and

pw: l/Carollo_ 200000/ DocumentslCAlLathrop1200919- 000000\ 01 Project Managemenfl0l Pre- ContractlDesign Page 2 of 12

March 2023

708



findings of previous work. Available data will be used to inform the other work items under this
task.

Task 2. 2 Surveying and Mapping

This task includes completion of a design- level topographic survey by O' Dell Engineering. The
survey extent includes the proposed ASR well site, portions of the adjacent tank site, and a
portion of the paved access road leading to the project area. See Attachment 1 for project
location. Record drawings for the tank site will be reviewed to determine approximate as- built

locations of underground facilities for background site map development.

Task 2. 3 Geotechnical Investigation

ENGEO has completed prior geotechnical investigations and furnished geotechnical
recommendation for other improvements at and adjacent to the project site. ENGEO will be
retained to review prior geotechnical data and provided updated geotechnical recommendations
for the following:

Earthwork and grading.
Evaluation and mitigation of geologic hazards.
Current seismic design parameters.
Approximate depth to groundwater.

Foundation recommendations for the ASR well building.
On- grade concrete slabs.
Flexible pavement improvements.

Structural improvements for this project are assumed to be limited to at- grade concrete
equipment slabs, a wellhead pedestal, and a conventional single- story cement masonry unit
CMU) building. ENGEO' s recommendations will be presented in a Geotechnical Report Update

Memorandum and supplemented with existing geotechnical data that ENGEO has previously
obtained in the immediate vicinity of the project site.

Task 2. 4 Monitoring Well Installation and Analyses

As described in the ASR feasibility study, Luhdortf& Scalmanini Consulting Engineers ( LSCE)
will obtain the services of a licensed well driller to complete a second on- site monitoring well to
an approximate depth of 900 ft below ground surface ( BGS). The monitoring well will be used to
evaluate groundwater conditions to the stated depth and be used to determine the design depth
of the ASR well.

Update Groundwater Moundinq Analvsis

The quantity of the available recharge water is a major consideration with regard to
assessing the feasibility of recharge. LSCE will conduct screening level groundwater/ surface
water modeling to assess the technical and practical feasibility of the proposed ASR project.
The groundwater modeling evaluation will simulate the effects of recharge on the water table
and vadose zones and also be used as a tool to evaluate volumes and rate( s) of recharge

and to simulate how the groundwater responds under various recharge scenarios. LSCE will
build upon previous work to efficiently develop GIS mapping solutions, numerical modeling,
and will utilize supplemental information from the CITY. LSCE will also utilize information

developed by previously conducted pumping tests and will rely on that information to refine
aquifer parameters. MODFLOW and MT3DMS will be used to estimate groundwater flow,

pw:llCarollo_ 200000/ DocumentslCAlLathrop 200919-000000\01 Project Management101 Pre- Contract\ Design Page 3 of 12

March 2023

709



mounding ( groundwater rising), travel times, underground retention times ( URT) and

transport of recharge water. The modeling effort will yield calibrated aquifer parameters to
augment future modeling efforts that will eventually be needed. The initial development of
estimated injection volume will be conducted after the completion of Task 2. 1 ( data

collection and review) and 2. 4 ( monitoring well installation) which will be critical to
addressing the following questions:

Where may aquifer recharge be feasible, at what rates, and native water quality.

How much surface water may be available for recharging, when surface water is
available, and what is its water quality.

How much water is required to meet existing and future demands.

Update Geochemical Modelinq

LSCE will build upon previous work to efficiently conduct the modeling update. Geochemical
analysis for this ASR phase of the project will be preliminary, focusing on known or potential
geochemical issues. For this desktop geochemical evaluation, the geochemical modeling
program PHREEQC or Geochemist' s Workbench will be used to conduct a mixing analysis
and to identify the potential for geochemical reactions that could result in a reduction in the
injection efficiency of the ASR system. The chemistry of all potential water sources that
might be mixed will need to be available including groundwater chemistry from all locations
of potential injection wells as well as the chemistry of injected water. Mixing ratios will be
derived from modeling efforts and the full spectrum of mixing ratios will be included in the
modeling.

Task 2. 5 Preliminary Design Report

The Preliminary Design Report ( PDR) will serve as the basis for final construction documents.
The PDR will include findings and recommendations from the ASR feasibility study, data
collection and review ( Task 2. 1), surveying and mapping ( Task 2. 2), geotechnical investigation
Task 2. 3), and monitoring well installation ( Task 2. 4). Based on discussions with CITY staff, the

ASR well will receive injection water from the nearby SSJID turnout; ASR well discharge water
will be conveyed directly into the on- site CITY-owned storage tanks. Supplemental booster
pumping out of the storage tanks is excluded from this scope of work.

The PDR will include a Class 5 estimate of probable construction cost as defined by AACE
International and a preliminary construction schedule for project completion.

A draft PDR will be submitted for CITY review and then refined and resubmitted in final version

following the PDR review meeting. All key decisions, action items, and responses to CITY
comments will be tracked and submitted with the final PDR.

Task 2 Assumptions

CITY will furnish all available reports and studies, including hydrogeologic data,
groundwater quality information, water distribution system data, and hydraulic model
files where required.

Record drawings and as- built data for the SSJID and CITY improvements on the ASR

well site will be sufficient for development of yard piping drawings; supplemental
potholing and utility locating are excluded from this scope of work.

pw:l/Carollo_ 200000/ Documents/ CA1Lathrop1200919- 000000101 Project Management101 Pre- Contract\Design Page 4 of 12
March 2023

710



All project improvements will occur within the ASR well site and the adjacent ( existing)
storage tank site as shown on Attachment 1.

Design of off- site improvements is excluded from this project.

Based on the ASR feasibility study, a pH adjustment system will be required prior to
injecting SSJID- supplied water. Assumptions for the pH adjustment system include:

o SSJID water will be supplied at a pH ranging from approximately 7. 8 to 8. 0.

o pH will be adjusted to down to approximately 7. 0 to 7. 2 prior to injection.

o Recovered water pH will be raised from approximately 7. 0- 7. 2 to approximately
pH 7. 9 prior to discharge to the CITY distribution system.

o pH reduction will be by either carbon dioxide or sulfuric acid. CONSLTANT will
perform a planning level alternatives analysis with process flow diagrams,
preliminary site layouts, and planning level cost estimates for each ( two
alternatives total).

o pH increase will be by caustic soda. No alternative chemicals will be evaluated.

o CONSULTANT will use the RTW model to evaluate chemical doses required

based on expected water quality as provided by the CITY.

o The PDR will document design doses, chemical strength, storage volumes, and

other chemical system design criteria for selected alternative.

o CITY will provide:

Water quality from SSJID to be used for modeling chemical doses
required to achieve target pH changes.

Target CITY distribution system pH.

Water quality of the water recovered from the ASR well for modeling
chemical doses required to achieve target pH changes.

Distribution system water quality modeling is excluded from this scope of work.

Structural improvements for this project are assumed to be limited to at- grade concrete
equipment slabs, a wellhead pedestal, and a conventional single- story cement masonry
unit ( CMU) building to house the ASR well pedestal and related electrical equipment.

The local storm drainage and/ or sanitary sewer collection systems are sufficiently sized
to handle periodic pump- to-waste flows from the ASR well; CITY staff will provide
confirmation of available storm and/ or sewer system capacity via hydraulic modeling or
other methods.

All deliverables will be provided in electronic format (PDF).

Task 2 Deliverables

Draft and final Geotechnical Update Memorandum

Draft and final Preliminary Design Report

pw:/ ICarollo_ 200000IDocuments/ CA\ Lathrop1200919- 000000101 Project Management101 Pre- ConVactlDesign Page 5 of 12

March 2023

711



TASK 3 - DWSAP REPORT AND OUTSIDE AGENCY PERMITTING

The State Water Resources Control Board ( SWRCB) has recently recognized that it is the best
interest of the state to develop a comprehensive regulatory approach for ASR projects and has
adopted general water discharge requirements for ASR project that inject drinking water into
groundwater (Order No. 2012- 0010- DWQ or ASR General Order). The ASR General Order
provides a consistent statewide regulatory framework for authorizing both pilot ASR testing and
permanent ASR projects. LSCE and CONSULTANT will conduct a pre- application meeting with
both the RWQCB and the California Division of Drinking Water ( DDV to review the proposed
well site and approach to construct and test Well ASR1. LSCE will evaluate and summarize the

DDW permitting requirements for Well ASR1 and prepare the required DDW submittal. The
initial DDW submittal document will request siting concurrence for the new well based on
compliance with SWRCB setbacks. Concurrence on the well siting is required to proceed with
the design and construction of the well. LSCE will also make other DDW submittals for the

preliminary and final amended water supply permit. The preliminary water supply permit
includes well design information, site plan, and preliminary Drinking Water Source Assessment
and Protection ( DWSAP) application. The Final water supply permit submittal will include
updates to the information from the preliminary submittal in addition to the Operations Plan, well
and chlorination data sheets, an engineering report, and final as- built diagrams.

LSCE will contact all applicable agencies as needed to establish permitting requirements for
well drilling and construction, flood plain mitigations, encroachment permits, Waste Discharge
Requirements, discharge to sanitary sewer, and electrical service application.

Task 3 Deliverables

Notice of Intent ( NOI) Application Package

Preliminary and final DWSAP Report

Well Completion Report

Task 3 Assumptions

Any and all necessary temporary construction easements, permanent easements,
and/ or land acquisition services will be obtained and/ or furnished by the CITY.

TASK 4- DETAILED DESIGN

Two separate design packages are assumed under this task:

Package 1: ASR Well Drilling, Development, and Testing.

Package 2: ASR Well Equipping and Site Improvements.

This scope of work assumes that Package 1 will be completed first and advertised for bid such

that the well drilling, development, and testing operations will be completed prior to completion
of Package 2 design.

Task 4. 1 Package 1 - Plans, Specifications, and Estimate

LSCE will prepare 95% and 100% specifications and bid set submittals that will include detailed

construction requirements that must be followed by the well drilling contractor during every
phase of the project, including the minimum acceptable methods for drilling fluid control,
conditioning of the borehole for casing and gravel envelope installation, well development and

pw: l/Carollo_ 200000/ Documents/ CA1Lathrop1200919- 000000101 Project Management101 Pre- ContractlDesign Page 6 of 12

March 2023

712



testing, and performance standards. Other site- specific items will include requirements for site

security/ access control, sound barriers, containment and disposal of drill cuttings and handling
of discharge water during development and test pumping in accordance with applicable local,
state, and federal regulations.

LSCE will provide front end specifications to supplement CITY- provided front- end documents,
tech specifications, drawings, engineers cost estimate and schedule.

Task 4. 2 Package 2 - 60% Plans, Specifications, and Estimate

For Package 2, CONSULTANT will design site civil, mechanical, and electrical improvements

for injecting treated surface water into the ASR well and discharging groundwater to the
adjacent tank site.

CONSULTANT will develop 60% plans, specifications, and construction cost estimates for the

ASR Well Design Project. The project is assumed to consist of the following basic elements:

New ASR well.

Installation of a new motor control center( MCC) and related electrical facilities.

CMU building to house the ASR well, pH adjustment system( s), MCC, and variable

frequency drive ( if required).

Ancillary site, civil, piping, and mechanical improvements.

Carbon dioxide or sulfuric acid storage and feed system as determined in the PDR

alternatives analysis.

Caustic soda storage and feed system.

All cost estimates will be prepared in accordance with AACE International guidelines.

Following CITY review of the 60% design submittal, CONSULTANT will meet with CITY to solicit

feedback, review comments, and discuss next steps.

Task 4. 3 Package 2 - 90% Plans, Specifications, and Estimate

Following receipt of all CITY comments on the 60% design submittal, CONSULTANT will

develop the 90% design submittal. All comments, decisions, and action items will be logged for

record. CONSULTANT will provide a comments response log with the 90% design submittal for

CITY review. Following CITY review of the 90% design submittal, CONSULTANT will meet with

CITY to solicit feedback, review comments, and discuss next steps.

Task 4.4 Package 2 - Bid Documents

Following receipt of all CITY comments on the 90% design submittal, CONSULTANT will

develop the Bid Documents submittal. All comments, decisions, and action items will be logged

for record. CONSULTANT will provide a comments response log with the Bid Documents
submittal for CITY review.

Task 4 Deliverables

60% design submittal ( Package 2)

90% design submittal ( Package 2)

95% design submittal ( Package 1)

pw: l/Carollo_ 200000/ Documents/ CA1Lathrop1200919- 000000101 Project Management101 Pre- ContractlDesign Page 7 of 12

March 2023

713



Bid set submittal ( Packages 1 and 2)

Task 4 Assumptions

All deliverables will be provided in electronic format ( PDF).

CITY comments will be compiled into a single document for CONSULTANT review.

CITY front-end documents will be provided for CONSULTANT review and use.

Well drilling, development, and testing will be submitted as a separate design package.

Soils are assumed to be adequate for traditionally founded structures; deep foundations
will not be required.

The proposed ASR well building will be sized to house the ASR wellhead, immediate
downstream mechanical improvements, chemical storage and feed systems, and related

electrical facilities ( MCC and variable frequency drives, if required).

ASR well injection and discharge connections will be made to existing on- site yard piping
facilities.

ASR well instrumentation will tie into existing on- site facilities.

pH adjustment chemical system assumptions:

o Chemical storage and feed will be housed inside the CMU building with the ASR
well and electrical equipment. If carbon dioxide is selected, the storage will be in

an outdoor tank. Separate rooms will be provided for each chemical.

SCADA programming and integration services are excluded from this scope of work.

Design of the following improvements are excluded from this scope of work:

o Permanent and temporary emergency generators.

o On- site fire protection facilities.

o Off-site pipelines, including water, storm, and sewer facilities.

o Natural gas facilities.

o Site security improvements.

o SCADA network upgrades and improvements.

o The site is located on CITY owned property and no further easements or land
acquisitions are required for project development.

TASK 5 - PERMITTING ASSISTANCE

This task provides for the following:

Task 5. 1 Permitting Assistance

This task includes supplemental agency coordination and completion of necessary permits not
included under Task 3. Coordination with the SWRCB, DDW, and San Joaquin County
Environmental Health Department (SJCEHD) related to permitting for drilling, construction, and
testing of the new well is anticipated. The contractor selected to drill the production well will be
responsible for procurement and administration of the drilling permit. CONSULTANT and LSCE

pw: llCarollo_ 200000IDocumentslCA\ Lathrop1200919- 000000101 Project Management101 Pre- ContractlDesign Page 8 of 12

March 2023

714



will submit plans and applications and administer other permits as needed. This task assumes
the CITY will be responsible for payment of all filing fees.

Task 5 Assumptions

Forty (40) staff hours, including two meetings with agency leads in the Sacramento or
Lathrop areas, are assumed for Task 5. 1.

CITY will retain a third- party CEQA consultant for environmental planning and permitting;

CEQA, CEQA- Plus, and NEPA permitting efforts are excluded from CONSULTANT' s
scope of services.

CONSULTANT will furnish technical data to the CEQA consultant under Task 5. 1.

TASK 6 — BIDDING ASSISTANCE

This task provides bidding assistance for two separate bid packages ( Package 1 and Package
2) as described under Task 4. This task provides for the following:

Task 6. 1 Attend Pre-Bid Conference

CONSULTANT' s Project Manager or Project Engineer will attend the pre- bid conference for
Package 2 as scheduled by the CITY and note any questions for later response by addendum.

Task 6. 2 Prepare Addenda

CONSULTANT and/ or LSCE will prepare addenda in response to questions received by the
CITY in writing. CONSULTANT and/ or LSCE will submit the addenda to the CITY directly for
distribution to prospective bidders.

Task 6. 3 Bid Tab Analysis

LSCE ( Package 1) and CONSULTANT ( Package 2) will review the submitted contractor bids

and prepare a bid tab evaluation for the CITY.

Task 6 Assumptions

CITY will administer the bid process, including posting bid advertisements, receiving
questions from prospective bidders, issuing responses to questions ( responses provided
by CONSULTANT and/ or LSCE), scheduling pre- bid conferences, receiving bids,
publicly opening bids, and posting bid results.

Up to two addenda for each bid package are assumed under this task.

CITY will receive written questions from prospective bidders and provide to
CONSULTANT and/ or LSCE for response.

CITY will distribute addenda to prospective bidders.

TASK 7 — PACKAGE 1 ENGINEERING SERVICES DURING CONSTRUCTION

Task 7. 1 Pre- Construction Conference

LSCE will attend a pre- construction conference with the contractor to answer technical or logistical

questions concerning project approach and completion.

Task 7. 2 ASR Well Construction Oversight

LSCE will provide the following services during construction of Package 1:

pw:/ICarollo_ 200000/ DocumentslCAlLathrop\ 200919- 000000\ 01 Project Management\ 01 Pre- ContractlDesign Page 9 of 12

March 2023

715



Verify ASR well location.

Witness conductor/ surface casing installation.

Monitor drilling operations and borehole construction.

Inspect and verify casing and screen materials.

Witness borehole conditioning and casing assembly installation.

Inspect gravel pack and seal placement and estimate final quantities for installation.

TASK 8 — PACKAGE 2 ENGINEERING SERVICES DURING CONSTRUCTION

Task 8. 1 Pre- Construction Conference

CONSULTANT` s Project Manager and Project Engineer will attend a pre- construction conference
with the contractor to answer technical or logistical questions concerning project approach and
completion.

Task 8. 2 Engineer Site Visits and Progress Meetings

CONSULTANT` s Project Manager or Project Engineer will attend regular progress meetings for the
duration of construction. This task assumes attendance at up to 24 meetings over a 12- month
construction duration.

Task 8. 3 Respond to RFIs

CONSULTANT will respond to requests for information ( RFIs) submitted by the contractor to the
CITY or Construction Manager. Responses will be submitted in writing and delivered to the CITY or
third- party construction manager via email. Review of up to 15 RFIs is assumed under this task.

Task 8. 4 Shop Drawing Submittal Review

CONSULTANT will review shop drawing submittals for compliance with project plans and
specifications. Review of 40 submittals and resubmittals is assumed under this task.

Task 8. 5 Change Order Review

CONSULTANT will review proposed change orders and assist the City and Construction Manager
with response preparation. If required, supplemental drawings and specifications will be prepared for
the change order response. Up to four change orders are assumed under this task.

Task 8. 6 Final Acceptance Walk

CONSULTANT' s Project Manager or Project Engineer will attend a final acceptance job walk as
scheduled by the City and Construction Manager and note any final items required for project
completion.

Task 8. 7 Record Drawings

CONSULTANT will prepare record drawings based on as- built markups provided by the contractor
or CITY' s third- party construction manager.

Task 8 Assumptions

The total duration of construction will not exceed 12 months with active, on- site

construction ( excluding material procurement periods) requiring approximately 6 months.
Due to uncertain conditions in material supply chains and the current bidding
environment, this is a preliminary estimate of construction schedule based on available

pw:/ ICarollo_ 200000/ Documents/ CA1Lathrop\ 200919- 000000\ 01 Project Management101 Pre- Contract\ Design Page 10 of 12

March 2023

716



information; the anticipated construction schedule will be updated as design progresses
and submitted to the CITY with each design deliverable ( see Task 4).

Attendance at up to 24 on- site construction progress meetings is assumed.

Responses to up to 70 RFIs and 100 shop drawing submittals are assumed.

Responses to up to four design clarifications or change orders are assumed.

Materials testing during construction will be the responsibility of the CITY or CITY' s
designated third- party construction manager.

TASK 9 — ASR WELL COMMISSIONING

This task provides for ASR well " cycle one" commissioning support, including interim recharge,
to evaluate the operation of the ASR well and adjust controls to optimize long- term operation.
ASRS will prepare an O& M manual; conduct operator training; provide a first- year cycle- testing
plan to guide ASR operations; monitor data from well operations during the first year after
completion of wellhead facilities; and recommend any needed adjustments. The cycle one
commissioning support is anticipated to occur over a duration of 12 months.

OPTIONAL TASK 10 — ADDITIONAL MONITORING WELL DEPTH AND CORING

This optional task provides for modifications to the monitoring well construction described under
Task 2. 4. This option will not be initiated until approved by the CITY in writing.

Optional Task 10. 1 Additional Monitoring Well Depth

The optional task provides for drilling the monitoring well deeper than the depth stated under
Task 2. 4. The cost associated with this task includes drilling to a maximum depth of 1, 500 ft
BGS. If an intermediate depth ( less than 1, 500 ft BGS) is desired by the CITY, a modified
drilling cost can be provided.

Optional Task 10. 2 Wireline Coring of Monitoring Well

This optional task provides for wireline coring of monitoring well (described under Task 2. 4 and
Optional Task 10. 1) to better evaluate geophysical conditions and potential geochemical reactions to
ASR operations in the target aquifer. The cost associated with this task includes wireline coring
within the monitoring well to a maximum depth of 1, 500 ft BGS. If an intermediate depth ( less

than 1, 500 ft BGS) is desired by the CITY, a modified coring cost can be provided.

OPTIONAL TASK 11 — GRANT ADMINISTRATION SUPPORT

CONSULTANT will assist CITY staff with administrative tasks required to comply with grant
funding requirements. Anticipated tasks include preparation of quarterly progress reports,
project completion reports, and post- construction reports. The final level of effort will depend on

the grant awarded and CITY staffing needs. This task assumes up to 80 CONSULTANT staff
hours, including one meeting with CITY staff.

TIME OF PERFORMANCE

CONSULTANT will perform the scope of services for Task 1 through Task 6 over an assumed
12- month duration. The durations for Tasks 7 and 8 ( Engineering Services During Construction)
will be established following completion of Task 2 ( Data Collection and Preliminary Design) but

pw:UCarollo_ 200000/ DocumentslCA\ Lathrop1200919- 000000\ 01 Project Management\ 01 Pre- ContractlDesign Page 11 of 12
March 2023

717



currently assume a duration of 12 months. The duration of Task 9 ( ASR Commissioning
Support) assumes a duration of 12 months.

PAYMENT

Payment to the CONSULTANT for services performed under this Agreement shall be based on
the attached fee proposal ( Attachment 2) on a time and materials basis. The not-to-exceed cost
limit to the CONSULTANT' s services, excluding optional tasks, shall be $ 2, 280, 423.

Including optional tasks, the not- to- exceed limit to the CONSULTANT' s services shall be
3, 061, 822.

pw:/ICarollo_ 200000/ DocumentslCAlLathrop\ 200919- 000000101 Project Managementl0l Pre- ContractlDesign Page 12 of 12
March 2023

718



CITY OF LATHROP

AQUIFER STORAGE AND RECOVERY WELL DESIGN PROJECT

FEE PROPOSAL Engineers... workirrg worrders wm water

MARCH 2O23

s+rofeat

YOtal

1 Project Coord. and Admin.       114     -     -     -    114   $   30, 518  $  2, 136  $   32, 654 $      - S      - $      -  $   13, 653  $ 85, 395  $  131, 702

2  ata Collection and PDR 346     -     -     4 350   $   82, 306  $  5, 100  $   87, 406  $  9, 240  $  3, 520  $  8, 800  $  387, 860  $ 41, 250  $  538, 076

3 DWSAP Report 44     -     -     -    44   $   10, 788  $   916  $   11, 704  $      - $      - $     - $   27, 500  $  8, 131  $   47, 335

4 DetailedDesign 1, 332 284 260 120 1, 996  $  455, 068  $ 27, 944  $  483, 012  $      - $ 51, 480  $     -  $   12, 75fi  $ 236640  $  783, 887

5 Permitting Assistance 40     -     -     -    40   $   10, 788  $   560  $   11, 348  $      - $      - $     -  $       - $     -  $   71, 348

6 BiddingAssislance 44 B     -     -    52   $   12, 652  $   728  $   13, 380 $      - $   770 $     -  $   2,624  $ 18, 119  $   34, 893

Phase 1( Design) Su6total 1, 920 292 260 124 2, 596 S 602. 120 S 37, 384  $  639, 504 E 9, 240 S 55, 770 E 8, 800 E 444, 392 E 389, 535 S 1, 547, 242

7 Package 1 ESDC i2     -     -     -    12   $   3, 348  $   168  $   3, 516 $      -  $     - $     -  $   96, 096 $      - $   99, 612

8 Package 2 ESDC 1, 434 32 120     -   1, 586  $  412, 066  $ 24, 204  $  436, 270 $      - $ 10, 230  $     - $       - $ 141, 900  $  588, 400

9 Commissioning 72     -     -     -    72   $   18, 008  $  7, 768  $   79, 176 $      - $      - $      - $       - $ 25, 993  $   45, 169

Phase 2( ESDC) Subtotal 1, 518 32 120     -   7, 670 S 433, 422 S 25, 540 S 458, 962 S      - S 10, 230 S     - S 96, 096 S 167, 893 S  33, 181

project7otal xcWdesOptional)    : 7, 438 334 380 ..  7Y4 4, Z8G  AA35,Sd2 S 82,824 ; 1.,4B8, 4b8 E 8, 2A0  86, Op0 - S  . 0 3 540, 488 i 5$ 7, 4R8 S 2, 80,428

Ootional Tasks

10 Additional MW Depth and Conng 2     -     -     -    20   $   5, 580  $   280  $   5, 860 $     -  $      - $     -  $  731, 379  $ 22, 000  $  759, 239

11 GrantAdministretionSupport SO     -     -     -    SO   $   21, 040  $  1, 120  $   22, 160 $      - $     - $      -  $       - $     -  $   22, 160

ProJeatTataljincludes. Op8ana1)     9,938 324 3$ 0 ; 9Y4 d:364 5 t, Ofi2, 1? i B i,324 S 1 126,{ 96 , i.:  8.2A4 ; 66. fi0 1 .: 3 8,b90 :; 1, 27A, E67 S S79, dR6 i 3, 061; 8Y2.

Notes:

1) Rates are based on Carollo Engineers, Inc., Fee Schedule as of Jan 1, 2023 for Califamia.

2) Other direct costs( ODC) include mileage traveling to/ fmm meefings at IRS Federal Rate, trevel at cost and Project Equipment and Communication Expense( PECE) at$ 14 per direct labor hour.

3) Includes Subconsultant markup of 10%.

pw:\\ IO- PW- INT. carollo. local: Carollo 3/ 28/ 2023

719



CAROLLO ENGINEERS, INC.

FEE SCHEDULE

As of January 1, 2023
California

Hourly Rate

Engineers/ Scientists

Assistant Professional 214. 00

Professional 263. 00

Project Professional 311. 00

Lead Project Professional 330. 00

Senior Professional 349. 00

Technicians

Technicians 161. 00

Senior Technicians 224. 00

Support Staff

Document Processing / Clerical 143. 00

Project Equipment Communication Expense 14. 00

PECE) Per DL Hour

Other Direct Expenses

Travel and Subsistence at cost

Mileage at IRS Reimbursement Rate 655 per mile
Effective January 1, 2023

Subconsultant cost + 10%

Other Direct Cost cost + 10%

Expert Witness Rate x 2. 0

This fee schedule is subject to annual revisions due to labor adjustments.

720



ATTACHMENT 1

t  "    

y,, 

9
s    (    .M.    

r m 

r

Q
t ya            

NI
l1Y      ,,.

s«.';,     ,. ...     •    
qd

F'... '*".

M

9

ewfi J

a'

r.

9

w. w iw,       A yrosy m%  
b o

i= xF   ,

v

Y .,.,_,,,,,,       .. , ,
e.«,».,—....:.., .,..,    ,•'. C«.  .  .     ., .,...

fs,       
T

E

CITY DISTRIBUTION

PUMP STATION

a-    

t} '     
z n  itEy n*. y: p f ',;`-.,.      _    _   ,.

u     ...

v

i:.   

v f

FUTURE CITY
r  _ 

y'        

STORAGE TANKS °   u

y    ,,

a,.
r,     

y

t  

b, i s= t
c;     

y,

a.

SSJID TURNOUT
M

tl,,,

i

t'
k t. ,  

nr

q..     a b° x::.     

PROPOSED ASR'
WE LL BUILDING

r

a,  '   
a''

ASR TEST WELL.:   
a- 

LOCATION ( APPROX )   f 7x     

r" ,' a`   '

k . o y             r     

x,    
u , a 

3    #
s1t: z ;,

t;    

CITY STDRAG TANK      
t,;  :

r .    .
r

721



722


	2023-04-10 City Council Regular Meeting Agenda
	MONDAY, APRIL 10, 2023
	AGENDA

	2023-04-10 Item 4.2 Approve Minutes for the Sp. Council Meeting of January 23, 2023 & Regular Meeting of February 13, 2023
	2023-04-10 Item 4.3 Second Reading & Adoption of Ordinance 23-444
	2023-04-10 Item 4.4 Acceptance of the City of Lathop Annual Comprehensive Financial Report for FY Ending June 30, 2022
	2023-04-10 Item 4.5 Approve Memorandum of Understanding with Lathrop Police Officers Association
	2023-04-10 Item 4.6 Approve Out-Of-State Travel for One (1) LPD Sergeant to Attend Canine Program Mgmt Course in May 2023
	2023-04-10 Item 4.7 Approve Amendment No. 2 with Robert Half Int'l, Inc. to Provide Professional Svcs in the Bldg Division
	2023-04-10 Item 4.8 Approve Prof. Svcs Agmt with Butler Amusements, Inc. to Provide Law Enforcement Svcs for Annual Carnival Event
	2023-04-10 Item 4.9 Approve Community Partnership Agmt btwn the City of Lathrop and the Juneteenth Committee
	2023-04-10 Item 4.10 Approve FY 2023-24 Project List Associated with Senate Bill 1
	2023-04-10 Item 4.11 Approve Professional Services Agmt with Robertson-Bryan, Inc. for the City's Industrial Pretreatment Prog
	2023-04-10 Item 4.12 Approve Professional Svcs Agmt with FGL Environmental for Water Quality Laboratory Svcs for the City's Drinking Water Prog
	2023-04-10 Item 4.13 Approve Contract Change Order No. 3 & No. 4 with Cushman Contracting Corporation for CIP WW 20-17
	2023-04-10 Item 4.14 Approve Purchase from Zima Corp., Headwork Equipment for the CTF Phase 3 Expansion, CIP WW 22-38
	2023-04-10 Item 4.15 Ratify San Joaquin Council of Governments' Annual Financial Plan
	2023-04-10 Item 4.16 Ratify City Manager's Execution of Construction Contract with Nor-Cal Concrete for Temp. Animal Shelter Concrete, CIP GG 23-06
	2023-04-10 Item 4.17 Ratify City Manager's Signature & Approve Option & Tower Lease Agmt with Verizon Wireless
	2023-04-10 Item 4.18 Ratify the Purchase of Camera Surveillance Systems for Major City Parks, CIP GG 22-35
	2023-04-10 Item 4.19 Create CIP PS 23-18 for McKinley Avenue Pavement Rehabilitation
	2023-04-10 Item 4.20 Grand Jury Report Response Update
	2023-04-10 Item 4.21 Authorize the Formation of Community Facilities District No.2023-1
	2023-04-10 Item 4.22 Accept Public Improvements from River Islands Development for Various Tracts, Accept R.I. Pkwy with Associated Condition
	2023-04-10 Item 5.1 Public Hearing to Consider Municipal Code Amendment to Zoning Ordinance and Mossdale UDC (TA-23-32)
	2023-04-10 Item 5.2 Receive Update for Aquifer Storage & Recovery, Approve Amendment No. 1 with Carollo Engineers, Inc., CIP PW 22-36



